NUREG-0587

Analyses of Comments on 10 CFR Part 72

Manuscript Completed: October 1980 Date Published: November 1980

D. W. Reisenweaver

Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555



8011240420 THIS D

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS POOR QUALITY PAGES

INTRODUCTION

A proposed new regulation, 10 CFR Part 72, "Licensing Requirements for the Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)," was published for comment in the Federal Register, October 6, 1978 (Vol. 43, No. 195, pages 46309-46321). In response to this request for comments, the NRC received seventy letters presenting the views of individuals, utility companies, government agencies, law firms, and other interested organizations.

All of these comments were considered with respect to improving and revising the final text of 10 CFR Part 72. This document presents the staff's analyses of these comments. Chapter I contains a summary discussion of major issues as listed in Table of Contents; Chapter II contains the staff discussion of individual comments.

To reduce repetition in Chapter II, similar comments were combined. The comments, and the staff discussions of the comments, are arranged according to the subject matter and applicable sections of the proposed new regulation as published. The source of each comment is identified by author and PDR number.

To further avoid repetition, revisions of the rule have not been repeated in individual discussions as a copy of the revised text of the rule with changes and additions underlined is provided in Appendix A, "Comparative Texts of the Proposed and Final Rule."

Appendix B contains copies of the individual comment letters received.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Subject

Page No.

CHAPTER I

SUMMARY DISCUSSION OF MAJOR ISSUES

General Subje s

1	Need for a Rule at this Time	
2	Purpose and Scope of Part 72	
3.	De Facto Support of Nuclear Power	
4.	Adequacy of Technology Base	
5.	Is Spent Fuel Storage a Low Risk Operation?	
6.	Stringency of Some Provisions of Rule	ľ
7.	Arbitrary Requirements, Ambiguous Wording	ľ
8.	Rule Needs More Specificity	ļ

SUBPART A - GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.	Purpose and Scope, Coverage of Dry Storage and Existing Facilities.	[-6
2.	Types of Fuel Covered and Decay versus Fuel Charac-	
	teristics	-6
3.	Prevention of Sunk Costs	[-7
4.	The Use of New Site-Related Terms	[-7
5.	Definition of Temporary Storage	[-8
6.	Definition of the term "Independent"	[-8

SUBPART B - LICENSE APPLICATION, FORM AND CONTENTS

1.	Material versus Facility License	1-9
2.	One License Application and One Safety Analysis Report	I-10
3.	Accident Analyses	I-10
4.	Decommissioning Plan	I-10
5.	Prequalification of Part 50 Licensees	I-11
6.	Required Detail and Updating of the SAR	I-11
7.	Content of Environmental Reports	I-12

SUBPART C - ISSUANCE AND CONDITIONS OF LICENSES

1.	Provision for Public Hearings		4			÷	I-12
2	Licensee Organization Limitations		*				I-13
3.	Does Renewal Provide for Permanent Storage?				à.		I-13
4	Justification for Backfitting						I-13
5.	Applicability of License Conditions	ų.		, ¹		8	I-14

Subject			Page No.
SUBPART	D	- RECORDS, REPORTS, INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT	
1.		NRC Form 741	I-14
SUBPART	Ε	~ SITING CRITERIA	
1. 2.		At-Reactor versus Away-From-Reactor Siting	I-14
3. 4. 5. 6. 7.		the Site of an ISFSI	I-15 I-16 I-17 I-20 I-20
8.		Population Distributions	1-20 1-21
SUBPART	F	- GENERAL DESIGN CRITERIA	
1. 2. 3. 4.		Missile Protection	I-21 I-22 I-22 I-22
SUBPART	G	- QUALITY ASSURANCE	
1.		Broadened Applicability of Quality Assurance Program	I-23
SUBPART	Ι	- TRAINING AND CERTIFICATION OF ISFSI PERSONNEL	
1.		Certification versus Licensing of Operating Personnel	I-23
		CHAPTER II	
		DISCUSSION OF INDIVIDUAL COMMENTS	
General	Со	mments	II-1
Dry Stor	ag	e	II-11
SUBPART	A	- GENERAL PROVISIONS	
72. 72. 72. 72. 72. 72. 72.	1 2 3 6 7 8	Purpose	II-13 II-16 II-18 II-30 II-31 II-31

Page No.

Subject

SUBPART B - LICENSE APPLICATIONS, FORM CONTENTS

72.11	Filing of Applications for Licenses:	11-32
72 12	Elimination of Repetition	II-33
72 13	Public Inspection of Application	II-33
72.13	Contents of Application General and	
12.14	Financial Information	II-33
72 15	Contents of Application Technical Information	11-36
72.13	Contents of Applications Technical Qualifications	11-48
72,17	Decompissioning lan Including its Financing	11-48
72.10	Freezense Dian, including its rinancing	11-56
72.19	Emergency Plan	11-56
72.20	Environmental Report	11 50
SUBPART C -	ISSUANCE AND CONDITIONS OF LICENSES	
72.31	Issuance of Licenses	II-62
72.32	Duration of License, Renewal	II-74
72.33	Liceuse Conditions	II-77
72.34	Changes Tests and Experiments	II-82
72 36	Transfer of Licenses	II-82
72 37	Creditor Regulations	II-83
72 38	Applications for Termination of Licenses	II-83
72.00	Modification Revocation and Suspension of Licenses	II-84
72.42	Backfitting	II-84
SUBPART D -	RECORDS, REPORTS, INSPECTION AND ENFORCEMENT	
72.51	Material Balance, Inventory and Records	
	Requirements for Stored Materials	II-87
72.52	Reports of Accidental Criticality or Loss of Special	
	Nuclear Material	II-90
72.54	Nuclear Material Transfer Reports	II-91
72.55	Inspections and Tests	II-92
72.56	Maintenance of Other Records and Reports	II-94
72.57	Violation	II-94
SUBPART E -	SITING CRITERIA	
		11.04
Genera	1 Comments	11-94
72.61	General Criteria	II-96
72.62	Criteria for Design Basis External Natural Events	II-98
72.63	Criteria for Design Basis Man-Induced Events	II-99
72.64	Criteria for Defining Potential Effects of ISFSI	
	on the Region	II-100
72 65	Criteria for Regional Distribution of Population	II-100

Subject

Page No.

SUBPART E - SITING CRITERIA (Continued)

72.66	Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic	
70.07	Characteristics	II-103
12.67	Criteria for Defining Potential Radiological Consequences	II-112
72.XX	Transportation	II-118
SUBPART F -	GENERAL DESIGN CRITERIA	
72.71	General Design Criteria	II-119
SUBPART G -	QUALITY ASSURANCE	
72.75	Quality Assurance Program: Records	II-149
SUBPART H -	PHYSICAL PROTECTION	
72.81	Physical Security Plan	II-152
SUBPART I -	TRAINING AND CERTIFICATION OF ISFSI PERSONNEL	
72.92	Responsibility for Training	II-153 II-154

APPENDIX A

COMPARATIVE TEXTS OF 10 CFR PART 72

ble of Contents	A-2
bpart A - General Provisions	A-4
bpart B - License Application, Form, and Contents	A-11
bpart C - Issuance and Conditions of Licenses	A-19
bpart D - Records, Reports, Inspection and Enforcement	A-33
bpart E - Siting Criteria	A-38
bpart F - General Design Criteria	A-43
bpart G - Quality Assurance	A-50
bpart H - Physical Protection	A-51
bpart I - Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel	A-52

APPENDIX B

COMMENT LETTERS

PDR No.

1.	Women's International League for Peace and Freedom	B-1
2.	D. Kell, (Individual), Tallahassee, Fla	B-2
3.	Nebraska Department of Environmental Control	B-5
4.	Connecticut - Department of Environmental Protection	B-6

- C .		L	-	-	Ŀ.,
- 24	1.11	1.1	63	P 1	£ .
10	- 11	UP .]	Sec	Sec. 1	64

and a					
C2	-	-	-	- 84	100
P.	14		5.2	1.04	
	-	~ 4	- C		S. 1

100	100	8.0	
41	18	NO	

5.	A. Abriss - NRC/NMSS Staff		ŝ,	•	ć.					-			B-7
6.	T. C. Buschbach, St. Louis University		e,		*					*	*	÷.,	B-8
7.	Dames and Moore	•					*			ł.			B-10
8.	Duplicate of Letter No. 2		÷,					4., 1					B-11
9.	C. F. Braun & Co	÷	*	÷	•	e.		ų,		•			B-12
10.	M. Young, Allied-General Nuclear Services				i,			*	•		1		B-17
11.	Ohio - Power Siting Commission	÷.	÷							*			B-23
12.	Tennessee Valley Clean Energy Alliance .	*			,	*	÷		•				B-24
13.	Florida - State Energy Office		÷	*			*	×				*	B-25
14.	Michigan - Office of the Governor				×	•						•	B-26
15.	Washington - State Energy Office		÷			÷ :	×	*		*			B-27
16.	H. Ashar - NRC/OSD Staff		÷	*	κ.	•				×	×	•	B-28
17.	F. Anderson - NRC/OSD Staff			ŝ									B-30
18.	Public Utility Commission of Texas		÷							*	٠		B-37
19.	Oklahoma - State Department of Health .		-	*									B-38
20.	Sue Berg (individual), Chicago, Ill					*		4					B-39
21.	Kaiser Engineers	×				×						•	B-40
22.	Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc	*		*		•						*	B-42
23.	R. Beaver, Oak Ridge National Laboratory	*	×										B-46
24.	D. Wilt (Individual), Cleveland, Ohio .											4	B-47
25.	Duplicate of Letter No. 22		÷			*					÷	•	B-49
26.	Wisconsin Electric Power Co					i.	*	,			*		B-50
27.	Allied-General Nuclear Services	,	,	,									8-53
28.	American Nuclear Society - ANS57.7									1		4	B-57

Subject

Page No.

1000	100	-	1000	
- 12	5.1	U	- 81	de.
	2.3	n -	- 178	63
	-			~

29.	Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C	B-64
30.	M. & J. Neuhauser (Individual), Greensboro, N.C	B-68
31.	M. Chase (Individual), Climas, N.C	B-69
32.	C. Hickerson (Individual), Franklinsville, N.C	B-70
33.	T. Clayton (Individual), Climas, N.C.	B-71
34.	American Society of Civil Engineers	B-72
35.	North Shore Coalition for Safe Energy, Great Neck, N.Y	B-82
36.	Pennsylvania - Bureau of Radiological Health	B-83
37.	Middle South Services, Inc	B-84
38.	Bechtel National, Inc	B-86
39.	Mississippi Power and Light Co	B-92
40.	Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland, representing Township of Lower Alloways Creek, N.J.	B-97
41.	American Nuclear Society - ANS2.19	B-110
42.	U.S. Department of Energy	B-113
43.	Connecticut - Power Facility Evaluation Council	B-121
44.	Gilbert/Commonwealth (AE)	B-123
45.	Northeast Utilities	B-126
46.	Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc	B-128
47.	General Electric Co	B-138
48.	Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad, & Toll, representing the Utility Waste Management Group on behalf of:	B-146
	Arizona Public Service Co. Boston Edison Co. Commonwealth Edison Co. Duke Power Co. Elorida Power & Light Co.	

Georgia Power & Light

Page No.

Subject

PDR No.

	Hou ton Lighting & Power Co. Illirois Power Co. Long Island Lighting Co. Nebraska Public Power District Northeast Utilities Service Co. Pacific Gas & Electric Co. Portland General Electric Co. Power Authority of the State of New York Sacramento Municipal Utility District San Diego Gas & Electric Co. Tennessee Valley Authority Virginia Electric & Power Co. Yankee Atomic Electric Co.	
49.	Louisiana Power & Light Co	B-166
50.	Shaw, Pittman, Potts & Trowbridge, representing Radioactive Waste Management Group, on behalf of:	B-168
	American Electric Power Co. Baltimore Gas & Electric Co. Duquesne Light Co. General Public Utilities Corp. Jersey Central Power & Light Co. Metropolitan Edison Co. Madison Gas & Electric Co. Ohio Edison Co. Pennsylvania Power & Light Co. Kansas Gas & Electric Co. Kansas City Power & Light Co. Northern States Power Co. Rochester Gas & Electric Co. Union Electric Co. Cleveland Electric Illuminating Co. Toledo Edison Co. Wisconsin Electric Power Co. Wisconsin Power & Light Co. Wisconsin Power & Light Co. Wisconsin Power & Light Co.	
51.	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency	B-191
52.	Ebasco Services, Inc	B-192
53.	Department of Water & Power, City of Los Angeles	B-197
54.	Southern Company Services, Inc	B-199
55	Yankee Atomic Electric Co	B-202

Subject

5	-	-	1	8.2	
\mathcal{V}	a	17	<u>0</u>	D4	0
	ca,	-4	5.0	1.4	2.1

Ph.	50	m .	6.2	
\mathcal{L}	11	H.	D4	α.
E	64	5 N.	1.40	GP . A

56.	Commonwealth Edison Co	B-205
57.	New Jersey - Department of Environmental Protection	B-207
58.	Duplicate of Letter No. 43	B-208
59.	Arizona Nuclear Power Project	B-209
60.	Duke Power Company	B-212
61.	Westinghouse Electric Corp	B-215
62.	R. Neil (Individual), Richmond, Va	B-219
63.	Florida Power & Light Co	B-221
64.	Isham, Lincoln & Beale, representing Commonwealth Edison Co	B-223
65.	U.S. Department of Interior	B-224
66.	Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc	B-225
67.	Cleveland Electric Illuminating Co	B-239
68.	Edison Electric Institute	B-241
69.	Stone & Webster Engineering Corp	B-247
70.	New York - Energy Office	B-249
71.	Alli'd Cherical Co. (Idaho)	B-251
72.	Tennessee Valley Authority	B-254
73.	S_ gent & Lundy Engineers	B-267

CHAPTER I

SUMMARY DISCUSSION OF MAJOR ISSUES

General Subjects

1. Need for a Rule at this Time

There is a history of licensing the storage of spent fuel from nuclear power reactors in an away-from-reactor installation under 10 CFR Part 70, "Domestic Licensing of Special Nuclear Material," and this practice could be continued. The spent fuel receiving and storage facility at the Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc.-West Valley plant, which was built for the New York Atomic and Space Development Authority, was covered by a Part 70 license until it was incorporated into the NFS reprocessing plant license. The GE Morris Operation is licensed pursuant to 10 CFR Part 70 covering its present storage-only mode of operation. An application was submitted for licensing under Part 70 of spent fuel receiving and storage activities only at the AGNS-Barnwell reprocessing plant. No action is being taken on this application.

Some licensees and some NRC staff personnel recommended that if an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI) were to be built on the site of an existing licensed reactor, its licensing should be covered by an amendment to the Part 50 facility license for the main plant. However, both 10 CFR Parts 70 and 50 lack specific requirements that are applicable to spent fuel storage in an ISFSI. Part 70 was written primarily to cover the possession of special nuclear material in connection with a manufacturing process such as fuel fabrication. Part 50 is designed to cover "production and utilization" facilities as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954. Its orientation is to the design and operations of such facilities, not a static storage type of operation. (There is also a legal question on its applicability since an ISFSI is not included in the Acts' definition of production and utilization facility.)

In either case, the guidance needed by both a prospective applicant and the NRC staff is lacking on the specific requirements of spent fuel storage in an ISFSI. Lacking specific requirements, licensing actions under either of these regulations must be done on ad hoc case-by-case basis at the risk of inconsistent evaluation and regulation.

Following the President's deferral of reprocessing of spent fuel, announced in April, 1977, came the general recognition that, regardless of future developments, spent fuel would have to be stored for a number of years prior to its ultimate disposition, and that the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI would be a likely additional new step in the nuclear fuel cycle. The NRC expects a number of license applications covering this activity in the near future. Part 72 establishes specific regulatory requirements for this activity.

Fifty commenters showed a broad recognition of the need for the proposed rule at this time and endorsed the proposed action by the NRC, although exceptions were taken to some of the specific requirements. Twelve commenters were opposed to this new rule, and its promulgation at this time. For example, some of these commenters expressed a concern that the promulgation of a rule covering spent fuel storage would decrease pressures on both industry and government to solve the radioactive waste disposal problem. Others advocated a halt to the generation of spent fuel, i.e., shut down nuclear power plants, until the waste problem 'as solved.

It is the judgment of the Commission that the promulgation of Part 72, which is designed to codify certain existing reg. atory practices and better define licensing requirements covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI is consistent with the NRC objective of having applicable regulations in place to meet anticipated needs.

2. Purpose and Scipe of Part 72

There are two aspects to this subject: (1) some commenters consider spent fuel to be a high-level waste and hence the licensing of spent fuel storage is de facto licensing of the temporary storage of high-level waste, and (2) technically, high-level wastes may require temporary storage in a facility like an TSFSI to allow for further radioactive decay prior to placement in a repository.

Part 72 is limited in scope to the temporary storage (up to 20 years with renewal at the option of the Commission) of spent fuel and radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage in facilities specifically designed

I-2

for this purpose. The purpose of Part 72 is to prescribe the regulatory requirements for this activity.

The Commission has stated that spent fuel from power reactors is highlevel waste for the purposes of Section 202(3) of the Energy Reorganization Act.¹ Thus, an ISFSI that is operated by the Department of Energy must be licensed by the NRC.

3. De Facto Support of Nuclear Power

Some comment, s interpreted the promulgation of Part 72 as de facto support by the Commission of the continuing production of electricity by nuclear power (and its resultant waste generation) without a national waste management policy. The Commission's intent in promulgating Part 72 is simply to have applicable regulations in place for the protection of the health and safety of the public and of the environment if applications are received for the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI.

The Commission's position on the subject of waste management was addressed in the FEDERAL REGISTER notice on 10 CFR Part 51, published on August 2, 1979 (44 FR 45362) promulgating a final rule which sets out in Table S-3 -Table of Uranium Fuel Cycle Environmental Data, revised environmental impact values for the uranium fuel cycle including waste disposal and in the notice of proposed rulemaking on 10 CFR Parts 50 and 51. "Storage and Disposal of Nuclear Wastes," published on October 25, 1979 (44 FR 61372).

Adequacy of Technology Base

A number of commenters questioned the adequacy and availability of the technology base for the development of a rule covering extended spent fuel storage. In fact, there is a very broad technology base for both wet and dry modes of spent fuel storage for the contemplated lifetime of an ISFSI.

Water basins are simple structures, that have been used since the mid-1940s for the handling, transfer, and storage of spent fuel and other highly radioactive sources such as ⁶⁰Co and for the shielding of research reactors, initially at government plants, later at commercial reactors. The engineering practices and procedures involved in their design and construction are well

¹Statement by Dr. Joseph R. Hendrie, then Chairman of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission before the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources, U.S. Senate, May 10, 1979.

established. The operation of a water basin is also straigntforward, the water chemistry is well established and the maintenance of high quality basin water is readily achievable. These water conditions are essentially non-corrosive to both the materials involved in the basin itself and the components of spent fuel assemblies from commercial light water reactors. Both experience and theoretical analyses of basin storage conditions indicate that spent fuel can be stored under water for several decades without serious degradation.

Although dry storage has not been used for commercial light water reactor (LWR) fuels, dry storage has been used for a number of years for other types of spent fuels and other highly radioactive materials, particularly at the Idaho Nuclear Engineering Laboratory. Dry storage is used for spent MAGNOX fuels at the Wyfla Power Station in Wales. Canada is developing dry storage for CANDU reactor fuels, and the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) is evaluating the storage of high burnup LWR fuels both in concrete and steel canisters similar to the Canadian design and in near-surface dry-well storage at the Nevada Test Site. Dry storage technology and experience both here and abroad has been published in NUREG/CR-1233, "Dry Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel."

5. Is Spent Fuel Storage a Low Risk Operation?

Some commenters questioned that spent fuel storage is a low risk operation as stated in the preamble to the proposed rule.

Radiological risks to the public result from a release of radioactive materials and their dispersal to the environment. Once in place, spent fuel storage is a static operation and during normal operations, the conditions necessary for the release and dispersal of significant quantities of radioactive materials are not present. There are no high temperatures or pressures present during normal operations or even under design basis accident conditions to cause the release and dispersal of radioactive materials. This is primarily due to the low heat generation rate of spent fuel with more than one year of using before storage in an ISFSI (required by the rule) and with the low inventory of volatile and indicative materials readily available for release to the environs. The long-lived and potentially biologically hazardous materials present in spent fuel are tightly bound up in the fuel materials and are not readily dispersible. The short-lived volatile nuclides, such as ¹³¹I, which could be released by the rupture of fuel assemblies due to accidents or other causes are no longer present in aged spent fuel.

I-4

However, it is essential to maintain safe storage conditions. For water basins, this means that the pool structure, storage racks and possibly other items such as crane tiedowns, must be designed to withstand the maximum potential natural phenomena, including earthquakes, to which the ISFSI may be exposed. For this reason, the rule stresses the selection of sound sites and designing for the most severe natural phenomena reported for the site and surrounding area. The same considerations are applicable to ISFSI designs other than water basins.

6. Stringency of Some Provisions of Rule

Some commenters interpreted some of the requirements of Part 72 to be more stringent than those for reactors, particularly in the areas of siting criteria, general design criteria, deco.missioning, and a broader application of quality assurance programs. It is not so much that the requirements for an ISFSI are more stringent than those for a power reactor, but that the differences reflect the different reles of these facilities in the overall nuclear power industry.

Because the role of an ISFSI is quite different from that of a power reactor, the siting criteria are not comparable. However, the emphasis in Part 72 on selecting the best site from available alternative sites has been retained in the final rule. Because of different requirements, the general design criteria for an ISFSI are not the same nor, as revised, more stringent than those for a power reactor. The requirement that an applicant present a decommissioning plan and design the complex for its ultimate decommissioning is a new requirement in NRC regulations. The application of the quality assurance plan to cover items such as the physical security system is considered good practice.

7. Arbitrary Requirements, Ambiguous Wording

Some commenters expressed concern over what they considered to be arbitrary requirements and mbiguous wording in the proposed rule.

Some people in the nuclear industry consider the storage of aged spent fuel to be such a low risk operation that the regulatory requirements covering this activity should be minimal. The NRC agrees that this is a low risk operation <u>provided</u> the conditions of storage are adequate. The requirements of Part 72 are based on definable needs to ensure such adequacy. The final rule has been revised to eliminate any ambiguity of wording, particularly in the definition of terms used.

8. Rule Needs More Specificity

Some commenters suggested that more specificity in the wording of the requirements of the rule would be desirable.

NRC regulations define general requirements. Regulatory guides, national standards and NRC position papers identify acceptable methods or meeting specific requirements. The NRC does not specify in its regulations the means for meeting the requirements of a regulation because this would put the NRC in the position of licensing its own designs.

Subpart A - General Provisions

1. Purpose and Scope, Coverage of Dry Storage and Existing Facilities.

A number of commenters suggested that the purpose and scope be written in more definitive language and specifically broadened to cover dry storage and other radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage, recognizing that this was intended in the proposed rule.

The wording was changed for improved clarity in response to these suggestions. In addition, paragraph 72.2(c) was added to the scope to clarify the fact that the rule covers both wet and dry storage. Other appropriate changes were made in the body of the rule to further clarify this point.

The Department of Energy (DOE), in particular, suggested that the coverage of existing spent fuel storage facilities be more explicit. In response, paragraph 72.2(d) was added to require existing facilities to meet the requirements of Part 72 except for the site selection criteria in Subpart E.

2. Types of Fuel Covered and Decay versus Fuel Characteristics

Comments were received suggesting that the coverage of the rule be broadened to c ver other than LWR spent fuel, e.g., CANDU reactor fuel that might be received from abroad. In response, the definition of spent fuel was broadened to cover all types of power reactor fuels. Obviously an ISFSI would have to be designed to accommodate the types of spent fuel to be stored and any restrictions on fuel types could be a subject of license conditions.

Some commenters questioned the one-year decay stipulation, preferring this requirement be expressed in terms of specific power, burnup, or other pertinent

fuel characteristics. In practice, specific power is important only for freshly discharged fuel as the power level of the reactor immediately prior to shutdown is the controlling factor for the concentration of short-lived radionuclides present in spent fuel. The long-lived radionuclides present in spent fuel are proportional to burnup; but within the limits of expected burnups, this is not a significant factor for spent fuel aged more than one year.

The one-year decay stipulation has been retrined as this is the basis for the requirements of Part 72, i.e., the presumption is made that no short-lived radionuclides are present and the concentrations of volatile radioactive materials are very substantially reduced. Any facility for temporary storage of fuel irradiated in a power reactor which has not undergone a year's decay, would be 7 censed under Part 50 rather than Part 72.

3. Prevention of Sunk Costs

Some commenters expressed concern over allowing the procurement or manufacture of components of an ISFSI in advance of a license being issued. Their concern was based on the possibility that prior investment by an applicant could be so large that this might be prejudicial to NRC licensing actions, even though such expenditures (sunk costs) are at an applicant's own risk. Such concerns are not applicable to an ISFSI as the major equipment items, such as cranes and spent fuel handling equipment, do not represent a large increment in the cost of an ISFSI.

The Use of New Site-related Terms

One subject of particular interest to many commenters was the use in Part 72 of new site-related terms ("controlled area," "neighboring area," and "region") rather than the more familiar site-related terms used in 10 CFR Parts 20 and 100.

Several considerations went into the development of new terms for siterelated areas around an ISFSI. While, the terminology used in 10 CFR Part 20, specifically 'restricted' and 'unrestricted' areas, applies to all nuclear facilities, it is limited to radiation protection concerns associated with normal operations and the means used by the licensee to control access to areas of potential radiation exposure. With the advent of "as low as is reasonably achievable" objectives and environmental radiation protection standards promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency in 40 CFR Part 190, the term

I-7

"unrestricted" in 10 CFR Part 20 is too narrow in meaning for areas beyond the boundaries of the licensee's property.

The current terminology used in 10 CFR Part 100, specifically 'exclusion area' and 'low population zone', is applicable to postulated radiological consequences from potential accidents in test and power reactors to individuals beyond the site boundary. Its applicability is limited to specific types of nuclear reactors, not other nuclear installations, and to well-defined reference dose guidelines and accompanying risks associated with such nuclear reactors. The terminology used in 10 CFR Part 100 is too restrictive in meaning for use at multi-purpose sites and was never intended to be used for other than reactor sites. The use of these terms from 10 CFR Part 100 for an ISFSI is inappropriate.

Furthermore, the "Report of the Siting Policy Task Force," NUREG-0625, has recommended several changes in the basic criteria of 10 CFR Part 100. Therefore, using the current terminology of 10 CFR Part 100 in 10 CFR Part 72 is not appropriate due to the potential changes that may be made in Part 100. For example, it is proposed to change the term (and definition) of "low population zone" to "emergency planning zone" (EPZ). This terminology was used in the proposed revision of Appendix E (now titled "Emergency Planning and Preparedness for Production and Utilization Facilities") to 10 CFR Part 50, that was published for comment on December 19, 1979. Consistent with this proposed revision, the term "neighboring area" in 10 CFR Part 72 has been changed to "ISFSI - Emergency Planning Zone" (ISFSI-EPZ) because these are comparable in concept. The size of an ISFSI-EPZ is expected to be much smaller than that of a reactor EPZ.

5. Definition of Temporary Storage

In response to comments, a definition of temporary storage has been added as paragraph 72.3(x). Temporary storage, in the context of Part 72, means "interim storage of spent fuel for a limited time only, pending its ultimate disposal."

6. Definition of the term "Independent"

The meaning of the term "Independent" as used in Part 72 when applied to an ISFSI that is located on the site of another licensed facility, was the subject of a number of comments and considerable staff discussion. An ISFSI may be a free-standing, away-from-reactor, fully independent type of facility or it may be located on the site of an existing facility such as a nuclear power plant. Such a location could have the economic benefit of sharing some utilities, services and personnel between the ISFSI and an existing facility on the site.

The rule is applicable to either type of location and an ISFSI may be provided with services from an existing facility and still be considered "independent." The use of services from an existing facility (i.e., electricity, makeup water, waste treatment, etc.) is allowable provided the Commission finds there is reasonable assurance that the construction and operation of the ISFSI will provide adequate protection to the health and safety of the public from the standpoint of both facilities involved.

Any physical connection between facilities must be evaluated, but any penetration of the reactor storage pool walls will be considered a conclusive showing that the ISFSI is not "independent" and hence is not within the scope of Part 72 and should be covered by licensing action under Part 50.

Subpart B - License Application, Form, and Contents

1. Material versus Facility License

Some confusion and misunderstanding over the differences between a Part 70 "material" license and a Part 50 "facility" license was reflected by a number of commenters. Under Part 70, a licensee is authorized to receive title to, own, acquire, deliver, receive, possess, use, and transfer special nuclear material for a stated purpose, such as fuel manufacturing, to be carried out in an approved plant complex; however, the plant itself is not licensed although its operations may be regulated to assure adequate protection of operating personnel and public health and safety. Under Part 50, a licensee is authorized to transfer or receive in interstate commerce, manufacture, produce, transfer, acquire, possess or use any production and utilization facility, as defined by the Atomic Energy Act; the license covers the facility, not the material. The possession of fuel by a reactor licensee is covered under a Part 70 license, which is incorporated into the Part 50 license. The licensing of spent fuel storage in an ISFSI under Part 72 is a possession type of license; however, Part 72 includes requirements for an ISFSI that are conditions under which a license to possess spent fuel will be issued.

I-9

2. One License Application and One Safety Analysis Report

For some time the NRC has endeavored to simplify its regulations and licensing activities. Since spent fuel storage in an ISFSI is a simple operation, does not require a complex plant and is subject to few controversial technical issues, a one step licensing procedure requiring only one application and one SAR was adopted in Part 72. This one step licensing procedure was the subject of a number of comments. It is believed that the rewording of the text of the rule plus the responses to individual comments have clasified requirements. The one application/one SAR principle has been retained in Part 72.

However, it should be recognized that locating an ISFSI on a nuclear power plant site may require an amendment to the Part 50 license to take into account possible interactions with the ISFSI.

10 CFR Part 2 has been amended by adding a new paragraph which provides that an initial decision directing the issurance under Part 72 of an initial license for the construction and operation of an ISFSI shall not become effective until review by the Commission has been completed and that the Director of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards shall not issue an initial license until expressly authorized by the Commission.

Accident Analyses

A number of comments addressed the subject of accident analyses. Particularly an apparent inconsistency between the 24 hours inhalation/ingestion dose addressed in paragraph 72.15(a)(13) and the 2 hours direct radiation dose used as a site evaluation factor in §72.67.

In response to those comments and upon further consideration paragraph 72.15(a)(13) was revised to require accident analyses to cover both immediate dose and long-term dose commitment based on the duration of the postulated event rather than on an arbitrary time limit. Accident criteria to be used in site evaluation were removed from §§72.65 and 72.67 and placed in a new §72.68 which addressed the criteria for establishing the controlled area for an ISFSI.

4. Decommissioning Plan

The requirement in Part 72 that the license application include a plan for decommissioning of the proposed ISFSI and the financial arrangements therefore were the subject of many comments. The reason for this requirement is that the decommissioning plan provides design input (see §72.76) and the basis for the costs of decommissioning. Part 72 makes it a requirement that adequate financial arrangements to cover the cost of decommissioning should be made before a license is issued.

Although decommissioning of an ISFSI should require only the removal of surface contamination, the planning for decontamination and decommissioning is an essential element of design input. The principal value of a decommissioning plan being developed at the license application stage of an ISFSI project is that this plan demonstrates the extent to which the proposed ISFSI has been designed for decommissioning.

The provisions for financing the ultimate decommissioning of an ISFSI were also the subject of many comments reflecting that this is a problem yet to be resolved. This should not be a serious problem as the cost of decommissioning an ISFSI that is designed for decommissioning should be small compared to these costs for some other nuclear facilities.

5. Prequalification of Part 50 Licensees

Some commenters, particularly utilities, suggested that Part 50 licensees should be considered to be prequalified.

This suggestion was not adopted, although no serious difficulty is anticipated in the qualifications of a Part 50 licensee. A Part 50 licensee must satisfy the requirement in Part 72 that an applicant have an adequately trained staff committed to the design, construction and operation of the proposed ISFSI. The storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI is a low risk operation provided the ISFSI is designed, constructed and operated in accordance with required standards. A commitment to this effect on the part of an applicant is considered important.

6. Required Detail and Updating of the SAR

Questions were raised on the required detail in the SAR and its updating. The single license granted under Part 72 prior to the start of construction requires considerable detail in the license application, particularly in the SAR. There must be sufficient detail to:

- support the findings enumerated in §72.31 for the issuance of a license, and
- (2) Serve as the bases for both the license conditions applicable to design and construction and the license conditions, including technical specifications, applicable to operations.

I-11

The wording has been changed throughout the rule to clarify this point.

Updating the SAR during the design and construction phase of the project is required. However, such updating is limited to an elaboration or modification of the information in an approved SAR. Any change involving an unreviewed safety question requires an amendment to the license. An annual updating after the ISFSI is built is required only if changes have been made. The annual updating will also address the significance of any change: to codes, standards, regulations, or regulatory guides which the licensee has committed to meeting that are applicable to the design, construction or operations of the ISFSI. Changes expected at an ISFSI complex after it is built are expected to be limited to support systems with only marginal safety significance. The updating requirement is comparable to the amendment to §50.71 of 10 CFR Part 50, commonly called the "FSAR Update Rule."

7. Content of Environmental Reports

The content of the environmental report required by §72.20 was the subject of a number of comments. The environmental report required for an ISFSI is limited to an evaluation of the environmental impact of the ISFSI on the region in which the site is located including the transportation that is involved. Discussions of generic issues covered by DOE and NRC generic environmental impact statements may be incorporated by reference.

Subpart C - Issuance and Conditions of Licenses

1. Provision for Public Hearings

A number of commenters expressed concern over the omission in the draft of Part 72 of any reference to public hearings or other provisions covering State and local participation in the licensing process. In accordance with the requirements of Section 189a of the Atomic Energy Act, as amended, which provides, in part that "... the Commission shall grant a hearing upon a request of any person whose interest may be affected by the proceeding...," the Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards has established the practice of publicizing proposed spent fuel storage licensing actions and holding public hearings on a request by any person whose interest may be affected. A section based on the provisions of §§2.104 and 2.105 of 10 CFR Part 2 ρ_{∞} been added to the rule. (§72.34).

2. Licensee Organization Limitations

A number of commenters expressed concern over what types of organizations should be granted a license under Part 72. They expressed concern over the need for long term continuity of the organization and its solvency and the funding for ultimate decommissioning of an ISFSI at the end of its useful life.

The NRC recognizes that this could be an important consideration. Obviously, it is not important for another government agency such as DOE. It is probably not too important for a utility that owns a nuclear power plant or for a major U.S. corporation. However, it could be a very important consideration for a corporation of limited resources and experience established for the specific purpose of owning and operating an ISFSI. An application from such an entity will be closely scrutinized on this point.

The NRC is in the process of reevaluating its policy on decommissioning. The plan for accomplishing this is described in NUREG-0436, Revision 1, "Plan for Reevaluation of NRC Policy on Decommissioning of Nuclear Facilities," December 1978. One element of the plan involves a study and evaluation by NRC staff of the alternatives for assuring the funding for decommissioning activities.

3. Does Renewal Provide for Permanent Storage?

Some commenters expressed concern over the possibility that the license renewal provision of the rule could develop into a permanent storage situation.

Part 72 is specifically designed to cover only interim or temporary storage of spent fuel. Permanent storage and/or disposal may require a completely passive system. Such systems will be more appropriately covered under the (Part 60 series) waste management regulations now under development.

Licenses under Part 70 were initially subject to an annual renewal. This has since been extended to a renewal period of five years. For the static type of activity of spent fuel storage in an ISFSI, a renewal period of 20 years is considered appropriate.

4. Justification for Backfitting

A number of commenters expressed concern over the section on backfitting. Their concerns included (1) the inclusion of reductions in occupational exposure as a basis for backfitting and (2) how and by whom backfitting is justified. For the pool types of spent fuel storage with which industry is most familiar, occupational exposure levels can be just as important as the public exposure levels. Hence, the occupation exposure criterion was retained and environmental protection was added as a criterion in the revised rule.

As stated in §72.42(a), the Commission must make a finding that any backfitting ordered will provide substantial additional protection to the environment or occupational or public health and safety.

5. Applicability of Licen e Conditions

Some commenters raised questions on the content and applicability of license conditions, recognizing that license conditions are an important aspect of the single preconstruction license to be issued under Part 72. In response to these comments, the wording of §72.33 was changed to clarify the point that license conditions are applicable to design, construction and operational activ-'+ es. Since license conditions applicable to ISFSI operations are technical in nature, these have been identified by the more familiar term "Technical Specifications."

Subpart D - Records, Reports, Inspections and Enforcement

1. NRC Form 741

The wording of §72.54 was changed in response to suggestions that the Nuclear Material Transfer Report should not be completed until the contents of a shipping cask are verified.

Subpa * E - Siting Criteria

1. At-Reactor versus Away-From-Reactor Siting

Positions on both sides of this subject were expressed by commenters. Some favored restricting the siting of ISFSIs to reactor sites only with the thought that this might reduce perceived transportation risks and keep pressure on reactor owners to help solve the waste management problem. Others favored away-from-reactor siting, perceiving this to be safest solution even though transportation might be increased. Also, some commenters interpreted the promulgation of Part 72 as reflecting an NRC bias favoring away-from-reactor siting This conclusion is not correct. The NRC is not aware of any compelling reasons generally favoring either at-reactor or away-from-reactor siting of an ISFSI. There are many factors to be considered in each situation and in the licensing actions involved; accordingly, the rule permits either.

2. Criteria for Establishing the Controlled Area, Neighboring Area* and Region as Applied to the Site of an ISFSI

A number of commenters expressed the need for criteria for establishing the controlled area, the neighboring area and the region for an ISFSI as terms are used in Part 72 and that there was a potential conflict of terms in the proposed rule. In response to these comments, more definitive criteria have been incorporated into the pertinent section of the rule and clarifying changes in the text and definitions have been made.

Another concern with the implementation of these defined areas for an ISFSI is the possible conflict in terminology for an ISFSI located on the same site with a nuclear power reactor licensed under 10 CFR Parts 50 and 100 requirements.

Part of this concern appears due to a misunderstanding and the impression that the controlled area for an ISFSI is the same as the exclusion area for a reactor and that the neighboring area (since changed to ISFSI-EPZ) for an ISFSI is the same as the low population zone for a reactor. In concept, these areas are similar but the bases for their establishment are different. The controlled area for an ISFSI is not the same as the exclusion area for a reactor because the design basis accidents are different. Reactor accidents involve a potential release of radioactive materials, including short-lived species such as ¹³¹I. Design basis accidents of concern at an ISFSI primarily involve direct radiation from exposure to the spent fuel rather than releases of radioactive materials. The areas requiring control or protective action measures for the protection of the public are quite different and hence using different terminology for each avoids confusion.

The four site-related terms and their definitions, i.e., site, controlled area, neighboring area (now ISFSI-EPZ), and region, establish each of the

*The term "neighboring area" has been changed to ISFSI-EPZ.

→ I-15

geographical areas and the interrelationship that would exist between these areas and the need to protect public health and safety and the environment. The <u>site</u> means the real property on which the ISFSI is located. The <u>controlled</u> <u>area</u>, which may or may not be the same as the site, has the purpose of defining licensee control for meeting regulatory licensing requirements. The controlled area, in most cases, will be enclosed by some physical barrier such as a fence, to provide the needed control of activities within the area. Beyond the controlled area, the licensee does not necessarily exercise authority over activities.

The ISFSI-Emergency Planning Zone (ISFSI-EPZ) is that area in the immediate vicinity of an ISFSI upon which local and State governments should base their radiological response plans. The requirement to define a neighboring area in the proposed 10 CFR Part 72, in which State and local governments could take protective action in the event of an emergency, is comparable in concept to the emergency planning zones for reactors. The term ISFSI-EPZ has been adopted to differentiate this zone and its requirements from those of an EPZ for a reactor.

The <u>regions</u> around an ISFSI site will vary in geographical area and location depending upon the design basis external event being evaluated to determine its impact on the ISFSI or the impact of an ISFSI on the population. A region has the purpose of defining the area within which such an event can have an impact on the public health and safety or environment. This impact must be assessed from the consequences postulated for the design basis events evaluated.

3. Dose Limits for Normal Operations and Accidents

A number of commenters addressed the subject of dose limits for normal operations and accidents. Although spent fuel storage is not specifically identified as a fuel cycle operation in 40 CFR Part 190, "Environmental Radiation Protection Standards for Nuclear Power Operations," the dose limits specified in this regulation are used in Part 72. Section 72.67 was rewritten to better clarify the requirements on effluents and direct radiation during normal operations and anticipated occurrences.

The accident dose limit of 5 rems was placed in a new §72.68 that defines the criteria for establishing a concrolled area for an ISFSI. The 2-hour criterion was deleted; the controlling design basis accident for the specific ISFSI covered in the application is to be evaluated. The 5 rem cumulative exposure limit is derived from protective actions recommended by EPA for projected doses to populations for planning purposes (see Table 1).

The reference to 24 hours in paragraph 72.15(a)(13) was deleted; the requirements for the accident analysis section of the SAR was changed to call for the evaluation of a dose commitment due to the event that would take into account the total dose from a single exposure as well as dose reduction due to protective action.

In response to comments on the applicability of Appendix I to 10 CFR Part 50 and Part 100 to an ISFSI, Appendix I is applicable only to light-watercooled power reactors and Part 100 is applicable only to power and test reactors. Neither of these regulations is applicable to an ISFSI.

4. Geological and Seismological Investigations

In the proposed rule, the geological and seismological investigation requirements for an ISFSI site were based on the reasoning that it should be possible to select sound sites for the few ISFSIs expected to be built. Seismologically, a sound site was considered one having potential ground motion of (much) less than 0.25 g from an earthquake with a return period of 500 years. This earthquake potential could be determined on a probabilistic basis; i.e., read from seismic zonation maps such as those published by the U.S. Geological Survey.² Uncertainties in such determinations could be offset by overdesign.

This use of probabilistic techniques was considered appropriate as a site selection criterion; it was not intended to be used for determining the design earthquake for structures. Assuming a sound site as defined above, the use of a standard design earthquake of 0.25 g (which has a return period that is much greater than 500 years) was considered conservative and adequate to offset uncertainties in an evaluation of a specific site on a probabilistic basis.

However, it was not possible to obtain a consensus among experts in the field on this approach. It was generally agreed that probabilistics techniques are adequate to determine potential seismicity on a regional basis, but these techniques are not yet adequately developed for application to a specific site.

As an alternative, the proposed rule allowed a site specific "g" value to be determined by procedures of Appendix A to Part 100, "Seismic and Geologic

²Such as Algermissen and Perkins, USGS, Open File Report 76-416, 1976, "A Probabilistic Estimate of Maximum Acceleration in Rock in the Contiguous United States."

Projected Dose (Rem) to the Population	Recommended Actions ^(b)	Comments
Whole body <1	.No protective action required. .State may issue an advisory to seek shelter and await further instructions or to voluntarily evacuate.	Previously recommended protective actions may be reconsidered or terminated
Thyroid <5	.Monitor environmental radiation levels.	
Whole body 1 to <5 Thyroid 5 to <25	 Seek shelter and wait further instructions. Consider evacuation particularly for children and pregnant women. Monitor environmental radiation levels. Control access. 	
Whole body 5 and above Thyroid 25 and above	.Conduct mandatory evacuation of populations in the predetermined area .Monitor environmental radiation levels and adjust area for mandatory evacuation based on these levels .Control access.	Seeking shelter would be an alternative if evacua- tion were not immediately possible.
Projected Dose (Rem) to Emergency Team Workers		
Whole body 25	.Control exposure of emergency team members to these	Although respirators and
Thyroid 125	priate controls for emergency workers, include time limitations, respirators, and stable iodine)	stable iodine should be used where effective to control dose to emergency team workers, thyroid dose may not be a limiting
Whole body 75	.Control exposure of emergency team members performing lifesaving missions to this level. (Control of time of exposure will be most effective.)	factor for lifesaving missions.

Table 1. Recommended protective actions to avoid whole body and thyroid dose for exposure to a gaseous plume. (a)

(a) This table summarizes the information contained in EPA 520/1-75-001, "Manual of Protection Action Guides and Protective Actions for Nuclear Incidents," September, 1975.

(b) These actions are recommended for planning purposes. Protective action decisions at the time of the incident must take into consideration the impact of existing constraints. Siting Criteria for Nuclear Power Plants." This provision was in Subpart E, "Siting Criteria," and was intended for use in the evaluation of site characteristics, such as potential soil liquefaction, under earthquake conditions in areas of low potential seismic activity where the use of the standard design earthquake of 0.25 g was considered to be unduly restrictive.

The final rule makes a differentiation between the regions east and west of the Rocky Mountain Front, approximately 104° west longitude, and in the east makes a further differentiation between areas of low seismic potential and areas of known seismic potential, including, but not limited to, New Madrid, Mo.; Charleston, S.C.; and Attica, N.Y.

In areas of low seismic potential in the eastern United States, a proposed site will be considered acceptable if the results from onsite foundation and geological investigation, literature review, and regional geological reconnaissance show no unstable geological characteristics, soil stability problems, or potential for vibratory ground motion at the site in excess of an appropriate response spectrum anchored at 0.2 g. Unstable geological characteristics are defined as capable faults, surface affect potential, subsidence or collapse features, uplift or downwarp, active tectonism, or landslide or mudflow potential. In the western United States and in regions of known seismic potential in the eastern United States, the seismicity at a proposed site must be evaluated by the criteria and level of investigations of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, "Seismic and Geologic Siting Criteria for Nuclear Power Plants."

The conservatism reflected both in the use of a standard design earthquake of 0.25 g for the design of structures at sites in areas of low seismic potential or the alternative of developing a site specific design earthquake by the very thorough investigation required by Appendix A of Part 100 is considered necessary and appropriate for the protection of an ISFSI which could contain a large inventory of spent fuel. The Commission is considering a revision of Appendix A to Part 100. However, it is anticipated that such revision would be in the nature of a clarification of its requirements and that the rule would still be applicable to ISFSI siting.

The principle of selecting sound sites has been retained in the final rule. For example, floodplains and sites that lie within the range of strong nearfield ground motion form earthquakes on larger capable faults should be avoided. This principle is consistent with the recommendations in the "Report of the Siting Policy Task Force," NUREG-0625.

5. The ISFSI Design Earthquake (ISFSI-DE)

The standardized ISFSI-DE of 0.25 g for massive structures, such as water basins or air-cooled canyons, has been retained in the final rule for use at sites east of the Rocky Mountain Front that are in areas of low potential seismic activity and hence do not need to be evaluated by the criteria and level of investigations of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100.

For sites west of the Rocky Mountain Front and in regions in the eastern United States of known seismic activity, the ISFSI-DE must be determined using the level of investigations and the criteria of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, including the requirement that it be no less than 0.10 g.

For an ISFSI that is located on a power plants site which has been evaluated by the criteria and level of investigations of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, the ISFSI-DE for structures shall be equivalent to the safe shutdown earthquake (SSE) for a nuclear power plant.

For ISFSIs which do not involve massive structures, such as dry storage casks and cannisters, the required design earthquake will be determined on a case-by-case basis until more experience is gained with the licensing of these types of units.

6. Probability Basis Used for Other Natural Phenomena

Some commenters wanted to go one step further and use a probabilistic basis for other natural phenomena such as tornadoes and floods. It has been common practice in the United States to use probable maximum events as design bases for radiological safety-related structures, systems, and components. When a frequency or probabilistic analysis of historical data is used to estimate such a low probability event, there is generally too much uncertainty to make the estimate useful for design purposes. Therefore, the probable maximum flood, for example, is estimated using deterministic hydrologic models which utilize meteorological input that approaches the upper limit possible for that location, taking into account existing climate and time of year.

7. Prequalification of Reactor Sites and Their Population Distributions

Some commenters recommended that reactor sites be prequalified with no site specific investigations required for an at-reactor siting of an ISFSI. While a site that has undergone in full safety and environmental review and has been approved as a Part 50 facility is likely to be acceptable for an ISFSI, the pre-qualification of sites licensed under Part 50 without review in relation to the proposed design of the ISFSI does not seem prudent. Information on a specific site that has been submitted to the NRC in connection with other licensing actions need not be repeated in a Part 72 license application: It can be incorporated by specific references to previous submissions.

8. Transportation Considerations

A number of commenters considered that the transportation involved in spent fuel shipments to an ISFSI could be an important consideration in an evaluation of site suitability. This might be particularly true of a large installation such as the one under consideration by DOE. The Commission agrees and a new §72.70 has been added to the rule to specifically address this point.

Subpart F - General Design Criteria

1. Missile Protection

Part 72 requires protection from natural phenomena with the exception of tornado missiles which was questioned by some commenters. Tornado missile protection at reactors is of concern because rupture of recently discharged fuel at a reactor could cause the potential release of volatile short-lived radionuclides, particularly ¹³¹I. Since the quantity of ¹³¹I present in aged fuel at an ISFSI is reduced by a factor of 10^9 due to radioactive decay in the first year after discharge, the potential risk from the rupture of aged fuel is orders of magnitude lower for an ¹³¹I release. The radionuclides which could potentially be released as a result of a tornado missile event are long-lived ⁸⁵Kr and ¹²⁹I. However, an accident evaluation in NUREG-0575,³ Section 4.2.3.2 using conservative assumptions demonstrates that the consequences from a release of the nuclides attributable to a tornado missile would not be significant.

NUREG-9575, "Final Generic Environmental Impact Statement on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Reactor Fuel," August 1979.

2. Protection of Aquifers

Some comments reflected uncertainity over the requirement for the protection of aquifers. The requirement is that measures must be taken to protect aquifers that are a major water resource.

3. Criticality

A number of commenters expressed con ern over the prospect of a criticality in an ISFSI.

Criticality has been a subject of study and experiment in the nuclear industry and has received a lot of attention among nuclear engineers. The technology used in evaluating a given design for criticality potential is now highly developed with sophisticated computer codes. These codes have been bench-marked by actual measurements in various kinds of lattices and configurations of critical arrays of fuel elements. Because spent fuel storage racks are designed with a large safety factor to prevent criticality, the possibility of a significant criticality in an ISFSI is considered to be very remote.

4. Application of ALARA to Occupational Exposures

Some commenters objected to the application of the ALARA principle to the design of a facility as this might affect occupational exposures. These objections were based on two points:

(1) The thought that ALARA applied only to public health and safety, and

(2) Occupational exposures are controlled by administrative procedures.

In response, the ALARA concept does apply to occupational health protection as specified in paragraph 20.1(c) of 10 CFR Part 20. Furthermore, although it is recognized that occupational exposures can be controlled to some extent by administrative procedures, design provisions such as adequate shielding of sources and proper equipment layout to minimize exposures are also important factors in keeping occupational exposures to a minimum. It is often impossible to fully compensate for a poor design using administrative procedures. ALARA (and its predecessor ALAP) has been a cornerstone of radiation protection for many years and it has always been considered to apply to all types of exposure, occupational and public.

Subpart G - Quality Assurance

1. Broadened Applicability of Quality Assurance Program

Some commenters took objection to what they interpreted as a broadening of the QA program, e.g., coverage of operations and the physical security system.

It is the Commission's view that a licensee's QA program must cover not only design and construction, but all activities that are important to safety throughout the life of a facility.

Subpart I - Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel

1. Certification versus Licensing of Operating Personnel

The safety of an ISFSI is achieved by static means, primarily its configuration. Its safety is not dependent on dynamic reactions to the manipulation of controls like a reactor. It is necessary that operating personnel be adequately trained, but not necessarily be licensed by the NRC. A certification by the licensee of an individual's proficiency to operate equipment is considered adequate.

CHAPTER II

DISCUSSION OF INDIVIDUAL COMMENTS

GENERAL COMMENTS

Need for a Rule at this time.

Comment No. 1

Twenty seven comment letters specifically expressed support for the proposed new rule, although not necessarily for all of its provisions. These letters are:

PDR No

Author

4	Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection
6	T. C. Buschbach, St. Louis University
7	Dames and Moore
10	M. Young (Allied-General Nuclear Services)
11	Ohio Power Siting Commission
14	Michigan Office of the Governor
15	Washington State Energy Office
23	R. Beaver (Oak Ridge National Laboratory)
34	American Society of Civil Engineers
36	Pennsylvania Bureau of Radiological Health
37	Middle South Services, Inc.
38	Bechtel National, Inc.
39	Mississippi Power and Light Company
40	Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland, representing
	Township of Lower Alloways Creek, N.J.
43	Connecticut Power Facility Evaluation Council
44	Gilbert/Commonwealth
45	Northeast Utilities
46	Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc.
47	General Electric Company
49	Louisiana Power and Light Company
55	Yankee Atomic Electric Company
57	New Jersey, Department of Environmental Protection
59	Arizona Nuclear Power Project
62	R. Neil (Individual)
63	Florida Power and Light Company
68	Edison Electric Institute
71	Allied Chemical Company (Idaho)

Twenty-three others considered to be generally supportive of the proposed rule are:

Nebraska Department of Environmental Control
 C. F. Braun and Company
 Public Utility Commission of Texas

19	Oklahoma State Department of Health	
21	Kaiser Engineers	
22	Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc.	
27	Allied-General Nuclear Services	
28	American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7)	
41	American Nuclear Society (ANS2, 19)	
42	U.S. Department of Energy	
48	Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll, representing the Utility Waste Management Group	
50	Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge, representing the	
	Radioactive Waste Management Group	
51	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency	
52	Ebasco Services, Inc.	
53	Department of Water and Power, City of Los Angeles	
54	Southern Company Services, Inc.	
56	Commonwealth Edison Co.	
60	Duke Power Company	
65	U.S. Department of the Interior	
67	Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company	
69	Stone and Webster Engineering Corporation	
70	Energy Office, State of New York	
72	Tennessee Valley Authority	

Comment No. 2

Ten comment letters expressed opposition to the proposed new rule, or in general, opposition to the practice of temporary storage of spent fuel until a national policy on its ultimate disposition is developed. These letters are:

PDR No.

Author

1	Women's International League for Peace and Freedom
2	D. Kell (individual)
12	Tennessee Valley Clean Energy Alliance
20	Sue Berg (individual)
30	M. & J. Neuhauser (individuals)
31	M. Chase (individual)
32	C. Hickerson (individual)
33	T. Clayton (individual)
35	North Shore Coalition for Safe Energy
66	Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.

Discussion: On April 7, 1977, President Carter announced that the United States would indefinitely defer reprocessing of spent fuel while the United States and other countries evaluate alternative fuel cycles and processes that may reduce risks of nuclear weapons proliferation. In October 1977, a presidential policy on the interim management of spent fuel was announced. Under this policy, the Federal Government offered to take title to and provide interim storage for spent fuel from U.S. nuclear power reactors. In addition, under this policy, the Federal government offered to take title to and accept a limited amount of spent fuel from foreign sources, when such action would contribute to meeting U.S. nonproliferation goals. Thus, pending the development of national policy as to its ultimate disposition, the spent fuel discharged from U.S. power reactors must be stored, protected, and safeguarded. A significant fraction of the United States electrical energy is produced from nuclear reactors. A lack of spent fuel storage capacity could result in the shutdown of reactors which could have severe adverse impact on the health and welfare of the public, particularly in certain regions of the United States that obtain a relatively large fraction of their electrical energy from nuclear power reactors.

By law, it is the Federal government that has the primary responsibility for providing for the permanent disposal of radioactive waste. Three Federal agencies are now involved in the planning and development of permanent waste disposal. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is developing general criteria for the permanent disposal of radioactive wastes, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) is developing regulations and guidance that will define the licensing requirements which implement the general criteria, and the Department of Energy (DOE) is developing the technology and system for disposal of radioactive wastes. The DOE is considering alternative sites and is developing methods for the permanent disposal of radioactive wastes in a Federal repository. However, the final plan and selection of sites await public acceptance. The U.S. Congress acts for the public on this matter and public acceptance is assumed when Congress authorizes and appropriates the funds for DOE to construct a Federal radioactive waste repository. Meanwhile, the spent fuel has to be stored until a decision is made as to its ultimate disposal. Therefore, it is in the nation's interest to develop licensing requirements for spent fuel storage now without waiting for the establishment of a national nuclear waste policy.

As shown by the Generic Environmental Impact Statement (GEIS) on Spent Fuel Storage,* an ISFSI has a low potential for creating environmental hazards and would not add significantly to the inventory of nuclear wastes. Because most spent fuel will continue to be stored in reactor pools, the construction of a few ISFSI's would not add significantly to the number of sites at which spent fuel is stored nor to the possibility of accidents involving spent fuel. It is expected that some of these will be built at existing reactor sites, but the addition of an ISFSI would not significantly add to the environmental impact of such operations. However, with respect to away-from-reactor storage, spent fuel has been shipped safely over long distances by truck and rail in the United States for more than 30 years. Such shipments are closely regulated by the NRC and the Department of Transportation to protect the public.

The storage of spent fuels under water has been practiced since the beginning of the nuclear age; the technology is not complex. "The potential for grave environmental and public health hazards, including the possibility of criticality" from spent fuel storage is very remote (see GEIS on spent fuel storage).

The radioactive wastes generated at an ISFSI, for the most part, will come from surface deposits on the spent fuel. The volume of radioactive waste from decontamination and water treatment operations will be a small fraction of the low-level wastes produced by the nuclear industry.

NUREG-0575, "Final Generic Environmental Statement on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Power Reactor Fuel."
The new regulation is intended to define the requirements for the design and construction of an ISFSI commensurate with the hazards and risks associated with the interim storage of aged spent fuel. In general, it is intended that such installations not be built in areas that are subject to extremes of natural phenomena such as floods and earthquakes.

This new regulation provides for the protection of the public health and safety associated with the temporary storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI. This regulation does not justify the construction of an ISFSI, but defines the licensing requirements for spent fuel storage in an ISFSI to ensure the protection of the public, regardless of whether such installations are built by industry or the government. The regulation is not a proposal to build ISFSIs; any proposed ISFSI would have to be justified on its own merits.

Comment No. 3. Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"Although the fuel is aged one year and the short half-lived radionuclides have decayed, we believe that the fuel does need protection from weather extremes since the more hazardous radionuclides still remain. The words "need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles" should be better defined with this idea in mind.

On page FR 46310, the first full paragraph, in the last sentence, we suggest that the words 'containment' be replaced with 'confinement'."

Discussion: More care has been given to the choice, and precise meaning, of words in drafting the final regulation. Protection from natural phenomena is more accurately defined in (new) § 72.72.

Comment No. 4. Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"One new definition which is required for a new 10 CFR 72 is that of an 'ISFSI.' As set forth in Section 72.3(j), the definition is both clear and precise. However, even this required new definition is placed in some jeopardy of misunderstanding by the possibly conflicting language used in the second paragraph of the Supplementary Information section (Federal Register page 46309, column 2) which refers to 'installations built specifically for this purpose that are not coupled to either a nuclear power plant or a fuel reprocessing plant.' If an installation meets the definition of Section 72.3(i) through capability of 'independent operation with all necessary supporting services,' then the implied restriction in the Supplementary Information section appears both unnecessary and unwarranted. That such implied restriction was not intended seems evident from not only Sections 72.71(4) and (5) but also from the transcript of the Commission's July 19, 1974 discussion concerning the establishment of off-site dose guidelines which permit operation of an ISFSI sited with reactors. Consequently, it is recommended that this conflicting language in the Supplemental Information section be deleted."

Discussion: The problem appears to be with the use of the word "coupled." Section 72.3(m) has been reworded. The restriction is intended to apply to physical connections which increase the probability or consequences of an accident or malfunction of components, structures, or systems important to safety, or reduce the margin of safety as defined in the technical specifications of either facility. If the physical connection does meet one of the above restrictions, the connected facilities would be licensed under Part 50. Comment No. 5: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"This introduction to the proposed rule sets forth a very reasonable approach to the licensing of an ISFSI. However, the specific language in certain sections of actual proposed rules do not carry out the intent expressed in 'Supplementary Information.'"

Discussion: The wording of the rule has been revised to improve clarity and better carry out the intent expressed in the Supplementary Information. Note particularly Subparts E and F.

Comment No. 6: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland, representing Township of Lower Alloways Creek, New Jersey. (40)

"No rules should be promulgated until docketing of the final generic environmental impact statement on handling and storage of spent light water reactor fuel."

"A total failure to clearly differentiate between temporary storage of spent fuel as part of the nuclear fuel cycle and the permanent storage or disposal of spent fuel as hazardous waste."

"The rules should not be adopted until the Interagency Nuclear Waste Management Task Force established by the President on March 15, 1978, has made its recommendations on a comprehensive Federal Program for the long term management of nuclear waste."

Discussion: Publication and adoption of this rule has been coordinated with the final generic environmental impact statement on handling and storage of spent light water reactor fuel, NUREG-0575, which was published in August 1979. A definition of temporary storage has been added, § 72.3(x), to differentiate between interim storage and permanent storage or disposal of spent fuel.

This proposed rule is independent of the Interagency Nuclear Waste Management Task Force recommendations. Spent fuel must be stored for an interim period pending a decision as to its ultimate disposal, whether that decision be to reprocess the spent fuel, or to transfer the spent fuel to a Federal radioactive waste repository for permanent disposal.

Comment No. 7: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"FR 46310--'Storage conditions sust provide an environment which will insure the long-term integrity of (sic) the fuel cladding' The experiences of NFS and others^{a,D} indicate that normal deterioration/degradation of the fuel assembly cladding during long-term storage is not deleterious to radiological health and safety. The Supplementary Information overstates the importance of fuel cladding integrity during the storage of aged fuel. It is our understanding that tests conducted at Battelle's Pacific Northwest Laboratories have shown that the leachability of irradiated oxide fuel is very low and approaches that of solidified waste forms." Discussion: The data and experience on leach rates of exposed oxide fuel in water shows that cladding failures on aged fuel does not pose a serious problem. However, providing a storage environment which preserves the long-term integrity of the fuel cladding is considered prudent.

Comment No. 8: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"Page 46310, Second Column, Fourth Paragraph--Some references should be provided to demonstrate that the level of radioactive materials in the ambient air in the spent fuel storage area of an ISFSI is normally about five percent of 10 CFR 20 limits for occupied areas."

Discussion: The referenced statement was based on early experience at the NFS West Valley plant. More recent experience at the GE-Morris Operation shows that the figure is orders of magnitude lower than 10 CFR Part 20 limits. This data is presented in a report, NUREG/CR-0956, which has been prepared to document GE's experience to date with its operation of the Morris facility.

Comment No. 9: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"The proposed regulations are seriously flawed because they are premised on an unproved and unprovable assumption--i.e., the assumption that storage of commercially generated spent fuel at an away-from-reactor (AFR) storage facility is a preferred solution to the problem created by continued generation of nuclear wastes without an implemented and acceptable method for nuclear waste disposal.

". . . Despite this uncertain status of AFRs, the promulgation of the regulations at this time is clearly premised on the assumption that the use of AFRs will be acceptable government policy and regulations designed to facilitate that policy. If such a premise does not underly these regulations, then, at a minimum, the NRC should be simultaneously promulgating regulations for expansion of at-reactor storage of spent fuel for those cases where the utility seeks to build an additional pool and should be requiring for all plants proposed for construction and under contruction that spent fuel storage capacity for the lifetime needs of the reactor be provided.

"Because there is no policy now favoring the unlimited use of AFRs and because it is becoming increasingly clear that even if some AFR use is required it will be substantially restricted, we believe the development of AFR licensing regulations is premature. Were the subsequent evolution of an AFR policy irrelevant to the licensing requirements, an early development of such regulations, while wasteful of limited Commission resources, might not be totally objectionable. However, the shape of the AFR policy would sharply influence the shape of the regulations. For instance, if the AFR policy prohibited the use of an AFR unless it could be shown that expansion of at-reactor storage would be unsafe, then the licensing requirements would not only have to incorporate this pre-condition but would also have to assure that AFR storage would be safer than the at-reactor storage option. Transportation and handling would necessarily be a part of this analysis and they would be affected by which reactor's fuel was proposed to be shipped to an AFR. To license the AFR without knowing the source of the fuel is to license blindly. "Throughout the proposed regulations is the theme that the AFRs are good and should be encouraged. One classic example in the statement is the preamble (43 Fed. Reg. 46310, column 3) which indicates that accident limits for siting were set with the principle that they could be met, not that they were what was required. This attitude is unacceptable for a regulatory agency and reflects a continuation of the promotional bias. These proposed regulations should be withdrawn and should be rewritten by persons who are not predisposed to believe that AFRs are safe and should be encouraged."

Discussion: The NRC has made no assumption such as is implied in the first paragraph of the above comment. This new regulation will govern the licensing requirements of ISFSIs at reactor sites that propose to build additional spent fuel storage capacity at the site, as well as for ISFSIs that are proposed to be built at other sites. The additional storage capacity can be provided as needed. The NRC sees no reason to require a utility company to provide onsite spent fuel storage capacity for the lifetime needs of the reactor.

The new regulation establishes the requirements for a license to possess spent fuel while stored in the ISFSI. The license will contain certain conditions governing the receipt, handling and storage of the spent fuel. These conditions can be established without knowing the specific source of the fuel.

The accident exposure l'mits, which might result from a catastrophic accident that caused the pool to drain, were proposed as a criterion for setting the controlled area boundary distance to protect the public from gamma radiation exposure. The final rule establishes a minimum distance of 100 m to the controlled area boundary.

Comment No. 10: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"Included among the potential locations for an ISFSI are individual reactor sites. These reactor sites are licensed under 10 CFR Part 50. Presumably construction of an ISFSI on a licensed site could be accomplished through the mechanism of amending an existing Part 50 license instead of through the new Part 72 licensing scheme. We would like to see this Part 50 option left available to holders of Part 50 licenses and note that no mention is made of this alternative in the proposed rule. Clarification of this point in the final rule would be useful."

Discussion: 10 CFR Part 50 specifically addresses the licensing of production and utilization facilities as defined by the Atomic Energy Act. An ISFSI is not a production or utilization facility. The storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI is covered by a "material" type of license. Because spent fuel contains special nuclear material, its possession is licensed under a Part 70 series regulation.

If connected to a reactor and not "independent," an add-on spent fuel storage installation would be covered by an amendment to the reactor's Part 50 license. If independent, it would be covered under Part 72.

Comment No. 11: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland, representing Township of Lower Alloways Creek, New Jersey. (40) "Tables S-3 and S-4 in 10 CFR, part 51 may require amendments to indicate the addition of a new element and new transportation link in the nuclear fuel cycle--the addition of ISFSI and the transportation of spent fuel from nuclear power reactors to an ISFSI."

<u>Discussion</u>: The addition of temporary storage of spent fuel in ISFSIs to the nuclear fuel cycle is not anticipated to result in significant changes in either of these tables.

The next six comments, reflect concern about interpretations of some of the requirement of this new regulation.

Comment No. 12: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"We would, therefore, urge that the requirements for 10 CFR Part 72 be consistent with, and not exceed, those requirements for spent fuel storage installations at nuclear power facilities. In any event, to the extent the requirements will be more rigorous than such installations at nuclear power facilities, specific reasons therefor should be set out."

Comment No. 13: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Based on the foregoing understanding of the Commission's reasoning, it would appear clear that a new 10 CFR 72, if adopted, should not create confusion relative to other NRC regulations and should not needlessly be more restrictive than the present 10 CFR 50. The following comments are offered for the Commission's consideration in achieving these objectives."

Comment No. 14: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"We appreciate the significant effort which has been made in developing the proposed regulations. Our major comment is that the proposed regulations do not fully reflect the somewhat relaxed view of regulatory constraints promised by the Statement of Considerations. In some cases, the proposed regulations establish obligations beyond those required in reactor licensing."

Comment No. 15: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"The existing rules and regulations for LWR power plants set forth in other parts of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations have evolved from years of development and careful deliberation. ISFSI facilities should have less potential for risk to the health and safety of the pullic than a LWR facility. Therefore, most of the existing requirements and criteria for LWRs should be more than adequate for the ISFSI facilities.

"Thus, it is not expected the requirements for ISFSI should be more stringent than those for LWR plant spent fuel facilities. Further, it is considered that any departures from existing LWR rules and regulations should be in the direction of relaxation of requirements, rather than being more stringent, as are certain parts of the proposed new rule. Where such relaxation is not appropriate,..."

Comment No. 16: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"Each nuclear power facility licensed under 10 CFR Part 50 includes a spent fuel storage area as a component of the facility. Part 50 specifically addresses the nuclear power facility and entails more stringent requirements than is typically necessary for an ISFSI. The proposed rule 10 CFR Part 72 should entail less stringent requirements than Part 50 and no element of Part 72 should impose requirements beyond those of Part 50."

Discussion: It is not intended that this new regulation contain more stringent requirements than 10 CFR Part 50, but that Part 72 contain requirements that are specific to spent fuel storage in an ISFSI. The differences reflect the different roles of an ISFSI compared to Part 50 facilities and the applicability of EPA regulation 40 CFR Part 190 to an ISFSI.

The next five comments indicate a need for more precise language in the final version of this new rule.

Comment No. 17: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Our specific comments on the proposed licensing rule, Attachment 1 to this letter, identify certain statements within the document which, in our opinion, are somewhat ambiguous and require additional clarification. As in the case of precedent NRC regulations, we understand there will be Regulatory Guides specific to 10 CFR Part 72. In our review and preparation of comments on the proposed licensing rule, we have assumed that the forthcoming Regulatory Guides will include the additional specificity required as part of the interpretation of the licensing requirements."

Comment No. 18: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"However, to provide utilities with the certainty needed for them to undertake construction and financing of such a facility, the regulations need to be more specific in certain areas . . ."

Comment No. 19: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"At present, it is difficult to provide substantive suggestions on many portions of the proposed 10 CFR 72 because the NRC guidance documents explaining the desired implementation have not yet been published, and the proposed regulations are by themselves vague and ambiguous. The lack of specificity in the proposed 10 CFR 72 is: (1) contrary to the NRC intention, as identified in the Supplementary Information, of providing a '. . . more definitive regulatory basis . . . ,' (2) inappropriate in light of the hundreds of thousands of tonneyear of spent fuel storage experience". In the United States, Canada and Europe, and (3) potentially misleading to the public understanding of the minor safety implications involved in the storage of long-cooled spent fuel."

Comment No. 20: General Electric Company. (47)

"We are, however, concerned about certain areas in which it appears that more specific or additional guidance is needed to assure satisfactory regulation. These are:

The proposed regulation contains several non-quantitative requirements that could be subject to versious interpretations. Quantitative or at least more definitive statements against which performance or design can be measured should be developed.

It is apparent from statements made in the SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section of the Proposed Rule that the NRC, like General Electric, is aware of the relatively low risk from storage of spent fuel. The risk is composed of nearly immeasurable consequences that are likely to occur at extremely low probabilities. What is not apparent is how allowance has been made in the Regulation for this acknowledged low risk. Rather, it appears that many of the same criteria for siting and safety that are employed in reactor licensing are reiterated here for the ISFSI. We would suggest that more appropriate consideration be given to fitting the siting and design criteria to the extant risk."

Comment No. 21: New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection. (57)

"The regulations appear to be consistent with other regulations written by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission for other types of facilities, for example, utilization and production facilities. Except for administrative procedures, which must be established early, the regulations are very brief and are stated in general terms. No doubt, as design and construction of Away-from-Reactor (AFR) facilities begin, more details will appear in the regulations."

Discussion: NRC regulations state general requirements. Regulatory Guides and other NRC documents are published to identify acceptable methods that will meet specific regulatory requirements. To make requirements more definitive, closer attention has been given to the language in the final version of this regulation.

Comment No. 22: Allied General Nuclear Services. (27)

o.

0

"We urge that a thorough comparison of all terminology in the proposed 10 CFR 72 be made with that in 10 CFR 20, 10 CFR 50, 10 CFR 70, and 10 CFR 100 with the objective of restricting new terminology to a minimum."

Discussion: A comparison of all terminology has been made. The new terminology in Part 72 has been restricted to a minimum consistent with the objectives of this rule.

Comment No. 23: Tennessee Valley Clean Energy Alliance. (12)

"Away from reactor storage necessitates the transportation of wastes from the reactor site to the storage site. Again, I found no mention of whose responsibility transportation is. If an owner gains control of the spent fuel at the reactor site, then those spent fuel rods are the owner's responsibility and so are accidents which may occur. It is mandatory to clearly determine at the onset whose responsibility transportation of spent fuel assemblies is."

Discussion: Under DOT regulations, the shipper (owner) is responsible for the packaging and the carrier for the transportation of spent fuel shipments. Shipping casks must meet the requirements of NRC regulation 10 CFR Part 71. The

transportation of spent fuel is covered under DOT regulations 49 CFR Parts 171 through 177.

Comment No. 24: Tennessee Valley Clean Energy Alliance. (12)

"In light of the proceedings at the Calloway plant, it seems advisable to include within the licensing requirements protection of any possible 'whistleblowers' who may discover violations of licensing agreements. This is especially important for the low level of monitoring the NRC intends to do for ISFSI's."

Discussion: This is covered generically in NRC regulations 10 CFR Parts 19 and 21.

Comment No. 25: Tennessee Valley Clean Energy Alliance. (12)

"Another question which I found unanswered was what if the legal entity operating the AFR goes bankrupt? Does the NRC take over responsibility? If so, the public is left with the possibility of multiple "West Valleys" across the country."

Discussion: The financial requirements in § 72.14(e) are intended to ensure that an applicant is financially qualified. However, §72.41(c) provides that the NRC may take possession of any spent fuel held by a licensee if such action is of importance to the national defense and security or to the public health and safety.

The reference to West Valley is not too pertinent as an ISFSI has little in common with that plant and the current situation at that site.

Comment No. 26: Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C. (29)

"The proposed rule makes no such distinction nor does it address the problem of high-burnup fuel characteristics at one year. In fact there seems to be a major discrepancy between the 25,000 MWD/MTU burnu, characteristics outlined in the NUREG-0404 and the nominal 33,000 MWD/MTU expected of current fuel performance. Spent fuel characteristics and not fuel "age" should be the controlling factors for both facility design and applicability. The proposed rule consistently downplays the necessity to control for specific spent fuel and fuel assembly characteristics."

Discussion: On the contrary, decay time is the predominant factor from both design and safety standpoints The use of figures for accident analysis in MUREG-0404 based on 25,000 MWU/MTU burnup versus some higher value is not a major discrepancy. We expect that the burnup of spent fuel will vary, and some will have burnups in excess of 33,000 MWD/MTU. That some fuel may have higher burnup is not a problem if the installation is designed to handle higher burn-up fuel.

DRY STORAGE

Comment No. 27: Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C. (29)

"The proposed rule notes that the applicability of the rule is to one year old fuel with an option for both wet and dry fuerage. NUREG-0404 states that dry storage has not been employed by the nuclear industry (section 3.1.4) and that preliminary conceptual studies indicate a feasibility only for five year old fuel or more.

"We wish to go on record of opposing the inclusion of the dry storage option given the lack of both industry and <u>NRC</u> experience with dry storage, especially without fuel characterization limitations."

Discussion: The rule is applicable to aged spent fuel, as differentiated from the freshly discharged fuel at a nuclear power plant. Aged fuel is defined as having a minimum of one year decay. Dry storage has not been used by the nuclear industry for commercial LWR fuels in the U.S., but dry storage has been used elsewhere. The DOE has three dry storage facilities at its Idaho Nuclear Engineering Laboratory for the storage of Peach Bottom I, EBR II blanket, and Fort St. Vrain fuels and is evaluating the dry storage facility at their Whiteshell Nuclear Research Establishment for the storage of WRR-1 reactor fuels and are developing a comparable technique for the storage of spent CANDU reactor fuels. The British have a dry storage facility at the Wyfla (Wales) Nuclear Power Plant for the storage of MAGNOX reactor fuels.

A license to store spent fuel in a dry storage facility will be judged on its merits and no such license will be issued unless the proposed facility is technically adequate from a safety standpoint. A license issued under Part 72 will contain license conditions. One of these conditions will define the limiting characteristics of the spent fuel that can be stored in the proposed ISFSI. This may stipulate 5 years decay if necessary for a proposed design.

Comment No. 28: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"This regulation is intended to cover dry as well as pool storage of spent fuel. The body of the document, however, does not address any of the aspects of dry storage requirements. For instance, it is not stated whether or not the safety assessment must consider all degrees of interspersed moderation, including those known to be incredible. Clarification of this and other pertinent dry storage requirements are needed within the regulation. Such clarification would eliminate confusion and go far in promoting dry storage as an economically viable option in storing spent fuel."

Comment No. 29: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"The regulations should specifically address aspects of dry storage of spent fuel. Under some circumstances, dry storage would be an economically viable option in storing spent fuel, and this option should be specifically addressed in the regulation stating under what circumstances dry storage would be allowed and discussing general design criteria for a dry storage installation."

Comment No. 30: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"The regulation states that 'storage of aged spent fuel under dry storage conditions is also covered by this regulation.' Present draft regulatory guides for ISFSI's are based on water basin storage. We believe that NRC should prepare guides for dry storage as well." Comment No. 31: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"'Sufficient aging' for dry storage spent fuel should be defined, along with a minimum age or criteria for the determination of a minimum age."

Comment No. 32: New Jersey, Department of Environmental Protection. (57)

"... the regulations reflect the presently favored underwater storage concept. If and when facilities are constructed for dry storage of spent fuel, it might be worth while to prepare specific regulations for the method. Alternatively, the regulations can be kept very general and surplemented with regulatory guides to aid in their interpretation. No doubt, a combination of these procedures will be used."

Discussion: The regulation covers the general requirements of both wet and dry storage, with those applicable to wet storage only so identified. The safety assessment requirements are design specific, i.e., must address the characteristics of the proposed facility. Specific guidance is published in Regulatory Guides rather than regulations. In response to perceived interests on the part of potential licensees, the major effort in the development of Regulatory Guides has been focused on water pools. It is planned to address dry storage options, of which there are a number of variations, as the need arises. In the meantime, any applications received which involve dry storage will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

The NRC has published a report on the subject of dry storage to provide a better understanding of the technical aspects of the various dry storage options available. This report is NUREG/CR-1223, "Dry Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel."

Subpart A--General Provisions

Section 72.1, Purpose

Comment No. 33: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The failure to include a definition of temporary storage as differentiated from permanent storage is arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable and represents administrative neglect of responsibility for preparing specific regulations for the licensing of temporary storage of spent fuel. Normal cool down time should be considered as criterion for a temporary storage.

"1. The interagency confusion is manifested by the fact that the Environment Protection Agency in its criteria for radioactive waste issued November 15, 1978 states:

'The NRC is preparing specific regulations for licensing of storage and waste disposal facilities.' (emphasis supplied) Federal Register, Vol. 43 #221, at page 53262, November 15, 1978.

"2. The proposed NRC regulations state:

'No license under this part will be granted for the later permanent storage or <u>disposal of spent fuel</u>.' (emphasis supplied) Federal Register, Vol. 43, #195 at page 46311, October 6, 1978

"The Township of Lower Alloways Creek contends that the NRC has no judicial powers under the Atomic Energy Act to provide for the permanent storage or disposal of spent fuel as a hazardous radioactive waste product."

Discussion: This rule is specific to the licensing requirements for the temporary storage of spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation, pending its eventual removal in accordance with a national policy decision as to whether to transfer the spent fuel to a Federal repository to be provided for disposal of spent fuel as a waste, or to transfer the spent fuel to a reprocessing plant for recovery of useable fissile materials. To clarify this point, a definition of temporary storage has been added to this rule. Under the Atomic Energy Act, as amended, the NRC is authorized, among other things, to issue licenses governing the possession of special nuclear material, source material, and byproduct material.

The NRC is preparing specific regulations (under 10 CFR Part 60 series numbers) for the licensing of radioactive waste disposal facilities. Spent fuel may be declared a waste if it is not reprocessed. The licensing of waste disposal activities is an NRC responsibility under the Energy Reorganization Act.

Comment No. 34: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The purpose should include a clear statement that the license will permit the receipt and storage of spent fuel whether or not title to the spent fuel is held by the licensee."

Discussion: NRC regulations differentiate between ownership and physical possession of nuclear materials. Part 72 does not require title to the spent fuel to be held by the licensee. This regulation would permit the licensee to possess spent fuel for storage in an ISFSI without taking title to, or owning, the spent fuel. (See §72.6).

Comment No. 35: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"We recommend that a statement be included in the proposed rule in Section 72.1 or 72.2 to indicate that interpretations of these rules should not lead to more stringent requirements than those for the LWR plant spent fuel storage facilities."

Discussion: A statement such as recommended above is inappropriate. There are differences in the role of an ISFSI and that of a power reactor. See Discussion of Major Issues in Chapter I.

Comment No. 36: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46311, center, 72.1) - If an ISFSI is to be a temporary storage facility, these sections are not currently worded in a way that would permit shipment out to a reprocessing, permanent storage, or other facility at an alternate location. The last sentence in 72.1 may even be interpreted to prevent shipment out by one definition of the word 'disposal.'"

Discussion: This regulation pertains to the license requirements for the temporary storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI. Other regulations under Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, cover license requirements related to shipments and reprocessing. New regulations are being developed by NRC (10 CFR Part 60 series) to cover license requirements for permanent disposal of radioactive waste in a Federal repository that is to be provided for this purpose by DOE.

On the subject of a definition of "temporary storage":

Comment No. 37: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"ISFSI licenses are stated to be limited to 'temporary storage,' but no definition of that time period is provided."

Comment No. 38: Duke Power Company. (60)

"Also, further clarification is needed of the limitation of temporary storage which should include all or part of the time between reactor discharge of the spent fuel and the point when the spent fuel is either reprocessed or disposed of in a Federal repository."

Comment No. 39: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The last sentence of §72.1 states that 'licenses are limited to the temporary storage only of spent fuel . . .' Particularly since the term "temporary storage" is not defined, this last sentence may create unnecessary controversy in the licensing process. For example, an opponent of the ISFSI might try to argue that, if there is no licensed repository for spent fuel available, there is no certainty that storage will be 'temporary.' Such spurious arguments should be avoided by deletion of the last sentence of §72.1. The purpose of the regulations is clear without it.

"We are not aware of any environmental, safety or technical reason to limit the period of storage in an ISFSI. Storage should be permitted for any period as long as the requirements set forth in the regulations are satisfied."

Comment No. 40: Connecticut-Power Facility Evaluation Council. (43)

"In the Proposed Rules: Section 72.3 should define 'temporary storage.' There is confusion as to the ultimate fate of ISFSI. Is this to be a part of the routine process g of spent fuels before they are emplaced in a geologic repository, or is this an interim arrangement to be discontinued once a more permanent disposition is in place? Data concerning the disintegration of spent fuel claddings may provide a time frame for use of an interim storage facility."

Comment No. 41: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"The term: 'temporary storage' used in Section 72.1 (Purpose) is not defined. We believe that it is both appropriate and necessary to provide a clear definition for this term. This can be done by adding one additional definition in Paragraph 72.3: 'Definitions.'" Discussion: As suggested by the above comments, a definition of "temporary storage" has been added to § 72.3.

Comment No. 42: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Last sentence - Delete. Even though an ISFSI is for temporary storage, they are being designed on a 40-year basis. The title of the Regulation does not say anything about the temporary nature of the facility."

Discussion: It is agreed that an ISFSI may be designed for a 40 year life. The temporary nature of spent fuel storage is covered in the regulation, under \S 72.2(a), with a definition of "temporary" under \S 72.3(x).

Comment No. 43: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section and §72.2 Scope describe the licensing of several activities with respect to special nuclear material, byproduct material and source material in spent fuel. This emphasis overlooks the fact that some or all of these material categories, but especially byproduct material may be present at the facility, not in spent fuel. The regulation needs to make allowance for quantities of other radioactive materials encountered in the normal course of operating an ISFSI, such as that associated with the basin water, the water cleanup system, casks, cask related equipment, laboratory standards or test sources."

Discussion: Section 72.1 has been revised to include other radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage.

Section 72.2, Scope

Comment No. 44: General Electric Company. (47)

"The references to <u>spent fuel</u> and material <u>in the spent fuel</u> should be broadened to include other radiactive material associated with the operation of an ISFSI (see the comment re: §72.1 Purpose, above)."

Discussion: Section 72.1 has been revised to include other radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage.

On the subject of licensing existing facilities:

Comment No. 45: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46311, §72.2) - It is stated that 'with respect to licenses covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI issued prior to the effective date of this regulation, such licenses will not be renewed unless the operating requirements of this Part 72 are met.' DOE strongly believes that existing storage facilities currently play an essential role in meeting national spent fuel storage requirements and will continue to meet critical needs into the mid 1980's. They have provided safe storage and therefore this regulation should neither preclude their future use nor require substantial facility modifications. This point must be made clear to prevent litigation. In addition, explain what is meant by operating requirements. Does this include the earth-quake and tornado requirements listed in sub parts E and F?"

"As noted in our comment A-1, we are seriously concerned about the proposed regulation on the utilization of existing spent fuel storage facilities (i.e., Barnwell, Morris, West Valley). DOE strongly believes that these existing facilities play an essential role in meeting national spent fuel storage requirements, and will continue to meet critical needs into the middle 1980's. Safe storage has been evidences at the two licensed and operating facilities (Morris and West valley). Licensing of the Barnwell fuel storage facility under 10 CFR 70 was completed except for the hearing phase. Therefore, this regulation should neither preclude future use of these facilities nor require substantial facility modifications. This point must be made clear to prevent litigation. Furthermore, we recommend that the presently licensed fuel storage facilities be relicensed under their original regulations when their current license expires."

Comment No. 46: General Electric Company. (47)

"§72.2 Scope, last paragraph, limits the relicensing of facilities licensed before the effective date of this regulation to those that meet the operating requirements of this Part 72. Operating requirements should be fully defined in the regulation to clarify the intent."

Comment No. 47: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"Renewal of existing licenses covering spent fuel storage in an ISFSI is made contingent on meeting the 'operating requirements' of Part 72. These should be specifically identified."

Comment No. 48: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.2 Last sentence - Delete. A grandfather clause should be on a permanent basis rather than say a license of an existing facility will not be renewed unless it meets these new regulations. What happens to an ISFSI if it is full of spent fuel and their license comes up for renewal and their facility does not meet the new regulations? This sentence is too restrictive and should be deleted or modified."

Discussion: With respect to Comments Nos. 45, 46, 47, and 48, above, licenses covering spent fuel storage in an existing facility will be evaluated in accordance with the requirements of Part 72. If this evaluation should identify any deficiencies with respect to the requirements of Part 72, then depending upon the nature of such deficiencies, the Commission may consider granting exemptions under Section 72.7, Specific Exemptions, with an adequate justification for such exemptions.

The wording has been changed to state that existing spent fuel storage facilities must meet the requirements of Part 72 except the site selection factors in Subpart E. Obviously, an existing facility cannot be moved to a new site.

Comment No. 49: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The subject of wet storage appears to be more fully addressed than dry storage. It is suggested that a single statement be inserted that this regulation is designed to address primarily water pool storage, but the limits for design and radiological effluents are applicable also to dry storage and that any specific questions related to dry storage will be handled on a case-by-case basis."

Discussion: The wording of Section 72.2 has been revised to state that the requirements of this regulation are applicable where appropriate to both wet and dry storage of spent fuel.

On the subject of the one year age limitation:

Comment No. 50: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"The proposed Part 72 deals only with fuel which is cooled more than one year. Although this is a reasonable assumption, there should be provisions contained in the new regulations to allow for storage of fuel cooled for less than one year on an emergency basis."

Comment No. 51: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"The possibility of accepting, under special contingency conditions, a limited number of fuel assemblies with less that one year decay but more than a specified minimum age should be considered."

Discussion: Part 72 and supporting regulatory guides and national standards now being developed are all based on the temporary storage of aged fuel. Spent fuel aged less than one year would be stored in LWR spent fuel pools. We do not foresee any special contingency conditions that would warrent the transfer of less than one year aged spent fuel to an ISFSI. However, a request to transfer less than one year aged fuel could be approved under the provisions of Section 72.7, with adequate justification for making such an exception.

Section 72.3, Definitions

Eight commentators took issue with the introduction of new site-related terminology in Part 72.

Comment No. 52: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"A major source of possible future confusion would be eliminated if terminology and definitions used in proposed 10 CFR 72, were reviewed carefully, and revised as appropriate, for conformity with terms use in other NRC regulations. For example, 'controlled area 'and 'neighboring area' (Section 72.3(g) and (k) respectively) do not appear to differ sufficiently from 'exclusion area' and 'low population zone,' as defined in 10 CFR 100, to warrant the introduction of new terminology."

Comments No. 53 and 54: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28) and M. Young (10)

"Section 72.3(g) and 72.3(k) defined 'controlled' and 'neighboring' areas respectively. 10 CFR 100, paragraph 100.3(a) defines an 'exclusion' area; the definition of which is similar to the Part 72 definition of a 'controlled' area. The definition of 'low population zone' in 10 CFR 100 is similar to the definition of 'neighboring' area in Part 72. The definitions of the various 'areas' discussed in Part 72 should be consistent to the definition used in other parts including 10 CFR 20, 10 CFR 73 and 10 CFR 100 to avoid confusion and misuse of terminology."

Comment No. 55: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"(g) Controlled area - This regulation introduces the term 'controlled area' without a clear definition of its relationship with 'offsite' or the extent of the premissible activities within. It is inconsistent with 10 CFR Part 20, to which area dose limits must be referenced. We recommend that this definition be removed and replaced the the term 'restricted area' as used in 10 CFR Part 20. The text should also be changed to reflect the meanings implied by this new definition."

Comment No. 56: Gilbert/Commonwealth. (44)

"While we understand that certain new definitions may be required in these new regulations which may not exist in other parts, we feel that the incorporation of new terms such as 'controlled area,' 'neighboring area,' 'region. 'and 'site 'are not justified, and may be in conflict with other terms commonly utilized in 10 CFR 20, 10 CFR 50, and 10 CFR 100 which indicate similar concepts (e.g., 'controlled area' versus 'restricted area' or 'exclusion area;' 'neighboring area' versus 'low population zone'). Even the proposed regulations appear to confuse the issue in 10 CFR 72.33(d), 'Effluent Controls,' when it makes reference in two separate places to 'unrestricted areas.' We therefore recommend that the need for such new and possibly confusing terminology be reviewed to determine the efficacy of such new term ... The placement of an ISFSI on an existing power reactor site would make the use of new, overlapping, and possibly conflicting terminology particularly undesirable."

Comment No. 57: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The proposed regulations include the following new geographical terms: 'controlled area' (§72.3(g)); 'neighboring area' (§72.3(k)); and 'region' (§72.3(n)). We believe that these new terms are imprecise, unhelpful and unnecessary. For example, they may be confused with the term 'restricted area,' which is elsewhere defined as 'any area access to which is controlled by the licensee for purposes of protection of individuals from exposure to radiation and radioactive materials' (§20.3(a)(14), and they may be interpreted inconsistently with terms such as 'exclusion area,' 'low population zone' and 'population center distance,' which are applied for similar purposes in 10 CFR Part 100. Particularly in view of the limited environmental and safety impact of ISFSI's, we believe that the principles (and terminology) established in these other Commission regulations can readily be applied and that there is no need to innovate in these respects."

Comment No. 58: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"The proposed regulation presents two definitions in Paragraph 72.3 which represent a set of terms different from those in other parts of 10 CFR but whose meaning is essentially the same. These terms are: (g) 'Controlled area' and (k) 'Neighboring area.' The term controlled area has the same meaning as restricted area defined in 10 CFR 20.3(a)(14) and exclusion area defined in 10 CFR 100.3(a). The term neighboring area has the same meaning as low population zone defined in 10 CFR 100.3(b). It appears unnecessary to create a new set of terms for this section of the regulation when terms with the same meaning exist elsewhere in the regulations.

Discussion: The definitions of 10 CFR Part 100, "exclusion area," "low population zone," etc., pertain only to proposed sites for stationary power and test reactors. To clarify the siting requirements of Part 72, definitions of areas are used to indicate the region to be considered with respect to environmental considerations, the neighboring area, now changed to ISFSI-emergency planning zone (ISFSI-EPZ) for consistency with Appendix E to 10 CFR Part 50, to be considered with respect to emergency planning, and the <u>controlled area</u> beyond whose boundary the dose limits for normal operation and accidents apply with respect to exposure of the public. Subpart E has been revised to clarify these siting considerations and the criteria to be applied as well as the definitions for these new siting terms. See discussion of major issues in Chapter I for further information on this subject.

Comment No. 59: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The following definitions should also be included within the regulations:

- "1. Acute (radiation exposure) A term used in reference to a single large dose of ionizing radiation or to a series of substantial doses in a short interval of time, as differentiated from chronic exposure;
- "2. Barrier Any medium which stops or significantly retards the movement of emplaced radioactive materials, such as a natural geologic medium or a container or solidified waste matrix engineered by humans;
- "3. Chronic (radiation exposure) Continuous or intermittent exposure to small amounts of ionizing radiation over a long period of time, as differentiated from acute exposure;
- "4. Difuse (waste containing naturally occuring radioactivity) Waste material containing naturally occurring radioactivity in concentrations similar to that of many natural ore bodies;
- "5. Discrete (waste containing naturally occurring radioactivity) Waste material containing naturally occurring radioactivity which is substantially concentrated relative to that of the virgin natural material;
- "6. Disposal The placement of radioactive waste with no incent of recovery;
- "7. General environment The total terrestrial, atmosphere, and aquatic environments outside sites in which any radioactive waste management activities are conducted;
- "8. Institutional control Activities, devices, and combinations thereof which involve the performance of functions by human beings to limit contact between the waste and humans or the environment;

- "9. Isolation The placement of radioactivie waste so that contact between the waste and humans or the environment will be highly unlikely for a chosen period of time;
- "10. Monitoring Measuring the quantity and type of discharge or migration or radioactive wastes from a waste management facility, or measuring changes in physical, chemical, or biological characteristics of the site and the surrounding site area;
- "li. Retrievability A designed capability to recover waste from an emplaced location within a specified time;
- "12. Risk A general concept encompassing both the probability and the severity of adverse effects;
- "13. Site Any location which institutional control which has a boundary inside which radioactive wastes are handles, stores, and disposed of;
- "14. Storage Retention of radioactive waste at facilities with designed provisions for recovery within a defined time;
- "15. Waste Management The range of activities for dealing with radioactive waste, including preparation, storage, and disposal."

Discussion: A definition of the term "site" has been added to the revised regulation. The other proposed definitions are not needed in this regulation.

On the definition of ALARA:

Comment No. 60: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"Similarly we see no reason why the definition of the term 'as low as is reasonably achieveable' (§72.3(b)) should differ from that contained in §50.34a(a) Thus at the end of the proposed definition in §72.3(b) we would add the words: 'and other societal and socioeconomic considerations, and in relation to the utilization of atomic energy in the public interest.'"

Comment No. 61: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The definition of 'as low as is reasonably achievable' does not fully track the definition of the same term in 10 CFR §20.1(c), in that it omits the phrase 'and other societal and socioeconomic considerations, and in relation to the utilization of atomic energy in the public interest.' The Part 20 definition should be followed."

Comment No. 62: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"Section 72.3(b) - We suggest that the definition of 'As low as is reasonably achievable' reference 10 CFR 50 Appendix I as more specific requirements are contained therein."

Comment No. 63: Allied Chemical Company. (71)

"The definition of ALARA would be significantly improved if a dollar value would be set."

Discussion: The definition of ALARA has been revised to conform to 10 CFR Parts 20.1(c) and 50.3a(a). 10 CFR 50 Appendix I is specific to light-water cooled nuclear power plants. Developing a comparable dollar value for ALARA for an ISFSI, which represents such a low potential risk to the public health and safety, does not appear to be useful.

Comment No. 64: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"As the decision in the Seabrook case makes clear, the expenditure of money by an applicant prior to approval of a construction permit can and does directly affect the outcome of the Commission consideration of the wisdom of the issuance of the construction permit as compared to alternatives. The Commission thus has the authority to protect the integrity of its decision-making process by prohibiting such expenditures except to the extent they are essential to the application process. Thus, proposed §72.3(e) should be amended to exclude item (3) and to embody the principles enunciated."

Discussion: We believe that procurement of long lead time items, at the owner's risk, can proceed without affecting the decision-making process as to the suitability of the site of a proposed installation. The expenditures involved, such as for a cask handling crane, are a small fraction of the total costs of an ISFSI and are small compared to long lead time items for a nuclear power plant.

Comment No. 65: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We believe construction of suitable access facilities to the site should be excluded from the definition of 'commencement of construction' and should be so stated. We suggest adding the following:

"(4) Construction of suitable access facilities to the site."

Discussion: The definition of "Commencement of Construction" has been modified to include construction of access facilities to the site.

Comment No. 66: F. Anderson. (17)

Suggested rewording of definition of "Controlled Area"

"'Controlled area' is that area immediately surrounding the ISFSI complex, the use of which is controlled by the licensee for the duration of the license and within which the ISFSI operations are performed."

Discussion: The definition of "Controlled Area" has been revised.

Comment No. 67: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"Paragraph 72.3(h) - The NRC staff must draw upon their experience in developing Standard Review Plans for nuclear power plants and specify what 'combination of events' must be addressed in the design of ISFSI since these parameters may well control the design of (or the decision to build) an ISFSI. "Terminology such as 'These values may be (1) restraints derived from generally accepted 'state-of-the-art' practices for achieving functional goals' is not satisfactory for clear and concise regulations.

Discussion: The definition of "Design bases" has been expanded for additional clarity.

Comment No. 68: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"Does 'human history' mean 'recorded history'?"

Discussion: By definition, recorded is equivalent to history. The word human was deleted.

On the definition of an ISFSI:

Comment No. 69: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The definition of Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation should have added to it the full sentence - 'an ISFSI shall be only for the temporary storage of spent fuel and under no circumstances for the permanent storage and disposal of spent fuel.'"

Comment No. 70: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"The term 'self-contained 'appears to be either superfluous for implying a significant but unspecified characteristic of the ISFSI. We recommend deletion of the term."

Comment No. 71: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"In order to avoid any confusion between an 'Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)' and fuel storage facilities normally associated with an operating reactor we suggest that a phrase be added which states that an ISFSI is also not covered by 10 CFR 50."

Comment No. 72: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"'Independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI).' The definition of an ISFSI should include all independent spent fuel storage installations whether located at a separate site or located at a site that includes other facilities licensed under 10 CFR."

Comment No. 73: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We suggest the definition of ISFSI be changed to permit or allow the supporting services to not necessarily be dedicated totally to the ISFSI."

"While it appears that an ISFSI license would not be required for a utility to transship fuel from one nuclear plant's spent fuel pool to another plant's pool, the regulation is not explicit. The NRC could avoid potential future disputes by clarifying the definition of an ISFSI contained in Section 72.3(j) to ensure that it does not encompass a spent fuel pool which is an integral part of a nuclear plant."

Discussion: These comments were considered in revising the definition of an ISFSI, see paragraph 72.3(m).

On the definition of "neighboring area":

Comment No. 74: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Neighboring area - The extent of this area should be more specifically defined. We suggest a definition similar to that given for 'low population zone' in 10 CFR Part 100."

Comment No. 75: Florida Power and Light Company. (63)

"If this definition is to determine the zone of emergency planning, it is important to clearly establish a maximum size for this area. Failure to do so will lead to unnecessary difficulties in determining the intent of the regulation. This type of ambiguity increases the present uncertainty associated with regulatory compliance."

Discussion: These comments were considered in revising the definition of the term "neighboring area" which has been changed to ISFSI-EPZ. The zone to be covered by ar emergency plan depends upon the characteristics of the area in the vicinity of the proposed ISFSI, which should be defined in the license application.

Comment No. 76: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Offsite (not defined) - A definition explicitly defining 'offsite' should be included. We suggest the wording 'offsite' in all areas outside of the ISFSI restricted area."

Discussion: We do not believe there is a need for the proposed definition of "offsite."

Comment No. 77: F. Anderson. (17)

The author of comment letter No. 17 suggested adding the following definitions of population, as used in Sec. 72.65(e).

"'Population' is all the important organisms living in a given area. The important organisms are those ecological systems, including people, that may be adversely affected by the change in conditions due to the construction, operation or decommissioning of ISFSI."

Discussion: A definition of "Population" has been added to Section 72.3(q).

On the definition of "region":

Comment No. 78: American Nuclear Society ANS2.19. (41)

"In several sections - 72.62, 72.63, 72.64, 72.65 - review of the 'region' is required for several different reasons. The size of the region is not defined. The area to be examined should vary with the feature of facility of concern. This seems to me to have been handled in ANS-2.19."

Comment No. 79: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"Paragraph 72.3(n) - The term 'Region' appears to be too broadly defined, especially in light of the geographical area that could conceivably be affected by an accident at ISFSI. We recommend that the traditional 80 kilometer radius be used to bound a 'Region.'"

Comment No. 80: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The indeterminate size of a 'region' is inappropriate. Since radiological consequences for the 'region' must be evaluated under §72.61(e) and §72.65(e), better guidance must be provided."

Comment No. 81: F. Anderson. (17)

The author of Comment Letter No. 17 suggested the following wording.

"'Region' is a geographical area surrounding and including the site sufficiently large to contain (1) all features related to a phenomenon or to the effects from a particular event, and (2) all measurable effects of environmental impact, both radiological and non-radiological due to the ISFSI complex."

Discussion: These comments were considered in revising the definition of the term "region." The size of the region effected by the construction and operation of an ISFSI, and the effects, if any, are to be defined by the license application and environmental impact assessment.

Comment No. 82: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Replacement of 'controlled area' with the term 'restricted area' would require the second sentence to be changed to 'The site includes the restricted area.'"

Discussion: The term "controlled area" was retained. See discussion of new site related terms in Chapter I.

Comment No. 83: F. Anderson. (17)

"'Site' is the real property (area) on which the ISFSI is located. The site may extend beyond the controlled area."

Discussion: The definition of the term "site" has been revised.

On the definition of the term "spent fuel":

Comment No. 84: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"The definition of spent fuel precludes storage of heavy water reactor (e.g., CANDU) fuel. This type of fuel may have to be stored in ISFSI's if the Foreign Spent Fuel Policy is implemented."

Comment No. 85: Northeast Utilitites. (45)

"We accept the minimum of one year decay as a practical and general satisfactory limitation but believe that sufficient evaluations have been performed to bound

the radiologically significant zone by fuel exposure, specific power and decay time, thus providing a more defensive selection of this basic parameter."

Comment No. 86: General Electric Company. (47)

"§72.3(r) defines 'Spent Fuel' suitable for storage in an ISFSI as light water reactor fuel which has undergone at least one year's decay since reactor shutdown. If the phrase <u>since reactor shutdown</u> is augmented with <u>or removal</u> from the reactor, then the possible future case of on-line fueling can be accommodated."

Comment No. 87: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The definition of 'spent fuel' (§72.3(r)) should not be linked to reactor shutdown, since the reactor is likely to have started up again after the fuel was replaced. We suggest instead that §72.3(r) read as follows: '(r) 'Spent fuel' suitable for storage in an ISFSI means irradiated light water reactor nuclear plant fuel which has not been used in an operating reactor for at least one year.'"

Discussion: These comments were considered in the revision of the definition of the term "spent fuel." It now states "... at least one year's decay since being used as a source of energy in a power reactor."

Comment No. 88: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"We think that the flexibility for a ISFSI to receive nuclear fuel other than from light water reactors is valuable (unless this falls under the scope of another regulation). A requirement could be added to commit in the SAR to the types of fuels to be stored."

Discussion: The revised definition of spent fuel is not limited to LWR spent fuel. The SAR must cover the types of fuel for which a proposed ISFSI is designed. Limitations will be covered as a license condition.

Comment No. 89: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"We recommend that the following note be added to Subparagraph 72.3(r), 'Spent Fuel':

"Note: In addition to spent fuel, control rods and other irradiated core components discharged with the fuel may also be stored in ISFSI."

Discussion: This point has been covered in the revised definition of spent fuel. An ISFSI is not expected to store irradiated core components other than those associated with spent fuel assemblies. If such a need should arise, it could be handled by a specific application which would be evaluated on its merits as an exception under Section 72.7.

On the term "important to safety":

Comment No 90: Kaiser Engineers. (21)

"The inclusion of '.... those items whose function is to (3) protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation in excess of design objectives' as structures, systems and components important to safety, seems inappropriate as in many instances radiation exposure limitations are a function of administrative actions, such as a limitation of the time personnel spend in defined areas. It is suggested that this definition be deleted from the final regulations pertaining to ISFSI."

Comment No. 91: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"At least one such new definition in the proposed 10 CFR 72 could result in unfortunate and unintended results quite apart from the general confusion arising from inconsistent terminology. Section 72.3(s) provides a definition of 'Structures, systems and components important to safety' which not only needlessly differs from that of 10 CFR 50 but which might be construed as requiring an unwarranted expansion of the number of items subject to the quality assurance requirements of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, as required by Section 72.75. Therefore, we suggest that 'Structures, systems and components important to safety' be defined, as in 10 CFR 50, to be 'those safety related items that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public.'"

Comments No. 92 and 93: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28) and M. Young (10)

"Section 72.3 (S) 'Structures, systems, components important to safety' as defined in 10 CFR Part 50, 'are those safety related items that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public.' It seems appropriate that definitions in Part 72 should be consistent with these used in other Federal Regulations to avoid confusion. It is recommended that the change be made."

Comment No. 94: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"(s) Structures, system and components important to safety - The definition for this term is too broad and as stated encompasses functions which are not included in the traditional definition set forth in other NRC regulations. We recommend that the definition be worded, 'Structures, systems and components important to safety' means those items that provide reasonable assurance that the spent fuel can be received, handled and stored without undue risk to the health and safety of the public.' (draft language is proposed NRC regulation 10 CFR Part 60"

Comment No. 95: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46312, left, 72.3 (s)) - This definition is in conflict with the wellestablished principles as espoused in 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, where 'structure, systems, and components important to safety' are those 'that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public.' Thus, 72.3(s) needs to be redefined, especially to delete the words following '(3).'"

Comment No. 96: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"Paragraph 72.3(s) - This Part 72 definition of 'important to safety' extends, without any accompanying justification, the scope of protection beyond that

provided by the Part 50 definition of 'important to safety' to include plant personnel. It is clear that the development of the corresponding 10 CFR 50 regulations were directed at 'structures, systems and components required to provide reasonable assurance the facility can be operated without undue risk to the health and safety of the <u>public</u>" (emphasis added). Considering both the traditional use of the term 'important to safety' and the use of the term for an ISFSI, we recommend deletion of the reference to plant personnel."

Comment No. 97: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The definition of 'structures systems and components important to safety' appears to include the cooling system and water supply, whereas the Statement of Considerations in column 2 page 46310, third paragraph, would appear to exempt these systems from the full implication of this classification. This discrepancy should be clarified."

Comment No. 98: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"The definition of structures, systems and components important to safety is extremely broad and is not consistent with the philosophy used elsewhere in the Commission's regulations for defining such items. As used in 10 CFR 50 and 100 Appendix A, the term 'important to safety' has heretofore been applied only to those structures, systems or components which are necessary to prevent dose to the public and to essential plant operating personnel from exceeding regulatory limits for accident conditions and anticipated operational occurrences. The definition given in paragraph 72.3(s) makes no distinction between normal operating conditions and abnormal or accident conditions. We recommend revising the definition to explicitly eliminate items required solely for normal operating conditions from consideration in identifying structures, systems and components 'important to safety.'"

Comment No. 99: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"'Protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation in excess of design objectives.' Structural items in this category are not considered safety related or important to safety in power plant design and should be deleted for an ISFSI as the proposed inclusion would require that shielding comply with safety quality standards and be designed for severe natural phenomena loadings."

Comment No. 100: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"The definition, as written, for 'structures, systems and components important to safety' (Subparagraph 72.3(S)) is unnecessarily overinclusive. We recommend that this definition be rewritten to be consistent with 10CFR50 as follows:

"''Structures, systems and components important to safety' means those plant features which are required to reasonably assure that operation of the facility will not result in undue risk to the health and safety of the public.'"

Comment No. 101: Florida Power and Light Company. (63)

"As set forth in Section 72.3(s) this definition includes components whose function is to maintain 'required conditions.' Without clarification this could include components that are not required to 'prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public.' (Appendix B 10 CFR 50); therefore, Section 72.3(s) should be revised to reflect the same functional level as Appendix B."

Comment No. 102: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"(s) 'Structures, systems and components important to safety.' The definition provided in the proposed rule appears to extend beyond the requirements of 10 CFR Part 50 Appendix B and it should be rephrased. These items should be limited to include only those 'structures, systems and components that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and in fety of the public.'"

Comment No. 103: Stone and Webster Engineering Corporation. (69)

"Paragraph 72.3(s) defines structures, systems and components important to safety. This definition is inconsistent with 10 CFR 50 Appendix A which defines these as '. . . structures, systems and components that provide reasonable assurance that the facility can be operated without undue risk to the health and safety of the public.'

"Accordingly 72.3(s) should be revised to read 'Structures, systems and components important to safety' means those items whose function is to (1) maintain the required spent fuel storage conditions, and (2) prevent damage to the spent fuel during transfer and storage."

Comment No. 104: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We believe in (1) the phrase, 'required spent fuel storage conditions' is vague and should be defined if used here. Also, it would seem to encompass prevention of damage to spent fuel during storage in (2). We suggest the definition of this term should be based upon those items whose failure to function under design basis events would cause allowable offsite dose limits to be exceeded (e.g., damage to spent fuel during transfer generally will not result in releases which will exceed offsite dose limits). Plant personnel exposures should not be included in this definition except to ensure maintenance of the fuel to prevent exceeding allowable offsite dose limits. Design occupational dose limits are tied to ALARA considerations and operating limits or technical specifications."

Discussion: Collectively, these comments object to the broadening of the term "important to safety" to cover, in addition to accidents:

- 1. protection of plant personnel,
- 2. operations, and
- 3. implications on the quality assurance program.

The protection of personnel involved in ISFSI operation is considered to be equally important as the protection of the general public. Although occupational exposure can be limited by administrative actions, it is also a factor to be considered in the design of an ISFSI. Not only is the design, fabrication, installation, etc. of some of the equipment involved in ISFSI operations important to safety, but the operation of this equipment can also be important to safety. Many of the postulated accident scenarios for an ISFSI address events that could occur during the receipt and transfer of spent fuel to its storage position and facility support operations. Once in place, the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI is a static operation. However, the operating function of maintaining the required storage conditions is considered to be important to safety.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to identify those structures, systems, and components (including their operating requirements) which are important to safety as these are design-specific. The licensee's quality assurance program must cover items and activities so identified to an extent which is consistent with their importance to safety. Such a program for an ISFSI is expected to be selective in its application and may be quite different from a program covering the design and construction of a nuclear power plant.

Section 72.6, License Required

Comment No. 105: D. Wilt. (24)

"I believe the proposed rule in Subpart A is deficient in two material respects. Initially, I do not believe an applicant for a license to operate an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (hereinafter referred to ISFSI) ought be an individual. The length of time such a facility will be in existence is such that it would be unwise to permit an individual to own the license. The frailties of human existence require a more stable form of ownership of such a facility. While an individual may be perfectly capable of operating such a facility, his heirs may not. To require the fommission to relicense facilities because of the death of the owner seems to be to be improper. Thus, I think the Commission must limit ownership of such facilities to entities which have unlimited life. For al' practical purposes, much of the spent fuel will have an unlimited life."

Discussion: The definition of "person" in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, (42 U.S.C. Sec. 2014(s)) includes an "individual." The definition of person in § 72.3 of the rule is consistant with the statuatory definition.

Comment No. 106: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"This section refers to two types of licenses, 1) general and 2) specific. A subsequent paragraph 72.7 provides a discussion of the general license and a similar subsequent paragraph is recommended to provide the elements and applicability of a specific license."

Discussion: Section 72.6 has been rewritten in response to this comment. The general license, covered under Section 72.6(b) is a license to own spent fuel. But a general license to own spent fuel does not cover its physicol possession. A specific license to possess spent fuel, independent of ownership, is covered by Part 72.

Comment No. 107: General Electric Company. (47)

"§72.6 License Required and §72.7 General License to Own Spent Fuel Other radioactive material, not in spent fuel should be included (see comments on §72.1 Purpose)." Discussion: The definition of "spent fuel" has been revised to include other radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage.

Section 72.7, General License to Own Spent Fuel

Comment No. 108: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"It is not clear whether the owner/operator of the facility must take title to the fuel stored therein or whether he can store fuel owned by someone else."

Discussion: The owner/operator is not required to own or take title to the spent fuel stored in an ISFSI.

Comment No. 109: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"There is no basis provided for the approval at this time of a general license as proposed in §72.7."

Discussion: The Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, specifically provides for the private ownership of source, byproduct, and special nuclear materials.

Comment No. 110: D. Kell. (2)

"'To accommodate some light water. . . plant fuel which has at least one year's decay' is patently transparent. The clause, the 'Commission consents. . . to the creation of any. . . pledge or. . . lien upon. . . nuclear material. . . not owned by the US. . .' would provide industry with a means of circumventing President Carter's nuclear nonproliferation policy which prevents the sale or lease of fuel, technology, and hardware abroad to non-nuclear nations. By reason of this clause, nuclear wastes could be received at the proposed U.S.-ISFSI from proliferating sources worldwide, in anticipation of the resumption of spent fuel reprocessing and creation of mixed oxide fuels for resale or lease again abroad."

Discussion: The at least one year's decay is a safety criterion. The proposed Part 72 is applicable only to the temporary storage of "aged" spent fuel in which short-lived radionuclides are no longer present. The wording ". . . not owned by the U.S." refers to privately owned nuclear materials as differentiated from government owned materials which were leased for commercial purposes. This does not provide industry with a means of circumventing President Carter's nuclear non-proliferation policy. The receipt of spent fuel from foreign sources is a national policy matter. This NRC regulation does not cover such policy issues, but, if such action is taken, prescribes the safety requirements pertinent to the temporary storage of such spent fuel in the U.S.

Section 72.8 Specific Exemptions

Comment No. 111: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The specific exemption provision (Section 72.8) fails to provide any reasonable administrative guidelines for procedures."

Discussion: The guidelines are defined:"...as it determines are authorized by law and will not endanger life or property or the common defense and security and are otherwise in the public interest."

Subpart B--License Applications, Form, Contents

Section 72.11, Filing of Applications for Licenses: Oath or Affirmation

Comment No. 112: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"Table I would be better put into Section 72.11."

Discussion: Table I has been moved to the end of Subpart B.

Comment No. 113: General Electric Company. (47)

"It is not clear why a requirement of filing with Oath or Affirmation is made a requirement of Part 72 when it has not previously been required in licensing transactions in Parts 30, 40, or 70. It is suggested that the Oath or Affirmation requirement be deleted."

Discussion: Although a similar requirement is not included in Parts 30, 40 and 70, the ramifications involved in an application to store spent fuel in an ISFSI are considered to be sufficiently important to require applications to contain the signature of an officer of the organizations submitting the applications. This requirement has been retained.

Comment No. 114: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The applicant should provide a sum of money to the local unit of government in which the 'site' is located that equals the cost of preparing environmental reports to be submitted to the regulatory agencies as certified by the applicant. This sum of money should be in addition to the fees provided in Section 72.11(d) and should be paid to the NRC. The funds so collected by the NRC should be disbursed exclusively and only to the local unit of government for the following purposes:

"1. To further implement the national environmental program as outlined in NEPA;

- "2. To provide full and complete information and disclosure concerning the environmental effects of major federal actions so that the federal agency responsible for iss ing an EIS can make informed decisions in doing so;
- "3. To eliminate the applicant oriented and unilateral method of supplying information to federal agencies for the purpose of evaluating the environmental effects of a major federal action that exists at the present time;
- "4. To provide for the proper consideration of the public interest;
- "5. To provide for and utilize effective participation by effected local and regional units of government as representative of the public interest;
- "6. To localize and organize informational input while maintaining sole central federal decision making authority;

"7. To place the financial burden of the increased study upon those who seek to benefit from the infringement upon our natural environment."

Discussion: The NRC fee structure is designed to recover direct costs incurred by NRC in processing an application for a licensee. This comment addresses a possible aspect of licensee application fees which is beyond the scope of a specific NRC regulation such as the proposed Part 72.

Section 72.12, Elimination of Repetition

Comment No. 115: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"This Section should be expanded to specifically state that in situations where an applicant is a utility licensed to operate a nuclear power plant and is proposing to build an AFR storage installation near or at an operating reactor site, the NRC will take into consideration the Environmental Report, the Safety Analysis Report, and other information contained in previous NRC applications, including information as to environmental site conditions, financial qualification of the applicant, technical qualifications of the applicant, security, and site safety analysis, and will require only such additional information as is necessary to protect the health and safety of the public in evaluating the application to construct an AFR storage installation."

Discussion: The wording of this section is believed adequate to cover the intent of this comment.

Section 72.13, Public Inspection of Applications

Comment No. 116: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This section on public availability of documents pursuant to Parts 2 and 9 is unnecessary and should be deleted."

Discussion: The inclusion of this section in Part 72 is deemed helpful although admittedly it is redundant.

Section 72.14, Contents of Application: General and Financial Information

Comment No. 117: D. Wilt. (24)

"The second deficiency deals with the financial information required of an applicant. The rule does not specify what form or type of financial information is required nor does the rule set forth any specific requirements concerning the financial stability of an applicant. This facility by its very nature will be in existence for more than one (1) human generation. In order to insure that such a facility will be properly operated, it is mandatory that the most conservative form of financial stability be required. Thus, an application should be required to post a bond in favor of the government in an amount not to exceed double that of the amount needed to maintain decommission procedures and decontaminate the facility. It is true, of course, that bonding companies will not issue such a bond unless there is sufficient assets to protect the bonding company. The people of this country are entitled to the same protection. In my judgment, not to require such financial stability is wrong and no license should be granted without the strongest financial protection available." Discussion: The Commission is aware of the need for financial stability of the owner/operator of an ISFSI. However, because of the range of possibilities of such ownership, e.g., a government agency such as DOE, a regulated utility or a commercial firm such as G.E., it is considered best to determine financial qualifications on a case-by-case basis.

Comment No. 118: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.14(e) - While it is appropriate for the NRC to require a prospective licensee to show financial (and/or contractual) ability to remove the spent fuel from storage and decommission the facility, it is inappropriate to require the submission of the highly competitive information that would be required under the proposed Section 72.14(e)(1) and (2). The 'estimated construction costs' are irrelevant since the ISFSI is not licensed to receive fuel until after the NRC has found the facility to have been adequately constructed. The actual costs for constructing the ISFSI can vary from totally irrelevant to the NRC to only slightly relevant, depending upon the financing mode. The 'estimated operating costs over the planned life of the installation' are irrelevant without corresponding estimates of both revenues and the earliest potential data for decommissioning. We recommend that items (e)(1) and (e)(2) be deleted.

"Most of the 'estimated shutdown and decommissioning costs' for an ISFSI will be easy to develop, however, the Government charge for disposition of the waste generated will probably control the aggregate cost. We recommend that the NRC (1) publish guideline unit costs for the disposal of low level radioactive wastes, and (2) amend the proposed regulations to require only that the licensee show an arrangement to guarantee the early accumulation of funds to satisfy shutdown, decontamination and the NRC estimated costs of disposal."

Comment No. 119: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"There is no reason why the financial qualifications requirements for ISFSI's should be more rigorous than those for reactors as set forth in 10 CFR §50.33(f) and Appendix C to Part 50. The proposed section could be read to require financial arrangements for decommissioning prior to licensing. Such a requirement would be unreasonable, particularly where the licensee is a government agency (such as DOE) or one or more utilities. For utilities, such a requirement might conflict with state regulatory requirements."

Discussion: Construction, operating and decommissioning costs and revenues are input for a finding of financial responsibility. Competitive information can be withheld from public disclosure under the provisions of 10 CFR 2.790(b)(1).

The regulation requires that the applicant show an arrangement to cover the costs of decommissioning, including waste disposal costs based on the best information available at the time of application. Depending upon the type of organization involved, e.g., a government agency or regulated utility, it may not be necessary to show an actual accumulation of funds for such purposes.

Comment No. 120: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"In view of the limited activities involved at an ISFSI we question the need for requiring detailed financial information pursuant to §72.14(e) and the need

for a finding of financial qualification under §72.31(a)(5). To the extent the Commission believes financial qualifications should be considered, the regulations should provide that any regulated utility (or company with specified assets) would automatically satisfy the regulatory requirements; that no additional findings would be needed, and that the only supporting financial information to be filed would be the company's latest annual report or certified balance sheet and income statement. If the Commission does not decide to include in the regulations a generic determination of financial qualifications covering all regulated utilities (or companies with specific assets), at the very least it should specify that no finding of financial qualification would be required as to any applicant who holds a valid construction permit or operating license for a production or utilization facility under Part 50. Any applicant who has satisfied the financial qualification requirements of Part 50 should not have to undergo an unnecessary duplicative review for the limited additional activities at an ISFSI."

Discussion: From a practical standpoint, a finding of financial responsibility will have to be made on a case-by-case basis until more experience is gained with licensing under Part 72. Although it is agreed that Part 50 licensees should have little trouble meeting the requirements for financial responsibility, it is not considered prudent to make a blanket exception for such licensees at this time. The provisions of §72.12 should greatly ease the burden on both the applicant and staff in this matter.

Comment No. 121: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"The changes needed in the regulations would require substantial tightening of the provisions of proposed §72.14(e)(3). In particular, the necessary funds should be guaranteed prior to issuance of a license and not merely be based on 'reasonable assurance.' The continuing financial trauma of the Seabrook facility, although the reasonable assurance finding has been made, supports the need for a more explicit finding."

Discussion: The final rule requires that a finding be made that the--"decommissioning plan and its financing provide reasonable assurance that the decontamination and decommissioning of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life will provide adequate protection to the health and safety of the public." The NRC is studying the subject of decommissioning, including its costs and financing. The results of these studies will be used in making this finding of acceptability.

Table I - Required Licensing Documents.

Comment No. 122: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Change title of table to delete the impression that the full list is required when applying for license; table actually indicates only one thing, specifically the number of copies needed for compliance with various sections of Part 72.

"The license application requirements are given in section 72.14, not 72.11.

"It would appear that footnote 3 should apply to Safeguards Contingency Plan 72.81(c) as well as to 72.81(a).

"From the guidance given in draft Regulatory Guide 3.24.1 it appears that several sections (e.g., 72.15, 72.19, 72.75, and 72.94) are not really individual documents but merely chapters in a document submitted according to 72.14 and called a 'License Application.' It might be worthwhile considering a change to the table to indicate this. Thus, a full application would contain four documents:

"License Application Environmental Report Physical Security Plan Safeguards Contingency Plan"

Comment No. 123: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"Table I, Footnote 3 - The withholding of information under 10 CFR 2.790(d) is a responsibility of the NRC, not the licensee. If the NRC desires such material withheld, the NRC should specify that it must be withheld."

Comment No. 124: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"Footnote 3, which provides that physical protection plans 'should be' exempt from public disclosure, should make such exemption mandatory."

Discussion: These comments were taken into consideration in the revision of Table I, which has been relocated to the end of Subpart B.

Section 72.15, Contents of Application: Technical Information

Section 72.15(a)(1)

Comment No. 125: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"The use of the term 'ultimate capacity' as used in Section 72.15(a)(1) is ambiguous. It should clarified that the site is to be assessed assuming that the installation will be operated at the capacity which the applicant requests in its application. If the applicant wishes to expand the capacity at a later time, it should have the option of licensing the present contemplated capacity or a larger capacity possibly needed in the future."

Discussion: The wording has been changed to reflect the design capacity as stated in the application, and the term "design capacity" has been defined in Section 72.3.

Section 72.15(a)(4)

Comment No. 126: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"The applicant is required to assess the risk to public health resulting from operation of the facility. The use of the word 'risk' implies that some sort of probability-consequence analysis is required. This paragraph should be reworded to read '. . . with the objective of assessing the impact on public health and safety . . . "

Discussion: Comment accepted and the wording changed accordingly.

Section 72.15(a)(5)

Comment No. 127: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"We recommend that the words 'and the limits shown in' be modified to 'in accordance with."

Discussion: Section 72.15(a)(5) has been revised to reflect the intent of this comment.

Comment No. 128: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"The NRC should clarify whether the \$1,000 per Man-rem test in Part 50, Appendix I, will apply to the as-low-as-reasonably-achievable requirement in Sections 72.15(a)(5) and 72.33(d)."

Discussion: 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix I, is specific to a light-water cooled nuclear power plant; it does not apply to an ISFSI.

Section 72.15(a)(6)

On the subject of Waste volumes:

Comment No. 129: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Here and in several other sections of the proposed Part 72 are references to 'minimize waste volumes.' The Staff has not presented a rationale for this objective which has not been incorporated in other Parts of Title 10 and which may be counter productive to the ALARA philosophy. Minimizing waste volume does not reduce public exposure and will probably increase plant personnel exposure. NFS' experience indicates that contaminated waste generation should average only about 1,000 cubic feet per year per million gallons of pool water. We recommend elimination of this 'principal design criteria.'"

Comment No. 130: General Electric Company. (47)

"Among other information to be supplied in the SAR, this Section identifies the 'features . . . and operating modes to minimize waste volumes generated by the facility.' A term other than <u>minimize</u> should be used in this location. Minimize is a limitless concept and should more realistically be replaced by '. . . and operating modes to maintain the low waste volumes established for the facility.'"

Comment No. 131: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"§72.15(a)(6) requires the application to describe 'the features of ISFSI design and o 'ing modes to minimize waste volumes generated by the facility;' while §72.15 2)(v) refers to 'the measures taken to control the quantities of radioactive wastes for offsite disposal to as low as reasonably achieveable levels.' The latter requirement seems more precise. §72.15(a)(6) should be deleted unless it has an additional purpose which is not apparent from the presently proposed regulations." Comment No. 132: Southern Company Services. (54)

"This requirement is redundent to (5) and should be deleted. Minimize is a somewhat ambiguous term and we could not determine how to explain this satis-factorily in a license application."

Discussion: The staff believes that attention must be paid to the volumes of radioactive wastes requiring offsite disposal. The wording of this section has been revised as suggested by Comment No. 130.

Comment No. 133: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"72.16 and 72.33 The depth and type of information required by these three Sections is not indicated and 72.15(a)(7) and 72.16 appear to conflict. Is it correct to assume that 72.15 applies to the initial SAR submittal and 72.16 applies to the final SAR update which is to be submitted prior to initiating operation of the facility? This should be made clear, if true. Does the Staff plan to issue a regulatory guide for SAR preparation?"

Discussion: These sections address the subject of proposed license conditions to be included in the Safety Analysis Report. The technical specifications will be specific to the design and operation of the proposed facilities. Sections 72.15 and 72.16 do not differentiate between the initial SAR and final SAR update. It is anticipated that the initial SAR will be essentially complete and any subsequent updating will cover only minor modifications which will not have any substantial effect on the design or safety aspects of the proposed installation.

A draft of Regulatory Guide 3.44, "Standard Format and Content for the Safety Analysis Report to be Included in the License Application for the Storage of Spent Fuel in an ISFSI (Water Basin Type)" was issued for comment on December 22, 1978. Shortly after Part 72 is published as an effective rule, it is planned to revise this Regulatory Guide responding to comments received on both the rule and this guide, for issuance in final form.

Section 72.15(a)(9)

Comment No. 134: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Requiring research and development to confirm the design is too restrictive. The paragraph does not say who makes the decision requiring R&D. This could be a very expensive item for the licensee. The paragraph should either be deleted or modified."

Comment No. 135: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"Section 72.15(a)(0) requires identification of structures, systems or components requiring research and development to confirm the adequacy of their design and a description of the R&D program which will be conducted to resolve any associated safety questions. Although this requirement is qualified by the phrase 'if any' in respect to structures, systems or components requiring R&D, we suggest that the generalized wording of this statement may lead to unnecessary dialog over adequacy of the design. We suggest that this paragraph be revised by substituting the following for the first five lines of paragraph (i.e., down to the first semicolon):

"'If the proposed facility incorporates any safety related structures, systems, or components whose functional adequacy or reliability have not been demonstrated by prior use for the same purpose, or cannot be demonstrated by reference to performance data in related applications or to widely accepted engineering principles, such structures, systems, or components shall be identified.'"

Discussion: The wording has been revised to reflect the intent of the above comments, to the effect that it must be shown how any outstanding safety questions will be resolved prior to the receipt of spent fuel.

Section 72.15(a)(12)

Comment No. 136: F. Anderson. (17)

"'The description . . . in effluents to the environs as low as is reasonably achievable and within the dose limits stated in the EPA regulations of 40 CFR Part 190.'"

Discussion: This section has been revised to reflect the intent of this comment.

Comment No. 137: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.15(12)(1)(a&b) Why not combine the two paragraphs by inserting 'and gaseous' following 'liquid' in paragraph A. In the first paragraph in (12), gaseous and liquid effluents are included together rather than separate."

Discussion: The wording has been revised as suggested.

Comment No. 138: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"72.15(12)(iii) - The requirement for procedures should be deleted as they are included in other regulations."

Discussion: This subsection has been revised.

Section 72.15(a)(12)(v)

Comment No. 139: Kaiser Engineers. (21)

"Suggest this paragraph be deleted as it is not consistent with the 'as low as is reasonably achievable' philosophy related to radioactivity released from the site to unrestricted areas. There have been no guidelines promulgated for radioactive wastes sent offsite for disposal (e.g., burial grounds, deep geologic storage, etc.) with respect to ALARA."

Comment No. 140: Middle South Services, Inc. (37)

"This section specifies that the Safety Analysis Report should contain 'A description of the measures taken to control the quantities of radioactive wastes for offsite disposal to as low as reasonably achievable levels.' This could be speciously construed to apply to the HLW contained in the spent fuel elements themselves. To avoid this possibility, we suggest inserting 'other than spent fuel' after the word 'wastes.'"
Comment No. 141: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section requires measures to control the quantities of radioactive waste for disposal offsite to ALARA levels. This is not a current regulatory requirement and is not necessary for this Part."

Comment No. 142: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"... requires the description of the equipment installed to control radioactive material in gaseous and liquid effluents and means for keeping levels of radioactive effluents to unrestricted areas as low as reasonably achievable. However, items (ii) and (v) introduce solid radioactive waste as an expansion of this requirement. This represents a new application of the ALARA concept not previously used in the LWR licensing. This concept requires a new costeffectiveness evaluation not just amongst alternative solid radwaste systems but taking into account liquid and gaseous radwaste systems from whence the solid waste comes.

"Since the present application of the ALARA concept was the result from extensive rule-making proceedings, we recommend that the extension to solid radwaste be deleted. If the intent is to extend it to solid waste, we believe it is more appropriate that it should be a subject of a separate proceeding."

Discussion: This section has been deleted as the subject is adequately covered in the preceeding sections.

Section 72.15(a)(13)

On the subject of accident analyses:

Comment No.143: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"This paragraph requires that doses be analyzed out to 24 hours following the event, whereas the dose limit for accidental exposure specified in Section 72.67 paragraph (b) is based on a two-hour limit. The time interval for the analysis and the dose limit should be consistent and justifiable."

Comment No. 144: Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company. (67)

"Paragraph 72.15(a)(13) states that doses due to direct exposure, inhalation, and ingestion should be analyzed for a 24-h, period, while paragraph 72.67 gives a single 2-hr dose criterion of 5 rem. Clarification is needed with respect to whether or not the criterion applies to total dose with an equivalent dose applied to other organs (as in GDC 19) and what limits apply beyond 2 hr."

Discussion: Paragraph 72.15(13) has been revised to relate the analysis to the event involved. The 5 rem in 2 hours stated in Section 72.67 was a proposed siting criteria based on the skyshine from a dry pool rather than the more conventional evaluation of inhalation/ingestion dose commitments associated with other types of potential fuel cycle accidents. Section 72.67 has been extensively revised in response to this and other comments. Comment No. 145: Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C. (29)

"The provision that the technical information to be submitted by the licensee concerning potential doses to individuals offsite from accidents and natural phenomenon under section 72.15(13) calls for exposures to be calculated only for the first 24 hours following the event. If a release of radioactive material does occur, the exposure of individuals will extend beyond a 24 hour period in all probability especially given the radionuclides involved. Exposure to offsite individuals should be calculated over the expected hazardous period not merely for a twenty-four hour period. Furthermore, the calculation is to be made only for direct exposure and not environment and pathway doses over time. The Commission's position on accident exposures will improperly underestimate the potential consequences of postulated event by restricting the period of time persons may be directly exposed <u>and</u> neglecting exposure via environmental pathways over time.

Comment No. 146: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The regulations do not contain any guidance concerning the type or magnitude of postulated accidents to be considered in evaluating sites and designs.

"The proposed regulations do not indicate the relevance of accident probabilities.

"A recent ALAB decision requires an applicant for a manufacturing license for a floating nuclear power plant to study Class 9 accidents. For the same reasons expressed in that opinion, Class 9 accidents should be studied at ISFSI sites, if those sites are in close proximity to nuclear power generating facilities."

Discussion: This section of the rule has been rewritten to better state the general requirements for accident analyses. The subject of accident analyses will be covered in Regulatory Guide 3.44 for water basin type installations and in other regulatory guides for other types of installations when the need arises.

Comment No. 147: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"Recognizing that aged fuel has a significantly lower release hazard some consideration should be given to minimizing the need for extensive meteorological testing for site approval. A 'standard' meteorological criteria should be quite adequate for the safety analysis."

Discussion: This comment will be considered in developing the final issue of Regulatory Guide 3.44.

On the use of Regulatory Guide 1.25 for accident analyses:

Comment No. 148: Middle South Services, Inc. (37)

"This section calls for conservative analyses of the potential dose to an individual offsite from accidents or natural phenomenon which result in criticality and the loss of water for water pool type installations. We believe that these analyses are unnecessary and inappropriate and will lead to great difficulties in the design of such a facility. We suggest that the regulatory position adopted in Regulatory Guide 1.25 is sufficient for the establishment of the design basis event for an ISFSI."

Comment No. 149: Louisiana Power and Light Company. (49)

"Section 72.15(13) - This section calls for a conservative analysis of the potential dose to an individual offsite from accidents and natural phenomena which result in criticality, release of radioactive materials to the site and surrounding areas, and the loss of water for water pool type installations. These analyses are both inappropriate and unnecessary and could lead to difficulty in the design of such a facility. Regulatory Guide 1.25 would be a suitable alternative for the establishment of the design basis event for an ISFSI. The requirements for analyses of ISFSI's should be no more restrictive than those presently required for spent fuel pools at reactor sites."

Discussion: The section on accident analyses has been revised. The purpose of this section is to establish that the site and the boundary of the controlled area are acceptable in the unlikely event of a design basis accident. Regulatory Guide 1.25 pertains to a potential fuel handling accident involving freshly discharged spent fuel at a power plant. It is only partially applicable to the storage of aged spent fuel at an ISFSI.

On the subject of an accidental criticality:

Comment No. 150: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This provision would appear to require an ISFSI design to assume criticality as a design basis accident. No basis is shown for the reasonableness of such an assumption."

Comment No. 151: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"If criticality is to be considered an accident, the means of causing such a criticality accident should be described."

Comment No. 152: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"In Section 72.15 the minimum required technical information for Safety Analysis Report is listed. Item 13 on this list deals with analysis of potential doses to offsite individuals from postulated accidents and natural phenomena. Among the accidents to be considered is criticality. This is a significant departure from common practice in reactor licensing for storage pools and one which we believe is inappropriate. Spent fuel storage racks are designed in such a way that a criticality accident is impossible even with fresh reactor fuel. Under these circumstances there is no reason to consider cr' cality as a design basis accident, and therefore we recommend that it be excluded from those accidents requiring offiste dose calculations."

Comment No. 153: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"The proposed regulations require in paragraph 72.15(13) an analysis of the offsite dose consequences of accidents which result in criticality. We believe that this requirement coold result in evaluations of accidents which are beyond

the 'design basis.' We believe that this paragraph or an additional paragraph in the regulations should require a definition of the design basis risk. The offsite dose analysis should then be performed for accidents up to and including the design basis event. If accident scenarios resulting in criticality are beyond this design basis, then the consequences of such scenarios should not be required to be analyzed."

Discussion: The probability of a criticality accident in a water basin type of ISFSI that would have significant offsite consequences is very remote. However, we do believe that this should be analyzed for each specific application for the purpose of establishing that the site and the controlled area boundary are acceptable. Specific accident types to be analyzed have been deleted from Part 72. The accidents to be analyzed will be design specific.

On the subject of a loss of water accident:

Comment No. 154: C. F. Braun and Company. (9)

"The comments are self explanatory, however we would suggest that in 72.15, sub. 13 some acceptable dose criteria with a defined limit be included."

Comment No. 155: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The type of analysis and its purpose is not entirely clear. If the gamma exposure to an offsite individual due to the loss of pool water is being used to determine the site boundary distance, it should be so stated. (See the transcript of the Commissioners' meeting of 19 July 1978, Page 20. Presentation made by Mr. R. M. Bernero.) In our opinion, loss of pool water is a Class 9 type accident and is usually not considered in safety analyses for these types of facilities."

Comment No. 156: American Nuclear Society (ANS2.19). (41)

"On page 46314(13), dose calculations must be made for loss of water from a pool, but on page 46319, column 3(B) and in ANS-57.7, loss of water is not acceptable and will be prevented by facility design."

Comment No. 157: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Accidents and natural phenomena will not result in a potential dose to an individual offsite because of loss of water for a water pool type installation because this is not considered a credible event. ISFSI's will be designed against a catastrophic, abrupt loss of water. It would be acceptable to show that small losses through a liner, not captured by the liner leak collection system, might migrate through the concrete to the soil. An analysis could then be made of dose as in 72.15(a)(13)(ii)."

Comment No. 158: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We suggest it should be clearly stated whether 'the loss of water' analysis is for a nonmechanistic total water loss or a maximum credible water loss." Discussion: The potential complete loss of water from a water basin ISFSI is considered incredible but was used as a basis for establishing a limiting accident case. Further guidance on the specific accidents to be analyzed will be provided in Regulatory Guide 3.44.

Section 72.15(b), updating of the SAR:

Comment No. 159: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"The requirement for an annual update of the safety analysis report (SAR) after the facility has been licensed is excessive. Likewise, submittal of these changes to the NRC for other than information purposes is not necessary. Per the provision of Section 72.34, a licensee may make certain changes to the facility without prior NRC approval. There should be no reason to submit these same changes to the NRC in the form of an SAR amendment for approval after the changes have been made. This secion should specify a periodic update of the SAR when significant changes have occurred."

Comment No. 160: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"I believe the (b) should be an (a). In this paragraph, the requirement to update the SAR annually is unduly restrictive. It appears that the last part of that paragraph should be changed to read '. . . the SAR will be updated and submitted to the Commission for approval when significant changes are proposed to the ISFSI.' If there have been no changes to the facility or components or systems since the SAR, there is no reason to continuously make reports that are the same as previously submitted."

Comment No. 161: Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C. (29)

"The requirement that the licensee supply technical information under section 72.15 concerning the safety analysis report (SAR) through a period up to 90 days prior to receipt of spent fuel is questionable. While a case can be made for a single construction/operating type license and for updating the SAR, we have serious reservations about the 'trickle-in' approach outlined in this requirement. Given the Commission's experience with reactor licenses, we believe that minimum requirements should be established for the SAR prior to licensing. Supplemental information may be added after the license is issued but it must not be information substantially affecting the approved design. One stop licensing requires that the issues be resolved to the fullest possible extent before the facility is licensed and is acceptable only on such a basis. We support the Commission's need for full information prior to the receipt of spent fuel, but we object to the concept that the design and safety analysis can be substantially changed after licensing. In the same vein, we support the ability of the Commission to backfit the facility as outlined in section 72.42, but we do not believe that the combination of SAR updating and backfitting should substitute for a full licensing review. The Commission must establish clear criteria for the scope of this review and the scope of the SAR, Environmental report and other reports required under section 72.31 prior to the issuance of a license."

Comment No. 162: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"Therefore, MP&L strongly urges the NRC to change the proposed regulations to avoid duplication of information contained in previous license applications of a utility, to remove uncertainties relating to the updating of the license and Safety Analysis Report prior to the receipt of fuel at a facility, and to impose protection requirements on applicants no more stringent than can be reasonably justified in light of the recognized minimal risk associated with the storage of aged spent nuclear fuel."

Comment No. 163: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Annual undating of the SAR is an unwarranted burden, especially for such a low-risk facility as an ISFSI. Safety might be served by requiring revision of the SAR 'upon significant change."

Comment No. 164: Gilbert/Commonwealth. (44)

"Part 72.15(b) requires an annual update to the applicant's safety analysis report (SAR), and includes a number of items including a final analysis and evaluation of the design and updated quality assurance, security, pre-operational testing, and decommissioning plans. While we believe the update including these items to be appropriate for the final design review (90 days before receipt of spent fuel), we do not believe that an <u>annual</u> update including the detailed amount of information listed to be appropriate or warranted. We recommend that the phrase "and annually thereafter" be deleted from Part 72.15(b)."

Comment No. 165: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"The terminology '. . . for approval' is somewhat disconcerting and probably superfluous. We recommend deletion of the term."

Comment No. 166: General Electric Company. (47)

"General Electric is also concerned about the efficacy of the requirement (72.15b) for the annual updating of the SAR and subsequent approval by the Commission. Changes in the facility which are important to safety are handled by the normal license amendment application, review, and issuance of the amendment by the Commission. Other changes can be handled by the procedure discussed in 72.34(b). We fail to see that the annual updating and approval of the SAR is either necessary or practical.

and

"This Section requires an annual updating of the SAR and submittal for Commission approval. It is not clear why an annual requirement is included in this Section. This is an unnecessary and unusual requirement that will result in duplicating review effort and double approvals on licensees' activities. Any change in the facility that requires a license amendment will necessarily have received Commission approval prior to the implementation of that change. Revision of the SAR should be implicit to each approved amendment. Any change in the facility that does not require an amendment, does not require Commission approval. Whether changes of this type are reported to the NRC in sixty days or annually, there is no basis or necessity for Commission approval." Comment No. 167: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The requirements for updating the SAR set forth in §72.15(b) are worded awkwardly and appear to be internally inconsistent. Moreover, a requirement that a completed SAR be submitted to the Commission 'for approval' at least 90 days before receipt of materials may give rise to unnecessary procedural delays at a time immediately before operation of an ISFSI is to begin. As discussed in our comments above under 'Licensing Approach,' we do not believe that there are any complexities associated with an ISFSI that would warrant a second 'reevaluation' or 'approval' by the Commission once the 'single' license has been issued. Moreover, there should certainly be no need for Commission 'approval' of an updated SAR annually thereafter. Thus although we have no objection to a requirement that the licensee maintain his SAR current and file up-dating information with the Commission 90 days prior to operation and annually thereafter, such filings should not require any Commission 'approval.'"

Comment No. 168: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"As a final comment we feel some guidance is needed on the expected lead times for NRC review of ISFSI license applications (especially with respect to final SAR updates submitted 90 days prior to the receipt of spent fuel)."

Comment No. 169: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"No basis is shown for requiring the annual updating of safety analysis reports over the life of the facility. Even if such updating is required, the possible implication in sub-paragraph (b)(1) that site evaluation analyses must continue through plant life, should be removed."

Comment No. 170: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The requirement for annual updating of the SAR appears to be unjustified. Updating should be required periodically when significant changes or modifications are contemplated and filed with the Commission. Commission approval on SAR updated information should be limited to major changes that result in significant plant modifications or operations."

Discussion: The wording of Sections 72.13(b) and (c) and 72.31 have been changed in response to these comments and to more explicitly state the requirements of the SAR to be submitted with the license application. For the granting of a single license under Part 72 prior to the commencement of construction, the SAR submitted must be in sufficient detail to provide a basis for an independent evaluation of all safety aspects of the proposed installation. It is recognized that changes may be necessary during final design and even after the start of construction. The revised wording, now in § 72.50 reads "...the Safety Analysis Report shall be updated by the licensee and submitted to the Commission at least once every six months after issuance of the license during final design and construction, until preoccupational testing is completed, ... Changes affecting safety margins will require Commission approval prior to the receipt of spent fuel.

The annual updating is for information purposes. Any substantitive changes in the ISFSI or its operation may have to be covered by an amendment to the license.

Changes requiring prior approval in the form of a license amendment would be any change in the physical facilities or method of operation which involved an unreviewed safety question.

Comment No. 171: Commonwealth Edison Company. (56)

"Commonwealth Edison believes that in most instances a license for an ISFSI will be requested prior to the commencement of construction. For such situations, clarification of proposed section 72.15(b) is necessary to assure that last minute requests for a second hearing do not delay the operation of the facility.

With respect to reactors, some changes in design first receive review in connection with the issuance of an operating license. While the more limited nature of an ISFSI suggests that few design changes which would require amendments will occur after the issuance of a license, the rules ought to provide for prompt consideration of such changes. As a result, we suggest that the following language be added at the end of section 72.15(b).

"If the Applicant's review pursuant to section 72.34 indicates that any portions of an updated SAR require amendment of its license, a request for such an amendment shall be submitted with the updated SAR. The Commission will review such requests as promptly as possible and any construction activities conducted in accordance with the proposed amendment pending approval shall be at the Applicant's risk."

Discussion: This comment was considered in the revision of Section 72.15(b). However, if changes in the SAR are such as to require an amendment to the license a second hearing may be held.

Section 72.15(c)

Comment No. 172: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Delete the last sentence because it is covered by paragraph 72.75. It does not add anything that has not been said."

Discussion: Section 72.15(c) (now (14)) pertains to the description of the Quality Assurance Program in the SAR required in Section 72.80.

Comment No. 173: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"It appears that the term 'safety-related' used here and elsewhere in Part 72 is the same as defined in 72.3(s) 'structures, system, and components important to safety.' If this is so, we suggest the equivalence should be stated, and, if this is so, the term should be defined."

Discussion: The term "safety-related" has been changed to "important to safety" throughout the rule.

Section 72.15(d)

Comment No. 174: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"This section seems to imply that one plan - the physical security plan - is all that is needed. To some extent this is correct as 72.81 is entitled Physical II-47 Security Plan. However, Table I and subsection (a) and (c) in 72.81 indicate that apparently two separate plans are needed - Physical Security and Safeguards Contingency."

Comment No. 175: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"These paragraphs require the development of detailed security measures for physical protection of the fuel storage facility, and invoke 'the applicable requirements of part 73 of this chapter' as the basis for the required physical protection program. It would appear that the physical security plan for a spent fuel storage facility need not go beyond providing protection against overt or covert acts of sabotage; on this basis, it would appear that the requirements for a physical protection system. Some clarification of the intended coverage of the physical security plan should be set forth clearly in the requirement."

Discussion: Table I now lists both plans. Details of physical security plans are covered in 10 CFR Part 73. Section 73.50 now applies specifically to an ISFSI.

Section 72.17, Contents of Applications: Technical Qualifications

Comment No. 176: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"72.17(a) - Does this section require that specific individuals of, for example, the operating staff be named (and their resumes included) at the time of the license application? This is not usually done that far in advance of start of operations (about 4 years).

Discussion: The requirement is that the applicant have a staff which is competent to carry out proposed operations. There is no requirement to name individuals of the operating staff at the time of submitting the license application. But a commitment must be made that the operating organization will be in place prior to the receipt of spent fuel. A description of the planned organizations, position descriptions and the authority and responsibility assigned to each position for the operation of the installation is adequate for submittal with the license application.

Comment No. 177: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.17(c) 'Certified' should be deleted. There are only certifications for reactor and reprocessing operations. Trained plant personnel should be adequate for this operation."

Discussion: Subpart I, Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel, states the certification of the training and proficiency of personnel must be carried out under an NRC approved program. ISFSI operating personnel will not require licensing by the NRC.

Section 72.18, Decommissioning Plan, Including its Financing

The following eight comments were identified as general comments on this section.

Comment No. 178: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"We believe that it is both undesirable and unnecessary to require in §72.18(a) the inclusion of a "decommissioning plan" in an application. With respect to the ISFSI itself the specific components of a 'decommissioning plan' would best be determined at the end of the useful life of the ISFSI, taking into account prospective future use of the ISFSI or the site, then-available decontamination and decommissioning technology, etc. In addition, although the regulation is unclear, if the term 'disposal of radioactive material' is intended to refer to the ultimate destination of spent fuel, requiring precise such information in an application for an ISFSI is unrealistic in light of unresolved Federal policy issues."

Comment No. 179: Louisiana Power and Light Company. (49)

"Section 72.18 - This section requires 'a decommissioning plan which shall contain information on proposed procedures' for the 'dismantling and disposal of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life.' The useful life of an ISFSI is likely to be at least equal to that of a nuclear power plant (40 years). Due to the potential for advances in the state of the art for decommissioning nuclear facilities, it is inefficient to require more than a very general document on decommissioning the ISFSI at this stage. The decommissioning requirements for an ISFSI should not be more restrictive than those presently required of reactor sites. The decommissioning, an estimate of the cost for this approach, and evaluation of the ISFSI design features which facilitate decontamination and decommissioning. The decommissioning document should not address the ultimate disposal of the spent fuel as this is the responsibility of the Federal Government."

Comment No. 180: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The requirements for a decommissioning plan seem to require an unnecessarily large amount of information at the pre-construction stage. Similar information is not required for reactor licensing and should not be required here. The provision, if retained, should also explicitly exclude the ultimate disposition of the spent fuel itself from the scope of the plan."

Comment No. 181: Yankee Atomic Electic Company. (55)

"The sections on decommissioning are unduly restrictive. In section 72.18 and 72.38 reference is made to dismantling as part of the decommissioning process. Since dismantling is not the only form of decommissioning, we do not believe it is appropriate in 10 CFR Part 72 to imply that dismantling must be done. While we agree that decommissioning should be considered in the licensing procedures, we do not believe that it is appropriate to demand detailed plans and financial arrangements for a procedure that will not take place for several decades."

Comment No. 182: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"Section 72.18 - We do not think that the nuclear industry's technological base, as well as federal regulatory guidance, is sufficient at this time to require

the submittal of decommissioning plans. Further, industry experience may undergo significant changes during the plant lifetime, thus rendering initial plans obsolete."

Comment No. 183: Duke Power Company. (60)

"It is Duke's position that decommissioning plans should be developed in a time frame current with the decommissioning in order to utilize the latest in decontamination techniques and to be assured of a much more realistic cost analysis of decommissioning alternatives. The sections referring to decommissioning should require a decommissioning plan only of a conceptual nature."

Comment No. 184: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"Information on the disposal of radioactive material as requested could be interpreted to include a plan for disposition of the spent fuel. Since the Federal Government has indefinitely deferred reprocessing and Federal policy is required to define the disposition of spent fuels, the decommissioning plan should specifically exclude the disposition of spent fuel. Decommissioning information should be be similar to that required under Part 50 and the proposed requirement for the disposal and decontamination procedures that will be employed many decades hence should be removed."

Comment No. 185: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"Sections 72.18, 72.38, and 72.71(20) in referring to a decommissioning plan for the ISFSI require decontamination of the site and dismantling and disposal of the facility. This rules out alternate methods of decommissioning such as mothballing. We suggest that the NRC reword these sections to clearly state that alternative decommissioning methods may be permissible."

Discussion: This section has been revised to allow the applicant to propose a general plan for decontamination and decommissioning, it does not impose a requirement for dismantling and disposal. The plan, however, must identify those design features that will facilitate the decontamination and decommissioning of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life. This is to ensure that decommissioning has been considered in connection with the design of the ISFSI. The plan must also be in sufficient detail to provide the basis for and include a cost estimate for decontamination and decommissioning. Further, the plan must include the financial arrangements which provide reasonable assurance that adequate resources will be available to carry out the decontamination and decommissioning of the ISFSI and the site at the end of its useful life to enable its release for unrestricted use.

Prior to decommissioning the spent fuel inventory will have to be transferred to either a Federal repository for permanent disposal, or to a reprocessing plant. The decontamination and decommissioning plan pertains to the ISFSI and the site, not to the stored fuel.

Section 72.18(a)

Comment No. 186: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We believe the requirement for proposed procedures for decommissioning is too definitive for this time. It would have a tendency to commit to a certain procedure and not take into account any future advancements in technology. We suggest instead use of the words 'proposed practices,' using 'preliminary alternative methods.' This would permit updating the decommissioning plan as the actual decommissioning time approaches taking into account the regulatory requirements in effect at time."

Discussion: Section 72.18 has been revised to better clarify the requirements of the decommissioning plan. The wording does not preclude taking advantage of future advancements in technology.

Five comments addressed the phrase "dismantling and disposal":

Comment No. 187: M. Young (Allied-General Nuclear Services). (10)

"This section addresses 'dismantling and disposal of an ISFSI'; it is our understanding that once the installation is decontaminated, the final disposition of the remaining structures are the purview of the owners and state and local zoning regulations. If this is the case, this info should be incorporated into this section."

Comment No. 188: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The decommissioning mode to be used should be the prerogative of the owner. The word 'decommissioning' should be substituted for the words 'dismantling and disposal' in the first sentence."

Comment No. 189: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section 72.18 provides a new regulatory requirement relative to decommissioning. The decommissioning plan is therein described as requiring inclusion of assurance related to 'the dismantling and disposal of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life.' This Section should be clarified to provide that, after an ISFSI has been decontaminated at the end of its useful life (if complete decontamination is the selected mode in the decommissioning program), any question as to dismantling and disposal of the 'cold' structures, systems and components would be a matter for determination by the owners within the scope of state and local regulations and should not be of regulatory concern to the Commission."

Comment No. 190: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"In decommissioning an ISFSI, the owner should not be required to 'dismantle and dispose' of the facility but should have the option of mothballing or entombing of the radioactive parts of the facility (see Regulatory Guide 1.86). It should be acceptable to remove the fuel and the radioactive material and to decontaminate the structure and site. The design of an ISFSI would favor this approach (e.g., stainless steel lined pool). To dismantle completely represents an unwarranted expense and also, perhaps, an unacceptable commitment of resources to that action. Thus, 'dismantle' and 'disposal' should be struck from 72.18(a) and 72.38(a)." Comment No. 191: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We also believe the definition of 'dismantling and disposal' should be more specific. Dismantling and disposal might not be the best method. It appears reasonable to allow the concrete structure of the pool and embedded piping to remain in place and be filled with earth or sand."

Discussion: Section 72.18 has been revised to read decontamination and decommissioning, rather than dismantling and disposal.

On the subject of minimizing the wastes generated during decommissioning:

Comment No. 192: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"'This plan shall include provisions for minimizing the amount of solid, airborne and liquid wastes generated during decommissioning.' We regard this amount of detail as (1) inappropriate in light of the lack of specific NRC guidance on what constitutes acceptable decommissioning, and (2) premature considering that such decommissioning might be done several decades from the date of licensing review under procedures approved just prior to decommissioning. We recommend the deletion of the last sentence of this paragraph."

Comment No. 193: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section partially defines the requirements for a Decommissioning Plan. The wording used differs sufficiently from the discussion in NUREG-0436, 'Plan for Reevaluation of NRC Policy on Decommissioning of Nuclear Facilities,' and the Commission's Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in the Federal Register (43 FRO 10370, March 13, 1978) to raise questions about the NRC's actual intent. Reference should be made to a source for the Decommissioning Plan requirements.

"The sentences that read:

"'This plan shall include an evaluation of the ISFSI design features which have been selected to facilitate the maximum degree reasonable its decontamination and decommissioning at the end of its useful life. This plan shall include provisions for minimizing the amounts of solid, airborne and liquid wastes generated during decommissioning.'

"should be modified by replacing 'maximum degree' and 'minimizing' with words or phrases that do not imply such unlimited conditions."

Comment No. 194: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"The last sentence should be deleted as the knowhow to accomplish this is not available at this time."

Discussion: Section 72.18(a) has been rewritten to stress "...those design features of the ISFSI that facilitate its decontamination and decommissioning...".

Section 72.18(b)

Comment No. 195: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"Financial arrangements for decommissioning of nuclear facilities is an open question before the Commission and should not be included in this document at this time."

Discussion: The methods of financing of decommissioning costs are now being investigated by the Commission; this is not a question of whether these will be covered, but how.

Comment No. 196: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Delete sentence. This is too restrictive. No one else in the nuclear field has had to comply with financial arrangements for decommissioning. You could make the ISFSI too costly to operate with the burden for decommissioning some 40 years down the road."

Discussion: In the future, it is anticipated that all nuclear facilities will have to make provisions for decommissioning. Because of its timing, Part 72 is the first regulation to reflect this requirement. It is expected that other regulations will be revised to incorporate similar requirements.

The decommissioning of an ISFSI is not expected to be a costly operation as it should involve only decontamination--there should be no induced activity in its components.

On the subject of financial arrangements for decommissioning:

Comment No. 197: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This sub-paragraph requires that the decommissioning plan 'include the financial arrangements for its execution'; it is not clear whether this provision is intended to mandate the establishment of a sinking fund or other specific financial arrangement to accumulate funds required for decommissioning during the lifetime of the facility or whether it is intended to require merely a description of how the licensee would propose to finance the decommissioning at the time the decommissioning is to be undertaken. Under either interpretation, NRC runs the risk of conflict with state regulatory agencies where utilities are the licensees. It would seem unreasonable to require such information for an ISFSI when it is not required for reactor licensing. Imposing preconstruction financial arrangements for future decommissioning on government agencies, utilities, and similar large and well-established entities is unreasonable."

Comment No. 198: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"Similarly, the costs associated with decommissioing are not well identified. It should be the responsibility of the applicant to recover these costs by appropriately adjusting storage charges. Thus, the financial qualifications of the applicant are not affected with relard to licensing for construction. Local regulatory bodies may require a provision for decommissioning financing on the part of utilities so that costs may be included in rate bases. The balance of ownership should be by private corporations."

Comment No. 199: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll (48)

"It is also unnecessary to require in §72.18(b) that a decommissioning plan include 'the financial arrangements for its execution.' It should be sufficient for the applicant to describe how he intends to provide funds for future decommissioning and to provide reasonable assurance that he will be able to provide such funds."

Comment No. 200: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"1. The Township does not believe that the provisions of paragraph 72.18(b) are sufficiently specific to guarantee that the owner of an ISFSI will indeed decommission the facility in a proper manner. To ensure proper decommissioning, it must be established on a continuing basis that the application has the financial capacity to decommission his facility throughout the life of the facility, not merely at the time of his application for a license.

"To this end, the applicant should also be required to establish a Decommissioning Capital Reserve Fund, segregated and subject to audit, which will accumulate by annual installments over the expected life of the facility to an amount sufficient to carry out the decommissioning based upon cost estimates made and revised at no more than five year intervals over the life of the facility."

Discussion: The requirement is for the establishment of some type of appropriate funding. The possibilities being considered are:

- Establishing funds to cover decommissioning at the time of construction,
- (2) Development of a sinking fund to cover decommissioning costs during the period of operations,
- (3) Establishment of a non-revokable surety bond, and
- (4) Some form of insu ance coverage.

Comment No. 201: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"One need only look at the West Valley fiasco to appreciate the importance of adequate financial arrangements with respect to storage of spent fuel. The proposed regulations address this issue far too casually. Specific criteria should be developed in advance for the financial arrangements for decommissioning which include a substantial bond or creation of an escrow fund and establish some basis for determining in advance what could be the maximum cost. Past cost estimates have been so ridiculously low (e.g., West Valley set up a \$4 million fund for a problem whose cost may run as high as \$500 million to \$1 billion⁴) that great care should be used in setting the cost."

Discussion: The work involved and the costs of decommissioning an ISFSI are not comparable to the removal of high-level wastes and decontaminating the Western New York Nuclear Service Center which was set aside for nuclear activities under a perpetual care concept by the State of New York. The proposed regulation specifically requires that financial provisions be made to cover the costs of decommissioning of an ISFSI. Because decontamination and decommissioning of an ISFSI should involve only the removal of surface contamination, it is believed possible to develop a reasonably accurate estimate of the costs involved, based on present technology. Future developments in decontamination techniques can be expected to reduce such costs. Therefore, a cost estimate based on current state-of-the-art methods should be a adequate.

Comment No. 202: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"We commend the Commission for its requirements concerning the decommissioning of the facility provided in section 72.18. We are concerned about the financial requirement, however, and note that the Commission is exploring the various options for financial assurance for decommissioning for a variety of facilities under its regulatory authority. We caution the Commission with regard to this type of facility over user-fees because of the uncertainty of demand and fuel discharge requirements. In addition, higher burn-up rates and waste disposal plans may also substantially affect the long-term economic viability of such a facility. Reliance upon user-fees to be assessed over the life of the facility is not a realistic financial assurance mechanism."

Discussion: Comment noted. The staff is aware of the factors that may affect the economic viability of an ISFSI.

Comment No. 203: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"We recommend that Paragraph 72.18(b) be revised to read: 'The decommissioning plan will include plans for periodic review of the cost for decommissioning and a discussion of how the licensee will assure the Commission of its ability to pay these costs when they occur."

Discussion: It is the current staff position that more than a periodic review and discussion is necessary. The financial arrangements involved must be firm and made in advance.

Comment No. 204: A. Abriss. (5)

"Proposed Section 72.18 of 10 CFR requests information to be included in the Decommissioning Plan for an ISFSI. However, there is no requirement for providing cost estimates for the various decommissioning operations. Estimated costs are necessary to properly select a funding mechanism to pay for decommissioning. I would therefore, suggest the following changes:

"(a) Insert the following statement after the first sentence, 'The plan shall include cost estimates for implementing the decommissioning procedures, for decontaminating the site and for disposing of radioactive materials, including transportation and burial changes."

"(b) Add after 'execution' based upon the cost estimates of part (a) above.

Discussion: The required financial arrangements will have to include projected costs to be meaningful.

Section 72.19, Emergency Plan

Comment No. 205: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"References to appendices of other Parts of Title 10 creates a risk that those references will be amended in the future in a manner inappropriate to an ISFSI. Therefore, it is recommended that such material be incorporated directly into Part 72 as appropriate."

<u>Discussion</u>: A licensee must comply with appropriate parts of referenced regulations. It is recognized that these regulations may be revised in the future and that this may require a conforming amendment of Part 72.

Comment No. 206: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"Because the regulations propose only one hearing, the emergency planning requirements must include approval of the final plan. This final approval should include a finding that there is reasonable assurance that the state and local government emergency plan, which must be submitted in detail, will be implemented and what steps will be taken by NRC to assure its implementation."

Discussion: Paragraph 72.31(a)(11) requires a finding that the applicants' emergency plan is acceptable. What may be entailed in making such a finding is considered to be design and site specific.

The emergency plan defines the elements of the plan sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that appropriate measures can and will be taken in the event of an emergency to protect public health and safety and prevent damage to property. Among other things, the emergency plan will include procedures for notifying, and agreements reached with local, State, and Federal officials and agencies, relevant to implementing the emergency plan.

Comment No. 207: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"Section 72.19 requires a final (FSAR stage) radiological emergency plan (REP) when the application is submitted. We suggest a preliminary version of the REP be acceptable for submittal with the initial application."

Discussion: Considering the nature of ISFSI operations, and the potentially low risks to public health and safety related to ISFSI operations, we believe that an applicant can develop an acceptable emergency plan for submittal with the initial application. It is expected, however, that the emergency plan will be updated prior to the initial receipt of spent fuel, and periodically thereafter if there are any significant changes.

Section 72.20, Environmental Report

Comment No. 208: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"NEPA Process

"Although the Supplementary Information acknowledges that the Commission has evaluated the environmental impacts of the accumulation of spent fuel in its draft GEIS (NUREG-0404), we do not detect in the proposed regulations any attempt to reach generic decisions based on the GEIS to avoid repetitive consideration of similar issues in individual licensing proceedings.

"As the Commission has recognized in its subsequent Interim Policy Statement on Generic Rulemaking to Improve Nuclear Power Plant Licensing (43 F.R., 58377. December 14, 1978) there are significant advantages to deciding a generic issue by rulemaking, including arriving 'at a dispositive finding regarding the generic issue so that the issue would not be addressed at all or in a simplified way in subsequent individual licensing cases . . . ' We believe that this principle can be and should be employed to good advantage in the current rulemaking on ISFSI's. For example, on the basis of its final GEIS the Commission should be able to determine that there are no significant differences in the environmental impacts of storage in ISFSI's, at reactor pools or any other available alternative. Thus, the Commission should be able to rule generically that alternatives need not be considered in the environmental analyses performed in the licensing of an ISFSI. Similarly the Commission should be able to determine generically that the incremental environmental impact of installing an ISFSI at the site of an existing licensed reactor or of substantial Federal nuclear activities is sufficently small that no other site would be 'obviously superior.' Thus a generic rule should provide that no analysis of alternative sites would be needed for an ISFSI located at such an existing site. Another example of potential generic rulemaking would be a determination that spent fuel storage capacity is needed and that the individual licensing proceeding should not consider 'need' for the ISFSI (at least within specified capacities in given regions).

"The proposed regulations also ignore that the DOE has published a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DOC/EIS-0015-e) and Supplement on Storage of U.S. Spent Power Reactor Fuel. If an ISFSI built by DOE is to be subject to licensing by the Commission, the proposed regulations should make clear that programmatic decisions reached by DOE on the basis of its generic impact statement will not be reevaluated by the Commission in the licensing of a specific ISFSI. United States Research and Development Administrativ 1 (Clinch River Breeder Reactor Plant), CLI-76-13, 4 NRC 67, 79-87 (1976). Moreover, the regulations should contain a generic determination that as to matters covered in DOE's programmatic EIS which may be subject to Commission regulatory review, such review should not be de novo but should consider only whether DOE's determinations are 'reasonable.' Id. at 91.

"We must emphasize that appropriate consideration of the foregoing principles would lead to a radically different approach to decision-making on environmental issues in individual ISFSI licensing proceedings than is currently reflected in §72.31(10) of the proposed regulations. That section presently contains a paraphrase of the type of overall cost-benefit analysis and de novo consideration of all potentially relevant environmental issues that the Commission would make under NEPA for any license application filed with it under a framework (e.g., Part 50) where (1) the Commission had issued no generic environmental impact statement and had correspondingly reached no generic decisions in policy statements or rulemaking, and (2) no other Federal agency had made programmatic decisions on the basis of its own generic statements which were entitled to dispositive weight in the Commission's proceedings. "Instead, for the reasons we describe above, Part 72 when adopted should reflect rulemaking in which the Commission generically determines and thus disposes of (i.e., eliminates as an issue in individual proceedings) basic issues pertaining to 'need' for (i.e., 'benefits' of) ISFSI's and to consideration of alternative methods and sites. In essence, under the NEPA process we suggest the Commission would not need to do a cost-benefit analysis in individual licensing proceedings de novo, since major elements of such analysis would have been disposed of generically in the rule itself. Rather, the specific EIS is an individual proceeding and the Commission's required environmental decision-making in that proceeding would be limited to any site-specific and project-specific effects that were not determined in the generic rule and to environmental effects, if any, arising from any deviation by the specific ISFSI from the envelope of characteristics assumed in the generic rule (e.g., conventional pool storage technology; use of an existing licensed site or the site of Federal nuclear activities).

"The NEPA process we suggest would take full advantage of the reasons why a generic (or programmatic) impact statement is undertaken in the first place. As recognized by the courts and cited for support by the Commission in Clinch River (4 NRC at 80):

"'The program statement has a number of advantages. It provides an occasion for a more exhaustive consideration of effects and alternatives than would be practicable in a statement of an individual action. It ensures consideration of cumulative impacts that might be slighted in a case by case analysis. And it avoids duplicative reconsideration of base policy questions.' (Emphasis added) Scientists' Institute for Public Information Inc. v. AEC, 481 F.2d 1079, 1087-88 (D.C. Cir. 1973).

"The principles of disposing of generic issues appropriately in the context of broad, programmatic decision-making and of focusing in subsequent actions only on any specific limited issues arising from such actions are also expressly encouraged by the CEQ in the 'tiering' process incorporated in §1502.20* and §1508.28 of the recently published regulations on NEPA implementation (43 F.R. 5597b-56006, November 29, 1978).

"We urge implementation of such principles by the Commission as the most effective and efficient manner of implementing its NEPA responsibilities in Part 72.

"*§1502.20 states:

IT &

"Agencies are encouraged to tier these environmental impact statements to eliminate repetitive discussions of the same issues and to forcus on the actual issues ripe for decision at each level of environmental review (§1508.28). Whenever

If our suggestions are not adopted and Part 72 neither determines environmental issues generically nor provides any guidance as to how basic environmental issues (e.g., 'need' for ISFSI; consideration of alternative methods and sites, are to be considered in specific proceedings, it can readily bc predicted that the Licensing Board in the first ISFSI licensing proceeding will be confronted with the same type of mixed questions of law and policy as arose in Clinch River. The Commission, rather than a Licensing Board, is best suited to decide such questions; and the rulemaking proceeding, rather than the licensing proceedings, is the best forum for such decision.

a broad environmental impact statement has been prepared (such as a program or policy statement) and a subsequent statement or environmental assessment is then prepared on an action included within the entire program or policy (such as a site specific action) the subsequent statement or environmental assessment need only summarize the issues discussed in the broader statement and incorporate discussions from the broader statement by reference and shall concentrate on the issues specific to the subsequent action. The subsequent document shall state where the earlier document is available. Tiering may also be appropriate for different stages of actions. (Sec. 1508.28)."

Comment No. 209: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The regulation should explicitly provide that environment reports and environmental impact statement for ISFSI's need not cover those requirements of Part 51 which will already have been considered by generic NEPA reviews (i.e., need for ISFSI's, non-site related alternatives) other plant specific NEPA studies (i.e., uranium fuel cycle impacts covered in each reactor FES), or NRC regulations (i.e., Tables S-3 and S-4 of Part 51."

Comment No. 210: Commonwealth Edison Company. (56)

"Edison is a member of the Utility Waste Management Group (UWMG) and has reviewed the comments which that group is submitting to the Commission with respect to 10 CFR Part 72. Edison concurs with the UWMG comments. We particularly urge the Commission and its staff to give careful and serious consideration to the UWMG comments concerning the importance of relying upon generic environmental impact statements in licensing particular ISFSIs."

Comment No. 211: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"A specific statement should be included that calls for the recognition by reference to all environmental issues of spent fuel storage that are previously resolved in programmatic and generic environmental reviews and other site specific environmental reviews. Such a position will minimize the redundant and duplicate review of previously settled issues."

"Generic environmental impact statements have been drafted and are being reviewed on spent fuel storage including NUREG 0404, Handling and Storage of Light Water Reactor Fuel, DOC/EIS-0041-D, Charge For Spent Fuel Storage, and DOE/EIS-0015-D, Storage of US Spent Power Reactor Fuel. Many environmental elements of spent fuel storage will be resolved with these reviews. Environmental elements that are resolved during generic evaluations of programmatic spent fuel storage activities should be accepted by reference for any sitespecific license and not subject to redundant and duplicate environmental evaluation. Also, the environmental evaluations for activities on the same site that have preceded the ISFSI applications should be accepted by reference and not duplicated. Any additional environmental evaluations to satisfy NEPA requirements should be specifically limited to the incremental impact of the ISFSI during the site-specific licensing consideration. "

Comment No. 212: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"The applicant for a license under Part 72 may be a Federal agency. In that case, a lead agency agreement in accordance with the Council on Environmental

Quality regulations should obviate the need for an environmental report. Part 72 should allow for this possible exception in Section 72.20.

"The Council of Environment Quality regulations clearly favor lead agency arrangements when more than one Federal agency is involved in a project (40 CFR 1501.5 as noticed in 43 FR 55992-55993). By referencing 10 CFR Part 51, Part 72 implicitly incorporates footnote 1 of 10 CFR 51.20, permitting lead agency agreements the Federal agencies involved in the implementation of the provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) in lieu of an environmental report. Such lead agency agreements minimize the duplication of efforts by the Federal agencies involved in the preparation of environmental impact statements (EiS), while still ensuring that the EIS for each project will satisfy the NEPA requirements of each agency involved. Because Part 72 does not explicitly discuss lead agency agreement, a specific provision should clarify the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC) intent.

"We recommend that Part 72 be revised to permit explicitly the development of lead agency agreements by adding the following footnote to Sections 72.20 and 72.31(10):

"'where the 'applicant,' as used in this part, is a Federal agency, different arrangements for implementing NEPA may be made, pursuant to the Guidelines established by the Council on Environmental Quality.'"

Discussion: The Commission's views respecting the lead agency concept are set out in the statement of considerations accompanying the proposed revision of 10 CFR Part 51. (See 45 FR 13740, March 3, 1980.) (See also the discussion of comments 208-218.)

Comment No. 213: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"It is assumed that the reference should be Subpart C to Part 51 (Materials Licensing and Other Action)."

Comment No. 214: Northeast Utilities. (45)

"Part 72.20, 'Environmental Report,' requires that an Environment Report meeting the requirements of 10 CFR 51 accompany the ISFSI application. As 10 CFR 51 requires both a construction permit and operating license stage environmental report, there appears to be some conflict between the single license requirements of the proposed 10 CFR 72, and the existing 10 CFR 51. Clarification of the requirements for environmental report preparation is believed to be needed."

Comment No. 215: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"This requirement will probably be the critical path item for the licensing of an ISFSI. We believe that revisions to 10 CFR 51 are required to delineate the specific requirements for contents of an Environmental Rep. rt for an ISFSI and to identify the extent to which the GEIS can serve as a basis for findings required by NEPA."

Comment No. 216: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"There should be a clear statement that the proposal to issue approval for any AFR is a major federal action significantly affecting the environment for which

an impact statement is required. The incorporation by reference of the filing requirements of Part 51 contained in proposed §72.20 is not sufficient, nor is the provision specifying findings under Part 51 contained in proposed §72.31(10)."

Comment No. 217: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"Section 72.20 requires an environmental report which meets the requirements of 10 CFR Part 51. Part 51 requires two environmental reports, one at the construction permit stage and one at the operating license stage. Since Part 72 requires only a single license, only one environmental report should be required. This could be implied, it would eliminate the possibility of future dispute if Section 72.20 were to specify the requirements."

Comment No. 218: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"A reference should be included for the recognition of previously resolved environmental elements to preclude redundant and duplicate reviews. Environmental reviews should be limited to site specific and project-specific effects related to the facility being considered."

Discussion: Comments Nos. 208-218 address various environmental matters in the context of the Commission's present NEPA regulations which are set out in 10 CFR Part 51. On March 3, 1980, the Commission initiated a rulemaking proceeding to revise Part 51 to implement section 102(2) of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, in a manuer which is consistent with the NRC's domestic licensing and related regulatory authority and reflects the Commission's policy to take account voluntarily, subject to certain conditions, of the regulations of the Council on Environmental Quality implementing the procedural provisions of NEPA. (The text of the proposed revision of Part 51 appears at 45 FR 13739-13766, March 3, 1980.) To the extent that Comments Nos. 208-218 address substantive matters such as the content of generic environmental findings, they are beyond the scope of Part 72. To the extent that they address procedural matters, including the appropriate relationship between Parts 72 and 51, they will be considered more fully in connection with the Commission's pending rule-making proceeding to revise 10 CFR Part 51.

Subpart C--Issuance and Conditions of Licenses

Section 72.31, Issuance of Licenses

Comment No. 219: Office of the Governor, Michigan. (14)

"It is also the view of the State of Michigan that no Independent Spent Fuel Storage Site should be licensed without early consultation with and concurrence of the State in which the repository is proposed. Michigan recommends that proposed 10 CFR 72 be revised to incorporate this requirement."

Comment No. 220: Public Utility Commission of Texas. (18)

"From the State's standpoint, the only comment we have on the proposed regulations is that sufficient provision for notice to affected parties be included. Specifically, it should be a requirement that when an application for an independent spent fuel storage facility is filed with the NRC, a copy should also be sent to the appropriate State agencies such as the State Health Department and/or Public Utility Commission. Notice should also be required to be printed in newspapers with general circulation in the area of the proposed site."

Comment No. 221: Oklahoma State Department of Health. (19)

"Following review, my only comment is that I see nothing in the proposed regulations which would require the notification of the affected state(s) at an early date of the proposed construction of an ISESI. It may be that such notification would be handled through internal NRC policies and procedures or by a requirement in some other Part of the CFR. However, if not, I would suggest the inclusion of a requirement of notification of the Gor mor and the radiation control office of the affected state(s) of the potential licensee's intentions to construct and operate an ISESI at a time coincidental with the filing of the license application."

Comment No. 222: D. Wilt. (24)

"I believe this subpart (referring to Subpart E) of the oroposed rule is deficient. Provision is made for examination of the proposed site for a large number of variables but no provision is made for a review of the sociological implications of such a facility. It is an elementary proposition that the citizens of this country have free choice. Free choice implies the right to say no. There is nothing in this regulation which permits the public to be involved in the application process. There is no requirement that a representative of the public review each and every part of the application to determine for the benefit of the public that all of the requirements are met. A provision for public hearing after the application has been filed is not sufficient. An ombudsman ought to be appointed to participate in the initial stages of the application process.

"Furthermore, there ought to be a requirement that a proposed applicant obtain the approval of the population who live around the facility. The sociological and emotional health of the population is every bit as important as acceptable seism : characteristics. Since the facility is going to be in the area for an incredible period of time, the consent of those who will be its neighbors must be solicited. Since the proposed rule is completely deficient in this respect, it should not be adopted." Comment No. 223: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"Under Section 72.31, a license should not be issued if a properly conducted voter's referendum in the locality of the 'site' where the ISFSI is located rejects location of the facility at the site. Regulations for establishing the question on the ballot should be prepared by the NRC. This would enhance the nature and extent of public participation in the entire process."

Discussion: 10 CFR Part 2 requires notification of local and State officials, for:

- (1) receipt of waste radioactive materials,
- (2) a production or utilization facility,
- (3) any activity requiring an environmental report pursuant to 10 CFR Part 51.

The NRC now has a state liaison officer with each State government. Through these agents, procedures are being developed to involve the States in NRC licensing activities in addition to the provisions in NRC regulations for public hearings.

Comment No. 224: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"There appears to be no mention in the regulations that a license granted in accordance with this part would permit shipment of spent fuel assemblies."

Discussion: Regulations governing the shipment of spent fuel assemblies are in 10 CFR Part 71 and (DOT) 40 CFR 171-177. Part 72 covers only the possession of spent fuel for storage in an ISFSI.

On the subject of the need for ISFSIs:

Comment No. 225: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"Spent fuel storage capacity at reactor and at existing used or unused reprocessing plants should be increased as much as possible by modification of racks with closer spacing of fuel assemblies and utilizing previously unused floor area but keeping a full core reserve capacity in spent fuel pool for a reactor core unloading.

"A consideration to above, should be given during licensing of an ISFSI so that unnecessary ISFSI need not be licensed as acknowledged purpose of ISFSI is temporary storage of spent fuel for a period during which, a decision to reprocess or permanently dispose the spent fuel is made, such facilities are constructed and put in operation."

Comment No. 226: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"The use of an AFR has been discussed exclusively as a stop-gap measure to assist utilities which do not have adequate storage space for spent fuel. Use of AFRs is not independently desirable, if desirable at all, and its use ought to be severely restricted to instances in which a clear need exists. These concepts should be embodied as preconditions to processing an application for construction of an AFR. "As the Commission is aware, the major (not the only) controversy about AFRs is whether to use them and not only whether in fact they are safe. It would be beneficial to resolve the issue of need before commencing the formal licensing process. By establishing an adjudicatory mechanism for resolution of that issue in advance of formal hearings on the specific project, the Commission could save time and make for a more orderly process. This determination of need could be in the nature of a generic proceeding without the necessity for site identification or detailed design information. Inasmuch as the hearing will be adjudicatory the findings on need would be binding in subsequent sitespecific proceedings absent a prima facie showing of the necessity to reopen the record.

"The findings required to conclude that the need for an AFR exists should include the following:

- "1. Further compaction of nuclear fuel at the reactor site is technologically impossible or involves unacceptable risks to the public and/or worker health and safety during the period of planned reactor operation, and
- "2. Construction of an additional at-reactor storage facility is technologically impossible or involves unacceptable risks to the public and/or worker health and safety during the period of planned reactor operation.

"In addition, to deal with the possible problem created by the failure of utilities to anticipate spent fuel storage problems, the following principles should be applied:

- "1. No spent fuel could be considered as a candidate for storage at an AFR unless the utility had implemented a concerted effort to resolve conditions 1 and 2 above.
- "2. No spent fuel could be shipped to an AFR except during the period required to determine the answer to conditions 1 and 2 above and, if both conditions are not met, for the further period required to obtain a final answer from all cognizant agencies to a proposal to expand at-reactor storage.
- "3. No spent fuel could be shipped to an AFR from any reactor which received its operating license on or after December 31, 1979.
- "4. No spent fuel could be shipped to an AFR from any reactor which has been denied permission to expand spent fuel storage capacity unless the basis for denial was explicitly stated to be one of the two conditions listed previously.

"These standards for determining need assure that a genuine need for spent fuel storage exists and prevents utilities from using AFRs to bail out of the waste problem. It also assures that local and state governmental entities with the authority to approve or disapprove spent fuel storage expansion do so with the knowledge that their denial, except on certain very explicit bases, will force shutdown of the reactor and with the assurance that if they make that decision the AFR will not be used as a device to evade the consequences of that decision. In this way the AFR concept remains neutral to the question of the desirability of continued use of nuclear power.³ The economic and technical uncertainties which now surround nuclear waste management are legitimate uncertainties which flow directly from the anomaly created by beginning a nuclear power program without having any reasonably notion of how to solve the most serious and irreversible problem created by nuclear reactors-nuclear waste.

It is fair and essential that decisions on whether to build more nuclear plants and whether to continue to build and operate those to which commitments have already been made should be influenced by the real uncertainties created by this anomalous situation. For the government to step forward and to offer to take title to and store spent fuel in government-owned interim storage facilities in order to artificially establish for a utility a solution to the mounting volume of nuclear wastes for which in fact no disposal solution exists, is the worst kind of government subsidy. Nuclear power is rightly burdened by the waste problem and the absence of any solution to it. If its benefits are not sufficient to offset that burden, then it deserves to be halted."

Discussion: Spent fuel storage capacity within existing reactor pools, licensed under Part 50, is being increased at individual facilities to meet their individual needs. A full core reserve capacity at a nuclear power plant is not a safety requirement, however, a full core reserve capacity may be desirable from an operating standpoint.

The need for additional temporary spent fuel storage capacity, pending a decision on the ultimate disposition of spent fuel, is a generic issue which is addressed in both NRC and DOE generic environmental impact statements. This regulation establishes the licensing requirements in the event additional capacity for the storage of aged spent fuel is needed.

Part 72 provides for the siting of an ISFSI at a nuclear power plant site or elsewhere, based on a finding that the proposed site is acceptable and the best for this purpose among alternative sites available to an applicant. The staff is not aware of any compelling safety consideration which should be used to prejudge selection of an at-reactor site over an away-from-reactor site for an ISFSI. We believe that each application should be evaluated on its individual merits.

The following comments addressed the single license provisions of Part 72.

Comment No. 227: Washington State Energy Office (15)

"The plans for issuing a single license rather than the two which are customary for power plants is a good one. It will enable construction to start sooner but still provides for an adequate review process. Other features, as outlined in the supplementary information, are concurred in."

Comment No. 228: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The provision for issuance of a single license as early as possible in the licensing process is a practical forward step which should materially assist in solving the imminent spent fuel storage problem without sacrificing consideration of public health and safety or environmental protection."

³The Draft IRG Report Supports this neutrality.

Comment No. 229: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"Stating it realistically, the desire to expedite the licensing procedure often conflicts with the demands of selected parties looking for the absolute assurance that the facility/system presents no level of risk. A second interpretation is that the technical considerations must prevail; however, they must be responsive and fit into our political society."

Comment No. 230: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"Accordingly, MP&L supports the NRC in its recognition of the need for a single license and a single safety analysis report as early as practical in the licensing process of an AFR storage installation."

Comment No. 231: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The proposed regulations recognize that the storage of spent fuel at an ISFSI is licenseable under the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, as the ownership, receipt, possession, etc., of special nuclear, source and byproduct material, and not as the construction and operation of a utilization facility (such as a nuclear power plant). Thus the regulations do not explicitly require the two-step process associated with the licensing of a reactor i.e., the issuance of a construction permit followed by the issurance of an operating license. Instead the proposed regulations (§72.31) presumably call for the issuance of a 'single license,' as explained at 43 F.R. 46309.

"We fully agree that a 'single license' should be issued but we have several basic disagreements with the specifics of the proposed timing of license issuance and other important details.

"First, we believe it is inappropriate to require that the license be issued before the start of construction of any physical facilities, particularly if the ISFSI is to be located at a site where there are existing licensed nuclear facilities or governmental nuclear activities. An ISFSI will not be a massive construction project (such as a reactor) and will not entail potential significant environmental impacts during construction. Moreover, since, as described in the Commission's Draft GEIS on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Reactor Fuel (NUREG-0404), there has been extensive favorable operating, safety and technical experience in the pool storage of spent fuels, there is no need for a formal review prior to construction. We would urge instead that the license not be required until spent fuel is to be received at the ISFSI and that the regulations be redrafted to provide that:

"(1) An applicant be required to file preliminary information prior to construction, but only so that the NRC Staff can informally review the project and provide its informal views to the applicant during construction; and

"(2) An applicant have the option to seek formal Commission approval at any time he chooses (including prior to construction) as to either the entire ISFSI or any aspect thereof (such as a site approval; approval of a particular method of spent fuel handling or storage, etc.)." Comment No. 232: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"We concur with the concept of having a single license cover both construction and operation of the ISFSI. However the rules regarding conditions of issuance should further clarified, especially with regard to license re-evaluations."

<u>Discussion</u>: The wording in Section 72.31 has been revised to clarify the requirements and timing of the issuance of a license under Part 72. It is the staff's judgment that the license application can contain a definitive description of the proposed ISFSI and its operation adequate to support the necessary findings for the issuance of such a license prior to commencement of construction.

The following comments addressed the subject of public hearings:

Comment No. 233: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The regulations should make clear that interested parties are permitted to intervene and that hearings should be held on the licensing procedure."

Comment No. 234: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"Third, it is difficult to evaluation the proposed licensing approach since important provisions pertaining to public hearings are not included but will be issued for public review and comment later. Regardless of the approach selected, it will be essential that no more than one hearing be held. Thus any up-dating of license conditions or subsequent amendment of the license should not provide an additional opportunity for public hearings."

Comment No. 235: New York Energy Office. (70)

"We urge that the license procedure as stated in 10 CFR 72 (proposed) relating to public hearings and intervention by interested parties be defined with more specificity. The proposal is vague in presenting the procedural steps available to carry out this important part of the licensing procedure. We believe the licensing section of 10 CFR 72 (proposed) Subpart B, should parallel the requirements for production and utilization facilities as stated in 10 CFR 50, Class 103 licenses, thus allowing the opportunity for citizen and State input prior to issuance of an ISFSI license.

"The supplementary information section of 10 CFR 72 (proposed) mentions amendments to regulations establishing public hearing procedures. These amendments should be made available as expeditiously as possible to allow a complete review and comment by the public."

Comment No. 236: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"In several proposed sections (§§72.8, 72.32, 72.34, 72.36, 72.38, 72.81(d)), major actions of relevance to the public are authorized without an opportunity for a public hearing. Pursuant to Section 189 of the Atomic Energy Act and relevant court decisions (Brooks v. AEC, 476 F.2d 924 (D.C. Cir. 1974)), any action which alters the terms of a previously issued license must be noticed prior to t⁺ action being taken and the public must be provided with an opportunity to argue that a hearing would be appropriate. For instance, a decision to exempt a party from the licensing requirements (§72.8), to extent the period during which spent fuel can be stored at the AFR ($\S72.32$), to change the owner and thus the person financially responsible for the spent fuel ($\S72.36(c)$) and to allow a license to be terminated and the responsible person to be adjudged to have completed all requirements for disposal of the spent fuel and of the facility (\$72.38) are matters in which the public would be expected to have a substantial interest. At a minimum, there should be an opportunity for a public hearing and a notice of such opportunity at the earliest date on which the Commission has reason to believe a properties of take such action will be submitted.

"The proposed regulations are based upon the premise that the applicant and/or the Staff can be relied upon to draw the line between matters which do not require public involvement and those which do. Given the general attitude cf the applicant and the Staff to the public and its value in the process, such reliance is unwarranted. Only the public can adequately protect its own interests."

Discussion: It is an NRC established practice to publicize major proposed licensing actions involving spent fuel storage under 10 CFR Part 72. It is also an established NRC practice to hold a public hearing on such proposed licensing actions in response to a petition by any interested party which sets forth a legitimate reason for holding such a hearing. A new Section 72.34, which references 10 CFR §§2.104 and 2.105, has been added to specifically cover the subject of public hearings.

Comment No. 237: Nebraska Department of Environmental Control. (3)

"The proposal to issue the license at a very early stage and then re-examine it and add conditions before the facility can receive waste could result in the construction of an ISFSI which would not be allowed to receive spent fuel. This could result in wasting millions of dollars either by reason of the facility standing as a white elephant or in spending large sums to rebuild selected parts. One license should be issued after receipt of sufficient data to indicate the facility will be able to receive spent fuel. In an effort to save time by the method proposed, delays could result which would defeat the purpose of the regulation."

Comment No. 238: C. Hickerson. (32)

"The statement is made that the license will be 'reevaluated' by NRC prior to receipt of spent fuel at an ISFSI. We assume that the reevaluation process will be limited to a 'review' of those licensing conditions directly related to the physical facility as constructed and will not require a complete 'reevaluation' of the license application. If this is the intent, we suggest that this point be clarified.

Comment No. 239: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"With regard to the Commission updating a license prior to receipt of spent fuel at an installation, the regulation should provide that the NRC review will be limited to license conditions directly related to the installation 'as constructed' and will not be a complete reevaluation of the entire license application and that material changes will be made to a license only in the event significant factors have come to light since a license was issued which could endanger the health and safety of the public. Before financial institutions will finance the construction of an AFB storage installation and before utilities will undertake such a construction program, they must have assurance that barring significant changed conditions at a facility since the time a license was granted, a facility will not have to be significantly modified or reconstructed after its completion and that operations will not be unduly delayed."

Comment No. 240: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The reference to updating of a license prior to receipt of spent fuel is unclear. No new licensing action should be involved, and in particular, no new opportunity for hearings should be provided."

Discussion: Prior to the receipt of spent fuel, the Safety Analysis Report must be updated to reflect the ISFSI as built. It is anticipated that at this time there may be a need to review the technical specifications applicable to the operation of the "as constructed" facility. We do not foresee a need to reevaluate the complete licence application as any changes which have a safety significance must be covered by a license amendment.

Comment No. 241: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"The phrase 'appropriate or necessary' as used to describe NRC license conditions should be changed to 'appropriate and necessary,' consistent with the equivalent Part 50 provision (§50.50)."

Discussion: Section 72.31(a) has been revised to state the findings required as the basis for issuance of a license. The reference phrase was eliminated.

Comment No. 242: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section defines the first issuance of a license but does not recognize that authorization to begin construction is required by the licensee. The first sentence should be changed to read:

"'(a) The Commission will issue a license under this part prior to start of construction. Such license will be updated prior to the receipt . . .'

"The terms 'qualified' and 'adequate,' used in (a)(2), (4) and (5) require additional definition or a corresponding reference to limit their meaning."

Discussion: Section 72.31(a) has been expanded to cover the required findings and has been reworded for improved clarity. The revised wording is believed to be responsive to this comment.

Section 72.31(a)(1)

Comment No. 243: H. Ashar. (16)

"The site suitability criteria from Seismic Design point of view are described in 72.66. It appears that a reference to 72.66 (Subpart E) will preclude any confusion, and will be consistent with the subsequent (72.31(a)(2), (3), (4) etc.) conditions of license."

Discussion: This section, now 72.31(a)(2), has been revised to require a finding that the proposed site complies with the criteria in Subpart E of this Part.

Section 72.31(a)(4)

Comment No. 244: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"How will the NRC determine that the 'operating procedures' are adequate? The SAR usually contains only the operating plan. The detailed operating procedures would not be developed until much later."

Discussion: The SAR must provide sufficient information about the operations to be performed and, where appropriate, to establish proposed technical specifications to support this required finding. In general, operating procedures must meet the requirements of NRC regulations, particularly those applicable to health and safety.

Section 72.31(a)(9)

Comment No. 245: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"The criteria which would be used in determining the adequacy of the applicant's decommissioning plan and its financing should be identified."

Discussion: The requirement is that the decommissioning plan and the financial arrangements for carrying it out must provide reasonable assurance that decontamination and decommissioning at the end of the useful life of the ISFSI, will provide adequate protection for the health and safety of the public.

Section 72.31(a)(10)

Comment No. 246: Gilbert/Commonwealth. (44)

"Part 72.31(a)(10) is unclear as to who is responsible for making a finding that the issuance of a proposed license is called for based on the evidence submitted. The circumstances under which the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards may make such a finding, or when a public hearing followed by an Atomic Safety and Licensing Board determination is required to make such a finding should be clarified."

Discussion: If there is no public hearing in a specific licensing action under Part 72, the Director of the Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards (NMSS), or his designated representative, may make the required finding and issue the license after approval by the Commission. If there is a public hearing, the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board may make such findings, and order the issuance of the license. Comment No. 247. Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"Nuclear reactor licensing has been marked by the inability of applicants to provide a final design for licensing approval at the construction permit stage. This has necessitated the two-hearing process (Power Reactor Co. v. Electrical Union, 367 U.S. 396 (196⁻¹)) and much ratcheting. However, we are repeatedly assured by the industry and the Staff that spent fuel storage pools involve no similarly complex technological problems. This is apparently reflected in the proposed Part 72 which contemplates only one hearing, at construction, for the AFR. Such an approach is certainly desirable provided the construction permit proceeding resolves all possible issues related to the facility design.

"As drafted, Part 72 does not require that the construction permit approval be preceded by a final design approval. Such a requirement must be included or Part 72 makes a mockery of meaningful public or board participation. As the regulation is now written, the Staff will decide on its own, after construction is approved, what the AFR design should be. With all due deference to the Staff, past history exemplified that they are not capable of adequately handling that job without the timely intervention of hearing boards and the public.

"A requirement or final design approval prior to construction would avoid ratcheting, eliminate the need for hearing: on proposed amendments to the preliminary design and avoid the illegality of an effort to turn a two-hearing process into a one-hearing process without eliminating the need for two hearings."

Discussion: The ISFSI is not a complex structure, nor does it have complex systems, nor complex operations. Accordingly, prior to the start of construction, the applicant should be able to develop a definitive design and description of the ISFSI and propose appropriate technical specifications governing its operation, in sufficient detail to enable the staff, based on an independent review of the application, to make the findings of Section 72.31.

Comment No. 248: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The reference to NEPA determinations made by a licensing board at a public hearing is corfusing in that it implies that a public hearing would only deal with NEPA issues."

Discussion: Section 72.31 gives the findings, including NEPA determinations, upon which the issuance of a license under Part 72 will be based. Any, or all, of these findings might be matters for consideration at a public hearing.

The following comments addressed the subject of issuance of a license prior to commencement of construction.

Comment No. 249: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The language dealing with environmental findings is common to that in Part 70, and we have found it acceptable in the past. However, it is clear that the scheduled need for an ISFSI in the United States is approaching a point where the regulatory process could interfere with timely completion of construction. To minimize this probability it is recommended that the following be inserted before the last sentence of this paragraph: "The Director may, based on an initial review of information filed, issue a letter authorizing initiation of construction activities, provided that he explicitly finds that any potential adverse environmental impacts resulting from operations of the facility can be adequately abated by adjustments in the final design of the facility, and that the applicant agrees to conduct the construction activities so that such adjustments are not precluded."

Comments No. 250 and 251: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27) and M. Young (10)

"Section 72.30(a)(10) introduces a proposed licensing concept which differs substantially from that of 10 CFR 70. Section 70.21(f) of 10 CFR 70 requires that an application must be filed 'at least 9 months prior to commencement of construction.' In view of the general uncertainties surrounding national nuclear policy, it is unlikely that any private investor would want to initiate construction on any basis substantially different from that proposed by Section 72.31(a)(1). However, the urgency of establishing an ISFSI, as expressed by the Interagency Review Group, suggests that the Commission might wish to consider the inclusion of an option in Section 72.31(a)(10) under which, in the absence of favorable licensing action by 9 months after date of application, the applicant, at its own risk, might be permitted to initiate construction without jeopardizing a favorable ruling on the application."

Comment No. 252: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"There is an apparent contradiction between the SUMMARY statement: 'The proposed new regulation specifies procedures and requirements for issuance of licenses to store spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation' and the requirement that the license be issued prior to construction start. Since the SUMMARY in plies that the license is for fue' storage, it appears that applicants (particularly DOE) should be ab': to construct a facility at their own risk if the NEPA process has been complied with, and obtain the license for fuel possession prior to receipt of spent fuel."

Comment No. 253: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Neither the proposed Part 72 nor its accompanying Supplementary Information sets forth a clear explanation of the intended step by step licensing procedures which will be utilized for licensing of ISFSI. The relationship to 10 CFR Part 2 procedures is not addressed, nor is the timing of the issuance of the license within the licensing framework. Applicants will require more certainty in these procedures so as to be able to plan licensing schedules. Specifically, Section 72.31(a)(10) requires that the specific license must be issued prior to commencing of construction; however, there appears to be a possibility of another licensing action after construction and prior to operation of the facility as a result of Sections 72.15(b)(1) and 72.31(a), requiring the submittal of an 'updated' SAR for 'approval.' It appears that Part 72 combines certain licensing concepts of a materials license (pursuant to Part 70) with other features of production and utilization facilities license (pursuant to Part 50). Thus, the one-stage licensing procedure of Part 72 may, in reality, constitute a two-stage procedure (construction approval and then an operating approval). When Part 72 is promulgated as an effective regulation, either the regulation or its Statement of Considerations must clarify procedural matters."

Comment No. 254: Duke Power Company. (60)

"Section 72.31 does not include a time table for filing of an application, processing by the NRC Staff, and issuance of the license. It is suggested that an application be submitted by the licensee at least twelve months prior to the proposed commencement of construction so the NRC could have twelve months to rule on the application. However, the applicant should be allowed to begin construction at his own risk prior to issuance of a Construction Permit by the NRC."

Comment No. 255: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"Maximum use should be made of existing LWR rules and regulations, including terminology. For example, it would seem appropriate to make provision for some form of limited work authorization as is the case for LWRs."

Comment No. 256: Stone and Webster Engineering Corporation. (69)

"Part 72 precludes the issuance of an LWA-type permit. However, paragraph 72.31(a)(10) appears to allow a license to be issued upon a conclusion by the Director of the Office of Nuclear Material Safety & Safeguards or after public hearings and an ASLB finding with respect to environmental issues. Part 72 should contain specific provisions to allow certain construction activities to proceed prior to hearings and ASLB findings if hearings are to be held."

Discussion: The ISFSI is not complex, neither are its operations complex. Moreover, if properly designed and operated, its environmental affects, if any, are not expected to be significant. Thus, the NEPA determination would not necessarily be the cause of delays with respect to licensing the proposed ISFSI. The timely review and hearing proceedings, if any, will depend largely upon the completeness and quality of the application submitted.

Comment No. 257: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"In proposed §72.31(a)(11) a new concept of public health and safety is added which substantially dilutes existing requirements. There is nothing to authorize the reduction of the protection to the public to the level of only preventing all 'unreasonable risks.' The proper standard is reasonable assurance of adequate protection for the public health and safety. That standard must be maintained for AFRs."

Discussion: Comment noted. Section 72.31(a)(11) in the proposed rule is now Section 72.31(a)(13) and (14) in the revised rule, which states, pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act, Section 69, "The issuance of the license will not be inimical to the common defense and security or to the health and safety of the public."

Comment No. 258: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The proposed regulations do not address the question of residual risks. There is a failure to comply with the safety standards in the Atomic Energy Act."

Discussion: The subject of residual risks is not addressed in NRC regulations. Absent some special showing, compliance with the safety standards in the Atomic Energy Act follows necessarily from compliance with the Commission's safety regulations. In other words, the Commission's safety regulations leave no "gaps" that must be filled by some safety evaluation against the bare standards of the Act, and there is no room for parties to insist that additional safety requirements be imposed on facility construction or operation once the safety regulations are complied with. This approach has been followed in the drafting of the proposed 10 CFR Part 72 on the licensing requirements for the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI.

Section 72.32, Duration of License, Renewal

Comment No. 259: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The provision for a 20 year license which may be renewed creates a de facto permanent spent fuel and disposal facility. A 20 year license renewable for an indefinite term is in every sense of the term a permanent spent fuel storage and disposal facility. The term of 20 years and indefinite renewal is repugnant to the purpose in Section 72.1.

"The NRC has no jurisdiction to license the storage of hazardous radioactive waste for an indefinite period of time. Section 72.32 would permit the NRC to assume this jurisdiction."

Discussion: Part 72 defines the licensing requirements for the temporary storage of aged sport fuel pending a decision as to its ultimate disposal. It is not related to the storage of hazardous radioactive waste for an indefinite period of time, nor does it apply to permanent spent fuel disposal facilities. The NRC does have jurisdiction over the licensing of spent fuel storage, including renewals of licenses, until a method of disposal is available.

A number of commenters confused a "material" license under Part 72, to store spent fuel in an approved ISFSI, with a "facility" license covering a nuclear power plant under Part 50. This misconception is shown in the following comments.

Comment No. 260: C. F. Braun and Company. (9)

"The license duration is 20 years in 72.32, however Nuclear Power Plants are 40 years. Is there a specific reason for limiting spent fuel storage to 20 years?"

Comment No. 261: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"The maximum duration of license permitted by the regulation should be 40 years. The equipment in such facilities will be designed to have a lifetime well in excess of the proposed 20 year limit. This relatively short license period may result in more frequent, and needless, licensing and legal delays."

Comment No. 262: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Since the facility is designed for a 40-year life, it seems that the license should be issued for 40 years rather than 20 unless there is some overrriding reason for the 20. Another burden placed on the licensee is that upon renewal, he has to comply with the current regulations in force at that time. A license should be issued for the duration of the facility unless a significant design change has been made to the plic. Same comment for paragraph 72.2."

Comment No. 263: Middle South Services. Inc. (37)

"There is no basis for a 20 year limit. If a reactor pool is licensed for 40 years, an ISFSI should also be licensable for 40 years."

Comment No. 264: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"The maximum period of time for which a license may be issued should be 40 years instead of 20 years. A 40 year time period would more nearly reflect the estimated life of a AFR storage installation and would minimize unnecessary license renewals."

Comment No. 265: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (43)

"We see no reason why §72.32 should limit a license to a period not in excess of 20 years. Such a period may have significance in determining Congressional intent as to whether a DOE facility is subject to Commission licensing because it is intended for 'long-term storage of high-level waste generated by (DOE)' under Section 202(4) of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974. It should not, however, be indiscriminately carried over into the licensing of facilities used for the storage of spent fuel. Instead, licenses for ISFSI's should be issued for such period as the applicant can show the activities can reasonably be carried out within the proposed facilities. In view of the similarity of ISFSI's to reactor pools, a 40-year licensing period would appear to be fully appropriate.

"A 20 year limit on initial licenses is unreasonably short. Since the NRC's practice is to start the license duration from the issuance of the initial license, the length of time during which an ISFSI could operate under its initial license would be significantly less than 20 years. Given the 40 year license term routinely issued for power reactor licenses (which include the licensing of the spent fuel pool), there is no reason why a 40 year duration should not also be specified for ISFSI licenses. There is little question that spent fuel can be safely stored for that period. See "Initial Decision Approving Amendment to Operating License to Authorize Enlargement of Spent Fuel Pool Storage." Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corp. (Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station), LEP-77-54, 6 NRC 637, 440 (1977), aff'd. ALAB-455, 7 NRC 41 (1978)."

Comment No. 266: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"As the time period for power plants is 40 years, there is no apparent reason that this should be less for an ISFSI which is designed to similar requirements. (See 10 CFR 50.51)"

Comment No. 267: Yankee Atomic E ic Company. (55)

"We see no reason why a license for an ISFSI should be 'imited to 20 years. A facility such as this should have an economic life well in excess of 20 years. Although the 40 year limit on licenses for power reactors is also arbitrary, we believe that 40 years would be a more appropriate license limit for ISFSI's than 20 years."
Comment No. 268: Florida Power and Light Company. (63)

"10 CFR 50.51 puts a 40 year limit on an unrenewed facility license. Since it is possible to shutdown and decommission a nuclear power plant but still require a spent fuel storage facility, the duration of the ISFSI license should be at least as long as the plart operating license."

Comment No. 269: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The 20 year maximum licensing period is unduly restrictive. A longer term, equivalent to the 40 year power reactor license period is recommended."

The renewal period for a Part 72 license was based on licensing practice for materials licenses under 10 CFR Part 70 ratler than facility licenses under Part 50.

Discussion: The renewal period for a Part 72 license was based on licensing practices for materials licenses under 10 CFR Part 70 rather than facility licenses under 10 CFR Part 50. Material possession licenses, under 10 CFR Part 70, are normally issued with a renewal period of five years. Some material possession licenses involve processing operations in plants that require capital investments about the same order of magnitude as an ISFSI, and these plants have a useful lifetime well in excess of the five-year renewal period of the license. In most cases, these plants make improvements to their operations, add new equipment, and expand their capabilities. For such plants, the five-year license renewal period assures the timely updating and review of license applications and associated license conditions. On the other hand, the storage of aged spent fuel in an ISFSI is a static operation and few major changes are expected to be made. Thus, a renewal period of 20 years is considered reasonable, provided the SAR is updated whenever significant changes relating to the bases for the findings under Section 72.31 have been made.

It is reasonable to expect that some ISFSI's will operate for longer than 20 years. Consider for example if, as a matter of national policy, it is decided to dispose of spent fuel by its transfer to a Federal repository for permanent disposal as radioactive wastes. It is quite likely that the Federal repository would require that the spent fuel be aged 5 or 10 years to allow the heat generation rate to decay to some specified level before it would be accepted for disposal. Thus, some ISFSI's may remain in operation to provide for the necessary interim storage until the spent fuel could be transferred to a Federal repository. Or, as a matter of national policy it may be decided to reprocess the spent fuel to recover the useable fissile materials. However, it may be that the reprocessing could not begin for a number of years. Thus, some ISFSI's may remain in operation to provide interim storage until the spent fuel to provide for a number of years. Thus, some ISFSI's may remain in operation beyond 20 years to provide interim storage until the spent fuel backlog could be reprocessed.

Regardless of which decision is made as to the ultimate disposal of spent fuel, a situation has been created whereby it is necessary to provide for additional interim spent fuel storage capacity. It is not necessary, however, to issue licenses for the expected useful life of such installations. Section 72.33, License Conditions

72.33(a)

Comment No. 270: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"Second, even if the single license is to be issued prior to construction we are concerned that the provisions for 're-evaluation' by the Corrission and 'up-dating' of license conditions prior to the receipt of spent fuel, might lead to a second regulatory proceeding and attendant delays at the time when operation is about to begin. Particularly in view of the proven technology to be utilized in an ISFSI, there are no complexities that would warrant such a second review of a licensed ISFSI. Instead we would suggest that the license, whenever issued, simply provide that spent fuel could not be received until specified conditions are satisifed (e.g., that construction be completed in accordance with specified criteria; that sufficient trained operators be available, etc.). It would then be a matter of inspection by the NRC prior to receipt of fuel, rather than an additional licensing review which could trigger additional procedural delays (such as hearing requests)."

Discussion: Upon issuance of the license prior to construction, if there are no significant changes important to safety that require amendment of the license application and Commission approval, it would be a matter of inspection by the NRC to ensure that the conditions of the license have beer met. Based on a finding that the ISFSI is ready to accept fuel, the licensee would be authorized to receive spent fuel for storage.

Comment No. 271: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"In Sections 72.31 and 72.33 on license issuance and license conditions, it would be more helpful if the minimum conditions could be more clearly defined prior to construction as compared to the conditions required to begin operation. Hopefully, the requirements at the construction stage would be only those essential to determining the safety of the design. Detailed operating procedures, detailed limiting control settings and detailed operating information could be provided during the construction period as amendments to the original application. This timing feature of the application process should be clarified."

Comment No. 272: Florida Power and Light Company. (63)

"The license conditions are overly inclusive.

"The license conditions should include only those items that are required to protect public health and safety. Other items such as surveillance require~ ments are more properly established by procedures and administrative controls to which the licensee is committed."

Discussion: These comments were considered in the rewording of the final rule. The SAR should be quite complete as submitted and require only an elaboration of details in any updating during construction. The ISFSI and its operation are not complex. The establishment of technical specifications does not necessarily require detailed operating information, detailed procedures, nor details of control settings. For example, technical specifications could cover functional and operating limits on the depth of water in the pool or the limits on the lifting of fuel assemblies to ensure adequate shielding, limiting conditions on the quality and temperature of the pool water and standard practices for certain type of operations, and the establishment and maintenance of emergency response teams. It is planned to cover those surveillance activities which are related to public health and safety.

Comment No. 273: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.33 License Conditions (1) Functional and operating limits and monitoring instruments and limiting control settings. It appears that 'Functional and operating limits' are equivalent to 'safety limits' in a part 50 license. It is suggested that the title be changed to Safety Limits to be consistent with part 50."

Comment No. 274: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Similarly, in Section 72.33(b)(1), 'Functional and operating limits' are equivalent to the 'safety limits' of 10 CFR 50 and would benefit from being so designated."

Discussion: Although this section was patterned after pertinent parts of Sections 50.34, 50.36, and 70.32, the functional and operating limits in Part 72 are not directly comparable to the safety limits of a Part 50 license. The safety limits of a Part 50 license primarily address mechanical or process systems. The license conditions, including technical specifications, of a Part 72 license would largely cover the relatively static conditions of spent fuel storage. This section has been extensively revised to improve clarity.

Comment No. 275: D. Wilt. (24)

"Proposed rules sections 72.33 is deficient in that should any radionuclides be released to the atmosphere or to ground water or for any reason escape the confinement area a report must be made to the Commission immediately. In my judgment, prompt action must be required to prevent any potential danger to the public."

Discussion: Commission regulations, 10 CFR Part 20, §§20.403 and 20.405, cover the requirements for notification of incidents and reports of overexposures and excessive levels and concentrations of radionuclides released to the environs.

72.33(b)

Comment No. 276: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"Section 72.33(b) should be revised to state that 'license conditions may include items in the following categories.' The Commission ought to retain the opportunity to determine the matters which most be included in license conditions and those which are best covered in impleminting procedures which can be reviewed by the Commission's inspectors have proven to be more flexible and appropriate than license conditions in assuring that proper actions are taken." Discussion: The revised wording is responsive to this comment. Section 72.33 states that the Commission may also include such additional license conditions as the Commission finds appropriate.

Comment No. 277: Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company. (67)

"In relation to the statement 'Surveillance requirements are requirements relating to tests . . . to assure that the necessary integrity of . . . the fuel in storage is maintained,' we assume that the NRC does not mean 'tests' in the sense of testing the integrity of the spent fuel by experiment.' To clarify this ambiguity, we suggest that the section read 'Surveillance requirements are requirements relating to inspection of the fuel and inspection, calibrations and tests to assure that the necessary integrity of required systems and components is maintained, that operation, etc.'"

Discussion: The intent of this comment is reflected in the revised text of Section 72.33.

Comment No. 278: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"The license conditions proposed under section 72.33 have two flaws. No specific requirement is made for the cataloging of the spent fuel assembly characterisitcs by assembly either for criticality control, in-facility handling information, or additionally for disposal characteristics. The Administration requirements outlined in subsection.(5) should specifically establish such procedures."

Discussion: Only those types of spent fuel for which an ISFSI is designed from the standpoint of in-facility handling and criticality control will be approved for storage in a specific ISFSI.

The records requirements pertinent to later disposal of stored fuel are covered in Section 72.51.

Section 72.33(c)

Comment No. 279: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.33(c)(4) 'And certification' should be deleted. A training program should be efficient to meet the NRC requirements."

Comment No. 280: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.33(c)(4) - The licensees should be required to have the training and certification program in effect both prior to receipt and during storage, not just 'prior to receipt.'"

Discussion: ISFSI operators will not be licensed under 10 CFR Part 55, but they must be trained under a program which has NRC approval. Their proficiency to perform assigned tasks will be certified by the license. See Subpart I, Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel. Comment No. 281: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.33(c)(5) - This paragraph should be rewritten to allow the manipulation of the safety-related equipment and controls by non-certified personnel when such personnel are under the direct, visual supervision of certified personnel. This is necessary for an adequate training program."

Comment No. 282: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"This paragraph would prohibit on-the-job training of non-certified personnel. A reasonable training program should allow an individual in training to operate equipment under the supervision of certified personnel."

Discussion: This section has been revised to permit an individual in training to operate equipment under the direct, visual supervision of certified personnel.

Section 72.33(d)

Comment No. 283: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This paragraph appears to interpret the EPA standards in 40 CFR Part 190 as establishing or constituting specific release limits for the fuel storage facility. If so, how is the licensee to calculate the limits applicable to his facility? Specifically, 40 CFR 190.10(a) sets limits on radiation doses to an individual member of the public from the operations related to the nuclear fuel cycle, including both radioactive material releases and radiation. How will the total be allocated to any individual operation? 40 CFR 190.10(b) specifies the maximum 'quantity of radioactive materials entering the general environment from the entire uranium fuel cycle per gigawatt-year of electrical energy produced . . . ' (emphasis added); how is this to be allocated to any individual operation? (A 1000 ton spent fuel storage facility at full loading will contain a quantity of uranium fuel representing approximately 37 gigawatt years of electrical generation.) While we would not anticipate that releases from a spent fuel storage facility would normally be more than a very small fraction of these EPA limits, these questions are nevertheless considered pertinent, in the light of sub-paragraph 72.33(d)(1). If NRC is interpreting the EPA standards of 40 CFR 190 as being applicable to individual facilities, we recommend that this sub-paragraph 72.33(d) be clarified to indicate that fact and also to indicate how the requirement of 40 CFR 190.10(b) is to be applied to a specific fuel storage facility."

Discussion: The NRC has adopted the EPA standard for radiation protection as being applicable to the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI. This standard is considered adequate to protect both the public and the environment. We do not expect that an ISFSI would release significant amounts of ⁸⁵Kr, ¹²⁹I, nor transuranic radionuclides to the environment. The EPA's endorsement of this position is stated in Comment Letter No. 51. Section 72.33(d) has been revised referencing §72.67.

Comment No. 284: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"The second flaw is the biannual reporting requirement for radioactive effluents under subsection(d). The subsection allows effluents 'significantly above design objectives' to unreported for long period of time and potentially in excess of eight months. In addition, the reporting periods should be matched to the operating date of the facility rather than a calender period to assure consistence in reporting."

Comment No. 285: General Electric Company. (47)

"Effluent reporting requirements should be made consistent with existing regulations in Part 70, §70.59."

Discussion: Section 72.33(d)(3) has been revised to require an annual report of principal radionuclide releases which is believed adequate for an ISFSI. Part 20, Sections 20.403 and 20.405, covers the requirements for timely reporting of incidents resulting in overexposure and excessive levels and concentrations of radionuclides released to the environs.

Comment No. 286: General Electric Company. (47)

"(d) This Section describes effluent controls established as license conditions. Specific mention should be made regarding basin leak control and detection requirements."

Discussion: Part 72 contains requirements that are generally applicable to all types of ISFSIs. Basin leak control and detection for a specific type of ISFSI would be a license condition.

Comment No. 287: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"Part (d) on Effluent Controls in section 72.33 is somewhat confusing. There are two references in this part to 'design objectives' but there is no definition of this term or information on how such objectives will be established. We believe that this part should be clarified."

Discussion: The design objectives on effluent controls are ALARA. The ALARA objectives for a specific ISFSI will be defined in the SAR. These specific ALARA objectives, which establish expected levels for the routine release of principal radionuclides and exposure to radiation, would be appropriate subjects for technical specifications. The requirements have been revised to reflect this principle.

Comment No. 288: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.33(d) - Remove the redundant term 'as an upper limit' from the first sentence."

Discussion: Section 72.33(d) has been revised. Effluent controls must be designed to meet the requirement of "as low as is reasonably achievable."

Comment No. 289: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"An environmental (as well as effluent) monitoring program should be instituted. This should include preoperational characterization of all necessary monitoring stations for at least one (preferable two) years prior to acceptance of spent fuel at the ISFSI." Discussion: The revision to Section 72.33(d)(2) requires an environmental monitoring program. The details of this program will necessarily be both design and site specific.

Section 72.34, Changes, Tests, and Experiments

Comment No. 290: Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C. (29)

"The provisions outlined in section 72.34 which allows the licensee to change procedures, conduct tests, and modify the installation without prior Commission approval allows the licensee to make the detemination as to the significance of these alternations. At a minimum, the licensee should be required to consult with the Commission staff and file a notice of such a change prior to implementation rather than after the fact on an annual basis as proposed in the section."

Comment No. 291: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"Unreviewed safety questions should be determined by the Commission before an experiment or test not by the licensee after completion of an experiment or test."

"Any change in systems or procedures as specified to the Commission in writing, should be submitted to the Commission for review before the change is undertaken." It is the licensee's responsibility to determine whether there is an unrevised safety question.

Discussion: It is the licensee's responsibility to determine whether any changes involve an unreviewed safety question. In practice, if there are any questions as to whether a proposed change, test or experiment involves an unreviewed safety question, licensees consult with the NRC staff.

The NRC's concerns are limited to safety and environmental impacts of a licensee's actions, not to any changes in systems or procedures. The regulations permit a licensee to conduct his operations including changes, tests and experiments, without prior concurrence by the NRC where such actions do not significantly affect the safety of operations or involve an unreviewed safety question. Section 72.35 now contains the requirements previously in Section 72.34. Section 72.35(a)(2) provides guidance as to what may be deemed unreviewed safety questions by the Commission.

Section 72.36, Transfer of Licenses

Comment No. 292: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.36(b)(1) I do not think that paragraph 72.15 or 72.16 apply in this case. As a matter of fact, not even the limited case stated in this section."

"72.36(b)(2) The first sentence should be deleted. That information is part of the SAR furnished by the original owner and should be current. The second sentence in this paragraph is the information the Commission needs. As a matter of fact, the two sentences in this paragraph are not compatible." Discussion: Comment noted. This paragraph has been revised to reference §§72.14 and 72.17.

Section 72.37, Creditor Regulations

Comment No. 293: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Alexrad and Toll. (48)

"Since Part 72 requires a license only for the ownership, acquisition, possession, etc., of materials in spent fuel, §72.37 properly provides for the rights of creditors in such materials. To avoid any questions in the future, however, it may be useful to state in the regulations that no license is needed for ownership, acquisition, possession, etc., of the ISFSI itself and that there are thus no limitation of any mortgages, pledges, liens, etc., upon the ISFSI."

Discussion: We do not believe that this clarification is needed or necessary. Moreover, the licensee has obligations with respect to his financial qualifications for carrying out the licensed activity and the decommissioning of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life. This imposes some limitations on mortgages, pledges, liens, etc., upon the ISFSI.

Section 72.38, Applications for Termination of Licenses

Comment No. 294: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"Paragraph 72.38, Section (a)

"This information is redundant to that requested in paragraph 72.18."

Comment No. 295: General Electric Company. (47)

"This section should be consistent with all other discussion of the Decommissioning Plan. Therefore, the comments on §72.18 (above) also apply to this Section."

Discussion: Section 72.18 requires the applicant to develop a decommissioning plan and factor decommissioning considerations into the design of the ISFSI. Section 72.38 requires that the ISFSI be decommissioned before the Commission will terminate the license.

Comment No. 296: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.38(b) - A licensee cannot provide the "demonstration" that would be required by this proposed regulation because the NRC has not promulgated the decommissioning or disposal regulations referenced; however, it should be credible that decontamination and decommissioning of an ISFSI constructed for twenty years or more of safe operation can be readily accomplished."

Discussion: This section requires the applicant to provide sufficient information about the planned decommissioning of the ISFSI in connection with the termination of the license to provide reasonable assurance that decommissioning operations will be performed in accordance with NRC regulations. Because only the removal of surface contamination and the disposal of contaminated equipment would be involved, the decontamination and decommissioning of an ISFSI and its site should be relatively straightforward.

Section 72.41, Modification, Revocation, and Suspension of Licenses

Comment No. 297: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"In section 72.41, it is stated in part that the NRC may under certain circumstances 'cause the retaking of possession of all special nuclear material contained in spent fuel held by the licensee.' It is not clear who will actually 'retake' possession and whether retaking implies an actual physical transfer of spent fuel.'

Comment No. 298: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"Pursuant to §72.41(c), the Commission can retake title to spent fuel. This section should include a provision requiring that financial responsibility for the spent fuel and its disposal continues to rest with the licensee to avoid shifting the costs to the taxpayers."

Discussion: Taking possession of spent fuel in storage does not necessarily imply an actual physical transfer of the spent fuel. It may, however, involve a takeover of the ISFSI in which the spent fuel is stored, to assure continued safe storage of the spent fuel.

Regarding financial responsibility for the spent fuel and its disposal, the act of taking possession does not necessarily involve a transfer of ownership or relieve the licensee of the responsibilities associated with the license and termination of the license.

Comment No. 299: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Paragraph (b) - There are many NRC regulations having no relationship to the licensing of an ISFSI; therefore, the last sentence of this paragraph should be changed to '... or any applicable regulation, license or order of the Commission."

Discussion: This sentence has been modified as suggested.

Section 72.42, Backfitting

Comment No. 300: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.42 Delete entire paragraph. Any question of backfitting should be included as a design condition. It is recommended that the storage pool be at ground level. Backfitting should not be spelled out as a separate entry."

Discussion: The Commission may require backfitting of an existing facility if such backfitting will provide substantial additional protection of the public, employees and the environment. Although the storage of spent fuel in water pools has been practiced for many years and the technology involved is well developed, there remains a possibility that design or materials deficiencies related to the construction of new facilities may be uncovered which may require backfitting. The following comments addressed the subject of the need for a cost/benefit analysis to justify any backfitting required by the NRC.

Comment No. 301: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.42(a) states that the Commission may require backfitting if such action will provide substantial additional protection. This paragraph should be modified to include a provision that backfitting can be required only after a suitable cost-benefit analysis has shown that backfitting is justified."

Comment No. 302: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"This backfitting requirement is very one sided. There is no cost/benefit criteria imposed on the NRC to justify backfitting requirements. There also is no apparent redress available to the licensee to question such backfit decisions."

Comment No. 303: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section 72.42(a) provides that the Commission may require backfitting 'if it finds that such action will provide substantial, additional protection . . .' As written, the licensee has no assurance that such required backfitting would be cost effective. This subsection should be modified to provide that backfitting could be required only after the Commission has demonstrated, by suitable cost-benefit analysis, that such backfitting is justified."

Comment No. 304: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46317, center, 72.42) - It is acknowledged that backfitting may be a desirable action under some circumstances, but is should be required by the commission only after proposed backfits are negotiated with the licensee on a cost-benefit or other rational basis."

Comment No. 305: General Electric Company. (47)

"(a) This Section establishes the requirements for backfitting. It states in part 'the Commission may require . . . backfitting if . . . such action will provide substantial, additional protection . . .'

"There should be an additional definition of the phrase 'substantial additional protection' to clarify the applicability of backfitting. Backfitting should only be ordered following an independent case review and each such order should be substantiated by a cost benefit analysis by the NRC related to the 'substantial additional protection.'"

Comment No. 306: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Alexrad and Toll. (48)

"There should be added to §72.42(a) the requirement that prior to imposing any backfitting the Commission will conduct a cost-benefit analysis to determine whether the additional protection that would be provided by the backfitting action is cost effective."

Comment No. 307: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The backfitting provision is unreasonable. First, it should include some recognition that backfitting can entail substantial costs which may outweigh any benefits. Thus, the finding which the Commission must make to require backfitting should balance the added cost to the backfit against the added protection."

Comment No. 308: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"Section 72.42 deals with backfitting. It states that 'the Commission may require the backfitting of an ISFSI if it finds that such action will provide substantial additional protection which is required for either occupational or public health and safety.' We believe that justification for backfitting should also include a cost/benefit evaluation to assure that arbitrary and expensive backfitting requirements are not imposed which may not have commensurate benefits."

Comment No. 309: R. Neil. (62)

"Section 72.42 on backfitting should require a cost/benefit analysis to determine if the additional protection is worth the cost."

Comment No. 310: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The requirement as stated appears to be overly restrictive. Backfitting should be required only after a determination has been made that the benefits of backfitting are significantly greater than the cost of providing the backfitting. New regulations and changes in regulations should not be automatically imposed upon a licensed facility unless it can be demonstrated as necessary for the protection the health and safety of the public."

Comment No. 311: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"A definition of 'substantial addition' should be provided. This leaves a licensee open to significant political risk."

Comment No. 312: Tennessee Valley Authority (72)

"The Commission should prepare a benefit/cost evaluation before requiring any changes in an ISFSI after the license has been issued.

Discussion: If the need for backfitting is questionable, the applicant could request a hearing.

The following comments addressed the subject of including occupational health and safety in addition to public health and safety as a possible justification for backfitting.

Comment No. 313: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.42 - This proposed paragraph would extend, without NRC provided justification, the 10 CFR 50.109 concept of modifying a facility for a substantial improvement in public health and safety to also include occupational health

and safety. We believe that it is extremely unlikely that a relatively simple and static facility such as an iSFSI would have to be 'backfitted'; however, we also believe that such broad, vague regulations introduce further uncertainties that tend to dissuade commercial firms from pursuing the development of an ISFSI. We recommend modifying the proposed paragraph to match 10 CFR 50.109."

Comment No. 314: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"Second, the provision differs from the equivalent Part 50 provision, §50.109, by substituting 'occupational . . . health and safety' for 'common defense and security' as a justification. The provision should be made consistent with Part 50 in this respect."

Comment No. 315: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"The requirement for backfitting for 'occupational health and safety' should be deleted as being inconsistent with the requirements for power plants. (See 10CFR50.109)"

Discussion: Experience to date with ISFSI operations have shown that occupational exposure is as significant as public health and safety. Achieving a substantial reduction in occupational exposure could justify an order for backfitting at an ISFSI.

Comment No. 316: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"The backfitting authority should explicitly include the authority to backfit where warranted by substantial additional protection for the environment. The extension of all Atomic Energy Act protections to environmental protection is required by NEPA and the courts. Calvert Cliffs' Coordinating Committee v. U.S. Atomic Energy Commission, 449 F.2d 1109 (D.C. Cir. 1971)."

Discussion: The intent of this comment is reflected in the revision to Section 72.42(a).

Subpart D--Records, Reports, Inspections, and Enforcement

Section 72.51, <u>Material Balance</u>, Inventory and Records Requirements for Stored Materials.

Comment No. 317: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"We note that both the GEIS on the Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Reactor Fuel--NUREG-0404 and the proposed rule on 10 CFR Part 72 fail to consider higher burnup rates and improved LWR Fuel Cycle development. NUREG-0404 is based upon 25,000 MWD/MTU and notes fuel producer expectancies of 33,000 MWD/ MTU. DOE (U.S. Department of Energy)'s Draft Environmental Impact Statement on the Storage of U.S. Spent Power Reactor Fuel EIS-0015-D characterizes burnup rates at 33,000 MWD/MTU for PWR fuel and 27,000 MWD/MTU for BWR fuel. Recent papers presented by the DOE argue for substantially higher burnup rates of 45,000 MWD/MTU or more. DOE is proposing 50,600 MWD/MTU for PWR's and 47,000 MWD/MTU for BWR's. To accomplish this, DOE is proposing an increase in enrichment to roughly 4.3%. These higher burnup rates already under development contracts will substantially alter both spent fuel characteristics (fission gases, cladding/fuel interaction, cladding integrity, thermal and radiation output) and discharge rates for spent fuel. While the proposed rule consistently overlooks the need for thorough analysis and record-keeping of specific spent fuel rod and assembly characteristics, we believe that the failure to consider the substantially different characteristics and discharge rates of high-burnup fuel is a significant flaw in both the proposed rule and the NUREG-0404 document."

Discussion: An individual ISFSI will be designed to accommodate specific types of fuel assemblies with a stated maximum burnup, heat output and radiation characterisitcs. There is little reason to suspect that any fuel which has performed satisfactorily in a reactor cannot be safely stored under the much less severe conditions of spent fuel storage in a properly designed ISFSI. The proposed rule does not overlook the need for thorough analysis of all the factors involved in a license granted under Part 72. Such an analysis is provided in the SAR required under Section 72.15.

The records will include specific fuel assembly characteristics related to its content of special nuclear materials. The recordkeeping requirements pertinent to the characteristics of stored fuel are addressed in paragraph 72.51(a).

Comment No. 318: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"This section should clearly recognize the character of spent fuel in terms of material accountability. A specific statement should be included that analytical analysis of the nuclear material components and the composition of the nuclear material are not required to verify quantities at the time of receipt, at inventory points or at the time of shipment. Nuclear compositions should be accepted as determined by the shipper to the ISFSI and the composition and quantities should be retained unchanged and recorded without modification when the spent fuel is shipped from the ISFSI. Material control in a ISFSI should be by item control and piece count that does not require verification by analytical analysis."

Discussion: It is normal procedure to accept spent fuel composition data as determined by the shipper based on its exposure history until such fuel is dissolved at a reprocessing plant and an analysis can be made of the dissolver solution. Material control by item control and piece count is the normal practice at an ISFSI.

72.51(b)

Comment No. 319: Connecticut, Department of Environmental Protection. (4)

"It is also suggested that Section 72.51b be revised to have the physical inventory coincide with the semi-annual Commission Material Status Reports."

Discussion: This is normally the case, however, the timing of inventory taking is up to the operator of an ISFSI.

Comment No. 320: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.51(b) What is intended by 'a physical inventory'? Does this mean physically verifying each fuel assembly stored in the ISFSI?

. "A piece count and selected small quantity audit of randomly selected fuel assemblies for verification would be adequate."

Comment No. 321: Kaiser Engineers. (21)

"It is suggested that when using the term "inventory" it is made completely clear that physical inventory is the requirement and no chemical or isotopic assay is required."

Comment No. 322: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section '2.51(b) required a 'physical inventory' of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed 12 months or as otherwise directed by the Commission. This provision would benefit from added definition. A physical inspection of each assembly on a periodic basis would appear not only unnecessary but would also involve needless radiation exposure. A system of two-person identification of each assembly upon its initial placement in storage and upon any later movement, coupled with periodic total 'piece counts' (without assembly identification) and with random sampling for identification would provide the needed assurance. Consequently, we suggest that Section 72.51(b) be modified to clarify that a procedure such as that outlined above would meet the 'physical inventory' requirement."

Comment No. 323: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.51(b) Delete paragraph. With all the other records required by (a), (c) and (d), you have a perpetual inventory system. Conducting a physical inventory should be at the discretion of the licensee."

Comment No. 324: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Paragraph (b) - The requirement for '. . . a physical inventory of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed 12 months . . .' could be interpreted to mean the handling of each fuel element for physical inventory verification which would increase the potential for accidents. We recommend that the requirement be further defined to indicate the acceptability of inventorying by such means as statistical sampling."

Comment No. 325: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46317, center, 72.51(b)) - A physical inventory conducted annually or more frequently in 5000 MTHM ISFSI containing 15,000-25,000 fuel assemblies could range anywhere from very costly to impossible if unpacking of the array or visual reconfirmation of fuel serial numbers were required. A reasonable approach to meeting this requirement is represented by the DOE directive 5630.2 where it states that book records supplemented by observation as feasible and physical containment and administrative controls will suffice for highly radiactive material (>100 rems/hour at one meter from an unshielded surface). A further amplification (from the same source) of permissible practices is: 'Radioactive nuclear material in long term storage or in operations which is inaccessible for unique identification or individual piece counting because of radiation levels, should be accounted for based on a principle of containerization where the items are identified, if possible, or (at a minimum) counted at the time

the identified zones in the fuel storage area, or any other well-defined three dimensional space that will remain unchanged during the inventory period. Containers shall be uniquely identified including serial numbers, dimensions (if applicable), listing cf contents and location of grid number. The control of material in containers should follow the practices for individual items including the use of such things as TID's,* wherever possible, and control of operations that might lead to unreported changes in the batch content.'"

Discussion: A periodic inventory of spent fuel in storage at an ISFSI is necessary as a check on the records of fuel in storage. As reflected by the above comments, there are a number of inventory techniques that are acceptable for an ISFSI. The details of what technique could best be used for a specific ISFSI may depend on the design of the installation and the quantity of spent fuel shipped in and out. If necessary, further guidance on this subject will be presented in a regulatory guide.

Section 72.52, <u>Reports of Accidental Criticality or Loss of Special Nuclear</u> Material.

Comment No. 326: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.52 Put a period after 'material.' When you continue by saying 'contained in spent fuel,' you are implying an accident report should be made if a fuel element ruptures and the pellets fall to the bottom of the pool. Do you really want such a report under that condition? As a matter of fact, you cover any loss of SSNM in paragraph 72.53."

Discussion: The staff does want a report covering fuel element ruptures resulting in pellets falling to the bottom of the pool, if this should occur. The report required by Section 72.52 is an incident report whereas the report required by Section 72.53 is a semi-annual transactions report.

Comment No. 327: General Electric Company (47)

"This Section requires reporting of the title topics and states in part: 'Each licensee shall report . . . any loss of special nuclear material contained in spent fuel.' The meaning of 'any loss' in this context should be clarified.

"The loss of SNM in spent fuel can only occur through the loss of spent fuel which is unlikely. Therefore, if 'any loss' means any loss of fuel bundle, then let the regulation so state. However, if the intent is to quantify and report SNM levels in the basin water, then let the regulation state that, but in the latter case, some minimum reporting limit should be established."

Discussion: The meaning of "any loss" in this context is a measurable or observable loss through any cause that resulted in a loss of any part of the special nuclear material contained in spent fuel assemblies.

At normal operating temperatures and water composition, the SNM content of the pool waters in a water basin in which oxide fuels are stored is expected to be negligible and hence not reportable. The report required under this section is an incident report pertaining to an actual physical loss of SNM.

Section 72.54, Nuclear Material Transfer Reports

Comment No. 328: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.54 Last sentence - Does 'received' mean when the c.sk is received at the ISFSI? Should clarify, verification of the fuel assembly must be made before the NRC-741 can be completed and returned to DOE and the shipper. Should say '... received, verified and stored.'"

Comment No. 329: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section 72.54 (Nuclear Material Transfer Reports) would greatly benefit from clarification of its final sentence which requires submittal of a report within 10 days after the spent fuel is 'received.' Because of possible delays between the date on which a shipping cask arrives at an ISFSI and the date on which an assembly is removed from such cask, identified and placed in storage, it is recommended that this provision be modified to require such submittal within 10 days after the spent fuel is 'placed in storage.'"

Comment No. 330: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46317, right, 72.54) - Because a cask may be received but not unloaded and its contents not verified within 10 days, it would not be possible in all cases to submit form NRC-741 within the required 10 days. This section should be modified to add at the end words like, 'unloaded, and its identity verified.'"

Discussion: The wording of this section has been changed to reflect the need to verify cask contents prior to submittal of form NRC-741.

Comment No. 331: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.54 - It would appear adequate for the shipper of spent fuel to send only one copy of the NRC-741 to the receiver, as presently required by 10 CFR 70.54. The requirement for three copies should be deleted."

Discussion: The wording of section 72.54 is identical to that of section 70.54.

Comment No. 332: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The record keeping and reporting procedures should be supplemented by an electronic waste transfer tracking system (ESTTS). Such a system should be maintained at a separate central (computer) facility for all ISFSI's. The facility should track the ISFSI system from initiation of waste transfer (speat fuel) from a nuclear reactor or ISFSI to acceptance at an ISFSI or other depository. The facility could thus maintain a constantly updated record of fissile material inventories at each ISFSI. This could be of use in the event of record loss or emergencies and certainly adds an additional control mechanism over the location and movement of spent fuel for the entire system."

Discussion: Such a system is operated by DOE at Oak Ridge, Tennessee. Form NRC-741 is the imput data for this system.

Section 72.55, Inspections and Tests

Comment No. 333: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.55(c) This section as written would allow any and all tests that could be conceived and 'deemed appropriate or necessary' to be required. It also appears that if the licensee does not choose to perform the test, that the Commission would perform it. The statement appears to be too broad and all encompassing. More definitive information should be given to clarify this requirement."

Comment No. 334: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Specific requirements should be stated that limit the time (say 48 hours) that a test would impact receiving operations."

Comment No. 335: Allied-General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section 72.55(c) requires performance by licensee, or by the Commission, of tests which the Commission deems appropriate or necessary. As written, the licensee is not protected from arguably unwarranted tests. This subsection should be modified to require that (a) upon request of licensee, the Commission demonstrate that the tests are appropriate or necessary and that (b) such tests be schedule' in a manner which would minimize their impact on ISFSI operations."

Comment No. 336: Duke Power Company. (60)

"Section 72.55(c) should either be deleted or justification given for its purpose."

Comment No. 337: Nuclear Fuel Services. Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.55(c) - Item (1) allowing for "tests of spent fuel during handling and storage" should be deleted. The other three items allow the NRC to perform tests on activities conducted by the ISFSI licensee. The Item (1) as written implies that the NRC might conduct tests at the ISFSI, possibly relevant to other licensees but not relevant to the ISFSI."

Comment No. 338: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.55(c) I do not think that you can test items (1) and (2). You could inspect them, however. Items (3) and (4) you can test and inspect this equipment. I believe the entire paragraph should be rewritten. You could put a period after 'regulations.'"

Comment No. 339: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46317, right. 72.55(c)) - The words, 'or permit the Commission to perform,' should be deleted. Only the ISFSI operators would perform tests within the facility, including tests proposed and witnessed by the Commission."

Comment No. 340: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"This section needs clarification. It is not clear what is meant by '. . . test of (1) spent fuel during handling and storage, (2) spent fuel handling and storage facilities.'"

Discussion: This requirement is intentionally broad to encompass unforeseeable events t at may cause the Commission to exercise these rights.

Tests on spent fuel in storage may involve lifting selected fuel assemblies out of their storage position to assure that there has been no significant buildup of corrosion products on the fuel assembly, that the fuel assemblies remain structurally sound, and that the geometry and required clearances of storage racks or canisters has not been significantly altered due to some operational occurrence.

Normally, any test performed at an ISFSI would be carried out by the ISFSI operating personnel. However, the NRC reserves the right to conduct such tests as may be warranted with its own personnel or other personnel under its supervision.

Comment No. 341: General Electric Company. (47)

"(c) This Section gives the Commission authority to perform or cause the licensee to perform tests as deemed appropriate '. . . for the administration of the regulations in this part.' It should be made clear in the regulation that the NRC will respect the proprietary nature of the information derived from testing. Further, any testing in behalf of NRC should be limited to areas related to the safety of the facility."

Discussion: The protection of proprietary information is covered under 10 CFR Part 2.790. The NRC's mandate covers both safety and environmental protection.

Comment No. 342: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"Page 46310, First Column, Second Paragraph - The provisions for periodic inspection and surveillance of critical components should be related to specific, identified concerns and requirements for inspection and surveillance."

Discussion: The requirements for periodic inspection and surveillance are specific to the design and operation of an individual ISFSI. For example, the requirements for pool storage may be quite different from those for dry storage, and those for a large installation may be different from those of a small one.

Comment No. 343: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"Unannounced inspections by the Commission of an ISFSI should be mandated."

Discussion: This point is covered in Section 72.56(a). In practice, NRC inspectors experience little difficulty in making any inspections they think necessary.

Section 72.56, Maintenance of Other Records and Reports

72.56(b)

Comment No. 344: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"What sort of financial report would NRC expect from a DOE installation to satisfy this annual financial reporting requirement?"

Comment No. 345: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"The requirement to file the annual financial report and certified financial statements may make little s .se for a potential government agency licensee such as the Department of Energy."

Discussion: Other government agencies, such as DOE, would be granted an exemption from this requirement.

Comment No. 346: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.56(c) - The proposed requirement that 'if a retention period is not otherwise specified, such records shall be maintained until the Commission authorizes their disposition' should be deleted. For such a simple facility with so few radiologically significant records, the NRC should accept the minor burden of identifying the specific records to be retained."

Discussion: The records involved are those required by license conditions or the requirements of Part 72. A licensee may request the disposal of records if the records involved no longer serve a useful purpose.

Section 72.57, Violation

Comment No. 347: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"What is the extent of applicability of this section to DOE and its contractors once legislation enabling NRC to license a DOE storage facility has been obtained?"

Discussion: The DOE and its contractors would be required to comply with NRC regulations, including this section.

Subpart E--Siting Criteria

GENERAL COMMENTS

Comment No. 348: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"An ISFSI should not be permitted to be located in the same community where any nuclear generating facility is located:

"1. Multiple accidents could entirely destroy the community's infrastructure:

- "2. Risks are compounded;
- "3. The regulatory effort of the NRC should be to formulate guidelines and regulations on transfer of spent fuel from cooling pools and temporary storage facilities to permanent waste storage and disposal facilities. These latter facilities should be in areas of remote isolation and developed pursuant to a regional plan by the Department of Energy, the Environmental Protection Agency or the Interagency Nuclear Waste Management Task Force."

"If an ISFSI were co-located with a power reactor, it would seem that:

- "1. An accident due to the occurrence of a natural phenomena is more likely;
- "2. An accident with the reactor could adversely affect the ISFSI (even close it down) or a problem with the ISFSI could adversely affect the reactor."

Discussion: There are no obvious technical reasons for precluding the Tocation of an ISFSI in the same community as a nuclear generating facility. Such a site may be the best available for storing spent fuel discharged by that power reactor complex.

The risk of a catastrophic accident at an ISFSI is quite remote. The location of an ISFSI near a power plant would not add significant risk to the public health and safety. Both reactors and ISFSIs are designed to withstand natural phenomena to protect public health and safety. The location of an ISFSI near a reactor would not increase the probability of the occurrence of natural phenomena.

The storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI is a static type of operation. An accident at an ISFSI is unlikely to seriously affect a nearby reactor. An accident at a reactor should have little effect on spent fuel in storage at an ISFSI. However, a serious accident at a nearby reactor could cause a cessation of receiving and shipping operations at an ISFSI, and might temporarily interfere with its operations.

The NRC is developing regulations covering permanent waste storage and disposal facilities. Other government agencies with a shared interest are providing input to this effort.

Comment No. 349: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The regulations should provide that a site previously approved by NRC in connection with a facility license would require no further NRC review for an ISFSI license. If, for example, a site was adequate (from geological, hydrological, seismic, etc., standpoints) for a reactor, it should be defined adequately for an ISFSI."

Comment No. 350: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"A provision should be included in Part 72 that recognizes the already accepted qualifications of both an applicant and a site that have current license approvals under Part 50. Any application for a license under Part 72 for an ISFSI facility to be located on the site of a Part 50 facility for which the applicant holds a construction or an operating license should be accepted as a pre-qualified applicant with a pre-qualified site. Such pre-qualification should be applicable at least to financial responsibility, population distribution and a majority if not all of the elements of an environmental evaluation."

Discussion: A site that has been approved for a Part 50 facility, in general, is likely to be acceptable for an ISFSI. However, the pre-qualification of sites licensed under Part 50 without review in relation to the proposed design of the ISFSI does not seem prudent. Information on a specific site that has been submitted to the NRC in connection with other licensing actions need not be repeated in a Part 72 license application: It can be incorporated by specific references to previous submissions.

An applicant qualified under Part 50 should be able to meet the Part 72 qualification requirements; but that does not exempt an applicant from complying with the requirements of Part 72.

Comment No. 351: Sargent and Lundy Engineers. (73)

"The extent of site investigation required in Subpart E-Siting Criteria is not compatible with the potentially low radiological risk from ISFSI as expressed throughout the proposed rules."

Discussion: The siting criteria are designed to ensure that the site selected will be compatible with the ISFSI operations from both an environmental and public health standpoint.

Section 72.61, General Criteria

Comment No. 352: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"The wording of this paragraph might be interpreted to require a licensee to propose and evaluate several sites. We recommend the use of the term 'the proposed site' throughout this section."

Comment No. 353: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"These general criteria as written apply to 'proposed sites for the ISFSI.' It is unclear why reference is made to multiple sites and a single ISFSI. The reference should either be to 'proposed site for the ISFSI' or to 'proposed sites for ISFSI's.'"

Discussion: Changes have been made in the wording of the rule to specify the proposed site where applicable. However, the proposed site will have to be compared with available alternative sites to establish that an alternative site does not offer significant environmental or safety advantages over the proposed site.

Comment No. 354: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"It is suggested the probability criteria be added to indicate a threshold for the occurrence of external natural events, external man-induced events, and natural phenomena, below which design protection against such events is not required."

"A design earthquake is suggested with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years. Could a probability threshold derived from this recurrence interval also be used as the criteria suggested in the preceeding comment for other events which could impact the safety of ISFSI?"

Discussion: This approach was considered in the drafting of the rule and Regulatory Guide 3.44. However, it was not possible to obtain a consensus among specialists having expert knowledge about the various types of natural phenomena to establish a consistent basis for various natural phenomena events. Moreover, there is considerable controversy about establishing a probabilistic approach to seismic risk. The 500 year recurrence interval was a proposed element of siting criteria, not the design earthquake.

Comment No. 355: American Nuclear Society (ANS2.19). (41)

"The criteria appear quite nebulous in several places."

Discussion: Subpart E contains specific criteria where these can be stated. Where specific criteria cannot be defined, it identifies factors that must be evaluated in determining the acceptability of a proposed site.

Comment No. 356: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.61(b) Delete 'and man-induced' because at the time of site selection there should not be any man-induced events to be evaluated."

Discussion: Man-induced events refers to nearby activities such as mining, transportation, airports, etc.

72.61(c)

Comment No. 357: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"This paragraph and Section 72.64 paragraphs (a) and (c) require that the effects of the ISFSI on people in the region be examined and that effects which would otherwise be unacceptable shall be compensated for by the ISFSI design. As such, the proposed regulation does not give any guidance as to what is acceptable and what is not. Specific guidance should be provided in the regulations to avoid confusion in the licensing process and to provide firm guidance to the applicant. Unacceptable effects should be defined in terms of radiclogical dose limits."

Discussion: These paragraphs have been revise. Dose criteria are defined in Sections 72.67 and 72.68.

72.61(f)

Comment No. 358: Shaw, Pittman, Potts.and Trowbridge. (50)

"This provision, requiring an environmental analysis, is unnecessary. Instead, 10 CFR §51.5 should be amended to add ISFSI licensing as the type of action requiring NRC environmental analysis."

Discussion: 10 CFR Part 51 is now being revised; ISFSIs will be covered in the revised rule.

Section 72.62, Criteria for Design Basis External Natural Events

Comment No. 359: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"It is singularly disappointing that the Staff should propose such an unspecific regulation on the criteria for design basis for external natural events. The NRC should draw upon their vast experience in reartor siting and extend the scope of natural phenomena resistance criteria for ISFSI beyond the specific earthquake resistance (0.25g/500 year return) to at least specify tornado winds and precipitation rate. Due consideration should be given to the very low potential release source involved in the storage of aged fuel. For example, NRC calculates" a tornado strike on the Barnwell Fuel Receiving and Storage Station would result in less than 0.1 rem to the critical organ of the maximum individual when fuel with cooling times as short as 150 days is stored."

Discussion: The design basis for external natural events is both sitespecific and ISFSI design specific. Tornado winds and precipitation rate may not be significant factors for specific sites (e.g., desert) or ISFSI designs (e.g., below grade pools). The requirement is that those potentially harmful natural phenomena which can occur at the proposed site be evaluated and considered in the design of the proposed ISFSI.

Comment No. 360: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This sub-paragraph requires that 'appropriate methods shall be adopted for establishing the design basis natural events for important natural phenomena. The method should be justified as being compatible with the region and the current state of knowledge.' This appears to require that the licensee justify the seismic criteria established by this regulation. Unless this is the intent, this sub-paragraph should be modified to make clear that it applies only to facilities located at sites whose seismic characteristics lie outside those specified in paragraph 72.71, General Design Criterion 2(ii)."

Discussion: It is the responsibility of the applicant to select and justify methods for evaluating natural phenomena at the proposed site. Geologic and seismic criteria are specifically addressed in Section 72.66. Section 72.62 addresses other potentially serious natural phenomena that may occur at the proposed site.

Comment No. 361: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"The NRC Staff, not the licensee, should bear the responsibility for identifying what are 'appropriate methods' for establishing design basis for natural phenomena

and man-induced events. The licensee using these 'appropriate methods' would compute the magnitude of the event."

Discussion: Any applicant applying for a license under Part 72 should be qualified to judge what methods are appropriate for establishing the design basis for his specific ISFSI design and site conditions. The NRC role is to determine whether the methods used are indeed appropriate for his specific site/design conditions.

Comment No. 362: U.S. Department of Interior. (65)

"Criteria for natural events to be considered in site selection are given only for seismicity. However, we recommend the potential for flooding also be considered in the selection of a site "." an ISFSI. Flooding could affect storage facilities adversely and should be covered by criteria. Avoidance of floodplain sites would be in line with policies established in Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management."

Comment No. 363: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We believe Section 72.62 is vague and does not specify a design basis flood. This contrasts with draft Regulatory Guide 3.24.1 and 3.24.3 which specify a Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) approach. We do not believe that a PMF approach is justifiable for an ISFSI because the consequences of floods are much less severe."

Discussion: The draft regulatory guides referenced were developed specifically for ISFSIs of the water basin type: with the tops of the pools located at or near grade. For this type of ISFSI, flooding should be avoided. Draft Regulatory Guide 3.44, which was published for comment in December 1978, also reflects the staff view that a below grade ISFSI should be located above the PMF level on a given site. Thus, subparagraph (f) has been added to Section 72.61 to indicate that a floodplain site is unsuitable for an ISFSI.

Section 72.63, Criteria for Design Basis Man-Induced Events

Comment No. 364: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.63(a) (b) (c) Delete second sentence in (a) and entire sentence (b) and rewrite (c) as follows: Appropriate methods shall be adapted and justified for the design basis of the ISFSI as being compatible with the characteristics of the region and the current state of knowledge. These paragraphs are talking about phenomena, when all we are talking about are man-made facilities."

Discussion: Man-induced events (or phenomena) are the results of man's activities in the region of the proposed site. Examples of such events are explosions at a nearby mine or quarry, release of hazardous or toxic chemicals from a nearby manufacturing facility, and an airplane crash if located on the flight path of a nearby airport. Such events (or phenomena) due to man's activities must be evaluated to the extent that these are pertinent in the same manner as natural phenomena.

Section 72.64, Criteria for Defining Potential Effects of ISFSI on the Region

Comment Nc. 365: Ohio Power Siting Commission. (11)

"Paragraph 72.64, Sections (a) and (b)

"An evaluation of usual characteristics should also be made."

Discussion: Comment accepted and incorporated in the revised text of Section 72.64, now Section 72.65.

Section 72.65, Criteria For Regional Distribution of Population.

Comment No. 366: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This requirement appears to duplicate that set forth in sub-paragraph 72.61(e). If these are intended to cover separate actions by the applicant, the difference should be more clearly set forth."

Discussion: Section 72.61 is a summary of general criteria, with subsequent sections treating each subject in more detail. The requirements in Section 72.65 have been rewritten and placed in different sections in accordance to criteria for specific site-related areas.

Comment No. 367: Isham, Lincoln and Beale. (64)

"In view of the state of technology with respect to spent fuel storage, and the low possibility of radiation exposure to the public from such facilities, there is no justification for considering population density as an independent safety criterion in connection with identifying a site for an independent spent fuel storage installation. Population density should at most be considered with any environmental review that you are conducting."

Discussion: This section, in part, develops information about the distribution of the population in the region which is necessary to evaluate the adequacy of the proposed emergency plan. Criteria for defining a region have been rewritten and placed in Section 72.64.

Comment No. 368: Gilbert/Commonwealth. (44)

"Part 72.65, 'Criteria for Regional Distribution of Population,' discusses the need to evaluate the proposed site for potential accident consequences over the 'operational lifetime' of the ISFSI. Since Part 72.32 limits the initial ISFSI license to no more than 20 years, with the possibility of renewal, the length of the operational life is uncertain. Clarification of the regulatory intent behind the 20 year license limits and criteria for license renewal would be desirable."

Discussion: Section 72.65(a) has been deleted, including the requirement to project the character and distribution of the population over the lifetime of the ISFSI. See responses to comments on Section 72.32 relative to the duration and renewal of licenses. Section 72.64 now defines the criteria used to establish regions and includes a revision of population distribution requirements.

Comment No. 369: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The 'neighboring area' concept, defined in §72.3(k), is too indefinite to allow meaningful evaluation. A more explicit definition, along the lines of the 'low population zone' (§100.3(b)), should be adopted."

Comment No. 370: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Paragraph (d) - An evaluation of the potential for adverse consequences to people within the neighboring area is required. The definition for neighboring area is the area considered with respect to the possibility of implementing contingency measures. A more specific definition should be provided. (See comment regarding Section 72.3 Definitions - (k) Neighboring area.)"

Comment No. 371: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The limits specified on use of a controlled area should at a minimum be no more strict than those in 10 CFR §100.3(a) for exclusion areas. As written, the provision might not be interpreted to allow the kinds of transportation activities permitted under §100.3(a)."

Discussion: The definitions of "controlled area" and "neighboring area," which has been changed to ISFSI-EPZ, under Section 72.3 have been revised. The ISFSI-EPZ to be defined in the application is that area in which the emergency plan might be implemented, if necessary, in the event of a serious accident at the ISFSI. Section 72.69 contains the criteria for defining the ISFSI-EPZ.

Comment No. 372: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"Although the Supplementary Information states that 'the population distributions at licensed reactor sites would be acceptable for the location of ISFSI's' (43 F.R. 46310), this determination is not included in the proposed regulation. The regulation should make explicit that if an ISFSI is to be located at a licensed reactor site, population distribution information would not need to be provided and reviewed.

"The regulation should also provide, however, that in view of the acknowledged low level of potential risk of an ISFSI, population densities higher than, and population distributions different than, those at licensed reactor sites may also be acceptable."

Discussion: Applications under Part 72 covering an ISFSI to be constructed at a licensed reactor site may include updated population distribution information, or cover this subject by specific reference to the applicable sections of the SAR for the Part 50 license if this information is still current.

Comment No. 373: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"Current population criteria are vague and inadequate. The proposed §72.65 is even worse. Specific criteria defining population levels which are acceptable and man rem doses calculated using design basis accident conditions and conservative assumptions are the only reliable standards. Also the use of conservatively calculated man rem doses would permit a basis for comparison of alternative sites for safety purposes. See generally Natural Resources Defense Council and Citizens for a Better Environment Comments on Proposed Amendment to Appendix E to 10 CFR Part 50, In the Matter of Appendix E - Emergency Plans for Production and Utilization Facilities, October 23, 1978."

Discussion: In general, calculations of man-rem doses based on design basis accidents are used to assess site suitability for nuclear facilities. However, such calculations for an ISFSI, in which only aged fuel is stored, indicate that other criteria are likely to govern the choice of a site relative to the alternative sites available to an applicant.

Comment No. 374: Westinghouse Electric Curporation. (61)

"Section 72.65 contains criteria for regional distribution of population which are not applied to LWRs. For reasons stated in the cover letter, such additional requirements are not appropriate. Furthermore, the proposed regulation requires, in paragraph 72.61(e) and 72.65(e), that the potential for radiological consequences in the region shall be evaluated. It is believed that the intent, although not clear, of this requirement is the performance of an offsite dose analysis of the design basis accident(s) with respect to the regional population. This is above and beyond the requirement for light water reactors under 10 CFR 100 Additionally, once the analysis has been completed, no criteria have been established against which to measure the acceptability of the results of the analysis. The only requirement for 'regional' population dose assessment in the case of LWR licensing is in the NEPA evaluation contained in the Environmental Report which is performed using realistic assumptions for the accident scenario. Definitive design objectives for such evaluations are given in Appendix I to 10 CFR 50."

Discussion: The requirements of Section 72.65 have been rewritten and placed in different sections of the regulation. Section 72.68 establishes the criteria for the controlled area and Section 72.69 establishes the criteria for the neighboring area. Appendix I to 10 CFR Part 50 does not apply to an ISFSI.

Comment No. 375: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"In Section 72.65 of Subpart E, make the following changes:

- "(a) The proposed site . . . and distribution of people in the region. Such a study shall include evaluation of present and future uses of land and water within the region and shall take into account any special . . .
- "(b) A controlled . . . for the proposed site.
- "'(c) The licensee . . . from the controlled area.
- "'(d) The neighboring area . . . evaluated with respect to both the potential for adverse consequences to people or to the environment from a release of radioactive material and the capability of implementing protective measures as may be necessary to mitigate the immediate effects of such a release.

"'(e) The distribution of people in the region . . . from normal and potential accidental releases of radioactive material or other toxic materials and the potential impact from construction, operation and decommissioning of the ISFSI during its lifetime.""

"Paragraph 72.65(a) - The term 'character' should be defined or deleted."

Discussion: The requirements previously located in Section 72.65 have been revised, taking into account the above suggestions. See Sections 72.64, 72.68 and 72.69.

Section 72.66, Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic Characteristics.

The proposed siting of ISFSI's in areas of low potential seismicity, as defined by a probabilistic approach rather than the deterministic approach used for nuclear power plants, elicited the following twenty comments.

Comment No. 376: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The recognition that the single static nature of an ISFSI makes the seismic risk less serious than for a reactor and that substantial resources can be expended both in site investigation work and debate on exact site specific design values is indeed correct. The seismic criteria proposed, therefore, represents a reasonable approach for these types of facilities."

Comment No. 377: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"We support the idea of a 'new seismic siting approach' which recognizes that the seismic risk factor for an ISFSI is less serious than for a nuclear reactor. Along the same line we support the thought that an approved reactor site is most certainly suitable for an ISFSI."

Comment No. 378: T. C. Euschbach. (6)

"I hesitate to endorse any statement in the regulation which requires ISFSI's to be designed to withstand a 0.25g acceleration or requires the sites to have a ground motion potential of no more than 0.25g. Philosophically, I have no quarrel with the concept of using existing seismic risk maps, choosing sites with earthquake ground motion potential of no more than 0.25g with recurrence interval of 500 years, and building the ISFSI without costly site-specific investigations. It is an excellent alternative.

"The other alternatives should be defined as clearly as the one just discussed. Transportation may become a more serious problem than would be the designing of an ISFSI for a site where horizontal acceleration may be expected to exceed 0.25g. In a few years this option may be extremely important and the option should be clearly available.

"The latter options (referring to designing for less than 0.25g) should be readily available rather than being presented as an acquiescence. We are currently working on a new seismic risk map, and the options are apt to become more important in the future."

Comment No. 379: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"The offer of acceptance of 0.25g as the limiting earthquake ground motion appears to be a positive step to cut costs and reduce regulatory review time; however, in reviewing the application of these design features, there are a number of factors in the regulation which limits its use. Some geological investigation would be required to ascertain that no unusual geological condition exists. The foundation investigation would have to ascertain that bedrock exists at the base level for the structures. After these two conditions are determined, there would be little additional expense accrued to determine a site specific "g" value. The set "g" value of .25g is proposed to approve some 35% of the continental area seismically. In looking at the Southeast, the bedrock requirement excludes about 75% of the area. In considering the area east of the Rockies, this requirement excludes the coasta' plains, the river valleys and the embayment areas, leaving probably less than 50% of the area. Of the areas available, much of it is remote and the terrain is too rough for developing a site for this usage. More and more restrictions are being added to transporting of radioactive material and in the future, long hauls may be prohibitive in costs. In the Southeast most of the area (except around Charleston and a portion of the Piedmont province) is designated as UBC Zone 0 or Zone 1 and the proposed value is extremely high for the potential seismic loading conditions. If a new seismic siting approach is to be offered, it would include a more rational approach of various values for general locations and foundation conditions."

Comment No. 380: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"The proposed regulation is directed toward new sites for an ISFSI rather t. I recognizing that the majority of sites may be contiguous to existing licensed reactors. The regulation sets minimum seismic criteria which are in excess of criteria used in the licensing of most reactor facilities in the aseismic Southeast U.S. The regulation attempts to justify such conservative criteria by stating that these criteria will not affect the design of the simple structures involved and by emphasizing-in four separate statements--that the adoption of such conservative criteria will be in lieu of site investigations.

"This regulation is written as if it must justify the arbitrary selection of ultra conservative seismic criteria. If such conservative seismic criteria are reasonable, then the cost savings due to omitting site investigations are not relevant.

"The regulation infers that site investigation costs will be reduced. Nothing could be further from reality. The regulation still requires the site seismicity to be characterized by showing the probability of seismicity is below stated levels. Furthermore, the site will have to be free of those unusual geologic conditions which are only determined during site investigation.

"While it may be appropriate to spec fy minimum acceptable levels of design, there is no justification for adopting ultra conservative designs just because the proposed structure is supposedly simple."

Comment No. 381: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"We concur with the position that any site with a peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greater than 0.25g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years, shall be deemed suitable for an ISFSI site. A specific reference should be provided for the basis of determining that the g value of a site is no greater than 0.25g. However, ISFSI's should not be excluded from sites with a greater g value. Any site that has an established g value either above or below 0.25g for a Part 50 facility should also be deemed acceptable for a Part 72 installation that is designed to withstand the established g loadings for that site."

Comment No. 382: American Nuclear Society (ANS2 19). (41)

"Regardless what ground acceleration is utilized, documentation must be provided to support the proposed acceleration level. We may someday arrive at the point where there is a published map with which we all agree, but at the present, we have no such document. As an alternative, it is suggested the user of 10 CFR Part 72 be encouraged to select a site where the horizontal ground acceleration is 0.25g or less."

Comment No. 383: General Electric Company. (47)

"(a) This Section defines acceptable seismic criteria. The value of 0.25g for peak horizontal ground acceleration is too restrictive and a value of 0.2g is more appropriate. Our rationale is based on the following considerations:

- "1. The value of 0.25g cannot be inferred from the reference cited (Report by Algermissen and Perkings of USGS). Rather, 0.2g is given as the value that covers most of regions east of Rockies.
- "2. The value of 0.2g is consistent with present practice for design of equipment to be located in buildings. This typical requirement is given in the latest version of the Uniform Building Code.
- "3. The value of 0.25g seismic requirements may eliminate many suitable sites due to liquefaction consideration.
- "4. The purpose of selecting minimum design earthquake level is for convenience in lieu of expensive and time-consuming site investigation. Therefore, this selected earthquake level should be high enough to cover a representative number of potential sites and low enough to avoid excessive economic penalty. In this regard, we believe 0.2g is more appropriate.

"It is not clear whether the alternative approach states, '. . . of establishing a site specific 'g value,'' permits the use of a value less than 0.25g. This should be clarified."

Comment No. 384: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"FR 46310 - It appears to NFS that the relationship between horizontal ground motion acceleration and recurrence interval is as yet too tenuous to justify a specific number such as '500 years.' The NRC should utilize the experiences gained in both the review of more than a hundred reactor sites and the extensive survey for the Nuclear Energy Center study to develop a Regulatory Guide identifying the appropriate seismic parameter by geographical region."

Comment No. 385: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"It is recognized that the rationale of 0.25g seismic requirement is to avoid expenditure of substantial resources in investigation work to establish site specific seismic data, but here again if ISFSI is located near existing licensed facility, some of this data may already be available and made investigative and review work of site-specific seismic design data a relatively simpler task.

"Therefore, it is suggested that seismic criteria state the establishment of a site specific g value by the procedure of Part 100 or as an alternative approach, use of at least 0.25g horizontal ground motion acceleration in which case, the integrity of the ISFSI will be considered adequate, without the need for costly seismic site investigations, analyses, and reviews."

Comment No. 386: Department of Water and Power, City of Los Angeles. (53)

"Our understanding of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC) intention in proposing Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 72 (10 CFR 72), as stated in the Supplementary Information, was to consider 'whether a new seismic siting approach for an ISFSI should t .ed which recognizes that the simple st nature of an ISFSI makes sies ... k less serious than it is for a reactor (emphasis added). However, the proposed regulations as set forth in paragraphs 72.66 and 72.71 of 10 CFR 72 do not accomplish the NRC's intention. We believe that the 'new seismic siting approach for an ISFSI' being considered by the NRC as set forth in paragraphs 72.66 and 72.61 of 10 CFR 72 would still require extensive geologic investigations and would not result in significant savings of resources and time. It appears that the modification of seismic and geological siting criteria (e.g., use of probabilistic methods) for nuclear facilities would be more appropriately located in a revised Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 100 (10 CFR 100).

"For the above reasons, we believe that with regard to the criteria for defining acceptable seismic characteristics for an ISFSI located at a site which has not been licensed, the proposed regulations in paragraph 72.66 of 10 CFR 72 should provide that the site seismic and geologic characteristics for evaluation of the suitability of the site shall be determined in accordance with 10 CFR 100. Also, we believe that the proposed regulations in paragraph 72.71 of 10 CFR 72 should provide that structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena, such as earthquakes with a horizontal ground motion acceleration as determined by 10 CFR 100.

"Additionally, as peak acceleration levels increase for a given site, the appropriateness of the NRC staff's requirement for anchoring a Regulatory Guide 1.60 response spectra based on peak ground acceleration becomes questionable. Evidence was presented to the NRC and the Advisory Committee on Reactor Safeguards on studies conducted for the San Joaquin Nuclear Project Early Site Review Report, indicating that there are more appropriate methods for establishing spectra levels of shaking associated with earthquakes. Alternate methodologies presented include the scaling of real earthquake response spectra, use of spectral intensities and spectral ordinates. We believe that the emphasis placed in the proposed regulation on the use of peak ground acceleration for determining the seismic characteristics of a site (i.e., for normalizing design response spectra) is not appropriate for sites with moderate to high peak ground accelerations."

Comment No. 387: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The first sentence of §72.66(a) is presumably intended to permit the siting of an ISFSI without the need for costly seismic investigations, analyses and review. It might not achieve this purpose, however, because it does not specify the information source that will be conclusively accepted by the Commission without need for further proof by applicant. We suggest that the first sentence be redrafted to provide explicitly that the applicant need not provide detailed information and seismic findings by the Commission and will not be required if the ISFSI is to be located (1) at a site where a production or utilization facility is currently licensed under Part 50 with a 'g' value for a Safe Shutdown Earthquake of 0.25g or less, or (2) at a site within an area satisfying the earthquake ground motion potential and recurrence interval set forth in the regulations as demonstrated by authorities named in the regulations (e.g., incorporating into the regulations a reference to the report identified in footnote 2 of 43 F.R. 46310) or equivalent authorities.

"We assume that the second sentence of §72.66(a) is intended to provide complete flexibility to an applicant to ignore the 'revel siting approach' set forth in §72.66 and instead to proceed under Part 200. Thus, if an applicant wishes to establish pursuant to Part 100 a site-specific 'g' value of less than 0.25g he is free to do so; and he could then design the ISFSI accordingly. (For this reason there should be deleted the perenthetical expression in Quality Standard (2)(ii) of §72.71 which requires designing for an acceleration of at least 0.25g. On the other hand, if he wishes to use a site where a greater 'g' value would be applicable, he is free to establish the site-specific acceleration and design the ISFSI accordingly.

"Further comment on the referenced USGS report (Algermissen and Perkins, Open File Report 76-416, 1976, 'A Probabilistic Estimate of Maximum Acceleration in Rock in the Contiguous United States') is in order. Algermissen and Perkins, in the cited document, present a preliminary map of horizontal accelerations in rock with a 90% probability of not being exceeded in 50 years; based on information presented in the report, the maximum accelerations on the same probabilistics based which might be anticipated with a recurrence interval of 500 years would be approximately 2.7 times the values shown on the Algermissen and Perkins map. From this it would appear that a substantial fraction of the country lying between the 75th and 105th meridians would be able to justify a substantially lower seismic criterion that the 0.25g value selected. In fact, Algermissen and Perkins state: "'It can also be surmised, from the acceleration vs. return period rule-ofthumb and rough considerations of the area involved, that an attempt to produce an acceleration map of the Eastern United States by a uniform distribution of all historical seismicity east of the Rocky Mountains would results in a uniform motion level between 4 and 10%g. Such a map would emphasize the hypothesis that earthquakes could happen anywhere in the Eastern United States but the motion levels as design levels are probably easily met by structures conforming to wind loading codes--earthquake protection would not be a design criterion at all.'

"It would thus appear appropriate to consider establishing as the seismic criterion a value less than 0.25g, and require that facilities proposed for sites where the anticipated peak acceleration based on the Algermissen and Perkins data might be exceeded, that a complete seismic evaluation would be required. It would appear from the Algermissen and Perkins map that relatively few additional sites would be excluded from the standardized consideration by reducing the g value to 0.20."

Comment No. 388: H. Ashar. (16)

"It should be recognized that the peak acceleration associated with a 'horizontal ground motion potential' is not necessarily the same as the maximum design ground acceleration. Also, the phrase 'up to a 500 year recurrence interval' gives me an impression that we would accept an earthquake having less than 500 year recurrence interval. I do not believe this is the intent. Recognizing the purpose of this section of the Regulation, I suggest the following changes.

- "(a) Design Earthquake (DE) is defined as an earthquake having an recurrence interval of no less than 500 years.
- "(b) Any site, having design maximum ground acceleration (corresponding to DE) at an ISFSI foundation level of greater than 0.25g, shall be deemed unsuitable for an ISFSI.
- "(c) For soil sites, where DE could potentially cause soil failure, it must be shown by a site specific investigation and analysis that soil failure will not occur due to the expected vibratory ground motion at the site. Sites with potentially unstable soils may be made suitable by remedial action."

Comment No. 389: F. Anderson. (17)

- "(a) Sites with a horizontal ground motion potential of greater than 0.25g with a 500 year recurrence interval (equivalent to a 90% probability of not being exceeded in 50 years) shall be deemed unsuitable for an ISFSI.
- "(b) Sites which meet the criterion of 'a' above and which are founded on bedrock are suitable for an ISFSI. Unless some unusal geological characteristics is identified, no detailed site specific earthquake analysis is required. For soil sites, where vibratory ground motion could potentially cause failure, it must be shown by a site specific

investigation and analysis that soil failure will not occur due to the expected vibratory ground motion at the site during the projected operating lifetime of the installation and that horizontal ground acceleration at the ISFSI foundation does not exceed 0.25g. Sites with potentially unstable soils may be made suitable by remedial action.

- "(c) For ISFSI designs other than the water basin type, proposed sites shall be evaluated on the basis of a site specific investigation and analysis.
- "(d) Site: which do not meet the site suitability requirements of the above criteria may be evaluated and determined acceptable in accordance with Section 72.8 of this Part."

Comment No. 390: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.66(a) - The requirement might be clearer if it read 'A site with a peak . . . shall be deemed suitable for an ISFSI and require . . . "

Comment No. 391: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"Page 46310, Second Column, Paragraph continued from previous column - The sentence 'based on previous evaluations of the impact of transporting spent fuel, the savings achieved by the site restrictions are justified,' needs 'urther justification. Please clarify what savings would be achieved by the site restriction."

Comment No. 392: New York Energy Office. (70)

"The term 'active fault' as used in Section 72.66 should be defined in the proposed regulations. The terminology should be comparable to that of 10 CFR 100, Appendix 'A', III Definitions."

Comment No. 393: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"Section 72.66 indicates that a peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greater than 0.25g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years can be used to define the earthquake or that a site specific g value can be determined by procedures outlined in 10 CFR 100. Several clarifications are needed for this section as follows:

- "1. Horizontal ground acceleration is specifically stated; therefore, vertical acceleration should be specified or the word horizontal removed.
- "2. The ground motion should be specified as free-field surface motion.
- "3. This section implies that if a site specific g value is determined, an earthquake with a return period of 500 years could be used. This should be clearly stated.

- "4. In the majority of the eastern United States, a 500-year earthquake would result in maximum accelerations less than 0.10g. This is quite a bit smaller than 0.25g which would definitely affect the cost of at least the equipment. This can be handled by the approach suggested in Item 1.
- "5. Specification of just a peak g value is not complete. Additional information should be included concerning ground response spectra and methods of analyses (static and dynamic) or tests for structures, systems, and components. 10 CFR 100, Section VI (a) is an example of what needs to be added. Use of the regulatory guide spectra is applicable for most sites, but some reference or information should be in 10 CFR 72."

Comment No. 394: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"Section 72.66(a) indicates that a peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greater than 0.25g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years can be used to define the earthquake or that a site specific 'g value' can be determined by procedures outlined in 10 CFR 100. We suggest several clarifications that are needed for this section as follows:

- "a. Horizontal ground acceleration is specifically stated; therefore, vertical acceleration should be specified or the word 'horizontal' removed.
- "b. The ground motion should be specified as free-field surface motion.
- "c. This section implies that if a site specific 'g value' is determined, an earthquake with a return period of 500 years could be used. This should be clearly stated. In the majority of the eastern United States, a 500-year earthquake would result in maximum accelerations less than 0.10g. This is quite a bit smaller than 0.25g which would definitely affect the cost of at least the equipment.
- "d. Specification of just a peak 'g value' is not complete. Additional information should be included concerning ground response spectra and methods of analyses (statis and dynamic) or test for structures, systems, and components. 10 CFR 100, Appendix A, Section VI(a) is an example of what needs to be added. Use of the regulatory guide spectra is applicable for most sites, but some reference or information should be in 10 CFR 72."

Comment No. 395: NRC Staff.

"(a) A peak horizontal ground acceleration of 0.25g and vertical ground acceleration of .17g will be applied at ground surface in the free field for the dynamic design of all ISFSI structures. The peak acceleration will be used with the R.G. 1.50 spectral envelope to provide spectra for design. "The ISFS1 design earthquake is considered a faulted condition, as is the SSE for nuclear power plants. Dynamic or equivalent static loads are to be treated in the same manner as for the SSE for nuclear power plants as described in Appendix A. 0.25g is a high value for many areas compared to that which would result from Appendix A procedures. However, it is accommodated in the design of ISFSI structures with a minimal expense compared to an Appendix A investigation as required for nuclear power plants. As an alternative, the applicant has the option of establishing a site specific 'g value' and/or spectra by the procedures of Part 100 of this Chapter. No ISFSI shall be built where ground acceleration will exceed 0.25g with a recurrence interval of 500 years (equivalent to a 90% probability of not being exceeded in 50 years) An ISFSI site which is satisfactory by this criteria will require only the Foundation engineering and geological hazards investigations covered in the following paragraph(b).

"72.66, pp(b) - Insert after 'bedrock', defined as having a shear wave velocity of 3500/sec or greater, . . . last sentence - insert following - For non-bedrock sites, soil structure interaction is to be treated in the same manner as for the SSE in nuclear power plants as described in Appendix A to 10 CFR 100."

Discussion: Section 72.66 has been extensively revised to cover both site investigations and the determination of the ISFSI design earthquake for massive structures. A differentiation is made between the eastern part of the U.S. and the seismically active area west of the Rocky Mountains. For sites which have been evaluated by the criteria and level of investigations required by Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, the ISFSI design earthquake is the SSE. For other sites, a standardized design earthquake of 0.25g may be used in most of the eastern U.S. or a site specific earthquake may be determined and used; for sites west of the Rocky mountains, a site specific design earthquake must be determined.

72.66(c)

Comment No. 396: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The reference to designs other than water basin type requiring a site-specific investigation and analysis appear to be inappropriate and should be eliminated. The seismic characteristics of 72.66 should be applicable to all types of ISFSI's."

Comment No. 397: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"ISFSI designs for dry storage should be evaluated to the same seismic criteria as for water basin-type designs."

Comment No. 398: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This sub-paragraph states that fuel storage facility designs other than the water basin type will require that the proposed sites be valuated on the basis of the site-specific investigation and analysis. This appears to imply that storage facility designs other than the water basin type will require the full site-specific seismic analysis and justification of design seismic criteria that would be required of a reactor or fuel reprocessing plant. The most likely
alternative designs to the water pool storage are those involving direct storage of fuel containers in caissons at near-grade level in the ground, or air-cooled vault storage, neither of which involves consideration of the loss of coolant as a result of seismic damage to a pool structure. It therefore appears that, unless it can be demonstrated that there are other potential effects of seismic disturbances on these types of storage which are not likely to result from a seismic disturbance of a water pool storage, they should be treated on the same basis as water pool storage facilities as far as the seismic requirement is concerned."

Discussion: The referenced subparagraph has been revised. The criteria for seismic and geologic characteristics for those types of spent fuel storage installations which utilize other than massive structures will be determined on a case-by-case basis.

Section 72.67, Criteria for Defining Potential Radiological Consequences

Comment No. 399: North Shore Conlition for Safe Energy. (35)

"In spite of 'quality controls' and Federal regulations, human and mechanical fallibility have resulted in numerous infractions of safety requirements at commercial nuclear facilities, along with 'incidents' and accidents, and there is no reason to believe that this would not be true of ISFSIs. Increased spread of radioactivity to workers and the public means increased contamination of the human genetic pool. Since any amount of ionizing radiation can cause cancer, leukemia and genetic defects, setting 'acceptable' dose limits of radiation exposure on or off an ISFSI site during normal or abnormal operations is meaningless. The use of the phrase 'as low as reasonable achievable' is another instance of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's refusal to take seriously its public mandate for nuclear safety. The so-called benefits of IFSIs accrue only to the licensees and the nuclear industry, while the workers and the public are being asked to sustain the costs of life, health and suffering to this and all future generations."

Discussion: Under normal operating conditions, the storage of aged spent fuel in an ISFSI is not likely to release any significant amount of radionuclides to the environs. Moreover, the siting criteria in Part 72 are intended to ensure that even in the event of an accident at the site there will be no undue risk to the health and safety of the public. Section 72.67 has been revised to address criteria for normal and expected releases of radioactive material and expected direct radiation.

Comment No. 400: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The specification of 'controlled area' and 'neighboring area,' defined in paragraph 72.3(g) and (k), is not entirely clear in paragraph 72.67(a) and (b). If it is the intent that the radii of these areas be calculated from 72.67(a) and (b), then additional guidance will be necessary as to the meaning of 'during normal operations and anticloated occurrences' and 'under accident conditions.' If the issuance of either a Regulatory Guide or a report comparable to TID-14844 on this subject is contemplated, it would be helpful to say so."

Discussion The terms controlled area and neighboring area (now ISFSI-EPZ) have been redefined in Section 72.3. "During normal operations and unusual

occurrences" means as a result of day-to-day operations and incidents that might occur with a frequency of greater than once a year.

Comment No. 401: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"It is not clear why the NRC has chosen to utilize the term 'controlled area' in Part 72 rather than 'restricted area' as used in other parts. It would appear highly desirable to use the traditional term, i.e., 'restricted area.'"

Discussion: The controlled area as defined in Part 72 is based on a whole body dose to any individual of the general public of -

- (a) Less than 25 mrem per year from normal operations, and
- (b) Less than 5 rem from any postulated accident.
- The restricted area as defined in Part 20 is based on -
- (a) A maximum whole body dose to an individual (occupational worker) of 3 rem in any calendar quarter and 5 rem in any calendar year from normal operations,
- (b) A maximum whole body dose to an individual beyond the restricted area boundary (i.e., in an unrestricted area) of 500 mrem in any calendar year from normal operations, and
- (c) Personnel monitoring of each individual entering the restricted area who is likely to receive 1.25 rem in any calendar year.

By these definitions, the restricted areas and unrestricted areas with a potential dose greater than 25 mrem would always be designated within the controlled area of an ISFSI. The scope of a controlled area also includes postulated accident conditions not associated with either a restricted or unrestricted area. Therefore, the designation of a controlled area of an ISFSI does not replace the need for restricted or unrestricted area designations for licensee personnel radiation protection but is an additional clarification of the general public radiation protection needs.

Comments on the Applicability of Part 100 and Appendix I dose criteria were as follows:

Comment No. 402: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"The proposed regulations set radiological siting criterion in Paragraph 72.67(b) which appears to be arbitrary in nature and inconsistent with the LWR radiological criteria set forth in 10 CFR 100. We are of the opinion that the existing radiological siting criteria in 10 CFR 100 should be equally applicable to the ISFSI facilities and we strongly recommend that the setting of any new radiological siting criteria in 10 CFR 100 should be equally applicable to the ISFSI facilities and we strongly recommend that the setting of any new radiological siting criteria in 72.67(b) must be based on clearly defined and sound justification.

"The justification given for the 5 rem requirement is that this will permit an ISFSI to be located on a reactor site without adding substantially to public risk. This justification is inappropriate for the following reasons:

"- Not all ISFSI's will be located on reactor sites. Those that are not should not be subjected to more stringent criteria than LWRs.

"• Even if an ISFSI is located on a reactor site, it is not clear that such a stringent limit is required. The limit applied should be the same as that for the LWR (25 rem), as is the case if a second LWR were to be located on an existing reactor site."

Comment No. 403: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"Page 46319, First Column, Paragraph 72.67(b) - We find the establishment of a more restrictive offsite individual accident dose limit for ISFS installations than contained in 10 CFR 100 to be inconsistent with the supplementary introduction statements regarding the risk of accidents in such facilities relative to risks associated with power reactors. The rationale set forth in the introductory statement, to the effect that such a lower value will provide a satisfactory limit on the incremental risk to the public resulting from locating an ISFSI on an existing reactor site, implies a degree of precision and utilization of risk assessment techniques which does not currently exist. Indeed there are no comparable strictures based on incremental risk placed on the co-location of a number of power reactor units on a single site. We recommend that the ISFSI offsite accident dose limit be made consistent with the 10 CFR 100 limit (i.e., 25 rem in 2 hours). Although the lower limit of 5 rem may well be reasonably achievable in most cases, we find this to be an inadequate basis for regulation."

Comment No. 404: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"The requirements should be consistent with Part 100 for the same reasons."

Comment No. 405: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"Reference should be to Part 50 Appendix I or the requirements should be made consistent. Although the potentia! is much less at this type facility the requirements should be consistent as a rational approach."

Comment No. 406: Connecticut, Department of Environmental Protection. (4)

"We would like to recommend, however, that Section 72.67 be revised downward to at least include the numerical guides that are used to meet the ALARA objectives for Light Water Reactors. A spent fuel storage installation at a reactor site must meet these numerical guides and it seems reasonable to apply them to all storage installations."

Discussion: Due to the short lived radionuclides involved, Part 100 and Appendix I to Part 50 are specifically applicable only to nuclear power plants; these regulations are not applicable to an ISFSI in which aged fuel is stored.

Part 100 siting criteria were developed specifically for power and test reactors of a proven design. The relationship between the reference dose guideline values and the determination of site-related areas in Part 100 was established on the basis of both the magnitude of the consequences and the probability of an accident occurring and the predicted dose being delivered to an individual. The Part 72 dose guidelines for accidents were derived from recommended protective actions for projected doses to populations by the EPA for planning purposes (EPA-520/1-75-001). The ALARA objectives stated in Appendix I to Part 50 were developed on the basis of the technology available for rad waste treatment systems in LWR designs. Such ALARA objectives are not applicable to ISFSI designs for storing aged spent fuel. Part 72 has adoped the EPA limits stated in 40 CFR Part 190 for normal operations of uranium fuel cycle facilities. The EPA has endorsed this action. ALARA design objectives for an ISFSI will be determined on a case-by-case basis.

Comment No. 407: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"The provision to automatically approve siting for accident purposes at an existing reactor site (43 Fed. Reg. 46310, column 1) is totally unacceptable. An accident with exposures of just below 5 rem per person (proposed §72.67(b)) is not insignificant and does materially increase the risk to the public health and safety, particularly at existing reactor sites with high population concentrations like Seabrook, Zion, and Indian Point. Each AFR site should be evaluated on a case-by-case basis with respect to its acceptability."

Comment No. 408: Gilbert/Commonwealth. (44)

"Part 72.67(b) limits the calculated exposure at the outside boundary of the controlled area following a postulated accident to 5 rem after 2 hours. (Note: Exposure should be in Roentgen; dose equivalent in rem.) We believe this proposed limit to be without scientific basis. The supplementary information which accompanied the Federal Register notice indicated that with such a limit, an ISFSI located on a reactor site would then not add substantially to the risk to the public off site, presumably in accordance with proposed General Design Criteria 5, 'Proximity of Sites.' We believe this restriction to be without merit. In the case of ISFSI's located away from other nuclear facilities, there appears to be no basis for the restriction. To limit the hypothetical accident dose to this low level in the case of combined nuclear facilities requires the postulation of coincident initiating failures followed by additional failures in each facility. This has not been done in the case of multiple reactors at a site, nor is it justified in this case. We believe the accident limits of 10 CFR 100 to be more appropriate."

Comment No. 409: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"The criteria for defining potential radiological consequences under accident conditions in section 72.67 establishes a criterion of 5 Rem in two hours at the outside boundary of the controlled area. The regulation is vague as to whether this is a maximum dose, an average exposure potential, or an exposure to the maximum individual or some other measurement. The basis for this criterion must be specifically defined. We also note that a 5 Rem exposure in two hours to an individual is not an insignificant dose. In fact, it is a dose presenting significant risk and should be reduced by at least an order of magnitude."

Comment No. 410: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"Paragraph (b) of section 72.67 specifies an exposure limit of 5 Rem in 2 hours for the controlling design basis accident at the outside boundary of the controlled area. It is not clear whether this exposure is meant to be a whole body exposure or an organ limit or both." Discussion: It is very unlikely that individuals beyond the controlled area of an ISFSI site would receive exposures at a level of 5 rem in the event of an accident. Only if the spent fuel became unshielded could direct radiation exposures reach such a level. Moreover, it is difficult to postulate an accident at a water basin which would result in the instantaneous loss of pool water; there would be time to implement an emergency evacuation plan to ensure that there would be no undue risk to the health and safety of the public. These criteria have been revised and placed in Section 72.68 as requirements for establishing the controlled area. A miniaum distance of 100 meters has been specified for a controlled area. Further discussion of this subject is given in the discussion of major issues in Chapter I.

Comment No. 411: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"The regulation should be clarified to indicate that the '5 Rem in 2 hours' limit applies to the whole body, and additional limits for other body organs should be specified."

Comment No. 412: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"Also, in paragraph 72.67(a) and (b), it is not clear whether the reference is to the dose accumulated over one year or 2 years, respectively, or to the dose commitment accumulated over the same periods. Presumably, the latter is the case, but the intent of the paragraph could be made clearer. This confusion, incidentally, also pervades 10 CFR 100.

"In any event, the word 'exposure' in 72.67(b) should be changed to 'dose,' since rem is a unit of dose, not exposure."

Comment No. 413: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"We recommend that this paragraph be rewritten to something like: '(b) The conservatively calculated radiation dose to any organ of any individual located beyond the boundary of the controlled area for two hours immediately following a postulated accident shall not exceed (blank) rem.' The actual quantitative dose limit should correspond to the protective action guidance of the EPA."

Comment No. 414: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We suggest the phrase should read, 'exceed 5 rem whole body done in 2 hours."

Discussion: Skyshine exposure from exposed spent fuel would be direct gamma radiation causing a whole body dose during the time of exposure. There would be no dose accumulation. Direct radiation would be to the whole body and body organs. Accident dose criteria are more definitively defined in (new) Section 72.68 of the final rule.

The following comments were addressed to the application of 40 CFR Part 190 in Part 72.

Comment No. 415: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Paragraph (a) - Consideration should be given to the possibility of combined dose from multinuclear facilities. We suggest this paragraph be rephrased to be consistent with 40 CFR Part 190."

Comment No. 416: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"The referenced EPA regulation (40 CFR 190.11) also limits the total quantity of radioactivity that may be released to the general environment from the entire uranium fuel cycle. The NRC should either indicate what proration of the EPA limit is applicable to ISFSI or exempt such ISFSI as insignificant contributors."

Comment No. 417: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This paragraph in effect interprets EPA standards in 40 CFR 190.10(a) as being applicable at any individual facility in the uranium fuel cycle. The NRC's interpretation and application of the EPA standard should be explained clearly."

Comment No. 418: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"The establishment of the 25 MREM limit for radiation exposures does not adequately account for possible exposures from other parts of the fuel cycle. The total dose set by EPA for any individual is 25 MREM/year from the nuclear fuel cycle. Some evaluation of other potential exposures for the individuals living near an AFR must be made to assure that total fuel cycle exposures are no more than 25 MREM."

Comment No. 419: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

an annual dose equivalent from this facility of 25 mrem total body, 75 mrem thyroid, and 25 mrem to other organs. Yet, in the 'Supplementary Information' the ISFSI is considered as part of the uranium fuel cycle.

"This appears to be a discrepancy in annual dose equivalent limits and should be clarified."

Comment No. 420: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (51)

"Our only comment of substance concerns your requirement that such independent storage facilities provide radiation protection consistent with this Agency's public health protection standards for the Uranium Fuel Cycle (40 CFR 190). We generally support your use of these requirements in this fashion. Your use of these standards in combination with the other requirements stated in the proposed rule will, we believe, provide adequate public health protection for such facilities."

Discussion: In general, this subparagraph states that the annual dose commitment from the operation of an ISFSI shall not exceed EPA regulations for the uranium fuel cycle. Other nuclear facilities in the region will have to be considered with respect to these criteria. However, an ISFSI is not likely to contribute significantly to the radiation exposure or dose commitment of the public. The specific criteria given in Section 72.67(a) have been revised and are now in Section 72.68.

Comment No. 421: New York Energy Office. (70)

"Consideration should be given to reducing the proposed annual dose limit criteria. A reduction of the proposed limit would be in accordance with the 'as low as reasonably achievable' concept defined in 10 CFR 20. Spent fuel storage pool experience to date appears to indicate that a lower limit would not be restrictive to the normal operation of the facility."

Discussion: The "as low as is reasonably achievable" requirement of 10 CFR Part 20 still applies to the design and operations of an ISFSI.

Comment No. 422: F. Anderson. (17)

"An alternative approach to the proposed Part 72 accident dose limit of 5 rem in 2 hours is the use of a minimum distance limit to the nearest boundary of the controlled area. The controlling accident, i.e., largest radiological consequences, resulting from a design basis event would be evaluated by a conservative but realistic analysis of the potential exposure of an individual at this minimum distance. If the realistically calculated exposure from the controlling accident exceeded the annual dose limits within two hours, an increased controlled area distance would be required. The stated dose criteria would be applied to any potential accident at ISFSI which is considered credible, can be mechanistically described and can be realistically evaluated.

"Comments regarding the site criteria stated in Subpart E of the proposed Part 72 should address the possible alternative approach as well as the stated approach for ISFSI accident evaluations."

Discussion: A minimum site boundary distance of 100 meters has been added in the revision of this section, however, the criterion limiting public exposure to less than 5 rem has been retained.

Comment No. 423: F. Anderson. (17)

The following change in wording was suggested:

"'(a) During normal operations . . . shall not exceed 25 mRem . . ., 75 MRem . . ., and 25 MRem to any other organ of any member of the public located . . . as a result of exposures to planned . . . materials, randon and its daughters excepted, to the general environment and to radiation from the ISFSI operations.* Unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account in the evaluation of planned discharges of radioactive materials."

Discussion: This section was rewritten as suggested.

Section 72.XX, Transportation

Comment No. 424: Pennsylvania Bureau of Radiological Health. (36)

"The regulations do not appear to directly address the problem of spent fuel transportation which would be associated with an ISFSI. We recognize that this area has been extensively addressed in other NRC generic proceedings, however,

there may be interfacing aspects which need to be further considered in these regulations. Specific examples might include siting considerations which take into account transportation corridors and restraints, or further consideration of transportation accidents using site specific parameters."

Comment No. 425: American Nuclear Society (ANS2.19). (41)

"The 'Supplementary Information' states that the imposition of this site restriction (of 0.25g with a recurrence interval of 500 years) does raise the possibility that a small amount of additional transportation of spent fuel might be necessary to reach an acceptable ISFSI site from a few reactors in the U.S. Some state and local regulations may not permit the transportation of radioactive material across state borders. This should be recognized when siting an ISFSI which is to be used by several utilities."

Comment No. 426: Connecticut, Power Facility Evaluation Council. (43)

"We suggest an additional criterion to add to Subpart 4 - Siting Criteria. In choosing sites for ISFSI, consideration should be given to transportation corridors involved in moving spent fuel from present locations to the proposed sites. The regulations should define criteria for locating ISFSI with minimum transportation."

Comment No. 427: New York Energy Office. (70)

"Potential effects resulting from the increased handling and transportation of spent fuel to an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation should be considered in the licensing process."

Discussion: In response to these comments a new section 72.70, Spent Fuel Transportation, has been added to the rule.

Subpart F--General Design Criteria

Section 72.71, General Design Criteria

General Comments

Comment No. 428: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"In general, the General Design Criteria should be more specific to remove from dispute the nature of the design required."

Discussion: This is a frequent comment on NRC regulations. In fact, some people would like NRC to issue approved designs. The NRC position is that it should issue general design criteria and approve specific designs which meet such criteria as these are presented. In addition, the NRC encourages the development of standard designs wherever such standardization would be beneficial. Comment No. 429: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"Subpart E and Subpart F - In the Preamble to the proposed regulations, the NRC recognizes that the potential risk of an accident affecting the health and safety of the public associated with storage of aged spent fuel is small due to the inherent inert nature of aged spent fuel and that therefore, aged spent fuel does not need 'a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles' and 'the emergency water supply system need not be permanently installed, provided it is available within the time span needed.' However, the minimal risk associated with the storage of spent nuclear fuel is not adequately reflected in the body of the regulations, and in particular, Subpart E and Subpart F of the regulation should be modified to specifically incorporate this concept. This is essential to avoid unnecessary delays in the licensing of AFR storage installations and uncertaincies in the construction and financing of such facilities."

Discussion: The basic thrust of Part 72 is that the safety of spent fuel storage is provided by the integrity of the storage structure. Little can happen to aged spent fuel stored under water provided that there is no significant loss of water. Dry storage facilities would also place primary reliance on the integrity of the structures involved.

However, there are other design conditions ν' h must be met to ensure safe operation and minimize the environmental in c of ISFSI operations. Sections of this subpart have been revised to bette define the applicability of the stated general design criteria.

Section 72.71(2), Protection Against Environmental Conditions and Natural Phenomena and the Design Earthquake

A number of commenters apparently were misled by the wording in Section 72.66 and the relationship between the use of a 500 year earthquake acceleration value of 0.25g to determine site suitability and the use of the same value of 0.25g as a minimum design value. Their comments are:

Comment No. 430: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.71(2)(ii) Delete parenthetical expression because it conflicts with paragraph 72.66(a). In that paragraph you allow the applicant an option."

Comment No. 431: American Nuclear Society (ANS2.19). (41)

"The proposed rules (72.66,67) require that all ISFSI be designed for 0.25g peak horizontal ground acceleration and be sited only in places where the 500-year earthquake acceleration is less than 0.25g. According to the map prepared by Aigermissen and Perkins, the 500-year earthquake acceleration is less than 0.20g in three-fourths of the continental U.S. It may not be economical to design for 0.25g (even considering the reduced licensing effort) in places where the 500-year earthquake acceleration may be only 0.05g. Also, the ISFSI located near nuclear power plants in most midwest and Eastern states, the design earthquake of 0.25g for the ISFSI - a relatively low risk facility - would exceed the SSE for the nuclear power plant. This situation is likely to

raise questions in the mind of the public as to the safety of the nuclear power plant. We recommend: the 500-year earthquake acceleration should be selected for the design of ISFSI."

Comment No. 432: Gilbert/Commonwealth. (44)

"Finally, there is a discrepancy between the General Design Criteria provided in 10 CFR 72.71 and the seismic characterisitcs discussed in 10 CFR 72.66 in relation to the peak horizontal ground acceleration of 0.25g. Section 72.66 provides the option of using the 0.25g/500 year recurrence earthquake, or of establishing a site specific g value in accordance with 10 CFR 100. However, Part 72.71(2)(ii) mandates the use of the 0.25g value by stating: '... shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g). ...' Should an applicant (choose to) qualify the facility seismic design basis according to a 10 CFR 100 investigation at a value below 0.25g, then the imposition of the 0.25g value is unwarranted and unduly restrictive. Wr suggest the deletion of the portion of 10 CFR 72.71(2)(ii) quoted above in parenthesis."

Comment No. 433: General Electric Company. (47)

"(2)(ii) This Section states criteria for protection against the effects of natural phenomena. The earthquake horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g is reiterated here. The comments on $\S72.66$ (above apply here, as well."

Comment No. 434: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This sub-paragraph, and in particular sub-sub-paragraphs (A) and (B) appear to be in direct conflict with the criteria set forth in para graph 72.66, and with the apparent intent of the Statement of Considerations both of which imply that 'costly seimic site investigations, analyses, and review' are not required if the applicant demonstrates that his facility will meet the 0.25g requirement. This discrepancy should be clarified, preferably by deleting sub-sub-paragraphs (A) and (B) of 72.71(2) with their introductory sentence beginning 'The design basis for these structures, systems and components shall reflect . . . '"

Comment No. 435: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"This section should permit the use of a site specific ground motion acceleration ('g' value) as allowed in Paragraph 72.66."

Comment No. 436: R. Neil. (62)

"Section 72.71(2)(ii) requires that a ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g be a design basis. This conflicts with 72.66(a) which gives the option of using a site specific acceleration. The applicant should have the option of using the same design basis earthquake as an already approved reactor at the same site without additional study or regulatory review.

Comment No. 437: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The design requirement to withstand earthquake horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25G should be required only for those installations sited on the basis of 72.66 without a seismic analysis of the site. For those sites where a determination is made that a g value lower or higher than 0.25g is applicable, the determined g value may be used as the design requirement."

Comment No. 438: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"Reference paragraph 72.66 instead of the parenthetical phrase stating seismic accelerations of at least 0.25g. Paragraph 72.66 allows an exception."

Comment No. 439: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"This statement appears to be inconsistent with Section 72.66(b) in that '(with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g)' does not allow for the possibility of using a lower site specific earthquake even if justified by adequate supporting data."

Discussion: Section 72.66 has been broadened to cover both the geological/ seismological investigations required and the determination of the design earthquake.

A number of commenters took exception to the use of a design earthquake value of 0.25g particularly for an ISFSI which is located at the site of a power plant which was designed for a lower (SSE) value. These are:

Comment No. 440: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"As stated in supplementary information, the ISFSI poses a small potential risk due to the relatively inert nature of aged spent fuel and the simple static nature of an ISFSI makes seismic risk less serious than it is for a reactor, therefore, the severe seismic requirements of at least 0.25g are inconsistent in the Subpart F 72.71(2)(ii)."

Comment No. 441: General Electric Company. (47)

"As further illustration of the above, we are concerned that the seismic design basis of 0.25g is overly conservative for this application. A recent ACRS recommendation indicated that a J.2g acceleration was an adequate design basis for power plants in the eastern United States. This value of 0.2g is also consistent with the value in the latest version of the Uniform Building Code. We recommend that the design basis be reduced to 0.2g or that the regulation provide for a site specific design basis of less than 0.2g based on site investigation."

Comment No. 442: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"It would appear that the NRC should develop additional background justification for the selection of the 0.25g seismic criterion. If, indeed, 0.25g lies below the structural seismic criterion at which substantial cost penalties begin to be incurred to meet increased acceleration values, then that thesis should be developed and supported with authoritative cost data."

Comment No. 443: Sargent and Lundy Engineers. (73)

"The horizontal ground acceleration of at least 0.25g is overly conservative for a low risk facility. For an ISFSI located near nuclear power plants in most midwest and Eastern states, the design earthquake of 0.25g would exceed the SSE for the nuclear power plants. This situation may raise undue questions in the mind of the public as to the safety of the nuclear power plant. We recomment: the 500 year earthquake acceleration should be selected for the design of ISFSI."

Another group of commenters recommended that an ISFSI be designed for a site specific g value. These are:

Comment No. 444: Nebraska Department of Environmental Control. (3)

"The seismic requirements should include the option of construction to meet the 0.25g acceleration or of performing the seismic analysis to justify a lower acceleration. The design of the basin to meet 0.25g is primarily a matter of additional concrete and construction material. However, the auxiliary systems designs become much more involved for increased seismic acceleration. If 0.25g is required and a facility is located at the site of an operating reactor design to 0.15g, the lack of logic is obvious. Also, such location would obviate the possible use of existing rad waste systems in the existing nuclear facility for processing the new storage facility liquids."

Comment No. 445: T. C. Buschbach. (6)

"The psychology of requiring an ISFSI to be designed to withstand 0.25g acceleration becomes bothersome when the ISFSI is to be located near the site of a nuclear power plant that was constructed to withstand 0.15g acceleration. Whether the reasons be psychological or economic, there should be a clear option of performing a site specific seismic investigation and of negotiating a design value of less than 0.25g."

Comment No. 446: American Nuclear Society (ANS2.19). (41)

"Since this document would be adopted as a Federal Law, it would appear that requiring an ISFSI to be designed for the ground acceleration of 0.25g or greater may be too restrictive and may haunt us in the long run. It is suggested the document contain wording to permit the designer to use a lower or higher g value if supporting data are provided."

Comment No. 447: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"An exclusion clause should permit design of the ISFSI's to a lower seismic acceleration provided sufficient evidence is presented to support the lower seismic acceleration."

Discussion: Section 72.66 has been extensively revised to cover both site investigations and the determination of the ISFSI design earthquake for massive structures. A differentiation is made between the eastern part of the U.S. and the seismically active areas west of the Rocky Mountains. For sites which have been evaluated by the criteria and level of investigations required by Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, the ISFSI design earthquake is the SSE. For other sites, a standardized design earthquake of 0.25 g may be used in most of the eastern U.S. or a site specific earthquake may be determined and used; for sites west of the Rocky mountains, a site specific design earthquake must be determined.

Comment No. 448: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"The proposed rule notes that aged fuel 'need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornados, or tornado missiles.' Again we must note that the age of the spent fuel per se is not an adequate means of characterizing either design or operating parameters. We take exception to the statement that a high degree of protection of spent fuel is not required, especially as a regulatory position. We also find the proposal that facility cooling systems and emergency water supply systems may not be capable of withstanding natural phenomenon to be an improper and inadequate regulatory position. The Commission's contention that corrective action can be taken within an adequate period of time is not defensible. There is no way to assure that proper personnel, parts, and radiological conditions will cooperate to assure containment and acceptable occupational exposures. In addition the Commission assumes here that the phenomenon affecting the plant does not similarly affect the surrounding geograph ical area which may be relied upon to provide corrective services."

Comment No. 449: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"It is not apparent why aged spent fuel need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles. The facility should provide enough protection from these natural events to preclude possible criticalities and the rupture of the basin."

Discussion: The referenced statement was somewhat misleading. Spent fuel does require a high degree of protection--but it is the protection provided inherently by the structure in which the fuel is stored. In the case of water basins, this is the pool structure and the storage racks. The point that should have been made is that the safety of spent fuel in storage is not dependent on auxilliary or service systems which could be damaged by weather extremes. The age of spent fuel is a key factor in the regulatory requirements for spent fuel storage. If freshly discharged fuel is ruptured by something like a tornado missile, this could cause a release of short-lived isotopes of iodine and xenon. Hence fresh fuel must be protected from tornad, missiles. However, the rupture of greater than one year aged spent would cause the release of only ⁸⁵Kr and very small amounts of ¹²⁹I which have a very low dose effect. Likewise, some of the facilities such as the control room at a nuclear power plant are essential to the control of the plant under accident conditions, hence must be protected from things like tornado missiles. No similar requirement exists for an ISFSI.

Freshly discharged fuel also generates enough heat due to the decay of shortlived radionuclides that it requires a reliable cooling system. After a year's decay the heat generation rate is low enough to allow evaporative cooling of the spent fuel pools, if necessary. There must be a reliable source of makeup water but the delivery system to the pool need not be a hardened facility. An earthquake is the only type of natural phenomena which could cause a gross rupture of the basin or a criticality which would require a gross distortion of the spent fuel storage racks. Tornadoes and tornado-generated missiles might cause damage to ISFSI buildings but not to the pool structures. The following seven comments addressed the subject of tornado-generated missiles.

Comment No. 450: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"It is stated in the Supplementary Information, 'Aged spent fuel, having lost the short-lived radionuclides by decay, need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles.'

- "1. The rationale for this statement should be given in the text, included in an appendix, or referenced to a supporting document.
- "2. Section 72.71, General Design Criteria, Overall Requirements, section (2)(ii) states, 'Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g), tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lightning, hurricanes, floods, tsunami, and seichs without impairing their capability to perform safety functions.'

"The statement from the Supplementary Information lumped all extreme weather events together and implies that consideration for these events is not critical to the design; however, the requirements in the general design criteria specifically name extreme weather events to be considered in the design, except tornado generated missiles. This ambiguity needs to be resolved."

Comment No. 451: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Aged fuel - We agree with the concept that 'aged fuel . . . need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado-generated missiles,' and 'the cooling system need not be designed to withstand the extremes of natural phenomena'; provided there is an assured source of makeup water and some means of getting it to the storage pool if needed. We suggest the wording of paragraph 72.62 and 72.71(2) of the regulation be modified to recognize the minimal risk associated with the storage of aged fuel and to be consistent with the intent expressed in Supplementary Information statement. Here we see a discrepancy between the intent as expressed in the 'Supplementary Information' and the regulation which calls for protection against tornadoes. A draft regulation guide (3.24.3 - 5/2/78) goes on to say that the ISFSI should be designed to withstand the efforts of the Design Basis Tornado (DBT) defined according to R.G. 1.76.

"The ANS Working Groups 2.19 and 57.7 have concluded based on the radiological risk study, that an ISFSI need not be designed to resist the effects of tornadoes.

"We recommend that the requirement regarding tornadoes be deleted."

Comment No. 452: Department of Energy. (42)

"(p. 46309, right, last paragraph) - It is stated in this paragraph that 'Aged spent fuel . . . need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles.' However, General Design Criterion (2)(ii) (p. 46319) states 'Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of . . . tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lightning, hurricanes, floods, tsunamis and seiches without impairing their capability to perform safety functions.' This apparent discrepancy should be resolved and the General Design Criteria put in proper perspective."

Comment No. 453: Duke Power Company. (60)

"There appears to be conflict between 72.71 Overall Requirements 2(ii) and the last paragraph in the right column on page 46309 for design requirements for tornado protection."

Comment No. 454: Stone and Webster Engineering Corporation. (69)

"Paragraph 72.71(2)(ii) excludes tornado missiles as a design basis. However, Draft Regulatory Guide 3.24.3 (revised September 1, 1978) discusses tornado missile analyses. This is an inconsistency. Therefore, the Regulatory Guide should be revised to be consistent with the design bases requirements of Part 72."

Comment No. 455: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"The statement from the Supplementary Information lumped all extreme weather events together and implies that consideration for these events is not critical to the design; however, the requirements in the general design criteria specifically name extreme weather events to be considered in the design, except tornado generated missiles. This amoiguity needs to be resolved."

Comment No. 456: Sargent and Lundy Engineers. (73)

"Sargent and Lundy believes that: The design requirements for tornadoes be deleted. The ANS Working Groups 2.19 and 57.7 have concluded, based on the radiological risk study [Reference 1], that ISFSI need not be designed to resist the effects of tornadoes."

Discussion: The release of gap activity from stored aged fuel due to damage from tornado missiles does not represent a significant hazard. Hence, there is no requirement for missile protection. However, it is considered necessary to preclude a gross collapse of buildings and massive overhead equipment into a spent fuel storage area. Building side and roof panels may be allowed to blow off but the building structural members must be designed to resist high wind loadings and tornado stresses.

Comment No. 457: H. Ashar. (16)

"It appears that we want applicants to design structures, systems, and components for a horizontal ground motion acceleration >0.25g (sky is the limit).

"Philosophically, if we have determined that ISFSI can be designed for an earthquake of 500 year recurrence interval, it is conceivable that we would accept the same recurrence interval for other natural phenomena such as tornadoes, floods and seiches. In that case it is not understandable why the safety related structures, systems, and components should not be designed for corresponding tornado missiles."

Comment No. 458: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"The level of natural phenomena to be used as acceptable design bases should be made more explicit. Two methods appear satisfactory. Preferably, these requirements should be specified on the basis of an acceptable recurrence interval for the events in order to account for regionally varying phenomena. For example, a 500-year tornado wind might be specified. Alternately, plant design and review standardization could be further advanced by requiring specific design basis values (e.g. a 200 mph tornado wind) at the expense of overdesign for some phenomena in some regions."

Discussion: Using a probability basis for other natural phenomena in addition to earthquakes was considered in the drafting of Part 72, but was found to be impractical. There is little choice but to use site-specific deterministic methods for defining the natural phenomena which must be accommodated in a specific ISFSI design. When a frequency or probabilistic analysis of historical data is used to estimate very low probability events, there is generally too much uncertainty to make the estimate useful to design purposes.

72.71(2)(ii)(B)

Comment No. 459: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The use of the word "appropriate" could use clarification. It is assumed that it is not necessary to look at all possible combinations of man-caused and natural phenomena type accidents, but only combinations where one accident can directly lead to the other. If this is so, it should be clearly stated."

Comment No. 460: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"The phrase 'appropriate combinations' cannot be defined in realistic terms. We suggest deletion of (B)."

Discussion: The requirement is to evaluate those events or combinations of events which could lead to or cause an accident condition.

72.71(2)(iii), Determining the intensity of natural phenomena.

Comment No. 461: Exxon Nuclear Company, Inc. (22)

"The natural phenomena for which this capability is required should be listed; presumably it is only earthquake."

Comment No. 462: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"This requirement needs to be clarified. We assume the intent is to require measuring devices such as accelerometers, wind and rain gauges."

Comment No. 463: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Clarify the purpose of specifying in the General Design Criteria that the licensee provide the capability for determining intensity of natural phenomena for comparison with design cases. Is a seismograph station and a

tornado velocity and pressure measuring station required? Are these to be operated through the lifetime of the ISFSI?"

Comment No. 464: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"If this proposed requirement is meant to require seismic motion monitors, it should so state. As written, the requirement could be interpreted to require 'capability for determining the intensity' of 'lightning' or 'tornado winds.'"

Comment No. 465: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"This section should be more specific as to which natural phenomena should be measured. Lightning, as listed above, is a natural phenomenon, but it would be inappropriate to be required to determine its intensity."

Discussion: This requirement is site-specific; in an area subject to high winds, wind velocities might be of interest; in an area of potential seismic activity, a seismograph might be needed. Not all types of instruments would necessarily be needed at all sites.

72.71(2)(iv), Protection of Acquifers.

Comment No. 466: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"Requirement (2)(iv) provides for the protection of an aquifer, but it should also provide for the protection of surface waters adjacent to the site from radioactive materials."

Comment No. 467: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"The potential for the transport of radioactive materials to man can be reduced by design. It cannot, however, be completely precluded. The paragraph should be reworded to read: 'measures must be taken to reduce the potential for transport to radioactive materials to man and the environs through this pathway.'"

Comment No. 468: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"Under no circumstances should an ISFSI be located over or near an aquifer."

Comment No. 469: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"The proposed requirement that 'if an ISFSI is located over an aquifer, measures must be taken to preclude the transport of radioactive materials to man and the environs through this potential pathway' is an overstatement of the potential hazard involved. No such specific requirement is highlighted for a nuclear reactor or other nuclear fuel cycle facility. An ISFSI would have pool water contamination of about 10⁻³ uCI/ml, not much of a hazard. If the proposed requirement is meant to preclude an ISFSI near a major underground water resource, a Reg Guide specifying such prohibited areas would expedite siting and review." Comment No. 470: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"Almost all sites will be over an aquifer of sorts and to preclude the potential for transport of radioactive materials through this medium is virtually impossible. As the flow of an aquifer is normally very slow, means are available to restrict or limit the movement outside the site borders. We suggest a rewording to limit the transporting within present offsite requirements."

Comment No. 471: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section requires 'measures' to be taken if an ISFSI is located over an aquifer. There is need to define further the juxtaposition limits (being all areas on Earth are located 'over an aquifer'); the permissible release limits, and the 'measures' impled (see also comments on §72.33)."

Comment No. 472: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"Quality Standard 2(iv) pertaining to an ISFSI location 'over an aquifer' is ambiguous and redundant in light of the requirement in 2(i). In view of the limited potential releases of radioactive materials and the very small likelihood of its transport to t. • biosphere via a groundwater pathway, and in the absence of any definition of what constitutes an 'aquifer,' this requirement is unduly restrictive and unnecessary and should be eliminated from the proposed rule."

(mment No. 473: Yankee Atomic Electric Company. (55)

"We believe that this paragraph needs further clarification. A definition of aquifer to which this section will apply would be helpful. We believe that the word 'preclude' should be replaced by 'limit' and that the section should conclude with a phrase such as '. . . if analysis indicates that there exists a mechanism by which radionuclides could reach the aquifer.'"

Comment No. 474: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"We recommend the word 'reasonably' be inserted between the words 'to' and 'preclude.'"

Discussion: This requirement has been reworded "...if the ISFSI is located over an aquifer which is a major water resource, measures shall be taken to preclude the transport of radioative materials to the environment...."

Section 72.71(3), Protection Against Fires and Explosions

Comment No. 475: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.71 Overall Requirements 3 - Would suggest that 'credible' be inserted between 'under fire' (5th line) for clarification. Also what type explosion was projected? Is ion exchange resin the only one to be considered? What was intended?"

Comment No. 476: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Paragraph (3) - Protection against fires and explosions - The requirement that 'structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed and located so as to continue to perform their safety function effectively under fire and explosion exposure conditions' is excessive, especially if the systems or components are in the immediate area of the fire. The wording contained in GDC 3 of 10 CFR 50, Appendix A, would be more appropriate. It is recommended that the wording in the proposed regulation be changed to read: Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed and located to minimize, consistent with other safety requirements, the probability and effect of fires and explosions.'"

Comment No. 477: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Explain what is meant by explosions detection, alarm and suppression systems."

Comment No. 478: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"This proposed requirement is almost identical to the requirement of 10 CFR 50, Appendix A, Criterion 3 and, therefore, greatly overstates the hazard potential involved in a fire at an ISFSI. At the ISFSI the fuel will be either under water while in storage or within a shipping cask designed to withstand fire accidents. Difficulties with this (and other) proposed requirement arise due to the non-quantified definition (proposed 72.3(s)) of 'important to safety.' Until the NRC provides a quantifiable decision criteria for establishing what structures, systems and components are 'important to safety,' regulatory ambiguities will abound."

Comment No. 479: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"What kind of explosions are contemplated by this requirement? There appear to be no systems in the facility which might be subject to possible explosion hazard from internal sources. If this requirement is intended to refer to protection against a type of sabotage, the boundary limits of an explosion against which the portection must be required should be stated. (This would appear to be a case of a requirement having been lifted from a different regulation, without consideration of the applicability of the detailed requirement to the fuel storage facility.)"

Comment No. 480: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"Subparagraph 72.71(3) requires that 'Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed and located so as to continue to perform their safety functions effectively under fire and explosion exposure conditions.' This design criterion as written is unnecessarily over-stringent and is above and beyond what is required for LWR facilities (re.10 CFR 50, Appendix A, GDC No. 3 and Regulatory Guide 1.120, Regulatory Position C.1.d.(1)), as it implies that other non-Fire-related plant accidents be considered coincident with fires and explosions.

"Accordingly, we recommend that the foregoing sentence in the proposed 72.71(3) be replaced with the LWR requirement defined in 10 CFR 50, Appendix A, GDC No. 3,

which states: 'Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed and located to minimize, consistent with other safety requirements, the probability and effect of fires and explosions.'"

Comment No. 481: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"Fire may be one of the most serious hazards for an AFR because the fire becomes the mechanism for an alteration in and dispersal of the nuclear material. The provisions of proposed Design Criteria (3) do not recognize this and include vague generalities and numerous loopholes. For instance, noncombustibles and heat-resistant materials are only required to be used where practical. There is no basis to dilute safety in the name of economy. The Union of Concerned Scientists petition on fire protection systems provides ample support for the need for careful standards for fire protection and those comments are incorporated here 'y reference."

Comment No. 482: Stone and Webster Engineering Corporation. (69)

"'Protection against fires and explosions' (third sentence) implies that explosion detection, alarm, and suppression systems are provided. We suggest deletion of the words 'Explosion and' from the beginning of this sentence."

Discussion: Fires could occur in electrical systems and collected combustible low-level wastes. Their dispersal must be avoided.

Spent fuel stored under water or even in the types of dry storage with which we are now familiar is not subject to damage by fires or explosions (other than those caused by a deliberate act of sabotage) and hence is not a major concern.

An ISFSI, or at least parts thereof, is not necessarily manned on a continuous basis as it is a static facility in which manning is required only during receiving, shipping and periodic maintenance and surveillance activities. Hence, there is a need for fire detection equipment, and at least in some areas, depending upon its design, fire suppression equipment. Its requirements are not necessarily comparable to those of a power plant.

Section 72.71(4), Sharing of Structures, Systems and Components

Comment No. 483: F. D. Anderson. (17)

"In Paragraph (4) change to read: 'Structures . . . will not impair the capability to operate the ISFSI safety or the capbility to return and maintain the ISFSI in a safe condition following a design basis event."

Comment No. 484: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The definition of ISFSI seems to preclude sharing facilities with another facility, while General Design Criteria 4 (§72.71) would seem to permit sharing under certain circumstances. Sharing should be permitted."

Discussion: The limitations on the sharing of facilities is strictly from a safety standpoint. The sharing of facilities is allowable (and may be desirable) provided such sharing does not jeopardize the safety of any of the facilities shared

Section 72. (5), Proximity of Sites

Comment No. 485. F. D. Anderson. (17)

"In Paragraph (5) change to read. An ISFSI . . . nuclear operations shall be designed to ensure that . . . not result in undue risk to the public health and safety. The ISFSI operations will not contribute significantly to the potential cumulative risk of the combined operations."

Comment No. 486: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"This proposed requirement is identical to that specified for a nuclear power plant. Unlike nuclear power plants, the proximity of an ISFSI to another nuclear facility presents no significant incremental potential hazard and may well have some risk reduction due to proximity. The issue of combined radiological effect of discharge was considered in the development of EPA's 40 CFR 190. If the NRC wants a consideration beyond the EPA regulation, they should quantify 'significant risk.'"

Comment No. 487: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"As in our comments above on offsite accident dose limits, the strictures placed on co-location of an ISFSI with other nuclear facilities to limit incremental risk is not consistent with the Commission's siting policy with regard to power reactors. If it is accepted that the risk associated with an ISFSI is considerably less than the risk associated with a power reactor, it must be accepted that the incremental risk associated with co-locating an ISFSI with a power reactor cannot increase overall risk significantly. The current level of uncertainty in risk assessment techniques does not permit quantification of risk of the degree that would be required to show compliance with the requirements of item (5) of the proposed General Design Criteria. We therefore recommend its deletion."

Comment No. 488: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"Does this relate to one owner? If not this would be outside the control of the licensee."

Discussion: Although an ISFSI limited to the storage of aged fuel is considered a low risk operation, if located near another nuclear facility, the location, design and operations of the ISFSI must not be allowed to impact on the safety of other nuclear facilities involved.

Section 72.71(7), Emergency Capability

Comment No. 489: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Emergency capability - We suggest for clarity the second sentence be changed to read 'The design shall ensure capability of maintaining the safety functions during an accident, as necessary, of onsite facilities " Comment No. 490: U.S. Department of Energ. (42)

"Explain how the designer can ensure 'capability for use, as necessary, of . . . offsite facilties and services such as hospitals, fire and police departments, ambulance service, and other emergency agencies."

Discussion: This requirement was included to ensure that access doors, corridors, etc., would be designed to allow the passage of a stretcher, for example, and that access to the facility gurb as gates and roadways, would be designed to allow access of emergency eurist, for example, a fire engine.

Section 72.71(8), Confinement, Barrier ems

72.71(8)(i)

Comment No. 491: American Nuclear Societ (1.7). (28)

"Would suggest adding 'mechanical' between gross ruptures. Isn't this what we want to protect them from?"

Comment No. 492: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash., D.C. (29)

"Provides for the protection of fuel cladding and gross ruptures but does not specify if physical barriers or procedures are required nor does it establish a level of adequacy."

Comment No. 493: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.71(8) - The proposed requirement that 'fuel cladding shall be protect ' against degradation and gross ruptures' is too broad and vague. It could be interpreted to require canning of fuel assemblies. Cladding obviously undergoes some 'degradation' during long-term storage, but there is lots of empirical evidence that such 'degradation' is not deleterious to health and safety. We reach this conclusion based upon our experience, statements by the NRC (Page S-3 of Reference b) and DOE (Page 17.1 of Reference a) and a review of the other references cited in these comments. We know of no 'gross ruptures' of light water commercial power reactor fuel occurring after the fuel has been stored for one year. This requirement should be deleted."

Comment No. 494: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The criterion requires protecting the fuel cladding against degradation and gross ruptures, but gives no indication of what, if any mechanisms are contemplated."

Comment No. 495: Westinghouse Electric Corporation. (61)

"Subparagraph 72.71(8)(i) on design requirement for 'Confinement barriers and systems' states that 'The fuel cladding shall be protected against degradation and gross ruptures.' We recommend that this provision be rewritten as: 'The fuel cladding shall be protected against gross ruptures including proper consideration for minimizing long-term degradation of the cladding.'" Comment No. 496: Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company. (67)

"To prevent degradation, some of the failed fuel might be containerized. A section should be included discussing the storage of spent fuel in cannisters. If fuel is stored in containers then it should be required that only the integrity of the container be maintained against all postulated events."

Comment No. 497: Allied Chemical Company (Idaho). (71)

"The word 'significant' should be inserted prior to degradation in the first sentence. It would be impossible to present enough evidence that no degradation could occur during storage."

Comment No. 498: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"A degradation of cladding should be defined in Section 72.3 as that which would cause the offsite accident dose limits to be exceeded.

"Tornado missile impact could cause what might be considered as 'gross ruptures' and 'cladding degradation'; however, accident analyses may show the doses to be acceptable. Therefore, we suggest this item should be rewritten to allow clad failures of this type and magnitude, if the exposures are within the limits."

Discussion: The primary confinement barrier of spent fuel in storage is the cladding. As one of the general design criteria, it is necessary that an ISFSI be designed to provide a storage environment and handling equipment which will preserve cladding integrity. Specifically how this is accomplished is a subject of the detailed design of the installation.

This requirement is not directed toward the canning of fuel assemblies, although for operating considerations, some plants may can failed fuel. Also, this requirement is not directed toward accident conditions such as protection from ruptures due to tornado missiles. It is directed toward the basic design of the facility.

72.71(8)(ii)

Comment No. 499: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Because of the inert nature of an ISFSI, a single failure of a system should be explicitly limited to a single active failure. (This comment also applies to paragraph (11), subparagraph (i).) We also suggest deletion of the sentence starting with 'Drains, ...,' as the previous sentence is sufficiently inclusive."

Comment No. 500: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"What pool water level would be considered to be a safe limit? This limit probably should be sufficient shielding. However, for doses to be as low as reasonably achievable would mean a study is required of the maximum shielding water depth that could be reasonably achieved, rather than just a depth that results in acceptably low doses." Comment No. 501: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"Since temporary loss of water will not cause criticality why is it necessary to design to maintain a 'safe' pool water level?"

Discussion: A design provision to prevent inadvertant draining of water below what has been established as the safe level for a specific facility is considered good engineering practice. The safe limit is a function of specific facility design but is normally in the order of about eight feet above the highest point of the spent fuel during either transfer or storage.

The loss of water below a minimum depth will not cause a criticality, but could significantly affect background radiation levels in occupied areas and have an impact on operation and surveillance activities.

Comment No. 502: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"It should not be a requirement to have water level monitoring equipment alarm 'both locally and in a continuously manned location,' if the local area is continuously manned, the licensee may choose to have a second alarm location but this should be his choice. Remove the words 'both locally and' replace with 'locally if not continuously manned or in . . . '"

Comment No. 503: Allied General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section 72.71(8)(ii) requires, by its final sentence, monitoring both locally and in a continuously manned location. It is suggested that this be modified to clarify that, if the local station is continuously manned, a second alarm station is optional rather than required."

Comment No. 504: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Because there is no credible mechanism for dropping water level rapidly enough to require prompt local action, and because local alarms should be reserved for events that require prompt local action (e.g., high air activity, criticality without shielding), this section should be changed to delete the local water level alarm requirement. It is suggested that the water level alarm be retained only at the continuously manned location."

Discussion: The requirement for water level monitoring is that a low level alarm be in a continuously manned location. The wording has been changed accordingly.

72.71(8)(iii)

Comment No. 505: F. D. Anderson. (17)

"(change) Paragraph (18)(iii) to read: 'with appropriate confinement, vertilation and filtration systems.'"

Comment No. 506: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We suggest addition of the following at the end of this subsection, '. . . to control airflow paths for proper airborne radioactivity routing and to provide for pressurization of the safety-related buildings."

Discussion: It is expected that the types of ventilation systems required are relatively small unit systems designed for specific operations rather than the large building systems common to many nuclear facilities.

Section 72.71(10), Control Room or Control Areas

Comment No. 507: Middle South Services, Inc. (37)

"The control room should not necessarily be located in the spent fuel area. It should be permitted to be in a separate building. Where an ISFSI is located on a reactor site, the reactor control room could be utilized. For normal operations, local control would be sufficient."

Comment No. 508: Iouisiana Power and Light Company. (49)

"The control room need not be located in the ISFSI. Where an ISFSI is placed on a reactor site, the reactor control room could also contain the ISFSI control area. Local control should suffice for normal operating conditions, and a 'control room,' as such, should not necessarily be required."

Comment No. 509: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We believe it should be permissible to abandon the control room in certain accident situations if it can be ensured that no controls or monitors are required from the control room during the period of evacuation or that the required controls or monitoring can be accomplished from another area that is habitable. A requirement for continuous control room occupation should not be necessary for the quasi-static nature of spent fuel storage. Also, it would be very expensive to design the control room for the postulated accident conditions (e.g., LOCA) that may exist at a site shared by a nuclear power plant."

Discussion: This requirement is primarily addressed at a fully independent away-from-reactor facility. It is quite possible that the monitoring (as differentiated from operating) controls for an ISFSI located at a reactor site could be in the reactor control room or any other continuously manned location.

Comment No. 510: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"Similarily, section 72.71(10) appears to mandate a control room, or centralized control of all active functions of the facility; reference is made in this paragraph to 'control areas' but a rather general design criterion is established which would appear difficult to meet without an enclosed control room."

Comment No. 511: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Clarification of this section as to what is meant by action to be taken to 'operate the ISFSI safety under normal conditions' is needed. The intent should be to monitor under normal conditions not to operate. Suggest that 'if required' be inserted in line 2 so it reads - 'A control room or control areas, if required, shall be designed to permit occupancy and action to be taken to monitor the ISFSI safety under normal condition and to maintain the ISFSI in a safe condition under off-normal or accident conditions.'" Discussion: This requirement does not mandate a control room or centralized control of all ISFSI operations. The requirement is for the monitoring of conditions within the ISFSI and to be able to take necessary actions in case of emergency from an accessible control location.

Comment No. 512:

"A clarification is recommended for this paragraph. As worded, it could be interpreted that the ISFSI is to be operated remotely from a control room or control areas. Certain items should be controllable from central locations. However, many items such as cranes, hoists and underwater tools should be rperated by persons having visual contact with the operating items. This paragraph should be expanded to describe more fully the intent of permitting visual contact operation during normal activites and to provide safe control during off-normal or accident conditions."

Discussion: This comment makes a good point; some operations must be visually controlled. However, the requirement does not limit visual control of certain operations, but rather to permit access when needed.

Section 72.71(11), Utility Services

Comment No. 513: Duke Power Company. (60)

"Section 72.71 which addresses 'Utility services' is not entirely clear. Reference should be made to electric power sources if that is what is meant by utility services."

Discussion: Utility rervices could cover electric power, water supply, and communications.

Comment No. 514: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The criterion on Utility Services includes a single failure assumption. The regulations should indicate whether the single failure assumption is also meant to apply as to other aspects of ISFSI design.

Discussion: The single failure assumption is not generally applicable to other aspects of ISFSI design. This is a design-specific consideration and not subject to broad generalization.

Section 72.71(12), Design for Criticality Safety

Comment No. 515: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Significant effort should always be applied to avoid accidental criticality. However, where the consequences of the criticality are significantly lessened (by the interspersing of shielding as in a water storage pool) and where one of the most significant control measures (the absence of a moderator in a fissile array) is denied the facility operator because water is present, the avoidance of criticality should be assured by guarding against the occurrence of one, rather than two, unlikely changes. This approach is used in the draft ISFSI standard ANS 57.7 in sections 6.10.1.1.4 and 6.10.1.1.5 and should be used in section 72.71(12). Only one mechanism remains in some compacted at-reactor storage basins currently; namely, the presence of a neutron poison. Favorable geometry (the only other control mechanism listed in 72.71(13)) was removed in the act of compacting the fuel array. Were the neutron poison to be removed, a criticality might occur. The consequences, however, might be no more significant than those coming from the operation of a low power swimming pool reactor.

Discussion: The NRC has historically applied the double contingency principle to criticality safety. This is reflected in the wording of section 6.10.1.4 of ANSI/ANS 57.7 (October, 1979 draft) as follows:

"....the nuclear safety analysis shall demonstrate that criticality could not occur without at least two unlikely, independent, and concurrent failures or operating limit violations."

This wording can also be found in ANSI N16.1-1975, which is endorsed in Regulatory Guide 3.4, "Nuclear Criticality Safety in Operations with Fissionable Materials Outside Reactors."

Comment No. 516: Ohio Power Siting Commission. (11)

"You may wish to note the requirements of the Standard Review Plans for Safety Analysis Reports, section 9.1.2-4, item 2a which requires Seismic Category I, K_{eff} of 0.95 or less with an infinite array of fuel elements of highest probable enrichment and demineralized water. It might be helpful if proposed new regulations were accompanied by a covering letter which refers the review to the appropriate Regulatory Guides."

Comment No. 517: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"Stating that handling, transfer, and storage systems shall be designed to be maintained subcritical is vague. A $\rm K_{eff}$ value equal to or less than 0.95 should be specified."

Comment No. 518: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.71(12) - Our experience is that significant delays arise during Staff reviews of fuel assembly storage due to the use of different calculational methods by the Staff and licensee. We strongly recommend that the NRC publish very specific regulatory guides (including acceptable cross-section sets, scope of evaluation and acceptable codes) for the calculations of nuclear criticality safety margins. It is our understanding that Reactor Licensing has developed and promulgated such information via its Standard Review Plan."

Comment No. 519: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The criterion adopts a standard of 'unlikely (i.e., very low probability) . . . changes,' but does not define what is meant by this term."

Discussion: The review of criticality design calculations for an ISFSI will be based on established NRC practice as reflected in the above referenced (NRR) Standard Review Plan. Comment No. 520: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"It should be possible to allow for a fuel handling system failure (from a single failure) and postulated resultant criticality (e.g., seismically caused fuel basket drop) if the doses are within the prescribed limits."

Discussion: This requirement is addressed to the design to prevent criticality. A beyond design event such as a basket drop would be analyzed as an accident and may be allowable if the resultant doses are within prescribed limits.

Comment No. 521: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The regulations should provide for procedures to make certain that:

- "1. Total mass is less than critical mass;
- "2. Subcritical geometry is maintained;
- "3. Concentration of fissile material in solution is below a specified level;
- "4. Sufficient poisons (neutron absorbers) are in with the fissile materials;
 - "a) A study should be done to determine if a large mass of fissile materials under accident conditions could go supercritical (leading to a nuclear explosion) or would it first go critical and dismantle itself before supercriticality is reached?"

Discussion: The total mass of spent fuel in an ISFSI could be 1000 metric tons or more. It is not total mass which is a factor, but rather to make provisions in the design to accommodate this mass safely.

Subcritical geometry is the preferred method of criticality control, however, the use of fixed poisons is allowable.

We know of no way in which the concentration of fissile material in solution at an ISFSI could be a significant factor. The sintered UO₂ fuel material is essentially insoluble in water.

We know of no credible mechanism by which a large mass of spent fuel could go supercritical with the release of enough energy to be a nuclear explosion.

Comment No. 522: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"The Township shares the concern of the Commission over the possibility of accidental criticality in an ISFSI as evidenced by Criteria (12) and (13) of paragraph 72.71. While the regulations as now written require continued surveillance of the condition of whatever neutron absorbing materials are in the facility, there is no requirement that an actual measurement of the multiplication factor of the system be carried at any time over the continue life of the facility.

"It seems reasonable to the Township that the owner/operator of an ISFSI, from time to time, should perform 1/M experiments or in some other manner establish or estimate the multiplication factor of his facility. In the view of the Township, it is not very reassuring to be told to reply to a question regarding the value of k for a particular facility that 'we don't know what it is; we have never measured it."

Discussion: Criticality calculations are 'benchmarked' with measurements in critical assemblies representing a range of possible configurations and conditions. These facilities are designed to allow measurements to be made at 1/M values very close to 1. The calculational techniques, supported by such measurements have been developed to a high degree of sophistication. However, to the extent that uncertainties still exist, an allowance must be made for such uncertainties in the calculations for specific pool and storage rack configurations.

Theoretically, it might be possible to make 1/M measurements in a storage pool with a strong outside neutron source, but such measurements would be very difficult to make and meaningless from a practical standpoint. Because the value of 1/M in a storage pool is far below criticality, the uncertainties in such measurements would be much greater than the uncertainties in calculations; 1/M must approach 0.99 to be meaningful. It is much more accurate to extrapolate downward from a value of 1 than to extrapolate an approach to criticality from a low value.

Section 72.71(13), Acceptable Methods of Control

Comment No. 523: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"The regulation should indicate whether credit for the use of liquid absorbing materials (poisons) in the pool is allowed."

Discussion: Based on present reactor pool practice, no credit would be given for the presence of soluble poisons in an ISFSI storage pool water.

Comment No. 524: Arizona Nuclear Power Project. (59)

"The statement in the introduction that periodic surveillance of critical components be required is vague. The most critical of the components is that of the fixed neutron poison, assuming a poisoned rack design, and related to this poison the proposed rule states the 'the design shall provide for positive means to verify their continued efficacy.' It could easily be argued that observation of a sealed noncorrosive kind of poison could be satisfactorily inspected by visual means but the regulation seems to indicate that some kind of 'test' is required. In reactors a coupon test approach is considered satisfactory for certain applications of data verification or collection and this type of approach might be satisfactory for this application."

Discussion: The requirement for periodic surveillance was not addressed specifically to fixed neutron poisons, but rather to all safety-related components of an ISFSI. The regulation does not indicate tests necessarily, but that some means that admits no question must be provided for verification of the use of fixed poisons. Section 72.71(13(ii). On the use of fixed poisons:

Comment No. 525: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"The requirement that neutron absorbing materials (poisons) be permanently fixed is unnecessary. The use of removable poisons which are locked into position should be satisfactory. A third paragraph should be added to this design requirement which would allow credit for the use of a soluble poison material in the storage pool cooling medium."

Comment No. 526: Environmental Policy Institute, Washington, D.C. (29)

"Allows for the rse of neutron absorbing materials to be used as an alternative method of criticality control. While neturon absorbing has been used in fuel pool densification its use as a primary criticality control mechanism is questionable and experience with this practice over a 20 year period commensurate with the license period is not existent to our knowledge. In addition the use of such material adds to the contaminants in the pool as well as to the volume and hazard of decontamination, decommissioning, and radioactive waste to be disposed of upon termination. We do not believe that neutron absorbing materials should be permitted as an alternative method of criticality control at this time."

Comment No. 527: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Verification of poison efficacy within the racks and bundles, once packed, would be very difficult; unpacking of the arrays to permit this verification is not feasible on a periodic basis throughout the life of the storage of fuel. Evaluation of coupons immersed in the same environment, as is now done in reactors, is proposed."

Comment No. 528: Stone and Webster Engineering Corporation. (69)

"Paragraph 72.71(13) suggests that permanently fixed neutron-absorbing materials is an 'alternative' method of criticality control and favorable geometry is the 'standard' method. The regulation should not define what is a standard and what is an alternative. We suggest combining the paragraphs to read as follows:

"(13) Acceptable methods of control. Favorable geometry (spacing and the use of permanently fixed neutron-absorbing materials (poisons) are acceptable methods of nuclear criticality control. Subcriticality is assured by limiting the reactivity through the control of spacing of the individual storage unit (one or more fuel assemblies) and, for underwater storage, by the neutron absorption by the water between storage units. Where solid neutron-absorbing materials are used for the prevention of nuclear criticality, the design shall provide for positive means to verify their continued efficacy. Storage racks must be structurally compatible with seismic design criteria."

Comment No. 529: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"We suggest adding after '. . . the neutron absorption by the water,' the following phrase, 'and rack structure.' This is consistent with current design practice in which the rack structure is considered separate from a burnable

neutron poison material and as a result would not have to have a special poison verification program (e.g., periodic removal and inspection) established (other than to ensure that unacceptable corrosion has not occurred)."

Discussion: The use of fixed poisons is primarily for the deep pools and fixed racks used at nuclear power plants. Fixed poisons are not expected to be used for the shallow pools with movable canisters expected to be used at an ISFSI. However, fixed poisons are not prohibited, provided these can be designed in such a way that some means of verification can be provided to ensure that no degradation of the poison materials occurs with time. The details of design and surveillance are design-specific and not a subject for general design criteria.

The poison effect of the rack structure is included in criticality calculations. The wording has been modified as suggested by TVA.

Section 72.71(14), Exposure Control.

Comment No. 530: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"The words 'significantly above background levels' should be defined in terms of a numeric range."

Discussion: Background levels are both site and design specific. The requirement has been revised to reference accepted exposure limits stated in Section 72.67.

Comment No. 531: Environmental Policy Institute, Wash. D.C. (29)

"As noted immediately above, the proposed rule does not address the problems, exposures, and potential releases from cask handling procedures. Cask handling and unloading offer the highest routine worker exposures and potential for release of radionuclides. Cask decontamination also results in a major portion of waste treatment problems. The proposed rule does not establish any requirements for design, procedures or transport vehicle/cask storage to reduce occupational exposures, tranport vehicle personnel, or releases from these operations. This is a major shortcoming of the proposed rule in general and the design objectives and radiological protection requirements in particular."

Discussion: The rule addresses all areas and operations where plant personnel may be exposed to levels of radiation or airborne radioactive materials above acceptable exposure limits for the general population.

Comment No. 532: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This sub-paragraph requires the provision of shielding 'to assure that exposure to personnel in accessible areas are within the limits of Part 20 and are as low as is reasonably achievable.' This sub-paragraph fails to identify which criterion (i.e., within the limits of Part 20, or are as low as reasonably achieveable) takes precedence. How far is the licensee expected to go in providing shielding? For example, would it be expected that he would be required to provide shielding on the fuel handling machine to reduce the dose from the pool water even if the radiation level from the water were already well within the limits of Part 20 exposure guidelines? This point should be clarified in this sub-paragraph."

<u>Discussion</u>: Part 20 contains both limits and the requirement of maintaining exposures "as low as is reasonably achievable." It is not expected that the dose on the fuel handling machine from the pool water in an ISFSI (with water purity $\langle 5x10^{-4} \mu Ci/mI \rangle$) will be too significant. If for some reason, the dose is relatively high and can be reduced by shielding of the operator's position, such may well be required to meet the ALARA objectives even if the expected dose is within Part 20 limits.

Comment No. 533: Kaiser Engineers. (21)

"This paragraph implies that shielding alone can provide personnel exposures ALARA. If this premise was taken in the design of an ISFSI, the facility would not be cost effective with respect to benefit-cost aspects of ALARA. Suggest that, for ALARA and Part 20 limits, the concept of dose rate and the duration of required occupancy by personnel be stressed rather than shielding alone. Suggest wording such as the following:

"'Shielding for the ISFSI shall be such that when considering the magnitude of dose rates from radioactive sources (i.e., spent fuel, equipment, radwaste, etc.) in conjunction with facility layout and time for operations (i.e., maintenance, surveillance, testing, etc.), the exposures to personnel are maintained as low as is reasonably achievable. In addition, the radiation shielding shall be designed to ensure that personnel exposure does not exceed the limits of Part 20 of this Chapter considering personnel occupany time during normal operation or during anticipated operational occurrences.'"

Discussion: In the total context of this section, shielding alone is not being relied upon to provide personnel exposures ALARA.

The subject of personnel exposures as a function of time spent for various operations is specifically covered in the applicant's SAR for the proposed facility.

Section 72.71(16), Effluent Monitoring

Comment No. 534: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"This sub-paragraph requires that effluent systems include means for measuring the flow of environmental diluting media either air or water, in addition to means for measuring the amount of radionuclides in any effluent. It is not clear how this requirement might be applied to a gaseous effluent. For example, an aqueous effluent released to a surface stream can be measured, and the stream flow can be measured, from which one can readily calculate the concentration of radionuclides in the environmental medium. In the case of a stack release of a gas, the concentration of radionuclides in the effluent gas stream can be determined, but it is not clear what is intended by the requirement for measuring the flow of air past the stack. It is clear that one can record the wind velocity and direction at the stack, from which one can calculate a dilution factor given the current meteorological parameters. If this is what is intended, it is suggested that the sub-paragraph be rewritten to make this more clear." Comment No. : 35: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"'Measuring the amount of radionuclides in any effluent' would, if literally complied with, entail an unjustified burden. While the vast majority of air released from ISFSI will be filtered, some air will be released via cask entry doors unless a large airlock is provided. As noted by the Staff in the Supplementary Information, experience (Page 4-17 of Reference b) shows that airborne contamination above a spent fuel storage poor is not significant.

"We believe that the personnel exposure involved in 'measuring the amount of radionuclides' in solid wastes cannot be justified. We recommend that the proposed requirement read: 'Effluent systems shall include the means to determine the amount of radioactivity in airborne and waterborne effluents.'"

Discussion: An aqueous effluent released through a pipeline can be measured; similarly, the flow of air through a stack can be measured or determined by calculation. The diluting medium is not the stream flow or winds past the plant but the diluting media added within the system prior to discharge to the environment. Most air released from an ISFSI of the water basin type will probably be clean enough to discharge without filtration; only air from areas of high potential activity needs to be filtered.

Regarding solid wastes, it is expected that regulations and practices in force by the time operations are licensed under this part will require quite definitive statements as to their contents. Just how such determinations are made will depend on the requirements and the applicable technology available at that time.

Section 72.71(17), Effluent Control

Comment No. 530: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Paragraph (17) - Effluent control - We recommend that the word 'minimize' be changed to 'control,' and the phrase, '. . . and under accident conditions' be deleted. The concept of ALARA should not be imposed on accident releases. The application of the ALARA concept to accident releases could impose excessive design requirements and lead to confusion in the licensing process."

Discussion: The concept of ALARA is not imposed on accident conditions. What is required is the capability to shut off the flow of effluents, if necessary. This section has been reworded, referencing §§72.67 and 72.68.

Comment No. 537: F. D. Anderson. (17)

"In Paragraph (17) last sentence to read: 'Capability . . . to ensure that the concentrations of radioactive materials in effluents are maintained within the limits of 10 CFR Part 20 and the resulting doses are within the limits of 40 CFR Part 190. The total quantities of radioactive material released in effluents shall be kept as low as is reasonably achievable.'

"This Section requires means to '. . . minimize the release in effluent of radioactive materials . . .' The word 'minimize' is not well considered in this context. Replace 'minimize' with '. . . limit to a level as low as reasonably achievable, the release in effluents . . . ""

Comment No. 538: Tennessee Valley Authority. (72)

"This section implies that 'as low as is reasonably achievable' amounts to termination of flow or retention of effluents. It is possible that releases during normal operation and accident conditions will not result in exposures that exceed site boundary limits and that the addition of features to terminate flow or retain effluents will not be cost-beneficial according to the methodology of Regulatory Guide 1.110. Therefore, we suggest you reword this section as follows:

- "(a) Add this statement to the end of the first sentence: '... or it shall be shown by appropriate analyses that releases to the environment during normal operations (including anticipated occurrences) and during accident conditions are within acceptable exposure limits.'
- "(b) Reword the last two sentences to read: 'System provided to monitor the release of materials shall be designed to be periodically tested and calibrated and shall provide adequate alarm(s) upon detection of release levels in excess of approved operating limits. In all cases, it shall be shown that the capability exists to ensure that the concentrations and total quantities of radioactive materials in effluents can be maintained within the limits of Part 20 and are as low as is reasonably achievable.'"

Discussion: Each of these comments was considered in the rewording of the text of this section which has been extensively revised.

Section 72.71(18), Spent Fuel and Radioactive Waste Storage and Handling Systems

Comment No. 539: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section requires design consideration for establishing the safety of waste storage and handling systems. It would be beneficial to define or reference the acceptable forms for the ultimate disposal of treated radioactive wastes."

Discussion: A concerted effort is underway at this time to define the conditions for ultimate disposal of radioactive wastes. The pertinent regulations will be identified with 10 CFR Part 60 series numbers.

Comment No. 540: Ebasco Services, Inc. (52)

"Paragraph (18)(iii) - 'Confinement systems' should be defined more specifically. For instance, would a building with no special ventilation requirements over the spent fuel pool be adequate? If not, Paragraph (8)(iii), on the previous page, should be rewritten."

Discussion: It is expected that waste treatment will be carried out in confined systems such as shielded cells with filtered ventilation systems.

Comment No. 541: Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company. (67)

"We assume that the NRC does not mean 'testability' in the sense of testability of the heat removal capability by experiment. We suggest that 'testability' be defined as the ability to check system performance by periodic monitoring of instrumented system parameters."

Discussion: This comment reflects the current staff position but we think its formal definition to be unnecessary.

Comment No. 542: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"The minimization of wastes is a fine objective and one, I am certain, all designers will include; however, it is not one that is auditable or proveable. As it is an economic consideration, it should not be required in a regulation."

Discussion: The impact of waste volumes is an environmental as well as an economic consideration. The control of waste volumes has not been addressed by all designers in the past. It is the opinion of the staff that this subject will become increasingly important in the future and is an appropriate subject for regulation.

Section 72.71(19), Waste Treatment

Comment No. 543: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"Section 72.71(19) - It is recommended that this paragraph be amended to eliminate the requirement that onsite facilities be provided to concentrate all site generated wastes. Concentration and conversion into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate disposal might be best accomplished at a location other than where the waste is generated. The following is a suggested rewording of this paragraph.

"Waste treatment - Waste treatment facilities shall be provided. Provisions shall be made for the conversion of site generated wastes into a form suitable for interim storage or ultimate final disposal."

Comment No. 544: Allied General Nuclear Services. (27)

"Section 72.71(19) requires that all site-generated wastes be concentrated at the ISFSI. Instances could well arise where, except for this provision, it would be beneficial, both economically and environmentally, that such concentration be performed at another licensed location, particularly if such were nearby. Accordingly, it is suggested that the last sentence of this subsection be replaced by the following: "Provision shall be made for the conversion of site generated wastes into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate final disposal."

Comment No. 545: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"Waste treatment - We suggest deletion of 'interim storage and ultimate final' from the second sentence."

Comment No. 546: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"Clarify the last sentence. Does it refer to a typical waste treatment facility for concentrating waste, such as evaporators for radioactive liquid waste streams, or does it refer to all waste? If the latter, does it include items like protective clothing and supplies used in decontamination?"

Comment No. 547: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.71(19) - 'These facilities shall be designed to concentrate all site generated wastes and convert them into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate final disposal.' A licensee cannot satisfy this requirement due to the lack of NRC criteria for (1) balancing degree of compaction versus peration radiation exposure and public exposure via effluents from the compaction operations, (2) a definition of a form suitable for 'interim storage' and (3) a definition of the form suitable for 'ultimate final disposal.' We understand that the ARC Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards has such studies under contact. Until the completion and evaluation of these studies, it is premature to impose this proposed requirement.

"The total volume of radioactive waste generated at the ISFSI should not be significant. As noted in an earlier comment, the volume should be about 1000 ft /yr/million gallons of pool water. The waste composition will be primarily filter media and therefore not amenable to much concentration."

Comment No. 548: Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad and Toll. (48)

"The second selence of Standard (19), 'Waste Treatment,' should be deleted. There is no reason to require concentration of 'all' site generated wastes; as to some wastes concentration may be impossible, may involve unnecessary personnel exposure or may not be cost effective. As to converting such wastes to a form suitable for 'ultimate final disposal,' although such conversion might in many instances be accomplished onsite, there is no reason to deprive the licensee of the flexibility of using offsite facilities that might be more effective."

Comment No. 549: Edison Electric Institute. (68)

"The requirement 'to concentrate all site generated wastes,' needs further clarification since some waste, such as discarded equipment, do not lend themselves to concentration. Concentration requirements should be based on a combination of cost effectiveness and personnel radiation exposure considerations in addition to waste form and volume."

Discussion: The wording has been changed. There was no intent to deny the licensee the use of other than onsite facilities, if such were available.

In response to Comment Letter No. 46, it is agreed that waste treatment criteria are needed. However, it is expected that these criteria will be available when needed by a license granted under this rule. The total volume of wastes, including contaminated clothing and decontamination solutions and materials could be quite large. The water treatment wastes are expected to be only a small fraction of the total wastes.
Section 72.71(20), Decommissioning

Comment No. 550: Valore, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland. (40)

"Fails to provide sufficient guidelines and procedures - this is especially true in respect to public participation."

Comment No. 551: American Nuclear Society (ANS2.19). (41)

"Concerned about the lack anywhere of a definition of the level to which a facility must be decontaminated to be decommissioned. ANS-N300-1975, Design Criteria for Decommissioning of Nuclear Fuel Reprocessing Plants, lacks a definition of the level of radioactivity acceptable for unrestricted use. According to the proposed EPA Criteria for Radioactive Wastes, dated November 15, 1978, once a material has been designated radioactive, there is no level at which its radioactive content can be considered negligible. This problem, lack of definition of or lack of acceptance of, a negligible level of radioactivity, is going to be of considerable difficulty to the industry."

Comment No. 552: General Electric Company. (47)

"This Section requires design to facilitate decommissioning. The wording regarding decommissioning should be made consistent with previous sections on this regulation (see comment on §72.18 and §72.38), and with related documents (NUREG-0436) and Regulation Guides."

Discussion: The NRC has not endorsed ANSI-300-1975. Decommissioning criteria are now under development by the NRC. A draft GEIS on Decommissioning of Nuclear Fuel Cycle Facilities, NUREG/0586, which includes ISFSIs, is being prepared and ic scheduled for issue early in 1980.

Comment No. 553: Bechtel National, Inc. (38)

"We interpret the phrase '. . . minimize the quantity of radioactive wastes . . . at the time the facility is decommissioned,' to mean that the design should include features to minimize the accumulation of materials and equipment which cannot be adequately decontaminated (e.g., pool liners should prevent the concrete from becoming contaminated). We suggest that the word 'reduce' be used in place of 'minimize' and that the paragraph be expanded to indicate that this design objective should be consistent with safety considerations and functional requirements for the ISFSI."

Comment No. 554: Mississippi Power and Light Company. (39)

"The subsection on decommissioning of an AFR storage installation should be more specific. In particular, the subsection should provide that design criteria relating to reducing the quantity and facilitating the removal of radioactive wates and equipment at the time of permanent decommissioning of the installation must be established consistent with the safety and functional aspects of the installation. Furthermore, the word 'minimize' with reference to the quantity of radioactive wastes in the installation at the time of decommissioning is ambiguous and should be replaced by the word 'reduce.'"

Comment No. 555: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"'. . . and to minimize the quantity of radioactive wastes . . . at the time the facility is permanently decommissioned.' The largest quantity of contaminated equipment at decommissioning should be the storage racks. It is inconceivable that the Staff would want to reduce the potential strength of storage racks in order to reduce a waste volume at twenty years later. If the Staff wants a stainless steel lining on the pool surface, it should be a specific requirement."

Comment No. 556: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"The decommissioning criterion requires that the ISFSI design 'minimize the quantity and facilitate the removal of radioactive wastes and contaminated equipment...' Some concept of cost-effectiveness should be included in this criterion, given the implications of the requirement to 'minimize.'"

Comment No. 557: Southern Company Services, Inc. (54)

"Some comment as above on minimizing."

Discussion: This is a general design criterion, i.e., to put the designer on notice that consideration should be given to its ultimate decommissioning in the design of the installation.

For a water pool type of installation, decommissioning may involve only the removal of surface contamination down to an acceptable level. The designer should keep this in mind and not bury contaminated piping in concrete, should provide fittings for the introduction of decontamination solutions on equipment, and to the extent feasible should avoid cracks and crevices which are difficult to decontaminate.

Subpart G--Quality Assurance

Section 72.75, Quality Assurance Program; Records

Comment No. 558: R. Beaver. (23)

"I agree with your requirements for a quality assurance program as described in par. 72.75 and your statement regarding quality standards in par. 72.71, especially with respect to the wording 'commensurate with the importance of the function to be performed.' I agree with your requirements under (6) of par. 72.71 relative to testing and maintenance of systems and components that have safety-related functions. I would interpret this to mean that not all of the safety-related functions must have this capability . . . only those important to the function to be performed."

Comment No. 559: American Nuclear Society (ANS57.7). (28)

"72.75(a) Delete second sentence, delete second sentence in (b), and delete (c) entirely. All of these words are part of Appendix B."

Comment No. 560: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge. (50)

"Can it be concluded that any structure, system or component whose function is the subject of a requirement in this Part 72 is to be considered safety related, and therefore to require the application of a quality assurance program? If this is the intent, then what criteria may be used to evaluate 'the importance of individual structures, systems and components to safety,' in establishing an appropriate level of quality assurance program for each affected element? If it is not intended that all structures, systems and components are to be considered safety related, what criteria may be used to define the safety related structures, systems and components."

"Section 72.3(s) defines safety related structure systems and components as those items whose function is to maintain the required spent fuel storage conditions, to prevent damage to the spent fuel during transfer and storage and to protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation during design objectives. In one interpretation, this could be taken to include virtually everything within the boundary of the plant site. Section 72.71, under 'Overall Requirements,' sub-paragraph (1) 'Quality Standards,' s'ates that structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed, fabricated, and tested to quality standards commensurate with the importance of the function to be performed. Section 72.75(a) requires that a quality assurance program based on Appendix B of 10 CFR 50 shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that the safety related structure, systems and components will perform their safety functions. This paragraph goes on to state that 'the application of the quality assurance program should be commensurate with the importance of individual structure, systems and components.' These provisions add up to a rather broad range of possible interpretations both as to the specific items which might be included as Class I structures, systems and components, as well as to the extent of the quality assurance program requirements necessary to be imposed on the design, purchasing, fabricating, handling, shipping, storing, cleaning, erecting, installing, inspecting, testing, operating, maintaining, repairing, and modifying.

"On the other hand, the Statement of Considerations states that

"'... the heat capacity of the large volume of water in a spent fuel storage pool allows adequate time to take corrective action if the cooling system fails, provided there is an assured source of make up water, and some means of getting it to the storage pool if needed. Therefore the cooling system need not be designed to withstand the extremes of natural phenomena. Likewise, the emergency water supply system need not be permanently installed, provided it is available within the time span needed.'

"These statement would lead to the conclusion that the pool water treatment systems need not be considered to be Class I (or 'Q-list' items). However, the wording of the regulation may not necessarily be interpreted so as to lead to this same conclusion.

"While we would consider it undesirable to publish a list of specific ilems of equipment to be included on the Q-list, we do note believe it would be appropriate to include some further elaboration of the definition in section 72.3(s) in the form of a statement of the criteria which the NRC would plan to use in evaluating the applicant's identification of items on his Q-list, as well as his definition of the extent of applicability of the QA program. It is our opinion that without this clarification, the regulation as presently drafted would inevitably lead to the inclusion on the Q-list and the imposition of the full 10 CFR 50 Appendix B QA program on all structures, systems and components of the fuel storage pool which have any relation to or contact with the spent fuel. If it is the intent of NRC that this be the case, then there should be a clear statement of that effect in the regulation and in the Statement of Considerations."

Comment No. 561: American Society of Civil Engineers. (34)

"As stated in the reference, the Quality Assurance Program is based on the criteria in Appendix B of 10 CFR 50. The Quality Assurance Program shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that the safety related structures, systems, and components of an ISFSI will perform their safety functions. The application of the Quality Assurance Program should be commensurate with the importance of individual structures, systems and components to safety.

"It is recognized that safety is the number one concern when assessing the risks associated with the operation of an ISFSI facility. However; for the reason of maintaining credibility with the public in that all elements of the spent fuel storage facilities will continue to perform satisfactorily in service, it is essential that the non-safety related structure, systems, or components receive their due quality assurance assessments. In this way, the national interests will be better served.

"It is suggested that 72.75 be restructured as follows:

- "72.75 Quality Assurance Program
 - "A. A Quality Assurance Program shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that systems, components, and structures of an ISFSI will perform safely and reliably. The requirements of 10 CFR 50 shall apply to non-safety related items as well as to safety items.
 - "B. The application of the Quality Assurance Program shall be commensurate with the importance of individual systems relative to safety, the environment, reliability, availability, cost, and schedule.
 - "C. The Quality Assurance program shall be applied during the design, procurement, fabrication, installation, inspection, test, operation, maintenance, repair and modification phases of the project.
 - "D. Appropriate records of the design, fabrication, erection, and testing of structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be maintained by or under the control of the licenses throughout the life of the installation.
 - "E. Quality Assurance means all those planned and systematic actions necessary to provide confidence that a structure, system, and component will perform satisfactorily in service. Quality

Assurance includes quality control, which comprises those quality assurance actions related to the physical characteristics of a material, structure, component, or system which provide a means to control the quality of the product."

Discussion: The rule provides for a quality assurance program which is selective or graded in its application, with emphasis placed on items and activities which are important to safety and to the extent of their importance to safety. It is assumed that the designer and future operator can best identify those items and actions to which his QA program should apply and how this program will be applied. It is anticipated that there are relatively few items and actions of an ISFSI design, construction and operations which will require full QA coverage. Specifically what these are and the extent of desired QA coverage is design specific and cannot be identified in general criteria.

The section has been reworded placing emphasis on importance to safety. A licensee may want to consider factors such as reliability, availability, cost and schedule but these factors are not subject to NRC regulation.

Subpart H--Physical Protection

Section 72.81, Physical Security Plan

Comment No. 562: Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (66)

"A final plan for safeguarding the AFR must be approved as part of the construction permit program. The exception contained in Part 73 for spent fuel must not to applicable unless the spent fuel meets the conditions of burnup, enrichment and age which are the premise for those exceptions."

Discussion: The physical protection plan for an ISFSI must meet the requirements of Part 73.

Comment No. 563: U.S. Department of Energy. (42)

"It is stated that the security plan "shall demonstrate how the applicant plans to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 73 of this chapter at the proposed installation.' However, Part 73 does not, to our knowledge, specify requirements for an ISFSI. Therefore, either this regulation or Part 73 would have to be revised to include ISFSI security requirements."

Discussion: §73.50 is being revised to specifically meet the needs of an ISFSI. (See 43 FR 35321, August 9, 1978.)

72.81(b)

Comment No. 564: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"Paragraph 72.81(b) - '. . . ISFSI design features which will make the installation less vulnerable to sabotage . . .' Less vulnerable than what? We believe that the tests being conducted at Sandia Laboratories and the evaluations conducted by General Electric Company for MFRP show that an ISFSI does not present any undue risk to the public health and safety due to potential sabotage. The Staff should provide very specific requirements on physical protection at ISFSI rather than the generalized, vague requirements of Section 72.81."

Discussion: The wording has been changed to read "...design features provided to protect the complex from sabotage...."

Comment No. 565: Allied Chemical Company, (Idaho). (71)

"This is very general and could be very difficult to comply with unless made somewhat more specific. Recommend deleting requirement to preclude itside sabotage.

"Also, the details fo physical protection should be kept confidential or this requirement could be self defeating because access to details could make the facility more vulnerable to sabotage."

Discussion: See response to preceeding comment. Prysical security plans are kept confidential.

Comment No. 566: "Paragraph 72.81(b)(3) Kaiser Engineers. (21)

"The following statement should be added to the end of the reference paragraph to make clear the extent of the proposed quality assurance program:

"'The quality assurance program established for use related to structures and components that comprise the physical protection system shall not be required to comply with Appendix B to Part 50 of this chapter."

Discussion: On the contrary, the physical security system must be covered by an appropriate quality assurance program.

Comment No. 567: Wisconsin Electric Power Company. (26)

"No more than three copies of a facility security plan should be forwarded to the NRC. The security plan contains confidential material which should be disseminated on a need-to-know basis only."

Discussion: Ten copies are required.

Subpart I - Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel

Comment No. 568: Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge (50)

"Subpart I on training and certification should make explicit the obvious intent that these issues are not part of the licensing process."

Discussion: On the contrary, Subpart I is a part of the licensing process. Section 72.15 of this Part requires an applicant to include in the Safety Analysis Report, or as a separate submission, a description of the training program purusant to §72.92. Section 72.31 of this Part states, among other things, that the issuance of licenses is contingent upon a determination by the Commission that training and certification of ISFSI personnel complies with Subpart I of this Part, and is acceptable.

Section 72.92, Responsibility for Training Program

Comment No. 569: Valora, McAllister, Aron and Westmoreland (40)

"The certification of the licensee's operators to the effect that they are adequately trained should be done by a separate group to avoid 'expedient' certification of inadequately trained personnel. Independent review of the training might be considered."

Discussion: Certification by the licensee based upon an approved training and certification program is acceptable to NRC. The licensee's training and certification procedures will be subject to NRC inspection.

Section 72.93, Physical Requirements

Comment No. 570: U.S. Department of Energy (42)

"Because of current federal restrictions on employer's hiring investigations and practices with regard to potential employee's physical and mental conditions, it may be difficult to meet these requirements in selecting personnel for safety-related activities."

Comment No. 571: Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (46)

"'Any physical or mental condition which might cause impaired judgment or motor coordination must be considered in the selection of personnel for safety-related activities.' Such vague and ambiguous requirements are inoperative and, therefore, not constructively adding to public health and safety. The Staff should draw upon their experience in implementing 10 CFR 55 and indeveloping 10 CFR 73, Appendix B, to provide much more substantive guidance."

Comment No. 572: Southern Company Service, Inc. (54)

"How do you determine an acceptable mental condition under present government restrictions? Is the requirement limited to knowledge or does it include psychological analyses?"

Discussion: This section has been revised to restrict an individual whose physical condition or general health is such as might cause operational errors from being permitted to operate safety-related equipment and controls. This requires certain judgements with respect to hiring and training of individuals, as well as judgement by a supervisor as to whether a certified individual's physical condition and general health are cause for concern about whether the individual can operate safety-related equipment and controls in a competent and safe manner. APPENDIX A COMPARATIVE TEXTS

10 CFR PART 72 COMPARATIVE TEXTS

Column 1

Proposed Rule Published For Comment, FR 43, 46309-46321, dated October 6, 1979 Column 2 Text of Final Rule Reflecting Comments

From Both the Public and NRC Staff

Column 3

Reasons for Changes & Sources of Comments (Public or Staff)

Notes:

Changed material
 New Material Underlined

PART 72 "LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPEND-ENT SPENT FUEL SCORAGE INSTALLATION" (ISFSI)

Subport A-General Provisions

Sec.

72.1 Purpose.

- 72.2 Scope.
- 72.3 Defanitions.
- 72.4 Communications
- 72.5 Interpretations.
- 172.6 License Required
- 72.7 General License to Own Spent Fuel.
- 72.8 Specific Exemptions.
- 72.9 Denial of Licensitic by Agreement States:

Subpart 8-License Application, Form, Contents Sec 72.11 Filing of Applications for Licenses:

- Oath or Affirmation.
- 72.12 Elimination of Repetition.
- 72.13 Public Inspection of Applications.
- 72.14 Contents of Application, General and Financial Information.
- 72.15 Contents of Application: Technical Information.
- 72.16 Contents of Application: License Conditions.
- 72.17 Contents of Application: Technical Qualifications.
- 72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including its Financing
- 72.19 Emergency Plan.
- 72.20 Environmental Report.

Subpart C-Issuance and Conditions of Licenses

- 72.31 Issuance of Licenses.
- 72.32 Duration of Licenses: Renewal.
- 72.33 License Conditions.
- 72.34 Changes, Tests, and Experiments.

TRANSFERS OF LICENSES-CREDITORS' RIGHTS-SURRENDER OF LICENSES

- 72.36 Transfer of Licenses.
- 72.37 Creditor Regulations.
- 72.38 Applications for Termination of Licenses.
- AMENEMENT TO LICENSE AT REQUEST OF HOLDER AND REVOCATION, SUSPENSION, AND MODIFICATION OF LICENSES
- 72.39 Application for Amendment of License.
- 72.40 Issuance of Amendment.
- 72.41 Revocation, Suspension and Modification of Licenses.
- 72.42 Backfitting

PART 72 LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI)

Subpart A - General Provisions

- 72.1 Purpose. 72.2 Scope. 72.3 Definitions. 72.4 Communications.
- 72.5 Interpretations
- 72.6
- License Required; Types of Licenses
- 72.7 Specific Exemptions. 72.8 Denial of Licensing by Agreement States.

Subpart 8 - License Applicatic , Form, and Contents

- 72.11 Filing of Applications for Specific Licenses; Oath or Affirmation.
- 72.12 Elimination of Repetition.
- 72.13 Public Inspection of Applications.
- 72.14 Contents of Application: General and Financial Information. 72.15 Contents of Application: Technical Information.

- 72.16 Contents of Application: Technical Specifications. 72.17 Contents of Application: Applicant's Technical Qualifications.
- 72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including Financing.
- 72.19 Emergency Plan.
- 72.20 Environmental Report.
- 72.21 Required Licensing Documents

Subpart C - Issuance And Conditions of Licenses

- 72:31 Issuance of Licenses.
- 72.32 Duration of License; Renewal.
- 72.33 License Conditions.
- 72.34 Public Hearings.
- 72.35 Changes, Tests, and Experiments. 72.36 Transfer of Licenses. 72.37 Creditor Regulations.

- 72.38 Applications for Termination of Licenses.
- 72.39 Application for Amendment of License.
- 72.40 Issuance of Amendment.
- 72.41 Modification, Revocation, and Suspension of Licenses. 72.42 Backfitting.

Subpart D-Records, Reports, Inspections, and Enforcement

- 72.51 Material Balance, Inventory and Records Requirements for Stored Materials.
- 72.52 Reports of Accidental Criticality or Loss of Special Nuclear Material.
- 72 53 Material Status Reports.
- 72.54 Nuclear Material Transfer Reports.
- 72.55 Inspections and Tests
- 72.56 Maintenance of Other Records and
- Reports. 72.57 Violation.

Subpart E-Siting Criteria

72.61 General Criteria

- 72.62 Criteria for Design Basis External Natural Events.
- 72.63 Criteria for Design Basis External Man-Induced Events.
- 72.64 Criteria for Defining Potential Effects of the ISFSI on the Region.
- 72.65 Criteria 1 : Regional Distribution of Population.
- 12.66 Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic Design.
- 72.67 Criteria for Defining Potential Radiological Consequences.

Subpart F-General Design Criteria

72.71 General Design Criteria.

OVERALL REQUIREMENTS

NUCLEAR CRITICALITY SAFETY

RADIOLOGICAL PROTECTION

SPENT FUEL AND RADIOACTIVE WASTE STORAGE AND HANDLING

DECOMMISSIONING

Subport G-Quality Assurance

172.75 Quality Assurance Program: Records

Subport H-Plant Protection

Sec

72.81 Physical Security Plan.

Subpart 1-Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel

- 72.91 Scope of Training Program.
- 72.92 Responsibility for Training Program.
- 72.93 Physical Requirements.
- 172.94 Submission for Approval

Subpart D - Records, Reports, Inspections and Enforcement

- 72.50 Safety Analysis Report Updating
- 72.51 Material Balance, Inventory and Records Requirements for Stored Materials.
- 72.52 Reports of Accidental Criticality or Loss of Special Nuclear Material.
- 72.53 Material status Reports.
- 72.54 Nuclear Material Transfer Reports.
- 72.55 Other Records and Reports.
- 72.56 Inspections and Tests.
- 72.57 Violation.

Subpart E - Siting Evaluation Factors

- 72.61 General Considerations.
- 72.62 Design Basis External Natural Events.
- 72.63 Design Basis External Man-Induced Events.
- 72.64 Identifying Regions Around an ISFSI Site.
- 72.65 Defining Potential Effects of the ISFSI on the Region.
- 72.66 Geological and Seismological Characteristics. 72.67 Criteria for Radioactive Materials in Effluents and Direct Radiation from an ISFSI.
- 72.68 Controlled Area of an ISFSI.
- 72.69 ISFSI Emergency Planning Zone. 72.70 Spent Fuel Transportation.

Subpart F - General Design Criteria

- 72.71 General Considerations. 72.72 Overall Requirements.

- 72.72 Overall Requirements. 72.73 Criteria for Nuclear Criticality Safety. 72.74 Criteria for Radiological Protection. 72.75 Criteria for Spent Fuel and Radioactive 1 75 Criteria for Spent Fuel and Radioactive Waste Storage and Handling.
- 72.76 Criteria for Decommissioning.

Subpart G - Quality Assurance

72.80 Quality Assurance Program; Records.

Subpart H - Physical Protection

- 72.81 Physical Security Plan.
- 72.82 Design for Physical Protection. 72.83 Safeguards Contingency Plan.
- 72.84 Changes to Physical Security and Safeguards Contingency Plans

Subpart I - Training And Certification of ISFSI Personnel

- 72.91 Operator Requirements.
- 72.92 Operator Training and Certification Program. 72.93 Physical Requirements.

Authonarty: Atomic Energy Act of 1954 as amended, secs. 51, 53 as amended 62, 63, 65, al. 161 b. h. d., 0, 1822 as amended 183 as amended 184 as amended 196 187, Pub. L 83-703, 68 Stat. 929, 930 as amended by 71 Stat. 516, 72 Stat. 632 and 79 Stat. 602, 932 933, 935, 948, 953 as amended by 71 Stat. 516, 72 Stat. 632 and 79 Stat. 602, 935 (42 U SC, 2071, 2073, 2092, 2093, 2095, 2111 2201 (b), (h), (i), (o), 2232, 2333, 2234, 2236 (42 U SC, 2282, sec. 274c, Pub. L, 91, 60, 83 Stat. 444, 2201 (b), (h), (i), (o), 2232, 2333, 2234, 2236 (42 U SC, 2282, sec. 274c, Pub. L, 91, 90, 83 Stat. 444, 2201 (b), (h), (i), (o), 2232, 2333, 2234, 2236 (42 U SC, 21282), sec. 214, Pub. L, 91, 90, 83 Stat. 901cy Act of 1969, Pub. L, 91, 191, 93 Stat. 863, (42 U SC, 9022), and under the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, as amended sec. 201, as amended, 202, and 206, Pub. L 93-438, 88 Stat. 1245, as amended by 99 Stat. 413, 1249, 1246 (42 U SC, 5841, 5842, 5846).

Subpart A--General Provisions

§ 72.1 § 72.1. Purpose.

possess special nuclear material, by-product material, and source material ditions under which the Commission The regulations in this part establish requirements, procedures and criceive title to, own, acquire, receive, or age in the United States in an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI) as defined in § 72.3 and establish and provide for the terms and conwill issue such licenses. Such licenses are limited to the temporary storage only of spent fuel: no license under this part will be granted for the later teria for the issuance of licenses to rein spent fuel for the purpose of storpermanent storage or disposal of spent

Authority

688 as amended by Pub. L. 95-604, 92 Stat. 3036 (42 U.S.C. 72 Stat. 632 and 79 Stat. 602, 932 as anended by 78 Stat. Ctat. 602, 955 (42 U.S.C. 2071, 2073, 2077, 2092, 2093, 2095, 2099, 2111, and 206, Pub. L. 93-438, 88 Stat. 1242, as amenued by 89 Stat. 413, 1243, Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, as amended, sac. 201, as amended, 202. Act of 1954, as amended, secs. 51, 53 as amended, 57 as amended, 62, 53, å 2021(c)); under sec. 102(2)(C) of the National Environmental Policy Act The provisions of this Part 72 are issued under the Atomic Energy 184 as amended, 186, 187, Pub. L. 83-703, 68 Stat. 929, 930 as amended Stat. 3039, 948, 953 as amended by 70 Stat. 1069, 954 as amended by 78 65, 69, 81 as amended, i61b, h, i, o, 182a as amended, 183 as amended, 605 anu 88 Stat. 475, 933, 934, 935 as amended by 88 Stat. 475 and 92 2201(b). (h). (f). (o). 2232, 2233, 2234, 2236, 2237); sec. 234, Pub. 91-161, 83 Stat. 444 (42 U.S.C. 2282); sec. 274c, as smended, Pub. L. 91-190, 83 Stat. 853 (42 U.S.C. 4332) and under the 1246 (42 U.S.C. 5841, 5842, 5846). Ĵ, by 71 Stat. 576. 86-273. 73 Stat. of 1969, Pub.

Subpart A - General Provisions

§ 72.1 Purpose.

fuel.

The regulations in this part establish requirements, procedures, and criteria for the issuance of licenses to possess power reactor spent fuel and other radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage. In an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI), and the terms and conditions under which the Commission will issue such licenses.

\$72.1 was rewritten to clarify the purpose of this rule. Second sentence moved to \$72.2 -Public & Staff.

§ 72.2 Scope.

The regulations in this part apply to all persons in the United States. Including persons in Agreement States The regulations in this part are limited to spent fuel. This includes the byproduct, special nuclear and source materia's in the spend fuel to be stored or in storage in an independent spent fuel storage installation as defined by § 72.3. With respect to licenses covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI issued prior to the effuel in an ISFSI issued prior, such licenses will not be renewed unless the operating requirements of this Part 72 are met.

§ 72.3 Definitions.

As used in this part:

 (a) "Act" means the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (68 Stat. 919) including any amendments thereto.

(b) "As low as is reasonably achievable" means as low as is reasonably achievable taking into account the state of technology, and the economics of improvements in relation to benefits to the public health and safety.

(c) "Byproduct material" means any radioactive material (except special nuclear material) yielded in or made radioactive by exposure to the radiation incident to the process of producing or utilizing special nuclear material.

 (d) "Commission" means the Nuclear Regulator? Commission or its duly authorized representatives.

§ 79.2 Scope.

(a) Licenses issued under this Part are limited to the possession of power reactor spent fuel to be stored in a complex that is designed and constructed specifically for the temporary storage of power reactor spent fuel aged for at least one year, and to the possession of other radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage. (b) The regulations in this part apply to all persons in the United

States, including persons in Agreement States. (c) The requirements of this regulation are applicable, as appro-

priate, to both wet and dry modes of storage of spent fuel.

(d) Licenses covering the storage of spent fuel in an existing spent fuel storage facility shall be issued in accordance with the requirements of this part as stated in §72.31.

§ 72.3 Definitions.

As used in this part:

(a) "Act" means the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (68 Stat. 919) including any amendments thereto. (b) "As low as is reasonably, achievable" (ALARA) means as low as is reasonably achievable taking into account the state of technology, and the economics of improvements in relation to (1) benefits to the public health and safety, (2) other societal and socioeconomic considerations, and (3) the utilization of atomic seergy in the public interest.

(c) "Atomic energy" means all forms of energy released in the

course of nuclear fission or nuclear transformation. (d) "Byproduct material" means any radioactive material (except

special nuclear material) yielded in, or made radioactive by exposure to. the radiation incident to the process of producing or utilizing special nuclear material.

(e) "Commission" means the Nuclear Regulatory Commission or its

duly suthorized representatives

(a)Moved from \$72.1-Staff.

(c)Although previously covered in the Statement of Considerations, this statement needed to te included in the body of the rule-Public & Staff. (d)Broadened scope to cover not only previously licensed facilities, but also existing facilities subject to licensing under this rule. The reference to operating requirements was misleading as this term was not defined in the proposed rule. (b)Phrase added for consistency with other NRC regulationspublic & Staff.

(c)Added in response to Staff comment.



-



IMAGE EVALUATION TEST TARGET (MT-3)



MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART





-



IMAGE EVALUATION TEST TARGET (MT-3)



MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART

6"



(e) "Commencement of construction" means any clearing of land, excavation or other substantial action that would adversely affect the natural enwronment of a site, but does not mean.

(1) Changes desirable for the temporary use of the land for public recreational uses, necessary borings or evcavations to determine subsurface materials and foundation conditions or other preconstruction monitoring to establish background information related to the suitability of the site or to the protection of environmental values.

(2) Construction of environmental monitoring facilities:

(3) Procurement or manufacture of components of the installation.
 (f) "Confinement system" means

the containing ventilation those systems, including ventilation, those systems, including ventilation, between areas containing radioactive substances and the environment.

(g) "Controlled area" means that area immediately surrounding the ISFSI complex, the use of which is controlled by the licensee.

design of all or part of an ISFSI to of events selected for lation and/or experiments) of the ef-Design basis" means the parameter values associated with that level of severity of an external event or systems. to safe'y (in relation to that event or combination of events) will maintain their integrity and will not suffer loss of function during or after the event or before completing its design function. These values may be (1) restraints derived from generally accepted "statefor achieving functional goals, or (2) requirements derived from analysis (based on calcuunder which a structure, system, or component must meet its functional goals. fects of a postulated event and components important structures. practices insure that the combination of the art chu) :

(f) "Commencement of construction" means any clearing of land,

excavation, or other substantial action that would adversely affect the natural environment of a site, but does not mean:

(1) Changes desirable for the temporary use of the land for public recreational uses, necessary borings or excavations to determine subsurface materials and foundation conditions, or other preconstruction monitoring to establish background information related to the suitability of the site or to the protection of environmental values;

(2) Construction of environmental monitoring facilities;

(3) Procurement or manufacture of components of the installation; or (4) Construction of means of access to the site as may be necessary to accomplish the objectives of sections (1) and (2) above.
 (g) "Confinement systems" means those systems, including ventilation,

that act as barriers between areas containing radioactive substances and the environment.

(h) "Controlled area" means that area immediately surrounding an ISFSI for which the licensee exercises authority over its use and within which ISFSI operations are performed.

a facility and the specific values or ranges of values chosen for controlthe physical processes involved and (2) estimates of severe external man-The values for controlling parameters for external events (1) estimates of severe natural events to be used for deriving the associated parameters, physical data, or analysis of upper limits of on analysis of human activity in the region taking into account the site "Design bases" means that information that identifies the specific functions to be performed by a structure, system, or component of restraints derived from generally accepted "state-of-the-art" practices event under which a structure, system, or component must meet its funcnduced events to be used for deriving design bases that will be based design bases that will be based on consideration of historical data on These values may be for achieving functional goals or requirements derived from analysis based on calculation or experiments) of the effects of a postulated ling parameters as reference bounds for design. cional goals. nclude:

(4)Added in response to Public comment.

(g)Phrase added to improve clarity-Staff.

(h)Re defined to clarify term used in Subpart E-Public & Staff. (i)Clarification of definition and expanded definition of this term as used in the rule-Staff.

A-6

characteristics and the risks associated with the event

(i) "Historical data" means a compi- ation of the available information	(j) "Design capacity" means the quantity in metric tons of spent	(j)Previously shown as a foot-
oncerning a particular type of event ericed from human history	ruel, its maximum burnup in MMD/MTU, and the total heat generation in	note to \$72.15-Staff.
(j) "Independent spent fuel storage	Btu per hour that an ISFSI is designed to accommodate.	
nstallation (ISFSI)" means a self-con- ained installation designed for the	(k) "Floodplain" means the lowland and relatively flat areas	
torage of spent fuel and capable of in- sependent operation with all neces.	adjoining inland and coastal waters including flood-prone areas of offshore	
ary supporting services.	islands. Areas subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding	(k)Added definition-Staff.
area immediately surrounding the con-	in any given year are included.	
trolled area in which population distri- bution and density and land and water	(1) "Historical data" means a compilation of the available published	Albavicad to impuno alamitu
uses are considered with respect to the possibility of implementing contingen-	and unpublished information concerning a particular type of event.	revised to improve claricy.
cy measures.	<pre>(m) "Independent spent fuel storage installation" (ISFSI) means a</pre>	(m)Reworded to improve clarity-
Wronmental Policy Act of 1969 includ-	complex designed and constructed for the storage of spent fuel and other	Staff.
<pre>Ing any amendments thereto. (m) "Person" means (1) any individ.</pre>	radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage. An ISFSI which	
ual, corporation, partnership, firm, as-	is located on the site of another facility may share common utilities	
vate institution, group, Government	and services with such a facility and be physically connected with such	
Energy other than the Department of Energy (DOE), except that the DOE	other facility and still be considered to be independent, provided that	
shall be considered a person within the meaning of the regulations of this	such sharing of utilities and services or physical connections does not	
part to the extent that its facilities	(i) increase the probability or consequences of an accident or malfunction	
ng and related regulatory authority	of components, structures or systems that are important to safety; or	
	(ii) reduce the margin of safety as defined in the basis for any technical	
	specifications of either facility."	
	(n) "ISFSI-emergency planning zone" (ISFSI-EPZ) means that area in	(n)Term neichboring area re-
	the vicinity of an ISFSI within which protective action measures may be	pl ced by the term ISFSI-
	needed in the event of an accident at an ISFSI.	Emergency Planning Zone-Staff.
	(o) "NEPA" means the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969	
	including any amendments thereto.	
	(p) "Person" means (1) any individual, corporation, partnership,	
	firm, association, trust, estate, public or private institution, group,	
	Government agency other than the Nuclear Regulatory Commission or the	
	Department of Energy (DOE), except that the DOE shall be considered a	
	person within the meaning of the regulations in this part to the extent	
	that its facilities and activities are subject to the vicensing and related	
	A-7	

of the Commission pursuant to section 202 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (88 Stat. 1244), any State or any political subdivision of, or any political entity within 2 State, any foreign government or nation or any political subdivision of any such government or nation, or other entity; and (2) any legal successor, representative, agent, or agency of the foregoing.

(n) "Region" means a geographical are: surrounding and including the site sufficiently large to contain all the feature related to a phenomenon or to the effect from a particular event.

(o) "S ' means the real property on whic ne ISFSI is located. The site incluses the controlled area.

(p) "Source material" means (1) uranium or thorium, or any coribination thereof, in any physical or chemical form or (2) ores which contain by weight one-twentieth of 1 percent (0.05%) or more of (i) uranium, (ii) thorium, or (iii) any combination thereof. Source material does not include special nuclear material.

(q) "Special nuclear material" means (1) plutonium, uranium 233, uranium enriched in the isotope 233 or in the isotope 235, and any other material which the Commission, pursuant to the provisions of section 51 of the Act, determines to be special nuclear material, but does not include source material, but does not include source material; or (2) any material artifically enriched by any of the foregoing but does not include source material.

(r) "Spent fuel" suitable for storage in an ISFSI means irradiated light water reactor nuclear power plant fuel which has undergone at least one year's decay since reactor shutdown. regulatory authority of the Commission pursuant to Section 202 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (88 Stat. 1244); (2) any State; any political subdivision of a state, or any political antity within a State, (3) any foreign government or nation, or any political subdivision of any such government or nation, or other entity; and (4) any legal successor, representative, agent, or agency of the foregoing.

(q) "Population" means the people that may be affected by the change in env-commental conditions due to the construction, operation, or decommissioning of an ISFSI.

(r) "Region" means the geographical area surrounding and including the site, which is large enough to contain (1) all the features related to a phenomenon or to a particular event that could potentially impact the safety of the ISFSI and (2) all measurable effects of environmental impact, both radiological and nonradiological, that are due to the construction, operation or decommissioning of an ISFSI.

(s) "Site" means the real property on which the ISFSI is located.

(t) "Source material" means (1) uranium or thorium, or any combination thereof, in any physical or chemical form or (2) ores that contain by weight one-twentieth of one percent (0.05%) or more of (i) uranium.
(ii) thorium, or (iii) any combination thereof. Source material does not include special nuclear material.

(u) "Special nuclear material" means (1) plutonium, uranium 233, uranium enriched in the isotope 233 or in the isotope 235, and any other material which the Commission, pursuant to the provisions of section 51 of the Act, determines to be special nuclear material, but does not include source material; or (2) any material artificially enriched by any of the foregoing but does not include source material.

(v) "Spent fuel" as used in this Part means irradiated nuclear fuel that has undergone at least one year's decay since being used as a source of energy in a power reactor. Spent fuel includes the special nuclear material, byproduct material, source material, and other radioactive materials associated with fuel assemblies. (q;Added definition.

(r)Revised to improve clarity and broaded scope of definition.

(v)Revised to improve clarity and broaden scope to other than LWR ruels. Second statement moved from previous \$72.2 -Staff. (s) "Structures, systems and components important to safety" means those items whose function is to (1) maintain the required spent fuel storage conditions, (2) prevent damage to the spent fuel during transfer and storage, (3) protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation in excess of design objectives.

§72.4 Communications.

Except where otherwise specified, all communications and reports concerning the regulations in this part and applications filed under them should be addressed to:

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Division of Fuci Cycle and Material Safety, Washington, D.C. 20555

Communications, reports, and applications may be delivered in person at the Commission's Offices at:

7915 Eastern Avenue, Silver Spring, Md., or 1717 H Street NW, Washington, D.C.

§72.5 Interpretations.

Except as specifically authorized by the Commission in writing, no interpretation of the meaning of the regulations in this part by any officer or employee of the Commission other than a written interpretation by the General Counsel will be recognized to be binding upon the Commission. (w) "Structures, systems, and components important to safety" means those features of the ISFSI whose function is (1) to maintain the conditions required to store spent fuel safely, (2) to prevent damage to the spent fuel during handling and storage, or (3) to provide reasonable assurance that spent fuel can be received, handled, stored and retrieved without undue risk to the health and safety of the public.

(x) "Temporary storage" means the interim storage, protection, and safeguarding of spent fuel and radioactive materials associated with spent fuel storage, for a limited time only, pending its ultimate disposal.

§ 72.4 Communications.

Except where otherwise specified, all communications and reports concerning the regulations in this Part and applications filed under them should be addressed to The Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards, Division of Fuel Cycle and Material Safety, Washington, D.C. 20555. Communications, reports, and applications may be delivered in person at the Commission's Offices at 7915 Eastern Avenue, Silver Spring, Maryland, or at 1717 H Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.

§ 72.5 Interpretations.

Except as specifically authorized by the Commission in writing, no interpretation of the meaning of the regulations in this part by any officer or employee of the Commission, other than a written interpretation by the General Counsel, will be recognized to be binding upon the Commission. (w)Revised for consistency with
other NRC regulations-Public &
Staff

(x)Adjed definition-Public & Staff.

§72.4 Added specific office for clarity.

§ 72.6 License required.

(a) No person may receive title to, own, acquire, receive, or possess special nuclear material, byproduct material, or source material in spent fuelfor the purpose of storage in an independent spent fuel storage installation except as authorized by the general license in §72.7, or as authorized in a specific license issued by the Commission in accordance with the regulations in this part.

(b) Licenses for special nuclear mater.al are of two types: General and specific. Any general license provided in this part is effective without the filing of applications with the Commission or the issuance of licensing documents to particular persons. Specific licenses are issued to named persons upon applications filed pursuant to the regulations in this part.

§ 72.7 General license to own spent fuel.

A general license is hereby issued to receive title to and own source material, special nuclear material and byproduct material contained in spent fuel without regard to quantity. Regardless of any other provision of this chapter, a general licensee under this section is not authorized to acquire, deliver, receive, or possess source material, special nuclear material and byproduct material contained in spent fuel, except as authorized in a specific license.

§ 72.8 Specific exemptions.

The Commission may, upon application by any interested person or upon its own initiative, grant such exemptions from the requirements of the regulations in this part as it determines are authorized by law and will not endanger life or property or the common defense and security and are otherwise in the public interest.

§ 72.9 Denial of licensing by agreement states.

Licenses covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI will not be issued by Agreement States.

§ 72.6 License Required; Types of Licenses.

(a) Licenses for spent fuel are of two types: general and specific. Any general license provided in this part is effective without the filing of applications with the Commission or the issuance of licensing documents to particular persons. Specific licenses are issued to named persons upon applications filed pursuant to the regulations in this part.

(b) A general license is hereby issued to receive title to and own spent fuel without regard to quantity.

(c) No person may acquire, receive, or possess spent fuel or radioactive material associated with spent fuel for the purpose of storage in an independent spent fuel storage installation except as authorized in a specific license issued by the Commission in accordance with the regulations in this part.

§ 72.7 Specific Exemptions.

The Commission may, upon application by any interested person or upon its own initiative, grant such exemptions from the requirements of the regulations in this Part as it determines are authorized by law and will not endanger life or property or the common defense and security and are otherwise in the public interest.

§ 72.8 Denial of Licensing by Agreement States.

Agreement States may not issue licenses covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI.

§§ 72.6 &72.7 combined to improve continunity & to emphasize that spent fuel is the licensed material & clarify the applicability of general versus specific license.

Subpart 5-License Application, Form, Contents

§ 72.11 Filing of applications for licenses: oath or affirmation.

(a) Place of filing. Each application for a license under this part, or amendment thereof, should be filed with:

The Director, Division of Fuel Cycle and Material Safety, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555.

Applications, communications, reports, and correspondence may be delivered in person at the Commission's offices at 7915 Eastern Avenue, Silver Spring, Md., or 1717 H Street NW., Washington, D.C.

(b) Oath or affirmation. Each application for a license or license amendment, including amendment: to such applications, should be executed in three signed originals by the applicant or duly authorized officer thereof under oath or affirmation.

(c) Number of copies of applications. Each filing of an application for a license or license amendment under this part (including amendments to such applications) shall include in addition to three signed originals the required documents listed in Table I in the number of copies specified.

(d) Fees. The application, amendment and inspection fees applicable to a license covering the storage of spent fuels in an ISFSI are those shown in § 170.31 of this chapter.

§ 72.12 Elimination of repetition.

In any application, under this part, the applicant may incorporate by reference information contained in previous applications, statements or reports filed with the Commission: *Provided*. That such references are clear and specific.

§ 72.13 Public inspection of applications.

Applications and documents submitted to the Commission in connection with applications may be made available for public inspection in accordance with provisions of the regulations contained in Part 2 and Part 9 of this chapter.

Subpart 8 - License Application, Form, Contents

§ 72.11 Filing of Applications for Specific Licenses; Oath or Affirmation.

(a) <u>Place of filing</u>. Each application for a license, or amendment thereof, under this Part should be filed with the Director, Division of fuel Cycle and Material Safety, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555.

A plications, communications, reports and correspondence may also be delivered in person at the Commission's offices at 7915 Eastern Avenue, Silver Spring, Maryland, or at 1717 H Street, NW., Washington, D.C. (b) <u>Oath or affirmation</u>. Each application for a license or license amendment (including amendments to such applications) shall be executed in an original signed by the applicant or duly authorized officer thereof

under oath or affirmation.

(c) <u>Number of copies of applications</u>. Each filing of an application for a license or license amendment under this Part (including amendments to such applications) shall include, in addition to the signed originals, the documents listed in §72.21.

(d) Fees. The application, amendment, and renewal fees applicable to a license covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI are those shown in § 170.31 of this chapter.

§ 72.12 Elimination of Repetition.

In any application under this part, the applicant may incorporate by reference information contained in previous applications, statements, or reports filed with the Commission: <u>Provided</u>, that such references are clear and specific.

§ 72.13 Public Inspection of Applications.

Applications and documents submitted to the Commission in connection with applications may be made available for public inspection in accordance with provisions of the regulations contained in Part 2 and Part 9 of this chapter.

(a)Added specific office for clarity.

CONTENTS OF APPLICATION

§72.14 Contents of application: General and financial information.

Each application shall state; (a) Full name of applicant:

(b) Address of applicant:

(c) Description of business or occu-

pation of applicant;

(d) (1) If applicant is an individual, state citizenship and age.

TABLE I.- Required licensing documents

Section	Document	No. of copies
72.11	License application	25
72.15	Safety analysis report	20
72.19	Emergency plan	25
72.20	Environmental report	150
72.34	Report of installation and procedures changes	112
72.36	Application for transfer of license	25
72.38	Application for termination of license	- 25
72.39	Amendment to license	125
72.75	Quality assurance program	25
72.81(a)	Physical security plan	10
72.81(c)	Safeguards contingency plan	10
72.94	Personnel training program	10

'Plus 3 signed originals.

Plus 1 signed original.

*Physical protection plans should be held exempt from public disclosure pursuant to 10 CFR 2 790(d)

(2) If applicant is a partnership, state name, citizenship and address of each partner and the principal location where the partnership does business.

(3) If applicant is a corporation or an unincorporated association, state:

(i) The State, where it is incorporated or organiled and the principal location where it three business;

(ii) The names, as 'resses and citizenship of its directors and principal officers.

(4) If the applicant is acting as an agent or representative of another person in filing the application, identify the principal and furnish information required under this paragraph with respect to such principal.

(e) Information sufficient to demonstrate to the Commission the financial qualifications of the applicant to carry out, in accordance with the regulations in this chapter, the activities for § 72.14 Contents of Application: General and Financial Information.

Each application shall state:

(a) Full name of applicant;

(b) Address of applicant;

- (c) Description of business or occupation of applicant;
- (d) If applicant is:

(1) an individual: citizenship and age;

(2) a partnership: name, citizenship, and address of each

partner and the principal location at which the partnership does business;

(3) a corporation or an unincorporated association:

(i) the State in which it is incorporated ... organized and the principal location at which it does business; and

(ii) the names, addresses, and citizenship of its directors and principal officers; or

(4) acting as an agent or representative of another person in filing the application: the identification of the principal and the information required under this paragraph with respect to such principal.

(e) Information sufficient to demonstrate to the Commission the financial qualifications of the applicant to carry out, in accordance with the regulations in this chapter, the activities for which the license which the license is sought. This information shall state the place at which the activity is to be performed, the general plan for carrying out the activity and the period of time for which the license is requested. The information, shall show that the applicant either possesses the necessary funds or that the applicant has reasonable assurance of obtaining the necessary funds, or that by a combination of the two, the applicant will have the necessary funds available to cover the following:

(1) Estimated construction costs.

(2) Estimated operating costs over | the planned life of the installation.

(3) Estimated shutdown and decommissioning costs and the necessary financial arrangements prior to licensing that will insure shutdown, decontamination and decommissioning will be carried out.

\$72.15 Contents of application: Technical information.

Each application for a license under this part shall include: (a) Safety Analysis Report describing the proposed installation (ISFSI) for the storage of spent fuel, including how the ISFSI will be operated. The minimum information to be included in this report shall consist of the following:

(1) A description and safety assessment of the site on which the ISFSI is to be located, with appropriate attention to features affecting installation design. Such assessment shall contain an analysis and evaluation of the major structures, systems and components of the ISFSI which bear on the suitability of the site assuming that the installation will be operated at the ultimate capacity' which is contemplated by the applicant.

(2) A description and discussion of the ISFSI structures with special attention to design and operating characteristics, unusual or novel design features, and principal safety considerations. is sought. This information shall state the place at which the activity is to be performed, the general plan for carrying out the activity, and the period of time for which the license is requested. The information shall show that the applicant either possesses the necessary funds, or that the applicant has reasonable assurance of obtaining the necessary funds; or that by a combination of the two, the applicant will have the necessary funds available to cover the following:

(1) Estimated construction loss;

(2) Estimated operating costs over the planned life of the $\underline{\rm ISFS1}$ complex; and

§ 72.15 Contents of Application: Technical Information.

(a) Each application for a license under this part shall include a Safety Analysis Report describing the proposed ISFSI for the storage of spent fuel, including how the ISFSI will be operated. The minimum information to be included in this report shall consist of the following:

(1) A description and safety assessment of the site on which the ISFSI is to be located, with appropriate attention to the design bases for external events. Such assessment shall contain an analysis and evaluation of the major structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI that bear on the suitability of the site when the ISFSI is operated at its design capacity. If the proposed ISFSI is to be located on the site of a nuclear power plant or other licensed facility, the potential interactions between the ISFSI and such other facility shall be evaluated.

(2) A description and discussion of the ISFSI structures with special attention to design and operating __aracteristics, unusual or novel design features, and principal safety considerations.

(3)Reworded to improve clarity.

 Provide inification and discuss the interactions between colocated facilities. Staff. (3) The preliminary design of the installation including:

(i) The principal design criteria for the installation pursuant to subpart F of this part, with any additions to or departures from the general design criteria identified and justified.

 The design bases and the relatic of the design bases to the principr, design criteria;

(iii) Information relative to materials of construction general arrangement, and approximate dimensions, sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the final design will conform to the design bases with an adequate margin for safety; and

(iv) Applicable codes and standards. (4) A preliminary analysis and evaluation of the design and performance of structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI with the objective of assessing the risk to public health and safety resulting from operation of the installation and including deternination of

 (i) The margins of safety during normal operations and expected operational occurrences during the life of the installation and

(ii) The adequacy of structures, systems, and components provided for the prevention of accidents and the mitigation of the consequences of accidents, including natural and manmade phenomena and events.

(5) The means for controlling and limiting occupational radiation exposures to meet the objective of as low as is reasonably achievable and the limits shown in Part 20 of this chapter.

(6) The features of ISFSI design and operating modes to minimize waste volumes generated by the facility.

(7) An identification and justification for the selection of those variables, conditions, or other items which are determined as the result of the safety analysis and evaluation to be probable subjects of license conditions, with special attention given to those (3) The design of the ISFSI in sufficient detail to support the

findings in §72.31, including:

 (i) The design criteria for the <u>ISFSI</u> pursuant to Subpart F of this Part, with identification and justification for any additions to or departures from the general design criteria;

 (ii) The design bases and the relation of the design bases to the design criteria;

(iii) Information relative to materials of construction, general arrangement, di ensions of principal structures, and descriptions of all structures, systems, and components important to safety, in sufficient detail to support a finding that the ISFSI will satisfy the design bases with an adequate margin for safety, and

(iv) Applicable codes and standards.

(4) An analysis and evaluation of the design and performance of structures, systems, and components important to safety, with the objective of assessing the impact on public health and safety resulting from operation of the ISFSI and including determination of:

(i) the margins of safety during normal operations and expected operational occurrences during the life of the <u>ISFSI</u>; and

(ii) the adequacy of structures, systems, and components provided for the prevention of accidents and the mitigation of the consequences of accidents, including natural and man-made phenomena and events.

(5) The means for controlling and limiting occupational radiation exposures within the limits given in Part 20 of t.'s chapter, and for meeting the objective of exposures as low as is reasonably achievable.

(6) The features of ISFSI design and operating modes to maintain low waste volumes.

(7) An identification and justification for the selection of those subjects that will be probable license conditions and technical specifications. Such subjects shall cover the design, construction, operation, and decommissioning of the ISFSI. (3) Defines the detail required in the SAR. Staff.

(iii) Reworded to improve clarity. Public & Staff.

(4) A detailed not preliminary analysis is required. Public & Staff.

(7) Reworded to be consistent with the single license/one SAR concept. Staff.

[&]quot;Capacity" in this context refers to the quantity in metric tons of spent fuel, its contained radioactivity (curies) and heat generation rate (Btu/hr).

items which may significantly influence the final design of the installation.

(8) A preliminary plan for the applicant's organization. training of personnel pursuant to \$72.91, and conduct of operations. including the planned managerial and administrative controls system.

(9) An identification of those strucsearch and de signment to confirm safety questions associated with such to the initial receipt of materials to be stored at the ISFSI. systems or components of the Ullication and description of the reand development program which will be conducted to resolve any components; and a schedule i' the research and development program showing that such safety questions will be resolved prior installation, if any, which require rethe adequacy of their design, an idenstructures, systems or search tures.

(10) The technical qualifications of the applicant to engage in the proposed activities as required by $\S72.17$. (11) A description of the applicant's plans for coping with emergencies as required by $\S72.19$.

(12) A description of the equipment to be installed to maintain control over radioactive mater ...s in gaseous and liquid effluents produced during normal operations and expected operational occurrences. The description shall identify the design objectives, and the means to be employed, for keeping levels of radioactive material in effluents to unrestricted areas as low as reasonably achievable and within the limits shown in Part 20 of this chaper. The description shall include:

(i) An estimate of:

(A) The quantity of each of the principal radionuclides expected to be relleased annually to unrestricted areas in liquid effluents produced during normal ISFSI operations; and

(B) The quantity of each of the principal radionuclides expected to be released annually to unrestricted areas in gaseous effluents produced during normal ISFSI operations.

(ii) A general description of the protions for packaging, storage, and disposal of solid wastes containing radioactive materials resulting from treatment of gaseous and liquid effleunts and from other sou ces.

(8) A plan for the conduct of operations, including the planned managerial and administrative controls system, and the applicant's organization, and program for the training of personnel pursuant to Subpart I of this Part.

(9) If the proposed ISFSI incorporates structures, systems, or components important to safety whose functional adequacy or reliability have not been demonstrated by prior use for that purpose or cannot be demonstrated by reference to performance data in related applications or to widely accepted engineering principles ~ an identification of such structures, systems, or components along with a schedule showing how such safety questions will be resolved prior to the initial receipt of spent fuel for storage at the ISFSI.

(10) The technical qualifications of the applicant to engage in the proposed activities, as required by § 72.17 of this Part.

(11) A description of the applicant's plans for coping with emergencies, as required by § 72.19 of this part. (12) A description of the equipment to be installed to maintain control over radioactive materials in gaseous and liquid effluents produced during normal operations and expected operational occurrences. The description shall identify the design objectives and the means to be used for keeping levels of radioactive material in effluents to the environment at low as is reasonably achievable and within the exposure limits stated in § 72.67 of this part. The description shall include: (i) An estimate of the quantity of each of the principal radionuclides expected to be released annually to the environment in liquid and gaseous effluents produced during normal ISFSI operations; and prior to the first receipt of spent fuel, a second estimate confirming the original estimate or, if the expected releases and exposures are significantly.

different from the original estimate;

(ii) A description of the equipment and processes used in radioactive waste systems; and

(9) Reworded to improve clarity and provide consistency. Public & Staff.

 (i) Previous (i)(A) & (B) combined The term environment used instead of unrestricted area. (iii) A description of the equipment and procedures for the maintenance and use of equipment installed in radioactive waste systems.

(iv) Prior to the first receipt of material to be stored, a revised estimate of the infomation required in paragraph (a)(12x(i)(B) of this section if the e pected releases and exposures dif r significantly from the estimates submitted in the application.

(v) A description of the measures taken to control the quantities of radioactive wastes for offsite disposal to as low as reasonably achievable levels.

(13) A conservative analysis of the potential dose to an individual off site from accidents and natural phenomena which result in (i) criticality. (ii) release of radioactive materials to the site and surrounding areas, and (iii) the loss of water for water pool type installations. The calculations of dose from 2n, pathway may be limited to direct exposure, inhalation or ingestion occurring within 24 hours of the postulated event.

(b) Periodically during design and normally prior to construction, with final completion at least 90 days prior to the planned receipt of materials to be stored, and annually thereafter, the safety analysis report (SAR) will be updated and submitted to the Commission for approval and shall include the following:

(1) All current information relating to applicable site evaluation factors, including the results of environmental monitoring programs.

(2) A description and analysis of changes in the structures, systems, and components of the installation, with emphasis upon performance requirements, the bases, with technical justification therefor, upon which such requirements have been established, and the evaluations required to show that safety functions will be accomplished.

(1) Such items as the instrumentation and control systems, ventilation and filter systems, electrical systems, auxiliary and emergency systems, and radioactive waste handling systems shall be discussed insofar as they are pertinent. (iii) A general description of the provisions for packaging, storage, and disposal of solid wastes containing radioactive materials resulting from treatment of gasaous and liquid effluents and from other sources.

(13) An analysis of the potential dose or <u>dose commitment</u> to an individual <u>outside the controlled area</u> from accidents or natural phenomena events that result in the release of radioactive material to the environment or direct radiation from the ISFSI. The calculations of individual dose or dose commitment shall be performed for direct exposure, inhalation, and ingestion occurring as a result of the postulated design basis event.

- (v) Deleted as redundant and improper application of ALARA principle. Staff.
- (13) Reworded to better define requirement for dose analysis from accidents & natural phenomena. Such analysis should be on the duration of the event, not on an arbitrary time limit. Public & Staff.

(3) A final analysis and evaluation of the design ard performance of structures galens, and components taking into account any pertinent information developed since the submittal of the license application.

(c) A description of the quality assurance program to be applied to the design, fabrication, construction, testing and operation of the safety-related structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI as required by §72.75. The description of the quality assurance program shall identify safety-related structures, systems and components and shall show how the criteria in Appendix B of Part 50 of this chapter will be applied to such identified safety-related components, systems, and structures in a manife consistent with their importance to safet.

(d) A description of the detailed security measures for physical protection, including design features and a plan as required by § 72.81.

(e) A description of the planned program covering preoperational testing and initial operations.

(f) The decommissioning plan reguired under § 72.18 of this part.

§72.16 Contents of application: license conditions.

Each application under this part shall include proposed license conditions in accordance with the requirements of § 72.33 together with a summary statement of the bases or reasons for such conditions.

§72.17 Contents of application: technical qualifications.

An application under this part shall include:

(a) The technical qualifications, including training and experience of the applicant and members of the applicant's staff to engage in the proposed activities in accordance with the regulations in this chapter.

(b) A description of the personnel training program required under Subpart I of this part.

(c) A commitment by the applicant to have an adequate complement of trained and certified plant personnel prior to the receipt of spent fuel for storage. (14) A description of the quality assurance program to be applied to the design, fabrication, construction, testing, and operation of the structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI important to safety, as required by § 72.80. The description of the quality assurance program shall identify structures, systems and components important to safety and shall show how the criteria in Appendix 8 to Part 50 of this chapter will be applied to those safety-related components, systems, and structures in a manner consistent with their importance to safety.

(15) A description of the detailed security measures for physical protection, including design features and the plans required by Subpart H of this Part.

(16) A description of the program covering preoperational testing and initial operations.

(17) A description of the decommissioning plan required under § 72.18 of this Part.

§ 72.16 Contents of Application: Technical Specifications

Each application under this Part shall include proposed technical specifications in accordance with the requirements of § 72.33 and a summary statement of the bases and justifications for these technical specifications.

§ 72.17 Contents of Application: Applicant's Technical Qualifications.

Each application under this Part shall include:

(a) The technical qualifications, including training and experience,

of the applicant to engage in the proposed activities.

(b) A description of the personnel training program required under Subpart I of this Part.

(c) A description of the applicants' operating organization, delegations of responsibility and authority, and the minimum skills and experience qualifications relevant to the various levels of responsibility and authority.

(d) A commitment by the applicant to have and maintain an adequate complement of trained and certified plant personnel prior to the receipt of spent fuel for storage.

(14) This section was reorganized for improved clarity. Staff.

(15) Reference updated.

\$ 72.16 The term "technical specifications" was adopted as being more definitive of the type of license conditions addressed. Staff.

(c) Section rewritten to better express intent of this requirement.

100	
-746	
12	
22	
2	
-	
12	
e.	
22	
1.16	
52	
30	
-	
See.	
14	
8	
- 22	
52	
0	
-	
2	
- 24	
12	- 04
22	. 55
8	225
6	- 2
ω.	12
4	22
200	. 16
	22
	-
30	10
and a	100
22	-
12	

plan (a) Each application under this part shall include a decommissioning plan the which shall contain information on proposed procedures for the disposal of radioactive material, decontamination of the site and other procedures, ance that the dismantling and disposal of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life will not be inimical to the common defense and security or to the health have been selected to facilitate to the maxithe its useful life. This plan shall include provisions for minimizing the amount of solid, airborne and liquid sufficient to provide reasonable assurmum degree reasonable its decontamidecommisnation and decommissioning at design features which Th shall include an evaluation and safety of the public. wastes generated during end of sioning. ISFSI

(b) The decommissioning plan will include the financial arrangements for its execution.

§ 72.19 Emergency plan.

An application to store spent fuel in an ISFSI, will include plans for coping with emergences. These plans shall contain the elements that are listed in Section IV. "Content of Emergency Plans" of Appendix E to Part 50 of this chapter.

§ 72.20 Environmental report.

Each application for a license under this part shall be accompanied by an Environmental Report which meets the requirements of Part 51 of this ichapter; 150 copies are required.

72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including Financing

(e)

(a) Each application under this part shall include a proposed decommissioning plan that contains sufficient information on proposed practices and procedures for the decontamination of the site and facilities and for disposal of residual radioactive meterials after all spent fuel has been removed, in order to provide reasonal a ssurance that the decontamination and decommissioning of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life will provide adequate protection to the health and safety of the public. This plan shall identify and discuss those design features of the ISFSI that facilitate its decontamination and decommissioning at the end of its useful life

(b) The decommissioning plan shall include the financial arrangements made by the applicant to provide reasonable assurance that the planned decontamination and decommissioning of the ISFSI will be carried out. § 72.19 Emergency Plan.

An application to store spent fuel in an ISFSI shall include plans for coping with emergencies. These plans shall contain the elements that are listed in Section IV, "Content of Emergency Plans," of Appendix E to

Part 50 of this chapter.

§ 72.20 Environmental Report.

E ch application for a license under this part shall we accompanied by

an Environmental Report which meets the requirements of Part 51 of this chapter

- Rewritten to improve clarity on the requirements of the decommissioning plan. One objective of the proposed decommissioning plan is to provide input for design decommissioning. Public & Staff.
- (b) Reworded to improve clarity
 & better define requirements.

§ 72.21 Required Licensing Documents

Section	Document	No. of Copies	Signed
72.14	License Application	25	Uriginais
72.15	Safety Analysis Report ^a	70	
72.18	Decommissioning Plana/	25	
72.19	Emergency Plana/	25	
72.20	Environmental Report ^{4/}	150	
72.35(b)	Report of ISFSI Design and Procedures Changes	25	3
72.36(b)	Application for Transfer of License	25	3
72.38	Application for Termination of License	25	3
72,39	Amendment to License	25	3
72,80	Quality Assurance Program ^{3/}	25	
72.81	Physical Security Plan# / D/	10	
72,82	Design for Physical Protection ^{2/b/}	10	
72.83	Safeguards Contingency Planª/b/	10	
72.84	Changes to Physical Security and Contingency Plans	10	
72.92	Personnel Training Program	25	

a/Submitted with license application.

5/Physical protection plans will be withheld from public disclosure by

the NRC.

§ 72.31 Issuance of Licenses.

(a) The Commission will issue a license under this part and updated prior to the receipt of spent fuel in such form and containing such conditions and limitations as it deems appropropriate or necessary upon a determination that an application for a license meets the standards and requirements of the act and regulations, that the applicant's proposed site, installation and equipment for the storage of spent fuel are adequate to protect health and minimize danker to life or property, and that:

Subport C-Issuance and Conditions of licenses

(1) The proposed site complies with the requirements of § 72.66.

. (2) The applicant is qualified by reason of training and experience to conduct the operation covered by the regulations in this part.

(3) The applicant's personnel training program complies with Subpart I of this part.

Subpart C - issuance and Conditions of Licenses

§ 72.31 Issuance of Licenses.

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (c) of this section, the Commission will issue a license under this Part upon a determination that the application for a license meets the standards and requirements of the Act and the regulations of the Commission, and upon finding hat:

(1) The applicant's proposed ISFSI design complies with Subpart F

of this part;

(2) The proposed site complies with the criteria in Subpart E of this Part;

(3) If on the site of a nuclear power plant or other licensed activity or facility, the proposed ISFSI would not pose an undue risk to the safe operation of such nuclear power plant or other licensed activity or facility;

(4) The applicant is qualified by reason of training and experience to conduct the operation covered by the regulations in this Part; § 72.31 was extensively revised and new sections added

§ 72.21 Table moved from

§ 72.14. Updated list. Public.

(1) Reference updated.

(2) Reference updated.

(3) New Section.

(4) The applicant's proposed operating procedures to protect health and to minimize darger to life or property are adequate.

(5) The applicant is financially qualified to engage in the proposed activities in accordance with the regulations in this part.

(6) The applicant's physical security plan complies with § 72.81.

(7) The applicant's quality assurance plan complies with § 72.75.

(8) The applicant's emergency plan complies with § 72 19.

(9) The applicant's decommissioning plan and its financing pursuant to § 72.18 are adequate.

(10) Before commencement of construction of the installation, the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards or his designee. has concluded, or after a public hearing, the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board has made the finding that on the basis of information filed and evaluations made pursuant to Part 51 of this chapter, and after weighing the environmental, economic, technical and other benefits against environmental costs and considering available alternatives, that the action called for is the issuance of the proposed license. with any appropriate conditions to protect environmental values. Commencement of construction prior to such conclusion or finding may be grounds for denial of a license to store spent fuel in an ISFSI.

(11) No license will be issued by the Commission to any person within the United States if the Commission finds that the issuance of such a license would be inimical to the common defense and security or would constitute an unreasonable risk to the health and safety of the public. (5) The applicant's proposed operating procedures to protect health

and to minimize danger to life or property are adequate;

(6) The applicant is financially qualified to engage in the proposed activities in accordance with the regulations in this Part;

(7) The applicant's quality assurance plan complies with <u>Subpart G</u> of this Part;

(8) The applicant's physical protection provisions comply with Subpart H of this Part;

(9) The applicant's personnel training program complies with Sub-

part I of this Part,

(10) The applicant's decommissioning plan and its financing pursuant to § 72.18 of this Part provide reasonable assurance that the decontamination and decommissioning of the ISESI at the end of its useful life will provide adequate protection to the health and safety of the public;

(11) The applicant's emergency plan complies with § 72.19 of this

Part;

(12) The applicable provisions of Part 170 of this chapter have been satisfied;

(13) There is reasonable assurance that (i) the activities authorized by the license can be conducted without endangering the health and safety of the public and (ii) such activities will be conducted in compliance with the applicable regulations of this Chapter; and

(14) The issuance of the license will not be inimical to the common defense and security.

(b) Grounds for denial for a licen e to store spent fuel in the proposed ISFSI may be commencement of construction prior to a conclusion or finding by the Director of the Office of Fuciear Materials Safe. and Safeguards or his designee or after a public hearing, the Presiding Officer, Atomic Safety and Licensing Board, or the Commission acting as a collegial body, as appropriate, on the basis of information filed and (7) Reference updated.

(8) Reference L dated.

(10) Reworded to improve clarity & better define requirements.

(12) New section.

(13) Formally covered in (a)
of this subpart.

evaluations made pursuant to Part 51 of this chapter, and after weighing the environmental, economic, technical and other benefits against envicosts and considering available alternatives, that the action Icense with any appropriate called for is the issuance of the propose conditions to protect environmental values ronmenta i

this chapter, a reevaluation of the site is not r.quired except where new nformation is discovered which could alter the original site evaluation For facilities that have been covered under previous lice sing actions including the issuance of a Construction Permit unde. Part 50 of findings. In this case, the site evaluation factors involved will be eevaluated.

Duration of License; Renewal \$ 72.32

Each license will be issued for a fixed period of time to be specified in

Duration of license; renewal.

72.32

the license but not to exceed 20 years. Licenses may be renewed by the Commission upon expiration of that period, upon application of the licens-

that

10

Each license issued under this Part shall be for a fixed period Licenses may be renewed by the Commission at the of time to be specified in the license but not to exceed 20 years from expiration of that period upon application of the licensee. the date of issua ce. (a)

Applications for renewal of a license should be filed in accordance with the applicable provisions of Subpart 8 of this Part at least with the Commission under the license may be incorporated by reference cion contained in previous applications, statements, or reports filed two years prior to the expiration of the existing license. Informa-Provided, that surn references are clear and specific. (q)

to expiration of his existing license, has filed an application in proper until a final decision concerning the application for renewal has been In any case in which a licensee, not less than 2 years prior form for renewal of a license, such existing license shall not expire made by the Commission.

§ 72.33 License Conditions.

tions included in the safety analysis report and amendments thereto submitted The license conditions may be derived from the analyses and evalua-Each license issued under this part shall include license condi-(P) tions.

Staff New section. (c)

Reworded to improve clar-Public & Staff. ity. (a)

added in response to comments. Redundant, but section Public. (9)

NRC consistency with other Section added for Staff regulations. (c)

(b) & technical \$72.33 was restructured to cover legal & administrative (c) subjects under subjects under

5 72.33 License conditions.

part will include license conditions. The license conditions will be derived from the analyses and evaluations in-(a) Each license issued under this

worded to cover trainees under specification" is considered Re-The term "technical See former (c)(5). more meaningful in this former (c)(1) See former (c)(4) See former (c)(3) See former (c)(2) Public (b) See former (c). Staff supervision. See context. (c) (4) (1) (2) (2) (3) construction and operation. The Commission may also include such additional (3) Upon request of the Commission, the licensee shall, at any time full information. find that the transfer is in accordance with the provibefore expiration of the license, submit written statements, signed under oath or affirmation, to enable the Commission to determine whether or not training and certification of ISFSI personnel that meets the requirements pursuant to § 72.15 of this part. License conditions pertain to design, fication, or amendment in accordance with the procedures provided by the has certified as being adequately trained to perform such operations, or (c) Technical specifications submitted pursuant to § 72.16 of this The license shall be subject to revocation, suspension, modi-The licensee shall permit the operation of the safety-related equipment and controls of the 15FSI only by personnel whom the licensee by uncert fied personnel who are under the direct visual supervision of Every license issued under this Part shall be subject to the unless the Commission shall, after securing the licensee shall have in effect an NRC-approved program covering the shall be transvoluntarily or nvoluntarily, directly or indirectly, through transfer of control of even if they are not explicitly stated therein: (4) Prior to the receipt u spent fuel for storage at an ISFSI, sions of the Atomic Energy Act and give its consent in writing Part shall include requirements in the following categories "arred, assigned, or disposed of in any manner, either the license nor any right thereunder the license should be modified, suspended, or revoked. Atomic Energy Act and Commission regulations. license conditions as it finds appropriate the license to any person, of Subpart I of this Part. following conditions, a certified individual Neither (2) (2) 3

> and amendments thereto, submitted posed license conditions submitted by the applicant pursuant to \$72.16. The Commission may also is cittle such additional license ronditions as the Com-(b) License conditions will include pursuant to § 72.15, and from the procluded in the safety analysis report mission finds appropriate.

items in the following categories:

A-22

and chanical devices related to those fuel handling and storage conditions limiting control settings. (i) Functional and operating limits for an ISFSI age conditions which are found to be necessary to protect the integrity of the stored fuel and guard against ex-Limiting (1) Functional and ope "ting limits are limits upon fuel handling and storcessive occupational exposures and the uncontrolled release of radioactive materials. (ii) Monitoring instruments and limiting control settings for an ISFSI are settings for alarms or mehaving significant safety functions. monitoring instruments (2) Limiting conditions. and

conditions are the lowest functional capability or performance levels of equipment required for safe operation. (3) Surveillance requirements are requirements relating to tests, calibrations, and inspections to assure that the necessary integrity of required systems, components and the fuel in storage is maintained, that operation of the installation will be within the required safety limits, and that the limiting conditions regulated for safe storage will be met.

(4) Design features. Design features to be included are those features of the installation such as materials of construction and geometric arrangements, which, if altered or modified, would have a significant effect on safety and are not covered in categories described in subparagraphs (1), (2), and (3) of this paragraph (c).

(5) Administrature controls. Administrative controls are the provisions relating to organization and management procedures. recordkeeping. review and audit, and reporting necessary to assure that the operations involved in the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI are performed in a safe manner.

(c) In addition to the conditions described in paragraph (a) of this section, every license issued under this part shall be subject to the following conditions, whether stated therein or not:

(1) Functional and operating limits and monitoring instruments and limiting control settings. (i) Functional and operating limits for an ISFSI are limits on fuel haniling is storage conditions that are found to be necessary to protect the integrity of the stored fuel, to protect employees against occupational exposures and to guard against the uncontrolled release of radioactive materials. (ii) Monitoring instruments and limiting control settings for an ISFSI are those related to fuel n.ndl ~, and storage conditions having significant safety functions. (2) Limiting conditions. Limiting conditions are the lowest func-(2) Limiting conditions. Limiting conditions are the lowest function.

*:onal capability or performance levels of equipment required for safe operation. (3) Surveillance requirements. Surveillance requirements include: (i) inspections of spent fuel in storage and monitoring; (ii) 'sspection, test and calibration activities to ensure that the necessa y integrity of required systems, components and the spent fuel in storage is maintained; (iii) confirmation that operation of the ISFSI is within the required functional and operating limits; and (iv) a confirmation that the limiting

(4) Design features. Design features include items that would have a significant effect on safety if altered or modified, such as materials of construction and geometric arrangements.

conditions required for safe storage are met

(5) Administrative controls. Administrative controls include the organization and management procedures, recordkeeping, review and audit, and reporting necessary to assure that the operations involved in the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI are performed in a safe manner.

(d) Each license authorizing the storage of spent fuels under this Part shall include technical specifications that, in addition to stating the limits on the release of radioactive materials for compliance with the limits of Part 20 of this chapter and the "as low as is reasonably achievable objectives" for effluents, require that:

(1) See former (b)(1).

(2) See former (b) (2).

(3) See former (b)(3). Reworded to improve clarity. Staff.

(4) See former (b)(4).

(5) See former (b)(5)

(d) First sentence deleted; not a requirement. (1) Neither the license, nor any right thereunder, shall be transferred, assigned, or disposed of in any manner, either voluntarily or involuntarily, directly or indirectly, through transfer of control of the license to any person, unless the Commission shall, after securing full information, find that the transfer is in accordance with the provisions of the Atomic Energy Act and give its consent in writing.

(2) The license shall be subject to

revocation, suspension, modification, or amendment as provided in the Atomic Energy Act and Commission regulations, in accordance with the procedures provided by the Atomic Energy Act and Commission regulations.

(3) The licensee shall at any time before expiration of the license, upon request of the Commission, submit written statements, signed under oath or affirmation, to enable the Commission to determine whether or not the license should be modified, suspended, or reveked.

(4) Prior to the receipt of spent fuel for storage at an ISFSI, the licensee shall have in effect an NRC approved program covering the training aptimertification of ISFSI personnel which shall meet the requirements subpart I of this part.

(5) the licensee shall not permit the manipulation of the safety-related equipment and controls of the installation by any one whom the licensee has not certified as being adequately trained to perform such manipulations.

(d) Effluent controls. Effluent controls are operating controls, including monitoring and testing controls and systems, and procedures required to keep releases of radioactive materials to unrestricted areas during normal operations and expected operational occurences within the limits stated in EPA regulation, 40 CFR Part 190, "Environmental Radiation Protection

Standards for Nuclear Power Operations," as an upper limit. Each license authorizing the storage of spent fuels under this part will include license conditions that, in addition to requiring compliance with the limits and the as low as reasonably achievable provisions of part 20 of this chapter and the design objective included (or referenced) in paragraph (2) below, require: (1) That operating by procedures for control of effluents by established and followed and equipment installed in the radioactive waste system be maintained and used as to meet the requirements of 40 CFR Part 190 as established in the license conditions.

(2) The submission of a report to the Commission within 60 days after June 30 and December 31 of each year specifying the quantity of each of the principal radionuclides released to unrestricted areas in liquid and in gaseous effluents during the previous 6 months of operation, and such other information as may be required by the Commission to estimate maximum po-Itential annual radiation doses to the public resulting from effluent releases. If quantities of radioactive materials released during the reporting period are significantly above design objectives, he report shall cover this specifically. On the basis of such reports and any additional information the Commission may obtain from the licensee or others, the Commission may from time to time require the licensee to take such action as the Commission deems appropriate.

(e) Maintenance of safeguards contingency plan procedures pursuant to § 72.81(d). (1) Operating procedures for control of effluents be established and followed, and equipment in the radioactive waste treatment systems be maintained and used, to meet the requirements of § 72.67 of this Part;

(2) An environmental monitoring program be established to ensure compliance with the technical specifications for effluents; and

(3) An annual report be submitted to the appropriate regional office specified in Appendix D of Part 20 of this Chapter, with a copy to the Director, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, within 60 days after January 1 of each year, specifying the quantity of each of the principal radionuclides released to the environment in liquid and in gaseous effluents during the previous 12 months of operation and such other information as may be required by the Commission to estimate maximum potential radiation duse commitment to the public resulting from effluent releases. On the basis of such reports and any additional information the Commission may obtain from the licensee to take such action as the Commission deems appropriate.

(e) The licensee shall make no change that would decrease the effectiveness of the physical security plan prepared pursuant to § 72.81 of this Part without the prior approval of the Commission. A licensee desiring to make such a change shall submit an application for an amendment to the license pursuant to § 72.39 of this Part. A licensee may make changes to the physical security plan without prior Commission approval, provided that such changes do not decrease the effectiveness of the plan. The licensee shall furnish to the Commission a report containing a description of each change within two months after the change is made, and shall maintain records of changes to the plan made without prior Commission approval for a period of two years from the date of the change. (1) Reworded for internal consistency. Staff

(2) An added requirements. Staff.

(3) An annual report is considered adequate for the small releases expected from an ISFSI. Staff.

(e) Moved from 3 72.35. Reworded at the suggestion of the staff. (f) A licensee shall follow and maintain in effect an emergency plan that is approved by the Commission. The licensee may make changes to the approved plan without Commission approval only if such changes do not decrease the effectiveness of the plan, and if the plan, as changed, continues to contain the elements of Section IV of Appendix E of 10 CFR Part 50. Within six months after any such change is made, the licensee shall submit a report containing a description of any changes made in the plan to the appropriate NRC regional office specified in Appendix D to Part 20 of this chapter with a covy to the Director, Office of Nuclear Materi:! Safety and Safeguards. Proposed changes that decrease the effectiveness of the approved emergency plan shall not be implemented unless the licensee has received prior approval of such changes from the Commission.

§72.34 Public Hearings.

(a) In connection with each application for a license or an amendment to a license under this Part, the Commission shall issue or cause to be issued a notice of hearing in accordance with § 2.104, or a notice of proposed action in accordance with § 2.105, of this chapter, as appropriate. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, a hearing may not be held until after 30 days' notice and publication once in the FEDERAL REGISTER.

(b) In the abserce of a request for hearing by any person whose

interest may be affected, the Commission may issue a license or an amendment to a license without a hearing upon 30 days' notice and publication once in the FEDERAL REGISTER of its intent to do so. The Commission may dispense with such 30 days' notice and publication with respect to an application for an amendment to a license issued under this Part upon a determination by the Commission that the amendment does not involve a significant hazards consideration or an unreviewed safety question.

(f) Added requirement. Staff.

\$ 72.34. Added requirement covering public hearings which reflect current licensing practice for spent fuel storage. Staff.
§ 72.34 Changes, tests and experiments.

(a)(1) The holder of a license issued under this part may (1) make changes in the installation as described in the safety analysis report, (ii) make changes in the procedures as described in the safety analysis report, and (iii) conduct tests or experiments not described in the safety analysis report, without prior Commission approval, unless the proposed change, test or experiment involves a change in the license or an unreviewed safety question.

(2) A proposed change, test, or experiment shall be deemed to involve an unreviewed safety question (i) if the probability of occurrence or the consequences of an accident or malfunction of equipment important to safety previously evaluated in the safety analysis report may be increased; or (ii) if a possibility for an accident or malfunction of a different type than any evaluated previously in the safety analysis report may be created; or (iii) if the margin of safety as defined in the basis for any license condition is reduced.

(b) The licensee shall maintain records of changes in the installation and of changes in procedures made pursuant to this section, to the extent that such changes constitute changes in the installation as described in the safety analysis report or constitute changes in procedures as described in the safety analysis report. The licensee shall also maintain records of tests and experiments carried out pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section. These records shall include a written safety evaluation which provides the bases for the determination that the change. test or experiment does not involve an unreviewed safety question. The licensee shall furnish to the Commission, or the appropriate regional office, annually or at such shorter intervals as may be specified in the license, a report containing a brief description of such changes, tests and experiments, including a summary of the safety evaluation of each. Any

§ 72.35 Changes, Tests and Experiments.

(a)(1) The holder of a license issued under this Part may, without prior Commission approval unless the proposed change, test or experiment involves a change in the license conditions incorporated in the license, an unreviewed safety question, significant increase in occupational exposure or a significant unreviewed environmental impact: (i) make changes in the <u>ISFSI</u> described in the Safety Analysis Report, (ii) make changes in the procedures described in the Safety Analysis Report, or (iii) conduct tests or experiments not described in the Safety Analysis Report.

(2) A proposed change, test, or experiment shall be deemed to involve an unreviewed safety question (i) if the probability of occurrence or the consequences of an accident or malfunction of equipment important to safety previously evaluated in the Safety Analysis Report may be increased; (ii) if a possibility for an accident or malfunction of a different type than any evaluated previously in the Safety Analysis Report may be created; or (iii) if the margin of safety as defined in the basis for any <u>technical</u> specification is reduced.

(b)(1) The licensee shall maintain records of changes in the <u>ISFSI</u> and of changes in procedures made pursuant to this section if such changes constitute changes in the <u>ISFSI</u> or procedures described in the Safety Analysis Report. The licensee shall also maintain records of tests and experiments carried out pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section. These records shall include a written safety evaluation that provides the bases for the determination that the change, test, or experiment does not involve an unreviewed safety question. The records of changes in the <u>ISFSI</u> and of changes in procedures and records of tests shall be maintained for the lifetime of the ISFSI.

(2) Annually, or at such shorter interval as may be specified in the license, the licensee shall furnish to the appropriate regional office, specified in Appendix D of Part 20 of this chapter, with a copy to the Director, Office of Nuclear Material and Safeguards, a report containing (a)(1) Reworded to improve clarity.

(2) Reworded to clarify requirement and distribution. report submitted by a licensee pursuant to this paragraph will be made a part of the public record of the licensing proceeding. In addition to a signed original, 12 copies of each report of changes shall be filed. The records of changes in the installation and of changes in procedures and records of tests shall be maintained for the lifetime of the installation.

(c) The holder of a license issued under this part who desires (1) a change in license conditions or (2) to make a change in the installation or the procedures described in the safety analysis report or to conduct tests or experiments not described in the safety analysis report, which involve an unreviewed safety question or a change in license conditions, shall submit an application for amendment of his license pursuant to 572.39.

(d) The licensee shall make no change which would decrease the effectiveness of the physical security plan prepared pursuant to \$72.81 without the prior approval of the Commission. A licensee desiring to make such a change shall submit an application for an amendment to his license purusant to § 72.39. The licensee shall maintain records of changes to the plan made without prior Commission approval, for a period of 2 years from the date of the change, and shall furnish the Commission a report containing a description of each change within 2 months after the change is made.

TRANSFERS OF LICENSES-CREDIT RS' RIGHTS-SURRENDER OF LICENSES

§ 72.36 Transfer of licenses.

(a) No license issued under this part or any right thereunder, shall be transferred, assigned, or in any manner disposed of, either voluntarily or involuntarily, directly or indirectly, through transfer of control of the license to any person, unless the Commission shall give its consent in writing. a brief description of such changes, tests, and experiments, including a summary of the safety evaluation of each. Any report submitted by a licensee oursuant to this paragraph will be made a part of the public record pertaining to this license.

(c) The holder of a license issued under this Part who desires (1) to change the license conditions, (2) to change the <u>ISFSI</u> or the procedures described in the Safety Analysis Report, or (3) to conduct tests or experiments not described in the Safety Analysis Report that involve an unreviewed safety question, a significant increase in occupational exposure, or significant unreviewed environmental impact, shall submit an application for amendment of the license, pursuant to § 72.39 of this Part.

§ 72.36 Transfer of Licenses

(a) No license or any right included in a license issued under this Part shall be transferred, assigned, or in any manner disposed of, either voluntarily or involuntarily, directly or indirectly, through transfer of control of the license to any person, unless the Commission gives its consent in writing.

(d) Moved to § 72.33. Staff.

(b)(1) An application for transfer of a license shall include as much of the information described in §5 72.14, 72.15 and 72.16 with respect to the identity and technical and financial qualifications of the proposed transferee as would be required by those sections if the applications were for an initial license. One signed original of the application executed under oath or affirmation plus 25 copies shall be submitted.

(2) The Commission may require additional information such as data respecting proposed protection from radioactive materials and the applicant's qualifications in this technology. The application shall include also a statement of the purposes for which the transfer of the license is requested and the nature of the transaction necessitating or making desirable the transfer of the license.

(3) The Commission may require any person who submits an application for license pursuant to the provisions of this section to file a written consent from the existing licensee or a certified copy of an order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction attesting to the person's right subject to the licensing requirements of the Act and these regulations to possession of the spent fuel and the storage installation involved.

te) After appropriate notice to interested persons, including the existing liconsee, and observance of such procedures as may be required by the act or regulations or orders of the Commission, the Commission will approve an application for the transfer of a license, if the Commission determines:

 That the proposed transferee is qualified to be the holder of the license; and

(2) That transfer of the license is otherwise consistent with applicable provisions of law, regulations, and orders issued by the Commission pursuant thereto. (b)(1) An application for transfer of a license shall include as much of the information described in §§ 72.14 and 72.17 of this Part with respect to the identity and the technical and financial qualifications of the proposed transferee as would be required by those sections if the application were for an initial license. The application shall also include a statement of the purposes for which the transfer of the license is requested and the nature of the transaction necessitating or making desirable the transfer of the license.

(2) The Commission may require any person who submits an application for the transfer of a license pursuant to the provisions of this section to file a written consent from the existing licensee, or a certified copy of an order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdic ion, attesting to the person's right - subject to the licensing requirements of the Act and these regulations - to possession of the spent fuel and the <u>ISFS</u> involved.

(c) After appropriate notice to interested persons, including the existing licensee, and observance of such procedures as may be required by the Act or regulations or orders of the Commission, the Commission will approve an application for the transfer of a license, if the Commission determines:

 That the proposed transferee is qualified to be the holder of the license; and

(2) That transfer of the license is consistent with applicable provisions of the law, and the regulations and orders issued by the Commission pursuant thereto. Old (2) First sentence deleted as redundant to recuirements in §§ 72.16 & 72.31. Second sentence incorporated in paragraph (b)(1). Staff

§ 72.37 Creditor regulations.

(a) Pursuant to section 184 of the act, the Commission consents, without midividual application, to the creation of any mortgage, pledge, or other lien upon special nuclear material conupon special nuclear material to wined by the United States which is the subject of a license or upon any interest in such special nuclear material in spent fuel: Provided:

(1) That the rights of any creditor so secured may be exercised only in compliance with and subject to the same requirements and restructions as would apply to the licensee pursuant to the provisions of the license, the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and regulations issued by the Commission pursuant to said act; and

(2) That no creditor so secured may take possestion of the spent fuel pursuant to the provisions of this section prior to either the issuance of a license from the Commission authorizing such possession or the transfer of the license.

(b) Any creditor so secured may apply for transfer of the license covering such spent fuel by filing an application for transfer of the license pursuant to § 72.36(b). The Commission will act upon such application pursuant to § 72.36(c).

(c) Nothing contained in this regulation shall be deemed to affect the means of acquiring, or the priority of, any tax lien or other lien provided by law.

any "Crediincludes, without implied limitapledge or lien on spent fuel in storage ee or receiver of such spent fuel apdiction in any action brought for the benefit of any creditor secured by sale thereof upon foreclosure of such cise of any power of sale contained the trustee under any mortgage. pointed by a court of competent jurismortgage, pledge, or lien or upon exertherein, or any assignee of any such made to secure any creditor, any trustpurchaser of such spent fuel at pledgy or lien. (d) As used in this section. such mortgage. purchaser. tion. tor"

§ 72.37 Creditor Regulations.

(a) Pursuant to section 184 of the Act, the Commission consents, without individual application, to the creation of any mortgage, pledge or other lien on special nuclear material contained in spent fuel not owned by the United States that is the subject of a license or on any interest in such special nuclear material in spent fuel: <u>Provided</u>:
(1) That the rights of any creditor so secured may be exercised

only in compliance with and subject to the same requirements and restrictions as would apply to the licensee pursuant to the provisions of the license, the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and regulations issued by the Commission pursuant to said Act; and

(2) That no creditor so secured may take possession of the spent fuel pursuant to the provisions of this section prior to either the issuance of a license from the Commission authorizing such possession or the transfer of the license. (b) Any creditor so secured may apply for transfer of the license covering such spent f.v1 by filing an application for transfer of the license pursuant to § 7. 36(b). The Commission will act upon such application pursuant to § 72. $3_1(c)$.

(c) Nothing contained in this regulation shall be deemed to affect the means of acquiring, or thi priority of, any tax lien or other lien provided by law.

(d) As used in this section, "creditor" includes, without implied limitation, the trustee under ary mortgage, pledge, or lien on spent fue in storage made to secure any creditor; any trustee or receiver of such spent fuel appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction in any action brought for the benefit of any creditor secured by such mortgage, pledge or lien; any purchaser of such spent fuel at the sale thereof upon for closure of such mortgage, pledge, or lien or upon exercise of any power of sale contained therein; cr any assignee of any such purchaser.

§ 72.38 Applications for termination of hi-

license voluntarily and to dismantle and (a) Any licensee may apply to the Commission for authority to surrender dures for the disposal of radioactive to provide reasonable assurance that the decommissioning and disposal will be performed in accordance with the regulations in this chapter and will not be inimical to the common defense safety of the public. The appl. ation for termination of a license issued under this part shall be submitted as the installation and dispose of the masion may require information, including information as to proposed procematerial, decontamination of the site, terials stored therein. The Commisand security or to the health one signed original plus 25 copies. -

If the application demonstrates that the decommissioning of the installation and disposal of the materials stored therein will be performed in accordance with the regulations in this chapter and will not be inimical to the common defense and security or to the health and safety of the public, and after notice to interested persons, the such procedures in accordance with Commission may issue an order authotion of the license upon completion of rizing such decommissioning and disposal, and providing for the termina any conditions specified in the other. (q)

Amendment To License at Request of Holder and Revocation, Suspension and Modification of Licenses

§ 72.39 Application for amendment 'o license.

Whenever a holder of a license desires to amend the license, an application for an amendment shall be filed with the Commission, fully describing the changes desired, and the reasons for such changes, and following as far as applicable the form prescribed for original applications.

§ 72.40 Issuance of amendment.

In determining whether an amendment to a license will be issued to the applicant. the Commission will be guided by the considerations which govern the issuance of initial licenses to the extent applicable and appropri-

§ 72.38 Applications for Termination of Licenses

for the disposal of radio-0058 information, be performed in accordance with the regulations in this chapter and will there is reasonable assurance that the decommissioning and disposal will not be inimical to the common defense and security or to the healch and The litensee shall apply to the Commission for authority to whether currender a license voluntarily and to decommission the ISFSI and . to determine The Commission may require active material and decontamination of the site, ncluding information as to proposed procedures of the materials stored therein. safety of the public. (8)

(b) Upon a finding of reasonable assurance that the decommissioning of the ISFSI and disposal of the materials stored therein will be performed in a cordance with the regulations in this chapter ar: will provide adequate protection to the health and safety of the public, and after notice to interested persons, the Commission will authorize such decommissioning and disposal and terminate the license upon completion of such procedures in accordance with any conditions specified in the authorization.

§ 72.39 Application for Amendment of License.

Whenever a holder of a license desires to amend the license, an application for an amendment shall be filed with the Commission fully describing the changes desired and the reasons for such changes, and following as far as applicable the form prescribed for original applications.

§ 72.40 Issuance of Amendment.

In determining whether an amendment to a license will be issued to the applicant. the Commission will be guided by the considerations that govern the issuance of initial licenses.

(a) Reworded to improve clarity.

(b) Reworded to improve clarity.

§72.41 Revocation, suspension and modification of licenses

(a) The terms and conditions of all licenses are subject to amendment, revision, or modification by reason of amendments to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or by reason of rules, regulations or orders issued in accordance with the Act or any amendments thereto.

(b) Any license may be revoked, suspended or modified in whole or in part. for any material false statement in the application or any statement of fact required under Section 182 of the Act. or because of conditions revealed by such application or statement of fact or any report, record, or inspection or other means which would warrant the Commission to refuse to grant a license on an original application, or for failure to operate an installation in accordance with the terms of the license. or for violation of, or failure to observe any of the terms and conditions of the Act, or any regulation, license or order of the Commission.

(c) Upon revocation, suspension or modification of a license, the Commission may immediately cause the retaking of possession of all special nuclear material contained in spent fuel held by the licensee. In cases found by the Commission to be of extreme importance to the national defense and security, or to the health and safety of the public, the Commission may take possession of any spent fuel held by the licensee prior to any of the procedures provided under sections 551-558 of title 5 of the United States Code.

§ 72.42 Backfitting.

(E) The Commission may require the backfitting of an ISFSI if it finds that such action will provide substantial, additional protection which is required for either occupational or public health and safety. As used in this section, "backfitting" means a change in storage conditions which may require the addition, elimination or modification of structures, systems or components of an ISFSI, after the license has been issued.

§ 72.41 Modification, Revocation, and Suspension of Licenses.

(a) The terms and conditions of all licenses are subject to amendment, revision, or modification by reason of amendments to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or by reason of rules, regulations, or orders issued in accordance with the Act or any amendments thereto.

(b) Any linense may be modified, revoked, or suspended in whole or in part for any of the following: (i) for any material false statement in the application or in any statement of fact required under Section 182 of the Act; (ii) condit one revealed by such application or statement of fact or any report, record, inspection or other means which would warrant the Commission to refuse to grant a license on an original application; (iii) failure to operate an ISFSI in accordance with the terms of the license; (iv) violation of, or failure to observe any of, the terms and conditions of the Act, or of any applicable regulation, license, or order of the Commission.

(c) Upon revocation of a license, the Commission may immediately cause the retaking of possession of all special nuclear material contained in spent fuel held by the licensee. In cases found by the Commission to be of extreme importance to the national defense and security or to the health and safety of the public, the Commission prior to following any of the procedures provided under sections 551-558 of title 5 of the United States Code, may cause the taking of possession of any special nuclear material contained in spent fuel held by the licensee.

§ 72.42 Backfitting.

(a) The Commission may require the backfitting of an ISFSI if it finds that such action will provide substantial additional protection to the anvironment, or occupational or public health and safety. As user in this section, "backfit.ing" means the addition, elimination, or modification of structures, systems, or components of an ISFSI after the license has been issued. (c) Reworded to broaden scope of requirement. Staff.

(a) Reworded to include the environment. Staff.

(b) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to relieve a holder of a license from compliance with the rules, regulations, or orders of the Commission.

(c) The Commission may at any time require a holder of a license to submit such information concerning the backfitting or the proposed backfitting of the installation as it deems appropriate.

Subpart D—Records, Reports, In.pections and Enforcement

(b) The Commission may at any time require a holder of a license to submit such information concerning the backfitting or the proposed backfitting of the ISFSI as it deems appropriate.

Subpart 0 - Records, Reports, Inspections, and Enforcement §72.50 Safety Analysis Report Updating

(a) The design, description of planed operations, and other information submitted in the Safety Analysis Report shall be updated by the licensee and submitted to the Commission at least once every six months after issuance of the license during final design and construction, until preocupational testing is completed, with final completion and submittal to the Commission at least 90 days prior to the planned receipt of spent fuel. This final submittal shall include a final analysis and evaluation of the design and performance of structures, systems, and components that are important to safety taking into account any pertinent information developed since the submittal of the license application. Changes affecting safety margins will require Commission approval prior to the receipt of spent fuel.

(b) After the first receipt of spent fuel for storage, the Safety Analysis Report shall be updated annually and submitted to the Commission by the licensee. This submittal shall include the following:

New or revised information relating to applicable site evaluation factors, including the results of environmental monitoring programs.

(2) A description and analysis of changes in the structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI, with emphasis upon (i) performance requirements, (ii) the bases, with technical justification therefor, upon which such requirements have been established, and (iii) evaluations showing that safety functions will be accomplished.

(3) Ar analysis of the significance of any changes to codes, standards, regulations, or regulatory guides which the licensee has committed to meeting the requirements that are applicable to the design, construction, or operation of the ISFSI. Old (c) Deleted, redundant.

§ 72.50 was formerly 72.15(b).

(b) Reworded to improve clarity.

(3) Add new paragraph concerning compliance to applicable documents. Staff.

§ 72.51 Material balance, inventory, and records requirements for stored materials.

(a) Each licensee shall keep records showing the receipt, inventory (including location), disposal, acquisition, and transfer of all spent fuel in storage regardless of its origin or method of acquisition.

(b) Each licensee shall conduct a physical inventory of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed 12 months or as otherwise directed by the Commission.

(c) Each licensee shall establish, maintain and follow written material control and accounting procedures which are sufficient to enable the licensee to account for the spent fuel in storage under license.

(d) Records of spent fuel in storage shall be kept in duplicate for as long as the spent fuel is in storage at an ISFSI. The duplicate set of records shall be kept at a separate location far enough removed from the original records so that a single event would not destroy both sets of records. Records of spent fuel transferred out of an ISFSI shall be preserved for a period of 5 years after the date of transfer.

§ 72.52 Reports of accidental criticality or loss of special nuclear material.

Each licensee shall report immediately to the Director of the appropriate Nuclear Regulatory Commission Inspection and Enforcement Regional Office by telephone, and telegram, or teletype, any case of accidental criticality and any loss of special nuclear material contained in spent fuel.

§ 72.53 Material Status Reports.

Each licensee shall complete and submit to the Commission Material Status Reports on Form NRC-742. In accordance with printed instructions for completing the form, concerning special nuclear material contained in spent fuel possessed, received, transferred, disposed of or lost by the licensee. All such reports shall be made

§ 72.51 Material Balance, Inventory, and Records Requirements for Stored

Materials.

(a) Each licensee shall keep records showing the receipt, inventory (including location), disposal, acquisition, and transfer of all spent fuel in storage.

(b) Each licensee shall conduct a physical inventory of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed twelve months unless otherwise directed by the Commission.

(c) Each licensee shall establish, maintain, and follow written material control and accounting proced res that are sufficient to enable the licensee to account for the spent fuel in storage.

(d) Records of spent fuel in storage shall be kept in duplicate. The duplicate set of records shall be kept at a separate location sufficiently remote from the original records that a single event would not destroy both sets of records. Records of spent fuel transferred out of an ISFSI shall be preserved for a period of five years after the date c/ transfer.

§ 72.52 Reports of Accidental Criticality or Loss of Special Nuclear

Material.

Each licensee shall report immediately to the appropriate NRC regional Office specified in Appendix D of Part 20 of this chapter by telephone and telegram or teletype, any case of accidental criticality and any loss of special nuclear material.

§ 72.52 Clarification of reference.

§ 72.53 Material Status Reports.

Each licensee shall complete and submit Material Status Reports to the Communisation on Form NRC-742, in accordance with printed instructions for completing the form. The reports shall provide information concerning the special nuclear material contained in spent fuel possessed, received, transferred, disposed of, or lost by the licensee. All such reports shall as of March 31 and September 30 of each year and shall be filed with the U.S. Department of Energy, P.O. Box E. Gak Ridge, Tennessee, 37830, within thirty (30) days after the end of the period covered by the report. The Commission may permit a licensee to submit Material Status Reports at other times when good cause is shown.

§ 72.54 Nuclear Material Transfer Reports.

Each licensee who transfers and each licensee who receives spent fuel shall complete and distribute a Nuclear Material Transaction Report on Form NRC-741, in accordance with printed instructions for completing the form, whenever he transfers or receives spent fuel. Each licensee who transfers spent fuel shall submit a copy of Form NRC 741 to the U.S. Department of Energy, P.O. Box E. Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830, and three copies to the receiver of the material promptly after the transfer takes place. Each licensee who receives spent fuel shall submit a copy of Form NRC-741 to the Department of Energy and to the shipper of the material within 10 days after the spent fuel is received.

§ 72.56 Maintenance of other records and reports.

(a) Each licensee shall maintain such records and make such reports in connection with the licensed activities as may be required by the conditions of the license or by the rules, regulations, and c: fers of the Commission in effectuating the purposes of the Act.

(b) Each licensee shall, upon each issuance of its annual financial report, including the certified financial statements, file a copy thereof with the Commission.

(c) Records which are required by the regulations in this part or by the license conditions shall be maintained for a period specified by the appropriate regulation or license condition. If a retention period is not otherwise specified, such records shall be maintained until the Commission authorizes their disposition. be made as of March 31 and September 30 of each year and shall be filed with the U.S. Department of Energy, P.O. Box E. Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830, within 30 days after the end of the period covered by the report. The Commission may, when good cause is shown, permit a licensee to submit Material Status Reports at other times.

§ 72.54 Nuclear Material Transfer Reports

Whenever the licensee transfers or receives spent fuel, the licensee shall complete and distribute a Nuclear Material Transaction Report on Form NRC-741. Each licensee who transfers spent fuel shall submit a copy of Form NRC-741 to the U.S. Department of Energy, P.C. Box E. Cak Ridge, Tennessee 37830, and three copies to the receiver of the material promptly after the transfer takes place. Each licensee who receives spent fuel shall submit a copy of Form NRC-741 to the Department of Energy and to the shipper of the material within 10 days after the spent fuel is received and unloaded and its identity is verified.

§ 72.54 Reworded to improve clarity. Public & Staff.

§ 72.55 Other Records and Reports.

(a) Each licensee shall maintain any records and make any reports that may be required by the conditions of the license or by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Commission in effectuating the purposes of the Act.

(b) Each licensee shall furnish a copy of its annual financial report, including the certified financial statements, to the Commission.

(c) Records that are required by the regulations in this part or by the license conditions shall be maintained for the period specified by the appropriate regulation or license condition. If a retention period is not otherwise specified, such records shall be maintained until the Commission authorizes their disposition. Order of \$\$ 72.55 & 52.56 reversed to improve continuity. (d) Records which must be maintained pursuant to this part may be the original or a reproduced copy or microform if such reproduced copy or microform is duly authenticated by authorized personnel and the microform is capable of producing a clear and legible copy after storage for the period specified by Commission regulations.

(e) If there is a conflict between the Commission's regulations in this part. license condition, or other written Commission approval or authorization pertaining to the retention period for the same type of record, the retention period specified in the regulations in this part for such records shall apply unless the Commission, pursuant to § 72.8, has granted a specific exemption from the record retention requirements specified in the regulations in this part.

§ 72.55 Inspections and tests.

(a) Each licensee shall afford to the Commission at all reasonable times opportunity to inspect spent fuel in storage and the premises and installation wherein such spent fuel is stored.

(b) Each licensee shall make available to the Commission for inspection, upon reasonable notice, records kept by the licensee pertaining to his receipt, possession, or transfer of spent (d) Any record that must be maintained pursuant to this Part may be either the original or a reproduced copy or microform provided that any reproduced copy or microform is duly authenticated by authorized personnel and that the microform is capable of producing a clear and legitle copy after storage for the period specified by Commission regulations.

§ 72.56 Inspections and Tests.

(a) Each licensee under this part shall permit inspection by duly authorized representatives of the Commission of his records, premises, activities and of spent fuel ic possession related to the specific license as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of the Act, including Section 105 of the Act.

(b) Each licensee under this Part shall make available to the Commission for inspection, upon reasonable notice, records kept by the Ticensee pertaining to his receipt, possession, or transfer of spent fuel.

(c)(1) Each licensee under this Part shall upon request by the Director, Office of Inspection and Enforcement provide rent-free office space for the exclusive use of the Commission inspection personnel. Heat, air conditioning, light, electrical outlets and janitorial services shall be furnished by each licensee. The office shall be convenient to and have full access to the installation and shall provide the inspector both visual and acoustic privacy.

(2) For a site with a single storage installation the space provided shall be adequate to accommodate a full-time inspector, a part-time Old (e) deleted as unnecessary. Staff.

§ 72.56 expanded per request of staff.

secretary and transient NRC personnel and will be generally commensurate with other office facilities at the site. A space of 250 sq. ft., either within the site's office complex or in an office trailer, or other on site space, is suggested as a guide. For sites containing multiple facilities additional space may be requested to accommodate additional full-time inspectors. The office space that is provided shall be subject to the approval of the Director, Office of Inspection and Enforcement. All furniture, supplies and Commission equipment shall be furnished by the Commission.

(3) Each licensee under this Part shall afford any NRC resident inspector assigned to that site, or other NRC inspectors identified by the Regional Director as likely to inspect the installation, immediate unfettered access, equivalent to access provided regular plant employees, following proper identification and compliance with applicable access control measures for security, radiological protection and personal safety.

(d) Each licensee shall perform, or permit the Commission to perform, such tests as the Commission deems appropriate or necessary for the administration of the regulations in this part.

(e) A report of the preoperational test acceptance criteria and test results shall be submitted to the appropriate regional office specified in Appendix D of Part 20 of this chapter with a copy to the Director, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards at least 30 days prior to the receipt of spent fuel.

§ 72.57 Violation.

An injunction or other court order may be obtained prohibiting any violation of any provision of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, or Title II of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation or order issued thereunder. A court order may be obtained for the payment of a civil penalty imposed pursuant to section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act for violation of §§ 53, 57, 62, 63, 81, or 82

(c) Each licensee shall perform, or permit the Commission to perform, such tests as the Commission deems appropriate or necessary for the administration of the regulations in this part, including tests of (1) spent fuel during handling and storage (2) spent fuel handling and storage facilities, (3) radiation detection and monitoring equipment, and (4) other equipment used in connection with spent fuel storage.

§ 72.57 Violation.

may be obtained prohibiting any violation of any provision of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, or Title II of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation or order issued thereunder. A court order may be obtained for the payment of a civil penalty imposed pursuant to section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act for violation of section 53, 57, 62, 63, 81 or 82 of the Atomic

An injunction or other court order

Energy Act, or section 206 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, or any rule, regulation, or order issued thereunder, or any term, condition, or limitation of any license issued thereunder, or for any violation for which a license may be revoked under section 186 of the Atomic Energy Act. Any person who willfully violates any provision of the Atomic Energy Act, or any regulation or order issued thereunder, may be guilty of a crime and, upon cohviction, may be punished by fine or imprisonment or both, as provided by law.

Subpart E-Siting criteria

'\$ 72.61 General Criteria.

(a) Site characteristics which may directly affect the safety of the ISFSI shall be investigated and assessed.

(b) Proposed sites for the ISFSI shall be examined with respect to the frequency and the severity of external natural and man-induced events that could affect the safe operation of the installation.

(c) Design basis external events shall be determined for each combination of proposed site and proposed installation design.

(d) Proposed sites with design basis external events for which adequate protection cannot be provided through installation design shall be deemed unsuitable for the location of the ISFSI.

(e) For each proposed site, the potential for radiological consequences in the region shall be evaluated with due consideration of the characteristics of the population, including its distribution.

(f) For each proposed site, pursuant to Part 51 of this chapter, the potential for environmental impact to the region shall be evaluated with due consideration of the characteristics of the regional environs, including its historical and aesthetic value. of the Atomic Energy Act, or section 206 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, or any rule, regulation, or order issued thereunder, or any term, condition, or limitation of any license issued thereunder, or for any violation for which a license may be revoked under section 186 of the Atomic Energy Act. Any person who willfully violates any provision of the Atomic Energy Act, or any regulation or order issued thereunder, may be guilty of a crime and, upon conviction, may be punished by fine or imprisonment or both, as provided by law.

Subpart E - Siting Evaluation Factors

§ 72.61 General Considerations.

(a) Site characteristics that may directly affect the safety or environmental impact of the ISFSI shall be investigated and assessed.

(b) Proposed sites for the ISFSI shall be examined with respect to the frequency and the severity of external natural and man-induced events that could affect the safe operation of the ISFSI.

(c) Design basis external events shall be determined for each combination of proposed site and proposed ISFSI design.

(d) Proposed sites with design basis external events for which adequate protection cannot be provided through ISFSI design shall be deemed unsuitable for the location of the ISFSI.

(e) For each proposed site, pursuant to Part 51 of this chapter, the potential for radiological and other environmental impacts on the region shall be evaluated with due consideration of the characteristics of the population, including its distribution, and of the regional environs, including its historical and esthetic values.

(f) The facility shall be sited so as to avoid to the extent possible the long-term and short-term adverse impacts associated with the occupancy and modification of floodplains.

(a) Environmental impact added, as NRC mandate covers both safety & environmental protection. Staff.

Old (f) incorporated in § 72.64; new (f) in response to comment from Dept. of Interior.

§72.62 Criteria for design basis external natural events.

(a) Natural phenomena which may exist or can occur in the region of a proposed site shall be identified and assessed according to their potential effects on the safe operation of the installation. The important natural phenomena for which design basis should be derived shall be identified.

(b) Historical records of the occurrence and severity of those important natural phenomena shall be collected for the region and evaluated for reliability, accuracy and completeness.

(c) Appropriate methods shall be adopted for establishing the design basis natural events for important natural phenomena. The methods should be justified as being compatible with the characteristics of the region and the current state of knowledge.

§72.63 Criteria for design basis external man-induced events.

(a) The region shall be examined for man-made facilities and activities that might endanger the proposed ISFSI. The important man-induced phenomena for which design basis external man-induced events should be derived shall be identified.

(b) Information oncerning the occurrences and severity of those important man-induced phenomena shail be collected and analyzed for reliability, accuracy and completeness.

(c) Appropriate methods shall be adopted for establishing the design basis external man-induced events for those phenomena. The methods should be justified as being campatible with the characteristics of the region and the current state of knowledge.

§ 72.64 Criteria for defining potential effects of the ISFSI on the region.

(a) The proposed site shall be examined with respect to the effects on people in the region resulting from the release of radio tive materials under normal and accuent conditions, in this evaluation unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account.

(b) Each site shall be examined with respect to the effects on the regional

§ 72.62 Design Basis External Natural Events.

(a) Natural phenomena that may exist on that can occur in the region of a proposed site shall be identified and assessed according to their potential effects on the safe operation of the <u>ISFSI</u>. The important natural phenomena that affect the ISFSI design shall be identified.

(b) Records of the occurrence and severity of those important natural phenomena shall be collected for the region and evaluated for reliability, accuracy, and completeness.

(c) Appropriate methods shall be adopted for <u>evaluating</u> the design basis natural events based on the characteristics of the region and the current state of knowledge about such events.

§ 72.63 Design Basis External Man-Induced Events

(a) The region shall be examined for both past and present man-made facilities and activities that might endanger the proposed ISESI. The important potential man-induced events that affect the ISESI design shall be identified.

(b) Information concerning the potential occurrence and severity of such events shall be collected and evaluated for reliability, accuracy, and completeness.

(c) Appropriate methods shall be adopted for <u>evaluating</u> the design basis external man-induced events, based on the current state of knowledge about such events.

§ 72.64 Identifying Regions Around en ISFSI Site

(a) The regional extent of external phenomena, man-made or natural, that are used as a basis for the design of the ISFSI shall be defined.

(b) The potential regional impact due to the construction, operation or decommissioning of the ISFSI shall be identified. The extent of such regional impacts shall be determined on the basis of potential measurable effects on the population or the environment, from ISFSI activities.

(c) Those regions identified pursuant to paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section shall be investigated as appropriate with respect to (i) the § 72.64. This is a new section incorporating some of the requirements of § 72.65 of the proposed rule. Other criteria were added to better define how a region is determined. More definitive requirements were deemed necessary for clarification. Public & Staff.

environment resulting from construction, operation and decommissioning of the ISFSL in this evaluation unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account.

(c) Effects which would otherwise be unacceptable shall be compensated for by the ISFSI design or the site shall be deemed unsuitable. § 72.65 Criteria for regional distribution of population. (a) The proposed site shall be evaluated with respect to the present and future character and distribution of future character and distribution of future human population of the region. Such evaluation, which should include consideration of present and water within the region, shall also take into account any special characteristics which may influence the potential consequences of a release of radioactive material during the operational lifetime of the ISFSI.

(b) A controlled area and a neighboring area shall be established for each site.

(c) The licensee shall have authority within the controlled area to determine all activities including exclusion or removal of personnel and property from the area.

(d) The neighboring area of a properspective of the potential for adverse consequences to the human population or environment and of the capability of implementing protective measures as may be necessary to mitigate the immediate effects of a release of radioactive material.

1

(e) The distribution of the human population in the region surrounding the site shall be evaluated with respect to both the potential for adverse consequences to regional populations from normal and potential accidental refeases of radioactive material during operations and decommissioning of the ISFSL.

(f) Effects which would otherwise be unacceptable shall be compensated for by the ISFSI design or the site shall be deemed unsuitable.

present and future character and the distribution of population. (ii) consideration of present and projected future uses of land and water within the region, and (iii) any special characteristics that may influence the potential consequences of a release of radioactive material during the operational lifetime of the JSFSI. (d) If the distribution of population in any defined region is such that adequate protective action cannot be provided through emergency planning the proposed site shall be unsuitable for the location of an ISFSI.

§ 72.65 Defining Potential Effects of the ISFSI on the Region

(a) The proposed site shall be evaluated with respect to the effects on populations in the region resulting from the release of radioactive materials under normal and accident conditions during operation and decommissioning of the ISFSI; in this evaluation both usual and unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account.

(b) Each site shall be evaluated with respect to the effects on the regional environment resulting from construction, operation and decommissioning of the ISFSI; in this evaluation both usual and unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account.

5 72.65 These requirements were covered in \$ 72.64 in the proposed rule. The wording has been modified to improve clarity & for consistency of terminology. Public & Staff.

-§72.56 Criteria for defining acceptable seismic characteristics. (a) A peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greate than 0.25 g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years (equivalent to a 90 percent probability of not bring exceeded in 50 years) shall be deemed suitable for an ISFSI site and require only the foundation engineering and geologic hazards investigations covered in the following paragraph (b) However, as an alternative approach the applicant has the optionof establishing a site specific "g value" by the procedures of Part 100 of this chapter.

(b) An ISFSI founded on bedrock ceptable, and no detailed site-specific earthquake analysis is required unless some unusual geologic characteristic is If not founded on bedrock and faction or other soil instability due to occur in the foundation materials during the operating life of the instalidentified (e.g., active faulting, mass and (and meeting criterion "a") is acwasting, cavernous or karst terrain, where a potential exists for soil lique. anomaly, it must be shown by site-spelaboratory could not subsidence collapse or uplift potential ground motion or foundation analysis that soil failure and investigations the vibratory lation.

(c) For ISFSI designs other than the water basin type proposed sites will be evaluated on the basis of a site-specific investigation and analysis.

§ 72.56 Geological and Selsmological Characteristics

 (a) Massive Water Basin and Afr-Cooled Canyon Types of ISFS1 Structures; (1) East of the Rocky Mountain Front (east of approximately 104° west longitude), except in areas of known seismic activity including but not limited to the regions around New Madrid, Mo., Charlestun, S.C., and Attica, N.Y., sites will be acceptable if the results from onsite foundation and geological investigation, literature review, and regional geological reconnaissance show no unstable geological characteristics, soil stability problems, or potential for vibratory ground motion at the site in excess of an appropriate response spectrum anchared at 0.2 g.

(2) West of the Rocky Mountain F. At (west of approximately 104° west longitude), and in other areas of known potential seismic activity, seismicity will be evaluated by the techniques of Appendix A of Part 100 of this chapter. Sites that lie within the range of strong near-field ground motion from historical earthquakes on large capable faults should be avoided. (3) Sites other than bedrock sites shall be evaluated for their liquefaction potential or other soil instability due to vibratory ground motion. (4) Site-specific investigations and 'aboratory analyses must show that soil conditions are adequate for the proposed foundation loading.

(5) In an evaluation of alter ative sites, those which require a minimum of engineered provisions to correct site deficiencies are preferred. Sites with unstable geologic characteristics should be avoided. (6) The ISFSI design earthquake (ISFSI-DE) for use in the

design of structures shall be determined as follows:

(a) For sites that have been evaluated under the criteria of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, the ISFSI-DE shall be equivalent to the safe shutdown earthquake (SSE) for a nuclear power plant.

(a) This section was rewritten to differentiate between sites east and west of the Rocky Mountains and areas of low versus known seismic activity or surface offset potential. Public & Staff. (b) For those sites that have not been evaluated under the criteria of Appendix A of 10 CFR Part 100, that are east of the Rocky Mountain Front, and that are not in areas of known seismic activity, a standardized ISFSI-DE described by an appropriate response spectrum anchored at 0.25 g may be used. Alternatively, a site-specific ISFSI-DE may be determined by using the criteria and level of investigations required by Appendix A of Part 100 of this chapter.

(c) Regardless of the results of the investigations anywhere in the continental U.S., the ISFSI-DE shall have a value for the horizontal ground motion of no less than 0.10 g with the appropriate response spectrum.

(b) Other types of ISFSI Designs.

For ISFSI designs that do not use massive water basins or aircooled canyons, such as canisters, casks, or silos, a site specific investigation is required to establish site suitability commensurate with the specific requirements of the proposed ISFSI.

§ 72.67 <u>Criteria for Radioactive Materials in Effluents and Direct</u> Radiation from an ISFSI.

(a) During normal operations and anticipated occurrences, the annual dose equivalent to any real individual who is located beyond the controlled area shall not exceed 25 mrem to the whole body, 75 mrem to the thyroid and 25 mrem to any other organ as a result of exposure to (1) planned discharges of radioactive materials, radon and its daughters excepted, to the general environment, (2) direct radiation from ISFSI operations and (3) any other radiation from uranium fuel cycle operations within the region.

(b) Operational restrictions shall be established to meet as low as is reasonably achievable objectives for radioactive materials in effluents and direct radiation levels associated with ISFSI operations.

(c) Operational limits shall be establish i for radioactive materials in effluents and direct radiation levels associated with ISFSI operations to meet the limits given in paragraph (a) of this section. (b) Moved from § 72.72. This is a more logical section to define the design earthquake. Section has been rewritten and expanded to improve clarity.

§ 72.67 Criteria for defining potential radiological consequences.

(a) During normal operations and anticipated occurrences, the annual dose equivalent shall not exceed 25 mrem to the whole body. 75 mrem to the thyroid and 25 mrem to any other organ of an actual individual located outside the controlled area as a result of planned discharges of radioactive materials in the general environment.³ In this evaluation unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account.

(b) Under accident conditions, the calculated exposure from the controlling design basis accident shall not exceed 5 Rem in 2 hours at the outside boundary of the controlled area.

40 CFR 190 11

This section was rewritten to better clarity the requirements on effluents and direct radiation during normal operations and anticipated occurrences Accident criteria have been placed in a new section, 72.68. The requir -ment for an evaluation of direct radiation as a contributor to the exposure of individuals beyond the controlled area is an added requirement. ALARA objectitves shall be established in the Tach Specs for an ISFSI. Minor changes in Scrding have been made for clarification and consistency. Public & Staff. Controlled Area of an ISFSI 72.68

For each ISFSI site, a controlled area shall be established. 1

the controlled area shall not receive a dose greater than 5 rem to the individual located on or beyond the nearest boundary of nearest boundary of the controlled area shall be at least 100 meters. The minimum distance from the spent fuel handling and storage facilities to the whole body or any organ from any design basis accident. Any

The controlled area may be traversed by a highway, railroad or waterway, so long as appropriate and effective arrangements are made to control traffic and to protect the public health and safety

ISFS1 Emergency Planning Zone \$ 72.69

ISFSI-EPZ shall provide reasonable assurance that protective actions beyond its outer boundary would not be necessary (a) For each ISFSI site, an ISFSI Emergency Planning Zone (ISFS1-141 EPZ) shall be established.

teristics of the specific facility and local conditions such as demography topography. land characteristics, access routes and local jurisdictional The boundaries of an ISFSI-EP2 for a particular ISFSI will be Setermined on a case-by-case basis taking into account both the characboundaries. (a)

372.70 Spent Fuel Transportation

The proposed ISFSI shall / . evaluated with respect to the potential mpact on the environment of spent fuel being transported into the area.

Subpart F - General Design Criteria

§ 72.71 General Considerations

age inscallation. The principal design

criteria establish the

design criteria for the proposed stor-

ISFSI

design, fabrica-

Pursuant to the provisions of § 72.15, an application to store spent fuel in an must include the principal

\$72.71 General design criteria.

Subpart F--General Design Criteria

systems, and components important to safety, as defined in § 72.3. The general design criteria identified in this sec-

formance requirements for structures.

tion, construction, testing, and per-

The general design criteria identified in this section establish minimum riquirements for the design criteria for an ISFSI. Any omissions to store spent fuel in an ISFSI must include the design criteria for the requirement of providing the necessary safety features in the design of Pursuant to the provisions of § 72.15 of this Part, an application These design criteria estublish the design. n these general design criteria do not relieve the . Nicant from the structures, systems, and components important to safety as defined in fabrication, construction, testing, and performance requirements for A-43 proposed storage complex. 72.3.

define how a controlled area is to be determined for the siting definition of controlled area, Public This is a new section. Some of these requirements were stated criteria were added to better more definitive requirements Other With the rewere deemed necessary. 72.65 & 72.67. of an ISFSI. & Staff. In ss

deemed necessary. Public & Staff term ISF5 -EPZ replaces the term requirements are stated in the .. of these neighboring are red in the definitive requirements were This is 7 new section. The former \$ 72.65 but more proposed rule.

This is a new section added in response to comment. Public

the SFSI.

tion establish minimum requirements for the principal safety-related design criteria for an ISFSI. Any omissions in ment of providing the necessary safety these general design criteria do not relieve the applicant from the requirefeatures in the design of this installation.

OVERALL REQUIREMENTS

(1) Quality standards. Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed. fabricated, are are tested to quality standards commensurate with the importance of the function to be performed.

(2) Protection against Environmental Conditions and Natural Phenomena.

(I) Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be desired to accommodate the effects of and to be commatible with site characteristics and environmental conditions associated with normal operation, maintenance and testing of the ISFSI, and with postuliated accidents.

(ii) Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be desagred to withstand the effects of natural phenomena guodh as carthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g), iternadose (excluding therado mis alles), lightning, hurricares, floods, tsunaui and seiches without impairing their capabili fly to perform safety functions. The design light operform safety functions. The design bases for these structures, systems, and components shall reflect (A) Appropriate components shall reflect (A) Appropriate consideration of the most screte of the naiural phenomena reported for the site arural phenomena reported for the site arto take into account the limitations in the epeied of time in which the data have been accumulated and the effects of natural phenomena.

(iii) Capability for determining the intensity of natural phenomena which may occ. I for comparison with design bases of structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be provided,

(iv) If an ISFSI is located over an aquifer, measures must be taken to preclude the transport of radioactive materials to man and the environs through this potential pathway.

§ 72.72 Overall Requirement.

(a) Quality Standards

Structures, systems, and components important to safoty shall be designed. Fabricated, erected, and tested to quality standards commensurate with the importance to safety of the function to be performed. (b) Protection Against E. Vironmental Conditions and Natural Phenomena. (1) Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed to accommodate the effects of, and to be compatible with, site characteristics and environmental conditions associated with normal operation, maintenance, and testing of the ISFSI; and to withstand postulated accidents.

(2) Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall

(1) appropriate consideration of the most severe of the natural phenomena should be designed to prevent massive collapse of building structures or the effects of normal and accident conditions and the effects of natural and components shall reflect reported for the site and surrounding area, with appropriate margins to be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthtake into account the limitations of the data and the period of time in 10 hurricanes, floods, tsunami, and seiches, which the data have accumulated, and (ii) appropriate combinations of An ISFSI need not be protected from tornado missiles but the dropping of heavy objects onto the stored spent fuel as a result The without impairing their capability to perform safety functions. design bases for these structures, systems, quakes, tornadoes, lightning, building structural failures. phenomena.

(3) Capability shall be provided for determining the intensity of natural phenomena that may occur for comparison with design bases of structures, systems, and components important to safety.

(4) If the ISFSI is located over an aquifer which is a major water resource, measures shall be taken to preclude the transport of rad'oactive materials to the environment through this potential pathway.

01d (ii) The design earthquake is now covered in \$ 72.66.

(2)(ii) Statement added concerning tornado missile protection. Staff.

explosion exposure conditions. Noncombus-tible and heat-resistant maternals shall be used wherever practical throughout the in stallation. "articularly in locations with to the control radioactive materials, and to cated so as to continue to perform their safety functions effectively under the and provided with sufficient capacity and capa-bility to minimize the adverse effects of The goinst fires and erplodems, and components important to safety .iall be designed and lothe control 'radioactive materials, and to the maintenance of safety control functions. Explosion and fire detection, alarm, and suppression systems shall be designed and fires and explosions on structures, systems, slows to protect against adverse effects which might result from either the operation, or the failure of the fire suppression and components important to safety, de dgn of the facility shall include Protection Structure. system BIONS. (3)

(4) Sharing of structures, systems, and components. Structures, systems, and components important to safely shull use be shared between an ISPSI and other plants unless it is shown that such sharing will not impair the capability of the ISPSI to perform its safety functions, including the rapability for return to a safe condition in the event of an accident or includi. (5) Prozimity of aites, An ISFSI located near other nuclear facilities shall be ussigned and operated to ensure that the cumulative effects of their constructed opernuclative effects of their constructed operitions will not result in a significant additional risk to the braith and safety of the public.

(6) Testing and maintenance of systems and components. Systems and components that have safety related functions shall be designed to permit inspection, maintenance, and testing to emaile their continued functioning to meet their design objectives.

(7) Energency cupability Structure, systems, and components urportant to safety shall be deskined to assure capability of operations and harving of the emergency. The denign shall ensure capability for use, as necessary, of onsite facilities and service such as hospitals, fire and police department, ambulance service, and other emergency augmenes.

(c) Protection Against Fires and Explosions

"ant materials shall be used wherever control of radioactive materials and to the maintenance of safety contro Explosion and fire detection, alarm, and suppression systems result from either the operation or the failure of the fire suppression 'unctions effectivery credible fire and explosion exposure condidesigned and located so that they can continue to perform their safety practical throughout the ISFSI, particularly in locations vital to the shall be designed and provided with sufficient capacity and capability shall include provisions to protect against adverse effects that might to minimize the adverse effects of fires and explosions on structures, The design of the ISFSI Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be systems, and components important to safety. cions. Noncombustible and hea unctions. system

(d) Sharing of Structures, Systems, and Components

Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall not be shared between an ISFSI and other facilities unless it is shown that such sharing will not impair the capability of either facility to perform its safety functions, including the ability to return to a safe condition in the event of an accident.

(e) Proximity of Sites.

An ISFSI located near other nuclear facilities shall be designed and operated to ansure that the cumulative effects of their combined operations will not constitute an unreasonable risk to the health and safety of the public.

(f) Testing and Maintenance of Systems and Components

Systems and components that are important to safety shall be designed to permit inspection, maintenance, and testing.

(g) Emergency Capability.

Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed for emergencies. The design shall provide for accessibility to the equipment of onsite and available offsite emergency facilities and services such as hospitals, fire and police departments, ambulance service. and other emergency agencies.

(8) Confinement burners and systems. (1) The fuel c'adding shall be protected against degradation and gross ruptures.

underwater storage of spent luel be designed so that any maloperation or failure in those systems from any cause will in which the pool water serves as a shield and a confinement medium for radioactive materials, systems designed for maintaining not cause the water level to fall below safe locally and in a continuously manned loca-tion if the water level in the fuel storage water purity and the pool water level shall permanently connected systerms and other features that by malopera. equipment shall be provided to alarm both ld cause a signifu pools falls beinw a predetermined shall not be installed or level. Water Pool tion or failure cou design. TOT CIT of water : the desu

 (iii) Ventulation systems shall be provided where necessary, e.g., for the cask venturg station, to assure the confinement of airborne radioactive particulate materials during normal or off-normal conditions. (9) Instrumentation and control systems Instrume "akino and control systems shall be provide," to monitor safety related systems over aith, "aird ranges for normal operation and off-no, "val operation. Those in struments and contry, "systems which must remain operational un," er accident conditions must be identified "nd designed to remain operable. (10) Control room or control areas. A control room or control areas shall be designed to permit occupancy and actions to be taken to operate and monitor the ISFSI safely quoter normal conditions and to maintain (the ISFSI in a safe condition under offnormal or accident conditions.) (11) Utility services (1) The design of each utility service system required for emergen cy condutions shall provide for the meeting of safety demands under normal and offnormal conditions. The design of safety related utility services and disribution shall include redundant systems to the extent include redundant systems to the extent include redundant sustems to the extent include redundant sustems to the extent include redundant sustems to the extent assuming a single failure.

(h) Confinement Barriers and Systems.

 The fuel cladding shall be protected against degradation and gross ruptures. (2) for underwater storage of spent fuel in which the pool water serves as a shield and a confinement medium for radioactive materials, systems designed for maintaining water purity and the pool water jevel shall be designed so that any abnormal operations or fallure in those systems from any cause will not cause the water level to fall below safe limits. The design shall preclude installations of drains, permanently connected systems, and other features that could by abnormal operations or failure cause a significant loss of water. Pool water level equipment shall be provided to alarm in a continuously manned location if the water

level in the fuel storage pools fails below a predetermined level.
(3) Ventilation and off-gas systems shall be provided where neces-

sary to ensure the confinement of airborne radioactive particulate materials during normal or off-normal conditions.

(1) Instrumentation and Control Systems.

Instrumentation and control systems shall be provided to monitor systems that are important to safety over anticipated ranges for normal operation and off-normal operation. Those instruments and control systems that must remain operational under accident conditions shall be identified in the Safety Analysis Report.

(j) Control Room or Control Areas.

A control room or control areas shall be designed to permit occupancy and actions to be taken to monitor the ISFSI safely under normal conditions, and to provide safe control of the ISFSI under off-normal or accident conditions.

(k) Utility Services.

(1) Each utility service system shall be designed to meet emergency conditions. The design of utility services and distribution systems that are important to safety shall include redundant systems to the extent necessary to maintain, with adequate capacity, the ability to perform safety functions assuming a single failure.

 (j) Revised to accentuate monitoring and safe controls. Public & Staff.

C

(ii) Emergency utility services shall be desuened to permit testing of the lumctional operability and capacity, including the full operational sequence, of each system for transfer between normal and emergency supply sources, and the operation of associated safety systems.

(iii) Provisions shall be made so that, in the event of a loss of the primary electric power source or circuit, rehable and imerity emergency power will be provided to instruments, utility service systems, and oprisition wystems including the security central alarm systems including the security central alarm station, in amounts sufficient to allow safe station, in amounts to be maintaned with. If safety devices essent: "To safe storage functionance.

NUCLEAR CRITICALITY SAFETY

(12) Design for entreality safety All handesigned to be maintained subcritical and to insure that no nuclear criticality arcident current or sequential changes have occurred guis of safety for the nuclear criticality parameters that are commensurate with the dling, transfer and storage systems shall be incertainties in the handling, transfer, and used in calculations, and n, the nature of the immediate environment under accident very low probability), independent, and conin the conditions essential to nuclear critiand methods can uccur unless at least two unlikely the cality safety. The design of handling, trans and storage systems shall include mar storage conditions, in the "a. fer.

(13) Acceptable methods of control, (i) Favorable geometry (spacing) is the standard method of nuclear criticality control. Subcriticality is assured by limiting the reactivity through the control of spacing of the individual storage unit ione or more fuel assembles), and for underwater storage, by the neutron absorption by the water between storage units. Storage racks must be structurally compatible with seismic design criteria.

(ii) The use of permanently fixed neutronabsorbing materials (poisons) is an alternative method of criticality control. Where solid neutron absorbing materials are used for the prevention of nuclear criticality, the design shall provide for positive means to verify their continued efficacy.

(2) Emergency utility services shall be designed to permit testing of the functional operability and capacity, incluring the full operational sequence, of each system for transfer between normal and emergency supply sources; and to permit the operation of associated safety systems. (3) Provisions shall be made so that, in the event of a loss of the primary electric power source or circuit, reliable and timely emer-

the primary electric power source or circuit, reliable and timely emergency power will be provided to instruments, utility service systems, the central security alarm station, and operating systems, in amounts sufficient to allow safe storage conditions to be maintained and to bermit continued functioning of all systems essential to safe storage.

5 72.73 Criteria for Nuclear Criticality Safety

(a) Design for Criticality Safety.

Spent fuel handling, transfer, and storage systems shall be designed to be maintained subcritical and to prevent a nuclear criticality accident. The design of handling, transfer, and storage systems shall include margins of safety for the nuclear criticality parameters that are commensurate with the uncertainties in the handling, transfer and storage conditions, in the data and methods used in calculations, and in the nature of the

(b) Methods of Criticality Control.

under accident conditions

mmediate environment

The design of an ISFSI shall be based on either favorable yeometry (spacing) or permanently fixed neutron absorbing materials (poisons). Where solid neutron absorbing materials are used, the design shall provide for positive means to verify their continued efficacy. In criticality design analyses for underwater storage systems, credit can be taken for the neutron absorbtion of rack structures and the water within the storage unit.

(b) Rewritten to improve clarity Staff.

RADIOLOGICAL PROTECTION

ation protection systems and programs shall be provided for all areas and operations where plant personnel may be exposed to above background levels to insure that exposures are within systems, and name, and required inspections may involve located, shielded, controlled and tested so as to control external and internal radiation exposures to personnel. This shall include such exposure shall be designed. fabricated. the limits of Part 20 and are as low as is reacomponents for which operation, mainte-(14) Erposure control. Appropriate radi levels of radiation or airborne radioar. sonably achievable. Structures. materials significantly mear

(i) Prevent the accumulation of or provide for decreasing the content of radioactive material in those systems to which access by personnel is required.

(ii) Provide for control of access to areas of potential contammation or high radiation within the ISFSE

(iii) Assure that contamination can be monitored and controlled:

riv) Minimize the time required to perform work in the vicinity of radioactive components such as by providing sufficient space for ease of operation and designing equipment for case of repair and replacement. and

(v) Provide shielding to assure that exposures to personnel in accessible areas are within the limits of Part 20 and are as low as is reasonably achievable.

(15) Radiation alarm systems Radiation alarm systems shall be provided to warn opetating personnel of significant increases in radiation levels in accessible work areas and of excessive concentrations of radioactive material in effluents. Such systems shall be designed with capability to permit testing of their operability.

(16) Effluent monitoring. Effluent systems shall be designed to include means for measuring, the amount of radiomucides in any effluent. In order that the data thus measured and recorded can be used, a means of measuring the flow of environmental uluithe media, either air or water, shall be provided.

3 72.74 Criteria for Radiological Protection

(a) Exposure Control

Radiation protection systems shall be provided for all areas and operations where <u>onsite</u> personnel may be exposed to radiation or airborneradioactive materials. Structures, systems, and components for which operation, maintenance, and required inspections may involve such exposure shall be designed, fabricated, located, shielded, controlled, and tested so as to control external and internal radiation exposures to personnel. The design shall include means to:

(1) prevent the accumulation of radioactive material in those systems requiring access;

(2) decontaminate those systems to which access is required;

(3) control access to areas of potential contamination of ¹, gh

radiation within the ISFSI;

(4) measure and control contamination of areas requiring access,

(5) minimize the time required to perform work in the vicinity of radioactive components; for example, by providing sufficient space for euse of operation and designing equipment for ease of repair and replacement; and

(6) shield person el from radiation exposure

(b) Radiologica¹ Alarm Systems.

Radiological alarm systems shall be provided in accessible work areas to warn operating personnel of radiation and airborne radioactivity levels above a given setpoint and of concentrations of radioactive material in effluents above control limits. Such systems shall be designed wi.h provisions for calibration and testing their operability.

(c) Effluent and Direct Radiation Monitoring.

(1) Effluent systems shall be provided with means for measuring the amount of radionuclides in effluents during normal operations and under arcident conditions. A means of measuring the flow of the diluting mediua, either air or water, shall also be provided.

(2) Areas containing radioactive materials shall be provided with systems for measuring the direct radiation levels in and around these

(b) Rewritten to include requirements fc⁻ airborne radioactivity alarm systems and calibration.

(1) Broadened scope of section.

(2) Added requirement for direct radiation level monitoring.

いきましの

A-48

ISFSI shall include means to minimize the Systems provided to guard against the release of radioactive A I I W Effluent control. The design of the release in effluents of radioactive materials materials shall be designed to be monitored alarms. Capability shall be provided for prompt cessation of the flow of contaminatfluents as is necessary to ensure that the within the limits of Part 20 and are as low ed effluents or for retention of such efactive materials in effluents are maintained concentrations and total quantities of radio in any form, during normal operations and tested, and shall be provided as is reasonably achievable. under accident conditions. (11)

SPENT FUEL AND RADIOACTIVE WASTE STORAGE AND HANDLING

(18) Spent fuel and radioactive reasts storage and handing systems. Spent fuel storage and handing systems. Spent fuel storster, radioactive waste storate, and other systems that might contain or handle radioactive materials shall be desured to assure active materials shall be desured to assure active materials shall be desured to assure dequale safety under normal and accident conditions. These systems shall be desugned (1) with a capability to test and monitor components important to safety. (ii) with sultable shielding for radiation protection under normal and accident conditions. (iii) with confinement systems, (iv) with a heat removal capability having testability and reflability consistent w.u.n. the quartity of safety, and (v) to infinince the quartity of radioactive wastes generated.

(19) Waste treatment. Radioactive waste treatment facilities shall be provided. These facilities shall be devisited to concentrate all site generated wastes and convert them into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate final disposal.

(d) Effluent Control.

The ISFSI shall be designed to provide means to limit to levels as low as is reasonably achievable the release of radioactive materials in effluents during normal operations; and control the release of radioactive materials under accident conditions. Analyses shall be made to show that releases to the general environment during normal operations and anticipated occurrences will be within the exposure limits given in § 72.67. Analyses of design basis accidents shall be made, to show that releases to the general environment will be within the exposure limits given in § 72.68. Systems designed to monitor the release of radioactive materials shall have means for calibration and testing their operability.

§ 72.75 Criteria for Spent Fuel and Radioactive Waste Storage and Handling (a) Spent Fuel and Radioactive Waste Storage and Handling Systems.
Spent fuel storage, radioactive waste storage, and other systems.
Spent fuel, shall be designed to ensure adequate safety under normal and accident fuel, shall be designed to ensure adequate safety under normal and accident conditions. These systems shall be designed with (1) a capability to test and munitor components important to safety, (2) suitable shielding for radiation protection under normal and accident conditions. (3) confinement <u>structures and systems</u>, (4) a heat-removal capability having test-ability and reliability consistent with its importance to safety, and (5) means to minimize the quantity of radioactive wastes generated.

Radioactive waste treatment facilities shall be provided. Provisions shall be made for the packaging of site-generated low level wastes in a form suitable for transfer to disposal sites.

(d) Rewritten to improve clarity and update reference.

8

(b) Rewritten to be consistent with other NRC regulations. Staff.

DECOMMISSIONING

(20) Decommissioning An ISFSI shall be designed to facilitate decontamination of structures and equipment and to minimize the quantity and facilitate the removal of radioactive wastes and contaminated equipment at the time the installation is permanently decommissioned.

Subpart G-Quality Assurance

§ 72.75 Quality assurance program; records.

(a) A quality assurance program based on the criteria in Appendix B of Part 50 of this chapter shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that the safety-related structures, systems and components of an ISFSI will perform their safety functions. The application of the quality assurance program should be commensurate with the importance of individual structures, systems and components to safety. The quality assurance program should cover the activities of designing, purchasing, fabricating, handling, shipping, storing, cleaning, erecting, installing, inspecting, testing, operating, maintaining, repairing, and modifying.

(b) As used in this section, "quality assurance" means all those planned and systematic actions necessary to provide confidence that a structure, system, or component will perform satisfactorily in service. Quality assurance includes quality control, which comprises those quality assurance actions related to the physical characterh, 'ies of a material, structure, component, or system which provide a means to control the quality of the material, structure, component, or system to predetermined requirements.

(c) Appropriate records of the design, fabricatic... erection, and testling of structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be maintained by or under the control of the licensee throughout the life of the installation.

§ 72.76 Criteria for Decommissioning

The ISFSI shall be designed for decommissioning. Provisions shall be made to facilitate decontamination of structures and equipment, minimize the quantity of radioactive was the and contaminated enuipment, and facilitate the removal of radioactive wastes and contaminated materials at the time the ISFSI is permanently decommissioned.

Subpart G - Quality Assurance

§ 72.80 Quality Assurance Program; Records

(a) A quality assurance program based on the criteria in Appendix 8 to Part 50 of this charter shall be established and implemented for the structures, systems, and components of an ISFSI that are important to safety. The application of the quality assurance program should be commensurate with the importance to safety of identified activities and individual structures, systems, and components.

(b) The quality assurance program shall cover all activities identified as being important to safety throughout the life of the licensed activity - from site selection through decommissioning prior to termination of the license.

(c) Appropriate records of the design, fabrication, erection,

testing, maintenance and ocupation of structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be maintained by or under the control of the licensee throughout the life of the ISFSI.

(b) Rewritten to improve clarity.

(c) Rewritten to include maintenance function. Staff.

Subpart H - Physical Protection

Subpart H-Plant Protection

§72.81 Physical security plan.

(a) The plan for detailed security measures for physical protection shall consist of two parts. Part I shall demonstrate how the applicant plans to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 73 of this chapter at the proposed installation. Part II shall list tests, inspections, audits, and other means to be used to demonstrate compliance with such requirements. Ten copies are required.

(b) A description of the design for physical protection shall show the site layout and ISFSI design features which will make the installation less vulnerable to sabotage, and shall include:

 The principal design criteria for the physical protection of the proposed installation.

(2) The design bases and the relation of the design bases to the principal design criteria submitted pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section; and

(3) Information relative to materials of construction, equipment, general arrangement, and proposed quality assurance program sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the final installation will conform to the design bases for the principal design criteria submitted pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) The licensee safeguards contingency plan for dealing with threats and industrial sabotage are defined in Part 73 relating to nuclear facilities licensed under Part 50 of this chapter. This plan shall include the first four categories of information contained in the applicant's safeguards contingency plan. (The first four categories of information, as set forth in Appendix C to Part 73 of this chapter are Background, Generic Plantang Base, Licensee Planning Base, and Responsibility Matrix. The fifth category of information, Procedures, does not nave to be submitted for approval.)

§ 72.81 Physical Security Plan.

A plan for detailed security measures for physical protection shall be established. This plan shall consist of two parts. Part I shall demonstrate how the applicant plans to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 73 of this chapter and during transporation to and from the proposed ISFSI and shall include the design for physical protection and the licensee's safeguards contingency plan and guard training plan. Part II shall list tests, inspections, audits, and other means to be used to demonstrate compliance with such requirements.

§ 72.82 Design for Physical Protection

The design for physical protection shall show the site layout and ISFSI design features provided to protect the ISFSI from sabotage. It shall include:

(a) The design criteria for the physical protection of the proposed ISFSI;

(b) The design bases and the relation of the design bases to the design criteria submitted pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section; and

(c) Information relative to materials of construction, equipment, general arrangement, and proposed quality assurance program sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the final security system will conform to the design bases for the principal design criteria submitted pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section.

§ 72.83 Safeguards Contingency Plan

(a) The requirements of the licensee's safeguards contingency plan for dealing with threats and industrial sabotage shall be as defined in § 73.40(b) of this Chapter. This plan shall include Background, Generic Planning Base, Licensee Planning Base, and Responsibility Matrix, the first four categories of information relating to nuclear facilities licensed under Part 50 of this chapter. (The fifth category of information, Procedures, does not have to be submitted for approval.) § 72.81 Added statement concerning physical protection during transportation. Staff.

(d) The licensee shall prepare and maintain safeguards contingency plan Procedures in accordance with Appendix C of 10 CFR Part 73 for effecting the actions and decisions contained in the Responsibility Matrix of his safeguards contingency plan. The licenseeshall make no change that would decrease the safeguards effectiveness of the first four categories of information (Background, Generic Planning, Base, Licensee Planning Base, and Responsibility Matrix) contained in any licensee safeguards contingency plan prepared pursuant to \$\$72.81(c) and 70.22(g), 70.22(j), 73.30(g), or 73.40 of this chapter without the prior approval of the Commission. A licensee desiring to make such a change shall submit an application for an amendment to his license pursuant to § 72:39 of this chapter. The licensee may make changes to the licensee safeguards contingency plan without prior Commission approval if the changes do not decrease the safeguards effectiveness of the plan. The licensee shall maintain records of changes to any such plan made without prior approval for a period of 2 years from the date of the change and shall furnish to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555, with a copy to the appropriate NRC Regional Office specified in Appendix A of Part 73 of this chapter, a report containing a description of each change within 2 months after the change is made.

Subpart I—Training and Certification of ISFSI Personne

§ 72.91 Scope of training program.

Manipulation of equipment and controls which have been identified as safety-related in the safety analysis report shall be limited to trained personnel, or in an emergency situation, under the direct supervision of an individual with adequate training in such operation. Supervisory personnel who direct the manipulation of safetyrelated equipment and controls must have a level of training in such operations comparable to that of trained operating personnel. (b) The licensee shall prepare and maintain safeguards contingency plu procedures in accordance with Appendix C to 10 CFR Part 73 for effecting the actions and decisions contained in the Responsibility Matrix of the licensee's safeguards contingency plan.

§ 72.84 Change to Physical Security and Safeguards Contingency Plans

(a) The licensee shall make no change that would decrease the safeguards effectiveness of the physical security plan or the first four categories of information (Background, Generic Planning Base, Licensee Planning Base, and Responsibility Matrix) contained in the licensee safeguards contingency plan without the prior approval of the Commission. A licensee desiring to make such a change shall submit an application for an amendment to his license pursuant to § 72.39.

(b) The licensee may, without prior Commission approval, make changes to the physical security plan or the safeguards contingency plan, if the changes do not decrease the safeguards effectiveness of these plans. The licensee shall maintain records of changes to any such plan made without prior approval for a period of 2 years from the date of the change and shall furnish to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555, with a copy to the appropriate NRC Regional Office specified in Appendix A to Part 73 of this chapter, a report containing a description of each change within 2 wonths after the change is made.

Subpart I - Training and Certification of ISFSI Personnel

§ 72.91 Operator Requirements.

Operation of equipment and controls that have been identified as important to safety in the Safety Analysis Report and in the license shall be limited to trained and certified personnel or be under the direct visual supervision of an individual with training and extification in such operation. Supervisory personnel who personally direct the operation of equipment and controls that are important to safety must also be certified in such operations.

§ 72.92 Responsibility for training program.

cation of operating personnel is the responsibility of the licensee under this part.

§ 72.93 Physical requirements.

(a) The physical condition and the general health of personnel certified for the manipulation of safety-related equipment and controls must not be such as might cause operational error endangering other in-plant personnel or the public health and safety. Any physical or mental condition which might cause impaired judgment or motor coordination must be considered in the selection of personnel for safety-related activities. Such conditions need not categorically disqualify a person provided appropriate provisions are made to accommodate such defect.

§72.91 Submission for approval.

The applicant for a license under this part must submit his program for training, proficiency testing and certification of ISFSI personnel to the Commission for approval at least 6 months prior to the scheduled receipt of the first materials for storage.

§ 72.92 Operator Training and Certification Program.

The applicant for a license under this part shall establish a program for training, proficiency testing, and certification of ISFSI personnel. This program shall be submitted to the Commission for approval with the license application.

§ 72.93 Physical Requirements.

The physical condition and the general health of personnel certified for the operation of equipment and controls that are important to safety shall not be such as might cause operational errors that could endanger other in-plant personnel or the public health and safety. Any condition which might cause impaired judgment or motor coordination must be considered in the selection of personnel for activities that are important to safety. Such conditions need not categorically disqualify a person, so long as appropriate provisions are made to accommodate such defect. APPENDIX B

COMMENT LETTERS



Women's In enational League for Pe

1116 Jest Fifth Topeka, Kans. 666 November 4, 1978

FOUNDED IN 1915 / First President: JANE ADDAMS

PHUPOSED RULE PR-72 (43FR 46309)

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Attention, Docketing and Washington, D. C. 20555 Service Branch

We have received your Proposed Regulation 10 CFR part 72 STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION, and after reading its nine pages of small print with special attention--at your suggestion-- to Subpart E, "Siting Oriteria" and Subpart F, "Genaral Design Criteria", we feel no assurance that your Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation will protect the population from the deadly wastes that the nuclear reactors now in use have produced and are constantly producing. True, moving the waste from the reactor site may beref some benefit to the people in that neighborhood, but what about those living near the storage site and those exposed to the deadly potsons while they are in transit?

You devote considerable space to plans for licensing officials to select storage sites and take care of the deadly wastes, but where are you going to find people who can qualify for such a responsibility when, according to the Union of Concerned Scientists--with its 2,000 membership, which includes some Nobel prize winners-- "No method for long-term storage or disposal of these radioactive wastes has been developed and proven reliable"?

> Maude Skillman, Corresponding Secretary, Topeka Branch , WILFF

Mainde Schillman Dupe o Acknowledged by card

8-1

7812040240

NEC PUELIC DOCUMENT RO STATE OF FLORIDA JEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION 2600 BLAIR STONE ROAD TWIN TOWERS OFFICE BUILDING November 29, 1978 TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 DOCKET RUMAN Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Bul R4630 Fuel Process Systems Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Nevelopment Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

Re: Proposed spent fuel storage regulation, 10 CFR Part 72

It would appear that the ISFSI facility and its large associated costs of construction, operation, decommissioning, and concomitant transportation, public health, and environmental costs cannot be adequately justified at this time. The ISFSI proposal constitutes at best a very short term strategy which in the longer run would create more problems for the nuclear industry than it would solve. Creation of the facility would add both to the likelihood of environmental hazards and the proliferating inventory of nuclear wastes. As it is, spent fuel is distributed over a relatively large number of sites which minimizes the danger of catastrophic accidents.

If nuclear wastes are as dangerous as the following implies, "The large inventory of radionuclides in an ISFSI represents a potential hazard to public health and safety", then perhaps the nuclear industry should consider stopping the generation of wastes altogether pending final development of a viable mode of permonent waste disposal. Another "temporary storage" facili, would only further remove the responsibility for wastes being generated from those entities generating them. "Storage for an idefinite (sic) period of time, and its ultimate disposition unknown" represents yet another step in divorcing waste generation from the consequences of same. "") accomodate some light water. . . plant fuel which has at least one year's decay" is patently transparent. The clause, the "Commission consents. . . to the creation of any. . . pledge or. . . lien upon. . . nuclear material. . . not owned by the US. . . " would provide industry with a means of circumventing President Carter's nuclear nonproliferation policy which prevents the sale or lease of fuel, technology, and hardware abroad to non-nuclear nations. By reason of this clause, nuclear wastes could be received at the proposed U.S.-ISFSI from proliferating sources worldwide, in anticipation of the resumption of spent fuel reprocessing and creation of mixed oxide fuels for resale or lease again abroad. That wastes are a valuable commodity is demonstrated by the consistent placement of "common defense and security"

before "human health and safety" throughout the text. The ISFSI obviously would be a valuable concession, to be built at public expense and operated privately for the benefit of the operators and those utility corporations using the facility -- another example of the seemingly endless line of subsidies required to keep the nuclear fission industry "viable" (The cost of storing spent fuel temporarily would exceed \$500.00/lb. more than 10 times the cost of new enriched fuel.)

The ISFSI, furthermore, would add to the national burden of inflation, and to the increasing uncertainty regarding the future role of the U.S. dollar abroad, both in foreign trade and as an international reserve currency. It would also render the belt-tightening implied in President Carter's anti-inflation program less palatable for those who would not be in a position to "pass on" the increased costs of operation or of living.

Inherent in the ISPSI concept is the potential for grave environmental and public health hazards, including the possibility of criticality. Frequent references to "emergencies", "accidents", "malfunctions", "margin of safety as defined", and "retrofitting" inspire little confidence in systems-analysis design capability, especially in the light of past and currest efforts at "temporary" waste storage. Nor do the following apologies inspire much confidence: "taking into account (the) state of technology. . . economics, severity of events selected (and) postulated events", "costs", "wherever practical", "costs", during normal operation", "expected operational occurances," "costs", "calculated exposure", "maximum degree reasonable," "costs", and "within the limits of EPA regulation". We have been asked to accept as articles of faith that, "the cooling system need not be designed to withstand the extremes of natural phenomena. Likewise, the emergency water supply system need not be permanently installed", that "A peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greater than 0.25g. . . shall be deemed suitable", and that, "no detailed site-specific. . . analysis is required unless some musual geologic characteristic is identified". In truth, the added "costs" to the public and the environment from "controlled" liquid and gaseous releases, accidental releases of every kind, millions of ton-miles of transportation, sabotage and theft, and the defacto creation of additional wastes from the operation and decommissioning of the ISFSI, would clearly stand in opposition not only to the public's best interest, but in the longer term to the interests of the industry as well.

Therefore, because the ISFSI concept cannot under any reasonable standards of conscience or economics be credibly justified, rule 10 CFR Part 72 would appear to be entirely superfluous -- a product of the agencies of haste and ad hoc reasoning that have brought upon this planet the current crisis in nuclear wates. 10 CFR Part 72 is a bad regulation. It should be withdrawn entirely and scrapped.

Sincerely,

Don Kell, Engineer

DK/js

cc: Senator Gary Hart

MRC PUTITIC POCITY P ROOM Nebraska Department of Environmental Control I. James Exon, Governor Dan T. Drain, Director November 29, 1978 DOCTER NULISER -TK-72(43FR46309) PROFOSED RULE Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20553

Dear Mr. Stanford:

We have reviewed the proposed spent fuel storage regulations published in the Federal Register on October 6, 1978, and offer the following comments:

1. Subpart C, Issuance and Conditions of Licenses. The proposal to issue the license at a very early stage and then re-examine it and add conditions before the facility can receive waste could result in the construction of an ISFSI which would not be allowed to receive spent fuel. This could result in wasting millions of dollars either by reason of the facility standing as a white elephant or in spending large sums to rebuild selected parts. One license should be issued after receipt of sufficient data to indicate the facility will be able to receive spent fuel. In an effort to save time by the method proposed, delays could result which would defeat the purpose of the regulation.

2. Seismic Characteristics. The seismic requirements should include the option of construction to meet the 0.259 acceleration or of performing the seismic analysis to justify a lower acceleration. The design of the basin to meet 0.259 is primarily a matter of additional concrete and construction material. However, the auxiliary systems designs become much more involved for increased seismic acceleration. If 0.259 is required and a facility is located at the site of an operating reactor designed to 0.159, the lack of logic is obvious. Also, such location would obviate the possible use of existing rad waste systems in the existing nuclear facility for processing the new storage facility liquids.

I hope these comments will be useful to you. Should you have any questions, please feel free to call.

Sincerely,

Pine H. Richard H. Hansen Senior Legal Counsel

dik. plistig

cc: Eric Sloth George J. Dworak

Marvin Carlson

RHH:ck

B-5

Mail, Bon 94877 Statehouse Station Office, 301 Centennial Mall South Lincoln, Nebraska 68509 (402) 471-2186

STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

STATE OFFICE BUILDING HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 16115

PRCPUSED November 27, 1978

Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Gevelopment U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555



Dear Mr. Stanford:

This is in reply to your letter of November 2, 1978, regarding the proposed spent fuel storage regulation 10 CFR Part 72.

Members of the "aff in our Radiation Control Unit have reviewed the document containing the proposed regulation which you sent to us.

In general the proposed regulation appears to be adequate to protect the public health and safety.

We would like to recommend, however, that Section 72.67 be revised downward to at least include the numerical guides that are used to meet the ALARA objectives for Light Water Reactors. A spent fuel storage installation at a reactor site must meet these numerical guides and it seems reasonable to apply them to all storage installations.

It is also suggested that Section 72.51b be revised to have the physical inventory coincide with the semi-annual Commission Material Status Reports.

We also feel that the regulation should contain specific requirements relating to financial protection and responsibility for public liability.

Sincerely,

tanles I Gae

Stanley/JJ/ Pac Commissioner

SJP/mm



FROM:

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMENT ROOM

UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D. C. 20555

DOCKET NULICER : PROPOSED RULE 11 - 72(4

MEMORANDUM FOR:

Russell Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Office of Standard Development

Arnold Abriss Low-Level Waste Branch Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards



SUBJECT: PROPOSED TO CER PART 72

I would like to submit a comment on Proposed 10 CFR Part 72, Section 72.18 "Decommissioning Plan, including its Financing".

Proposed Section 72.18 of 10 CFR requests information to be included in the Decommissioning Plan for an ISFSI. However, there is no requirement for providing cost estimates for the various decommissioning operations. Estimated costs are necessary to properly select a funding mechanism to pay for decommissioning. I would therefore, suggest the following changes:

- (a) Insert the following statement after the first sentence, "The plan shall include cost estimates for implementing the decommissioning procedures, for decontaminating the site and for disposing of radioactive materials, including transportation and burial changes."
- (b) Add after "execution" based upon the cost estimates of part (a) above.

anneal little

Arnold Abriss Low-Level Waste Branch Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards



SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY

DEPARTMENT OF EARTH AND ATMOSPHERIC SCIENCES

3507 LACLEDE AVENUE SAINT LOUIS, MISSOURI 63103

MAILING ADDRESS: P. O. BOX 8099 - LACLEDE STATION SAINT LOUIS, MISTOURI 63156

November 17, 1978 TET NUMPER ENUIPUSED RULE 111-72(43 FR 4 630

Mr. Russell E.L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development U.S. Muclear Regulartory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

Thank you for giving me an opportunity to review the proposed spent fuel storage regulation, 10CFR Part 72, before its final drafting. I have not been in my office enough to assure prompt delivery of my mail, so I hope my comments reach you in time to be useful.

In general, the proposed regualtion reads smoothly, and it is immediately apparent that the authors were aware of the current ideas concerning siting and design of Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installations. I was impressed with the message presented under Supplementary Information. Subpart F-General Design Criteria also appears to be exceptionally well written; I hope that John Nevshemal, Science Applications, Englewood, Colorado, also had a chance to read this.

I hesitate to endorse any statement in the regulation which requires ISFSI's to be designed to withstand a 0.25g acceleration or requires the sites to have a ground motion potential of no more than 0.25g. Philosophically, I have no quarrel with the concept of using exsiting seismic risk maps, choosing sites with earthquake ground motion potential of no more than 0.25g with recurrence interval of 500 years, and building the ISFSI without costly site-specific investigations. It is an excellent alternative.

The other alternatives should be defined as clearly as the one just discussed. Transportation may become a more serious problem than would be the designing of an ISFSI for a site where horizontal acceleration may be expected to exceed 0.25g. In a few years this option may be extremely important and the option should be clearly available.

The psychology of requiring an ISFSI to be designed to withstand 0.25g acceleration becomes bothersome when the ISFSI is to be located near the site of a nuclear power plant that was constructed to withstand 0.15g acceleration. Whether the reasons be psychological or economic, there should be a clear option of

Dup 07 7812260267

Actinowindred by card ... Elk 6/3/28
performing a site specific seismic investigation and of negotiating a design value of less than 0.25g.

The latter ctpions should be readily available rather than being presented as an acquiescence. We are currently working on a new seismic risk maps, and the options are apt to become more important in the future.

Than you again for permitting me to extress my opinion.

Sinceraly yours, 10m Buschback

T. C. Buschbach Research Professor of Geology

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMENT ROOM

DAMES & MOORE:

inter in more ERCHOSED BULLE EIN - 72 (43 FR 4630 9

November 16, 1978



Russell E.L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standard Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

I have reviewed the proposed spent Fuel Storage Regulation 10 CFR Part 72 as you requested. I believe the proposed Regulation fully covers all aspects of Independent Spent Fuel Storage Facility, and I cannot add any further useful comments to this document.

Very truly yours,

DAMES & MOORE

George W. Nicholas Partner Certified Consulting Meteorologist

GWN: jmj

Admonia in part ... Cita ... Distic

Dupe of 7812220122

DOCKET HILE PR- 72(43 FR 4630 9)

November 29, 1978

3

Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

Re: Proposed spent fuel storage regulation, 10 CFR Part 72

It would appear that the ISFSI facility and its large associated costs of construction, operation, decommissioning, and concomitant transportation, public health, and environmental costs cannot be adequately justified at this time. The ISFSI proposal constitutes at best a very short term strategy which in the longer run would create more problems for the nuclear industry than it would solve. Creation of the facility would add both to the likelihood of environmental hazards and the proliferating inventory of nuclear wastes. As it is, spent fuel is distributed over a relatively large number of sites which minimizes the danger of catastrophic accidents.

If nuclear wastes are as dangerous as the following implies, "The large inventory of radionuclides in an ISFSI represents a potential hazard to public health and safety", then perhaps the nuclear industry should consider stopping the generation of wastes altogether pending final development of a viable mode of permanent waste disposal. Another "tem-porary storage" facility would only further remove the re-sponsibility for wastes being generated from those entities generating them. "Storage for an idefinite (sic) period of time, and its ultimate disposition unknown" represents yet another step in divorcing waste generation from the consequences of same. "To accomodate some light water. . . plant fuel which her at least one year's decay" is patently transparent. The clause, the "Commission consents. . . to the creation of any. . . pledge or. . . lien upon. . . nuclear material. . . not owned by the US. . . " would provide industry with a means of circumventing President Carter's nuclear nonproliferation policy which prevents the sale or lease of fuel, technology, and hardware abroad to non-nuclear nations. By reason of this clause, nuclear wastes could be received at the proposed U.S.-ISPSI from proliferating sources worldwide, in anticipation of the resumption of spent fuel reprocessing and creation of mixed oxic fuels for resale or lease again abroad. That wastes are a valuable commodity is demonstrated by the consistent placement of "common defense and security"

B-11 - Alla - Alla

7812270099

Dupe o'

CFBRAUN & CO Engineers

ALHAMBRA CALIFORNIA 91802

MAYET H. EROPUSED BULE T 13-72(43FR 46309)

November 15, 1978

LETTERY FELLERY

the set of second prove and

Mr Russell E L Stanford Nuclear Regulatory Commission Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development Washington, D C 20555

Dear Mr Stanford

The attached notice on the proposed spent fuel storage regulation 10 CFR Part 72 was reviewed as requested by your letter of October 27, 1978.

The comments are self explanatory, however we would suggest that in 72.15, sub 13 some acceptable dose criteria with a defined limit be included. The license duration is 20 years in 72.32, however Nuclear Power Plants are 40 years. Is there a specific reason for limiting spent fuel storage to 20 years?

Russ, I will look forward to seeing you at the next ANSI meeting.

Very truly yours

LWK NH

(b) Address of applicant:

 (c) Description of business or occupation of applicant;

(d) (1) If applicant is an individual, state citizenship and age.

TABLE I .- Required lice sing documents

Section	Document	No. o/ copies
72.11	License application	25
72.15	Safety analysis report	70
72.19	Emergency plan	25
72 20	Environmental report	150
72.34	Report of installation and procedures changes	12
72.36	Application for transfer of license	125
72.38	Application for termination of license	125
72.39	Amendment to license	125
72.75	Quality assurance program	25
72 81(4)	Physical security plan ?	10
72.81(c)	Safeguards contingency plan	10
72.94	Personnel training program	10

Plus 3 signed originals.

*Plus I signed original.

'Physical protection plans should be held exempt from public disclosure pursuant to 10 CFR 2 790(d).

(2) If applicant is a partnership, state name, citizenship and address of each partner and the principal location where the partnership does business.

(3) If applicant is a corporation or an unincorporated association, state:

 The State, where it is incorporated or organized and the principal location where it does business;

(ii) The names, addresses and citizenship of its directors and principal officers.

(4) If the applicant is acting as an agent or representative of another person in filing the application, identify the principal and furnish information required under this paragraph with respect to such principal.

(e) Information sufficient to demonstrate to the Commission the financial qualifications of the applicant to carry out, in accordance with the regulations in this chapter, the activities for which the license is sought. This information'shall state the place at the activity is to be perform/

general plan for carrying out the activity and the period of time for which the license is requested. The information shall show that the applicant either possesses the necessary funds or that the applicant has reasonable assurance of obtaining the necessary funds, or that by a combination of the two, the applicant will have the necessary funds available to cover the following:

(1) Estimated construction costs.

(2) Estimated operating costs over the planned life of the installation.

(3) Estimated shutdown and decommissioning costs and the necessary financial arrangements prior to licensing that will insure shutdown, decon-

The second

and the second second

100

tamination and decommissioning will be carried out.

§72.15 Contents of application: Technical information.

Each application for a license under this part shall include: (a) Safety Analysis Report describing the proposed installation (ISFSI) for the storage of spent fuel, including how the ISFSI will be operated. The minimum information to be included in this report shall consist of the following:

(1) A description and safety assessment of the site on which the ISFSI is to be located, with appropriate attention to features affecting installation design. Such assessment shall contain an analysis and evaluation of the major structures, systems and components of the ISFSI which bear on the suitability of the site assuming that the installation will be operated at the ultimate capacity ' which is contemplated by the applicant.

(2) A description and discussion of the ISFSI structures with special attention to design and operating characteristics, unusual or novel design features, and principal safety considerations.

(3) The preliminary design of the installation including:

(i) The principal design criteria for the installation pursuant to subpart F of this part, with any additions to or departures from the general design criteria identified and justified.

(ii) The design bases and the relation of the design bases to the princlpal design criteria;

(iii) Information relative to materials of construction, general arrangement, and approximate dimensions, sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the final design will conform to the design bases with an adequate margin for safety; and

(iv) Applicable codes and standards.

(4) A preliminary analysis and evaluation of the design and performance of structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI with the objective of assessing the risk to public health nd safety resulting from operation of the installation and including determination of

(1) The margins of safety during normal operations and expected operational occurrences during the life of the installation and

(ii) The adequacy of structures, systems, and components provided for the prevention of accidents and the mitigation of the consequences of accidents, including natural and manmade phenomena and events.

(5) The means for controlling and limiting occupational radiation expo-

""Capacity" in this context refers to the quantity in metric tons of spent fuel, its contained radioactivity (curies) and heat generation rate (Btu/hr).

and does ime time " 1. 2.

sures to meet the objective of as low as is reasonably achievable and the limits shown in Part 20 of this chapter.

(6) The features of ISFSI design and operating modes to minimize waste volumes generated by the facility.

(7) An identification and justification for the selection of those variables, conditions, or other items which are determined as the result of the safety analysis and evaluation to be probable subjects of license conditions, with special attention given to those items which may significantly influence the final design of the installation.

(8) A preliminary plan for the applicant's organization, training of personnel pursuant to § 72.91, and conduct of operations, including the planned managerial and administrative controls system.

(9) An identification of those structures, systems or components of the installation, if any, which require research and development to confirm the adequacy of their design; an identification and description of the research and development program which will be conducted to resolve any safety questions associated with such structures, systems or components; and a schedule of the research and development program showing that such safety questions will be resolved prior to the initial receipt of materials to be stored at the ISFSI.

(10) The technical qualifications of the applicant to engage in the proposed activities as required by § 72.17.

(11) A description of the applicant's plans for coping with emergencies as required by \S 72.19.

(12) A description of the equipment to be installed to maintain control over radioactive materials in gaseous and liquid effluents produced during normal operations and expected operational occurrences. The description shall identify the design objectives, and the means to be employed, for keeping levels of radioactive material in effluents to unrestricted areas as low as reasonably achievable and within the limits shown in Part 20 of this chaper. The description shall include:

(i) An estimate of:

(A) The quantity of each of the principal radionuclides expected to be released annually to unrestricted areas in liquid effluents produced during normal ISFSI operations; and

(B) The quant of each of the principal radionuclides expected to be released annually to unrestricted areas in gaseous effluents produced during normal ISFSI operations.

(II) A general description of the provisions for packaging, storage, and disposal of solid wastes containing radioactive materials resulting from treat-

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL 43, NO. 195-FRIDAY, OCTOBER 6, 1978

what is whe estimate of planed life since this defends on DOFENRE af proved of permanent storage facilities 8-13 (5) ment of gaseous and liquid effleunts and from other sources.

(iii) A description of the equipment and procedures for the maintenance and use of equipment installed in radioactive waste systems.

(iv) Prior to the first receipt of matefial to be stored, a revised estimate of the infomation required in paragraph (a)(12)(i)(B) of this section if the expected releases and exposures differ significantly from the estimates submitted in the application.

(v) A description of the measures taken to control the quantities of rapoactive wastes for offsite disposal to 15 low as reasonably achievable levels. (13) A conservative analysis of the potential dose to an individual off site from accidents and natural phenomena which result in (i) criticality, (ii) release of radioactive materials to the site and surrounding areas, and (iii) the loss of water for water pool type installations. The calculations of dose from any pathway may be limited to direct exposure, inhalation or ingestion occurring within 24 hours of the postulated event.

(b) Periodically during design and normally prior to construction, with final completion at least 90 days prior to the planned receipt of materials to be stored, and annually thereafter, the safety analysis report (SAR) will be updated and submitted to the Commission for approval and shall include the following.

(1) All current information relating to applicable site evaluation factors, including the results of environmental monitoring programs.

(2) A description and analysis of changes in the structures, systems, and components of the installation, with emphasis upon performance requirements, the bases, with technical justification therefor, upon which such requirements have been established, and the evaluations required to show that safety functions will be accomplished.

(i) Such items as the instrumentation and control systems, ventilation and filter systems, electrical systems, auxiliary and emergency systems, and radioactive' waste handling systems shall be discussed insofar as they are pertinent.

(3) A final analysis and evaluation of the design and performance of structures, systems, and components taking into account any pertinent information developed since the submittal of the license application.

(c) A description of the quality assurance program to be applied to the design, fabrication, construction, testing and operation of the safety-related structures, systems, and components of the ISFSI as required by § 72.75. The description of the quality assurance program shall identify safety-related structures, systems and components and shall show how the criteria in Appendix B of Part 50 of this chapter will be applied to such identified safety-related components, systems, and structures in a manner consistent with their importance to safety.

PROPOSED RULES

and to make in

(d) A description of the detailed security measures for physical protection, including design features and a plan as required by § 72.81.

(e) A description of the planned program covering preoperational testing and initial operations.

(f) The decommissioning plan required under § 72.18 of this part.

§ 72.16 Contents of application: license conditions.

Each application under this part shall include proposed license conditions in accordance with the requirements of $\frac{5}{7}$ 72.33 together with a summary statement of the bases or reasons for such conditions.

§ 72.17 Contents of application: technical qualifications.

An application under this part shall include:

(a) The technical qualifications, including training and experience of the applicant and members of the applicant's staff to engage in the proposed activities in accordance with the regulations in this chapter.

(b) A description of the personnel training program required under Subpart I of this part.

(c) A commitment by the applicant to have an adequate complement of trained and certified plant personnel prior to the receipt of spent fuel for storage.

§ 72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including its Financing.

(a) Each application under this part shall include a decommissioning plan which shall contain information on proposed procedures for the disposal of radioactive material, decontamination of the site and other procedures. sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the dismantling and disposal of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life will not be inimical to the common defense and security or to the health and safety of the public. This plan shall include an evaluation of the ISFSI design features which have been selected to facilitate to the maximum degree reasonable its decontamination and decommissioning at the end of its useful life. This plan shall include provisions for minimizing the amount of solid, airborne and liquid wastes generated during decommissioning.

(b) The decommissioning plan will include the financial arrangements for its execution.

§ 72.19 Emergency plan.

15. 4.15. 6

An application to store spent fuel in an ISFSI, will include plans for coping with emergencies. These plans shall contain the elements that are listed in Section IV, "Content of Emergency Plans," of Appendix E to Part 50 of this chapter.

§ 72.20 Environmental report.

Each application for a license under this part shall be accompanied by an Environmental Report which meets the requirements of Part 51 of this chapter; 150 copies are required.

Subpart C-Issuance and Conditions of licenses

§ 72.31 Issuance of Licenses.

(a) The Commission will issue a license under this part and updated prior to the receipt of spent fuel in such form and containing such conditions and limitations as it deems appropropriate or necessary upon a determination that an application for a license meets the standards and requirements of the act and regulations, that the applicant's proposed site, installation and equipment for the storage of spent fuel are adequate to protect health and minimize danger to life or property; and that: A aliang say when

v

1.1

6

erre

2

B,

22

2

Ľ

mn

 The proposed site complies with the requirements of § 72.66.

(2) The applicant is qualified by reason of training and experience to conduct the operation covered by the regulations in this part.

(3) The applicant's personnel training program complies with Subpart I of this part.

(4) The applicant's proposed operating procedures to protect health and to minimize danger to life or property are adequate.

(5) The applicant is financially qualified to engage in the proposed activities in accordance with the regulations in this part.

(6) The applicant's physical security plan complies with § 72.81.

(7) The applicant's quality assurance plan complies with § 72.75

(8) The applicant's emergency plan complies with § 72.19.

(9) The applicant's decommissioning plan and its financing pursuant to § 72.18 are adequate.

(10) Before commencement of construction of the installation, the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards or his designee, has concluded, or after a public hearing, the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board has made the finding that on the basis of information filed and evaluations made pursuant to Part 51 of this chapter, and after weighing the environmental, economic, technical and other benefits against environmental costs and considering available alternatives, that the action called for

B-14 There in first the there disign beres and on the part have not been addressed in SARS. Sudicisis of such data visitiunt some acaptelle FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL 43, NO. 195-FRIDAY, OCTOBER 6, 1978

is the issuance of the proposed license, with any appropriate conditions to protect environmental values. Commencement of construction prior to such conclusion or finding may be grounds for denial of a license to store spent fuel in an ISFSI.

(11) No license will be issued by the Commission to any person within the United S ates if the Commission finds that the issuance of such a license would be inimical to the common defense and security or would constitute an unreasonable risk to the health and safety of the public.

§ 72.32 Duration of license; renewal.

Each license will be issued for a fixed period of time to be specified in the license but not to exceed 20 years. Licenses may be remewed by the Commission upon expiration of that period, upon application of the licens-

ee. The prese rent are § 72.33 License conditions.

New coplices indiction

(a) Each license issued under this part will include license conditions. The license conditions will be derived from the analyses and evaluations includica in the safety analysis report, and amendments thereto, submitted pursuant to $\S72.15$, and from the proposed license conditions submitted by the applicant pursuant to \$72.16. The Commission may also include such additional license conditions as the Commission finds appropriate.

(b) License conditions will include items in the following categories:

(1) Functional and operating limits and monitoring instruments and limiting control settings. (i) Functional and operating limits for an ISFSI are limits upon fuel handling and storage conditions which are found to be necessary to protect the integrity of the stored fuel and guard against excessive occupational exposures and the uncontrolled release of radioactive materials. (ii) Monitoring instruments and limiting control settings for an ISFSI are settings for alarms or mechanical devices related to those fuel handling and storage conditions having significant safety functions.

(2) Limiting conditions. Limiting conditions are the lowest functional capability or performance levels of equipment required for safe operation.

(3) Surveillance requirements. Surveillance requirements are requirements are requirements relating to tests, calibrations, and inspections to assure that the necessary integrity of required systems, components and the fuel in storage is maintained, that operation of the installation will be within the required safety limits, and that the limiting conditions required for safe storage will be met.

(4) Design features. Design features to be included are those features of the installation such as materials of construction and prometric arrangements, which, if altered or modified, would have a significant effect on safety and are not covered in categories described in subparagraphs (1). (2), and (3) of this paragraph (c).

(5) Administrative controls. Administrative controls are the provisions relating to organization and management procedures, recordkeeping, review and audit, and reporting necessary to assure that the operations involved in the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI are performed in a safe manner.

(c) In addition to the conditions described in paragraph (a) of this section, every license issued under this part shall be subject to the following conditions, whether stated therein or not:

(1) Neither the license, nor any right thereunder, shall be transferred, assigned, or disposed of in any manner, either voluntarily or involuntarily, directly or indirectly, through transfer of control of the license to any person, unless the Commission shall, after securing full information, find that the transfer is in accordance with the provisions of the Atomic Energy Act and give its consent in writing.

(2) The license shall be subject to revocation, suspension, modification, or amendment as provided in the Atomic Energy Act and Commission regulations, in accordance with the procedures provided by the Atomic Energy Act and Commission regulations.

(3) The licensee shall at any time before expiration of the license, upon request of the Commission, submit written statements, signed under oath or affirmation, to enable the Commission to betermine whether or not the license should be modified, suspended, or revoked.

(4) Prior to the receipt of spent fuel for storage at an ISFSI, the licensee shall have in effect an NRC approved program covering the training and certification of ISFSI personnel which shall meet the requirements of subpart I of this part.

(5) the licensee shall not permit the manipulation of the safety-related equipment and controls of the installation by any one whom the licensee has not certified as being adequately trained to perform such manipulations.

(d) Effluent controls. Effluent controls are operating controls, including monitoring and testing controls and systems, and procedures required to keep releases of radioactive materials to unrestricted areas during normal operations and expected operational occurences within the limits stated in EPA regulation, 40 CFR Part 190, "Environmental Radiation Protection Standards for Nuclear Power Operations," as an upper limit Each license authonizing the storage of spent fuels under this part will include license conditions that, in addition to requiring compliance with the limits and the as low as reasonably achievable provisions of part 20 of this chapter and the design objective included (or referenced) in paragraph (2) below, require:

(1) That operating procedures for control of effluents beestablished and followed and equipment installed in the radioactive waste system be maintained and used as to meet the requirements of 40 CFR Part 190 as established in the license conditions.

(2) The submission of a report to the Commission within 60 days after June 30 and December 31 of each year specifying the quantity of each of the principal radionuclides released to unrestricted areas in liquid and in gaseous effluents during the previous 6 months of operation, and such other information as may be required by the Commission to estimate maximum potential annual radiation doses to the public resulting from effluent releases. If quantities of radioactive materials released during the reporting period are significantly above design objec-tives, the report shall cover this specifically. On the basis of such reports and any additional information the Commission may obtain from the licensee or others, the Commission may from time to time require the licensee to take such action as the Commission deems appropriate.

(e) Maintenance of safeguards contingency plan procedures pursuant to § 72.81(d).

§ 72.34 Changes, tests and experiments.

(a)(1) The holder of a license issued under this part may (i) make changes in the installation as described in the safety analysis report, (ii) make changes in the procedures as described in the safety analysis report, and (iii) conduct tests or experiments not described in the safety analysis report, without prior Commission approval, unless the proposed change, test or experiment involves a change in the license or an unreviewed safety question.

(2) A proposed change, test, or experiment shall be deemed to involve an unreviewed safety question (i) if the probability of occurrence or the consequences of an accident or malfunction of equipment important to safety previously evaluated in the safety analysis report may be increased; or (ii) if a possibility for an accident or malfunction of a different type than any evaluated previously in the safety analysis report may be created; or (iii) if the margin of safety as

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL 43, NO. 195-FRIDAY, OCTOBER 6, 1978

()

- AMENDMENT TO LICENSE AT REQUEST OF HOLDER AND REVOCATION, SUSPENSION AND MODIFICATION OF LICENSES.
- § 72.39 Application for amendment to license.

Whenever a holder of a license desires to amend the license, an application for an amendment shall be filed with the Commission, fully describing the changes desired, and the reasons for such changes, and following as far as applicable the form prescribed for original applications.

§ 72.40 Issuance of amend-ient.

In determining whether an amendment to a license will be issued to the applicant, the Commission will be guided by the considerations which govern the issuance of initial licenses to the extent applicable and appropriate.

§ 72.41 Revocation, suspension and modification of licenses

(a) The terms and conditions of all licenses are subject to amendment, revision, or modification by reason of amendments to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or by reason of rules, regulations or orders issued in accordance with the Act or any amendments thereto.

(b) Any license may be revoked, susnded or modified in whole or in part

any material false statement in the application or any statement of fact required under Section 182 of the Act, or because of conditions revealed by such application or statement of fact or any report, record, or inspection or other means which would warrant the Commission to refuse to grant a license on an original application, or for failure to operate an installation in accordance with the terms of the license. or for violation of, or failure to observe any of the terms and conditions of the Act, or any regulation, license or order of the Commission.

(c) Upon revocation, suspension or modification of a license, the Commission may immediately cause the retaking of possession of all special nuclear material contained in spent fuel held by the licensee. In cases found by the Commission to be of extreme importance to the national defense and security, or to the health and safety of the public, the Commission may take possession of any spent fuel held by the licensee prior to any of the procedures provided under sections 551-558 of title 5 of the United States Code.

- 4 h 1 § 72.42 Back futing.

(a) The Commission may require the backfitting of an ISFS1 if it finds that such action will provide substantial, additional protection which is required for either occupational or public health and safety. As used in this sec-tion, "backfitting" means a change in storage conditions which may require the addition, elimination or modification of structures, systems or components of an ISFSI, after the license has been issued.

PROPOSED RULES

(b) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to relieve a holder of a license from compliance with the rules, reguations, or orders of the Commission.

(c) The Commission may at any time require a holder of a license to submit such information concerning the backfitting or the proposed backfitting of the installation as it deems appropriate.

Subpart D-Records, Reports, Inspections and Enforcement

§ 72.51 Material balance, inventory, and records requirements for stored materials.

(a) Each licensee shall keep records showing the receipt, inventory (including location), disposal, acquisition, and transfer of all spent fuel in storage regardless of its origin or method of acquisition.

(b) Each licensee shall conduct a physical inventory of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed 12 months or as otherwise directed by the Commission.

(c) Each licensee shall establish, maintain and follow written material control and accounting procedures which are sufficient to enable the licensee to account for the spent fuel in storage under license.

(d) Records of spent fuel in storage shall be kept in duplicate for as long as the spent fuel is in storage at an ISFSI. The duplicate set of records shall be kept at a separate location far enough removed from the original records so that a single event would not destroy both sets of records. Records of spent fuel transferred out of an ISFSI shall be preserved for a period of 5 years after the date of transfer.

§ 72.52 Reports of accidental criticality or loss of special nuclear material.

Each licensee shall report immediately to the Director of the appropriate Nuclear Regulatory Commission Inspection and Enforcement Regional Office by telephone, and telegram, or teletype, any case of accidental criticality and any loss of special nuclear material contained in spent fuel.

§ 72.53 Material Status Reports.

Each licensee shall complete and submit to the Commission Material Status Reports on Form NRC-742, in accordance with printed instructions for completing the form, concerning special nuclear material contained in spent fuel possessed, received, transferred, disposed of or lost by the licensee. All such reports shall be made as of March 31 and September 30 of each year and shall be filed with the U.S. Department of Energy, P.O. Box E. Oak Ridge, Tennessee, 37830. within thirty (30) days after the end of the period covered by the report. The Commission may permit a licensee to submit Material Status Reports at other times when good cause is shown.

§ 77.54 Nuclear Material Transfer Reports.

Each licensee who transfers and each licensee who receives spent fuel snall complete and distribute a Nuclear Material Transaction Report on Form NRC-741, in accordance with printed instructions for completing the form, whenever he transfers or receives spent fuel. Each licensee who transfers spent fuel shall submit a copy of Form NRC-741 to the U.S. Department of Energy, P.O. Box E. Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830, and three copies to the receiver of the material promptly after the transfer takes place. Each licensee who receives spent fuel shall submit a copy of Form NRC-741 to the Department of Energy and to the shipper of the material within 10 days after the spent fuel is received.

§ 72.55 Inspections and tests.

(a) Each licensee shall afford to the Commission at all reasonable times opportunity to inspect spent fuel in storage and the premises and installation wherein such spent fuel is stored.

(b) Each licensee shall make available to the Commission for inspection. upon reasonable notice, records kept by the licensee pertaining to his receipt, possession, or transfer of spent fuel.

(c) Each licensee shall perform, or permit the Commission to perform. such tests as the Commission deems appropriate or necessary for the administration of the regulations in this part, including tests of (1) spent fuel during handling and storage, (2) spent fuel handling and storage facilities, (3) radiation detection and monitoring equipment, and (4) other equi, ment used in connection with spent fuel storage.

§ 72.56 Maintenance of other records and reports.

(a) Each licensee shall' maintain such records and make such reports in connection with the licensed activities as may be required by the conditions of the license or by the rules, regula-

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL 43, NO. 195-FRIDAY, OCTOBER 6, 1978

NINC ELTRIC DECEMBERT ROOM Allied-General Nu iclear Services

November 29, 1978

OCT TET AUTOET -72(43FR 46309 RICKOSED EULE . .

Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process System Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555



THE REP

150

Dear Mr. Stanford:

Thank you for the opportunity of commenting on the proposed spent fuel storage regulation, 10CFR Part 72. I am very much interested in fuel storage and trust that the implementation of the ISFSI concept occurs soon.

. feel you have simplified the process of licensing an ISFSI, which fills a recognized need in the industry.

Please feel free to contact me by phone ,803-259-1711) on any questions you may have concerning any of the attached comments.

Sincerely,

m. young

M. Young Area Supervisor - FRSS Allied-General Muclear Services

B-17

Past Office Bax 347 Barnwell South Carolina 29812 (803) 259-1711

Addinovitations by card. and in the Could and

COMMENTS ON PROPOSED 10 CFR PART 72

Section 72.3 (S) "Structures, systems, components important to safety" as defined i- 10 CFR Part 50, "are those safety related items that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public". It seems appropriate that definitions in Part 72 should be consistent with these used in other Federal Regulations to avoid confusion. It is recommended that the change be made.

Section 72.3 (g) and 72.3 (k) defined "controlled" and "neighbor" y" areas respectively. 10CFR100, paragraph 100.3 (a) defines an "exclusion" area; the definition of which is similar to the Part 72 definition of a "controlled" area. The definition of "low population zone" in 10CFR100 is similar to the definition of "neighboring" area in Part 72. The definitions of the various "areas" discussed in Part 72 should be consistent to the definition used in other parts including 10CFR20, 10CFR73 and 10CFR100 to avoid confusion and misuse of terminology.

Section 72.18 - Decommissioning plan. Including its financing. This section addresses "dismantling and disposal of an ISFSI"; it is our understanding that once the installation is decontaminated, the final disposition of the remaining structures are the purview of the owners and state and local zoning regulations. If this is the case, this info should be incorporated into this section. Section 72.31 (a) (10) specifically states that initiation of construction by an applicant prior to a finding that the action called for, following review by the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards, is issuance of the proposed license may be grounds for denial of a license. In 10CFR70, paragraph 70.21 (f), the requirement is established that an application must be filed "at least 9 months prior to commencement of construction". It is recommended that a similar provision be included in 10CFR72 to allow an applicant to proceed with construction, after a suitable period has elapsed from the date an application was filed, without jeopardizing a favorable ruling on the application.

Section 72.33 License Conditions (1) <u>Functional and operating limits and moni-</u> toring instruments and limiting control settings. It appears that "Functional and operating limit." are equivalent to "safety limits" in a part 50 license. It is suggested that the title be changed to Safety Limits to be consistent with part 50.

Section 72.42 (a) states that the Commission may require backfitting if such action will provide substantial additional protection. This paragraph should be modified to include a provision that backfitting can be required only after a suitable cost-benefit analysis has shown that backfitting is justified.

Section 72.51 (b) What is intended by "a physical inventory"? Does this mean physically verifying each fuel assembly stored in the ISFSI?

8-19

A piece count and selected small quantity audit of randamly selected fuel assemblies for verification would be adequate.

Section 72.55 (c) This section as written would allow any and all tests that could be conceived and "deemed appropriate or necessary" to be required. It also appears that if the licenseedoes not choose to perform the test, that the Commission would perform it. The statement appears to be too broad and all encompassing. More definitive information should be given to clarify this requirement.

Specific requirements should be stated that limit the time (say 48 hours) that a test would impact receiving operations.

Section 72.54 Last sentence - Does "received" mean when the cask is received at the ISFSI? Should clarify, verification of the fuel assembly must be made before the NRC-741 can be completed and returned to DCE and the shipper. Should say "..received, verified and stored."

Section 72.71 Overall Requirements 3 - Would suggest that "credible" be inserted between "under fire" (5th line) for clarification. Also what type explosion was projected? Is ion exchange resin the only one to be considered? What was intended?

B-20

Section 72.71 (8) (i) would suggest adding "mechanical" between gross ruptures. Isn't this what we want to protect them from?

Section 72.71 (8) (ii) lines 16 thru 20. It should not be a requirement to have water level monitoring equipment alarm "both locally and in a continuously mannel location", if the local area is continuously manned, the licensee may choose to have a second alarm location but this should be his choice. Remove the words "both locally and" replace with "locally if not continuously manned or in...".

Section 72.71 (10) - Clarification of this section as to what is meant by action to be taken to "operate the ISFSI safely under normal conditions" is needed. The intent should be to monitor under normal conditions not to operate. Suggest that "if required" be inserted in line 2 so it reads - "A control room or control areas, if required, shall be designed to permit occupancy and action to be taken to monitor the ISFSI safely under normal condition and to maintain the ISFSI in a safe condition under off normal or accident conditions".

Section 72.71 (19) - It is recommended that this paragraph be amended to eliminate the requirement that on-site facilities be provided to concentrate all site generated wastes. Concentration and conversion into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate disposal might be best accomplished at a location other than where the waste is generated. The following is a suggested rewording of this paragraph.

B-21

(19) <u>Waste Treatment</u> - Waste treatment facilities shall be provided. Provisions shall be made for the conversion of site generated wastes into a form suitable for interim storage or sitimate final disposal. STATE OF CHIO

GOVERNOR JAMES A. RHODES

DO RES THE TEXNOL PROPOSED BULE FR-72 FR.46309

361 E. BROAD ST. P.O. BOX 1735 COLLIMBUS, OHIO 43216 614/466-5422 7560

December 8, 1978

and the second second shall be a filled



Dear Sirs:

A copy of the proposed regulation 10CFR part 72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation", has been sent to the Ohio Power Siting Commission for review. The Secretary of the Commission has been asked that I prepare comments on this regulation for his review and subsequent transmittal to you.

We find overall that the proposed regulation is satisfactory and is indeed an important step towards resolution of the spent fuel problem. We feel, further, that this is an urgent problem which should be resolved as expeditiously as possible.

We are somewhat puzzled by the criticality requirements [p. 46313, (13) and 46320 (12,13)]. The wording is consistent with 10 CFR 50, criterion 62. However, the Regulatory Guides 3.24 for an independent fuel storage pool simply states that criticality shall be prevented, and Regulatory Guide 1.13 for storage pools at reactors makes no mention of criticality at all.

You may wish to note the requirements of the Standard Review Plans for Safety Analysis Reports, section 9.1.2-4, item 2a which requires Seismic Category I, Keff of 0.95 or less with an infinite array of fuel elements of highest probable enrichment and demineralized water. It might be helpful if proposed new regulations were accompanied by a covering letter which refers the reviewer to the appropriate Regulatory Guides.

Thank you for the opportunity to review these proposed new regulations. I hope these comments will be helpful to you.

Action and and and the total

Sincerely,

Laver W. Him

Harold W. Kohn, PhD Staff Scientist Ohio Power Siting Commission

B-23

POOR ORIGINAI

COCAST NO. -

- To: Secretary of the Commission U.J. Huclear Regulatory Commission MASH., D.C. 20555
- From: Louise Gorenflo Tennessee Valley Dlean Energy Alliance 314 D. Mebt Ave. Grossville, TH 33555



Re: Connents on 10 JFR Part 72 - Storage of Spent Fuel in an ISFSI

Date: 12/1/73

In general the licensing of ISFSI's is premature and should hinge upon the completion of a national nuclear waste policy. No discussion of the interrelationship of an ISFSI to permanent waste disposal is mentioned which means that reprocessing at a possible later date is left open. It is mandatory to consider away from reactor storage within some larger perspective, and until such a perspective has been developed, an ISFSI becomes a technological "quick fix". Such a fix could be better provided by individual reactors expanding their storage capacity.

Away from reactor storage necessitates the transportation of wastes from the reactor site to the storage site. Again, I found no mention of whose responsibility transportation is. If an owner gains Sontrol of the spent fuel at the reactor site, then those spent fuel rods are the owner's responsibility and so are accidents which may occur? It is mandatory to clear determine at the onset whose responsibility transportation of spent .el assemblies is.

Another question which I found unanswered was what if the legal entity operating the AFR goes bankrupt? Does the AFC take over responsibility? If so, the public is left with the possibility of multiple "Mest Valleys" across the country.

In light of the proceedings at the Jalloway plant, it seems advisable to include within the licensing requirements protection of any possible "whistleblowers" who may discover violations of licensing agreements. This is especially important for the low level of monitoring the UET indtends to do for ISFSI's.

I essentially question the whole premise that away from reactor storage facilities are needed or should be encouraged by the NRC. If it is as technicall feasible and easy to accomplish as these proposed requirements inply, then operating reactors should be instructed to build their own. This eliminates the whole need for transportation prior to ultimate permanent disposal. The dangers of transportation of these wastes, which are the essential problem of AFR's, is inadequately aidressed by these requirements and by the NTATA-0404. The convergence of waste from across a region to an INFOT endangers the biosphere from intolerable radicactive emmissions.

I urge you to consider these comments and postpone licensing requirement considerations until DOI, NRO and the public have all consented to a national nuclear waste policy. (See IRD Task Force Report on Maste Management.)

STATE OF FLORIDA

Bepartment of Administration

State Energy Office 301 Bryant Building TALLAHASSEE 32304

Reubin O'D. Askew

Wallace W. Henderson RECRETARY OF ADMINISTRATION

Dr. Carlos S. Warren STATE ENERGY DIRECTOR

November 30, 1978

PROPOSED RULE PR-72 (43FR45309)

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

ATTENTION: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Sir:

We have reviewed Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) (10 CFR, Part 72), Proposed Licensing Requirements.

The implications of the proposed rule are, perhaps, more portentious than the rule itself. We have seen the problem of waste disposal essentially ignored until recent years mainly because the accumulation was hidden away. Now that the emmensity of the past years' procrastination has finally become evident, the NRC would address the situation with "out of 'site', out of mind". If a lasting solution to the problem is to be found, it will require the impetus of those most directly impacted, that is the utility companies which generate the wastes.

Until an acceptable means for permanent disposal is developed, the wastes should remain where they are generated.

Sincerely,

Robert Grace Energy Analyst

RG/ecc



100

3

6.5

adad by card ... El Litter

2.12 . 27 . 17 1

FILLE

78122701

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMENT ROOM



A LEAN B MELERS

- Iwiligan

December 5, 1978

SUIZANIA AND T RULLET -PROPOSED RULE 1 ... -724

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555



Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Gentlemen:

At the request of Governor William G. Milliken, Proposed Regulation 10 CFR 72, Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation, has been reviewed by agencies of the State of Michigan. Comments of the State on the proposed regulation follow.

In general, the State supports the away-from-reactor storage concept as a means to address the growing shortage of sufficient spent fuel storage capability at commercial reactor sites throughout the country. The State is also supportive of the single license concept embodied in the proposed regulation.

It is also the view of the State of Michigan that no Independent Spent Fuel Storage Site should be licensed without early consultation with and concurrence of the State in which the repository is proposed. Michigan recommends that proposed 10 CFR 72 be revised to incorporate this requirement.

This opportunity to comment is appreciated.

Sincerely,

Jonathan T. Cain Special Assistant to the Governor

11 by 20 124-128

50 - 14

8-26

1000	
(\mathbf{O})	STATE OF WASHINGTON
	Dixy Lee Ray

NRC PUT FORUMENT ROOM WASHINGTON STATE ENERGY OFFICE

400 E. Linuon-Ist floor, Olympia, Washington 98504 206 754 1350

xu Lee Rau Governor

Lawrence B. Bradley, Director

December 1, 1978

00777 Mr. Samuel Chilk

Secretary U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Chilk:

Reference is made to the recent announcement of the Commission's plans to issue a new regulation to provide for the issuance of licenses to store spent fuel from nuclear power plants in Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installations (ISFSI).

The proposed new Part 74 regulations are of important national significance. Establishing these regulations would make possible taking a giant step forward in overcoming the immensely harmful controversy surrounding the management of radioactive waste from nuclear power plants. Accordingly, these regulations should be processed and placed into effect just as soon as possible.

ISFSI's will represent a safe means for interim storage of spent nuclear fuel or separated fission products and transuranic waste. Waste could be stored in such facilities safely for many decades.

The proposed measure constitutes a welcome alternative to the Administration's earlier-expressed policy of interim storage which required utilities to give up possession of unreprocessed fuel, something which they did not wish to do.

The plans for issuing a single license rather than the two which are customary for power plants is a good one. It will enable construction to start sooner but still provides for an adequate review process. Other features, as outlined in the supplementary information, are conccurred in.

Sincerely. ick S. Adair Acting Director

FSA/dmc cc:Governor Dixy Lee Ray Robert Ryan, Nuclear Regulatory Commission Andy Robart, Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Region V (Walnut Creed) Russell E. L. Stanford, Nuclear Regulatory Commission (SD) John Deutch, U.S. Department of Energy Ed Helminski, National Governor's Association, Washington, D.C. John Watson, Western Interstate Energy Board/WINB Nicholas D. Lewis, Washington State Energy Facility Site Eval. Council Lawrence 8. Bradley



72.31(a)(1) The site suitability criteria from Seismic Design point of view are described in 72.66. It appears that a reference to 72.66 (Subpart 3) will preclude any confusion, and will be consistent with the subsequent [72.31(a)(2), (3), (4) etc.] conditions of licenses.

72.66 Criteria For Defining Acceptable Seismic Design

It should be recognized that the peak acceleration associated with a "horizontial ground motion potential" is not necessarily the same as the maximum design ground acceleration. Also, the phrase "up to a 500 year recourrence interval" gives me an impression that we would accept an earthquake having less than 500 year recourrence interval. I do not believe this is the intent. Recognizing the purpose of this section of the Regulation, I suggest the following changes.

INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI)

- (1) Design Earthquake (DE) is defined as an earthquake having an recourrence interval of no less than 500 years.
- *(b) Any site, having design maximum ground acceleration (corresponding to DE) at an ISFSI foundation level of greater than 0.25g, shall be deemed unsuitable for an ISFSI.
- (c) For soil sites, where DE could potentially cause soil failure, it must be shown by a site specific investigation and analysis that soil failure will not occur due to the expected vibratory ground motion at the site. Sites with potentially unstable soils may be made suitable by remedial action.

For the ourcose of precluding certain sites from consideration, the use of maps such as those developed by Algernissen and Perkins and further developed as peak acceleration contours are acceptable. (See Reference

OOR ORGIN

- 2
- (d) For ISFSI designs other than the water basin type proposed sites will be evaluated on the basis of a site specific investigation and analysis.
- (e) Sites which do not meet the suitability requirements of (a) above may be evaluated and accepted in accordance vith Section 72.9.

72.71(2)

 (ii) It appears that we want applicants to design structures, systems, and components for a horizontal ground motion acceleration >0.25g (sky is the limit).

Philosophically, if we have determined that ISFSI can be designed for an earthquake of 500 year recourrence interval, it is conceivable that we would accept the same recurrence interval for other natural phenomena such as tornadoes, floods and seiches. In that case it is not understandable why the safety related structures, systems, and components should not be designed for corresponding tornado missiles.

H. Conhar

H. Ashar Structures and Components Standards Branch Office of Standards Development

NPC PUBLIC DOCUMENT RO



MEMORANDUM FOR: R. E. L. Stanford, Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch, Division of Engineering Standards, SD

FROM:

F. D. Anderson, Site Designation Standards Branch, Division of Siting, Health and Safeguards Standards, SD

SUBJECT: CORRECTIONS AND ADDITIONS FOR DRAFT 10 CFR PART 72, "LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION"

At the recent Commission meeting which discussed the subject proposed regulation, Chairman Hendrie requested that the novel approaches used in the regulation be addressed in the Statement of Consideration with the viable alternatives. The attached enclosure provides such a discussion for the siting criteria approach in which either the proposed approach or a minimum distance with subsequent accident evaluation could be used. Also included in the attached enclosure are corrections that must be made in Subpart E, "Siting Criteria", which I prepared. These corrections are clarification of definitions (Subpart A) for terms which are used in Subpart E and some corrections in the criteria. All of these corrections are necessary for clarification and consistency. Corrections for other subparts are given which you may use or not as you determine.

Unless the corrections and additional discussion regarding the siting criteria approach are incorporated into the proposed regulation for public release, I do not believe that I will have satisfied my implied commitment to Chairman Hendrie.

Futur & bencham

Fredric D. Anderson Site Designation Standards Branch Office of Standards Development

Enclosure: As stated

Enclosure A

Corrections and Additions to 10 CFR Part 72

A. Site Criteria Changes

 Rewrite page 6 of the Federal Register notice for public comment as follows:

"shipping casks before these are unloaded, hence cask unloading must be handled under controlled conditions.

The proposed Part 72 includes an annual dose limit for normal operations and anticipated occurrences of 25 mRem to the whole body, 75 mRem to the thyroid and 25 mRem to any other organ of any member of the public from the uranium fuel cycle in accordance with the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency (40 CFR Part 190). Since the EPA regulations were prepared with a reprocessing fuel cycle in mind, the Commission considers it reasonable to apply such dose limits to the ISFSI operations. The storage of fresh spent fuel at nuclear reactor facilities and at reprocessing plants was considered in the establishment of the EPA regulations. The storage of aged spent fuel at an ISFSI, which entails a much lower radioactive material release potential, is an extension of such spent fuel storage operations. In addition to the specific numerical dose limits, the proposed Part 72 requires that the levels of radioactive material in effluents be kept as low as is reasonably achievable.

Proposed Part 72 also establishes an accident dose limit of 5 Rem in 2 hours for the calculated dose from the controlling design basis accident at the site (controlled area) boundary of an ISFSI. With such a dose limit, an ISFSI, if located on a nuclear power reactor site, would not contribute substantially to the predicted risk from the nuclear operations on the site to the public health and safety. Accident analyses for an ISFSI presented in the GEIS and in previous licensing cases of spent fuel storage installations indicate that such a dose limit can be met through site selection and facility design for ISFSI design basis accidents.

An alternative approach to the proposed Part 72 accident dose limit is the use of a minimum distance limit for the nearest boundary of the controlled area. The controlling accident, i.e., largest radiological consequences, resulting from a design basis event would be evaluated by a conservative but realistic analysis of the potential exposure of an individual at this minimum distance. If the realistically calculated exposure from the controlling accident exceeded the annual dose limits within two hours, an increased controlled area distance would be required. The stated dose criteria - 2 -

would be applied to any potential accident at ISFSI which is considered credible, can be mechanistically described and can be realistically evaluated.

Comments regarding the side criteria state1 in Subpart E of the proposed Part 72 should address the possible alternative approach as well as the stated approach for ISFSI accident evaluations.

With spent fuel committed to storage for an indefinite period of time, and its ultimate"

- Rewrite the following definitions in Section 72.3, page 11 13, as given:
 - "(g) "Controlled area" is that area immediately surrounding the ISFSI complex, the use of which is controlled by the licensee for the duration of the license and within which the ISFSI operations are performed.
 - (h) "Design basis" contains the parameter values associated with that level of severity of an external or internal event or combination of such events: selected for design of all or any part of an ISFSI. The use of the design basis ensures that the structures, systems and components important to safety (in relation to that event or combination of events) will maintain their integrity and will not suffer loss of function during or after the event or before completing its design function. These parameter values may be restraints derived from generally accepted "state-of-the-art" practices for achieving functional goals, or requirements derived from analysis (based on calculations and/or experiments) of the effects of a postulated event under which a structure, system, or component must meet its functional goals.
 - (1) "Design basis for external events" includes (i) estimates of severe natural events to be used for deriving design basis and such estimates will be based on consideration of historical data of the associated parameters, ohysical data or analysis of upper limits of the physical processes involved; and (ii) estimates of severe external maninduced events to be used for deriving design basis and such estimates will be based on analysis of human activity in the region taking into account the site characteristics and the risks associated with the event.
 - (2) "Design basis for internal events" includes (i) estimates of severe internal events to be used for deriving design basis and such estimates will be based on consideration of available data on failure rates of process, control and engineered safety equipment and systems, and (ii) estimates of

Enclosure A

- 3 -

failures due to random events, operating conditions, fires, explosions and identified operator error conditions or other potential sources of inadvertent man-caused failures.

- (n) "Population" is all the important organisms living in a given area. The important organisms are those ecological systems, including people, that may be adversely affected by the change in conditions due to the construction, operation or decommissioning of ISFSI.
- (o) "Region" is a geographical area surrounding and including the site sufficiently large to contain (1) all features related to a phenomenon or to the effects from a particular event, and (2) all measurable effects of environmental impact, both radiological and non-radiological due to the ISFSI complex.
- (p) "Site" is the real property (area) on which the ISFSI is located. The site may extend beyond the controlled area.
- (q) "Source material"
- (r) "Special nuclear material".....
- (s) "Spent fuel"
- (t) "Structures, systems and components important to 'safety'"....
- 3. In thragraph (12) on page 21, second sentence to read:

"The description in effluents to the environs as low as is reasonably achievable and within the dose limits stated in the EPA regulations of 40 CFR Part 190."

- 4. In Section 72.61 of Subpart E, make the following changes:
 - "(a) Site characteristics the safety or environmental aspects of the
 - (b) No changes.
 - (c) Design basis and proposed ISFSI design.
 - (d) No changes
 - (e) For each for radiological and non-radiological consequences
 - (f) No changes."

- 5. In Section 72.62 (b) change "evaluated" to "analyzed".
- 6. In Section 72.64 (b) change "Each" to "The proposed".
- 7. In Section 72.65 of Subpart E, make the following changes:
 - "(a) The proposed site and distribution of people in the region. Such a study shall include evaluation of present and future uses of land and water within the region and shall take into account any special
 - (b) A controlled for the proposed site.
 - (c) The licensee from the controlled area.
 - (d) The neighboring area evaluated with respect to both the potential for adverse consequences to people or to the environment from a release of radioactive material and the capability of implementing protective measures as may be necessary to mitigate the immediate effects of such a release.
 - (e) The distribution of people in the region from normal and potential accidental releases of radioactive material or other toxic materials and the potential impact from construction, operation and decommissioning of the ISFSI during its lifetime."
 - (f) No changes "
- 8. Replace Section 72.66 with the following:

"72.66 Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic Design

- (a) Sites with a horizontal ground motion potential of greater than 0.25 g with a 500 year recurrence interval (equivalent to a 90% probability of not being exceeded in 50 years) shall be deemed unsuitable for an ISFSI.
- (b) Sites which meet the criterion of "a" above and which are founded on bedrock are suitable for an ISFSI. Unless some unusual geological characteristic is identified, no detailed site specific earthquake analysis is required. For soil sites, where vibratory ground motion could potentially cause failure, it must be shown by a site specific investigation and analysis that soil failure will not occur due to the expected vibratory ground motion at the site during the projected operating lifetime of the installation

Enclosure A

- 5 -

and that horizontal ground acceleration at the IS-S: foundation does not exceed 0.25 g. Sites with potentially unstable soils may be made suitable by remedial action.

- (c) For ISFSI designs other than the water basin type, proposed sites shall be evaluated on the basis of a site specific investigation and analysis.
- (d) Sites which do not meet the site suitability requirements of the above criteria may be evaluated and determined acceptable in accordance with Section 72.8 of this Part."
- 9. In Section 72.67 of Subpart E, make the following changes:
 - "(a) During normal operations shall not exceed 25 mRem, 75 MRem, and 25 MRem to any other organ of any member of the public located as a result of exposures to planned materials, radon and its daughters excepted, to the general environment and to radiation from the ISFSI operations.* Unusual regional and site characteristics shall be taken into account in the evaluation of planned discharges of radioactive materials.
 - (b) No changes
 - * 40 CFR \$190.10"
- 8. Other Suggested Changes In Section 72.71
 - 1. In Paragraph (2) (ii) Change"(A)" and "(B)" to "(a)" and "(b)".
 - In Paragraph (4) change to read: "Structures will not impair the capability to operate the ISFSI safely cr the capability to return and maintain the ISFSI in a safe condition following a design basis event."
 - 3. In Paragraph (5) change to read: An ISFSI nuclear operations shall be designed to ensure that not result in undue risk to the public health and safety. The ISFSI operations will not contribute significantly to the potential cumulative risk of the combined operations."
 - In Paragraph (9) last sentence change "must be identified" to "shall be identified".
 - 5. In Paragraph (17) last sentence to read: "Capability to ensure that the concentrations of radioactive materials in effluents are maintained within the limits of 10 CFR Part 20 and the resulting doses

Enclosure A

- 6 -

are within the limits of 40 CFR Part 190. The total quantities of radioactive material released in effluents shall be kept as low as is reasonably achievable."

 In Paragraph (18) (iii) to read: "with appropriate confinement, ventilation and filtration systems","



Public Utility Commission of Texas

December 1, 1978



George M. Cowden Chairman

> Garrett Morris Commissioner

Alan R. Erwin Commissioner

8.2

UDEALET MULLER DD K-72(43F246309) PROPUSED ALLE I Activitowiledged by card. 12-28. Uprick

Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

We have reviewed the proposed spent fuel storage regulation, 10 CFR Part 72, as requested in your letter of November 6.

From the State's standpoint, the only comment we have on the proposed regulations is that sufficient provision for notice to affected parties be included. Specifically, it should be a requirement that when an application for an independent spent fuel storage facility is filed with the NRC, a copy should also be sent to the appropriate State agencies such as the State Health Department and/or Public Utility Commission. Notice should also be required to be printed in newspapers with general circulation in the area of the proposed site.

We appreciate the opportunity for input into the final drafting of the regulation.

Sincerely

GMC:HKS:eb

State Board of Health

отно и инителяся 0.05. ческовно новент о чисоці, бири 0.0, ческовно під и токи гаснітики се якив, м.б. токи ка роміси, м.б.

EDWARD IN FITE JA. M.D. ARNOLD HELVEY EUGENE & OWENS, M.D. M.A. "TATE" TAYLOR



State Department of Health

Northeast 10th Street & Stonewall Post Office Box 53551 Okiahoma City, Okiahoma 73152 December 4, 1978

DOCKET NUMBER PR-72(43FR46309)

121

Formissioner

JOAN K. LEAVITT, M.D.

Russell E.L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Office of Standards Development U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

This is in response to your letter inviting my comments on the proposed 10 CFR Part 72 relating to spent fuel storage at independent installations.

Following review, my only comment is that I see nothing in the proposed regulations which would require the notification of the affected state(s) at an early date of the proposed construction of an ISFSI. It may be that such notification would be handled through internal NRC policies and procedures or by a requirement in some other Part of the CFR. However, if not, I would suggest the inclusion of a requirement of notification of the Governor and the radiation control office of the affected state(s) of the potential licensee's intentions to construct and operate an ISFSI at a time coincidental with the filing of the license application.

Very truly yours,

Dale McHard, Chief

Occupational and Radiological Health Service

DMC/kc

20 NRC PUTTIC DOCIMENT ROOM DOCKETO PR-72(43FR46309) SOUL OF RULEOUS D DF.C2 Dec. 10,78 Sec, US. NRC AGUINARIOSCI U, La C. 12-28 MMK Winchington, D.C. 20555 altt; Docheting and Service Branch to licensing temporary warte site. Furt then needs to the found a long term falicleon to the waite glables and despite claims to the contrary wiff ion it that. These temporing of wate sites cauld easily become Fermanini. Thaty years ingo Colutions to the wante gradlen were promised and still no filition. Stop weating the water - Shate the solution. The don't need four glands - there are good atterning Sue Birg- 1550 w 1000 per Dupe of

7901110048



NUCLEIL I ROOM KAISER PROPOSED PULL - 72 (43 FR 463

KAISER ENGINEERS POWER CORPORATION 300 LAKESIDE DRIVE POST OFFICE BOX 23210 OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94823

December 15, 1978

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attn: Docketing and Service Branch

Subject: Comments on Proposed Rule 10CFR72, "Licensing Requirements for the Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)"

Gentlemen:

ENGINEERS

We are pleased the Commission is considering the issuance of guidance for the design of independent spent fuel storage installations. We have reviewed the proposed rule (10CFR72) and have the following comments and suggested changes which we believe will help clarify the proposed criteria and provide consistency with other regulatory philosophy.

Paragraph 723(s)

The inclusion of "... those items whose function is to (3) protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation in excess of design objectives" as structures, systems and components important to safety, seems inappropriate as in many instances radiation exposure limitations are a function of administrative actions, such as a limitation on the time personnel spend in defined areas. It is suggested that this definition be deleted from the final regulations pertaining to ISFSI.

Paragraph 72.15(12)(v)

Suggest this paragraph be deleted as it is not consistent with the "as low as is reasonably achievable" philosophy related to radioactivity released from the site to unrestricted areas. There have been no guidelines promulgated for radioactive wastes sent offsite for disposal (e.g., burial grounds, deep geologic storage, etc.) with respect to ALARA.

Paragraph 72.51

It is suggested that when using the term "inventory" it is made completely clear that physical inventory is the requirement and no chemical or isotopic assay is required.

B-40 ASKINONIADOSO DY COID 2:28 ... Your

Secretary of the Commission

Paragraph 72.71(14)(v)

This paragraph implies that shielding alone can provide personnel exposures ALARA. If this premise was taken in the design of an ISFSI, the facility would not be cost effective with respect to benefit-cost aspects of ALARA. Suggest that, for ALARA and Part 20 limits, the concept of dose rate and the duration of required occupancy by personnel be stressed rather than shielding alone. Suggest wording such as the following:

"Shielding for the ISFSI shall be such that when considering the magnitude of dose rates from radioactive sources (i.e., spent fuel, equipment, radwaste, etc.) in conjunction with facility layout and time for operations (i.e., maintenance, surveillance, testing, etc.), the exposures to personnel are maintained as low s is reasonably achievable. In addition, the radiation shielding shall be designed to ensure that personnel exposure does not exceed the limits of Part 20 of this chapter considering personnel occupancy time during normal operation or during anticipated operational occurrences."

Paragraph 72.81(b)(3)

The following statement should be added to the end of the referenced paragraph to make clear the extent of the proposed quality assurance program:

"The quality assurance program established for use related to structures and components that comprise the physical protection system shall not be required to comply with Appendix B to Part 50 of this chapter."

Very truly yours,

KAISER ENGINEERS POWER CORPORATION

MANI

Charles O. Coffer Manager, Licensing, Quality Assurance and Environmental Affairs

COC/aeg

EXON NUCLEAR COMPANY, Inc.

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMENT ROOM

December 1, 1978

RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER 2955 George Washington Way, Richland, Washington 99352 PHONE: (50S) 943-7100

DOCTET NUMBER -FR46309 - 12 PROPUSED RULE . .

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Gentlemen:

Acknowledged by card. 12-2

We want to thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed regulation 10 CFR Part 72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation". Our comments are given below.

General

Single License Concept

The provision for issuance of a single license as early as possible in the licensic, process is a practical forward step which should materially assist in solving the imminent spent fuel storage problem without sacrificing consideration of public health and safety or environmental protection.

Seismic Criterion

The recognition that the single static nature of an ISFSI makes the seismic risk less serious than for a reactor and that substantial resources can be expended both in site investigation work and debate on exact site specific design values is indeed correct. The seismic criteria proposed, therefore, represents a reasonable approach for these types of facilities.

Dry Storage

The subject of wet storage appears to be more fully addressed than dry storage. It is suggested that a single statement be inserted that this regulation is designed to address primarily water pool storage, but the limits for design and radiological effluents are applicable also to dry storage and that any specific questions related to dry storage will be handled on a case-by-case basis.

Price-Anderson Coverage

Our estimate of the potential offsite impacts of accidents at an ISFSI indicates that such consequences are not of a magnitude requiring Price-Anderson coverage. It is also our understanding that the existing coverage provided at power reactors under 10 CFR 110 extends to the

AN AFFILIATE OF EXXON CORPORATION

transport of nuclear materials to and from those facilities until those materials are placed into storage at their destination. Therefore, participation in Price-Anderson coverage is not considered necessary for an ISFSI except during future transfers to another ISFSI or to a final depository. In such a case, mandatory Price-Anderson coverage of one of the facilities should be required, which would extend the insurance to the transportation phase of the transfer.

Issuance of Licenses

In Sections 72.31 and 72.33 on license issuance and license conditions, it would be more helpful if the minimum conditions could be more clear! defined prior to construction as compared to the conditions required to begin operation. Hopefully, the requirements at the construct on stage would be only those essential to determining the safety of the design. Detailed operating procedures, detailed limiting control settings and detailed operating information could be provided during the construction period as amendments to the original application. This timing feature of the application process should be clarified.

Specific Comments

The following specific comments are indexed according to section number.

1. Supplementary Information:

Although the fuel is aged one year and the short half-lived radionuclides have decayed, we believe that the fuel does need protection from weather extremes since the more hazardous radionuclides still remain. The words "need not have a <u>high degree</u> of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles" should be better defined with this idea in mind.

- On Page FR 46310, the first full paragraph, in the last sentence, we suggest that the words "containment" be replaced with "confinement".
- 3. 72.3(i) Does "human history" mean "recorded history"?
- 4. 72.11(c) Table I would be better put into Section 72.11.
- 5. 72.15(a) (7), 72.16 and 72.33 The depth and type of information required by these three Sections is not indicated and 72.15(a) (7) and 72.16 appear to conflict. Is it correct to assume that 72.15 applies to the initial SAR submittal and 72.16 applies to the final SAR update which is to be submitted prior to initiating operation of the facility? This should be made clear, if true. Does the Staff plan to issue a regulatory guide for SAR preparation?

- 6. 72.15(a) (13) The type of analysis and its purpose is not entirely clear. If the gamma exposure to an offsite individual due to the loss of pool water is being used to determine the site boundary distance, it should be so stated. (See the transcript of the Commissioners' meeting of 19 July 1978, Page 20. Presentation made by Mr. R. M. Bernero.) In our opinion, loss of pool water is a Class 9 type accident and is usually not considered in safety analyses for these types of facilities.
- 7. 72.18(a) The decommissioning mode to be used should be the prerogative of the owner. The word "decommissioning" should be substituted for the words "dismantling and disposal" in the first sentence.
- 8. 72.19 References to appendices of other Parts of Title 10 creates a risk that those references will be amended in the future in a manner inappropriate to an ISFSI. Therefore, it is recommended that such material be incorporated directly into Part 72 as appropriate.
- 9. 72.20 It is assumed that the reference should be Subpart C to Part 51 (Materials Licensing and Other Action).
- 10. 72.31(a) (10) The language dealing with environmental findings is common to that in Part 70, and we have found it acceptable in the past. However, it is clear that the scheduled need for an ISFSI in the United States is approaching a point where the regulatory process could interfere with timely completion of construction. To minimize this probability it is recommanded that the following be inserted before the last sentence of this paragraph:

"The Director may, based on an initial review of information filed, issue a letter authorizing initiation of construction activities, provided that he explicitly finds that any potential adverse environmental impacts resulting from operation of the facility can be adequately abated by adjustments in the final design of the facility, and that the applicant agrees to conduct the conscruction activities so that such adjustments are not precluded."

- 72.33 (c) (5) The term "safety-related equipment" should be defined in this regulation.
- 12. 72.33 (d) (1) This paragraph has some typos; delete the first "by" and make the second "by" into a "be".
- 13. 72.61 It is suggested the probability criteria be added to indicate a threshold for the occurence of external natural events, external man-induced events, and natural phenomena, below which design protection against such events is not required.
- 14. 72.66 A design earthquake is suggested with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years. Could a probability threshold derived from this recurrence interval also be used as the criteria suggested in the preceeding comment for other events which could impact the safety of ISFSI?
- 15. 72.71(2) (11) (B) The use of the word "appropriate" could use clarification. It is assumed that it is not necessary to look at all possible combinations of man-caused and natural phenomena type accidents, but only combinations where one accident can directly lead to the other. If this is so, it should be clearly stated.
- 72.71 (2) (iii) The natural phenomena for which this capability is 16. required should be listed; presumably it is only earthquake.

Sincerely,

+... R. Nilson, Manager Licensing

OAK RIDGE NATIONAL LABORATORY

UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION



POST OFFICE BOX X OAK RIDGE, TENNESSEE 37830

December 14, 1978

Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555



190

Dear Mr. Stanford:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter requesting my comments on proposed regulation 10 CFR Part 72, Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. I have read this document intently and I believe it is satisfactory for drafting into final form. I agree with your requirements for a quality assurance program as described in par. 72.75 and your statements regarding quality standards in par. 72.71, especially with respect to the wording "commensurate with the importance of the function to be performed." I agree with your requirements under (6) of par. 72.71 relative to testing and maintenance of systems and components that have safety-related functions. I would interpret this to mean that not all of the safety-related functions must have this capability. . . only those important to the function to be performed.

I appreciated our conversation relative to the application of the latest revision of ANSI N46.2 to the low level waste program, and look forward to talking with you again. . . perhaps in the next ANSI N46.2 subcommittee meeting.

Sincerely yours,

R. J. Beaver

Metals and Ceramics Division

RJB:pw

NRC FUBLIC DOCUSENT ROOM Achomication December 19, 1972 DOCKET MUNCER PROFOSSE RUI

Mr. Daniel D. Wilt 666 Euclid Building - Suite 850 Cleveland, Ohio 44114



The Secretary United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Gentlemen:

I would like to comment on your proposed rules dealing with the storage of spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation.

Subpart A - General Provisions

I believe the proposed rule in Subpart A is deficient in two material respects. Initially, I do not believe an applicant for a license to operate an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (hereinafter referred to ISFSI) ought be an individual. The length of time such a facility will be in existence is such that it would be unwise to permit an individual to own the license. The frailties of human existence require a more stable form of ownership of such a facility. While an individual may be perfectly capable of operating such a facility, his heirs may not. To require the Commission to relicense facilities because of the death of the owner seems to me to be improper. Thus, I think the Commission must limit ownership of such facilities to entities which have unlimited life. For all practical purposes, much of the spent fuel will have an unlimited life.

The second deficiency deals vi ... the financial information required of an applicant. The rule does not specify what form or type of financial information is required nor does the rule set forth any specific requirements concerning the financial stability of an applicant. This facility by its very nature will be in existence for more than one (1) human generation. In order to insure that such a facility will be properly operated, it is mandatory that the most conservative form of financial stability be required. Thus, an applicant should be required to post a bond in favor of the government in an amount not to exceed

double that of the amount needed to maintain decommission procedures and decontaminate the facility. It is true, of course, that bonding companies will not issue such a bond unless there is sufficient assets to protect the bonding company. The people of this country are entitled to the same protection. In my judgment, not to require such financial stability is wrong and no licence should be granted without the strongest financial protection available.

Subpart C - Issuance and Conditions of Licenses

Proposed rules sections 72.33 is deficient in that should any radionuclides be released to the atmosphere or to ground water or for any reason escape the confinement area a report must be made to the Commission immediately. In my judgment, prompt action must be required to prevent any potential danger to the public.

Subpart E - Siting Criteria

I believe this subpart of the proposed rule is deficient. Provision is made for examination of the proposed site for a large number of variables but no provision is made for a review of the sociclogical implications of such a facility. It is an elementary proposition that the citizens of this country have free choice. Free choice implies the right to say no. There is nothing in this regulation which permits the public to be involved in the application process. There is no requirement that a representative of the public review each and every part of the application to determine for the benefit of the public that all of the requirements are met. A provision for the public hearing after the application has been filed is not sufficient. An ombudsman ought to be appointed to participate in the initial stages of the application process.

Furthermore, there ought to be a requirement that a proposed applicant obtain the approval of the population who live around the facility. The sociological and emotional health of the population is every bit as important as acceptable seismic characteristics. Since the facility is going to be in the area for an incredible period of time, the consent of those who will be its neighbors must be solicited. Since the proposed rule is completely deficient in this respect, it should not be adopted.

Your comments on these suggestions contained in this letter is solicited.

Checkel Mith

DDW/kgb

B-48

CC: Senator John Glenn Mr. Dick Sering

EXON NUCLEAR COMPANY, Inc.

RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER 2955 George Washington Way, Richland, Washington 99352 PHONE: (509) 943-7100

December 27, 1978

0000000 PROPOSED

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Gentlemen:

We want to thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed regulation 10 CFR Part 72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation". Our comments are given below.

General

Single License Concept

The provision for issuance of a single license as early as possible in the licensing process is a practical forward step which should materially assist in solving the imminent spent fuel storage problem without sacrificing consideration of public health and safety or environmental protection.

Seismic Criterion

The recognition that the single static nature of an ISFSI makes the seismic risk less serious than for a reactor and that substantial resources can be expended both in site investigation work and debate on exact site specific design values is indeed correct. The seismic criteria proposed, therefore, represents a reasonable approach for these types of facilities.

Dry Storage

The subject of wet storage appears to be more fully addressed than dry storage. It is suggested that a single statement be inserted that this regulation is designed to address primarily water pool storage, but the limits for design and radiologica' effluents are applicable also to dry storage and that any specific questions related to dry storage will be handled on a case-by-case basis.

Price-Anderson Coverage

Our estimate of the potential offsite impacts of accidents at an ISFSI indicates that such consequences are not of a magnitude requiring Price-Anderson coverage assuming that an extended, total loss of pool water cannot cause fuel melting. It is also our understanding that the existing coverage provided at power reactors under 10 CFR 110 extends to the

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMENT BOOM

Whow wedged by card 19728 york

December 19, 1978

WISCONSIN Electric POWER COMPANY 231 WEST MICHIGAN, MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53201

PROPOLES PR-72(43FR46309)

Mr. Samuel J. Chilk Secretary of the Commission U. S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Gentlemen:



PROPOSED 10 CFR PART 72

The Federal Register dated October 6, 1978 published a proposed change to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission regulations. This proposed change specifies licensing requirements for the storage of spent fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) and has been designated 10 CFR Part 72. We have reviewed these proposed regulations, and have a number of comments for your consideration. These comments are enclosed herewith.

As the Commission knows, construction permits and operating licenses have been issued for nuclear power facilities under 10 CFR Part 50, which included the construction and operation of spent fuel storage facilities at each of these power plants. We are disturbed to note that the provisions of 10 CFR Part 72 go far beyond the existing licensing requirements for spent fuel storage installations at operating power plants. We believe there is substantially no difference in the construction and operation requirements of such facilities whether they are combined with a power plant or whether they are independent of other facilities. We would, therefore, urge that the requirements for 10 CFR Part 72 be consistent with, and not exceed, those requirements for spent fuel storage installations at nuclear power facilities. In any event, to the extent the requirements will be more rigorous than such installations at nuclear power facilities, specific reasons therefor she id be set out.

Very truly yours,

Executive Vice President

Sol Burstein

8-50

Enclosure

	COMME	NTS	ON	PROPO	SED	10	CFR	PART 72	
LIC	ENSIN	GR	EQU	REMEN	ITS	FOR	THE	STORAGE	OF
-		SPI	ENT	FUEL	IN	AN	ISFSI		

Paragraph

Comment

1. 72.15(b)

- The requirement for an annual update of the safety analysis report (SAR) after the facility has been licensed is excessive. Likewise, submittal of these changes to the NRC for other than information purposes is not necessary. Per the provision of Section 72.34, a licensee may make certain changes to the facility without prior NRC approval. There should be no reason to submit these same changes to the NRC in the form of an SAR amendment for approval after the changes have been made. This section should specify a periodic update of the SAR when significant changes have occurred.
- 2. 72.32 The maximum duration of license permitted by the regulation should be 40 years. The equipment in such facilities will be designed to have a lifetime well in excess of the proposed 20 year limit. This relatively short license period may result in more frequent, and needless, licensing and legal delays.
- 3. 72.33(c)(5) This paragraph would prohibit on-the-job training of noncertified personnel. A reasonable training program should allow an individual in training to operate equipment under the supervision of certified personnel.
- 4. 72.42 This backfitting requirement is very one sided. There is no cost/benefit criteria imposed on the NRC to justify backfitting requirements. There also is no apparent redress available to the licensee to question such backfit decisions.
- 5. 72.81(a) No more than three copies of a facility security plan should be forwarded to the NRC. The security plan contains confidential material which should be disseminated on a need-to-know basis only.
- 6. 72.7 It is not clear whether the owner/operato: of the facility must take title to the fuel stored therein or whether he can store fuel owned by someone eise.
- 7. 72.71(13)(ii) The requirement that neutron absorbing materials (poisons) be permanently fixed is unnecessary. The use of removeable poisons which are locked into position should be satisfactory. A third paragraph should be added to this design requirement which would allow credit for the use of a soluble poison material in the storage pool cooling medium.

8. 72.71(12)

Stating that handling, transfer, and storage systems shall be designed to be maintained subcritical is vague. A $K_{eff\infty}$ value equal to or less than 0.95 should be specified.

9.

There appears to be no mention in the regulation that a license granted in accordance with this part would permit shipment of spent fuel assemblies.

NORT - ALE BOCCALLA LOOM

Allied-General Nuclear Services Past Office Box 847 Barnwell, South Carolina 29812

R. C. Baxter President

(803) 259-1711

104

December 21, 1978 OCCUT TOTO PROPOSED AULE . A -72 (435846309

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Subject: Comments on Proposed 10 CFR Part 72

Dear Sir:

In response to your request for comment on proposed regulation covering Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI), published in the Federal Register Vol. 43, No. 195 on October 6, 1978, Allied-General Nuclear Services (AGNS) is pleased to submit the following.

In a Sunshine Act meeting held in Washington, D.C. on July 19, 1978 the Commission discussed the licensing of spent fuel storage in an ISFSI. From the transcript of such discussion, it is our understanding that the Commission felt that 10 CFR 70 was inadequate for this purpose, basically because an ISFSI is not a production or utilization facility. Conversely, the Commission appeared to feel that 10 CFR 50 could be needlessly overly restrictive in view of the "much reduced risk potential" of an ISFSI. Because amendments to either Part 70 or Part 50, to make them applicable to ISFSI's, were felt to be a cumbersome and confusing method of approach, the Commission decided to publish, for comment, the proposed new 10 CFR 72 with requirements tailored specifically to an ISFSI.

Based on the foregoing understanding of the Commission's reasoning, it would appear clear that a new 10 CFR 72, if adopted, should not create confusion relative to other NRC regulations and should not needlessly be more restrictive than the present 10 CFR 50. The following comments are offered for the Commission's consideration in achieving these objectives.

A major source of possible future confusion would be eliminated if terminology and definitions used in proposed 10 CFR 72 were reviewed carefully, and revised as appropriate, for conformity with terms use in other NRC regulations. For example, "controlled area" and "neighboring area" (Sections 72.3(g) and (k) respectively) do not appear to differ sufficiently from "exclusion area" and December 21, 1978 U.S. NRC Page 2

"low population zone", as defined in 10 CFR 100, to warrant the introduction of new terminology. Similarly, in Section 72.33(b)(1), "Functional and operating limits" are equivalent to the "safety limits" of 10 CFR 50 and would benefit from being so designated. We urge that a thorough comparison of all terminology in the proposed 10 CFR 72 be made with that in 10 CFR 20, 10 CFR 50, 10 CFR 70, and 10 CFR 100 with the objective of restricting new terminology to a minimum.

At least one such new definition in the proposed 10 CFR 72 could result in unfortunate and unintended results quite apart from the general confusion arising from inconsistent terminology. Section 72.3(s) provides a definition of "Structures, systems and components important to safety" which not only needlessly differs from that of 10 CFR 50 but which might be construed as requiring an unwarranted expansion of the number of items subject to the quality assurance requirements of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, as required by Section 72.75. Therefore, we suggest that "Structures, systems and components important to safety" be defined, as in 10 CFR 50, to be "those safety related items that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public."

One new definition which is required for a new 10 CFR 72 is that of an "ISFSI". As set forth in Section 72.3(j), the definition is both clear and precise. However, even this required new definition is placed in some jeopardy of misunderstanding by the possibly conflicting language used in the second paragraph of the Supplementary Informatio' section (Federal Register page 46309, column 2) which refers to "installations built specifically for this purpose that are not coupled to either a nuclear power plant or a fuel reprocessing plant." If an installation meets the definition of Section 72.3(j) through capability of "independent operation with all necessary supporting services", then the implied restriction in the Supplementary Information section appears both unnecessary and unwarranted. That such implied restriction was not intended seems evident from not only Sections 72.71(4) and (5) but also from the transcript of the Commission's July 19, 1974 discussion concerning the establishment of off-site dose guidelines which permit operation of an ISFSI sited with reactors. Consequently, it is recommended that this conflicting language in the Supplemental Information section be deleted.

Section 72.18 provides a new regulatory requirement relative to decommissioning. The decommissioning plan is therein described as requiring inclusion of assurance related to "the dismantling and disposal of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life." This

December 21, 1978 U.S. NRC Page 3

Section should be clarified to provide that, after an ISFSI has been decontaminated at the end of its useful life (if complete decontamination is the selected mode in the decommissioning program), any question as to dismantling and disposal of the "cold" structures, systems and components would be a matter for determination by the owners within the scope of state and local regulations and should not be of regulatory concern to the Commission.

Section 72.31(a)(10) introduces a proposed licensing concept which differs substantially from that of 10 CFR 70. Section 70.21(f) of 10 CFR 70 requires that an application must be filed "at least 9 months prior to commencement of construction". In view of the general uncertainties surrounding national nuclear policy, it is unlikely that any private investor would want to initiate construction on any basis substantially different from that proposed by Section 72.31(a)(1). However, the urgency of establishing an ISFSI, as expressed by the Interagency Review Group, suggests that the Commission might wish to consider the inclusion of an option in Section 72.31(a)(10) under which, in the absence of favorable licensing action by 9 months after date of application, the applicant, at its own risk, might be permitted to initiate construction without jeopardizing a favorable ruling on the application.

Section 72.42(a) provides that the Commission may require backfitting "if it finds that such action will provide substantial, additional protection ...". As written, the licensee has no assurance that such required backfitting would be cost effective. This subsection should be modified to provide that backfitting could be required only after the Commission has demonstrated, by suitable cost-benefit analysis, that such backfitting is justified.

Section 72.51(b) requires a "physical inventory" of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed 12 months or as otherwise directed by the Commission. This provision would benefit from added definition. A physical inspection of each assembly on a periodic basis would apr ar not only unnecessary but would also involve needless radia ion exposure. A system of two-person identification of each assembly upon its initial placement in storage and upon any later movement, coupled with periodic total "piece counts" (without assembly identification) and with random sampling for identification would provide the needed assurance. Consequently, we suggest that Section 72.51(b) be modified to clarify that a procedure such as that outlined above would meet the "physical inventory" requirement.

POOR ORIGINAL

December 21, 1978 U.S. NRC Page 4

Section 72.54 (Nuclear Material Transfer Reports) would greatly benefit from clarification of its final sentence which requires submittal of a report within 10 days after the spent fuel is "received". Because of possible delays between the date on which a shipping cask arrives at an ISFSI and the date on which an assembly is removed from such cask, identified and placed in storage, it is recommended that this provision be modified to require such submittal within 10 days after the spent fuel is "placed in storage".

Section 72.55(c) requires performance by licensee, or by the Commission, of tests which the Commission deems appropriate or necessary. As written, the licensee is not protected from arguably unwarranted tests. This subsection should be modified to require that (a) upon request of licensee, the Commission demonstrate that the tests are appropriate or necessary and that (b) such tests be scheduled in a manner which would minimize their impact on ISFSI operations.

Section 72.71(8)(ii) requires, by its final sentence, monitoring both locally and in a continuously manned location. It is suggested that this be modified to clarify that, if the local station is continuously manned, a second alarm station is optional rather than required.

Section 72.71(19) requires that all site-generated wastes be concentrated at the ISFSI. Instances could well arise where, except for this provision, it would be beneficial, both economically and environmentally, that such concentration te performed at another licensed location, particularly if such were nearby. Accordingly, it is suggested that the last sentence of this subsection be replaced by the following: "Provision shall be made for the conversion of site generated wastes into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate final disposal."

We trust that above comments will be helpful in finalizing the proposed 10 CFR Part 72.

Sincerely yours,

RCB/gmb



AMERICAN NUCLEAR SOCIETY STANDARDS COMMITTEE



è.

December 22, 1978

DOLYET NUMBER . PROPOSED RULE Pix -72 (43 FR 46309)

Mr. R. E. L. Stanford Office of Standards Development U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Dear Russ:

Please find enclosed ANS-57.7 committee's comments on 10 CFR, Part 72. I hope these comments prove helpful.

Please feel free to call if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

John A. Nevshemal

Chairman, ANS-57.7

JAN: mk Encl.

Actinomiested by cerd 27.28.4 M.C.

B-57

Science Applications, Inc.

40 Denver Technological Center West, 1935 East Prentice Avenue, Englewood, Calorado 801:0. 303/772-6900

3595 E. GEODES AVENUE . LITTLETON, COLORADO 30122 . (303) 771-4285

72.1 Last sentence - Delete. Even though the ISFSI is a temporary storage, they are being designed on a 40-year basis. The title of the Regulation does not say anything about the temporary nature of the facility.

72.2 Last sentence - Delete. A grandfather clause should be on a permanent basis rather than say a license of an existing facility will not be renewed unless it meets these new regulations. What happens to an ISFSI if it is full of spent fuel and their license comes up for renewal and their facility does not meet the new regulations? This sentence is too restrictive and should be deleted or modified.

Section 72.3 (S) "Structures, systems, components important to safety" as defined in 10 CFR Part 50, "are those safety related items that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public". It seems appropriate that definitions in Part 72 should be consistent with these used in other Federal Regulations to avoid confusion. It is recommended that the change be made.

100

Section 72.3 (g) and 72.3 (k) defined "controlled" and "neighboring" areas respectively. LOCTRIOO, paragraph 100.3 (a) defines an "exclusion" area; the definition of which is similar to the Part 72 definition of a "controlled" area. The definition of "low population zone" in LOCTRIOO is similar to the definition of "neighboring" area in Part 72. The definitions of the various "areas" discussed in Part 72 should be consistent to the definition used in other parts including LOCTR2O, LOCTR73 and LOCTRIOO to avoid confusion and misuse of terminology.

72.15 (a) Requiring research and development to confirm the design is too restrictive. The paragraph does not say who makes the decision requiring R&D. This could be a very expensive item for the licensee. The paragraph should either be deleted or modified.

72.15 (12) (1) (a&b) Why not combine the two paragraphs by inserting "and gaseous" following "liquid" in paragraph A. In the first paragraph in (12), gaseous and liquid effluents are included together rather than separate.

72.15 (13) (1) (3) (c) Delete the last sentence because it is covered by paragraph 72.75. It does not add anything that has not been said.

72.17 (c) "Cartified" should be deleted. There are only certifications for reactor and reprocessing operators. Trained plant personnel should be adequate for this operation.

72.18 (b) Delete sentence. This is too restrictive. No one else in the nuclear field have had to comply with financial arrangements for decommissioning. You could make the ISFSI too costly to operate with the burden for decommissioning some 40 years down the road.

Section 72.18 - <u>Decommissioning plan</u>. <u>Including its financing</u>. This section addresses "dismantling and disposal of an ISFSI"; it is our understanding that once the installation is decurtaminated, the final disposition of the remaining structures are the purview of the owners and state and local zoning regulations. If this is the case, this info should be incorporated into this section.

Section 72.31 (a) (10) specifically states that initiation of construction by an applicant prior to a finding that the action called for, following review by the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards, is issuance of the proposed license may be grounds for denial of a license. In 10CFR70, paragraph 70.21 (f), the requirement is established that an application must be filed "at least 9 months prior to commencement of construction". It is recommended that a similar provision be included in 10CFR72 to allow an applicant to proceed with construction, after a suitable period has elapsed from the date an application was filed, without jeopardizing a favorable ruling on the application.

POOR ORIGINAL

72.31 (a) (a) Same as paragraph 72.18 (b).

72.32 Since the facility is designed for a 40-year life, it seems that the license should be issued for 40 years rather than 20 unless there is some overriding reason for the 20. Another burden placed on the licensee is that upon renewal, he has to comply with the current regulations in force at that time. A license should be issued for the duration of the facility unless a significant design change has been made to the plant. Same comment for paragraph 72.2.

12.33 (5) (c) (4) "And certification" should be deleted. A training program should be efficient to meet the NRC requirements.

Section 72.33 License Conditions (1) Functional and operating limits and monitoring instruments and limiting control settings. It appears that "Functional and operating limits" are equivalent to "safety limits" in a part 50 license. It is suggested that the title be changed to Safety Limits to be consistent with part 50.

72.34 (2) (c) If you enumerate (1) and (2), then you need to number the rest up through (5).

72.36 (b) (1) I do not think that paragraph 72.15 or 72.16 apply in this case. As a matter of fact, not even the limited case stated in this section.

72.36 (b) (2) The first sentence should be deleted. That information is part of the SAR furnished by the original owner and should be current. The second sentence in this paragraph is the information the Commission needs. As a matter of fact, the two sentences in this paragraph are not compatible.

72.42 Delete entire paragraph. Any question of backfitting should be included as a design condition. It is recommended that the storage pool be at ground level. Backfitting should not be spelled out as a separate entry.

Section 72.42 (a) states that the Commission may require backfitting if such action will provide substantial additional protection. This paragraph should be modified to include a provision that backfitting can be required only after a suitable cost-benefit analysis has shown that backfitting is justified.

Section 72.51 (b) What is intended by "a physical inventory"? Does this mean physically verifying each fuel assembly stored in the ISFSI?

A piece count and selected small quantity audit of randamly selected fuel assemblies for verification would be adequate.

72.51 (b) Delete paragraph. With all the other records required by (a), (c) and (d), you have a perpetual inventory system. Conducting a physical inventory should be at the discretion of the licensee.

72.52 Put a period after "material." When you continue by saying "contained in spent fuel," you are implying an accident report should be made if a fuel element ruptures and the pellets fall to the bottom of the pool. Do you really want such a report under that condition? As a matter of fact, you cover any loss of SSNM in paragraph 72.53.

Section 72.54 Last sentence - Does "received" mean when the cask is received at the ISFSJ? Should clarify, verification of the fuel assembly must be made before the NRC-741 can be completed and returned to DOE and the shipper. Should say "..received, verified and stored."

72.55 (c) I do not think that you can test items (1) and (2). You could inspect them, however. Item (3) and (4) you can test and inspect this equipment. I believe the entire paragraph should be rewritten. You could put a period after "regulations."

Section 72.55 (c) This section as written would allow any and all tests that could be conceived and "deemed appropriate or necessary" to be required. It also appears that if the licensee does not choose to perform the test, that the Commission would perform it. The statement appears to be too broad and all encompassing. More definitive information should be given to clarify this requirement.

Specific requirements should be stated that limit the time (say 48 hours) that a test would impact receiving operations.

72.61 (b) Delete "and man-induced" because at the time site selection there should not be any man-induced events to be evaluated.

72.63 (a) (b) (c) Delete second sentence in (a) and entire sentence (b) and rewrite (c) as follows: Appropriate methods shall be adapted and justified for the design basis of the ISFSI as being compatible with the characteristics of the region and the current state of knowledge. These paragraphs are talking about phenomena, when all we are talking about are man-made facilities.

72.71 (2) (11) Delete parenthetical expression because it conflicts with paragraph 72.66 (a). In that paragraph you allow the applicant an option.

Section 72.71 Overall Requirements 3 - Would suggest that "credible" be inserted between "under fire" (5th line) for clarification. Also what type explosion was projected? Is ion exchange resin the only one to be considered? What was intended?

Section 72.71 (8) (1) would suggest adding "mechanical" between gross ruptures. Isn't this what we want to protect them from?

Section 72.71 (8) (ii) lines 16 thru 20. It should not be a requirement to have water level monitoring equipment alarm "both locally and in a continuously manned location", if the local at a is continuously manned, the licensee may choose to have a second alarm location but this should be his choice. Remove the words "both locally and" replace with "locally if not continuously manned or in...".

Section 72.71 (10) - Clarification of this section as to what is meant by action to be taken to "operate the ISFSI safely under normal conditions" is needed. The intent should be to monitor under normal conditions not to operate. Suggest that "if required" be inserted in 1 is 2 so it reads - "A control room or control areas, if required, shall be designed to permit occupancy and action to be taken to monitor the ISFSI safely under normal condition and to maintain the ISFSI in a safe condition under off normal or accident conditions".

Section 72 71 (19) - It is recommended that this paragraph be amended to eliminate the requirement that on-site facilities be provided to concentrate all site generated wastes. Concentration and conversion into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate disposal might be best accomplished at a location other than where the waste is generated. The following is a suggested rewording of this paragraph.

(19) <u>Waste Treatment</u> - Waste treatment facilities shall be provided. Provisions shall be made for the conversion of site generated wastes into a form suitable for interim storage or ultimate final disposal.

72.75 (a) Delete second sentence, delete second sentence in (b), and delete (c) entirely. All of these words are part of Appendix B.



000011 HU-DOC PR - 72 (43FR 46309) (29)

Environmental Policy Institute 317 Pennsylvania Ave. S.E. Washington, D.C. 2003 202/544-8200

January 3, 1979

Secretary of the Commission U.S. N uclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

The Environmental Policy Institute makes the following comments concerning the Commission's proposed rule concerning the Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation(ISFSI) as 10 CFR Part 72 noticed in 43 FR 46309, October 6, 1978:

- We note that both the GEIS on the Handling and Storage of Spent Light 1) Water Reactor Fuel --- NUREG-0404 and the proposed rule on 10 CFR Part 72 fail to consider higher burnup rates and improved LWR Fuel Cycle develop-NUREG-0404 is based upon 25,000 MWD/MTU and notes fuel producer ment. expectancies of 33,000 MWD/MTU. DOE(U.S. Department of Energy)'s Draft Environmental Impact Statement on the Storage of U.S. Spent Power Reactor Fuel EIS-0015-D characterizes burnup rates at 33,000MWD/MTU for PWR fuel and 27,000 MWD/MTU for BWR fuel. Recent papers presented by the DOE argue for substantially higher burnup rates of 45,000 MWD/MTU or more. DOE is proposing 50,600 MWD/MTU for PWR's and 47,000 MWD/MTU for BWR's. To accomplish this, DOE is proposing an increase in enrichment to roughly 4.3 % . These higher burnup rates already under development contracts will substantially alter both spent fuel characteristics (fission gases, cladding/fuel interaction, cladding integrity, thermal and radiation output) and discharge rates for spent fuel. While the proposed rule consistently overlooks the need for thorough analysis and record-keeping of specific spent fuel rod and assembly characteristics, we believe that the failure to consider the substantially different characteristics and discharge rates of high-burnup fuel is a significant flaw in both the proposed rule and the NUREG-0404 document.
- The proposed rule notes that the applicability of the rule is to one year 2) old fuel with an option for both wet and dry storage. NUREG-0404 states that dry storage has not been employed by the nuclear industry (section 3.1.4) and that preliminary conceptua 1 studies indicate a feasibility only for five year old fuel or more. The proposed rule makes no such distinction nor does it address the problem of high-burnup fuel characteristics at one year. In fact there seems to be a major discrepancy between the 25,000 MWD/MTU burnup characteristics outlined in the NUREG-0404 and the nominal 33,000MWD/ MTU expected of current fuel performance. Spent fuel characteristics and not fuel "age" should be the controlling factors for both facility design and applicability. The proposed rule consistently downplays the necessity to control for specific spent fuel and fuel assembly characteristics. We sish to go on record of opposing the inclusion of the dry storage option given the lack of both industry and NRC experience with dry storage, especially without fuel characterization limitations.

Printed on recycled paper

Environmental Policy Institute comments--2

- The proposed rule notes that aged fuel "need not have a high degree 3) of protection from weather extremes, tornados, or tornado missiles. Again we must note that the age of the spent fuel per se is not an adequate means of characterizing either design or operating paramet We take exception to the statement that a high degree of protection spent fuel is not required, especially as a regulatory position. We also find the proposal that facility cooling systems and emergency water supply systems may not be capable of withstanding natural phenomenon to be an improper and inadequate regulatory position. The Commission's contention that corrective action can be taken within an adequateperiod of time is not defensible. There is no way to a: that proper personnel, parts, and radiological conditions will coope to assure containment and acceptable occupational exposures. In add tion the Commission assumes here that the phenomenon affecting the I does not similarly affect the surrounding geographical area which r be relied upon to provide corrective services.
- 4) The provision that the technical information to be submitted by the licensee concerning potential doses to individuals off site from accidents and natural pheromenon under section 72.15(13) calls for exexposures to be calculated only for the first 24 hours following th event. If a release of radioactive material does occur, the exposur of individuals will extend beyond a 24 hour period in all probabilit especially given the radionuclides involved. Exposure to off-site individuals should be calculated over the expected hazardous period not merely for a twenty four hour period. Furthermore, the calculat is to be made only for direct exposure and not environmentahopathway doses over time. The Commission's position on accident exposures wi improperly underestimate the potential consequences of postulated ev by restricting the period of time persons may be directly exposed an neglecting exposure via environmental pathways over time.
- 5) The criteria for defining potential radiological consequences unde accident conditions in section 72.67 establishes a criterion of 5 Re in two hours at the outside boundry of the controlled area. The reg lation is vague as to whether this is a maximum dose, an average exposure potential, or an exposure to the maximum individual or some o measurement. The basis for this criterion must be specifically defi We alks note that a 5 Rem exposure in two hours to an individual is an insignificant dose. In fact, it is a dose presenting significant and should be reduced by at least an order of magnitude.
- 6) The requirement that the licensee supply technical information under section 72.15 concerning the safety analysis report(SAR) through a p up to 90 days prior to receipt of spent fuel is questionable. While case can be made for a single construction/operating type license and for updating the SAR, we have serious reservations about the "trickle in" approach outlined in this requirement. Given the Commission's er perience with reactor licenses, we believe that minimum requirements should be established for the SAR prior to licensing. Supplemental is formation may be added after the license is issued but it must not be information substantially affecting the approved design. One stop li censing requires that the issues be resolved to the fullest possible extent before the facility is licensed and is acceptable only on such a basis. We support the Commission's need for full information prior

Environmental Policy Institute comments--3

to the receipt of spent fuel, but we object to the concept that the design and safety analysis can be substantially changed after licensing. In the same vein, we support the ability of the Commission to backfit the facility as outlined in section 72.42, but we do not believe that the combination of SAR updating and backfitting should substitute for a full licensing review. The Commission must establish clear criteria for the scope of this review and the scope of the SAR, Environmental report and other reports required under section 72.31 prior to the is-suance of a license.

- 7) We commend the Commission for its requirements concerning the decommissioning of the facility provided in section 72.13. We are concerned about the financial requirement, however, and note that the Commission is exploring the various options for financial assurance for decommissioning for a variety of facilities under its regulatory authority. We causion the Commission with regard to this type of facility over userfees because of the uncertainty of demand and fuel discharge requirements. In addition, higher burn-up rates and waste disposal plans may also substantially affect the long-term economic viability of such a facility. Reliance upon user-fees to be assessed over the life of the facility is not a realistic fiancial assurance mechanism.
- 8) The license conditions proposed under section 72.33 have two flaws. No specific requirement is made for the cataloging of the spent fuel assembly characteristics by assembly either for criticality control, in-facility handling information, or additionally for disposal characteristics. The Administrative requirements outlined in subsection(5) should specifically establish such procedures. The second flaw is the biannual reporting requirement for radioactive effluents under subsection(d). The subsection allows effluents "significantly above design objectives" to unreported for long periods of time and potentially in excess of eight months. In addition, the reporting periods should be matched to the operating date of the facility rather than a calender period to assure consistency in reporting.
- 9) The provision outlined in section 72.34 which allows the licensee to change procedures, conduct tests, and modify the installation without prior Commission approval allows the licensee to make the determination as to the significance of these alterations. At a minimum, the licensee should be required to consult with the Commission staff and file a notice of such a change prior to implementation rather than after the fact on an annual basis as proposed in the section.
- We have four comments concerning the General Design Criteria proposed in Subpart F: Requirement(2)(iv) provides for the protection of an aquifer, but it

should also provide for the protection of surface waters adjacent to the site from radioactive materials.

- Requirement(8)(1) provides for the protection of fuel cladding and gross ruptures but does not specify if physical barriers or procedures are required nor does it establish a level of adequacy.

Environmental Policy Institute comments--4

mechanism is questionable and experience with this practice over a 20 year period commensurate with the license period is not existent to our knowledge. In addition the use of such material adds to the contaminants in the pool as well as to the volume and hazard of decontamination, decommissioning, and radioactive waste to be disposed of upon termination. We do not believe that neutron absorbing materials should be permitted as an alternative method of criticality control at this time.

Requirement(14)

which provides for radiological protection fails to address cask handling, loading, and unloading as well decontamination. In fact, the entire proposed rule ignores the problems associated with these operations.

11), As noted immediately above, the proposed rule does not address the problems, exposures, and potential releases from cask handling procedures. Cask handling and unloading offer the highest routine worker exposures and potential for release of radionuclides. Cask decontamination also results in a major portion of waste treatment problems. The proposed rule does not establish any requirements for design, procedures or transport vehicle/cask storage to reduce occupational exposures, transport vehicle personnel, or releases from these operations. This a major shortcoming of the proposed rule in general and the design objectives and radiological protection requirements in particular.

signed,

- Clouit

David Berick Environmental Policy Institute



En. - 72(43FR 46309)

Lic 30 ' 75

Strengen Nic-27412

700)

Du Dr:

To an writing to suggest allestation A Gray fin Reader Facilities ... Jens, in The interest of safer, charger incruling of wate. After reading reporte, de recommente on site strage gods at slockholder en perce. white a fool find multid of farmant desporal is found. One called come demage with and projecty of many gengle, in annal geod iric rick.

Senewig Marilyn , Im Machance

remented and the most allist in the





Marilya Chase Route 1 Box 265 Olimas, M. C. 27233 December 30, 1973

Dear People,

I would like to content on your concept of Away from Reactor storage facilities. First, I see little value of a public conment period when so little attempt is main to inform the public of the issue and so little time is given in which to receive public comment. I saw no mention of AFRs in either the DOE or NRC news bulleting.

As for the AFRs themselves, I see their construction and operation as a threat to my health, and an additional burien to my electric bill. I see no need for a helf-way house for spent nuclear fuel. If nuclear unterial can indeed be stored safely permanently, do it.

Thank you.

Love,

Maulyn Chase





HORALD BLUE - 7243

Hick*rson

Route 1

C. L.

Franklinville, H. C. 27249 December 30, 1978

Dear Procle.

I am appalled that the nuclear industry is still taking the problem of nuclear waste so lightly as to propose the construction of Away from Reactor storage facilities. The increased handling and transportation necessary with the operation of AFRs will increase the danger both to my health and my nockerbook. The seriousness of the problem of nuclear waste disposal deserves more than band-aid solutions. There has been ample time since the beginning of the nuclear era to determine a method of permanent waste disposal, if a method really does exist. The public deserves a clear commitment from the nuclear industry to solve this problem.

Thank you.

Sincerely. CL. Hickorss-

C. L. Hickerson





Tom Cleyton Reute 1 Box 266 Climas, N. C. 27233 December 30, 1977

Dear TRC.

I am strongly against the proposal to construct Away from Reactor facilities for the storage of nuclear spent fuel. Let the fuel stay where it is created until a one-time method of disposing of it is developed. I see the existence of AFRs as West Valley all over again. There is no reason that I should be required to pay for sloppy, hastily conceived plans for disposing of so dangerous a material as nuclear waste. Please put your time and money into coming up with a tafe way to permanently store nuclear waste. It is unwise to cart this waste all pround the country looking for an accident to occur. I don't want to pay for either the transportation or the effects of an accident with my money or my health.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Tenico Clayton

POOR ORIGINAL

Actore to do and in JUIS





MERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEER

STRUCTURAL DIVISION

CLEAR STRUCTURES AND MATERIALS COMMITTEE

REALIN TAXON ATHINED RULE

COMMITTEE CORRESPONDENCE

- 72(43FR 46309) Robert B. Minogue TO: Director, Office of Standards Development
- FROM: R. G. Domer, Chairman
- DATE: December 27, 1978

Address Inquiries To: Dr. R. G. Domer Tennessee Valley Authority W9D224 400 Commerce Avenue Knoxville, Tennessee 37902 Telephone: (615) 632-2357

Dear Mr. Minogue:

Our Committee on Nuclear Fuel Cycle, D. S. Pesce, Chairman, obtained a copy of the proposed 10 CFR Part 72, Licensing of Spent Fuel Storage in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI), and has reviewed this document. You will find attached for your consideration a copy of these comments. You will note from Mr. Pesce's letter to me that the comments reflect the committee majority and that the committee majority supports the proposed regulation to specifically cover the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI.

You will note that many of the comments center around a consistent level of risk (or probability of occurrence) for such natural events as earthquakes, tornados, and flooding. I believe that you will find our comments both constructive and reasonable. We would like to commend the Office of Standards Development for their efforts in developing this proposed regulation.

RGD: KW Attachment cc: D. S. Pesce (Attachment) J. H. Appleton (Attachment)

1/15

To: R. G. Domer Chairman, Nuclear Structures & Materials Committee

- From: American Society of Civil Engineers Nuclear Structures & Materials Committee Committee on Nuclear Fuel Cycle
- Subject: Proposed 10 CFR Part 72 Licensing of Spent Fuel Storage in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)

The American Society of Civil Engineers has a vital interest in the myriad of technical problems facing our nation in its effort to better the environment and welfare of its people. It is in this spirit of concern that the ASCE Committee on Nuclear Fuel Cycle offers its comments (attached) in reference to the proposed 10 CFR Part 72.

The committee majority supports the recommendation that the Nuclear Regulatory Commission approve publication of the proposed regulation, 10 CFR 72, to specifically cover the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI. The committee commends the Office of Standards Development for the level of reason that has gone into this recommendation.

Slen

D. S. Pesce

SUBJECT: Technical Review of Proposed 10 CFR Part 72 Licensing of Spent Fuel Storage in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)

FROM: American Society of Civil Engineers Committee on Nuclear Fuel Cycle

ITEM I -- SEISMIC DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

The following commentary may appear to present some conflicting observations. This is recognized and done intentionally for a primary reason of focusing attention on the hurdles a proposed ISESI faces when subject to review for comprobility with established technical requirements and at the same time subject to acceptance by the community.

Stating it realistically, the desire to expedite the licensing procedure often conflicts with the demands of selected parties looking for the absolute assurance that the facility/system presents no level of risk. A second interpretation is that the technical considerations must prevail; however, they must be responsive and fit into our political society.

A. The proposed regulation is directed toward new sites for an ISFSI rather than recognizing that the majority of sites may be contiguous to existing licensed reactors. The regulation sets minimum seismic criteria which are in excess of criteria used in the licensing of most reactor facilities in the aseismic Southeast U. S. The regulation attempts to justify such conservative criteria by stating that these criteria will not affect the design of the simple structures involved and by emphasizing - in four separate statements - that the adoption of such conservative criteria will be in lieu of site investigations.

This regulation is written as if it must justify the arbitrary selection of ultra conservative seismic criteria. If such conservative seismic criteria are reasonable, then the cost savings due to omitting site investigations are not relevant. The regulation infers that site investigation costs will be reduced. Nothing could be further from reality. The regulation still requires the site seismicity to be characterized by showing the probability of seismicity is below stated levels. Furthermore, the site will have to be free of those unusual geologic conditions which are only determined during site investigation.

While it may be appropriate to specify minimum acceptable levels of design, there is no justification for adopting ultra conservative designs just because the proposed structure is supposedly simple.

B. As stated in supplementary information, the ISFSI poses a small potential risk due to the relatively inert nature of aged spent fuel and the simple static nature of an ISFSI makes seismic risk less serious than it is for a reactor, therefore, the severe seismic requirements of at least 0.25g are inconsistent in the Subpart F 72.71 (2) (11).

It is recognized that the rationale of 0.25g seismic requirement is to avoid expenditure of substantial resources in investigation work to establish site specific seismic data, but here again if ISFSI is located near existing licensed facility, some of this data may already be available and made investigative and review work of site-specific seismic design data a relatively simpler task.

Therefore, it is suggested that seismic criteria state the establishment of a site specific g value by the procedure of Part 100 or as an alternative approach, use of at least 0.25g horizontal ground motion acceleration in which case, the integrity of the ISFSI will be considered adequate, without the need for costly seismic site investigations, analyses, and reviews.

C. It is stated in the Supplementary Information, Aged spent fuel, Laving lost the short-lived radionuclides by decay, need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles.

 The rationale for this statement should be given in the lext, included in an appendix, or referenced to a supporting document.

-3-

2. Section 72.71, General Design Criteria, Overall Requirements, section (2) (ii) states, Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g), tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lightning, hurricanes, floods, tsunami, and seichs without impairing their capability to perform safety functions.

The statement from the Supplementary Information lumped all extreme weather events together and implies that consideration for these events is not critical to the design; however, the requirements in the general design criteria specifically name extreme weather events to be considered in the design, except tornado generated missiles. This ambiguity needs to be resolved.

- D. Section 72.66 indicates that a peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greater than 0.25g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years can be used to define the earthquake or that a site specific g value can be determined by procedures outlined in 10 CFR 100. Several clarifications are needed for this section as follows:
 - Horizontal ground acceleration is specifically stated; therefore, vertical acceleration should be specified or the word horizontal removed.
 - 2. The ground motion should be specified as free-field surface motion.
 - 3. This section implies that if a site specific g value is determined, an earthquake with a return period of 500 years could be used. This should be clearly stated.

4. In the majority of the eastern United States, a 500-year earthquake would result in maximum accelerations less than 0.10g. This is quite a bit smaller than 0.25g which would definitely affect the cost of at least the equipment. This can be handled by the approach suggested in Item 1.

-Lan

5. Specification of just a peak g value is not complete. Additional information should be included concerning ground response spectra and methods of analyses (static and dynamic) or tests for structures, systems, and components. 10 CFR 100, Section VI (a) is an example of what needs to be added. Use of the regulatory guide spectra is applicable for most sites, but some reference or information should be in 10 CFR 72.

ITEM 2 -- USE OF EXISTING STORAGE CARACITY

Spent fuel storage capacity at reactor and at existing used or unused reprocessing plants should be increased as much as possible by modification of racks with closer spacing of fuel assemblies and utilizing previously unused floor area but keeping a rule core reserve capacity in spent fuel pool for a reactor core unloading.

-5-

A consideration to above, should be given during licensing of an (SFSI so that unnecessary ISFSI need not be licensed as acknowledged purpose of ISFSI is temporary storage of spent fuel for a period during which, a decision to reprocess or permanently dispose the spent fuel is made, such facilities are constructed and put in operation.

ITEM 3 -- REFERENCE: SUBPART G - QUALITY ASSURANCE 72.75 QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM; RECORDS

-6-

As stated in the reference, the Quality Assurance Program is based on the Criteria in Appendix B of 10 CFR 50. The Quality Assurance Program shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that the sajety related structures, systems, and components of an ISFSI will perform their safety functions. The application o, the Quality Assurance Program should be commensurate with the importance of individual structures, systems and components to safety.

It is recognized that safety is the number one concern when assessing the risks associated with the operation of an ISFSI facility. However; for the reason of m intaining credibility with the public in that all elements if the spent fue storage facilities will continue to perform satisfactorily in service, it is essential that the non-safety related structure, systems, or components receive their due quality assurance assessments. In this way, the national interests will be better served.

is suggested that 72.75 by restructured as follows:

72.75 Quality Assurance Program

- A. A Quality Assurance Program shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that systems, components, and structures of an ISFSI will perform safely and reliably. The requirements of 10 CFR 50 shall apply to non-safety related items as well as to safety items.
- B. The application of the Quality Assurance Program shall be commensurate with the importance of individual systems relative to safety, the environment, reliability, availability, cost, and schedule.
- C. The Quality Assurance program shall be applied during the design, procurement, fabrication, installation, inspection, test, operation, maintenance, repair and modification phases of the project.

D. Appropriate records of the design, fabrication, erection, and testing of structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be maintained by or under the control of the licensee throughout the life of the installation.

-7-

E. Quality Assurance means all those planned and systematic actions necessary to provide confidence that a structure, system, or component will perform satisfactorily in service. Quality Assurance includes quality control, which comprises those quality assurance actions related to the physical characteristics of a material, structure, component, or system which provide a means to control the quality of the product.
ITEM 4 -- REGULATORY GUIDES

- A. Regulatory Guide 1.76, Jesign Basis Tornado for Nuclear Power Plants. We take exception to the 360 mph (290 mph rotational, 70 mph translational) velocity requirement for structural design. The probability of occurrence for this tornado is approximately 10⁻⁷.
- B. Regulatory Guide 1.102, <u>Flood Protection for Nuclear Power Plants</u>, and Regulatory Guide 3.40, <u>Design Basis Floods for Fuel Reprocessing</u>, <u>Plutonium Processing</u>, and Fuel Fabricating Plants. Guidance needs to be given relative to design basis floods for ISFSI's. Here again it would seem that the design basis floods for an ISFSI should be consistent with the earthquake design basis given in 10CFR part 72; that is, a recurrence interval on the order of 500 years. In any event, some guidance as to what the NRC expects should be given.
- C. Regulatory Guide 3.17, Earthquake Instrumentation for Fuel Reprocessing Plants, should not be applicable to an ISFSI. The main reason for the requirements at a fuel reprocessing plant is to determine if plant operation should be curtailed after an earthquake. An ISFSI is a <u>static</u> facility. There is nothing to stop, the fuel is stored. Seismic instrumentation should not be required at an ISFSI, but should be a choice of the utility. Recorded information could be helpful in evaluating the facility after the earthquake, but it is not related to the safe operation of the facility. Visual inspection could ascertain the safety of the facility.
- D. Use of the following Regulatory Guides for applicable portions of an ISFSI is proper.

1.10	3.3
1.31	3.27
1.55	B-81

PROPOSED RULE PR-72(43FR 46309) (35)

NORTH SHORE COALITION FOR SAFE ENERGY P. O. BOX 18 GREAT NECK, N. Y. 11021

COMMENTS ON PROPOSED REGULATION 10 CFR PART 72: LICENSING REQUIREMENTS OF STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI

The North Shore Coalition for Safe Energy represents concerned individuals and community organizations on the north shere of Long Island. We are strongly oppesed to the concept of independent spent fuel storage installations, since this would be a de-facte acceptance of the continued production of nuclear wastes without an acceptable solution for their permanent disposal in sight.

Since the same types of protective barriers that are necessary for safe permanent dispesal of nuclear wastes would not be required for temporary storage in an ISFSI, the enermous hazards of such facilities to public safety and health are unacceptable. Besides this unconscionable risk factor, there are the risks of accident, sabetage and greater exposure to radiation from additional transportation and handling of waste (with the creation of new waste caused by contamination of equipment and sites) — all of which increase in geometric progression.

In spite of "quality controls" and Federal regulations, human and mechanical fallibility have resulted in numerous infractions of safety requirements at commercial nuclear facilities, along with "incidents" and accidents, and there is no reason to believe that this would not be true of ISFSIS. Increased spread of radioactivity to workers and the public means increased contamination of the human genetic pool. Bince any amount of ionizing radiation can cause cancer, leukemia and genetic defects, setting "acceptable" dose limits of radiation exposure on or off an ISFSI site during normal or abnormal operations is meaningless. The use of the phrase "as low as reasonably achievable" is another instance of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's refusal to take seriously its public mandats for nuclear safety. The so-called benefits of ISFSIs accrue only to the licensees and the nuclear industry, while the workers and the public are being asked to sustain the costs in life, health and suffering to this and all future generations.

Due to the reasons stated above, we do not concur with the proposed regulation of the N.R.C. for licensing of independent spent fuel storage installations.

ORGNA

Miriam Goodman Chairperson

L. 115







DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

BUREAU OF RADIOLOGICAL HEALTH

P. O. Box 2063 Harrisburg, Pa. 17120 December 26, 1978

Tel: 717 787-3720 787-3479 787-2163

DOCKET HUABER DE 43FR 46309) PUTTIPOSED RULE

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Sir:

The Pennsylvania Bureau of Radiation Protection appreciates this opportunity to comment on the proposed 10 CFR Part 72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) ", as announced in the Federal Register, Volume 43, No. 194 - Friday, October 6, 1978. The proposed regulations are generally reasonable and should prove effective in protecting the public's health and safety from independent spent fuel storage installations. We do, however, offer the following comments for your consideration.

The regulations do not appear to directly address the problem of spent fuel transportation which would be associated with an ISFSI. We recognize that this area has been extensively addressed in other NRC generic proceedings, however, there may be interfacing aspects which need to be further considered in these regulations. Specific examples might include siting considerations which take into account transportation corridors and restraints, or further consideration of transportation accidents using site specific parameters.

Price-Anderson liability coverage should be made available to the licensee of an ISFSI due to the fact that a catastrophic accident could result in extensive damage to public property which would not be covered by any other liability insurance.

We trust that our comments will be helpful in developing the final regulations for Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installations.

Sincerely yours,

- troma, mi Lerus

Thomas M. Gerusky, Director Bureau of Radiation Protection

TMG:WPD:db

Acknowledged by cord 1/15 R-83

MIDDLE SOUTH SERVICES, INC./BOX 61000/NEW ORLEANS, LA. 70161/(504) 529-5262

D. CLARK GIBBS

DIRECTOR - NUCLEAR ACTIVITIES RULE PR-72(43FR 46309) (37

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Gentlemen:

Middle South Services has reviewed the proposed 10CFR72 and, in general, is of the opinion that it should favorably contribute to the task electric utilities face regarding storage of spent fuel pending the development of a commercial reprocessing industry. In particular, we agree with the proposed seismic approach and site boundary limits and are encouraged by the prospect of single tep licensing and the observation that, for this case, the cooling system need not be designed to withstand the extremes of natural phenomena.

Notwithstanding the above, we feel that there are four areas in which the document is deficient and should be improved upon:

- 1. Section 72.15(12)(v) This section specifies that the Safety Analysis Report should contain "A description of the measures taken to control the quantities of radioactive wastes for offsite disposal to as low as reasonably achievable levels." This could be speciously construed to apply to the HLW contained in the spent fuel elements themselves. To avoid this possibility, we suggest inserting "other than spent fuel" after the word "wastes."
- 2. Section 72.15(13) This section calls for conservative analyses of the potential dose to an individual offsite from accidents or natural phenomenon which result in criticality and the loss of water for water pool type installations. We believe that these analyses are unnecessary and inappropriate and will lead to great difficulties in the design of such a facility. We suggest that the regulatory position adopted in Regulatory Guide 1.25 is sufficient for the establishment of the design basis event for an ISFSI.

115

B-84

SERVING: MICOLE SOUTH UTILITIES, INC . ARKANSAS POWER & LIGHT COMPANY . ARKANSAS-MISSOURI POWER COMPANY

. LOUISIANA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY . MISSISSIPPI POWER & LIGHT COMPANY . NEW ORLEANS PUBLIC SERVICE INC.



Secretary of the Commission Page 2 of 2 December 28, 1978

- Section 72.32 There is no basis for a 20 year limit. If a reactor pool is licensed for 40 years, an ISFSI should also be licensable for 40 years.
- 4. Section 72.71(10) The control room should not necessarily be located in the spent fuel area. It should be permitted to be in a separate building. Where an ISFSI is located on a reactor site, the reactor control room could be utilized. For normal operations, local control would be sufficient.

Sincerely,

P. and fill

D. Clark Gibbs

DCG:GEW:mw

File: 041-01 094-60

cc: Messrs. D. B. Lester

L. F. Dale

D. A. Rueter

J. F. Vogt, Jr.

C. K. Mallory



Bechtel National, Inc.

Engineers - Constructors



Fifty Beale Street San Francisco, California Mail Address: P. O. Box 3965, San Francisco, CA 94119

December 28, 1978

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Subject: Proposed Licensing Requirements 10 CFR Part 72, Storage of Spent Fuel in an Indeper int Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)



Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the subject proposed licensing rule as published in the Federal Register, Volume 43, No. 195 - Friday, October 6, 1978, pages 46309 through 46321. This document has been reviewed by members of Bechtel's technical staff and our consolidated comments are submitted herewith.

We are encouraged by the recognition in the proposed licensing rule of the inherent low-risk characteristics of spent fuel storage installations, in particular those storing fuel which has undergone at least one year's decay since reactor shutdown. It is important, therefore, that this position be consistently represented by the language of the Regulation.

Our specific comments on the proposed licensing rule, Attachment 1 to this letter, identify certain statements within the document which, in our opinion, are somewhat ambiguous and require additional clarification. As in the case of precedent NRC regulations, we understand there will be Regulatory Guides specific to 10 CFR Part 72. In our review and preparation of comments on the proposed licensing rule, we have assumed that the forthcoming Regulatory Guides will include the additional specificity required as part of the interpretation of the licensing requirements.

With regard to the question of whether the Commission should exercise its discretionary authority under the Price-Anderson Act to prescribe financial protection and public liability responsibility requirements, we wish to reserve comment to a later date. We understand that public comment on these matters will be solicited by the NRC in the near future.

reads land by card. 145

Secretary of the Commission December 28, 1978 Page Two

We trust that the comments presented herein will be given serious consideration in the Commission's finalization and adoption of 10 CFR Part 72.

Very truly yours, Joune Jamy KU

Ashton J. O'Donnell Vice President

AJO'D:nc Attachment

SPECIFIC COMMENTS ON NRC-PROPOSED LICENSING REQUIREMENTS 10 CFR PART 72

Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) as published in Federal Register, Vol. 43, No. 195 - Friday, October 6, 1978.

Supplementary Information

This introduction to the proposed rule sets forth a very reasonable approach to the licensing of an ISFSI. However, the specific language in certain sections of actual proposed rules do not carry out the intent expressed and "Supplementary Information". Some of these inconsistencies are identified in the following comments.

Single license - The statement is made that the license will be "reevaluated" by NRC prior to receipt of spent fuel at an ISFSI. We assume that the reevaluation process will be limited to a "review" of those licensing conditions directly related to the physical facility as constructed and will not require a complete "reevaluation" of the license application. If this is the intent, we suggest that this point be clarified.

Dry storage - This regulation is intended to cover dry as well as pool storage of spent fuel. The body of the document, however, does not address any of the aspects of dry storage requirements. For instance, it is not stated whether or not the safety assessment must consider all degrees of interspersed moderation, including those known to be incredibl Clarification of this and other pertinent dry storage requirements are needed within the regulation. Such clarification would eliminate confusion and go far in promoting dry storage as an economically viable option in storing spent fuel.

Aged fuel - We agree with the concept that "aged fuel ... need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado-generated missiles," and "the cooling system need not be designed to withstand the extremes of natural phenomena"; provided there is an assured source of makeup water and some means of getting it to the storage pool if needed. We suggest the wording of paragraph 72.62 and 72.71(2) of the regulation be modified to recognize the minimal risk associated with the storage of aged fuel and to be consistent with the intent expressed in Supplementary Information statement.

Section 72.3 - Definitions

(g) Controlled area - This regulation introduces the term "controlled area" without a clear definition of its relationship with "off-site" or the extent of the permissible activities within. It is inconsistent with 10 CFR Part 20, to which area does limits must be referenced. We recommend that this definition be removed and replaced with the term "restricted area" as used in 10 CFR Part 20. The text should also be changed to reflect the meanings implied by this new definition.

Off-site (not defined) - A definition explicitly defining "off-site" should be included. We suggest the wording "'off-site' is all areas outside of the ISFSI restricted area." (k) Neighboring area - The extent of this area should be more specifically defined. We suggest a definition similar to that given for "low population zone" in 10 CFR Part 100.

(o) Site - Replacement of "controlled area" with the term "restricted area" would require the second sentence to be changed to "The site includes the restricted area."

(s) Structures, systems and components important to safety - The definition for this term is too broad and as stated encompasses functions which are not included in the traditional definition set forth in other NRC regulations. We recommend that the definition be worded, "'Structures, systems and components important to safety' means those items that provide reasonable assurance that the spent fuel can be received, handled and stored without undue risk to the health and safety of the public." (draft language in proposed NRC regulation 10 CFR Part 60)

Section 72.15 - Contents of application: technical information

Paragraph (4) - The applicant is required to assess the risk to public health resulting from operation of the facility. The use of the word "risk" implies that some sort of probability-consequence analysis is required. This paragraph should be reworded to read "...with the objective of assessing the impact on public health and safety ...".

Paragraph (13) - This paragraph requires that doses be analyzed out to 24 hours following the event, whereas the dose limit for accidental exposure specified in Section 72.67 paragraph (b) is 'ased on a two-hour limit. The time interval for the analysis and the dose limit should be consistent and justifiable.

Section 72.33 - License conditions

Paragraph (b)(4) design features - At the end of this paragraph, the reference should be to paragraph (b), not (c).

Section 72.41 - Revocation, suspension and modification of licenses

Paragraph (b) - There are many NRC regulations having no relationship to the licensing of an ISFSI; therefore, the last sentence of this paragraph should be changed to "...or any applicable regulation, license or order of the Commission."

Section 72.42 - Backfitting

The proposed discretional authority which would permit the NRC to made decisions regarding backfitting lacks specific guidance and could result in excessive ratcheting by the Commission. We suggest that the backfitting rule set forth in 10 CFR 50.109 be used in order to provide more definitive guidance and also to be consistent with other NRC regulations.

Section 72.51 - Material balance, inventory, and records requirements for stored materials

Paragraph (b) - The requirement for "...a physical inventory of all spent fuel in storage at intervals not to exceed 12 months ..."could be interpreted to mean the handling of each fuel element for physical inventory verification which would increase the potential for accidents. We recommend that the requirement be further defined to indicate the acceptability of inventorying by such means as statistical sampling.

Section 72.61 - General criteria

Paragraph (c) - This paragraph and Section 72.64 paragraphs (a) and (c) require that the effects of the ISFSI on people in the region be examined and that effects which would otherwise be unacceptable shall be compensated for by the ISFSI design. As such, the proposed regulation does not give any guidance as to what is acceptable and what is not. Specific guidance should be provided in the regulations to avoid confusion in the licensing process and to provide firm guidance to the applicant. Unacceptable effects should be defined in terms of radiological dose limits.

Section 72.65 - Criteria for regional distribution of population

Paragraph (d) - An evaluation of the potential for adverse consequences to people within the neighboring area is required. The definition for neighboring area is the area considered with respect to the possibility of implementing contingency measures. A more specific definition should be provided. (See comment regarding Section 72.3 Definitions - (k) Neighboring area.)

Section 72.66 - Criteria for defining acceptable seismic characteristics

Paragraph (c) - ISFSI designs for dry storage should be evaluated to the same seismic criteria as for water basin-type designs.

Section 72.67 - Criteria for defining potential radiological consequences

Paragraph (a) - Consideration should be given to the possibility of combined dose from multinuclear facilities. We suggest this paragraph be rephrased to be consistent with 40 CFR Part 190.

Paragraph (b) - The regulation should be clarified to indicate that the "5 Rem in 2 hours" limit applies to the whole body, and additional limits for other body organs should be specified. (Also see comment on Section 72.15 paragraph (13).)

Section 72.71 - General design criteria

Paragraph (2) - Protection against environmental conditions and natural phenomena

Subparagraph (ii) - The phrase "appropriate combinations" cannot be defined in realistic terms. We suggest deletion of (B).

Subparagraph (iii) - This requirement needs to be clarified. We assume the intent is to require measuring devices such as accelerometers, wind and rain gauges.

Subparagraph (iv) - The potential for the transport of radioactive materials to man can be reduced by design. It cannot, however, be completely precluded. The paragraph should be reworded to read: "... measures must be taken to reduce the potential for transport of radioactive materials to man and the environs through this pathway."

Paragraph (3) - Protection against fires and explosions - The requirement that "structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed and located so as to continue to perform their safety function effectively under fire and explosion exposure conditions" is excessive, especially if the systems or components are in the immediate area of the fire. The wording contained in GDC 3 of 10 CFR 50, Appendix A, would be more appropriate. It is recommended that the wording in the proposed regulation be changed to read: "Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed and located to minimize, consistent with other safety requirements, the probability and effect of fires and explosions."

Paragraph (7) - Emergency capability - We suggest for clarity the second sentence be changed to read "The design shall ensure capability of maintaining the safety functions during an accident, as necessary, of onsite facilities

Paragraph (8) - Confinement barriers and systems

Subparagraph (ii) - Because of the inert nature of an ISFSI, a single failure of a system should be explicitly limited to a single active failure. (This comment also applies to paragraph (11), subparagraph (i).) We also suggest deletion of the sentence starting with "Drains, ..." as the previous sentence is sufficiently inclusive.

Paragraph (17) - Effluent control - We recommend that the word "minimize" be changed to "control," and the phrase, "... and under accident conditions." be deleted. The concept of ALARA should not be imposed on accident releases. The application of the ALARA concept to accident releases could impose excessive design requirements and lead to confusion in the licensing process.

Paragraph (19) - Waste treatment - We suggest deletion of "interim storage and ultimate final" from the second sentence.

Paragraph (20) - Decommissioning - We interpret the phrase "... minimize the quantity of radioactive wastes ... at the time the facility is decommissioned," to mean that the design should include features to minimize the accumulation of materials and equipment which cannot be adequately decontaminated (e.g., pool liners should prevent the concrete from becoming contaminated). We suggest that the word "reduce" be used in place of "minimize" and that the paragraph be expanded to indicate that this design objective should be consistent with safety considerations and functional requirements for the ISFSI.

MISSISSIPPI POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Helping Build Mississippi P. O. BOX 1640, JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 39205

DONALD C. LUTKEN PLACHOSED RULE 11-72 (43FR46309) 39 December 29, 1978

JAN 1 2 1979

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

RE: Proposed Licensing Requirements for Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation, 10 CFR Part 72

110

Gentlemen:

On October 6, 1978, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) published in the <u>Federal Register</u>, 43 F.R. 46309, proposed licensing requirements, 10 CFR Part 72, for storage of spent nuclear fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (hereinafter called an Away-From-Reactor (AFR) storage installation). These proposed regulations contain provisions for the siting, general design criteria, and certain operational aspects of an AFR storage installation, as well as general provisions relating to the licensing of such facilities. Because these proposed regulations could have a significant impact on future operations of a nuclear power plant under construction by Mississippi Power & Light Company (MP&L) and on whether MP&L will plan to build additional nuclear power plants in the future, we request that you consider our comments, which follow, on the proposed regulations.

MP&L is an electric utility serving customers in 45 counties of Western Mississippi. It is a member of Middle South Utilities, Inc., a public utility holding company, along with four other operating utilities in the states of Louisiana and Arkansas. MP&L is presently constructing the Grand Gulf Nuclear Station, a two-unit, nuclear power plant, with an expected nominal capacity upon completion for each unit of 1250 MW, which will supply electricity to the operating utilities in the Middle South System. The units are boiling water reactors with an estimated life of 40 years each and are being constructed near Port Gibson, Mississippi. Unit No. 1 is expected to begin commercial operation in 1981 and Unit No. 2 in 1984.



Secretary of the Commission December 29, 1978 Page Two

7

In 1971, the decision was made by the President of the United States to defer indefinitely the reprocessing of spent nuclear fuel elements. As a result of this decision, spent fuel from commercial nuclear reactors will now have to be stored in temporary facilities until permanent storage can be arranged. However, nuclear reactor sites were not designed for intermediate term storage of spent fuel elements, and there is a critical shortage of such storage space in the United States. MP&L anticipates that by 1993, the Grand Gulf Nuclear Station will no longer have adequate storage space for spent nuclear fuel. At that time, either MP&L must have facilities available away from the reactor to store its spent fuel or it could be forced to shut down because of inadequate storage facilities. Other utilities in the Middle South System will run out of adequate storage space for spent nuclear fuel even sooner. Therefore, MP&L has a vital interest in the adoption of these regulations and in their reasonable implementation.

The lead time to license and construct an AFR storage installation is estimated to be five years. This time could even be longer in light of possible uncertainties surrounding the financing and location of such a facility. Therefore, it is imperative that the NRC implement realistic licensing regulations for AFR storage installations consistent with the technical state of the art in the nuclear industry, protection of the health and safety of the public, and the serious time restraints confronting the utility industry to accommodate spent fuel. Otherwise, operation and future construction of nuclear power plants in the United States could be greatly curtailed within the next few years because of the unavailability of adequate and reliable temporary storage facilities for spent nuclear fuel.

Accordingly, MP&L supports the NRC in its recognition of the need for a single license and a single safety analysis report as early as practical in the licensing process of an AFR storage installation. However, to provide utilities with the certainty needed for them to undertake construction and financing of such a facility, the regulations need to be more specific in certain areas including the following:

> 1. Section 72.12 - This Section should be expanded to specifically state that in situations where an applicant is a utility licensed to operate a nuclear power plant and is proposing to build an

Secretary of the Commission December 29, 1978 Page Three

> AFR storage installation near or at an operating reactor site, the NRC will take into consideration the Environmental Report, the Safety Analysis Report, and other information contained in previous NRC applications, including information as to environmental site conditions, financial qualification of the applicant, technical qualifications of the applicant, security, and site safety analysis, and will require only such additional information as is necessary to protect the health and safety of the public in evaluating the application to construct an AFR storage installation.

2. Section 72.31(a) - With regard to the Commission updating a license prior to receipt of spent fuel at an installation, the regulation should provide that the NRC review will be limited to license conditions directly related to the installation "as constructed" and will not be a complete reevaluation of the entire license application and that material changes will be made to a license only in the event significant factors have come to light since a license was issued which could endanger the health and safety of the public. Before financial institutions will finance the construction of an AFR storage installation and before utilities will undertake such a construction program, they must have assurance that barring significant changed conditions at a facility since the time a license was granted, a facility will not have to be significantly modified or reconstructed after its completion and that operations will not be unduly delayed.

3. Section 72.32 - The maximum period of time for which a license may be issued should be 40 years instead of 20 years. A 40 year time period would more nearly reflect the estimated life of a AFR storage installation and would minimize unnecessary license renewals.

4. Section 72.71(20) - The subsection on decommissioning of an AFR storage installation should be more specific. In particular, the subsection should provide that design criteria

Secretary of the Commission December 29, 1978 Page Four

> relating to reducing the quantity and facilitating the removal of radioactive wastes and equipment at the time of permanent decommissioning of the installation must be established consistent with the safety and functional aspects of the installation. Furthermore, the word "minimize" with reference to the quantity of radioactive wastes in the installation at the time of decommissioning is ambiguous and should be replaced by the word "reduce."

Subpart E and Subpart F - In the Pre-5. amble to the proposed regulations, the NRC recognizes that the potential risk of an accident affecting the health and safety of the public associated with storage of aged spent fuel is small due to the inherent inert nature of aged spent fuel and that therefore, aged spent fuel does not need "a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles" and "the emergency water supply system need not be permanently installed, provided it is available within the time span needed". However, the minimal risk associated with the storage of spent nuclear fuel is not adequately reflected in the body of the regulations, and in particular, Subpart E and Subpart F of the regulation should be modified to specifically incorporate this concept. This is essential to avoid unnecessary delays in the licensing of AFR storage ins' lations and uncertainties in the construction and . ncing of such facilities.

6. The regulations should specifically address aspects of dry storage of spent fuel. Under some circumstances, dry storage would be an economically viable option in storing spent fuel, and this option should be specifically addressed in the regulation stating under what circumstances dry storage would be allowed and discussing general design criteria for a dry storage installation.

7. To encourage AFR storage installations to be constructed by private industry and financed by private lending institutions, the NRC should exercise its discretionary authority to extend the

Secretary of the Commission December 29, 1978 Page Five

protection of the Price-Anderson Act to licensees of AFR storage installations.

In conclusion, MP&L supports the NRC in its efforts to license AFR storage installations in a timely and reasonable manner. The NRC recognized in its recently published Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Reactor Fiel that there is a need for independent spent fuel storage installations in the United States to accommodate accumulating spent nuclear fuel from commercial nuclear power plants. To meet this need, utilities in the United States must begin the licensing process for AFR storage installations within the next year. Therefore, MP&L strongly urges the NRC to change the proposed regulations to avoid duplication of information contained in previous license applications of a utility, to remove uncertainties relating to the updating of the license and Safety Analysis Report prior to the receipt of fuel at a facility, and to impose protection requirements on applicants no more stringent than can be reasonably justified in light of the recognized minimal risk associated with the storage of aged spent nuclear fuel.

If you would like any additional information on the impact of these proposed licensing requirements on MP&L, please let us know.

cerely.

Law Offices of

VALORE, MCALLISTER, ARDN & WESTHORELAND



Gentlemen:

Attached are comments by the Township of Lower Alloways Creek to the proposed regulations for Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation.

The comments are divided into Part I - comments prepared by the technical staff of Valore, McAllister, Aron & Westmoreland, Special Nuclear Counsel for the Township of Lower Alloways Creek; and Part II comments prepared by Dr. John R. Lamarsh, Technical Consultant for the Township of Lower Alloways Creek. .

A technical representative from Lower Alloways Creek Township would be willing to attend any work sessions which are scheduled in preparing the proposed regulations for ISFSI's.

Please keep our office advised as to all developments in respect to the NRC's plans for regulations for ISFSI's,

Very truly yours, CARL VALORE.

1/15 بدينة وأعنى مانينا ال

January 2, 1979

TO: Secretary of the Commission Nuclear Regulatory Commiss Washington, D.C., 20555 Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

- FROM: CARL VALORE, JR. VALORE, MCALLISTER, ARON & WESTMORELAND, P.A. 535 Tilton Road, Northfield, N.J., 08225 Special Nuclear Counsel for the Township of Lower Alloways Creek, Salem County, New Jersey
- RE: COMMENTS OF TOWNSHIP OF LOWER ALLOWAYS CREEK TO PROPOSED REGULATIONS FOR INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI)

PART I:

PART

	Comments	on Supplementary Information	e 1
	Comments (Section	on Purpose, Scope and Definitions 72.1-3) Pag	e 1
	Comments (Section	on Specific Exemption 72.8) Pag	e 3
	Comments (Section	on Application Fees 72.11)	e 3
	Comments (Section	on Duration of License 72.32)	e 4
	Comments	on Siting and Design Criteria	e 5
	Comments (Section	on Decommissiong 72.71 - 20)	е б
	Comments	on Criticality and Dose	e 6
144	I:		
	Comments	of Dr. John R. Lamarsh	e 8

COMMENTS OF TOWNSHIP OF LOWER ALLOWAYS CREEK TO PROPOSED REGULATIONS FOR INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI)

PART I

I. COMMENTS ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

- A. No rules should be promulgated until docketing of the final generic environmental impact statement on handling and storage of spent light water reactor fuel.
- B. A total failure to clearly differentiage between temporary storage of spent fuel as part of the nuclear fuel cycle and the permanent storage or disposal of spent fuel as hazardous waste.
- C. The rules should not be adopted until the Interagency Nuclear Waste Management Task Force established by the President on March 15, 1978, has made its recommendations on a comprehensive Federal Program for the long term management of nuclear waste.
- D. Provisions for financial protection and responsibility to the public should be detailed and are within the authority of the Price Anderson Act. The Commission has discretionary authority to impose financial protection requirements.
- II. PURPOSE, SCOPE AND DEFINITIONS
 (Section 72.1 3)
 - A. The failure to include a definition of temporary storage as differentiated from permanent storage is arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable and represents administrative neglect of responsibility for preparing specific regulations for the licensing of temporary storage of spent fuel. Normal cool down time should be considered as criterion for a temporary storage.
 - 1. The interagency confusion is manifested by the fact that the Environmental Protection Agency in its criteria for radioactive waste issued November 15, 1978 states: "The NRC is preparing specific regulations for licensing of storage and waste disposal facilities." (emphasis supplied) Federal Register, Vol. 43 #221,

Page 1

B-99

at page 53262, November 15, 1978.

2. The proposed NRC regulations state:

"No license under this part will be granted for the later permanent stora or <u>disposal of spent fuel</u>." (emphasis supplied) Federal Register, Vol. 43, #195 at page 46311, October 6, 1978

The lack of consistency in interagency verbage is primarily responsible for judicial and legislative confusion as to the primary and overlapping responsibilities of the Department of Energy, the Environmental Protection Agency and the Nuclear Regulatory Commission in respect to management of radioactive waste.

The Township of Lower Alloways Creek contends that the NRC has no judicial powers under the Atomic Energy Act to provide for the permanent storage or disposal of spent fuel as a hazardous radioactive waste product.

- The following definitions should also be included within the regulations:
 - Acute(radiation exposure) A term used in reference to a single large lose of ionizing radiation or to a series of substantial doses in a short interval of time, as differentiated from chronic exposure;
 - Barrier Any medium which stops or significatly retards the movement of emplaced radioactive materials, such as a natural geologic medium or a container or solidified waste matrix engineered by humans;
 - Chronic (radiation exposure) Continuous or intermittent exposure to small amounts of ionizing radiation over a long period of time, as differentiated from acute exposure;
 - Difuse (waste containing naturally occurring radioactivity) - Waste material containing naturally occurring radioactivity in concentrations similar to that of many natural ore bodies;
 - 5. Discrete (waste containing naturally occurring radioactivity) - Waste material containing naturally occurring radioactivity which is substantially concentrated relative to that of the virgin natural material;
 - Disposal The placement of radioactive waste with no intent of recovery;

8-100 Page 2

в.

- General environment The total terrestrial, atmosphere, and aquatic environments outside sites in which any radioactive waste management activities are conducted;
- Institutional control Activities, devices, and combinations thereof which involve the performance of functions by human beings to limit contact between the waste and humans or the environment;
- Isolation The placement of radioactive waste so that contact between the waste and humans or the environment will be highly unlikely for a chosen period of time;
- 10. Monitoring Measuring the quantity and type of discharges or migration or radioactive wastes from a waste management facility, or measuring changes in physical, chemical, or biological characteristics of the site and the surrounding site area;
- Retrievability A designed capability to recover waste from an emplaced location within a specified time;
- Risk A general concept encompassing both the probability and the severity of adverse effects;
- Site Any location under institutional control which has a boundary inside which radioactive wastes are handled, stored, or disposed of;
- Storage Retention of radioactive waste at facilities with designed provisions for recovery within a defined time;
- Weste management The range of activities for dealing with radioactive waste, including preparation, storage, and disposal.
- C. The definition of Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installatic should have added to it the full sentence - "an ISFSI shall be only for the temporary storage of spent fuel and under no circumstances for the permanent storage and disposal of spent fuel."
- III. The specific exemption provision (Section 72.8) fails to provide any reasonable administrative guidelines for procedures.
- IV. APPLICATION FEES: (Section 72.11)
 - A. The applicant should provide a sum of money to the local unit of government in which the "site" is located that equals the cost of preparing environmental reports to be submitted to the regulatory agencies as certified by the applicant. This sum of money should be in

addition to the fees provided in Section 72.11 (d) and should be paid to the NRC. The funds so collected by the NRC should be disbursed exclusively and only to the local unit of government for the following purposes:

- To further implement the national environmental program as outlined in NEPA;
- To provide full and complete information and disclosure concerning the environmental effects of major federal actions so that the federal agency responsible for issuing an EIS can make informed decisions in doing so;
- 3. To eliminate the applicant oriented and unilateral method of supplying information to federal agencies for the purpose of evaluating the environmental effects of a major federal action that exists at the present time;
- To provide for the proper consideration of the public interest;
- To provide for and utilize effective participation by effected local and regional units of government as representative of the public interest.
- To localize and organize informational input while maintaining sole central federal decision making authority;
- To place the financial burden of the increased study upon those who seek to benefit from the infringement upon our natural environment.
- V. DURATION OF LICENSE: (Section 72.32)
 - A. The provision for a 20 year license which may be renewed creates a de factor permanent spent fuel and disposal facility. A 20 year license renewable for an indefinite term is in every sense of the term a permanent spent fuel storage and disposal facility. The term of 20 years and indefinite renewal is repugnant to the purpose in Section 72.1.
 - B. The NRC has no jurisdiction to license the storage of hazardous radioactive waste for an indefinite period of time. Section 72.32 would permit the NRC to assume this jurisdiction.

VI. SITING AND DESIGN CRITERIA

- A. The proposed regulations do not address the question of residual risks. There is a failure to comply with the safety standards in the Atomic Energy Act.
- B. The regulations do not contain any guidance concerning the type or magnitude of postulated accidents to be considered in evaluating sites and designs.
- C. The proposed regulations do not indicate the relevance of accident probabilities.
- D. A recent ALAB decision requires on applicant for a manufacturing license for a floating nuclear power plant to study Class 9 accidents. For the same reasons expressed in that opinion, Class 9 accidents should be studied at ISFSI sites, if those sites are in close proximity to nuclear power generating facilities.
- E. Under Section 72.31, a license should not be issued if a properly conducted voter's referendum in the locality of the "site" where the ISFSI is located rejects location of the facility at the site. Regulations for establishing the question on the ballot should be prepared by the NRC. This would enhance the nature and extent of public participation in the entire process
- F. Tables S-3 and S-4 in 10 CFR, part 51 may require amendments to indicate the addition of a new element and new transportation link in the nuclear fuel cycle the addition of ISFSI and the transportation of spent fuel from nuclear power reactors to an ISFSI.
- G. The regulations should make clear that interested partie are permitted to intervene and that hearings should be held on the licensing procedure.
- H. An ISFSI should not be permitted to be located in the same community where any nuclear generating facility is located:
 - Multiple accidents could entirely destroy the community's infrastructure;
 - 2. Risks are compounded;
 - 3. The regulatory effort of the NRC should be to formulate guidelines and regulations on transfer of spent fuel from cooling pools and temporary storage facilities to permanent waste storage and disposal facilities. These latter facilities should be in areas of remote isolation and developed pursuant to a regional plan by the Department of Energy, the Environmental Protection Agency or the Interagency Nuclear Waste Management Task Force.

- Under no circumstances should an ISFSI be located over or near an aquifer.
- VII. The decommissioning (Section 72.71 20) fails to provide sufficient guidelines and procedures - this is especially true in respect to public participation.

VIII. COMMENTS ON CRITICALITY AND DOSE

- A. The Regulations should provide for procedures to make certain that:
 - 1. Total mass is less than critical mass;
 - 2. Subcritical geometry is maintained;
 - Concentration of fissile material in solution is below a specified level;
 - Sufficient poisons (neutron absorbers) are in with the fissile materials;
 - a) A study should be done to determine if a large mass of fissile materials under accident conditions could go supercritical (leading to a nuclear explosion) or would it first go critical and dismantle itself before supercriticality is reached?
- B. The certification of the licensee's operators to the effect that they are adequately trained should be done by a separate group to avoid "expediant" certification of inadequately trained personnel. Independent review of the training might be considered.
- C. Unreviewed safety questions should be determined by the Commission before an experiment or test not be the licensee after completion of an experiment or test.
- D. The record keeping and reporting procedures should be suppelemented by an electronic waste transfer tracking system (ESTTS). Such a system should be maintained at a separate central (computer) facility for all TSFSI's. The facility should track the ISFSI system from initiation of waste transfer (spent fuel) from a nuclear reactor or ISFSI to acceptance at an ISFSI or other depository. The facility could thus maintain a constantly updated record of fissile material inventories at each ISFSI. This could be of use in the event of record loss or emergencies and certainly adds an additional control mechanism over the location and movement of spent fuel for the entire system.
- E. An environmental (as well as effluent) monitoring program should be instituted. This should include preoperational characterization of all necessary monitoring stations for at least one (preferably two) years prior to acceptance of spent fuel at the ISFSI.

- F. Unannounced inspections by the Commission of an ISFSI should be mandated.
- G. Any change in systems or procedures as specified to the Commission in writing, should be submitted to the Commission for review before the change is undertaken.
- H. If an ISFSI were co-located with a power reactor, it would seem that:
 - An accident due to the occurence of a natural phenomen is more likely;
 - 2. An accident with the reactor could adversely affect the ISFSI (even close it down) or a problem with the ISFSI could adversely affect the reactor.

PART II

COMMENTS OF DR. JOHN R. LAMARSH TECHNICAL CONSULTANT FOR TOWNSHIP OF LOWER ALLOWAYS CREEK

The Township of lower Alloways Creek New Jersey hereby respectfully submits the following comments regarding the proposed new Part 72, Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI).

General Comments

1. The Township is the site of Salem Units 1 and 2 and Hope Creek Units 1 and 2, which, when completed, will represent a total of over 4000 MWe in nuclear generating capacity. The residents of the Township view with considerable concern the prospect of increasing amounts of spent fuel from these plants being stored on site in expanded and crowded spent fuel pools.

2. For this reason, the Township welcomes the action of the Commission in developing regulations for the licensing of away from reactor ISFSI's. In the view of the Township such facilities should be built and licensed without delay to relieve this community and other similar communities of the burden of excessive amounts of spent fuel stored in facilities not specifically designed for that purpose.

> B-106 Page 8

Specific Comments

1. The Township does not believe that the provisions of paragraph 72.18(b) are sufficiently specific to guarantee that the cwner of an ISFSI will indeed decommission the facility in a proper manner. To ensure proper decommissioning, it must be established on a continuing basis that the applicant has the financial capacity to decommission his facility throughout the life of the facility, not merely at the time of his application for a license.

To this end, the applicant should also be required to establish a Decommissioning Capital Reserve Fund, segregated and subject to audit, which will accumulate by annual installments over the expected life of the facility to an amount sufficient to carry out the decommissioning based upon cost estimates made and revised at no more than five year intervals over the life of the facility.

2. The specification of "controlled area" and "neighboring area," defined in paragraph 72.3(g) and (k), is not entirely clear in paragraph 72.67(a) and (b). If it is the intent that the radii of these areas be calculated from 72.67(s) and (b), then additional guidance will be necessary as to the meaning of "during normal operations and anticipated occurrences" and "under accident conditions." If the issuance of either a Regulatory Guide

Page 9

B-107

or a report comparable to TID-14844 on this subject is contemplated, it would be helpful to say so.

Also, in paragraph 72.67(a) and (b), it is not clear whether the reference is to the dose accumulated over one year or 2 hours, respectively, or to the <u>dose commitment</u> accumulated over the same periods. Presumably, the latter is the case, but the intent of the paragraph could be made clearer. This confusion, incidentally, also pervades lOCFR 100.

In any event, the word "exposure" in 72.67(b) should be changed to "dose," since rem is a unit of dose, not exposure.

3. The Township shares the concorn of the Commission over the possibility of accidental criticality in an ISFSI as evidenced by Criteria (12) and (13) of paragraph 72.71. While the regulations as now written require continued surveillance of the condition of whatever neutron absorbing materials are in the facility, there is no requirement that an actual measurement of the multiplication factor of the system be carried at any time over the entire life of the facility.

It seems reasonable to the Township that the owner/ operator of an ISFSI, from time to time, should perform 1/M experiments or in some other manner establish or estimate the multiplication factor of his facility. In the

B-108

view of the Township, it is not very reassuring to be told in reply to a question regarding the value of k for a particular facility that "we don't know what it is; we have never measured it."



AMERICAN NUCLEAR SOCIETY STANDARDS COMMITTEE 00000 NULE PR- 72 (43 FR 46309)



Headquarters: 555 North Kensington Avenue LaGrange Park, Illinois 60525 USA

January 2

9

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

- From: George E. Heim Chairman, ANS-2.19 Working Group
- Subject: ANS-2.19 Working Group Comments on Proposed Regulation 10CFR Part 72, Storage of Spent Fuel in An Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation, October 1978

The following comments were submitted to me for transmittal to the U.S. NRC from members of the Working Group for ANS-2.19.

- 1. The criteria appear quite nebulous in several places.
- On page 46314(13), dose calculations must be made for loss of water from a pool, but on page 46319, column 3(B) and in ANS-57.7, loss of water is not acceptable and will be prevented by facility design.
- 3. In several sections 72.62, 72.63, 72.64, 72.65 review of the "region" is required for several different reasons. The size of the region is not defined. The area to be examined should vary with the feature or facility of concern. This seems to me to have been handled in ANS-2.19.
- 4. Concerned about the lack anywhere of a definition of the level to which a facility must be decontaminated to be decommissioned. ANS-N300-1975, Design Criteria for Decommissioning of Nuclear Fuel Reprocessing Plants, lacks a definition of the level of radioactivity acceptable for unrestricted use. According to the proposed EPA Criteria for Radioactive Wastes, dated November 15, 1978, once a material has been designated radioactive, there is no level at which its radioactive contant can be considered neglibible. This problem, lack of definition of or lack of acceptance of, a negligible level of radioactivity, is going to be of considerable difficulty to the industry.
- 5. In the "Supplementary information", it is mentioned "Aged spent fuel, having lost the short-lived radionuclides by decay, need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles". Rule 72.71 General Design Criteria - Overall Requirements - (2) Protection against Environmental Conditions and

B-110

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission January 2, 1979 Page Two

Natural Phenomena states -

"(ii) structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25 g), tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lighting, hurricanes, floods, tsunami, and seiches without imparring their capability to perform safety functions."

Here we see a discrepancy between the intent as expressed in the "Supplementary Information" and the regulation which calls for protection against tornadoes. A draft regulatory guide (3.24.3 -5/2/78) goes on to say that the ISFSI should be designed to withstand the effects of the Design Basis Tornado (DBT) defined according to R.G. 1.76.

The ANS Working Groups 2.19 and 57.7 have concluded based on the radiological risk study, that an ISFSI need not be designed to resist the effects of tornadoes.

We recommend that the requirement regarding tornadoes be deleted.

- The extent of site investigation required in Subpart E-Siting Criteria is not compatible with the potentially low radiological risk from ISFSI as expressed throughout the proposed rules.
- 7. The proposed rules (72.66,67) require that all ISFSI be designed for 0.25 g peak horizontal ground acceleration and be sited only in places where the 500-year earthquake acceleration is less than 0.25 g. According to the map prepared by Algermissen and Perkins, the 500-year earthquake acceleration is less than 0.20 g in three-fourths of the continental U.S. It may not be economical to design for 0.25 g (even considering the reduced licensing effort) in places where the 500year earthquake acceleration may be only 0.05 g. Also, for ISFSI located near nuclear power plants in most midwest and Eastern states, the design earthquake of 0.25 g for the ISFSI - a relatively low risk facility - would exceed the SSE for the nuclear power plant. This situation is likely to raise questions in the mind of the public as to the safety of the nuclear power plant. We recommend: the 500-year earthquake acceleration should be selected for the design of ISFSI (see ANS-2.19).
- 8. The "Supplementary Information" states that the imposition of this site restriction (of 0.25 g with a recurrence interval of 500 years) does raise the possibility that a small amount of additional transportation of spent fuel might be necessary to reach an acceptable ISFSI site from a few reactors in the U.S. Some state and local regulations may not permit the transportation of radioactive material across state borders. This should be rer gnized when siting an ISFSI which is to used by several utilities.

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission January 2, 1970 Page Three

- 9. Regardless what ground acceleration is utilized, documentation must be provided to support the proposed acceleration level. We may someday arrive at the point where there is a published map with which we all agree, but at the present, we have no such document. As an alternative, it is suggested the user of 10 CFR Part 72 be encouraged to select a site where the horizontal ground acceleration is 0.25 g or less.
- 10. Since this document would be adopted as a Federal Law, it would appear that requiring an ISFSI to be designed for the ground acceleration of 0.25 g or greater may be too restrictive and may haunt us in the long run. It is suggested the document contain wording to permit the designer to use a lower or higher g value if supporting data are provided.

- Klen

George E. Heim Chairman, ANS-2.19 Working Group

CC: R. V. Bettinger M. D. Weber ANS-2.19 Working Group Members DOE Form AD-10A (12-77) IND UT (HU-HEY

U.S. DEPARTMEN OF ENERGY -72 (43FR 46309)

DATE: JAN 4 1979

REPLY TO ET-76 ATTN OF:

SUBJECT: Proposed Spent Fuel Storage Regulation, 10 CFR Part 72

TO: Russell E. L. Stanford, Fuel Process Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards, Office of Standards Development, NRC

The attached DOE comments are in response to your December memorandum. Note that they range from required changes through observations and noted typographical errors.

As noted in our comment A-1, we are seriously concerned about the proposed regulation on the utilization of existing spent fuel storage facilities (i.e., Barnwell, Morris, West Valley). DOE strongly believes that these existing facilities play an essential role in meeting national spent fuel storage requirements, and will continue to meet critical needs into the middle 1980's. Safe storage has been evidenced at the two licensed and operating facilities (Morris and West Valley). Licensing of the Barnwell fuel storage facility under 10 CFR 70 was completed except for the hearing phase. Therefore, this regulation should neither preclude future use of these facilities nor require substantial facility modifications. This point must be made clear to prevent litigation. Furthermore, we recommend that the presently licensed fuel storage facilities be relicensed under their original regulations when their current license expires.

Francis X. Gavigan, Acting Chief

Safety Section Nuclear Power Development Division

1 Attachment

Idea International 115



Attachment 1

Comments on the Proposed Regulation

10 CFR 72

A. Required Changes

- A-1* (p. 46311, § 72.2) It is stated that "with respect to licenses covering the storage of spent fuel in an ISFSI issued prior to the effective date of this regulation, such licenses will not be renewed unless the operating requirements of this Part 72 are met." DOE strongly believes that existing storage facilities currently play an essential role in meeting national spent fuel storage requirements and will continue to meet critical needs into the mid 1980's. They have provided safe storage and therefore this regulation should neither preclude their future use nor require substantial facility modifications. This point must be made clear to prevent litigation. In addition, explain what is meant by operating requirements. Does this include the earthquake and tornado requirements listed in sub parts E and F?
- A-2 (p. 46312, left, 72.3 (s)) This definition is in conflict with the well-established principles as espoused in 10 CFR 50, Appendix B, where "structures, systems, and components important to safety" are those "that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public." Thus, 72.3(s) needs to be redefined, especially to delete the words following "(3)".
- A-3 (p. 46314, center, 72.18 (a)) and (p. 46316, right, 72.38 (a)) In decommissioning an ISFSI, the owner should not be required to "dismantle and dispose" of the facility but should have the option of mothballing or entombing of the radioactive parts of the facility (see Regulatory Guide 1.86). It should be acceptable to remove the fuel and the radioactive material and to decontaminate the structure and site. The design of an ISFSI would favor this approach (e.g., stainless steel lined pool). To dismantle completely represents an unwarranted expense and also, perhaps, an unacceptable commitment of resources to that action. Thus, "dismantle" and "disposal" should be struck from 72.18 (a) and 72.38 (a).

^{*}The reference on each comment is to the page in the Federal Register, the column on that page, and the selection of 10 CFR 72 to which the comment applies.

- A-4 (p. 46317, right, 72.54) Because a cask may be received but not unloaded and its contents not verified within 10 days, it would not be possible in all cases to submit form NRC-741 within the required 10 days. This section should be modified to add at the end words like, "unloaded, and its identity verified."
- A-5 (p. 46317, right, 72.55 (c)) The words, "or permit the Commission to perform," should be deleted. Only the ISFSI operators would perform tests within the facility, including tests proposed and witnessed by the Commission.
- (p. 46320, left, 72.71 (12)) Significant effort should always A-6 be applied to avoid accidental criticality. However, where the consequences of the criticality are significantly lessened (by the interspersing of shielding as in a water storage pool) and where one of the most significant control measures (the absence of a moderator in a fissile array) is denied the facility operator because water is present, the avoidance of criticality should be assured by guarding against the occurrence of one, rather than two, unlikely changes. This approach is used in the draft ISFSI standard ANS 57.7 in sections 6.10.1.1.4 and 6.10.1.1.5 and should be used in section 72.71 (12). Only one mechanism remains in some compacted at-reactor storage basins currently; namely, the presence of a neutron poison. Favorable geometry (the only other control mechanism listed in 72.71 (13)) was removed in the act of compacting the fuel array. Were the neutron prison to be removed, a criticality might occur. The consequences, however, might be no more significant than those coming from the operation of a low power swimming pool reactor.
- A-7 (p. 46320, right, § 72.81 (a)) It is stated that the security plan "shall demonstrate how the applicant plans to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 73 of this chapter at the proposed installation". However, Part 73 does not, to our knowledge, specify requirements for an ISFSI. Therefore, either this regulation or Part 73 would have to be revised to include ISFSI security requirements.

B. Strongly Recommended Changes

B-1 (p. 46309, right, last paragraph) - It is stated in this paragraph that "Aged spent fuel need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles". However, General Design Criterion (2) (ii) (p. 46319) states "Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of ... tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lightning, hurricanes, floods,

B-115

tsunamis and seiches without impairing their capability to perform safety functions". This apparent discrepancy should be resolved and the General Design Criteria put in proper perspective.

- B-2 (p. 46314, left, 72.15 (a)(13)(111)) Accidents and natural phenomena will not result in a potential dose to an individual off-site because of loss of water for a water pool type installation because this is not considered a credible event. ISFSI's will be designed against a catastrophic, abrupt loss of water. It would be acceptable to show that small losses through a liner, not captured by the liner leak collection system, might migrate through the concrete to the soil. An analysis could then be made of dose as in 72.15 (a)(13)(ii).
- B-3 (p. 46314, left, 72.15 (b)) Annual updating of the SAR is an unwarranted burden, especially for such a low-risk facility as an ISFSI. Safety might better be served by requiring revision of the SAR "upon significant change."
- C. Suggested Changes
- C-1 (p. 46313, left, Table I).
- C-la Change title of table to delete the impression that the full list is required when applying for license; table actually indicates only one thing, specifically the number of copies need/d for compliance with various sections of Part 72.
- C-1b The license application requirements are given in section 72.14, not 72.11.
- C-lc It would appear that footnote 3 should apply to Safeguards Contingency Plan 72.81 (c) as well as to 72.81 (a).
- C-ld From the guidance given in draft Regulatory Guide 3.24.1 it appea that several sections (e.g., 72.15, 72.19, 72.75, and 72.94) are not really individual documents but merely chapters in a document submitted according to 72.14 and called a "License Application." It might be worthwhile considering a change to the table to indicate this. Thus, a full application would contain four documents:

License Application Environmental Report Physical Security Plan Safeguards Contingency Plan

3
C-2 (p. 46319, right, 72.71 (8)(ii) - Because there is no credible mechanism for dropping water level rapidly enough to require prompt local action, and because local alarms should be reserved for events that require prompt local action (e.g., high air activity, criticality without shielding), this section should be changed to delete the local water level alarm requirement. It is suggested that the water level alarm be retained only at the continuously manned location.

D. Items Requiring Clarification

- D-1 There is an apparent contradiction between the SUMMARY statement: "The proposed new regulation specifies procedures and requirements for issuance of licenses to store spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation" and the requirement that the license be issued prior to construction start. Since the SUMMARY implies that the license is for fuel storage, it appears that applicants (particularly DOE) should be able to construct a facility at their own risk if the NEPA process has been complied with, and obtain the license for fuel possession prior to receipt of spent fuel.
- D-2 (p. 46314, center, 72.17 (a)) Does this section require that specific individuals of, for example, the operating staff be named (and their resumes included) at the time of the license application? This is not usually done that far in advance of start of operations (about 4 years).
- D-3 (p. 46314, right, 72.31 (a)(4)) How will the NRC determine that the "operating procedures" are adequate? The SAR usually contains only the operating plan. The detailed operating procedures would not be developed until much later.
- D-4 (p. 46319, center, 72.71 (2)(iii) Clarify the purpose of specifying in the General Design Criteria that the licensee provide the capability for determining intensity of natural phenomena for comparison with design bases. Is a seismograph station and a tornado velocity and pressure measuring station required? Are these to be operated through the lifetime of the ISFSI?
- D-5 (p. 46319, center, 72.71 (3)) Explain what is meant by explosion detection, alarm and suppression systems.
- D-6 (p. 46319, right, 72.71) Explain how the designer can ensure "capability for use, as necessary, of ... offsite facilities and services such as hospitals, fire and police departments, ambulance service, and other emergency agencies."

D-7 (p. 46320, center, 72.71 (19)) - Clarify the last sentence. Does it refer to a typical waste treatment facility for concentrating waste, such as evaporators for radioactive liquid waste streams, or does it refer to <u>all</u> waste? If the latter, does it include items like protective clothing and supplies used in decontamination?

E. Questions

- E-1 (p. 46318, left, 72.56 (b)) What sort of financial report would NRC expect from a DOE installation to satisfy this annual financial reporting requirement?
- E-2 (p. 46318, left, 72.57) (Violations) What is the extent of applicability of this section to DOE and its contractors face legislation enabling NRC to license a DOE storage facility has been obtained?

F. Observations and Comments

- F-1 (p. 46309, right, 8th paragraph) The regulation states that "storage of aged spent fuel under dry storage conditions is also covered by this regulation." Present draft regulatory guides for ISFSI's are based on water basin storage. We believe that NRC should prepare guides for dry storage as well.
- F-2 (p. 46311, center, 72.1) If an ISFSI is to be a temporary storage facility, these sections are not currently worded in a way that would permit shipment out to a reprocessing, permanent storage, or other facility at an alternate location. The last sentence in 72.1 may even be interpreted to prevent shipment out by one definition of the word "disposal".
- F-3 (p. 46312, left, 72.3 (r)) The definition of spent fuel precludes storage of heavy water reactor (e.g., CANDU) fuel. This type of fuel may have to be stored in ISFSI's if the Foreign Spent Fuel Policy is implemented.
- F-4 (p. 46314, center, 72.15 (d)) This section seems to imply that one plan - the physical security plan - is all that is needed. To some extent this 'a correct as is is entitled Physical Security Plan. However, Table I and subsections (a) and (c) in 72.81 indicate that apparently two separate plans are needed - Physical Security and Safeguards Contingency.
- F-5 (p. 46317, center, 72.42) It is acknowledged that backfitting may be 3 desirable action under some circumstances, but it should be required by the Commission only after proposed backfits are

negotiated with the licensee on a cost-benefit or other rational basis.

F-6 (p. 46317, center, 72.51 (b)) - A physical inventory conducted annually or more frequently in 5000 MTHM ISFSI containing 15,000-25,000 fuel assemblies could range anywhere from very costly to impossible if unpacking of the array or visual reconfirmation of fuel serial numbers were required. A reasonable approach to meeting this requirement is represented by the DOE directive 5630.2 where it states that book records supplemented by observation as feasible and physical containment and administrative controls will suffice for highly radioactive material (> 100 rems/hour at one meter from an unshielded surface). A further amplification (from the same source) of permissible practices is: "Radioactive nuclear material in long term storage or in operations which is inaccessible for unique identification or individual piece counting because of radiation levels, should be accounted for based on a principle of containerization where the items are identified, if possible, or (at a minimum) counted at the time the container batch is made up. Containers may be buckets, uniquely identified zones in the fuel storage area, or any other welldefined three dimensional space that will remain unchanged during the inventory period. Containers shall be uniquely identified including serial numbers, dimensions (if applicable), listing of contents and location of grid number. The control of material in containers should pllow the practices for individual items including ine use of such things as TID's, * wherever possible, and control of operations that might lead to unreported changes in the batch content."

- F-7 (p. 46320, left, 72.71 (13)(ii) Verification of poison efficacy within the racks and bundles, once packed, would be very difficult; unpacking of the arrays to permit this verification is not feasible on a periodic basis throughout the life of the storage of fuel. Evaluation of coupons immersed in the same environment, as is now done in reactors, is proposed.
- F-8 (p. 45321, center, 72.93 (a)) Because of current federal restrictions on employer's hiring investigations and practices with regard to potential employee's physical and mental conditions, it may be difficult to meet these requirements in selecting personnel for safety-related activities.

*Tamper Indicating Device.

G. Apparent Typographical Errors

(p. 46311, center, 72.1) - Delete extra "72.1"? (p. 46311, center, 72.2) - "Spent" vice "spend"? (p. 46314, right, 72.31 (a)) - "Update it" vice "updated"? (p. 46315, center, 72.33 (b)(4)) - "(b)" vice "(c)"? (p. 46319, left, footnote) - "40 CFR 190.10" vice "40 CFR 190.11"? (p. 46319, left, 72.66 (b)) - Delete extra "and" in second line?



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

POWER FACILITY EVALUATION COUNCIL STATE OFFICE BUILDING HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06115 TEL (203) 566-5612

GLORIA DIBBLE POND

MUMULE RULE [K-72(43FR46309) (43)

CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONER MIRIAM BUTTER-ORTH STANLEY J. PAC

OWEN L. C. ARE FRED J. DOOCY MORTIMER A. GELSTON JAMES G. HORSFALL

COLIN C. TAIT

January 2, 1979

Mr. Russell E.L. Stanford Office of Standards Development United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Stanford:

The Power Facility Evaluation Council shares the concern of NRC over disposition of spent fuel before a permanent repository is established. It is important that a definitive arrangement be made for spent fuel and other highly radioactive materials as soon as possible. The Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) regulations (10 CF Part 72) properly address this interim problem.

Although the proposed rule does not address financial liability protection, comment was sought on this issue. NRC should include the ISFSI in its broader study of financial protection requirements of materials licensees. These proposed ISFSI facilities will become a part of the nuclear fuel processing cycle, and as such should be subject to the requirements for public liability and financial protection. The PFEC follows with interest the NRC review of possible financial protection requirements.

In the Proposed Rules: Section 72.3 should define "temporary storage." There is confusion as to the ultimate fate of ISFSI. Is this to be a part of the routine processing of spent fuels before they are emplaced in a geologic repository, or is this an interim arrangement to be discontinued once a more permanent disposition is in place? Data concerning the disintegration of spent fuel claddings may prover a time frame for use of an interim storage facility.

We suggest an additional criterion to add to <u>Subpart E</u> - <u>Siting Criteria</u>. In choosing sites for ISFSI, consideration should be given to transportation corridors involved in moving spent fuel from present locations to the proposed sites. The regulations should define criteria for locating ISFSI with minimum transportation requirements.

100 115

PATRICIA M. SMITH EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MRS. RAEANN CURTIS EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT



Developing independent spent fuel storage installations should in no way delay the development of geologic high level nuclear waste repositories.

Yours very truly,

Alora Debble Pend Ince

Gloria Dibble Pond Chairman

GDP:PMS:kp

cc: Governor Ella Grasso Commissioner Stanley Pac (DEP) Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

005"ET NU 184 FIL -72 (43FR46309) (44

Gilbert/Commonwealth engineers/consultants/architects

COMMONWEALTH ASSOCIATES INC., 208 E. Washington Avenue, Jackson, MI 49201/Tel. 517 788-3000

January 3, 1979

Secretary of the Commission Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch



Dear Sir:

In the Federal Register of October 6, 1978 (pages 46309-46321), it was indicated that the Nuclear Regulatory Commission was proposing a new regulation specifying procedures and requirements for issuance of licenses to store spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI). Our comments on the proposed new rule are attached.

Thank you for giving us this opportunity to make our comments known.

Very truly yours,

Daniel C. Kasperski

Daniel C. Kasperski, PhD Manager, Licensing and Regulatory Services

DCK:sjl Attachment

1/15

8-123

Gilbert/Commonwealth Comments on Proposed 10 CFR Part 72

While in general, Gilbert/Commonwealth welcomes the proposed regulations for an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI) as a first step in ensuring adequate medium term storage of spent reactor fuel, we have a number of concerns with the wording of the regulations as presently proposed.

While we understand that certain new definitions may be required in these new regulations which may not exist in other parts, we feel that the incorporation of new terms such as "controlled area", "neighboring area", "region", and "site" are not justified, and may be in conflict with other terms commonly utilized in 10 CFR 20, 10 CFR 50, and 10 CFR 100 which indicate similar concepts (e.g., "controlled area" versus "restricted area" or "exclusion area"; "neighboring area" versus "low population zone"). Even the proposed regulations appear to confuse the issue in 10 CFR 72.33(d), "Effluent Controls", when it makes reference in two separate places to "unrestricted areas". We therefore recommend that the need for such new and possibly confusing terminology be reviewed to determine the efficacy of such new terms. The placement of an ISFSI on an existing power reactor site would make the use of new, overlapping, and possibly conflicting terminology particularly undesirable.

Part 72.65, "Criteria for Regional Distribution of Population", discusses the need to evaluate the proposed site for potential accident consequences over the "operational lifetime" of the ISFSI. Since Part 72.32 limits the initial ISFSI license to no more than 20 years, with the possibility of renewal, the length of the operational life is uncertain. Clarification of the regulatory intent behind the 20 year license limit and criteria for license renewal would be desirable.

Part 72.20, "Environmental Report", requires that an Environmental Report meeting the requirements of 10 CFR 51 accompany the ISFSI application. As 10 CFR 51 requires both a construction permit and operating license stage environmental report, there appears to be some conflict between the single license requirements of the proposed 10 CFR 72, and the existing 10 CFR 51. Clarification of the requirements for environmental report preparation is believed to be needed.

Part 72.15(b) requires an annual update to the applicant's safety analysis report (SAR), and includes a number of items including a final analysis and evaluation of the design and updated quality assurance, security, pre-operational testing, and decommissioning plans. While we believe the update including these items to be appropriate for the final design review (90 days before receipt of spent fuel), we do not believe that an <u>annual</u> update including the detailed amount of information listed to be appropriate or warranted. We recommend that the phrase "and annually thereafter" be deleted from Part 72.15(b). Part 72.31(a) (10) is unclear as to who is responsible for making a finding that the issuance of a proposed license is called for based on the evidence submitted. The circumstances under which the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety and Safeguards may make such a finding, or when a public hearing followed by an Atomic Safety and Licensing Board determination is required to make such a finding should be clarified.

Part 72.67(b) limits the calculated exposure at the outside boundary of the controlled area following a postulated accident to 5 rem after 2 hours. (Note: Exposure should be in Roentgen; dose equivalent in rem.) We believe this proposed limit to be without scientific basis. The supplementary information which accompanied the Federal Register notice indicated that with such a limit, an ISFSI located on a reactor site would then not add substantially to the risk to the public off site, presumably in accordance with proposed General Design Criteria 5, "Proximity of Sites". We believe this restriction to be without merit. In the case of ISFSI's located away from other nuclear facilities, there appears to be no basis for the restriction. To limit the hypothetical accident dose to this low level in the case of combined nuclear facilities requires 'he postulation of coincident initiating failures followed by additional failures in each facility. This has not been done in the case of multiple reactors at a site, nor is it justified in this case. We believe the accident limits of 10 CFR 100 to be more appropriate.

Finally, there is a discrepancy between the General Design Criteria provided in 10 CFR 72.71 and the seismic characteristics discussed in 10 CFR 72.66 in relation to the peak horizontal ground acceleration of 0.25g. Section 72.66 provides the option of using the 0.25g/500 year recurrence earthquake, or of establishing a site specific g value in accordance with 10 CFR 100. However, Part 72.71 (2) (ii) mandates the use of the 0.25g value by stating: "...shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g)..." Should an applicant (choose to) qualify the facility seismic design basis according to a 10 CFR 100 investigation at a value below 0.25g, then the imposition of the 0.25g value is unwarranted and unduly restrictive. We suggest the deletion of the portion of 10 CFR 72.71 (2) (ii) quoted above in parenthesis.



CONNECTION 1: GHT AND ROWER COMPANY WARTORD ELECTRIC UGHT COMPANY TERMINASSAMINGT 1: ELECTRIC COMPANY PORE KATER REVER COMPANY ROWERS UTIL THE SERVICE CONPANY IN ASS UTIL THE SERVICE CONPANY P 0 80X 270 HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06101 (203) 666-6911

DOCTO GU. DEK. PROPOSED FUEL

January 3, 1979



Secretary of the Commission Attention: Docketing and Service Section U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Reference: (1) Federal Register, Volume 43, Number 195, pp. 46309 - 46321, dated October 6, 1978.

Dear Sir:

With regard to 10CFR Part 72, the proposed new regulations concerning the storage of spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installations (ISFSI), Northeast Utilities Service Company on behalf of the Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company and Northeast Nuclear Energy Company offers the following comments:

- (1) The proposed Part 72 deals only with fuel which is cooled more than one year. Although this is a reasonable assumption, there should be provisions contained in the new regulations to allow for storage of fuel cooled for less than one year on an emergency basis.
- (2) Since an ISFSI will store spent fuel which has cooled a minimum of one year, any accident which might occur, if any, will certainly be less severe than that associated with an operating nuclear reactor. Consequently, NU feels that although indemnification for an ISFSI should be required, it should be in an amount substantially less than that presently required for presently operating commercially sized nuclear reactors as specified in 10CFR Part 140.11.

In general, it is encouraging that the NRC has begun to take the steps which are necessary in order to ensure that there is adequate spent fuel storage capability in the United States. The indefinite delay of reprocessing has caused a need for additional storage capability which cannot be met alone by expansion of individual reactor spent fuel storage pools. In order to insure that there are no potential losses in nuclear generating capacity, there will be a need for independent spent fuel storage installations to be built expeditiously. The proposed NRC Regulations (Part 72) covering these installations appear to recognize this fact. The NRC should act quickly to implement these

B-126

the total good . 1/15

proposed regulations so that those utilities needing an ISFSI will be given the guidelines necessary to allow construction of such a facility as soon as possible.

Thank you for your attention in this matter.

Very truly yours,

NORTHEAST UTILITIES SERVICE COMPANY

W. G. Counsil Vice President



Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. 6000 Executive Boulevard, Suite 600, Rockville, Maryland . 20852

A Subsidiary of Getty Oil Company NOC'CT IN JER 72 (43FR46309 PROPOSED EULE TIN

January 4, 1979

(301) 770-5510

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Sir:

Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. has reviewed the proposed new regulation 10 CFR 72 as published in the Federal Register (43 FR 46309) on October 6, 1978.

Based upon our experience of almost fifteen years in the transport, receipt and storage of irradiated fuel, NFS presents for your consideration the attached comments and suggestions which we believe are necessary if private enterprise is to contribute significantly to the timely solution of the present problem of accumulating spent fuel at reactor sites. Many of our comments arise due to the ambiguity and/or lack of specificity of the proposed 10 CFR 72. Such clarification may be provided by forthcoming NRC Regulatory Guides and standard review plans; therefore, NFS recommends that the comment period on 10 CFR 72 remain open until at least thirty days after the pertinent Regulatory Guides are issued for comment.

NFS would be pleased to meet with the Staff and explain our comments in detail.

Very truly yours,

James R. Clark Manager, Quality Assurance and Licensing

JRC: jnw

cc: R. E. L. Stanford, NRC-OSD (With Enclosure)

COMMENTS OF NUCLEAR FUEL SERVICES, INC.

REGARDING PROPOSED 10 CFR 72

NFS applauds the development of a separate regulatory part for the away-from-reactor storage of spent fuel. We believe that the identification of the specific regulatory requirements is necessary before industry will seriously consider the storage of spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation as a potential commercial project. At present, it is difficult to provide substantive suggestions on many portions of the proposed 10 CFR 72 because the NRC guidance documents explaining the desired implementation have not yet been published, and the proposed regulations are by themselves vague and ambiguous. The lack of specificity in the proposed 10 CFR 72 is: (1) contrary to the NRC intention, as identified in the Supplementary Informatior, of providing a "... more definitive regulatory basis ...", (2) inappropriate in light of the hundreds of thousands of tonneyear of spent fuel storage experiencea, b in the United States, Canada and Europe, and (3) potentially misleading to the public understanding of the minor safety implications involved in the storage of long-cooled spent fuel.

We recommend that the comment period for the proposed 10 CFR 72 remain open for at least thirty days beyond the publication date of the draft guidance documents. Our preliminary comments and suggestions are presented below.

- FR 46309 We accept the minimum of one year decay as a practical and generally satisfactory limitation but believe that sufficient evaluations have been performed to bound the radiologically significant zone by fuel exposure, specific power and decay time, thus providing a more defensible selection of this basic parameter.
- 2. FR 46310 "Storage conditions must provide an environment which will insure the long-term integrity on (sic) the fuel cladding ..." The experiences of NFS and othersa, b indicate that normal deterioration/degradation of the fuel assembly cladding during long-term storage is not deleterious to radiological health and safety. The Supplementary Information overstates the importance of fuel cladding integrity during the storage of aged fuel. It is our understanding that tests conducted at Battelle's Pacific Northwest Laboratories have shown that the leachability of irradiated oxide fuel is very low and approaches that of solidified waste forms.

a. "Behavior of Spent Nuclear Fuel in Water Pool Storage", BNWL-2256, A. B. Johnson Jr., Battelle Pacific Northwest Laboratories, September 1977.

b. "Storage of Spent Fuel Elements", Proceedings of the NEA Seminar, Madrid, Spain, June 1978.

- 3. FR 46310 It appears to NFS that the relationship between horizontal ground motion acceleration and recurrence interval is as yet too tenuous to justify a specific number such as "500 years." The NRC should utilize the experiences gained in both the review of more than a hundred reactor sites and the extensive survey for the Nuclear Energy Center study to develop a Regulatory Guide identifying the appropriate seismic parameter by geographical region.
- 4. Paragraph 72.3(h) The NRC staff must draw upon their experience in developing Standard Review Plans for nuclear power plants and specify what "combination of events" must be addressed in the design of ISFSI since these parameters may well control the design of (or the decision to build) an ISFSI.

Terminology such as "These values may be (1) restraints derived from generally accepted 'state-of-the-art' practices for achieving functional goals" is not satisfactory for clear and concise regulations.

- Paragraph 72.3(j) The term "self-contained" appears to be either superfluous for implying a significant but unspecified characteristic of the ISFSI. We recommend deletion of the term.
- 6. Paragraph 72.3(n) The term "Region" appears to be too broadly defined, especially in light of the geographical area that could conceivably be affected by an accident at ISFSI. We recommend that the traditional 80 kilometer radius be used to bound a "Region."
- 7. Paragraph 72.3(s) This Part 72 defivition of "important to safety" extends, without any accompanying justification, the scope of protection beyond that provided by the Part 50 definition of "important to safety" to include plant personnel. It is clear that the development of the corresponding 10 CFR 50 regulations^a were directed at "structures, systems and components required to provide reasonable assurance the facility can be operated without undue risk to the health and safety of the public" (emphasis added). Considering both the traditional use of the term "important to safety" and the use of the term for an ISFSI, we recommend deletion of the reference to plant personnel.
- Table I, Footnote 3 The withholding of information under 10 CFR 2.790(d) is a responsibility of the NRC, not the licensee. If the NRC desires such material withheld, the NRC should specify that it must be withheld.

B-130

a. 10 CFR 50 Appendix A, "General Design Criteria for Nuclear Power Plants"

9. Paragraph 72.14(e) - While it is appropriate for the NRC to require a prospective licensee to show financial (and/or contractual) ability to remove the spent fuel from storage and decommission the facility, it is inappropriate to require the submission of the highly competitive information that would be required under the proposed Section 72.14(e)(1) and (2). The "estimated construction costs" are irrelevant since the ISFSI is not licensed to receive fuel until after the NRC has found the facility to have been adequately constructed. The actual costs for constructing the ISFSI can vary from totally irrelevant to the NRC to only slightly relevant, depending upon the financing mode. The "estimated operating costs over the planned life of the installation" are irrelevant without corresponding estimates of both revenues and the earliest potential data for decommissioning. We recommend that items (e) (1) and (e)(2) be deleted.

Most of the "estimated shutdown and decommissioning costs" for an ISFSI will be easy to develop;^a however, the Government charge for disposition of the waste generated will probably control the aggregate cost. We recommend that the NRC (1) publish guideline unit costs for the disposal of low level radioactive wastes, and (2) amend the processed regulations to require only that the license show an arrangement to guarantee the early accumulat on of funds to satisfy shutdown, decontamination and the NRC estimated costs of disposal.

- 10. Paragraph 72.1. (a) (6) Here and in several other sections^b of the proposed Part 72 are references to "minimize waste volumes." The Staff has not presented a rationale for this objective which has not been incorporated in other Parts of Title 10 and which may be counter productive to the ALARA philosophy. Minimizing waste volume does not reduce public exposure and will probably increase plant personnel exposure. NFS' experience indicates that contaminated waste generation should average only about 1,000 cubic feet per year per million gallons of pool water. We recommend elimination of this "principal design criteria."
- Paragraph 72.15(b) The terminology "... for approval" is somewhat disconcerting and probably superfluous. We recommend deletion of the term.
- a. Generic costs have already been developed for the NRC in "Technology, Safety and Costs for Decommissioning a Reference Pressurized Water Reactor Power Station", NUREG CR-0130, June 1978.

b. Proposed Section 72.15(a) (12) (v) also. 8-131

- 3 -

- 12. Paragraph 72.18(a) "This plan shall include provisions for minimizing the amount of solid, airborne and liquid wastes generated during decommissioning." We regard this amount of detail as (1) inappropriate in light of the lack of specific NRC guidance on what constitutes acceptable decommissioning, and (2) premature considering that such decommissioning might be done several decades from the date of licensing review under procedures approved just prior to decommissioning. We recommend the deletion of the last sentence of this paragraph.
- Paragraph 72.33(c) (4) The licensees should be required to have the training and certification program in effect both prior to receipt and during storage, not just "prior to receipt."
- 14. Paragraph 72.33(c)(5) This paragraph should be rewritten to allow the manipulation of the safety-related equipment and controls by non-certified personnel when such personnel are under the direct, visual supervision of certified personnel. This is necessary for an adequate training program.
- Paragraph 72.33(d) Remove the redundant term "as an upper limit" from the first sentence.
- 16. Paragraph 72.38(b) A licensee cannot provide the "demonstration" that would be required by this proposed regulation because the NRC has not promulgated the decommissioning or disposal regulations referenced; however, it should be credible that decontamination and decommissioning of an ISFSI constructed for twenty years or more of safe operation can be readily accomplished.
- 17. Paragraph 72.42 This proposed paragraph would extend, without NRC provided justification, the 10 CFR 50.109 concept of modifying a facility for a substantial improvement in public health and safety to also include occupational health and safety. We believe that it is extremely unlikely that a relatively simple and static facility such as an ISFS. would have to be "backfitted;" however, we also believe that such broad, vague regulations introduce further uncertainties that tend to dissuade commercial firms from pursuing the development of an ISFSI. We recommend modifying the proposed paragraph to match 10 CFR 50.109.
- 19. Paragraph 12.54 It would appear adequate for the shipper of spent fuel to send only one copy of the NRC-741 to the receiver, as presently required by 10 CFR 70.54. The requirement for three copies should be deleted.
- 19. Paragraph 72.55(c) Item (1) allowing for "tests of spent fuel during handling and storage" should be deleted. The

other three items allow the NRC to perform tests on activities conducted by the ISFSI licensee. The Item (1) as written implies that the NRC might conduct tests at the ISFSI, possibly relevant to other licensees but not relevant to the ISFSI.

- 5 -

- 20. Paragraph 72.56(c) The proposed requirement that "if a retention period is not otherwise specified, such records shall be maintained until the Commission authorizes their disposition" should be deleted. For such a simple facility with so fer radiologically significant records, the NRC should accept the minor burden of identifying the specific records to be retained.
- 21. Paragraph 72.61 The wording of this paragraph might be interpreted to require a licensee to propose and evaluate several sites. We recommend the use of the term "the proposed site" throughout this section.
- 22. Paragraph 72.62 It is singularly disappointing that the Staff should propose such an unspecific regulation on the criteria for design basis for external natural events. The NRC should draw upon their vast experience in reactor siting and extend the scope of natural phenomena resistance criteria for ISFSI beyond the specific earthquake resistance (0.25g/500 year return) to at least specify tornado winds and precipiation rate. Due consideration should be given to the very low potential release source involved in the storage of aged fuel. For example, NRC calculates^a a tornado strike on the Barnwell Fuel Receiving and Storage Station would result in less than 0.1 rem to the critical organ of the maximum individual when fuel with cooling times as short as 150 days is stored.
- 23. Paragraphs 72.62(c) and 72.63(c) The NRC Staff, not the licensee, should bear the responsibility for identifying what are "appropriate methods" for establishing design basis for natural phenomena and man-induced events. The licensee using these "appropriate methods" would compute the magnitude of the event.
- Paragraph 72.65(a) The term "character" should be defined or deleted.
- 25. Paragraph 72.65(b) The wording should be modified to read "... the licensee shall identify a controlled area and a neighboring area for the proposed site." See also Comment No. 27 below.

a. "Final Environmental Statement, Barnwell Fuel Receiving and Storage Station", NUREG-0008, U.S. NRC, January 1976.

- 26. Paragraph 72.66(a) The requirement might be clearer if it read "A site with a peak ... shall be deemed suitable for an ISFSI and require ..."
- 27. Paragraph 72.67 It is not clear why the NRC has chosen to utilize the term "controlled area" in Part 72 rather than "restricted area" as used in other parts. It would appear highly desirable to use the traditional term, i.e., "restricted area."

The referenced EPA regulation (40 CFR 190.11) also limits the total quantity of radioactivity that may be released to the general environment from the entire uranium fuel cycle. The NRC should either indicate what proration of the EPA limit is applicable to ISFSI or exempt such I: SSI as insignificant contributors.

- 28. Paragraph 72.67(b) We recommend that this paragraph be rewritten to something like: "(b) The conservatively calculated radiation dose to any organ of any individual located beyond the boundary of the controlled area for two hours immediately following a postulated accident shall not exceed (blank) rem." The actual quantitative dose limit should correspond to the protective action guidance of the EPA.
- 29. Paragraph 72.71(2)(iii) If this proposed requirement is meant to require seismic motion monitors, it should so state. As written, the requirement could be interpreted to require "capability for determining the intensity" of "lightning" or "tornado winds."
- 30. Paragraph 72.71(2)(iv) The proposed requirement that "if an ISFSI is located over an aquifer, measures must be taken to preclude the transport of radioactive materials to man and the environs through this potential pathway" is an overstatement of the potential hazard involved. No such specific requirement is highlighted for a nuclear reactor or other nuclear fuel cycle facility. An ISFSI would have pool water contamination of about 10⁻³ uCi/m1, not much of a hazard. If the proposed requirement is meant to preclude an ISFSI near a major underground water resource, a Reg Guide specifying such prohibited areas would expedite siting and review.
- 31. Paragraph 72.71(3) "Overall Requirements Protection against fires and explosions." This proposed requirement is almost identical to the requirement of 10 CFR 50, Appendix A, Criterion 3 and, therefore, greatly overstates the hazard potential involved in a fire at an ISFSI. At the ISFSI the fuel will be either under water while in storage or within a shipping cask designed to withstand fire accidents. Difficulties with this (and other) proposed requirement arise due to the non-quantified definition

(proposed 72.3(r)) of "important to safety." Until the NRC provides a quantifiable decision criteria for establishing what structures, systems and components are "important to safety," regulatory ambiguities will abound.

- 32. Paragraph 72.71(5) This proposed requirement is identical to that specified for a nuclear power plant. Unlike nuclear power plants, the proximity of an ISFSI to another nuclear facility presents no significant incremental potential hazard and may well have some risk reduction due to proximity. The issue of combined radiological effect of discharge was considered in the development of EPA's 40 CFR 190. If the NRC wants a consideration beyond the EPA regulation, they should quantify "significant risk."
- 33. Paragraph 72.71(8) The proposed requirement that "fuel cladding shall be protected against degradation and gross ruptures" is too broad and vague. It could be interpreted to require canning of fuel assemblies. Cladding obviously undergoes some "degradation" during long-term storage, but there is lots of empirical evidence that such "degradation" is not deleterious to health and safety. We reach this conclusion based upon our experience, statements by the NRC (Page S-3 of Reference b) and DOE (Page 17.1 of Reference a) and a review of the other references cited in these comments. We know of no "gross ruptures" of light water commercial power reactor fuel occurring after the fuel has been stored for one year. This requirement should be deleted.
- 34. Paragraph 72.71(12) Our experience is that significant delays arise during Staff reviews of fuel assembly storage due to the use of different calculational methods by the Staff and licensee. We strongly recommend that the NRC publish very specific regulatory guides (including acceptable cross-section sets, scope of evaluation and acceptable codes) for the calculation of nuclear criticality safety margins. It is our understanding that Reactor Licensing has developed and promulgated such information via its Standard Review Plan.
- 35. Paragraph 72.71(16) "Measuring the amcint of radionuclides in any effluent" would, if literally complied with, entail an unjustified burden. While the vast majority of air released for ISFSI will be filtered, some air will be released a cask entry doors unless a large airlock is provided. As noted by the Staff in the Supplementary Information, experience (Page 4-17 of Reference b) shows that airborne contamination above a spent fuel storag; pool is not significant.
- a. "Alternatives for Managing Wastes from Reactors and Post-Fission Operations in the LWR Fuel Cycle," ERDA-76-43, Volume 3, U.S. ERDA, May 1976.
- b. "Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Power Reactor Fuel," NUREG-0404, IL S NDC March 1978 U-135

We believe that the personnel exposure involved in "measuring the amount of radionuclides" in solid waste. cannot be justified. We recommend that the proposed requirement read: "Effluent systems shall include the means to determine the amount of radioactivity in airborne and waterborne effluents."

36. Paragraph 72.71(19) - "These facilities shall be designed to concentrate all site generated wastes and convert them into a form suitable for interim storage and ultimate final disposal." A licensee cannot satisfy this requirement due to the lack of NRC criteria for (1) balancing degree of compaction versus operator radiation exposure and public exposure via effluents from the compaction operation, (2) a definition of a form suitable for "interim storage" and (3) a definition cf the form suitable for "ultimate final disposal." We understand that the NRC Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards has such studies under contract. Until the completion and evaluation of these studies, it is premature to impose this proposed requirement.

The total volume of radioactive waste generated at the ISFSI should not be significant. As noted in an earlier comment, the volume should be about 1000 ft³/yr/mi lion gallons of pool water. The waste composition will primarily filter media and therefore not amenable to much concentration.

- 37. Paragraph 72.71(20) "... and to minimize the quantity of radioactive wastes ... at the time the facility is permanently decommissioned." The largest quantity of contaminated equipment at decommissioning should be the storage racks. It is inconceivable that the Staff would want to reduce the potential strength of storage racks in order to reduce a waste volume at twenty years later. If the Staff wants a stainless steel lining on the pool surface, it should be a specific requirement.
- 38. Paragraph 72.81(b) "... ISFSI design features which will make the installation less vulnerable to sabotage ..." Less vulnerable than what? We believe that the tests being conducted at Sandia Laboratories and the evaluations conducted by General Electric Company for MFRP show that an ISFSI does not present any undue risk to the public health and safety due to potential sabotage. The Staff should provide very specific requirements on physical protection at ISFSI rather than the generalized, vague requirements of Section 72.81.
- 39. Paragraph 72.93 "Any physical or mental condition which might cause impaired judgment or motor coordination must be considered in the selection of personnel for safetyrelated activities." Such vague and ambiguous requirements

are inoperative and, therefore, not constructively adding to public health and safety. The Staff should draw upon their experience in implementing 10 CFR 55 and in developing 10 CFR 73, Appendix B, to provide much more substantive guidance.

General Comments

1. Neither the proposed Part 72 nor 'ts accompanying Supplementary Information sets forth a clear explanation of the intended step by step licensing procedures which will be utilized for licensing of ISFSI. The relationship to 10 CFR Part 2 procedures is not addressed, nor is the timing of the issuance of the license within the licensing framework. Applicants will require more certainty in these procedures so as to be able to plan licensing schedules. Specifically, Section 72.31(a)(10) requires that the specific license must be issued prior to commencing of construction; however, there appears to be a possibility of another licensing action after construction and prior to operation of the facility as a result of Sections 72.15(b)(1) and 72.31(a), requiring the submittal of an "updated" SAR for "approval". It appears that Part 72 combines certain licensing concepts of a materials license (pursuant to Part 70) with other features of production and utilization facilities license (pursuant to Part 50). Thus, the one-stage licensing procedure of Part 72 may, in reality, constitute a two-stage procedure (construction approval and then an operating approval). When Part 72 is promulgated as an effective regulation, either the regulation or its Statement of Considerations must clarify procedural matters.

2. In the Supplementary Information, it was stated that the Staff was considering the question of the Commission exercising its discretionary authority under the Price-Andersen Act to prescribe specific requirements relating to financial protection and responsibility for public liability for Part 72 licensees. If the storage of spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation is to be considered by prospective licensees to be a reasonable commercial undertaking, this matter must be determined prior to the promulgation of an effective regulation.

GENERAL C ELECTRIC

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, 175 CURTNER AVE., SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA 95125

M/C 861 - (408) 925-6330 DOCKER RUSSER MARTINE RULE PR-72(43FR46309)

January 4, 1979

NUCLEAR ENERGY

PROGRAMS

DIVISION SPENT FUEL SERVICES OPERATION

DMD-279 110

Secretary of the Commission Attn: Docketing and Service Branch U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

SUBJECT: COMM'NTS ON PROPOSED 10 CFR PART 72, "STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE FACILITY", OCTOBER 1978

The enclosed comments are submitted by General Electric Company pursuant to the request published in the Federal Register (43 FR 46309) Oct. 6, 1978.

General Electric considers the proposed regulation to be necessary and reasonable in its approach. We are, however, concerned about certain areas in which it appears that more specific or additional guidance is needed to assure satisfactory regulation. These areas are:

- o The proposed regulation contains several non-quantitative requirements that could be subject to various interpretations. Quantitative or at least more definitive statements against which performance or design can be measured should be developed.
- o It is apparent from statements made in the SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section of the Proposed Rule that the NRC, like leneral Electric, is aware of the relatively low risk from storage of spent fuel. The risk is composed of nearly immeasurable consequences that are likely to occur at extremely low probabilities. What is not apparent is how allowance has been made in the Regulation for this acknowledged low risk. Rather, it appears that many of the same criteria for siting and safety that are employed in reactor licensing are reiterated

Actore 1115

B-138

GENERAL GELECTRIC

U.S. Huclear Regulatory Commission Docketing & Service Branch January 4, 1979 Page 2

here for the ISFSI. We would suggest that more appropriate consideration be given to fitting the siting and design criteria to the extant risk.

• As further illustration of the above, we are concerned that the seismic design basis of 0.25g is overly conservative for this application. A recent ACRS recommendation indicated that a 0.2g acceleration was an adequate design basis for power plants in the eastern United States. This value of 0.2g is also consistent with the value in the latest version of the Uniform Building Code. We recommend that the design basis be reduced to 0.2g or that the regulation provide for a site specific design basis of less than 0.2g based on site investigation.

General Electric is also concerned about the efficacy of the requirement (72.15b) for the annual updating of the SAR and subsequent approval by the Commission. Changes in the facility which are important to safety are handled by the normal license amendment application, review, and issuance of the amendment by the Commission. Other changes can be handled by the procedure discussed in 72.34(b). We fail to see that the annual updating and approval of the SAR is either necessary or practical.

Comments on specific areas of the proposed regulation are attached to this letter.

General Electric appreciates the opportunity to comment on these proposed regulations. Any questions on these comments should be addressed to C.C. Herrington (408*925-6385).

Respectfully submitted,

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

D. M. Dawson, Manager Licensing & Transportation

SPECIFIC COMMENTS ON PROPOSED RULE 10 CFR PART 72

§72.1 Purpose

This Section and §72.2 <u>Scope</u> describe the licensing of several activities with respect to special nuclear material, byproduct material and source material <u>in spent fuel</u>. This emphasis overlooks the fact that some or all of these material categories, but especially byproduct material may be present at the facility, <u>not</u> in spent fuel. The regulation needs to make allowance for quantities of other radioactive materials encountered in the normal course of operating an ISFSI, such as that associated with the basin water, the water cleanup system, casks, cask related equipment, laboratory standards or test sources.

§72.2 Scope

The references to <u>spent fuel</u> and material <u>in the spent fuel</u> should be broadened to include other radioactive material associated with the operation of an ISFSI (see the comment re: §72.1 <u>Purpose</u>, above).

572.2 <u>Scope</u>, last paragraph, limits the relicensing of facilities licensed before the effective date of this regulation to those that meet the <u>operating</u> <u>requirements</u> of this Part 72. <u>Operating requirements</u> should be fully defined in the regulation to clarify the intent.

§72.3 Definitions

§72.3(r) defines "Spent Fuel" suitable for storage in an ISFSI as light water reactor fuel which has undergone at least one year's decay since reactor shutdown. If the phrase <u>since reactor shutdown</u> is augmented with <u>or removal</u> <u>from the reactor</u>, then the possible future case of on-line refueling can be accommodated.

§72.6 <u>License Required</u> and §72.7 <u>General License to Own Spent Fuel</u> Other radioactive material, not in spent fuel should be included (see comments on §72.1 Purpose).

\$72.11 Filing of Applications for Licenses; Oath or Affirmation

(b) <u>Oath or Affirmation</u> - It is not clear why a requirement of filing with Oath or Affirmation is made a requirement of Part 72 when it las not previously been required in licensing transactions in Parts 30, 40 or 70. It is suggested that the Oath or Affirmation requirement be deleted.

- 2 -

§72.15 Contents of Application: Technical Information

(a)(6) Among other information to be supplied in the SAR, this Section identifies the "features ... and operating modes to minimize waste volumes generated by the facility." A term other than <u>minimize</u> should be used in this location. Minimize is a limitless concept and should more realistically be replaced by "... and operating modes to maintain the low waste volumes established for the facility."

(a)(12)(v) This Section requires measures to control the quantities of radioactive waste for disposal offsite to ALARA levels. This is not a current regulatory requirement and is not necessary for this Part.

(b) This Section requires an annual updating of the SAR and submittal for Commission approval. It is not clear why an annual requirement is included in this Section. This is an unnecessary and unusual requirement that will result in duplicating review effort and double approvals on licensees' activities. Any change in the facility that requires a license amendment will necessarily have received Commission approval prior to the implementation of that change. Revision of the SAR should be implicit to each approved amendment. Any change in the facility that does not require an amendment, does not require Commission approval. Whether changes of this type are reported to the NRC in sixty days or annually, there is no basis or necessity for Commission approval.

\$72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including Its Financing

(a) This Section partially defines the requirements for a DecommissioningPlan. The wording used differs sufficiently from the discussion in NUREG-0436,"Plan for Reevaluation of NRC Policy on Decommissioning of Nuclear Facilities",

and the Commission's Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in the Federal Register (43 FRO 10370, March 13, 1978) to raise questions about the NRC's actual intent. Reference should be made to a source for the Decommissioning Plan requirements.

The sentences that reads:

"This plan shall include an evaluation of the ISFSI design features which have been selected to facilitate to the maximum degree reasonable its decontamination and decommissioning at the end of its useful life. This plan shall include provisions for minimizing the amounts of solid, airborne and liquid wastes generated during decommissioning."

should be modified by replacing "maximum degree" and "minimizing" with words or phrases that do not imply such unlimited conditions.

§72.31 Issuance of Licenses

(a) This Section defines the first issuance of a license but does not recognize that authorization to begin construction is required by the licensee. The first sentence should be changed to read:

"(a) The Commission will issue a license under this part prior to start of construction. Such license will be updated prior to the receipt..."

The terms "qualified" and "adequate", used in (a)(2), (4) and (5) require additional definition or a corresponding reference to limit their meaning.

§72.33 License Conditions

(d) This Section describes effluent controls established as license conditions. Specific mention should _ · made regarding basin leak control and detection requirements.

Effluent reporting requirements should be made consistent with existing regulations in Part 70, \$70.59.

- 4 -

§72.38 Applications for Termination of License,

This section should be consistent with all other discussion of the Decommissioning Plan. Therefore, the comments on §72.18 (above) also apply to this Section.

§72.42 Backfitting

(a) This Section establishes the requirements for backfitting. It states in part "the Commission may require ... backfitting if ... such action will provide substantial, additional protection ..."

There should be an additional definition of the phrase "substantial additional protection" to clarify the applicability of backfitting. Backfitting should only be ordered following an independent case review and each such order should be substantiated by a cost benefit analysis by the NRC related to the "substantial additional protection".

\$72.52 Reports of Accidental Criticality or Loss of Special Nuclear Material

This Section requires reporting of the title topics and states in part: "Each licensee shall report ... any loss of special nuclear material contained in spent fuel." The meaning of "any loss" in this context should be clarified.

The loss of SNM in spent fuel can only occur through the loss of spent fuel which is unlikely. Therefore, if "any loss" means any loss of fuel bundle, then let the regulation so state. However, if the intent is to quantify and report SNM levels in the basin water, then let the regulation state that, but in the latter case, some minimum reporting limit should be established.

\$72.55 Inspections and Testing

(c) This Section gives the Commission authority to perform or cause the licensee to perform tests as deemed appropriate "...for the administration of the regulations in this part." It should be made clear in the regulation that the NRC will respect the proprietary nature of the information derived from testing. Further, any testing in behalf of NRC should be limited to areas related to the safety of the facility.

\$72.66 Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic Characteristics

(a) This Section defines acceptable seismic criteria. The value of 0.25g for peak horizontal ground acceleration is too restrictive and a value of 0.2g is more appropriate. Our rationale is based on the following considerations:

- 5 -

- The value of 0.25g cannot be inferred from the reference cited (Report by Algermissen and Perkings of USGS). Rather, 0.2g is given as the value that covers most of regions east of Rockies.
- The value of 0.2g is consistent with present practice for design of equipment to be located in buildings. This typical requirement is given in the latest version of the Uniform Building Code.
- The value of 0.25g seismic requirements may eliminate many suitable sites due to liquefaction consideration.
- 4. The purpose of selecting minimum design earthquake level is for convenience in lieu of expensive and time-consuming site investigation. Therefore, this selected earthquake level should be high enough to cover a representative number of potential sites and low enough to avoid excessive economic penalty. In this regard, we believe 0.2g is more appropriate.

It is not clear whether the alternative approach stated, "... of establishing a si e specific 'g value'", permits the use of a value less than 0.25g. This should be clarified.

§72.71 General Design Criteria

(2)(ii) This Section states criteria for protection against the effects of natural phenomena. The earthquake horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g is reiterated here. The comments on §72.66 (above) apply here, as well.

(2)(iv) This Section requires "measures" to be taken if an ISFSI is located over an aquifer. There is need to define further the juxtaposition limits (being all areas on Earth are located "over an aquifer"); the permissible release limits. and the "measures" implied (see also comments on §72.33).

- 6 -

(17) This Section requires means to "... minimize the release in effluents of radioactive materials ..." The word "minimize" is not well considered in this context. Replace "minimize" with "... limit to a level as low as reasonably achievable, the release in effluents ..."

(18) This Section requires design consideration for establishing the safety of waste storage and handling systems. It would be beneficial to define or reference the acceptable forms for the ultimate disposal of treated radioactive wastes.

(20) This Section requires design to facilitate decommissioning. The wording regarding decommissioning should be made consistent with previous sections on this regulation (see comments on \$72.18 and \$72.38), and with related documents (NUREG-0436) and Regulation Guides.

LAW OFFICES

LOWENSTEIN, NEWMAN, REIS, AXELRAD & TOLL

WASHINGTON, D. C. 20036

202 862-8400

HOBERT LOWENSTEIN JACK R. NEWMAN MAROLO F. REIS MAURICE AXELAND GAVIG R. TOLL RATHLEEN M. SHEA J. F. BOUKNIGHT, JR.

INX KET MUMAGN 72(43FR4630 SED FULL

E.GREGORY BARNES MICHAEL A.BAUSER ALBERT V.CARR.JR. ROBERT H.CULF WILLIAM J.FRANKLIN FREDERIC S.GRAY JOEL S. WIGHTADM.CALFJ

January 4, 1979



Gentlemen:

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission has requested comments on the Proposed Licensing Requirements for Storage of Spent ruel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) [proposed 10 CFR Part 72] published in the Federal Register on October 6, 1978 (43 F.R. 46309-21).

We are pleased to submit the enclosed Comments of the Utility Waste Management Group on behalf of the following utilities:

> Arizona Public Service Company Boston Edison Company Commonwealth Edison Company Duke Power Company Florida Power & Light Company Georgia Power Company Houston Lighting & Power Company Illinois Power Company Iowa Electric Light & Power Company Long Island Lighting Company Nebraska Public Power District Northeast Utilities Service Company Pacific Gas & Electric Company Portland General Electric Company



LOWENSTEIN, NEWMAN, REIS. AXELRAD & TOLL

Secretary of the Commission Page Two January 4, 1979

> Power Authority of the State of New York Sacramento Municipal Utility District San Diego Gas & Electric Company Tennessee Valley Authority Virginia Electric & Power Company Yankee Atomic Electric Company

We first recommend some basic improvements in Part 72 concerning the proposed timing of license issuance and other important aspects of achieving a meaningful "single license" for an ISFSI (see "Licensing Approach"). We also recommend some basic changes in Part 72 to achieve generic rulemaking decisions based on the Commission's and DOE's generic environmental impact statements and to avoid duplicative reconsiderations of basic policy questions in individual licensing proceedings (see "NEPA Process"). We then provide comments on Part 72 on a section-by-section basis. Finally, we recommend the extension of coverage of the Price-Anderson Act to ISFSI's (see "Coverage Under the Price-Anderson Act").

Respectfully submitted,

having Alistai

Lowenstein, Newman, Reis, Axelrad & Toll

MA:jcj Enclosure

COMMENTS OF THE UTILITY WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

ON THE

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION PROPOSED LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR

STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI)

[Proposed 10 CFR Part 72]

January 4, 1979

January 4, 1979

Comments of the Utility Waste Management Croup

The following comments on the Proposed Licensing Requirements for Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) [proposed 10 CFR Part 72] are submitted in response to the Commission's notice (43 F.F. 46309-21) on behalf of the Utility Waste Management Group (UWMG), a group of investor-owned and publicly-owned utilities representing about one-half of the installed and planned nuclear power projects in the United States.

We first recommend some basic improvements in Part 72 concerning the proposed timing of license issuance and other important aspects of achieving a meaningful "single license" for an ISFSI (see "Licensing Approach"). We also recommend some basic changes in Part 72 to achieve generic rulemaking decisions based on the Commission's and DOE's generic environmental impact statements and to avoid duplicative reconsiderations of basic policy questions in individual licensing proceedings (see "NEPA Process"). We then provide comments on Part 72 on a section-by-section basis. Finally, we recommend the extension of coverage of the Price-Anderson Act to ISFSI's (see "Coverage Under the Price-Anderson Act").

Licensing Approach

The proposed regulations recognize that the storage of spent fuel at an ISFSI is licenseable under the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, as the ownership, receipt, possession, etc. of special nuclear, source and byproduct material, and not as the construction and operation of a utilization facility (such as a nuclear power plant). Thus the regulations do not explicitly require the two-step process associated with the licensing of a reactor, <u>i.e.</u>, the issuance of a construction permit followed by the issuance of an operating license. Instead the proposed regulations (§72.31) presumably call for the issuance of a "single license," as explained at 43 F.R. 46309.

We fully agree that a "single license" should be issued but we have several basic disagreements with the specifics of the proposed timing of license issuance and other important details.

First, we believe it is inappropriate to require that the license be issued before the start of construction of any physical facilities, particularly if the ISFSI is to be located at a site where there are existing licensed nuclear facilities or governmental nuclear activities. An ISFSI will not be a massive construction project (such as a reactor) and will not entail potential significant environmental impacts during construction. Moreover, since, as described in the Commission's Draft GEIS on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Reactor Fuel (NUREG-0404), there has been extensive favorable operating, safety and technical experience in the pool storage of spent fuels, there is no need for a formal review prior to construction. We would urge instead that the icense not be required until spent fuel is to be received at the ISFSI and that the regulation be redrafted to provide that:

(1) An applicant be required to file preliminary information prior to construction, but only so that the NRC Staff can informally review the project and provide its informal views to the applicant during construction; and

(2) An applicant have the option to seek formal Commission approval at any time he chooses (including prior to construction) as to either the entire ISFSI or any aspect thereof (such as a site approval; approval of a particular method of spent fuel handling or storage, etc.). 8-150

-2-

Second, even if the single license is to be issued prior to construction we are concerned that the provisions for "re-evaluation" by the Commission and "up-dating" of license conditions prior to the receipt of spent fuel, might lead to a second regulatory proceeding and attendant delays at the time when operation is about to begin. Particularly in view of the proven technology to be utilized in an ISFSI, there are no complexities that would warrant such a second review of a licensed ISESI. Instead we would suggest that the license, whenever issued, simply provide that spent fuel could not be received until specified conditions are satisfied (<u>e.q</u>., that construction be completed in accordance with specified criteria; that sufficient trained operators be available, etc.). It would then be a matter of inspection by the NRC prior to receipt of fuel, rather than an additional licensing review which could trigger additional procedural delays (such as hearing requests).

-3-

Third, it is difficult to evaluate the proposed licensing approach since important provisions pertaining to public hearings are not included but will be issued for public review and comment later. Regardless of the approach selected, it will be essential that no more than one hearing be held. Thus any up-dating of license conditions or subsequent amendment of the license should not provide an additional opportunity for public hearings.

NEPA Process

Although the Supplementary Information acknowledges that the Commission has evaluated the environmental impacts of the accumulation of spent fuel in its draft GEIS (NUREG-0404), we do not detect in the

8-151

proposed regulations any attempt to reach generic decisions based on the GEIS to avoid repetitive consideration of similar issues in individual licensing proceedings.

-4-

As the Commission has recognized in its subsequent Interim Policy Statement on Generic Rulemaking to Impr ve Nuclear Power Plant Licensing (43 F.R., 58377, December 14, 1978) there are significant advantages to deciding a generic issue by rulemaking, including arriving "at a dispositive finding regarding the generic issue so that the issue would not be addressed at all or in a simplified way in subsequent individual licensing cases " We believe that this principle can be and should be employed to good advantage in the current rulemaking on ISFSI's. For example, on the basis of its final GEIS the Commission should be able to determine that there are no significant differences in the environmental impacts of storage in ISFSI's, at reactor pools or any other available alternative. Thus, the Commission should be able to rule generically that alternatives need not be considered in the environmental analyses performed in the licensing of an ISFSI. Similarly the Commission should be able to determine generically that the incremental environmental impact of installing an ISFSI at the site of an existing licensed reactor or of substantial Federal nuclear activities is sufficiently small that no other site would be "obviously superior." Thus a generic rule should provide that no analysis of alternative sites would be needed for an ISFSI located at such an existing site. Another example of potential generic rulemaking would be a determination that spent fuel storage capacity is needed and that the individual licensing proceeding should not consider "need" for the ISFSI (at least within specified capacities in given regions).

B-152
The proposed regulations also ignore that the DOE has published a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DOE/EIS-0015-D) and Supplement on Storage of U.S. Spent Power Reactor Fuel. If an ISFSI built by DOE is to be subject to licensing by the Commission, the proposed regulations should make clear that programmatic decisions reached by DOE on the basis of its generic impact statement will not be reevaluated by the Commission in the licensing of a specific ISFSI. <u>United States</u> <u>Research and Development Administration</u> (Clinch River Breeder Reactor Plant), CLI-76-13, 4 NRC 67, 79-84 (1976). Moreover, the regulations should contain a generic determination that as to matters covered in DOE's programmatic EIS which may be subject to Commission regulatory review, such review should not be <u>de novo</u> but should consider only whether DOE's determinations are "reasonable." Id. at 91.

-5-

We must emphasize that appropriate consideration of the foregoing principles would lead to a radically different approach to decisionmaking on environmental issues in individual ISFSI licensing proceedings than is currently reflected in §72.31(10) of the proposed regulations. That section presently contains a paraphrase of the type of overall cost-benefit analysis and <u>de novo</u> consideration of all potentially relevant environmental issues that the Commission would make under NEPA for any license application filed with it under a framework (<u>e.g.</u>, Part 50) where (1) the Commission had issued no generic environmental impact statement and had correspondingly reached no generic decisions in policy statements or rulemaking, and (2) no other Federal agency had made programmatic decisions on the basis of its own generic statements which were entitled to dispositive weight in the Commission's proceedings.

Instead, for the the reasons we describe above, Part 72 when adopted should reflect rulemaking in which the Commission generically determines and thus disposes of (i.e., eliminates as an issue in individual proceedings) basic issues pertaining to "need" for (i.e., "benefits" of) ISFSI's and to consideration of alternative methods and sites. In essence, under the NEPA process we suggest the Commission would not need to do a cost-benefit analysis in individual licensing proceedings de novo, since major elements of such analysis would have been disposed of generically in the rule itself. Rather, the specific EIS in an individual proceeding and the Commission's required environmental decision-making in that proceeding would be limited to any site-specific and project-specific effects that were not determined in the generic rule and to environmental effects, if any, arising from any deviation by the specific ISFSI from the envelope of characteristics assumed in the generic rule (e.g., conventional pool storage technology; use of an existing licensed site or the site of Federal nuclear activities).

-6-

The NEPA process we suggest would take full advantage of the reasons why a generic (or programmatic) impact statement is undertaken in the first place. As recognized by the courts and cited for support by the Commission in Clinch River (4 NRC at 80):

^{*/}If our suggestions are not adopted and Part 72 neither determines environmental issues generically nor provides any guidance as to how basic environmental issues (e.g., "need" for ISFSI; consideration of alternative methods and sites) are to be considered in specific proceedings, it can readily be predicted that the Licensing Board in the first ISFSI licensing proceeding will be confronted with the same type of mixed questions of law and policy as arose in <u>Clinch River</u>. The Commission, rather than a Licensing Board, is best suited to decide such questions; and the rule-making proceeding, rather than the licensing proceeding, is the best forum for such decision.

"The program statement has a number of advantages. It provides an occasion for a more exhaustive consideration of effects and alternatives than would be practicable in a statement on an individual action. It ensures consideration of cumulative impacts that might be slighted in a case by case analysis. And it avoids duplicative reconsideration of basic policy questions." (Emphasis added) Scientists' Institute for Public Information Inc. v. AEC, 481 F.2d 1079, 1087-88 (D.C. Cir. 1973).

The principles of disposing of generic issues appropriately in the context of broad, programmatic decision-making and of focusing in subsequent actions only on any specific limited issues arising from such actions are also expressly encouraged by the CEQ in the "tiering" process incorporated in \$1502.20*/ and \$1508.28 of the recently published regulations on NEPA implementation (43 F.R. 55978-56006, November 29, 1978).

We urge implementation of such principles by the Commission as the most effective and efficient manner of implementing its NEPA responsibilities in Part 72.

§72.1 Purpose

The last sentence of §72.1 states that "licenses are limited to the temporary storage only of spent fuel . . . " Particularly since

*/ §1502.20 states:

Agencies are encouraged to tier these environmental impact statements to eliminate repetitive discussions of the same issues and to focus on the actual issues ripe for decision at each level of environmental review (§1508.28). Whenever a broad environmental impact statement has been prepared (such as a program or policy statement) and a subsequent statement or environmental assessment is then prepared on an action included within the entire program or policy (such as a site specific action) the subsequent statement or environmental assessment need only summarize the issues discussed in the broader statement and incorporate discussions from the broader statement by reference and shall concentrate on the issues specific to the subsequent action. The subsequent document shall state where the earlier document is available. Tiering may also be appropriate for different stages of actions. (Sec. 1508.28). B-155

the term "temporary storage" is not defined, this last sentence may create unnecessary controversy in the licensing process. For example, an opponent of the ISFSI might try to argue that, if there is no licensed repository for spent fuel available, there is no certainty that storage will be "temporary." Such spurious arguments should be avoided by deletion of the last sentence of §72.1. The purpose of the regulations is clear without it.

- 8 -

We are not aware of any environmental, safety or technical reason to limit the period of storage in an ISFSI. Storage should be permitted for any period as long as the requirements set forth in the regulations are satisfied.

§72.3 Definitions

The proposed regulations include the following new geographical terms: "controlled area" (§72.3(g)); "neighboring area" (§72.3(k)); and "region" (§72.3(n)). We believe that these new terms are inprecise, unhelpful and unnecessary. For example, they may be confused with the term "restricted area," which is elsewhere defined as "any area access to which is <u>controlled</u> by the licensee for purposes of protection of individuals from exposure to radiation and radioactive materials" (§20.3(a)(14)), and they may be interpreted inconsistently with terms such as "exclusion area," "low population zone" and "population center distance," which are applied for similar purposes in 10 CFR Part 100. Particularly in view of the limited environmental and safety impact of ISFSI's, we believe that the principles (and terminology) established in these other Commission regulations can readily be applied and that there is no need to innovate in these respects.

Similarly we see no reason why the definition of the term "as low as is reasonably achieveable" (§72.3(b)) should differ from that contained in §50.34a(a). Thus at the end of the proposed definition in §72.3(b) we would add the words: "and other societal and socioeconomic considerations, and in relation to the utilization of atomic energy in the public interest."

-9-

The definition of "spent fuel" (§72.3(r)) should not be linked to reactor shutdown, since the reactor is likely to have started up again after the fuel was replaced. We suggest instead that §72.3(r) read as follows: "(r) 'Spent fuel' suitable for storage in an ISFSI means irradiated light water reactor nuclear plant fuel which has not been used in an operating reactor for at least one year."

572.14 Contents of application: General and Financial information

In view of the limited activities involved at an ISFSI we question the need for requiring detailed financial information pursuant to \$72.14(e) and the need for a finding of financial qualification under \$72.31(a)(5). To the extent the Commission believes financial qualifications should be considered, the regulations should provide that any regulated utility (or company with specified assets) would automatically satisfy the regulatory requirements; that no additional findings would be needed, and that the only supporting financial information to be filed would be the company's latest annual report or certified balance sheet and income statement. If the Commission does not decide to include in the regulations a generic determination of financial qualifications covering all regulated u ilities (or companies with specific assets), at the very least it should specify that no

finding of financial qualification would be required as to any applicant who holds a valid construction permit or operating license for a production or utilization facility under Part 50. Any applicant who has satisfied the financial qualification requirements of Part 50 should not have to undergo an unnecessary duplicative review for the limited additional activities at an ISFSI.

§72.15 Contents Of Application: Technical Information

§72.15(a)(6) requires the application to describe "the features of ISFSI design and operating modes to minimize waste volumes generated by the facility;" while §72.15(a)(12)(v) refers to "the measures taken to control the quantities of radioactive wastes for offsite disposal to as low as reasonably achieveable levels." The latter requirement seems more precise. §72.15(a)(6) should be deleted unless it has an additional purpose which is not apparent from the presently proposed regulations.

The requirements for updating the SAR set forth in §72.15(b) are worded awkwardly and appear to be internally inconsistent. Moreover, a requirement that a completed SAR be submitted to the Commission "for approval" at least 90 days before receipt of materials may give rise to unnecessary procedural delays at a time immediately before operation of an ISFSI is to begin. As discussed in our comments above under "Licensing Approach," we do not believe that there are any complexities associated with an ISFSI that would warrant a second "reevaluation" or "approval" by the Commission once the "single" license has been issued. Moreover, there should certainly be no need for Commission "approval" of an updated SAR annually thereafter. Thus, although we have no objection to a requirement that the licensee main- $\frac{9-158}{100}$

- 10 -

tain his SAR current and file up-dating information with the Commission 90 days prior to operation and annually thereafter, such filings should not require any Commission "approval."

- 11 -

§72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including Its Financing

We believe that it is both undesirable and unnecessary to require in §72.18(a) the inclusion of a "decommissioning plan" in an application. With respect to the ISFSI itself the specific components of a "decommissioning plan" would best be determined at the end of the useful life of the ISFSI, taking into account prospective future use of the ISFSI or the site, then-available decontamination and decommissioning technology, etc. In addition, although the regulation is unclear, if the term "disposal of radioactive material" is intended to refer to the ultimate destination of spent fuel, requiring precise such information in an application for an ISFSI is unrealistic in light of unresolved Federal policy issues.

It is also unnecessary to require in §72.18(b) that a decommissioning plan include "the financial arrangements for its execution." It should be sufficient for the applicant to describe how he intends to provide funds for future decommissioning and to provide reasonable assurance that he will be able to provide such funds.

§72.32 Duration of License; Renewal

We see no reason why §72.32 should limit a license to a period not in excess of 20 years. Such a period may have significance in determining Congressional intent as to whether a DOE facility is subject

to Commission licensing because it is intended for "long-term storage of high-level waste generated by [DOE]" under Section 202(4) of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974. It should not, however, be indiscriminately carried over into the licensing of facilities used for the storage of spent fuel. Instead, licenses for ISFSI's should be issued for such period as the applicant can show the activities can reasonably be carried out within the proposed facilities. In view of the similarity of ISFSI's to reactor pools, a 40-year licensing period would appear to be fully appropriate.

§72.33 License Conditions

Section 72.33(b) should be revised to state that "license conditions may include items in the following categories." The Commission ought to tetain the opportunity to determine the matters which must be included in license conditions and those which are best covered in implementing procedures. In many cases, particularly with respect to surveillance, procedures which can be reviewed by the Commission's inspectors have proven to be more flexible and appropriate than license conditions in assuring that proper actions are taken.

§72.37 Creditor Regulations

Since Part 72 requires a license only for the ownership, acquisition, possession, etc. of materials in spent fuel, \$72.37 properly provides for the rights of creditors in such materials. To avoid any questions in the future, however, it may be useful to state in the regulations that no license is needed for ownership, acquisition, Possession, etc. of the ISFSI itself and that there are thus no limitations on any mortgages, pledges, liens, etc. upon the ISFSI.

- 12 -

§72.42 Backfitting

- 13 -

There should be added to §72.42(a) the requirement that prior to imposing any backfitting the Commission will conduct a cost-benefit analysis to determine whether the additional protection that would be provided by the backfitting action is cost effective.

§72.66 Criteria For Defining acceptable Seismic Characteristics

The first sentence of §72.66(a) is presumably intended to permit the siting of an ISFSI without the need for costly seismic investigations, analyses and review. It might not achieve this purpose, however, because it does not specify the information source that will be conclusively accepted by the Commission without need for further proof by applicant. We suggest that the first sentence be redrafted to provide explicitly that the applicant need not provide detailed information and seismic findings by the Commission and will not be required if the ISFSI is to be located (1) at a site where a production or utilizz ion facility is currently licensed under Part 50 with a "g" value for a Safe Shutdown Earthquake of 0.25g or less, or (2) at a site within an area satisfying the earthquake ground motion potential and recurrence interval set forth

in the regulations as demonstrated by authorities <u>named</u> in the regulations (<u>e.g.</u>, incorporating into the regulations a reference to the report identified in footnote 2 of 43 F.R. 46310) or equivalent authorities.

8 161

We assume that the second sentence of §72.66(a) is intended to provide complete flexibility to an applicant to ignore the "novel seismic siting approach" set forth in §72.66 and instead to proceed under Part 100. Thus, if an applicant wishes to establish pursuant to Part 100 a site specific "g" value of less than 0.25g he is free to do so; and he could then design the ISFSI accordingly. (For this reason there should be deleted the parenthetica? expression in Quality Standard (2)(ii) of \$72.71. which requires designing for an acceleration of at least 0.25g). On the other hand, if he wishes to use a site where a greater "g" value would be applicable, he is free to establish the site-specific acceleration and design the ISFSI accordingly.

§72.71 General Design Criteria

Quality Standard 2(iv) pertaining to an ISFSI location "over an aquifer" is ambiguous and redundant in light of the requirement in ?(i). In view of the limited potential releases of radioactive materials and the very small likelihood of its transport to the biosphere via a groundwater pathway, and in the absence of any definition of what constitutes an "aquifer," this requirement is unduly restrictive and unnecessary and should be eliminated from the proposed rule.

The second sentence of Standard (19), "Waste Treatment," should be deleted. There is no reason to require concentration of "all" site generated wastes; as to some wastes concentration may be impossible,

- 14 -

may involve unnecessary personnel exposure c: may not be cost effective. As to converting such wastes to a form suitable for "ultimate final disposal," although such conversion might in many instances be accomplished on-site, there is no reason to deprive the licensee of the flexibility of using off-site facilities that might be more effective.

- 15 -

§72.65 Criteria For Regional Distribution Of Population

Although the Supplementary Information states that "the population distributions at licensed reactor sites would be acceptable for the location of ISFSI's" (43 F.R. 46310), this determination is not included in the proposed regulation. The regulation should make explicit that if an ISFSI is to be located at a licensed reactor site, population distribution information would not need to be provided and reviewed.

The regulation should also provide, however, that in view of the acknowledged low level of potential risk of an ISFSI, population densities higher than, and population distributions different than, those at licensed reactor sites may also be acceptable.

Coverage of ISFSI's Under Price-Anderson Act

While the proposed regulation does not contain specific requirements relating to financial protection and responsibility for public liability, it is noted that the Commission is considering the question of whether it should exercise its discretionary authority under the Price-Anderson Act to prescribe such requirements. The following comments are in response to the solicitation of views on this issue.

We urge the Commission to exercise its discretionary authority under the Price-Anderson Act to extend the foregoing requirements to storage of spent fuel at an ISFSI, including transportation to and from the ISFSI. Such action would be consistent with the basic intent as to the scope of the activities to be covered by the Price-Anderson Act and the Commission's implementation thereof. Until the Administration's recent unilateral decision to defer indefinitely the reprocessing of spent fuel, there would have been no "gaps" in Price-Anderson Act coverage of fuel utilized in nuclear reactors, i.e., coverage was provided for transportation to the reactor, at the reactor (including storage in spent fuel pool), transportation of spent fuel to the reprocessing plant, at the reprocessing plant, and transportation of recovered products and wastes from the reprocessing plant. The additional step (storage at an ISFSI) resulting from the Administration's action is functionally indistinguishable from storage which takes place at the reactor or reprocessor. There is no reason by the public should be deprived of the protection provided under the Price-Anderson Act for this additional step. In addition, Price-Anderson Act coverage is important in order to assure that constructors and suppliers of equipment are not dissuaded from participating in construction of an ISFSI because of concerns as to whether unlimited liability exposure would impact their ability .. o raise capital. Finally, including ISFSI's under the Price-Anderson Act would facilitate the obtaining by utilities of overall nuclear insurance that would cover spent fuel at all times. Thus, although we are convinced regarding the low level of risks associated with the operation of an ISFSI, we believe it is important chat the provisions of the Price-Anderson Act be extended to ISFSI's either in proposed Part 72 or in Part 140.

B-164

- 16 -

In applying financial protection requirements to ISFSI's, the low level of risk should be recognized and a reasonably low level of financial protection should be established (as it is in the case of pre-operation possession of fuel at a reactor) in order to avoid imposing an inappropriate economic burden on an ISFSI. In addition, an ISFSI should, of course, not be subject to the retrospective premium requirements applied to reactors.

-17 -



LOUISIANA / 142 DELARONDE STREET POWER & LIGHT / PO BOX 6008 • NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 70174 • (504) 366-2345

January 3, 1979

DUXALI INVERTING AROKUSED AULE FIL - 72 (43FR 46309

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Secretary of the Commission

Washington, D. C. 20555

U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

LPL 10356 3-A1.01.04 JANI 2 1979 A LTS

O. L. ASWELL

Vice President-Power Production

Gentlemen:

Louisiana Power & Light Company has reviewed the proposed 10CFR72 and feels that this regulation makes an important contribution to the task of spent fuel storage pending development of a commercial reprocessing industry.

However, we wish to raise the following concerns which should result in improvements to the document:

- (1) Section 72.18 This section requires "a decommissioning plan which shall contain information on proposed procedures" for the "dismantling and disposal of the ISFSI at the end of its useful life". The useful life of an ISFSI is likely to be at least equal to that of a nuclear power plant (40 years). Due to the potential for advances in the state of the art for decommissioning nuclear facilities, it is inefficient to require more than a very general document on decommissioning the ISFSI at this stage. The decommissioning requirements for an ISFSI should not be more restrictive than those presently required of reactor sites. The decommissioning, an estimate of the cost for this approach, and an evaluation of the ISFSI design features which facilitate decontamination and decommissioning. The decommissioning document should not address the ultimate disposal of the spent fuel as this is the responsibility of the Federal Government.
- (2) Section 72.71 (10) The control room need not be located in the ISFSI. Where an ISFSI is placed on a reactor site, the reactor control room could also contain the ISFSI control area. Local control should suffice for normal operating conditions, and a "control room", as such, should not necessarily be required.

101-11-1 11-1-11-5

(3) Section 72.15 (13) - This section calls for a conservative analysis of the potential dose to an individual offsite from accidents and natural phenomena which result in criticality, release of radioactive materials to the site and surrounding areas, and the loss of water for water pool. type installations. These analyses are both inappropriate and unnecessary and could lead to difficulty in the design of such a facility. Regulatory Guide 1.25 would be a suitable alternative for the establishment of the design basis event for an ISFSI. The requirements for analyses of ISFSI's should be no more restrictive than those presently required for spent fuel pools at reactor sites.

Yours very truly,

AL aswell

D. L. Aswell

DLA: RMW: bar

SHAW, PITTMAN, POTTS & TROWBRIDGE

1800 M STREET, N.W.

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20036

RAMSAY D. POTTS STEUART L. PITTMAN GEORGE F. TROWBRIDGE STEPHEN D. POTTS GERALD CHARNOFF PHILLIP D. BOSTWICK R. TINOTHY HANLON GEORGE M. ROUGERS, JR. JOHN B. RHINELANDER BRUCE W. C. URCHILL LESLIE A. NICHOLSON, JR. MARTIN D. KRALL JAT E. SINCY GEORGE .. ALLEN, JR. WM. BRADFORD RETNOLDS FRED A. UTTLE FRED DRASNER MATHANIEL R. BREED, JR. MARK AUGENBLICK ERNEST L. BLARE, JR. CARLETON S. JONES THOMAS A. BANTER JAMES M. BURCER JAMES THOMAS LENNART STEVEN L MELTZER DEAN D. AULICK SHELDON J. WEISEL JOHN A. MECULICUUGH JOHN A. MECULICUUGH JOHN ROBERT W. ANNAND STEPHEN B. HUTTLER MINTHROP N. BROWN JAMES B. HANLIN ROBERT E. ZAHLIN RICHARD E. OALEN ROBERT E. ZAHLIR RICHARD E. OALEN ROBERT E. ZOEL LUFARD E. OALEN ROBERT F. TRAVIESO-DIAE VICTORIA J. PERKINS JOHN H. O'WEILLJ.R. JAY A. EPSTIEN FRANKIN D. CHU GEORGE D. CROWLET, JR. HICHARL D. HATS THOMAS H. MICORMICR SUBAN D. FALKSON STEVEN N. LUCAS

(202) 331-4100

TELECOPIER (202) 296-0694 & 296-1760

TELEX GG-2693 (SHAWLAW WSH) CABLE 'SHAWLAW'

JOHN H. SHARON

124

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Re: Proposed 10 CFR Part 72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation"

1115

············

Gentlemen:

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission's Federal Register notice of October 6, 1978 invited comments on proposed regulations governing the storage of spent light water reactor fuel in independent spent fuel storage installations. We are pleased to submit the attached comments on behalf of the Radioactive Waste Management Group, composed of utilities operating, constructing and planning nuclear power reactors. The members of the Group are American Electric Power Company, Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, Duques : Light Company, General Public Utilities Corporation and its subsidiaries Jersey Central Power and Light Company and Metropolitan Edison Company, Madison Gas and Electric Company, Ohio Edison Company, Pennsylvania Power & Light Company, the SNUPPS Utilities (Kansas Gas and Electric Company, Kansas City Power & Light Company, Northern States Power Company, Rochester Gas and Electric Company, and Union Electric Company), The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company, The Toledo Edison Company, Wisconsin Electric Power Company, Wisconsin Power and Light Company, and Wisconsin Public Service Corporation.

We appreciate the significant effort which has been made in developing the proposed regulations. Our major comment is that the proposed regulations do not fully reflect the somewhat SHAW, PITTMAN, POTTS & TROWBRIDGE

Secretary of the Commission Page Two January 4, 1979

relaxed view of regulatory constraints promised by the Statement of Considerations. In some cases, the proposed regulations establish obligations beyond those required in reactor licensing. We also believe that the environmental review requirements should reflect those generic NEPA reviews which will already have been completed in order to avoid duplication. These and other views are set forth in more detail in the attached comments.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on proposed Part 72 and would be pleased to assist the Commission in any way in connection with these regulations.

Very truly yours,

E. Silberg E. Silberg

Coursel for the Radioactive Waste Management Group

cc: Russell E. L. Stanford Office of Standards Development U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Enclosure

COMMENTS OF RADIOACTIVE WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP ON PROPOSED 10 CFR PART 72

GENERAL COMMENTS

Although the Statement of Considerations reflects a rather relaxed view of regulatory constraints on storage pools for aged (1 year or more) fuel as compared to those applied to reactors and reprocessing plants, the proposed regulation itself in many places reads as if it relates to a type of facility whose operations are far more complex than those involved in the operation of a spent fuel storage facility. In part, this results from the use of rather general wording in many places, where the exact interpretation for purposes of assessing the adequacy of an application will be established by the judgment of the reviewer of the license application. It was indicated for example that, although a rather detailed facility design will be required at the license application stage, some details of the proposed facility may be described in terms of potential alternative design details, or in terms of boundary conditions within which the final design would rest; here again, the use of broad and general language to identify information required in applications is likely to lead to extensive dialogs among the staff and applicants over the details of specific applications.

For example, section 72.15(a)(4) requires "a preliminary analysis and evaluation of the design and performance of structures, systems and components . . . and including determination of

> (i.) The margins of safety during the normal operations and expected operational occurrences...."

It is not clear what extent of detail is expected by NRC in response to this requirement. But it is apparent that there are wide limits to the detail which could be required to satisfy a reviewer. Similarily, section 72.71(10) appears to mandate a control room, or centralized control of all active functions of the facility; reference is made in this paragraph to "control areas" but a rather general design criterion is established which would appear difficult to meet without an enclosed control room.

- 2 -

Section 72.15(a)(9) requires identification of structures, systems or components requiring research and development to confirm the adequacy of their design and a description of the R&D program which will be conducted to resolve any associated safety questions. Although this requirement is qualified by the phrase "if any" in respect to structures, systems or components requiring R&D, we suggest that the generalized wording of this statement may lead to unnecessary dialog over adequacy of the design. We suggest that this paragraph be revised by substituting the following for the first five lines of paragraph (i.e. down to the first semicolon):

> "If the proposed facility incorporates any safety related structures, systems, or components whose functional adequacy or reliability have not been demonstrated by prior use for the same purpose, or cannot be demonstrated by reference to performance data in related applications or to widely accepted engineering principles, such structures, systems, or components shall be identified,"

It would appear that the NRC should develop additional background justification for the selection of the 0.25g seismic criterion. If, indeed, 0.25g lies below the structural seismic criterion at which substantial cost penalties begin to be incurred to meet increased acceleration values, then that thesis should be developed and supported with authoritative cost data. It would also appear desirable to include additional analyses to support the contention that the cost trade-offs between average transportation costs of fuel to the repository and the cost of justifying a higher seismic criterion favor the proposed course of restricting acceptable sites to those showing a maximum acceleration of 0.25g or less.

Further comment on the ref renced USGS report (Algermissen and Perkins, Open File Report 76-416, 1976, "A Probabilistic Estimate of Maximum Acceleration in Rock in the Contiguous United States") is in order. Algermissen and Perkins, in the cited document, present a preliminary map of horizontal accelerations in rock with a 90% probability of not being exceeded in 50 years; based on information presented in the report, the maximum accelerations on the same probabilistic basis which might be anticipated with a recurrence interval of 500 years would be approximately 2.7 times the values shown on the Algermissen and Perkins map. From this it would appear that a substantial fraction of the country lying between the 75th and 105th meridians would be able to justify a substantially lower seismic criterion than the 0.25g value selected. In fact, Algermissen and Perkins state: B-172

- 3 -

It can also be surmised, from the acceleration vs. return period rule-ofthumb and rough considerations of the area involved, that an attempt to produce an acceleration map of the Eastern United States by a uniform distribution of all historical seismicity east of the Rocky Mountains would result in a uniform motion level between 4 and 10%g. Such a map would emphasize the hypothesis that earthquakes could happen anywhere in the Eastern United States but the motion levels as design levels are probably easily met by structures conforming to wind loading codes - earthquake protection would not be a design criterion at all.

- 4 -

It would thus appear appropriate to consider establishing as the seismic criterion a value less than 0.25g, and require that facilities proposed for sites where the anticipated peak acceleration based on the Algermissen and Perkins data might be exceeded, that a complete seismic evaluation would be required. It would appear from the Algermissen and Perkins map that relatively few additional sites would be excluded from the standardized consideration by reducing the g value to 0.20.

Section 72.3(s) defines safety related structure, systems and components as those items whose function is to maintain the required spent fuel storage conditions, to prevent damage to the spent fuel during transfer and storage and to protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation during design objectives. In one interpretation, this could be taken to include virtually everything within the boundary of the plant site. Section 72.71, under "Overall Requirements", sub-paragraph (1) "Quality Standards", states that structures, systems and components

important to safety shall be designed, fabricated, and tested to quality standards commensurate with the importance of the function to be performed. Section 72.75(a) requires that a quality assurance program based on Appendix B of 10 CFR 50 shall be established and implemented to provide assurance that the safety related structure, systems and components will perform their safety functions. This paragraph goes on to state that "the application of the quality assurance program should be commensurate with the importance of individual structure, systems and components." These provisions add up to a rather broad range of possible interpretations both as to the specific items which might be included as Class I structures, systems or components, as well as to the extent of the quality assurance program requirements necessary to be imposed on the design, purchasing, fabricating, handling, shipping, storing, cleaning, erecting, installing, inspecting, testing, operating, maintaining, repairing, and modifying.

- 5 -

On the other hand, the Statement of Considerations states that

". . . the heat capacity of the large volume of water in a spent fuel storage pool allows adequate time to take corrective action if the cooling system fails, provided there is an assured source of make up water, and some means of getting it to the storage pool if needed. Therefore the cooling system need not be designed to withstand the extremes of natural phenomena. Likewise, the emergency water supply system need not be permanently installed, provided it is available within the time span needed."

These statements would lead to the conclusion that the pool water treatment systems need not be considered to be Class I (or "Q-list" items). However, the wording of the regulation may not necessarily be interpreted so as to lead to this same conclusion.

6 -

While we would consider it undesirable to publish a list of specific items of equipment to be included on the Q-list, we do believe it would be appropriate to include some further elaboration of the definition in section 72.3(s) in the form of a statement of the criteria which the NRC would plan to use in evaluating the applicant's identification of items on his Q-list, as well as his definition of the extent of applicability of the QA program. It is our opinion that without this clarification, the regulation as presently drafted would inevitably lead to the inclusion on the Q-list and the imposition of the full 10 CFR 50 Appendix B QA program on all structures, systems and components of the fuel storage pool which have any relation to or contact with the spent fuel. If it is the intent of NRC that this be the case, then there should be a clear statement to that effect in the regulation and in the Statement of Considerations.

Section 72.33(d) appears to invoke the EPA regulations in 40 CFR Part 190 as a regulatory requirement on the operator of a spent fuel storage facility. It has been our understanding that the EPA regulations and standards applied to the entire uranium fuel cycle, concern the general environment, and

8-175

represent guidance to the regulatory agencies with regulatory jurisdiction over specific types of facilities. The dose equivalents specified in 40 CFR §190.10(a) and the curie limits of 40 CFR §190.10(b) are, based on our understanding, not intended to govern any specific class of facilities within the uranium fuel cycle. It is thus not clear as to how section 72.33(d)(1) is to be applied.

SPECIFIC COMMENTS

- §72.1 ISFSI licenses are stated to be limited to "temporary storage", but no definition of that time period is provided.
- §72.2 Renewal of existing licenses covering spent fuel storage in an ISFSI is made contingent on meeting the "operating requirements" of Part 72. These should be specifically identified.
- \$72.3(b) The definition of "as low as is reasonably achievable" does not fully track the definition of the same term in 10 CFR §20.1(c), in that it omits the phrase "and other societal and socio-economic considerations, and in relation to the utilization of atomic energy in the public interest". The Part 20 definition should be followed.
 \$72.3(j) The definition of ISFSI seems to preclude sharing facilities with another facility, while General Design Criteria 4 (\$72.71) would seem to permit

sharing under certain circumstances. Sharing should be permitted.

- 8 -

\$72.3(n) The indeterminate size of a "region" is inappropriate. Since radiological consequences for the "region" must be evaluated under \$72.61(e) and \$72.65(e), better guidance must be provided.
\$72.3(s) The definition of "structures systems and components important to safety" appears to include the cooling system and water supply, whereas the Statement of Considerations in column 2 page 46310, third paragraph, would appear to exempt these systems from the full implication of this classification. This discrepancy should

§72.11, Table 1 Footnote 3, which provides that physical protection plans "should be" exempt from public disclosure, should make such exemption mandatory.
§72.13 This section on public availability of documents pursuant to Parts 2 and 9 is unnecessary and should be deleted.

be clarified.

§72.14(e) There is no reason why the financial qualifications requirements for ISFSI's should be more rigorous than those for reactors as set forth in 10 CFR §50.33(f) and Appendix C to Part 50. The proposed section could be read to require financial arrangements for decommissioning prior to licensing.

Such a requirement would be unreasonable, particularly where the licensee is a government agency (such as DOE) or one or more utilities. For utilities, such a requirement might conflict with state regulatory requirements.

§72.15(a)(13) This provision would appear to require an ISFSI design to assume criticality as a design basis accident. No basis is shown for the reasonableness of such an assumption.

- 9 -

\$72.15(b) No basis is shown for requiring the annual updating of safety analysis reports over the life of the facility. Even if such updating is required, the possible implication in sub-paragraph (b) (1) that site evaluation analyses must continue through plant life, should be removed. §72.15(d) These paragraphs require the development of de-\$72.81 tailed security measures for physical protection of the fuel storage facility, and invoke "the applicable requirements of part 73 of this chapter" as the basis for the required physical protection program. It would appear that the physical security plan for a spent fuel storage facility need not go beyond providing protection against overt or covert acts of sabotage; on this basis, it would appear that the requirements set forth in 10 CFR §73.55 would provide an adequate

basis for a physical protection system. Some clarification of the intended coverage of the physical security plan should be set forth clearly in the regulation.

- 10 -

\$72.18(a)

The requirements for a decommissioning plan seem to require an unnecessarily large amount of information at the pre-construction stage. Similar information is not required for reactor licensing and should not be required here. The provision, if retained, should also explicitly exclude the ultimate disposition of the spent fuel itself from the scope of the plan.

§72.18(b)

This sub-paragraph requires that the decommissioning plan "include the financial arrangements for its execution"; it is not clear whether this provision is intended to mandate the establishment of a sinking fund or other specific financial arrangement to accumulate funds required for decommissioning during the lifetime of the facility or whether it is intended to require merely a description of how the licensee would propose to finance the decommissioning at the time the decommissioning is to be undertaken. Under either interpretation, NRC runs the risk of conflict with state regulatory agencies where utilities are the licensees. It would seem

unreasonable to require such information for an ISFSI when it is not required for reactor licensing. Imposing preconstruction financial arrangements for future decommissioning on government agencies, utilities, and similar large and well-established entities is unreasonable. The regulation should explicitly provide that environmental reports and environmental impact statements for ISFSI's need not cover those requirements of Part 51 which will already have been considered by generic NEPA reviews (i.e., need for ISFSI's, nor-site related alternatives) other plant specific NEPA studies (i.e., uranium fuel cycle impacts covered in each reactor FES), or NRC regulations (i.e. Tables S-3 and S-4 of Part 51.

- 11 -

§72.31(a)

\$72.20

The phrase "appropriate or necessary" as used to describe NRC license conditions should be changed to "appropriate <u>and</u> necessary", consistent with the equivalent Part 50 provision (§50.50). The reference to updating of a license prior to receipt of spent fucl is unclear. No new licensing action should be involved, and in particular, no new opportunity for hearings should be provided.

8-180

§72.31(a)(10) The reference to NEPA determinations made by a licensing board at a public hearing is confusing in that it implies that a public hearing would only deal with NEPA issues.

- 12 -

\$72.32

§72.33(b)(4)

A 20 year limit on initial licenses is unreasonably short. Since the NRC's practice is to start the license duration from the issuance of the initial license, the length of time during which an ISFSI could operate under its initial license would be significantly less than 20 years. Given the 40 year license term routinely issued for power reactor licenses (which include the licensing of the spent fuel pool), there is no reason why a 40 year duration should not also be specified for ISFSI licenses. There is little question that spent fuel can be safely stored for that period. See "Initial Decision Approving Amendment to Operating License to Authorize Enlargement of Spent Fuel Pool Storage," Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corp. (Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station), LBP-77-54, 6 NRC 436, 440 (1977), aff'd. ALAB-455, 7 NRC 41 (1978). The reference to paragraph (c) should be to paragraph (b).

§72.33(d) This paragraph appears to interpret the EPA standards in 40 CFR Part 190 as establishing or

constituting specific release limits for the fuel storage facility. If so, how is the licensee to calculate the limits applicable to his facility? Specifically, 40 CFR 190.10(a) sets limits on radiation doses to an individual member of the public from the operations related to the nuclear fuel cycle, including both radioactive material releases and radiation. How will the total be allocated to any individual operation? 40 CFR 190.10(b) specifies the maximum "quantity of radioactive materials entering the general environment from the entire uranium fuel cycle per gigawatt-year of electrical energy produced . . . " (emphasis added); how is this to be allocated to any individual operation? (A 1000 ton spent fuel storage facility at full loading will contain a quantity of uranium fuel representing approximately 37 gigawatt years of electrical generation.) While we would not anticipate that releases from a spent fuel storage facility would normally be more than a very small fraction of these EPA limits, these questions are nevertheless considered pertinent, in the light of sub-paragraph 72.33(d)(1). If NRC is interpreting the EPA standards of 40 CFR 190 as being applicable to individual facilities, we recommend that this sub-paragraph 72.33(d) be

B-182

- 13 -

clarified to indicate that fact and als to indicate how the requirement of 40 CFR 190.10,b) is to be applied to a specific fuel storage

- 14 -

facility.

\$72.42

The backfitting provision is unreasonable. First, it should include some recognition that backfitting can entail substantial costs which may outweigh any benefits. Thus, the finding which the Commission must make to require backfitting should balance the added cost of the backfit against the added protection. Second, the provision differs from the equivalent Part 50 provision, §50.109, by substituting "occupational . . . health and safety" for "common defense and security" as a justification. The provision should be made consistent with Part 50 in this respect.

§72.56(b) The requirement to file the annual financial report and certified financial statements may make little sense for a potential government agency licensee such as the Department of Energy.
Subpart E The regulations should provide that a site pre-viously approved by NRC in connection with a facility license would require no further NRC review for an ISFSI license. If, for example, a site was adequate (from geological, hydro-

logical, seismic, etc. standpoints) for a reactor, it should be defined adequately for an ISFSI. \$72.61(b),(d) These general criteria as written apply to "proposed sites for the ISFSI." It is unclear why reference is made to multiple sites and a single ISFSI. The reference should either be to "proposed site for the ISFSI" or to "proposed sites for ISFSI's".

§72.61(f) This provision, requiring an environmental analysis, is unnecessary. Instead, 10 CFR §51.5 should be amended to add ISFSI licensing as to type of action requiring NRC environmental analysis.

§72.62(c) This sub-paragraph requires that "appropriate methods shall be adopted for establishing the design basis natural events for important natural phenomena. The method should be justified as being compatible with the region and the current state of knowledge." This appears to require that the licensee justify the seismic criteria established by this regulation. Unless this is the intent, this sub-paragraph should be modified to make clear that it applies only to facilities located at sites whose seismic characteristics lie outside those specified in paragraph 72.71, General Design Criterion 2(ii).

- 15 -

8-184

§72.65(c)

The limits specified on use of a controlled area should at a minimum be no more strict than those in 10 CFR §100.3(a) for exclusion areas. As written, the provision might not be interpreted to allow the kinds of transportation activities permitted under §100.3(a).

\$72.65(d)

The "neighboring area" concept, defined in §72.3(k), is too indefinite to allow meaningful evaluation. A more explicit definition, along the lines of the "low population zone" (§100.3(b)), should be adopted.

§72.65(e) This requirement appears to duplicate that set forth in sub-paragraph 72.61(e). If these are intended to cover separate actions by the applicant, the difference should be more clearly set forth.

§72.66(c) This sub-paragraph states that fuel storage facility designs other than the water basin type will require that the proposed sites be evaluated on the basis of the site-specific investigation and analysis. This appears to imply that storage facility designs other than the water basin type will require the full site-specific seismic analysis and justification of design seismic criteria that would be required of a reactor or fuel reprocessing plant. The most likely

alternative designs to the water pool storage are those involving direct storage of fuel containers in caissons at near-grade level in the ground, or air-cooled vault storage, neither of which involves consideration of the loss of coolant as a result of seismic damage to a pool structure. It therefore appears that, unless it can be demonstrated that there are other potential effects of seismic disturbances on these types of storage which are not likely to result from a seismic disturbance of a water pool storage, they should be treated on the same basis as water pool storage facilities as far as the seismic requirement is concerned.

§72.67(a) This paragraph in effect interprets EPA standards in 40 CFR 190.10(a) as being applicable at any individual facility in the uranium fuel cycle. The NRC's interpretation and application of the EPA standard should be explained clearly.

- 17 -

§72.71 In general, the General Design Criteria should be more specific to remove from dispute the nature of the design required.

§72.71(2)(ii) This sub-paragraph, and in particular sub-subparagraphs (A) and (B) appear to be in direct conflict with the criteria set forth in paragraph 72.66, and with the apparent intent of the State-

ment of Considerations both of which imply that "costly seismic site investigations, analyses, and review" are not required if the applicant demonstrates that his facility will meet the 0.25g requirement. This discrepancy should be clarified, preferably by deleting sub-sub-paragraphs (A) and (B) of 72.71(2) with their introductory sentence beginning "The design basis for these structures, systems and components shall reflect " What kind of explosions are contemplated by this requirement? There appear to be no systems in the facility which might be subject to possible explosion hazard from internal sources. If this requirement is intended to refer to protection against a type of sabotage, the boundary limits of an explosion against which the protection must be required should be stated. (This would appear to be a case of a requirement having been lifted from a different regulation, without consideration of the applicability of the detailed requirement to the fuel storage facility.)

§72.71(8)(i) The criterion requires protecting the fuel cladding against degradation and gross ruptures, but gives no indication of what, if any, mechanisms are contemplated.

8-187

\$72.71(3)

§72.71(11) The criterion on Utility Services includes a single failure assumption. The regulations should indicate whether the single failure assumption is also meant to apply as to other aspects of ISFSI design.

572.71(12) The criterion adopts a standard of "unlikely (i.e. very low probability) . . . changes", but does not define what is meant by this term.

This sub-paragraph requires the provision of §72.71(14)(v) shielding "to assure that exposure to personnel in accessible areas are within the limits of Part 20 and are as low as is reasonably achievable." This sub-paragraph fails to identify which criterion (i.e. within the limits of Part 20, or are as low as reasonably achievable) takes precedence. How far is the licensee expected to go in providing shielding? For example, would it be expected that he would be required to provide shielding on the fuel handling machine to reduce the dose from the pool water even if the radiation level from the water were already well within the limits of Part 20 exposure guidelines? This point should be clarified in this sub-paragraph. This sub-paragraph requires that effluent systems \$72.71(16) include means for measuring the flow of environ-

mental diluting media either air or water, in

8-188

- 19 -
addition to means for measuring the amount of radionuclides in any effluent. It is not clear how this requirement might be applied to a gaseous effluent. For example, an aqueous effluent released to a surface stream can be measured, and the stream flow can be measured, from which one can readily calculate the concentration of radionuclides in the environmental medium. In the case of a stack release of a gas, the concentration of radionuclides in the effluent gas stream can be determined, but it is not clear what is intended by the requirement for measuring the flow of air past the stack. It is clear that one can record the wind velocity and direction at the stack, from which one can calculate a dilution factor given the current meteorological parameters. If this is what is intended, it is suggested that the sub-paragraph be rewritten to make this more clear.

- 20 -

\$72.71(20)

The decommissioning criterion requires that the ISFSI design "minimize the quantity and facilitate the removal of radioactive wastes and contaminated equipment . . . " Some concept of cost-effectiveness should be included in this criterion, given the implications of the requirement to "minimize".

Can it be concluded that any structure, system \$72.75(a) or component whose function is the subject of a requirement in this Part 72 is to be considered safety related, and therefore to require the application of a quality assurance program? If this is the intent, then what criteria may be used to evaluate "the importance of individual structures, systems and components to safety", in establishing an appropriate level of quality assurance program for each affected element? If it is not intended that all structures, systems and components are to be considered safety related, what criteria may be used to define the safety related structures, systems and components. Subpart I on training and certification should \$72.91-72.94 make explicit the obvious intent that these issues are not part of the licensing process.

- 21 -



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

(5) 3 JAN 1979 SI) 3 JAN 1979 HIMOGED RULE PR - 72 (43FR 46309)

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

ATTN: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Mr. Secretary:

We appreciate the opportunity to offer comments on NRC's proposed licensing requirements for Spent Fuel Storage Installation which appeared in the Federal Register October 6, 1978.

Our only comment of substance concerns your requirement that such independent storage facilities provide radiation protection consistent with this Agency's public health protection standards for the Uranium Fuel Cycle (40 CFR 190). We generally support your use of these requirements in this fashion. Your use of these standards in combination with the other requirements stated in the proposed rule will, we believe, provide adequate public health protection for such facilities.

Sincerely yours,

Kailland for

William A. Mills, Ph.D. Acting Deputy Assistant Administrator for Radiation Programs (ANR-458)

heliumitate ale cord. 115-



EBASCO SERVICES



Mr Russell E L Stanford Office of Standards Development US Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D C 20555

Dear Mr Stanford:



SUBJECT: COMMENTS ON PROPOSED IDCFR72 STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION

In response to your request for comments on proposed regulation 10 CFR Part 72, we are pleased to provide the following (page numbers refer to the notice as published in the Federal Register of October 6, 1978):

- Page 46309, Third Column, First Complete Paragraph We concur with the concept of having a single license cover both construction and operation of the ISFSI. However the rules regarding conditions of issuance should be further clarified, especially with regard to license re-evaluations.
- Page 46309, Third Column, Seventh Paragraph "Sufficient aging" for dry storage of spent fuel should be defined, along with a minimum age or criteria for the determination of a minimum age.
- 3. Page 46309, Third Column, Last Paragraph The possibility of accepting, under special contingency conditions, a limited number of fuel assemblies with less than one year decay but more than a specified minimum age should be considered.
- 4. Page 46310, First Column, Second Paragraph The provisions for periodic inspection and surveillance of critical components should be related to specific, identified concerns and requirements for inspection and surveillance.
- 5. Page 46310, Second Column, Paragraph continued from previous column -The sentence "based on previous evaluations of the impact of transporting spent fuel, the savings achieved by the site restrictions are justified, " needs further justification. Please clarify what savings would be achieved by the site restriction.

1/15.....

EBASCO SERVICES

Mr Russell E L Stanford

January 4, 1979

6. Page 46310, Second Column, Pourth Paragraph - Some references should be provided to demonstrate that the level of radioactive materials in the ambient air in the spent fuel storage area of an ISFSI is normally about five percent of 10 CFR 20 limits for occupied areas.

-2-

- Page 46310, Third Column, Third Paragraph We believe that an ISFSI should be indemnified by Price-Anderson Act coverage in order to be consistent with coverage afforded to spent fuel in transport or in storage at reactor plants.
- 8. Page 46312, First Column, Paragraph 72.3(s) The definition of structures, systems and components important to safety is extremely broad and is not consistent with the philosophy used elsewhere in the Commission's regulations for defining such items. As used in 10CFR 50 and 100 Appendix A, the term "important to safety" has heretofore been applied only to those structures, systems or components which are necessary to prevent doses to the public and to assential plant operating personnel from exceeding regulatory limits for accident conditions and anticipated operational occurrences. The definition given in paragraph 72.3(s) makes no distinction between normal operating the definition to explicitly eliminate items required solely for normal operating conditions from consideration in identifying structures, systems and components "important to safety."
- 9. Page 46314, First Column, Paragraph (13) If criticality is to be considered an accident, the means of causing such a criticality accident should be described.
- 10. Page 46314, Third Column, Section 72.20 This requirement will probably be the critical path item for the licensing of an ISFSI. We believe that revisions to 10CFR51 are required to delineate the specific requirements for contents of an Environmental Report for an ISFSI and to identify the extent to which the GEIS can serve as a basis for findings required by NEPA.
- Page 46314, Column 3, Paragraph 72.31(9) The criteria which would be used in determining the adequacy of the applicant's decommissioning plan and its financing should be identified.

EBISCO SERVICES

Mr Russell E L Stanford

-3-

- 12. Page 46319, First Column, Paragraph 72.67(b) We find the establishment of a more restrictive offsite individual accident dose limit for ISFS installations than that contained in 10CFR100 to be inconsistent with the supplementary introduction statements regarding the risk of accidents in such facilities relative to risks associated with power reactors. The rationale set forth in the introductory statement, to the effect that such a lower value will provide a satisfactory limit on the incremental risk to the public resulting from locating an ISFSI on an existing reactor site, implies a degree of precision and utilization of risk assessment techniques which does not currently exist. Indeed there are no comparable strictures based on incremental risk placed on the co-location of a number of power reactor units on a single site. We recommend that the ISFSI offsite accident dose limit be made consistent with the 10CFR100 limit (ie, 25 rem in 2 hours). Although the lower limit of 5 rem may well be reasonably achievable in most cases, we find this co be an inadequate basis for regulation.
- 13. Page 46319, Third Column, Paragraph 72.71(5) As in our comments above on offsite accident dose limits, the strictures placed on colocation of an ISFSI with other nuclear facilities to limit incremental risk is not consistent with the Commission's siting policy with regard to power reactors. If it is accepted that the risk associated with an ISFSI is considerably less than the risk associated with a power reactor, it must be accepted that the incremental risk associated with co-locating an ISFSI with a power reactor cannot increase overall risk significantly. The current level of uncertainty in risk assessment techniques does not permit quantification of risk of the degree that would be required to show compliance with the requirements of item (5) of the proposed General Design Criteria. We therefore recommend its deletion.
- 14. Page 46319, Third Column, Paragraph (8) (ii) What pool water level would be considered to be a safe limit? This limit probably should be tied to Subsection 14(v) on the following page in terms of providing sufficient shielding. However, for doses to be as low as reasonably achievable would mean a study is required of the maximum shielding water depth that could be reasonably achieved, rather than just a depth that results in acceptably low doses.
- 15. Page 46320, First Column, Paragraph (13) (11) The regulation should indicate whether credit for the use of liquid absorbing materials (poisons) in the pool is allowed.

Mr Russell E L Stanford

-4-

16. Page 46329, First Column, Paragraph (14), Line 6 - The words "significantly above background levels" should be defined in terms of a numeric range.

17. Page 46320, Second Column, Paragraph (18) (iii) - "Confinement systems" should be defined more specifically. For instance, would a building with no special ventilation requirements over the spent fuel pool be adequate? If not, Paragraph (8) (iii), on the previous page, should be rewritten.

As a final comment we feel some guidance is needed on the expected lead times for NRC review of ISFSI license applications (especially with respect to final SAR updates submitted 90 days prior to the receipt of spent fuel).

We appreciate being given the opportunity to comment on this proposed regulation and hope that our comments will be useful to you. Please forward any later drafts of the $r_{-\infty}$:lation as well as other pertinent documents as they are issued.

Very truly yours,

EP Oponnell

E P O'Donnell Chief Engineer Nuclear Licensing

EPO:ku

bc: E Kuhn H Rothstein S Allocca V Macek W J Fretague K W Downes M P Horrell J J Mauro J C Saldarini L T Skoblar C Uliano (L-ADM-79-10) (File C.24, G.9)





January 4, 1979

the City of Los Angeles

TOM BRADLEY Mayor Commission BARA C. STIVELHAN, President HERBERT C. WARD, Vice President RICARDO R. GUTIERREZ JOHN L. MALDNEY PATRICIA C. NAGLE JUDITH K. DAVISON, Secretary LOUIS H. WINNARD, General Manager and Chief Engineer CARL M. TAMARI, Assissant General Manager and Chief Engineer FAUL H. LATR, Chief Engineer of Water Works and Assistant Manager JAMES L. MULLOY, Chief Electrical Engineer and Assistant Manager WILLIAM D. SACHAU, Chief Financial Officer

NOCLET FOLLOW MUHOSED RULE MI- 72(43FR 46309

Secretary of the Commission United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, P. C. 20555

Attention Docketing and Service Branch

Gentlemen:

Comments on Proposed Licensing Requirements: Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation

This is in response to the announcement in the Federal Register dated October 6, 1978, requesting comments on proposed licensing requirements for storage of spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI).

Our understanding of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC) intention in proposing Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 72 (10 CFR 72), as stated in the Supplementary Information, was to consider "whether a new seismic siting approach for an ISFSI should be adopted which recognizes that the simple static nature of an ISFSI makes seismic risk less serious than it is for a reactor" (emphasis added). However, the proposed regulations as set forth in paragraphs 72.66 and 72.71 of 10 CFR 72 do not accomplish the NRC's intention. We believe that the "new seismic siting approach for an ISFSI" being considered by the NRC as set forth in paragraphs 72.66 and 72.71 of 10 CFR 72 would still require extensive geologic investigations and would not result in significant savings of resources and time. It appears that the modification of seismic and geologic siting criteria (e.g., use of probabilistic methods) for nuclear facilities would be more appropriately located in a revised Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 100 (10 CFR 100).

14-11-11-11-11-5



Water and Power Conservation ... 2 way of Hite 111 North Hope Street, Los Angeles, California @ Mailing address: Box 111, Los Angeles 90%; Secretary of the Commission - 2 - January 4, 1979

For the above reasons, we believe that with regard to the criteria for defining acceptable seismic characteristics for an ISFSI located at a site which has not been licensed, the proposed regulations in paragraph 72.66 of 10 CFR 72 should provide that the site seismic and geologic characteristics for evaluation of the suitability of the site shall be determined in accordance with 10 CFR 100. Also, we believe that the proposed regulations in paragraph 72.71 of 10 CFR 72 should provide that structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena, such as earthquakes with a horizontal ground motion acceleration as determined by 10 CFR 100.

Additionally, as peak acceleration levels increase for a given site, the appropriateness of the NRC staff's requirement for anchoring a Regulatory Guide 1.60 response spectra based on peak ground acceleration becomes questionable. Evidence was presented to the NRC and the Advisory Committee on Reactor Safeguards on studies conducted for the San Joaquin Nuclear Project Early Site Review Report, indicating that there are more appropriate methods for establishing spectra levels of shaking associated with earthquakes. Alternate methodologies presented include the scaling of real earthquake response spectra, use of spectral intensities and spectral ordinates. We believe that the emphasis placed in the proposed regulation on the use of peak ground acceleration for determining the seismic characteristics of a site (i.e., for normalizing design response spectra) is not appropriate for sites with moderate to high peak ground accelerations.

We believe that these comments will be of use to you in developing the finalized regulations for licensing an ISFSI.

Sincerely,

James & Mulling

JAMES L. MULLOY Chief Electrical Engineer and Assistant Manager

cc: Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Office of Standards Development United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Mail Stop NL Washington, D. C. 20555

Schult eth Courte in vice scelar ind. Post Office Box 2625 Birmingham, Alabama 35202 Telephone 205 870-6011

John Windhorst Manager Civil Design Department Concrete

DOCKLT DUSSER R46309) PROPOSED RULE 11 -72

Re: 10CFR Part 72 - Storage of Spent Fuel In an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation

Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch

Dear Mr. Stanford:



January 3, 1979

I wish to thank you for your offer to comment on the proposed regulation for ISFSI's. Both as a member of the ANS Nuclear Power Plant Standards Committee and as an engineer engaged in the design of nuclear power plant facilities, this regulation is of interest to me. As Southern Company Services is active in the nuclear power area, I have solicited comments from others inside our organization in their areas of expertise and concern.

The offer of acceptance of 0.25g as the limiting earthquake ground motion appears to be a positive step to cut costs and reduce regulatory review time; however, in reviewing the application of these design features, there are a number of factors in the regulation which limits its use. Some geological investigation would be required to ascertain that no unusual geological condition exists. The foundation investigation would have to ascertain that bedrock exists at the base level for the structures. After these two conditions are determined, there would be little additional expense accrued to determine a site specific "g" value. The set "g" value of .25g is proposed to approve some 95% of the continental area seismically. In looking at the Southeast, the bedrock requirement excludes about 75% of the area. In considering the area east of the Rockies, this requirement excludes the coastal plains, the river valleys and the embayment areas, leaving probably less than 50% of the area. Of the areas available, much of it is remote and the terrane is too rough for developing a site for this usage. More and more restrictions are being added to transporting of radioactive material and in the future, long hauls may be prohibitive in costs. In the Southeast most of the area (except around Charleston and a portion of the Piedmont province) is designated as UBC Zone 0 or Zone 1 and the proposed value is extremely high for the potential seismic loading conditions. If a new seismic siting approach is to be offered, it should include a more rational approach of various values for general locations and foundation conditions.

The balance of our comments relate to specific paragraphs and for your ease of review are arranged in order by the indicated paragraph number as follows:

strandenilie mid. 1/15

Page 2 January 3, 1979

- 72.15(6) This requirement is redundent to (5) and should be deleted. Minimize is a somewhat ambiguous term and we could not determine how to explain this satisfactorily in a license application.
- 72.15(12)(B)(iii) The requirement for procedures should be deleted as they are included in other regulations.
- 72.18(b) Financial arrangements for decommissioning of nuclear facilities is an open question before the Commission and should not be included in this document at this time.
- 72.18(a) The last sentence should be deleted as the knowhow to accomplish this is not available at this time.
- 72.32 As the time period for power plants is 40 years, there is no apparent reason that this should be less for an ISFSI which is designed to similar requirements. (See 10CFR50.51)
- 72.42(a) The requirement for backfitting for "occupational health and safety" should be deleted as being inconsistent with the requirements for power plants. (See 10CFR50.109)
- 72.67(a) Reference should be to Part 50 Appendix I or the requirements should be made consistent. Although the potential is much less at this type facility the requirements should be consistent as a rational approach.
- 72.67(b) The requirements should be consistent with Part 100 for the same reasons.
- 72.71(2)(ii) This section should permit the use of a site specific ground motion acceleration ("g" value) as allowed in Paragraph 72.66.
- 72.71(2)(iv) Almost all sites will be over an aquifer of sorts and to preclude the potential for transport of radioactive materials through this medium is virtually impossible. As the flow of an aquifer is normally very slow, means are available to restrict or limit the movement outside the site borders. We suggest a rewording to limit the transporting within present offsite requirements.
- 72.71(5) Does this relate to one owner? If not this would be outside the control of the licensee.
- 72.71(8)(ii) Since temporary loss of water will not cause criticallity why is it necessary to design to maintain a "safe" pool water level?
- 72.71(11) Would non-normal or ab-normal be more understandable than off-normal?
- 72.71(16) The last sentence is not consistent with present requirements, suggest it read "a means of determining" in place of "measuring".

Mark Issell E. L. Stanford Page 3 January 3, 1979

- 72.71(18)(v) The minimization of wastes is a fine objective and one, I am certain, all designers will include; however, it is not one that is auditable or proveable. As it is an economic consideration, it should not be required in a regulation.
- 72.71(20) Some comment as above on minimizing.
- 72.93 How do you determine an acceptable mental condition under present government restrictions? Is the requirement limited to knowledge or does it include psychological analyses?
- 72.3(\$)(3) "Protect plant personnel from exposure to radiation in excess of design objectives". Structural items in this category are not considered safety related or important to safety in power plant design and should be deleted for an ISFSI as the proposed inclusion would require that shielding comply with safety quality standards and be designed for severe natural phenomena loadings.

The "Supplementary Information" section requests comments on application of the Price-Anderson Act to ISFSI's and I have contacted our Corporate Insurance Department for their input. I have not received it at this time, but will forward it to you when I do.

If you have any questions or wish to discuss the comments further, I may be contacted at 205-870-6670 during working hours or at 205-879-5671 at home at other times.

John Windhorst

ra

PATONUSED KULE -72 (43FR 46309)

Telephone 617 366-9011 TWX 710-390-0739

YANKEE ATOMIC ELECTRIC COMPANY



20 Turnpike Road Westborough, Massachusetts 01581

January 4, 1979 FCM-78-58

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing & Service Branch

Subject: Proposed rule 10CFR Part 72



This letter is in response to a Federal Register Notice (Volume 43, No. 195 - Friday, October 6, 1978) inviting public comment on a Nuclear Regulatory Commission proposed rule on the storage of spent fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI). The comments provided here are submitted by the Nuclear Services Division of Yankee Atomic Electric Company on behalf of the three nuclear plants for which we have operating responsibility, namely Yankee Rowe, Vermont Yankee, and Maine Yankee.

In March of 1978 the NRC published a Draft Environmental Impact Statement on Handling and Storage of Spent Light Water Power Reactor Fuel (NUREG-0404) which found a need for a more definitive regulatory basis for the licensing of future "storage-only" facilities. We also recognize the need for this new regulatory basis. Our review of the proposed rule 10 CFR Part 72 leads us to believe that it is a reasonably good foundation from which to fashion a final regulation. In particular we are pleased to see a proposal for a procedure with a single license and a single safety analysis report. Such a procedure offers the potential for more expeditious licensing than occurs now with the two-step process for nuclear reactors.

We believe that there are several areas in which the proposed rule could be improved. These include the following:

Admoniad and and 1/15

Secretary of e Commission Page 2

January 4, 1979 FCM-78-58

In Section 72.15 the minimum required technical information for the Safety Analysis Report is listed. Item 1 on this list deals with analysis of potential doses to offsite individuals from postulated accidents and natural phenomena. Among the accidents to be considered is criticality. This is a significant departure from common practice in reactor licensing for storage pools and one which we believe is inappropriate. Spent fuel storage racks are designed in such a way that a criticality accident is impossible with fresh reactor fuel. Under these circumstances there is no reason to consider criticality as a design basis accident, and therefore we recommend that it be excluded from those accidents requiring offsite dose calculations.

The sections on Accommissioning are unduly restrictive. In sections 72.18 and 72.38 reference is made to dismantling as part of the decommissioning process. Since dismantling is not the only form of decommissioning, we do not believe it is appropriate in 10 CFR Part 72 to uply that dismantling must be done. While we agree that decommissioning should be considered in the licensing procedures, we do not believe that it is appropriate to demand detailed plans and financial arrangements for a procedure that will not take place for several decades.

Part (d) on Effluent Controls in section 72.33 is somewhat confusing. There are two references in this part to "design objectives" but there is no definition of this term or information on how such objectives will be established. We believe that this part should be clarified.

- We see no reason why a license for an ISFSI should be limited to 20 years. A facility such as this should have an economic life well in excess of 20 years. Although the 40 year limit on licenses for power reactors is also arbitrary, we believe that 40 years would be a more appropriate license limit for ISFSI's than 20 years.
- In section 72.41, it is stated in part that the NRC may under certain circumstances "cause the retaking of possession of all special nuclear material contained in spent fuel held by the licensee". It is not clear who will actually "retake" possession and whether retaking implies an actual physical transfer of spent fuel.
- o Section 72.42 deals with backfitting. It states that "the Commission may require the backfitting of an ISFSI if it finds that such action will provide substantial additional protection which is required for either occupational or public health and safety." We believe that justification for backfitting should also include a cost/benefit evaluation to assure that arbitrary and expensive backfitting requirements are not imposed which may not have commensurate benefits.

Secretary of the Cormission Page 3 January 4, 1979 FCM-78-58

- Paragraph (b) of section 72.67 specifies an exposure limit of 5 Rem in 2 hours for the controlling design basis accident at the outside boundary of the controlled area. It is not clear whether this exposure is meant to be a whole body exposure or an organ limit or both.
- In subpart F General Design Criteria several overall requirements are listed. These include under Protection against Environmental Conditions and Natural Phenomena a subparagraph dealing with siting over aquifers. This paragraph reads:
 - (iv) If an ISFSI is located over an aquifer, measures must be taken to preclude the transport of radioactive materials to man and the environs through this potential pathway.

We believe that this paragraph needs further clarification. A definition of aquifer to which this section will apply would be helpful. We believe that the word "preclude" should be replaced by "limit" and that the section should corclude with a phrase such as "...if analysis indicates that there exists a mechanism by which radionuclides could reach the aquifer".

In addition to comments on the proposed rule, the Commission requested suggestions on whether or not ISFSI's should be covered by the Price-Anderson Act. We contend that storage of spent fuel assemblies in an ISFSI is not significantly different from storage in pools at nuclear reactors which are already covered by Price-Anderson. Although the possibility of an accident at an ISFSI affecting the general public is extremely remote, it would appear useful to assure the public that in the event that such an accident did occur, they would be protected by Price-Anderson coverage. Therefore, we recommend that the Commission exercise its discretionary authority and prescribe requirements for financial responsibility under the Price-Anderson Act.

Included among the potential locations for an ISFSI are individual reactor sites. These reactor sites are licensed under 10 CFR Part 50. Presumably construction of an ISFSI on a licensed site could be accomplished through the mechanism of amending an existing Part 50 license instead of through the new Part 72 licensing scheme. We would like to see this Part 50 option left available to holders of Part 50 licenses and note that no mention is made of this alternative in the proposed rule. Clarification of this point in the final rule would be useful.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed rule. We would be pleased to further discuss our concerns with you upon request.

Very truly yours,

YANKEE ATOMIC ELECTRIC COMPANY

EVadebay &

D. E. Vandenburgh () Senior Vice President

B-204



January 4, 1979



Secretary United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

RE: 10 CFR, Part 72 - Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation - Proposed Licensing Requirements

Gentlemen:

These comments with respect to the proposed licensing requirements for independent spent fuel storage installations are submitted on behalf of Commonwealth Edison Company. Edison is an investor-owned electric utility which has a substantial commitment to nuclear generation. Consequently, Edison has a vital interest in the development and regulation of the disposition of spent fuel.

Edison is a member of the Utility Waste Management Group (UWMG) and has reviewed the comments which that group is submitting to the Commission with respect to 10 CFR, Part 72. Edison concurs with the UWMG comments. We particularly urge the Commission and its staff to give careful and serious consideration to the UWMG comments concerning the importance of relying upon generic environmental impact statements in licensing particular ISFSIS.

Commonwealth Edison believes that in most instances a license for an ISFSI will be requested prior to the commencement of construction. For such situations, clarification of proposed section 72.15(b) is necessary to assure that last minute requests for a second hearing do not delay the operation of the facility. With respect to reactors, some changes in design first receive review in connection with the issuance of an operating license. While the more limited nature of an ISFSI suggests that few design changes which would require amendments will occur after the issuance of a license, the rules ought to provide for prompt consideration of such changes. As a result, we suggest that the following language be added at the end of section 72.15(b).

1/15

Secretary January 4, 1979 Page Two

> If the Applicant's review pursuant to section 72.34 indicates that any portions of an updated SAR require amendment of its license, a request for such an amendment shall be submitted with the updated SAR. The Commission will review such requests as promptly as possible and any construction activities conducted in accordance with the proposed amendment pending approval shall be at the Applicant's risk.

Edison appreciates this opportunity to comment on proposed 10 CFR, Part 72. If we can be of further assistance to the Commission or its staff with respect to this matter, please do not hestitate to call upon us.

Very truly yours,

C. Read

C. Reed Assistant Vice President



State of New Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

DIVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BUREAU OF RADIATION PROTECTION 380 SCOTCH ROAD. TRENTON, N. J. 08628

UNICAL! NUMMEN PROPOSED RULE FIT

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Muclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Sir:

January 2, 1979 JAN 1 2 1979

The New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection has reviewed the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission's proposed regulation 10CFR Part 72 "Storage of Spent Fuel in Independent Spent Fuel Installation". The regulations appear to be consistent with other regulations written by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission for other types of facilities, for example, utilization and production facilities. Except for administrative procedures, which must be established early, the regulations are very brief and are stated in general terms. No doubt, as design and construction of Away-from-Reactor (AFR) facilities begin, more details will appear in the regulations. For example, the regulations reflect the presently favored underwater storage concept. If and when facilities are constructed for dry storage of spent fuel, it might be worthwhile to prepare specific regulations for the method. Alternatively, the regulations can be kept very general and supplemented with regulatory guides to aid in their interpretation. No doubt, a combination of these procedures will be used.

The regulations under consideration should form the nucleus for viable regulatory activities concerned with the storage.of spent reactor fuel.

Very truly yours.

Nuclear Engineer Bureau of Radiation Protection

.N:js

Astmanted astar and 1/15



STATEOFCONNECTICUT

POWER FACILITY EVALUATION COUNCIL STATE OFFICE BUILDING HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06115 TEL (203) 566-5612

PROMOSED RULE PR-72(43FR46309

GLORIA DIBBLE POND

CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONER MIRIAM BUTTERWORTH STANLEY J. PAC

OWEN L. CLARK FRED J. DOOCY MORTIMER A. GELSTON JAMES G. HORSFALL

COLIN C. TAIT

January 2, 1979

UDCALL BUMPTR

Mr. Russell E.L. Stanford Office of Standards Development United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555



PATRICIA M. SMITH

EVECUTIVE DIRECTOR MRS RAEANN CURTIS

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT

58

Dear Mr. Stanford:

The Power Facility Evaluation Council shares the concern of NRC over disposition of spent fuel before a permanent repository is established. It is important that a definitive arrangement be made for spent fuel and other highly radioactive materials as soon as possible. The Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) regulations (10 CFR Part 72) properly address this interim problem.

Although the proposed rule does not address financial liability protection, comment was sought on this issue. NRC should include the ISFSI in its broader study of financial protection requirements of materials licensees. These proposed ISFSI facilities will become a part of the nuclear fuel processing cycle, and as such should be subject to the requirements for public liability and financial protection. The PFEC follows with interest the NRC review of possible financial protection requirements.

In the Proposed Rules: Section 72.3 should define "temporary storage." There is confusion as to the ultimate fate of ISFSI. Is this to be a part of the routine processing of spent fuels before they are emplaced in a geologic repository, or is this an interim arrangement to be discontinued once a more permanent disposition is in place? Data concerning the disintegration of spent fuel claddings may provide a time frame for use of an interim storage facility.

We suggest an additional criterion to add to <u>Subpart E</u> -<u>Siting Criteria</u>. In choosing sites for ISFSI, consideration should be given to transportation corridors involved in moving spent fuel from present locations to the proposed sites. The regulations should define criteria for locating ISFSI with minimum transportation requirements.

mana and and the

Post Office Box 21666 Phoenix, Arizona 85036

3FR46309 MITTALED RULE FIL

January 4, 1979 ANPP-12364-ACR/MDH

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Atten: Docketing and Service Branch

Subject: Proposed Regulation 10CFR Part 72 Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation, October 1978 File: 79-057-026

Gentlemen:

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the subject proposed regulation. The need for this intermediate storage facility as well as permanent high level waste disposal facilities is urgent in order to avoid the discontinuation of the nuclear option, and we wish to support your efforts in this area. We do, however, still believe that reprocessing is a sound and proper step in the fuel cycle. Our comments here should not be taken otherwise.

We are generally supportive of the 10CFR Part 72 proposed NRC Regulations for Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI). Several specific comments follow but in a more general way we would like to recommend against tightening up of the proposed regulations as may be recommended by many in this commentary period. We believe the regulations as they have been stated are sufficiently conservative to fully protect the health and welfare of the general public.

Our specific comments are as follows:

- 1. We support the idea of a "new seismic siting approach" which recognizes that the seismic risk factor for an ISFSI is less serious than for a nuclear reactor. Along the same line we support the thought that an approved reactor site is most certainly suitable for an ISFSI.
- 2. We believe it would be desirable that the responsibility for public liability and the applicability of Price-Anderson be defined. It seems reasonable that some application of the Price-Anderson Act would be appropriate to the liability coverage for such a facility. A lower level of private insurance and

Action and an and allo

B-209

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission January 4, 1979 Page Two

> the utilization of Price-Anderson at a lower fee structure than for a reactor site seem appropriate. The same conceptual approach of the application of Price-Anderson should be applied to this facility as has been applied to reprocessing plant liability.

- 3. The statement in the introduction that periodic surveillance of critical components be required is vague. The most critical of the components is that of the fixed neutron poison, assuming a poisoned rack design, and related to this poison the proposed rule states the "the design shall provide for positive means to verify their continued efficacy". It could easily be argued that observation of a sealed noncorrosive kind of poison could be satisfactorily inspected by visual means but the regulation seems to indicate that some kind of "test" is required. In reactors a coupon test approach is considered satisfactory for certain applications of data verification or collection and this type of approach might be satisfactory for this application.
- 4. The relationship of the proposed regulation to the recently issued NRC Reg Guide 3.44 (USNRC Office of Standards Development, December 1978) has not been identified in this regulation. We have not had sufficient time to correlate this Reg. Guide to the Proposed Regulations, but it is clear that they should be compatible with each other.
- 5. Recognizing that aged fuel has a significantly lower release hazard some consideration should be given to minimizing the need for extensive meteorological testing for site approval. A "standard" meteorological criteria should be quite adequate for the safety analysis.
- Section 72.3(b) We suggest that the definit on of "As low as is reasonably achievable" reference 10CFR50 Appendix I as more specific requirements are contained therein.
- 7. Section 72.3(j) In order to avoid any confusion between an "Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)" and fuel storage facilities normally associated with an operating reactor we suggest that a phrase be added which states that an ISFSI is also not covered by 10CFR50.
- 8. Section 72.3(r) We think that the flexibility for a ISFSI to receive nuclear fuel other than from light water reactors is valuable (unless this falls under the scope of another regulation). A requirement could be added to commit in the SAR to the types of fuels to be stored.
- 9. Section 72.18 We do not think that the nuclear industry's technological base, as well as federal regulatory guidance, is sufficient at this time to require the submittal of decommissioning plans. Further, industry experience may undergo significant changes during the plant lifetime, thus rendering initial plans obsolete. Similarly, the costs

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission January 4, 1979 Page Three

> associated with decommissioning are not well identified. It should be the responsibility of the applicant to recover these costs by appropriately adjusting storage charges. Thus, the financial qualifications of the applicant are not affected with regard to licensing for construction. Local regulatory bodies may require a provision for decommissioning financing on the part of utilities so that costs may be included in rate bases. The balance of ownership should be by private corporations.

If you wish to discuss any of these items further, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,, E.S. Vau Poru

E. E. Van Brunt, Jr. APS Vice President, Nuclear Projects ANPP Project Director

EEVBJr/MDH/sb

DUKE POWER COMPANY

POWER BUILDING 422 SOUTH CHURCH STREET, CHARLOTTE, N. C. 28242

January 4, 1979 WILLIAM O. PARKER, JR. STEAM PRODUCTION BBCMES MUMANIN MICHURED RULE TIT-

TELEPHONE: AREA 704 373-4083

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch



Dear Sir:

VICE PRESIDENT

Duke Power Company has reviewed the new regulation specifying procedures and requirements for issuance of licenses to store spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI) to be issued under 10CFR Part 72.

Please find attached our comments on the proposed regulation.

truly yours, Vert acker William O. Parker, Jr.

GJP:scs Attachment

1/15

 With regard to the question of whether the Commission should exercise its authority under Price-Anderson to provide financial protection for public liability in the case of ISFSI, Duke takes the following position:

Away-from-reactor storage embraces three categories of ISFSI's. First, an independent facility at an independent site; second, an independent facility at an existing reactor site; and third, a shared (new or existing) facility at an existing reactor site.

With respect to an independent facility at an independent site, financial protection is not mandatory if the facility is not a production or utilization facility. However, the Commission may, at its discretion, impose a financial protection requirement. To determine whether it will exercise its discretion, it is necessary for the Commission to go through the statutory analysis as set forth in Section 170 of the Act. In the event the Commission determines that financial protection is required it should also provide indemnification pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act. However, it does not necessarily follow that the retrospective premium system would apply, particularly in light of the unique characteristics of such a facility. Further, it is our view that unless maximum financial protection were required (a position we maintain, based upon our analysis, is unwarranted), the retrospective system is not applicable inasmuch as the Commission has chosen to distinguish between reactor and storage risks.

With regard to an independent facility at an existing site, a problem arises with respect to ascertaining the cause of an event on the existing site (and/or the source of releases). Such a problem leads to uncertainty of coverage. If it can be concluded that it will always be possible to determine the specific cause (and/or source), then the storage facility could be treated as a separate facility at a separate site. Such a result would normally bring into play the factors presented in the preceding discussion of this category, except that as a practical matter, no additional nuclear liability insurance is available at a site which has one or more commercial reactors. This leads to potential gaps in the scope or amount of coverage as between financial protection and indemnity, and accordingly, it seems preferable to include the storage activity in the operating license with its attendant financial protection and indemnity. It should be noted that in the event the reactor located on the site has yet to receive an operating license, the storage activity should be treated as an independent facility at an independent site. It cannot be said with equal confidence whether in all cases one could ascertain the cause of the event or source of the release, in the interest of placing no unnecessary hurdles in the way of public recovery because of the inability to sort out the sources in a common occurrence, financial protection and indemnity should be combined for the storage and reactor ... From the Applicant and the Commission's administrative standpoint, such an approach is warranted. This works no change in the coverage for the existing facility.

For shared facilities, the cause of the event (and/or the source of release) probably cannot be distinguished and thus, as set forth immediately above, financial protection and indemnification should be combined for the storage and the reactor.

With respect to the application of the retrospective premium system to the storage facilities located on a reactor site, such system should come into play only through the reactor or the production facility rather than the storage facility.

- 2. It is Duke's position that decommissioning plans should be developed in a time frame current with the decommissioning in order to utilize the latest in decontamination techniques and to be assured of a much more realistic cost analysis of decommissioning alternatives. The sections referring to decommissioning should require a decommissioning plan only of a conceptual nature.
- 3. Section 72.31 does not include a time table for filing of an application, processing by the NRC Staff, and issuance of the license. It is suggested that an application be submitted by the licensee at least twelve months prior to the proposed commencement of construction so the NRC could have twelve months to rule on the application. However, the applicant should be allowed to begin construction at his own risk prior to issuance of a Construction Permit by the NRC.
- Section 72.55(c) should either be deleted or justification given for its purpose.
- 5. There appears to be conflict between 72.71 Overall Requirements 2(ii) and the last paragraph in the right column on page 46309 for design requirements for tornado protection.
- Section 72.71 which addresses "Utility Services" is not entirely clear. Reference should be made to electric power sources if that is what is meant by utility services.

8ox 10864

Pittsburgh Pennsylvania 15238

BOCKET INUMBER PR-72(43FR46309) PROPOSED RULE

Westinghouse Electric Corporation Power Systems Company

M T Johnson General Manager Advanced Energy Systems Division

Secretary of the Commission. U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Sir:



This is in response to your request for review comments on the proposed rule 10CFR Part 72, "Licensing Requirements for the Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation" (43 FR 46309, October 6, 1978). Westinghouse has reviewed the proposed new rule and hereby offers for your consideration the general comments stated below and the specific detailed comments in the Attachment.

The existing rules and regulations for LWR power plants set forth in other parts of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations have evolved from years of development and careful deliberation. ISFSI facilities should have less potential for risk to the health and safety of the public than a LWR facility. Therefore, most of the existing requirements and criteria for LWRs should be more than adequate for the ISFSI facilities.

Thus, it is not expected the requirements for ISFSI should be more stringent than those for LWR plant spent fuel facilities. Further, it is considered that any departures from existing LWR rules and regulations should be in the direction of relaxation of requirements, rather than being more stringent, as are certain parts of the proposed new rule. Where such relaxation is not appropriate, maximum use should be made of existing LWR rules and regulations. including terminology. For example, it would seem appropriate to make provision for some form of limited work authorization as is the case for LWRs.

With regard to Price-Anderson coverage, in view of its benefit for the public and the industry, we believe that Price-Anderson coverage should be extended to ISFSI facilities.

We appreciate this opportunity to comment on this proposed new rule and would be pleased to offer our assistance to you in discussing these comments further.

Interest and a send ... Ilis

Att.

cc: Mr. Russell E. L. Stanford Office of Standards Development

Very truly your: M. T. Johnson

B-215

ADDITIONAL SPECIFIC COMMENTS ON THE PROPOSED RULE 10CFR72

- The term: "temporary storage" used in Section 72.1 (Purpose) is not defined. We believe that it is both appropriate and necessary to provide a clear definition for this term. This can be done by adding one additional definition in Paragraph 72.3: "Definitions".
- 2. The proposed regulation presents two definitions in Paragraph 72.3 which represent a set of terms different from those in other parts of lOCFR but whose meaning is essentially the same. These terms are:

 (g) "Controlled area" and (k) "Neighboring area". The term controlled area has the same meaning as restricted area defined in lOCFR20.3(a)
 (14) and exclusion area defined in lOCFR100.3.(a). The term neighboring area has the same meaning as low population zone defined in lOCFR100.3.
 (b). It appears unnecessary to create a new set of terms for this section of the regulation when terms with the same meaning exist elsewhere in the regulations.
- 3. The definition, as written, for "structures, systems and components important to safety" (Subparagraph 72.3.(S)) is unnecessarily overinclusive. We recommend that this definition be rewritten to be consistent with 10CFR50 as follows:

" 'Structures, systems and components important to safety' means those plant features which are required to reasonably assure that operation of the facility will not result in undue risk to the health and safety of the public."

- 4. The proposed regulations require in paragraph 72.15(13) an analysis of the offsite dose consequences of accidents which result in criticality. We believe that this requirement could result in evaluations of accidents which are beyond the "design basis". We believe that this paragraph or an additional paragraph in the regulations should require a definition of the design basis event(s) and the definition of acceptable design basis risk. The offsite dose analysis should then be performed for accidents up to and including the design basis event. If accident scenarios resulting in criticality are beyond this design basis, then the consequences of such scenarios should not be required to be analyzed.
- 5. Section 72.65 contains criteria for regional distribution of population which are not applied to LWRs. For reasons stated in the cover letter, such additional requirements are not appropriate. Furthermore, the proposed regulation requires, in paragraph 72.61 (e) and 72.65 (e), that the potential for radiological consequences in the region shall be evaluated. It is believed that the intent, although not clear, of this requirement is the performance of an offsite dose analysis of the design basis accident(s) with respect to the regional population. This is above and beyond the requirement for light water reactors under 10CFR100. Additionally, once the analysis has been completed, no criteria have been established against which to measure the acceptability of the results of the analysis. The only requirement for "regional" population dose assessment in the case of LWR licensing is

in the NEPA evaluation contained in the Environmental Report which is performed using realistic assumptions for the accident scenario. Definitive design objectives for such evaluations are given in Appendix I to 10CFR50.

6. The proposed regulations set radiological siting criterion in Paragraph 72.67(b) which appears to be arbitrary in nature and inconsistent with the LWR radiological criteria set forth in 10CFR100. We are of the opinion that the existing radiological siting criteria in 10CFR100 should be equally applicable to the ISFSI facilities and we strongly recommend that the setting of any new radiological siting criteria in 72.67.(b) must be based on clearly defined and sound justification.

The justification given for the 5 rem requirement is that this will permit an ISFSI to be located on a reactor site without adding substantially to public risk. This justification is inappropriate for the following reasons:

- Not all ISFSI's will be located on reactor sites. Those that are not should not be subjected to more stringent criteria than LWRs.
- Even if an ISFSI is located on a reactor site, it is not clear that such a stringent limit is required. The limit applied should be the same as that for the LWR (25 rem), as is the case if a second LWR were to be located on an existing reactor site.
- 7. Subparagraph 72.71.(3) requires that "Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed and located so as to <u>continue</u> to perform their safety functions effectively under fire and explosion <u>exposure conditions</u>." This design criterion as written is unnecessarily over-stringent and is above and beyond what is required for LWR facilities (re.10CFR50, Appendix A, GDC NO. 3 and Regulatory Guide 1.120, Regulatory Position C.1.d.(1)), as it implies that other non-firerelated plant accidents be considered coincident with fires and explosions.

Accordingly, we recommend that the foregoing sentence in the proposed 72.71.(3) be replaced with the LWR requirement defined in 10CFR50, Appendix A, GDC No. 3, which states: "Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed and located to minimize, consistent with other safety requirements, the probability and effect of fires and explosions."

8. Subparagraph 72.71.(8).(i) on design requirements for "Confinement barriers and systems" states that "The fuel cladding shall be protected against degradation and gross ruptures". We recommend that this provision be rewritten as: "The fuel cladding shall be protected against gross ruptures including proper consideration for minimizing long-term degradation of the cladding". 9. Subparagraph 72.71.(2).(iv) states: "If an ISFSI is located over an aquifer, measures must be taken to preclude the transport of cadioactive materials to man and the environs through this potential pathway".

We recommend the word "reasonably" be inserted between the words "to" and "preclude".

10. Subparagraph 72.15.(a).(12) requires the description of the equipment installed to control radioactive material in gaseous and liquid effluents and means for keeping levels of radioactive effluents to unrestricted areas as low as reasonably achievable. However, items (ii) and (v) introduce solid radioactive waste as an expansion of this requirement. This represents a new application of the ALARA concept not previously used in the LWR licensing. This concept requires a new cost-effectiveness evaluation not just amongst alternative solid radwaste systems but taking into account liquid and gaseous radwaste systems from whence the solid waste comes.

Since the present application of the ALARA concept was the result from extensive rule-making proceedings, we recommend that the extension to solid radwaste be deleted. If the intent is to extend it to solid waste, we believe it is more appropriate that it should be a subject of a separate proceeding.

- 11. We recommend that Paragraph 72.18(b) be revised to read: "The decommissioning plan will include plans for periodic review of the cost for decommissioning and a discussion of how the licensee will assure the Commission of its ability to pay these costs when they occur."
- 12. We recommend that the following note be added to Subparagraph 72.3.(r), "Spent Fuel": "Note: In addition to spent fuel, control rods and other irradiated core components discharged with the fuel may also be stored in ISFSI."
- 13. We recommend that a statement be included in the proposed rule in Section 72.1 or 72.2 to indicate that interpretations of these rules should not lead to more stringent requirements than those for the LWR plant spent fuel storage facilities.
- 14. In paragraph 72.15.(a).(5) we recommend that the words "and the limits shown in" be modified to "in accordance with".

PUBLIC DOCUMENT ROOM RECROSED BULE FR- 72(43FR46309) 1/15 79 JAN17 Secretary of the Commission 35 Idlebrook D. V. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Richmond, Va. 2323 Washington, D.C. 20555 January 15, 1979 Comments on Proposed IDEFR 72 .adged by card. . 1.1.7. Dear Sir: Thoughtful and, I believe, helpini attempt to provide the guidance industry needs to build an independent spent fuel storage installation. The effort you have put into this is a vetreshing change from the DOE. I do have the following suggestions: Section 72.42 on back fitting should require a cost benifit analysis to determine if the additional protection is worth the cost. Section 72.71(2)(ii) requires the a ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g be a design basis. This conflicts with 72,66(a) which gives the option of using a site specific acceleration. The applicant should have the option of using the same design basis earthquake as an already approved No.

reacter at the same site without additional study or regulatory review. Thank you for letting me express

my opinions.

Robert M. Mail

POOR ORIGINAL

9. 0. 90X 013100, MIAMI, FL _3101



FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY



Mr. Samuel J. Chilk Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Mr. Chilk:

Re: Proposed Rule 10 CFR 72 Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (October 1978)



Florida Power and Light Company has reviewed and supports the implementation of the proposed rule with the following comments.

I. The definition of "neighboring area" is unclear.

If this definition is to determine the zone of emergency planning, it is important to clearly establish a maximum size for this area. Failure to do so will lead to unnecessary difficulties in determining the intent of the regulation. This type of ambiguity increases the present uncertainty associated with regulatory compliance.

II. The definition of "structures, systems and components important to safety" is overly broad.

As set forth in Section 72.3(s) this definition includes components whose function is to maintain "required conditions". Without clarification this could include components that are not required to "prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public." (Appendix 8 10 CFR 50); therefore, Section 72.3(s) should be revised to reflect the same functional level as Appendix B.

III. The license duration should not be limited to 20 years.

10 CFR 50.51 puts a 40 year limit on an unrenewed facility license. Since it is possible to shutdown and decommission a nuclear power plant but still require a spent fuel storage facility, the duration of the ISFSI license should be at least as long as the plant operating license.

Acknowledged by card

Mr. Samuel J. Chilk Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Page 2

IV. The license conditions are overly inclusive.

The license conditions should include only those items that are required to protect public health and safety. Other items such as surveillance requirements are more properly established by procedures and administrative controls to which the licensee is committed.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the proposed rule.

Yours very truly,

R. E. Uhrig Vice President

REU: JRP:cf

cc: Robert Lowenstein, Esquire

ISHAM, LINCOLN & BEALE

1. 1. 1.

ONE FIRST NATIONAL PLAZA FORTY-SECOND FLOOR CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 80803

TELEPHONE 312-788-7500 TELEX: 2-5288

January 10, 1979 -72 (43 FR 46309)

Secretary United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

PROPUSE NULL

Attention: Docketing and Service Section

RE: Proposed 10 CFR Part 72

WASHINGTON OFFICE 1050 172 STREET. N. W. SEVENTH FLOOR NASHINGTON. 0. C. 20036 202-833-9730



Gentlemen:

We have been asked by Commonwealth Edison Company to make the following comment as a supplement to those submitted in its letter of January 5, 1979.

In view of the state of technology with respect to spent fuel storage, and the low possibility of radiation exposure to the public from such facilities, there is no justification for considering population density as an independent safety criterion in connection with identifying a site for an independent spent fuel storage installation. Population density should at most be considered with any environmental review that you are conducting.

Very truly yours,

John W. Rowe

JWR:emh

main adged by and . 1/19

790129 0211

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMEY" ROOM



United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

In Reply Refer To: ER 78/1125

JAN 1 1 1979

COCKET GUINGER PROPOSED RULL

Chairman of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555 ATIN: Docketing Service Branch



-3

Dear Sir:

We have reviewed the proposed rule, 10 CFR 72, to license the storage of spent fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI, 43 FR 46309) and have the following comment regarding site selection criteria.

Critoria for natural events to be considered in site selection are given only for seismicity. However, we recommend the potential for flooding also be considered in the selection of a site for an ISFSI. Flooding could affect storage facilities adversely and should be covered by criteria. Avoidance of floodplain sites would be in Tine with policies established in Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management.

We hope this comment will be helpful to you in the preparation of final rules. 3

Deronitir Ineternet

arry E. Meierotto SECRETARY

Acknowledged by card. 19
Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.

917 15TH STREET, N.W. WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005

202 737-5000

January 12, 1979

910

New York Office 122 EAST 42ND STREET NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017 212 949-0049

PROPUSED BULL - 72(43 FR 46309)



Samuel J. Chilk, Secretary U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Dear Mr. Chilk:

Western Office

2345 YALE STREET PALO ALTO, CALIF. 94306

415 317-1080

Enclosed are the Natural Resources Defense Council's Comments on the Proposed 10 CFR Part 72 Regulations. Although these comments are submitted on day after the one week extension granted on January 4, we request that they be a epted and considered.

Sincerely,

Anthony Z. Forsnan

enclosure

Acknowledged by card

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

In The Matter Of : 10 C.F.R. Part 72 : (Proposed Regulations) :

NATURAL RESOURCES DEFENSE COUNCIL COMMENTS ON PROPOSED 10 CFR PART 72 REGULATIONS

I. Policy Considerations

The proposed regulations are seriously flawed because they are premised on an unproved and unprovable assumption --<u>i.e.</u>, the assumption that storage of commercially generated spent fuel at an away-from-reactor (AFR) storage facility is a preferred solution to the problem created by continued generation of nuclear wastes without an implemented and acceptable method for nuclear waste disposal.

No federal agency has reached any final and legally defensible conclusion that the use of AFRs is warranted or desirable. The Department of Energy (DOE) continues to study the issue in an ongoing environmental review. That review has already created at DOE serious questions about the wisdom of a widespread AFR program.¹ The NRC as a Commission has

1/ Inside D.O.E. (January 1, 1979), p. 1:

DOE officials are leaning toward severely cutting back plans to store spent nuclear fuel in away-from-reactor (AFR) facilities, sources said last week, and are now considering only one or two AFR facilities where they had planned four as recently as six months ago. articulated no policy and the publication of the draft GZIS on interim spent fuel storage prepared by the Regulatory Staff must not be confused with a Commission position.² Despite this uncertain status of AFRs, the promulgation of the regulations at this time is clearly premised on the assumption that the use of AFRs will be acceptable government policy and regulations designed to facilitate that policy. If such a premise does not underly these regulations, then, at a minimum, the NRC should be simultaneously promulgating regulations for expansion of at-reactor storage of spent fuel for those cases where the utility seeks to build an additional pool and should be requiring for all plants proposed for construction and under construction that spent fuel storage capacity for the lifetime needs of the reactor be provided.

In comments filed on both the NRC draft GEIS and the DOE draft impact statements on the AFR proposal, we have fully articulated our basis for opposing the AFR concept. Rather than reiterate those comments, they are incorporated here by reference and copies are attached.

2

^{2/} In the preamble to the proposed rule, reference is made to the draft GEIS (and later only to the GEIS) as an NRC statement. This practice by the Staff of boot-strapping draft documents prepared by the Staff into Commission endorsements of the contents of the documents because they are <u>published</u> by the NRC does a disservice to the Commissioners and the public. Far more careful scrutiny of the contents of such documents would be required before the Commissioners could be said to have approved the contents as Commission policy.

Because there ... no policy now favoring the unlimited use of AFRs and because it is becoming increasingly clear that even if some AFR use is required it will be substantially restricted, we believe the davelopment of AFR licensing regulations is premature. Were the subsequent evolution of an AFR policy irrelevant to the licensing requirements, an early development of such regulations, while wasteful of limited Commission resources, might not be totally objectionable. However, the shape of the AFR policy would sharply influence the shape of the regulations. For instance, if the AFR policy prohibited the use of an AFR unless it could be shown that expansion of at-reactor storage would be unsafe, then the licensing requirements would not only have to incorporate this pre-condition but would also have to assure that AFR storage would be safer than the at-reactor storage option. Transportation and handling would necessarily be a part of this analysis and they would be affected by which reactor's fuel was proposed to be shipped to an AFR. To license the AFR without knowing the source of the fuel is to license blindly.

3

If the Commission is nonetheless committed to proceeding with licensing requirements for AFRs at this time, we believe the proposed amendments are seriously defective. The following discussion addresses those deficiencies.

II. Principal Deficiencies

đ.

A. Absence of a need requirement

The use of an AFR has been discussed exclusively as a stop-gap measure to assist utilities which do not have adequate storage space for spent fuel. Use of AFRs is not independently desirable, if desirable at all, and its use ought to be severely restricted to instances in which a clear need exists. These concepts should be embodied as preconditions to processing an application for construction of an AFR.

As the Commission is aware, the major (not the only) controversy about AFRs is whether to use them and not only whether in fact they are safe. It would be beneficial to resolve the issue of need before commencing the formal licensing process. By establishing an adjudicatory mechanism for resolution of that issue in advance of formal hearings on the specific project, the Commission could save time and make for a more orderly process. This determination of need could be in the nature of a generic proceeding without the necessity for site identification or detailed design information. Inasmuch as the hearing will be adjudicatory the findings on need would be binding in subsequent site-specific proceedings absent a prima facie showing of the necessity to reopen the record.

The findings required to conclude that the need for an AFR exists should include the following:

 Further compaction of nuclear fuel at the reactor site is technologically impossible or involves unacceptable risks to the public and/or worker health and safety during the period of planned reactor operation, and Construction of an additional at-reactor storage facility is technologically impossible or involves unacceptable risks to the public and/or worker health and safety during the period of planned reactor operation.

In addition, to deal with the possible problem created by the failure of utilities to anticipate spent fuel storage problems, the following principles should be applied:

- No spent fuel could be considered as a candidate for storage at an AFR unless the utility had implemented a concerted effort to resolve conditions 1 and 2 above.
- 2. No spent fuel could be shipped to an AFR except during the period required to determine the answer to conditions 1 and 2 above and, if both conditions are not met, for the further period required to obtain a final answer from all cognizant agencies to a proposal to expand at-reactor storage.
- No spent fuel could be shipped to an AFR from any reactor which received its operating license on or after December 31, 1979.
- 4. No spent fuel could be shipped to an AFR from any reactor which has been denied permission to expand spent fuel storage capacity unless the basis for denial was explicitly stated to be one of the two conditions listed previously.

These standards for determining need assure that a genuine need for spent fuel storage exists and prevents utilities from using AFRs to bail out of the waste problem. It also assures that local and state governmental entities with the authority to approve or disapprove spent fuel storage expansion do so with the knowledge that their denial, except on certain very explicit bases, will force shutdown of the reactor and with the assurance that if they make that decision the AFR will not be used as a device to evade the consequences of that decision. In this way the AFR concept remains neutral to the

question of the desirability of continued use of nuclear power.3 The economic and technical uncertainties which now surround nuclear waste management are legitimate uncertainties which flow directly from the anomaly created by beginning a nuclear power program without having any reasonably notion of how to solve the most serious and irreversible problem created by nuclear reactors -- nuclear waste. It is fair and essential that decisions on whether to build more nuclear plants and whether to continue to build and operate those to which commitments have already been made should be influenced by the real uncertainties created by this anomalous situation. For the government to step forward and to offer to take title to and store spent fuel in government-owned interim storage facilities in order to artificially establish for a utility a solution to the mounting volume of nuclear wastes for which in fact no disposal solution exists, is the worst kind of government subsidy. Nuclear power is rightly burdened by the waste problem and the absence of any solution to it. If its benefits are not sufficient to offset that burden, then it deserves to be halted.

6

B. Failure to require a final design

Nuclear reactor licensing has been marked by the inability of applicants to provide a final design for licensing approval at the construction permit stage. This has necessitated the two-hearing process (<u>Power Reacto, Co. v. Electrical</u> <u>Union</u>, 367 U.S. 396 (1961)) and much ratcheting. However, we <u>3/ The Draft IRG Report supports this neutrality</u>.

are repeatedly assured by the industry and the Staff that spent fuel storage pools involve no similarly complex technological problems. This is apparently reflected in the proposed Part 72 which contemplates only one hearing, at construction, for the AFR. Such an approach is certainly desirable provided the construction permit proceeding resolves all possible issues related to the facility design.

7

As drafted, Part 72 does not require that the construction permit approval be preceded by a final design approval. Such a requirement must be included or Part 72 makes a mockery of meaningful public or board participation. As the regulation is now written, the Staff will decide on its own, after construction is approved, what the AFR design should be. With all due deference to the Staff, past history exemplifies that they are not capable of adequately handling that job without the timely intervention of hearing boards and the public.

A requirement for final design approval prior to construction would avoid ratcheting, eliminate the need for hearings on proposed amendments to the preliminary design and avoid the illegality of an effort to turn a two-hearing process into a one-hearing process without eliminating the need for two hearings.

C. Failure to prohibit sunk costs prior to construction

As the decision in the Seabrook case makes clear, the expenditure of money by an applicant prior to approval of a construction permit can and does directly affect the outcome

of the Commission consideration of the wisdom of the issuance of the construction permit as compared to alternatives. The Commission thus has the authority to protect the integrity of its decision-making process by prohibiting such expenditures except to the extent they are essertial to the application process. Thus, proposed § 72.3(e) should be amended to exclude item (3) and to embody the principles enunciated.

8

D. NEPA

There should be a clear statement that the proposal to issue approval for any AFR is a major federal action significantly affecting the environment for which an impact statement is required. The incorporation by reference of the filing requirements of Part 51 contained in proposed § 72.20 is not sufficient, nor is the provision specifying findings under Part 51 contained in proposed § 72.31(10).

E. Emergency planning

Because the regulations propose only one hearing, the emergency planning requirements must include approval of the final plan. This final approval should include a finding that there is reasonable assurance that the state and local government emergency plan, which must be submitted in detail, will be implemented and what steps will be taken by NRC to assure its implementation.

F. Safeguards

A final plan for safeguarding the AFR must be approved as part of the construction permit program. The exception contained in Part 73 for spent fuel must not be applicable

unless the spent fuel meets the conditions of burnup, enrichment and age which are the premise for those exceptions.

9

G. Radiation exposures

The establishment of the 25 MREM limit for radiation exposures does not adequately account for possible exposures from other parts of the fuel cycle. The <u>total</u> dose set by EPA for any individual is 25 MREM/year from the nuclear fuel cycle. Some evaluation of other potential exposures for the individuals living near an AFR must be made to assure that total fuel cycle exposures are no more than 25 MREM.

H. General license

. There is no basis provided for the approval at this time of a general license as proposed in § 72.7.

I. Hearings

In several proposed sections (§§ 72.8, 72.32, 72.34, 72.36, 72.38, 72.81(d)), major actions of relevance to the public are authorized without an opportunity for a public hearing. Pursuant to Section 189 of the Atomic Energy Act and relevant court decisions (<u>Brooks v. AEC</u>, 476 F.2d 924 (D.C. Cir. 1974)), any action which alters the terms of a previously issued license must be noticed prior to the action being taken and the public must be provided with an opportunity to argue that a hearing would be appropriate. For instance, a decision to exempt a party from the licensing requirements (§ 72.8), to extend the period during which spent fuel can be stored at the AFR (§ 72.32), to change the owner and the thus the person financially responsible for the spent fuel (§ 72.36(c)) and to allow a license to be terminated and the responsible person to be adjudged to have completed all requirements for disposal of the spent fuel and of the facility (§ 72.38) are matters in which the public would be expected to have a substantial interest. the spent fuel and of the facility (§ 72.38) are matters about which the public would be expected to have a substantial interest. At a minimum, there should be an opportunity for a public hearing and a notice of such opportunity at the earliest date on which the Commission has reason to believe a proposal to take such action will be submitted.

The proposed regulations are based upon the premise that the applicant and/or the Staff can be relied upon to draw the line between matters which do not require public involvement and those which do. Given the general attitude of the applicant and the Staff to the public and its value in the process, such reliance is unwarranted. Only the public can adequately protect its own interests.

J. Financial security

One need only look at the West Valley fiasco to appreciate the importance of adequate financial arrangements with respect to storage of spent fuel. The proposed regulations address this issue far too casually. Specific criteria should be developed in advance for the financial arrangements for decommissioning which include a substantial bond or creation of an escrow fund and establish some basis for determining in advance what could be the maximum cost. Past cost estimates have been so ridiculously low (e.g., West Valley set up a \$4 million fund for a

B-235

10

problem whose cost may run as high as \$500 million to \$1 billion⁴) that great care should be used in setting the cost.

Pursuant to § 72.41(c), the Commission can retake title to spent fuel. This section should include a provision requiring that financial responsibility for the spent fuel and its disposal continues to rest with the licensee to avoid shifting the costs to the taxpayers.

The changes needed in the regulations would require substantial tightening of the provisions of proposed § 72.14(e)(3). In particular, the necessary funds should be guaranteed prior to issuance of a license and not merely be based on "reasonable assurance." The continuing financial trauma of the Seabrook facility, although the reasonable assurance finding had been made, supports the need for a more explicit finding.

K. Population and siting

Current population criteria are vague and inadequate. The proposed § 72.65 is even worse. Specific criteria defining population levels which are acceptable and man rem doses calculated using design basis accident conditions and conservative assumptions are the only reliable standards. Also the use of conservatively calculated man rem doses would permit a basis for comparison of alternative sites for safety purposes. See generally Natural Resources Defense Council and Citizens for a Better Environment Comments on Proposed Amendment to Appendix E to 10 CFR Part 50, In the Matter of Appendix E - Emergency Plans for Production and Utilization Facilities, October 23, 1973.

11

^{4/} NUREG-0043, April 1976, pp. 141, 142; DOE Western New York Nuclear Service Center Study, Final Report for Public Comment, TID-28905-1, November 1978.

The provision to automatically approve siting for accident purposes at an existing reactor site (43 Fed. Reg. 46310, column 1) is totally unacceptable. An accident with exposures of just below 5 rem per person (proposed § 72.67(b)) is not insignificant and does materially increase the risk to the public health and safety, particularly at existing reactor sites with high population concentrations like Seabrook, Zion, and Indian Point. Each AFR site should be evaluated on a caseby-case basis with respect to its acceptability.

L. Public health and safety

In proposed § 72.31(a)(11) a new concept of public health and safety is added which substantially dilutes existing requirements. There is nothing to authorize the reduction of the protection to the public to the level of only preventing all "unreasonable risks." The proper standard is reasonable assurance of <u>adequate</u> protection for the public health and safety. That standard must be maintained for AFRs.

M. Backfitting

The backfitting authority should explicitly include the authority to backfit where warranted by substantial additional protection for the environment. The extension of all Atomic Energy Act protections to environmental protection is required by NEPA and the courts. <u>Calvert Cliffs' Coordinating Committee</u> v. U.S. Atomic Energy Commission, 449 F.2d 1109 (D.C. Cir. 1971).

N. Fire protection

Fire may be one of the most serious hazards for an AFR because the fire becomes the mechanism for an alteration in and dispersal of the nuclear material. The provisions of proposed Design Criteria (3) do not recognize this and include vague generalities and numerous loopholes. For instance, noncombustibles and heat-resistant materials are only required to be used where practical. There is no basis to dilute safety in the name of economy. The Union of Concerned Scientists petition on fire protection systems provides ample support for the need for careful standards for fire protection and those comments are incorporated here by reference.

III. Conclusion

Throughout the proposed regulations is the theme that the AFRs are good and should be encouraged. One classic example is the statement in the preamble (43 Fed. Reg. 46310, column 3) which indicates that accident limits for siting were set with the principle that they could be met, not that they were what was required. This attitude is unacceptable for a regulatory agency and reflects a continuation of the promotional bias. These proposed regulations should be withdrawn and should be rewritten by persons who are not predisposed to believe that AFRs are safe and should be encouraged.

Respectfully submitted,

Anthony 2 Roisman Natural Resources Defense Council 917 15th Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20005 7202)737-5000

Dated: January 12, 1979

13



THE CLEVELAND ELECTRIC ILLUMINATING COMPANY

ILLUMINATING BLDG. . PUBLIC SQUARE . CLEVELAND, OHIO 44101 . TELEPHONE (218) 623-1350 . MAIL ADDRESS P. O. BOX 5000

NRC PUBLIC DOCUMENT ROOM

Dalwyn R. Davidson VICE PRESIDENT - ENGINEERING Serving The Best Location in the Nation

January 10, 1979

PROPOSED RULE

Mr. Samuel J. Chilk Secretary of the Commission U. S. Muclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch



Gentleman:

The Federal Register on October 6, 1978 published a proposed change to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission Regulations. This proposed change specifies licensing requirements for the storage of spent fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) and has been designated 10 CFR Part 72. Although the comment period has expired, we are nevertheless submitting the following brief comments in the expectation that they might also be given consideration.

1) 72.33 LICENSE CONDITIONS, ITEM 03, SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS

In relation to the statement "Surveillance requirements are requirements relating to tests ... to assure that the necessary integrity of ... the fuel in storage is maintained", we assume that the "RC does not mean "tests" in the sense of testing the integrity of the spent fuel by experiment." To clarify this ambiguity, we suggest that the section read "Surveillance requirements are requirements relating to inspection of the fuel and inspection, calibrations and tests to assure that the necessary integrity of required systems and components is maintained, that operation, etc."

2) 72.71 ITEM 8, THE FUEL CLAUDING SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST DEGRADATION AND GROSS HUPTURE -

To prevent degradation, some of the failed fuel might be containerized. A section should be included discussing the storage of spent fuel in cannisters. If fuel is stored in containers then it should be required that only the integrity of the container be maintained against all postalated events.

Acknowledged by card ... 1/19 POOR ORIGINA

3) 72.71 (18) HEAT REMOVAL CAPABILITY WITH TESTABILITY

We assume that the NRC does not mean "testability" in the sense of testability of the heat removal capability by experiment. We suggest that "testability" be defined as the ability to check system performance by periodic monitoring of instrumented system parameters.

We fully endorse the Radioactive Waste Management Group comments on the Proposed MRC Regulations on Away-From-Reactor Spent Fuel Storage Facilities. These were forwarded to you earlier on behalf of the Group by Shaw, Pittman, Potts and Trowbridge of Washington, D.C.

Very truly yours,

Dalwyn R. Davidson VICE FRESIDERT - KREINKERING



EDISON ELECTRI The association of electric companies 68 90 Park Avenue. New

1140 Connecticut Avenue, N.W. CETACITE BULE PR-72(43FR46809) Washing on D.C. 20036 Tel. (202) 862-3800

January 22, 1979

Secretary of the Commission US Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555

171 OCXETER

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Proposed Rule 10CFR Part 72 Subject: Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)

Gentlemen

The Edison Electric Institute is the national association of investor-owned electric utility companies and its members serve 77.5 percent of the nation's electricity customers. We are pleased to have an opportunity to comment on the proposed rule 10CFR Part 72. While it is recognized that Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installations (ISFSI's) may be licensed under the current 10CFR Part 70 regulations the establishment of a new Part 72 is encouraged to provide a more specific licensing procedure for ISFSI's. A definitive Part 72 regulation that effectively addresses and resolves many identifiable elements of an ISFSI during its rulemaking proceeding will provide a comprehensive basis for effective and timely future licensing actions.

Each nuclear power facility licensed under 10CFR Part 50 includes a spent fuel storage area as a component of the facility. Part 50 specifically addresses the nuclear power facility and entails more stringent requirements than is typically necessary for an ISFSI. The proposed rule 10CFR Part 72 should entail less stringent requirements than Part 50 and no element of Part 72 should impose requirements beyond those of Part 50.

A provision should be included in Part 72 that recognizes the already accepted qualifications of both an applicant and a site that have current license approvals under Part 50. Any application for a license under Part 72 for an ISFSI facility to be located on the site of a Part 50 facility for which the applicant holds a construction or Secretary of the Commission Page Two

an operating license should be accepted as a pre-qualified applicant with a pre-qualified site. Such pre-qualification should be applicable at least to financial responsibility, population distribution and a majority if not all of the elements of an environmental evaluation.

Generic environmental impact statements have been drafted and are being reviewed on spent fuel storage including NUREG 0404, Handling and Storage of Light Water Reactor Fuel, DOE/EIS-0041-D, Charge For Spent Fuel Storage, and DOE/EIS-0015-D, Storage of US Spent Power Reactor Fuel. Many environmental elements of spent fuel storage will be resolved with these reviews. Environmental elements that are resolved during generic evaluations of programmatic spent fuel storage activities should be accepted by reference for any site-specific license and not subject to redundant and duplicate environmental evaluation. Also, the environmental evaluations for activities on the same site that have preceeded the ISFSI applications should be accepted by reference and not duplicated. Any additional environmental evaluations to satisfy NEPA requirements should be specifically limited to the incremental impact of the ISFSI during the site-specific licensing consideration.

The issue of financial protection and respons bility for public liability should be resolved for ISFSI's in a manner similar to storage of spent fuel at reactor sites. Spent fuel is covered under Price-Anderson when stored in a reactor pool or a reprocessing plant pool. An extension of the applicability of Price-Anderson to the ISFSI facilities appears to be in order and is recommended. The low level of risk for such a facility should be recognized and a resonable level of financial protection required.

Specific comments on several paragraphs of the proposed rule are provided as Attachment A. We will gladly discuss our comments in greater detail with you at your convenience.

Sincerely yours John J Kearney

Senior Vice President

Acknowledged by card ... Alk

ATTACHMENT A

EDISON ELECTRIC INSTITUTE Comments on

Proposed Rule 10CFR Part 72, Licensing Requirements For The Storage of Spent Fuel In An Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)

72.1 Purpose

The purpose should include a clear statement that the license will permit the receipt and storage of spent fuel whether or not title to the spent fuel is held by the licensee. Also, further clarification is needed for the limitation of temporary storage which should include all or part of the time between reactor discharge of the spent fuel and the point when the spent fuel is either reprocessed or disposed of in a Federal repository.

72.3 Definitions

(j) "Independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI)." The definition of an ISFSI should include all independent spent fuel storage installations whether located at a separate site or located at a site that includes other facilities licensed under 10CFR.

(s) "Structures, systems and components important to safety." The definition provided in the proposed rule appears to extend beyond the requirements of 10CFR Part 50 Appendix B and it should be rephrased. These items should be limited to include only those "structures, systems and components that prevent or mitigate the consequences of postulated accidents that could cause undue risk to the health and safety of the public."

72.6 License Required

This section refers to two types of licenses, 1) general and 2) specific. A subsequent paragraph 72.7 provides a discussion of the general license and a similar subsequent paragraph is recommended to provide the elements and applicability of a specific license.

72.15 (b) The requirement for annual updating of the SAR appears to be unjustified. Updating should be required periodically when significant changes or modifications are contemplated and filed with the Commission. Commission approval on SAR updated information should be limited to major changes that result in significant plant modifications or operations.

72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including its Financing

Information on the disposal of radioactive material as requested could be interpreted to include a plan for disposition of the spent fuel. Since the Federal Government has indefinitely deferred reprocessing and Federal policy is required to define the disposition of spent fuels, the decommissioning plan should specifically exclude the disposition of spent fuel. Decommissioning information should be similar to that required under Part 50 and the proposed requirement for the disposal and decontamination procedures that will be employed many decades hence should be removed.

72.20 Environmental Report

A specific statement should be included that calls for the recognition by reference to all environmental issues of spent fuel storage that are previously resolved in programmatic and generic environmental reviews and other site specific environmental reviews. Such a position will minimize the redundant and duplicate review of previously settled issues.

72.31 (a) (10) Issuance of Licenses

A reference should be included for the recognition of previously resolved environmental elements to preclude redundant and duplicate reviews. Environmental reviews should be limited to site specific and project-specific effects related to the facility being considered.

72.32 Duration of License; Renewal

The 20 year maximum licensing period is unduly restrictive. A longer term, equivalent to the 40 year power reactor license period is recommended.

72.42 Backfitting

The requirement as stated appears to be overly restrictive. Backfitting should be required only after a determination has been made that the benefits of backfitting are significantly greater than the cost of providing the backfitting. New regulations and changes in regulations should not be automatically imposed upon a licensed facility unless it can be demonstrated as necessary for the protection the health and safety of the public.

72.51 Material Balance, Inventory and Records required for stored Materials

This section should clearly recognize the character of spent fuel in terms of material accountability. A specific statement should be included that analytical analysis of the nuclear material components and the composition of the nuclear material are not required to verify quantities at the time of receipt, at inventory points or at the time of shipment. Nuclear compositions should be accepted as determined by the shipper to the ISFSI and the composition and quantities should be retained unchanged and recorded without modification when the spent fuel is shipped from the ISFSI. Material control in a ISFSI should be by item control and piece count that does not require verification by analytical analysis.

Subpart E - Siting Criteria

A soction should be included in Subpart E that recognizes the pre-qualification of a site that has been previously approved by the NRC for a lOCFR Part 50 facility. Such sites should automatically qualify for a Part 72 installation.

72.66 Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic Characteristics

We concur with the position that any site with a peak horizontal ground acceleration of not greater than 0.25 g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years, shall be deemed suitable for an ISFSI site. A specific reference should be provided for the basis of determining that the g value of a site is no greater than 0.25g. However, ISFSI's should not be excluded from sites with a greater g value. Any site that has an established g value either above or below 0.25 g for a Part 50 facility should also be deemed acceptable for a Part 72 installation that is designed to withstard the established g loadings for that site.

The reference to designs other than water basin type requiring a site-specific investigation and analysis appears to be inappropriate and should be eliminated. The seismic characteristics of 72.66 should be applicable to all types of ISFSI's.

72.71 (2) (ii) General Design Criteria

The design requirement to withstand earthquake horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g should be required only for those installations sited on the basis of 72.66 without a seismic analysis of the site. For these sites where a determination is made that a g value lower or higher than 0.25g is applicable, the determined g value may be used as the design requirement.

72.71 (10) Control Room or Control Areas

A clarification is recommended for this paragraph. As worded, it could be interpreted that the ISFSI is to be operated remotely from a control room or control areas. Certain items should be controllable from central locations. However, many items such as cranes, hoists and underwater tools should be operated by persons having visual contact with the operating items. This paragraph should be expanded to describe more fully the intent of permitting visual contact operation during normal activities and to provide safe control during off-normal or accident conditions.

72.71 (19) Waste Treatment

The requirement "to concentrate all site generated wastes," needs further clarification since some waste, such as discarded equipment, do not lend themselves to concentration. Concentration requirements should be based on a combination of cost effectiveness and personnel radiation exposure considerations in addition to waste form and volume. NRC PUBLIC DOCUMP ROOM

DESIGN CONSTRUCTION

January 8,

REPORTS EXAMINATIONS CONSULTING ENGINEERING

197

DOCRETED

USNRC

26

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

245 SUMMER STREET, BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO P.O. BOX 2325. BOSTON. MASS. 02107

BOSTON NEW YORK CHERAY HILL NJ. DENYER CHICAGO HOUSTON PORTLAND, OREGON SAN DIEGO WASHINGTON, D.C.

DOCKET MUHINR PRONDIED BULE FIN-73

Secretary of the Commission U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Attention Docketing and Service Branch Washington, DC 20555

Gentlemen:

PROPOSED 10CFR72

The following comments and suggestions are submitted for consideration with respect to proposed new regulation 10CFR72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)."

Part 72 precludes the issuance of an LWA-type permit. However, paragraph 72.31(a)(10) appears to allow a license to be issued upon a conclusion by the Director of the Office of Nuclear Materials Safety & Safeguards or after public hearings and an ASLB finding with respect to environmental issues. Part 72 should contain specific provisions to allow certain construction activities to proceed prior to hearings and ASLB findings if hearings are to be held.

Paragraph 72.3(s) defines structures systems and components important to safety. This definition is inconsistent with 10CFR50 Appendix A which defines these as "...structures systems and components that provide reasonable assurance that the facility can be operated without undue risk to the health and safety of the public."

Accordingly 72.3(s) should be revised to read "Structures, systems and components important to safety" means those items whose function is to (1) maintain the required spent fuel storage conditions, and (2) prevent damage to the spent fuel during transfer and storage.

Paragraph 72.15(a)(13) states that doses due to direct exposure, inhalation, and ingestion should be analyzed for a 24-hr period, while paragraph 72.67 gives a single 2 hr dose criterion of 5 rem. Clarification is needed with respect to whether or not the criterion applies to total dose with an equivalent dose applied to other organs (as ir GDC 19) and what limits apply beyond 2 hr. Paragraph 72.71(2)(ii) excludes tornado missiles as a design basis. However, Draft Regulatory Guide 3.24.3 (revised September 1, 1978) discusses tornado missile analyses. This is an inconsistency. Therefore, the Regulatory Guide should be revised to be consistent with the design bases requirements of Part 72.

Paragraph 72.71(3), "Protection against fires and explosions" (third sentence) implies that explosion detection, alarm, and suppression systems are provided. We suggest deletion of the words "Explosion and" from the beginning of this sentence.

In the first sentence of paragraph 72.71(12), "Design for criticality safety," the words "to be" should be replaced with "such that the spent fuel is."

Paragraph 72.71(13) suggests that permanently fixed neutron-absorbing materials is an "alternative" method of criticality control and favorable geometry is the "standard" method. The regulation should not define what is a standard and what is an alternative. We suggest combining the paragraphs to read as follows:

(13) Acceptable methods of control. Favorable geometry (spacing) and the use of permanently fixed neutron-absorbing materials (poisons) are acceptable methods of nuclear criticality control. Subcriticality is assured by limiting the reactivity through the control of spacing of the individual storage unit (one or more fuel assemblies) and, for underwater storage, by the neutron absorption by the water between storage units. Where solid neutron-absorbing materials are used for the prevention of nuclear criticality, the design shall provide for positive means to verify their continued efficacy. Storage racks must be structurally compatible with seismic design criteria.

Very truly yours,

S. B. Jacobs Chief Licensing Engineer

WB:MAT

Acknowledged by and

2

NRC PUBLIC DOCIDEDIT SOON



STATE OF NEW YORK

JAMES L. LAROCCA COMMISTIONER JULS CREED

January 15, 1979

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Sir:

The New York State Energy Office and the State Department of Environmental Conservation have reviewed NRC's proposed regulation (10CFR72) regarding procedure and license requirements for an Indendent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI).

The following comments regarding the proposed regulation are offered for your consideration:

- We urge that the license procedure as stated in 10CFR72 (proposed) relating to public hearings and intervention by interested parties be defined with more specificity. The proposal is vague in presenting the procedural steps available to carry out this important part of the licensing procedure. We believe the licensing section of 10CFR72 (proposed) Subpart B, should parallel the requirements for production and utilization facilities as stated in 10CFR50, Class 103 licenses, thus allowing the opportunity for citizen and State input prior to issuance of an ISFSI license.
- The supplementary information section of 10CFR72 (proposed) mentions amendments to regulations establishing public hearing procedures. These amendments should be made available as expeditiously as possible to allow a complete review and comment by the public.
- o The term "active fault" as used in Section 72.66 should be defined in the proposed regulations. The terminology should be comparable to that of IOCFRIOO, Appendix "A", III Definitions.

AGENCY BUILDING 2 EMPIRE STATE PLAZA ALBANY, NEW YORK (2223

Secretary of the Commission January 15, 1979

Page 2

- o Consideration should be given to reducing the proposed annual dose limit criteria. A reduction of the proposed limit would be in accordance with the "as low as reasonably achievable" concept defined in 10CFR20. Spent fuel storage pool experience to date appears to indicate that a lower limit would not be restrictive to the normal operation of the facility.
- Potential effects resulting from the increased handling and transportation of spent fuel to an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation should be considered in the licensing process.

We appreciate having the opportunity to comment on this proposed regulation.

Sincerely,

Theodore K. DeBoer Director of Nuclear Operations

TKD/1w

Acknowledged by card



ICANO CHEMICAL PROGRAMS OPERATIONS OFFICE

550 Second Street Idaho Falis, Idaho 83401

VOCAET MUNICIAN PROYAGED RULE MA-72 43FR46309)

Russell E. L. Stanford Fuel Process Systems Standards Branch Division of Engineering Standards Office of Standards Development US Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington DC 20555

Dear Russ:

I appreciate your letter of October 27, 1978, requesting a review of the proposed spent fuel storage regulation, 10 CFR Part 72. This regulation was reviewed by several members of our staff with extensive experience in spent fuel storage. We found the regulation reasonable and generally very good with no major recommended changes. Some comments are attached for your consideration.

This transmittal also covers the comments of B. R. Wheeler. Please feel free to contact me if we can be of any assistance.

Sincerely,

J. Dugone

Assistant Manger, FAST Project

Attachment

Acknowledgent hand

jr

JAN 10 1979

Comments on 10 CFR Part 72 Dug-1-79



110-100000000

1. Supplementary Information, paragraph 5 under Section 4.

It is not apparent why aged spent fuel need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles. The facility should provide enough protection from these natural events to preclude possible criticalities and the rupture of the basin.

2. Supplementary Information, paragraph 9 under Section 4.

An exclusion clause should permit design of the ISFSI's to a lower seismic acceleration provided sufficient evidence is presented to support the lower seismic acceleration.

3. Paragraph 72.3, Section (b)

The definition of ALARA would be significantly improved if a dollar value would be set.

4. Paragraph 72.38, Section (a)

This information is redundant to that requested in paragraph 72.18

5. Paragraph 72.42, Section (a)

A definition of "substantial addition" should be provided. This leaves a licensee open to significant political risk.

6. Paragraph 72.55, Section (c)

This section needs clarification. It is not clear what is meant by "--tests of (1) spent fuel during handling and storage, (2) spent fuel handling and storage facilities --".

7. Paragraph 72.64, Sections (a) and (b)

An evaluation of usual characteristics should also be made.

8. Paragraph 72.71, Section (2) (ii).

Reference paragraph 72.66 instead of the parenthetical phrase stating seismic accelerations of at least 0.25 g. Paragraph 72.66 allows an exception.

9. Paragraph 72.71, Section (8)

The word "significant" should be inserted prior to degradation in the first sentence. It would be impossible to present enough evidence that no degradation could occur during storage.

10. Paragraph 72.81, Section (b)

This is very general and could be very difficult to comply with unless made somewhat more specific. Recommend deleting requirement to preclude inside sabotage.

Also, the details of physical protection should be kept confidential or this requirement could be self defeating because access to details could make the facility more vulnerable to sabotage. CHAITANOOGA. TENNESSEE 37401 500C Chestnut Street Tower II 23 PRGPOSED RULE PR - 72(43FR 46309)

Pebruary 1 6, 197: Left state 1123 Lef

Secretary of the Commission U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555

Attention: Docketing and Service Branch

Dear Sir:

In accordance with the October 6, 1978, Federal Register notice (43 FR 46309-46321), the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) is pleased to comment on the proposed new regulation, 10 CFR Part 72, which provides procedures and requirements for issuance of a license to store spent fuel in an independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI). We have reviewed the proposed new regulation and our specific comments are enclosed.

TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY

The Council on Environmental Quality regulations clearly favor lead agency arrangements when more than one Federal agency is involved in a project (40 CFR 1501.5 as noticed in 43 FR 55992-55993). By referencing 10 CFR Part 51, Part 72 implicitly incorporates footnote 1 of 10 CFR 51.20, permitting lead agency agreements between the Federal agencies involved in the implementation of the provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) in lieu of an environmental report. Such lead agency agreements minimize the duplication of efforts by the Federal agencies involved in the preparation of environmental impact statements (EIS), while still ensuring that the EIS for each project will satisfy the NEPA requirements of each agency involved. Because Part 72 does not explicitly discuss lead agency agreement, a specific provision should clarify the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC) intent.

We recommend that Part 72 be revised to permit explicitly the development of lead agency agreements by adding the following footnote to Sections 72.20 and 72.31(10):

Where the "applicant," as used in this part, is a Federal agency, different arrangements for implementing NEPA may be made, pursuant to the Guidelines established by the Council on Environmental Quality.

B-254

An Equal Opportunity Employer

February 16, 197

Secretary of the Commission

While it appears that an ISFSI license would not be required for a utility to transship fuel from one nuclear plant's spent fuel pool to another plant's pool, the regulation is not explicit. The NRC could avoid potential future disputes by clarifying the definition of an ISFSI contained in Section 72.3(j) to ensure that it does not encompass a spent fuel pool which is an integral part of a nuclear plant.

-2-

Sections 72.18, 72.38, and 72.71(20) in referring to a decommissioning plan for the ISFSI require decontamination of the site and dismantling and disposal of the facility. This rules out alternate methods of decommissioning such as mothballing. We suggest that the NRC reword these sections to clearly state that alternative decommissioning methods may be permissible.

Very truly yours,

E Gillefond

J. E. Gilleland Assistant Manager of Power

Enclosure cc (Enclosure): Executive Secretary Advisory Committee on Reactor Safeguards U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 1717 H Street, NW. Washington, DC 20555

> Mr. R. A. Szalay AIF, Inc. 7101 Wisconsin Avenue Washington, DC 20555

ENCLOSURE

TVA COMMENTS ON PROPOSED REGULATION 10 CFR PART 72

1. Section 72.3 Definitions

- 72.3(e) We believe construction of suitable access facilities to the site should be excluded from the definition of "commencement of construction" and should be so stated. We suggest adding the following:
 - (4) Construction of suitable access facilities to the site.
- 72.3(j) We suggest the definition of ISFSI be changed to permit or allow the supporting services to not necessarily be dedicated totally to the ISFSI.
- 72.3(s) We believe in (1) the phrase, "required spent fuel storage conditions" is vague and should be defined if used here. Also, it would seem to encompass prevention of damage to spent fuel during storage in (2). We suggest the definition of this term should be based upon those items whose failure to function under design basis events would cause allowable offsite dose limits to be exceeded (e.g., damage to spent fuel during transfer generally will not result in releases which will exceed offsite dose limits).

Plant personnel exposures should not be included in this definition except to ensure maintenance of the fuel to prevent exceeding allowable offsite dcse limits. Design occupational dose limits are tied to ALARA considerations and operating limits or technical specifications.

2. Section 72.15 Contents of Application: Technical Information

72.15(a) We suggest it should be clearly stated whether "the iii loss of water" analysis is for a nonmechanistic total water loss or a maximum credible water loss.

> The use of the term "ultimate capacity" as used in Section 72.15 (a) (1) is ambiguous. It should be clarified that the site is to be assessed assuming that the installation will be operated at the capacity which the applicant requests in its application. If the applicant wishes to expand the capacity at a later time, it should have the option of licensing the present contemplated capacity or a larger capacity possibly needed is the future.

The NRC should clarify whether the \$1,000 per Man-rem test in Part 50, Appendix I, will apply to the as-low-as-reasonably-achievable requirement in Sections 72.15(a) (5) and 72.33(d).

72.15(c) It appears the term "safety-related" used here and elsewhere in Part 72 is the same as defined in

72.3(s) "structures, system, and components important to safety." If this is so, we suggest the equivalence should be stated, and, if this is so, the term should be defined.

3. Section 72.18 Decommissioning Plan, Including Its Financing

71.18(a) We believe the requirement for proposed procedures for decommissioning is too delinitive for this time. It would have a tendency to commit to a certain procedure and not take into account any future advancements in technology. We suggest instead use of the words "proposed practices," using "preliminary alternative methods." This would permit updating the decommissioning plan as the actual decommissioning time approaches taking inco account the regulatory requirements in effect at time. We also believe the definition of "dismantling and disposal" should be more specific. Uismantling and disposal might not be the best method. It appears reasonable to allow the concrete structure of the rool and embedded piping to remain in place and he filled with earth or sand.

4. Section 72.19 Emergency Plan

Section 72.19 requires a final (FSAR stage) radiological emergency plan (REP) when the application is submitted. We suggest a preliminary version of the REP te acceptable for submittal with the initial application.

5. Section 72.20 Environmental Report

Section 72.20 requires an environmental report which meets the requirements of 10 CFR Part 51. Part 51 requires two environmental reports, one at the construction permit stage and one at the operating license stage. Since Part 72 requires only a single license, only one environmental report should be required. This could be implied, it would eliminate the possibility of future dispute if Section 72.2t were to specify the requirement.

The applicant for a license under Part 72 may be a Federal agency. In that case, a lead agency agreement in accordance with the Council on Environmental Quality regulations should obviate the need for an environmental report. Part 72 should allow for this possible exception in Section 72.20.

6. Section 72.42 Backfitting

Section 72.42(a) Backfitting - The Commission should prepare a benefit/cost evaluation before requiring any changes in an ISFSI after the license has been issued.

7. <u>Section 72.62 Criteria for Design Basis External Natural</u> Events

We believe Section 72.62 is vague and does not specify a design basis flood. This contrasts with draft Regulatory Guide 3.24.1 and 3.24.3 which specify a Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) approach. We do not believe that a PMF approach is justifiable for an ISFSI because the consequences of floods are much less severe.

8. <u>Section 72.66 Criteria for Defining Acceptable Seismic</u> <u>Characteristics</u>

Section 72.66(a) indicates that a peak horizontal ground acceleration of nct greater than 0.25g with a recurrence interval of at least 500 years can be used to define the earthquake or that a site specific "g value" can be determined by procedures outlined in 10 CFR 100. We suggest several clarifications that are needed for this section as follows:

- a. Horizontal ground acceleration is specifically stated; therefore, vertical acceleration should be specified or the word "horizontal" removed.
- b. The ground motion should be specified as free-field surface motion.
- c. This section implies that if a site specific "g value" is determined, an earthquake with a return period of 500 years could be used. This should be clearly stated. In the majority of the eastern United States, a 500-year earthquake would result in maximum accelerations less than 0.10g. This is quite a bit smaller than 0.25g which would definitely affect the cost of at least the equipment.
- d. Specification of just a peak "g value" is not complete.
 Additional information should be included concerning ground response spectra and methods of analyses (static or dynamic)
or tests for structures, systems, and components. 10 CFR 100, Appendix A, Section VI(a) is an example of what needs to be added. Use of the regulatory guide spectra is applicable for most sites, but some reference or information should be in 10 CFR 72.

9. <u>Section 72.67 Criteria For Defining Fotential Radiological</u> <u>Consequences</u>

72.67(a) We believe by referencing 40 CFR 190.11 in the footnotes, the Commission infers an annual dose equivalent from this facility of 25 mrem total body, 75 mrem thyroid, and 25 mrem to other organs. Yet, in the "Supplementary Information" the ISFSI is considered as part of the uranium fuel cycle.

This appears to be a discrepancy in annual dose equivalent limits and should be clarified.

72.67(b) We suggest the phrase should read, "exceed 5 rem whole body dose in 2 hours."

10. Section 72.71 General Design Criteria

72.71(2) "Structures, systems, and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g), tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lightning, hurricanes, floods, tsunami, and seiches without impairing their capability to perform safety functions."

- a. The statement from the Supplementary Information lumped all extreme weather events together and implies that consideration for these events is not critical to the design; however, the requirements in the general design criteria specifically name extreme weather events to be considered in the design, except tornado generated missiles. This ambiguity needs to be resolved.
- b. This statement appears to be inconsistent with Section 72.66 (b) in that "(with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25g)" does not allow for the possibility of using a lower site specific earthquake even if justified by adequate supporting data.
- 72.71(2) This section should be more specific as to which iii natural phenomena should be measured. Lightning, as listed above, is a natural phenomenon, but it would be inappropriate to be required to determine its intensity.
- 72.71(8) A degradation of cladding should be defined in
 i Section 72.3 as that which would cause the offsite accident dose limits to be exceeded.

B-262

Tornado missile impact could cause what might be considered as "gross ruptures" and "cladding degradation": however, accident analyses may show the doses to be acceptable. Therefore, we suggest this item should be rewritten to allow clad failures of this type and magnitude, if the exposures are within the limits.

- 72.71(8) We suggest addition of the following at the end of this subsection,*... to control airflow paths for proper airborne radioactivity routing and to provide for pressurization of the safety-related buildings.*
- 72.71(10) We believe it should be permissible to abandon the control room in certain accident situations if it can be ensured that no controls or monitors are required from the control room during the period of evacuation or that the required controls or monitoring can be accomplished from another area that is habitable. A requirement for continuous control room occupation should not be necessary for the quasi-static nature of spent fuel storage. Also, it would be very expensive to design the control room for the postulated accident conditions (e.g. LCCA) that may exist at a site shared by a nuclear power plant.

B-263

72.71(12) It should be possible to allow for a fuel handling system failure (from a <u>single failure</u>) and postulated resultant criticality (e.g. seismically caused fuel basket drop) if the doses are within the prescribed limits.

72.71(13) We suggest adding after ". . . the neutron absorption by the water," the following phrase, "and rack structure." This is consistent with current design practice in which the rack structure is considered separate from a burnable neutron poison material and as a result would not have to have a special poison verification program (e.g. periodic removal and inspection) established (other than to ensure that unacceptable corrosion has nct occurred).

72.71(17) This section implies that "as low as is reasonably achievable" amounts to termination of flow or retention of effluents. It is possible that releases during normal operation and accident conditions will not result in exposures that exceed site boundary limits and that the addition of features to terminate flow or retain effluents will not be cost-beneficial according to the methodology of Regulatory Guide 1.110. Therefore, we suggest you reword this section as follows:

> (a) Add this statement to the end of the first sentence: "... or it shall be shown by appropriate analyses that releases to the environment during normal operations

> > B-264

(including anticipated occurrences) and during accident conditions are within acceptable exposure limits."

(b) Reword the last two sentences to read: "System provided to monitor the release of materials shall be designed to be periodically tested and calibrated and shall provide adequate alarm(s) upon detection of release levels in excess of approved operating limits. In all cases, it shall be shown that the capability exists to ensure that the concentrations and cotal quantities of radioactive materials in effluents can be maintained within the limits of Part 20 and are as low as is reasonably achievable."

11. imments on Supplementary Information

 It is stated in the Supplementary Information, "Aged spent fuel, having lost the short-lived radionuclides by decay, needs not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles."

The level of natural phenomena to be used as acceptable design bases should be made more explicit. Two methods appear satisfactory Preferably, these requirements should be specified on the basis of an acceptable recurrence interval for the events in order to account for regionally varying phenomena. For example, a 500-year tornado wind might be specified. Alternately, plant design and review standardization could be further advanced by requiring specific design basis values (e.g. a 200-mph tornado wind) at the expense of overdesign for some phenomena in some regions.

2. Paragraph 16 of the Supplementary Information indicates that, "The proposed Part 72 includes an operational issue limit to any member of the general public of 25 mrem per year from the uranium fuel cycle . . ." The way the dose limits are included in the body of the proposed Part 72 (Section 72.67) does not appear to support the ". . . from the uranium fuel cycle . . ." portion of the above statement. See our comments on 72.67 for further discussion.

SARGENT & LUNDY

ENGINEERS

FOUNDED BY FREDERICK SARGENT-1891 55 EAST MONROE STREET

CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60603

JOHN S. LOOMIS ASSOCIATE 312-269-3930

TELEPHONE - 312-269-2000 CABLE ADDRESS - SARLUN-CHICAGO

DECKIN NUMBER -1-12(1 3FR46309 PREPOSED QULE T

February 28, 1979

Secretary of the Commission Docketing and Service Section U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555



Dear Sir:

Enclosed are our comments on 10 CFR Part 72, "Storage of Spent Fuel in an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI)".

We appreciate having been given the opportunity to comment.

Yours very truly,

camp

S. Loomis, Head Nuclear Safeguards & Licensing Division

JSL:WTD:bc Enclosure Copies: M. S. Turbak (1/1) G. P. Wagner (1/1) NSLD File 1B-4 (1/1)

3/16/79

ENGINEERS CHICAGO

10 CFR Part 72

STORAGE OF SPENT FUEL IN AN INDEPENDENT SPENT FUEL STORAGE INSTALLATION (ISFSI)

COMMENTS

 In the Supplementary Information paragraphs of the 10 CFR Part 72, it is correctly stated that:

> "Aged spent fuel, having lost short lived radionuclides by decay, need not have a high degree of protection from weather extremes, tornadoes, or tornado generated missiles."

However, requirements of Section 72.71 (2) (ii) of the regulation are as follows:

"Structures, systems and components important to safety shall be designed to withstand the effects of natural phenomena such as earthquakes (with a horizontal ground motion acceleration of at least 0.25 g), tornadoes (excluding tornado missiles), lightning, hurricanes, floods, tsunami, and seiches without impairing their capability to perform safety functions."

Here we see a discrepancy between the intent as expressed in the Supplementary Information and the general design criteria part of the regulation which calls for protection against such extreme environmental events as 0.25 g earthquake and tornadoes, etc. Sargent & Lundy believes that:

The ANS Working Groups 2.19 and 57.7 have concluded, based on the radiological risk study [Reference 1], that ISFSI need not be designed to resist the effects of tornadoes. B-268

a) The design requirements for tornadoes be deleted.

SARGENT & LUNDY ENGINEERS CHICAGO

- b) The horizontal ground acceleration of at least 0.25 g is overly conservative for a low risk facility. For an ISFSI located near nuclear power plants in most midwest and Eastern states, the design earthquake of 0.25 g would exceed the SSE for the nuclear power plant. This situation may raise undue questions in the mind of the public as to the safety of the nuclear power plant. We recommend: the 300-year earthquake acceleration should be selected for the design of ISFSI.
- 2. The extent of site investigation required in Subpart E -Siting Criteria is not compatible with the potentially low radiological risk from ISFSI as expressed throughout the proposed rules.

References

-

 Sargent, I. H., "Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) Evaluation of Radiological Risk Associated with Low Probability External Events." Report prepared by Wester Services Inc., Fort Washington, PA. for Allied Chemical Corporation, Idaho Falls, Id 83401

	NRC FORM 335 U.S. NUCLCAR REGULATORY COMMISSION		1. REPORT NUMBER Mansard by DOCI	
BIBLIOGRAPHIC DATA SHEET		NUREG-0587		
4 TITLE AND SUBTITLE (And Volume No., if ppropriate)		2. (Leave blank)		
Analyses of Comments on 10 CFR Part 72		3. RECIPIENT'S ACCESSION NO.		
7. AUTHORISI Dennis W. Reisenweaver		5. DATE REPORT COMPLETED		
		MONTH October	1980	
9. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS (Include Zip Code) U.S. Nuclear Egulatory Commission Washington, D.C 20555		DATE REPORT IS MONTH November	I YEAR 1980	
		6. <i>(Leave blank)</i>		
		B. (Leave blank)		
12. SPONSORING ORGANIZATION NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS (Include Zip Code)		10. PROJECT/TASK/WORK UNIT NO.		
		11. CONTRACT NO.		
13. TYPE OF REPORT	PERIOD COV	ERED (Inclusive dates)		
Regulatory	1979 - 1980			
15. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES		14. (Leave blank)		
was published October 6, 1978.				
17. KEY WORDS AND DOCUMENT ANALYSIS	17a. DESCRIPT	ORS		
17. KEY WORDS AND DOCUMENT ANALYSIS Spent Fuel Storage ISFSI Temporary Storage	17a. DESCRIPT	ORS		
17. KEY WORDS AND DOCUMENT ANALYSIS Spent Fuel Storage ISFSI Temporary Storage 17b. IDENTIFIERS/OPEN-ENDED TERMS	17a. DESCRIPT	ORS		
17. KEY WORDS AND DOCUMENT ANALYSIS Spent Fuel Storage ISFSI Temporary Storage 17b. IDENTIFIERS/OPEN-ENDED TERMS 18. AVAILABILITY STATEMENT Unlimited	17a. DESCRIPT	ORS	21. NO. OF PAGE 22. FRICE	